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·1· ·February 5, 2019· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·10:00 a.m.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Good morning.· We are

·4· ·here for Public Service Commission hearing in Docket

·5· ·18-35-1, Application of Rocky Mountain Power to Increase

·6· ·the Deferred Rate through the Energy Balancing Account

·7· ·Mechanism.· We have a few preliminary matters to

·8· ·discuss, but why don't we start with appearances from

·9· ·Rocky Mountain Power.

10· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Matt Moscon and Yvonne Hogle for

11· ·Rocky Mountain Power.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Good morning.· I am Justin Jetter

14· ·with the Utah Attorney General's Office, and I am

15· ·representing Utah Division of Public Utilities.· With me

16· ·at counsel table are division witness David Thompson and

17· ·division outside consultant witness, Phillip DiDomenico.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· And Phillip Russell on behalf of

20· ·the Utah Association of Energy Users.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· No one

22· ·else in the room participating today?· Okay.· I think

23· ·the next matter to go to is, on Friday afternoon Rocky

24· ·Mountain Power filed a motion requesting leave for

25· ·Mr. Meredith, Mr. Robert M. Meredith, to participate
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·1· ·telephonically.· Does any party have anything to add to

·2· ·that motion?· Any of the parties present here today?

·3· ·Okay.· The motion is granted.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·Just a couple more preliminary issues.· We do

·5· ·have a lot of material that has been submitted in

·6· ·confidential format.· Obviously, the entire Daymark

·7· ·audit is confidential, but there are some materials from

·8· ·the Daymark testimony relating to the seven outages at

·9· ·issue here today that is -- that is in yellow.

10· · · · · · ·First, I think the first thing I ought to do

11· ·is ask Rocky Mountain Power if you are aware of any

12· ·reason any of the material that's in yellow in their

13· ·testimony, or in, I think, Mr. Ralston -- Mr. Ralston

14· ·also has a little bit of material in yellow.· Is there

15· ·any reason any of that material is no longer

16· ·confidential, or is it still -- do we still need to

17· ·treat it that way in any of our discussions today?

18· · · · · · ·MS. HOGLE:· I am going to say just to be

19· ·cautious, we have, of course, over the time that we have

20· ·been preparing for the hearing, we have discussed some

21· ·of the items in the testimony.· And -- and I would just

22· ·ask Dana if he believes that there is anything during

23· ·the cross-examination or direct examination that he

24· ·thinks that's confidential, if he let us know.

25· · · · · · ·And of course, we are aware of the materials
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·1· ·that we have submitted as confidential, but it appears

·2· ·to me that hopefully we -- we will be cautious and not

·3· ·get into exact confidential material while also making

·4· ·our case.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Well, if -- if there's

·6· ·ever a need to make a motion to close it, we'll

·7· ·entertain a motion and deal with it.· We will also

·8· ·endeavor as we ask questions of the witnesses to -- to

·9· ·avoid that, but if any party notices one of us starting

10· ·to ask a question that you think we are not being as

11· ·careful as we should, please feel free to interrupt us

12· ·and let us know if we need to deal with something, but

13· ·we will try not to.

14· · · · · · ·I think just two more preliminary issues I was

15· ·going to ask about.· One is just informative just so you

16· ·all know.· Probably about 20 minutes before we will

17· ·break for lunch today, Commissioner Clark will be

18· ·stepping out to attend a senate confirmation vote, and

19· ·then he should be able to return for anything else.· So

20· ·he's not losing interest in the hearing if you see him

21· ·leave a few minutes before our break, and then we can

22· ·enjoy his participation for six more years.

23· · · · · · ·And the last preliminary matter is, I wanted

24· ·to invite the attorneys to have a conversation on the --

25· ·on -- on the legal standards, either at the beginning of
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·1· ·the hearing or at the end, or if you tell me you would

·2· ·rather not have this conversation as -- as part of the

·3· ·hearing, we'll just deal with it in testimony, we're --

·4· ·we can come to our own legal conclusions too.· But we

·5· ·would invite any input that -- that the attorneys would

·6· ·like to give.

·7· · · · · · ·Obviously, we -- we could probably all in the

·8· ·room recite 54-44 on the prudent standard in our sleep,

·9· ·but this hearing presents some unique issues with

10· ·respect to that standard, particularly the -- the

11· ·relevance to a prudent evaluation of subsequent

12· ·corrective action or the standards for evaluating

13· ·prudence where there is a plant operator or co-owner

14· ·involved or a contractor relationship and what -- what

15· ·the legal standards are.

16· · · · · · ·So if the attorneys would like to have a

17· ·conversation at some point, we're happy to have that

18· ·conversation now or circle back at the end of the

19· ·hearing if anyone -- if anyone wants to provide thoughts

20· ·that would give us any guidance as we -- as we

21· ·deliberate on these issues.

22· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· I -- I would suggest, if it

23· ·please the commission, that at the end would be

24· ·appropriate.· I think it is something that's worth

25· ·addressing, but I think after the information has been

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 8
·1· ·received, the commission's probably going to be in the

·2· ·best circumstance to ask back to the attorneys the

·3· ·questions about it.· So on this point, what does that

·4· ·mean or how does this play out?

·5· · · · · · ·So I just suggest at the end that you invite

·6· ·interested counsel to give their input on what the legal

·7· ·standard for any topic is.· Then you can question back.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

·9· ·Mr. Jetter?

10· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I -- I think that's fine.  I

11· ·am -- I'm happy to do it at any point.· So whatever --

12· ·whatever the commission, works best for you guys.  I

13· ·think that's really the core of what we are here today

14· ·for.· I am not sure there's a lot of facts at issue, so

15· ·I think it's somewhat of a matter for first impression

16· ·for this commission and an important issue certainly to

17· ·us, so we're happy to address it whenever you find it

18· ·most convenient.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you, Mr. Jetter.

20· ·Mr. Russell?

21· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· I agree both with Mr. Jetter and

22· ·Mr. Moscon, and I think maybe we can circle back at the

23· ·end.· I -- I did, because this is an issue, as

24· ·Mr. Jetter said, of first impression, I did do some

25· ·research into this.· And I found some cases that are not

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 9
·1· ·from this jurisdiction I think may be useful to the

·2· ·commission, that the standards and the facts therein

·3· ·don't really lend themselves to cross-examination.

·4· · · · · · ·So I -- I anticipate that my suggestion will

·5· ·be that we submit briefs, even -- even if it's just,

·6· ·here are some cases.· Look at them for yourselves.

·7· ·Decide what you think they mean and how they apply here.

·8· ·But I -- I agree, I think we can circle back at the end

·9· ·to -- to decide exactly how we want to convey that

10· ·information to the commission.

11· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· I think we will

12· ·proceed that way then, and we will come to the history

13· ·at the end.· I will just state for something for parties

14· ·to think about with respect to briefs, I am presuming

15· ·there is a need to have an order in this docket in time

16· ·to inform the next EBA filing.

17· · · · · · ·And so I'm -- I'm assuming a drop-dead date to

18· ·get an order out that would give time to inform the next

19· ·EBA would be, you know, around the end of February or

20· ·the first of March.· So that may be something to think

21· ·about if -- if we're going to be talking about briefs,

22· ·or if we're just going to be having a conversation at

23· ·the end of hearing.

24· · · · · · ·And with that, we'll move forward and look

25· ·forward to ruling on objections to witnesses talking

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 10
·1· ·about legal issues in the meantime.· Any other

·2· ·preliminary matters before we -- before we go to the

·3· ·first witness?· Okay.· Mr. Moscon or Ms. Hogle.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Yes, thank you.· Rocky Mountain

·5· ·Power calls as its first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· And I think your microphone

·7· ·might not be picking you up for the streaming.

·8· · · · · · ·THE REPORTER:· Yeah, it's literally -- it's

·9· ·too far away.

10· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Rocky Mountain Power calls as its

11· ·first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Good morning, Mr. Wilding.

13· ·Do you swear to tell the truth?

14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MICHAEL G. WILDING,

17· ·was called as a witness, and having been first duly

18· ·sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

19· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

20· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

21· · · · Q.· ·Good morning, Mr. Wilding.· Would you please

22· ·state your name for the record?

23· · · · A.· ·Yes.· My name is Michael G. Wilding.

24· · · · Q.· ·Would you please give a very brief description

25· ·of your -- the position you hold at the company and your
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·1· ·background leading up to that position?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.· I am the director of net power costs and

·3· ·regulatory policy for PacifiCorp.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· You got to push that green

·5· ·button.· There we go.

·6· · · · A.· ·Do I need to start over?· I am the director of

·7· ·net power costs and regulatory policy for Pacific Power.

·8· ·Under my purview is the net power cost filings, so I

·9· ·oversee the EBA.· And I have been with the company for

10· ·approximately five years, for the entire time in the net

11· ·power cost group.

12· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Moscon)· Okay.· Have you previously

13· ·testified here before this commission?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·In this proceeding, did you cause prefiled

16· ·testimony -- or testimony to be recorded and filed?

17· · · · A.· ·Yes.

18· · · · Q.· ·If I were to ask you the questions set forth

19· ·in the prefiled testimony here in person today, would

20· ·your answers be the same?

21· · · · A.· ·Yes, they would.

22· · · · Q.· ·Are there any corrections that you need to

23· ·make to that prefiled testimony?

24· · · · A.· ·No.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 12
·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Based on that, commission, first

·2· ·I suppose, unless the commission has a preference of

·3· ·sequence, I would move for the admission of

·4· ·Mr. Wilding's prefiled testimony, together with any

·5· ·exhibits thereto into the record.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· If any party objects

·7· ·to that, please indicate to me.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· No objection from the division.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· That motion is

10· ·granted.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

12· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Moscon)· Mr. Wilding, have you been

13· ·able to prepare a summary of your prefiled testimony?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·Would you please share that for the commission

16· ·and the parties?

17· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Good morning, commissioners.· The

18· ·company filed its annual energy balancing account or EBA

19· ·application on March 15th, 2018, for the deferral period

20· ·of January through December of 2017.

21· · · · · · ·The company requested recovery of $2.8

22· ·million, which consisted of the following components, a

23· ·$4.4 million credit for the deferral of the variances

24· ·between actual net power costs and actual wheeling

25· ·revenues versus base net power cost and base wheeling
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·1· ·revenues, a $2.9 million credit related to the Deer

·2· ·Creek Mine retiring medical obligation savings, a $2.8

·3· ·million credit related to the settlement of the 2017

·4· ·EBA, a $9.1 million in costs for the Utah allocated

·5· ·amortization expense associated with the closure of the

·6· ·Deer Creek Mine, $4 million in costs related to an

·7· ·adjustment for sales made to special contract customer,

·8· ·and finally, a .2 million dollar credit related to

·9· ·various smaller items, including interest.

10· · · · · · ·The Division of the -- of Public Utilities

11· ·issued its report on the EBA and proposed a reduction to

12· ·the company's EBA application of approximately $910,000,

13· ·consisting of approximately $885,000 for replacement

14· ·power costs associated with seven plant outages and

15· ·$25,000 for an update to an allocation factor used in

16· ·the filing.· The DPU also proposed a change to the

17· ·company's energy risk management policy.

18· · · · · · ·The Office of Consumer Services and the Utah

19· ·Association of Energy Users did not file testimony in

20· ·this proceeding.

21· · · · · · ·In my testimony responding to the DPU's EBA

22· ·report, the company accepted the update to the

23· ·allocation factor and also agreed to change and update

24· ·our risk management policy as proposed by the DPU in

25· ·their reports.· The company disagrees with the proposed
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·1· ·adjustments related to the prudency of the seven plant

·2· ·outages, and company wit -- witness, Mr. Dana Ralston,

·3· ·will address this issue.

·4· · · · · · ·Therefore, I -- I respectfully request that

·5· ·the commission approve the EBA as modified in my

·6· ·response testimony.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you, Mr. Wilding.· As the

·8· ·commission notes, there was not any testimony filed that

·9· ·called into question any of the testimony of

10· ·Mr. Wilding.· But, of course, he is here available for

11· ·any questions that the commission may have, or any

12· ·clarifying questions by the parties.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Mr. Jetter, do you

14· ·have any questions for Mr. Wilding?

15· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I have no questions.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Mr. Russell?

17· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· No questions.· Thank you, Chair.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner Clark?

19· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· No questions, thank you

20· ·very much.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· And I don't either.· Thank

22· ·you for your testimony.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.· With the permission

25· ·of the commission, the second witness that Rocky
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·1· ·Mountain Power would call is Mr. Robert Meredith who the

·2· ·commission earlier this morning granted leave to appear

·3· ·by telephone.· And so Mr. Meredith, are you able to hear

·4· ·us where you are now?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I am able to hear you.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· All right.· So --

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Why don't I swear him in?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Go ahead.· Yes, thank you.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Mr. Meredith, do you swear to

10· ·tell the truth?

11· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I do.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · · · · ROBERT M. MEREDITH,

14· ·was called as a witness, and having been first duly

15· ·sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

16· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

17· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

18· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Meredith, would you please state your name

19· ·for the record?

20· · · · A.· ·Robert M. Meredith.

21· · · · Q.· ·And would you please tell the commission what

22· ·your current job title is and any relevant experience

23· ·you had leading up to that position?

24· · · · A.· ·Sure.· I am the manager of pricing and cost of

25· ·service in Rocky Mountain Power's regulation department.
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·1· ·Worked for the company for about 14 years, or a little

·2· ·over 14 years now.· I have worked in customer services

·3· ·and the integrated resource planning department and in

·4· ·regulation for all that time at various analytical

·5· ·roles.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Mr. Meredith, did you cause

·7· ·prefiled testimony to be prepared in this matter?

·8· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did.

·9· · · · Q.· ·And if I were to ask you the questions that

10· ·were written out, would your answers here live today be

11· ·the same as the ones that are recorded in that prefiled

12· ·testimony?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes, it would.

14· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any changes to that testimony that

15· ·would need to be made?

16· · · · A.· ·No.

17· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Again, Mr. Chairman, I would move

18· ·for the admission of Mr. Meredith's prefiled testimony,

19· ·together with any exhibits as part of the record.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· If any party objects to that

21· ·motion, indicate to me.· I am not seeing any objection

22· ·so it's granted.

23· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

24· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Moscon)· Mr. Meredith, have you had

25· ·the opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled
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·1· ·testimony?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Would you please share that for the commission

·4· ·and the parties?

·5· · · · A.· ·Sure.· Good morning, Chair LeVar, Commissioner

·6· ·White and Commissioner Clark.· In my direct testimony, I

·7· ·presented the company's proposed rate spread and prices

·8· ·for the 2018 energy balancing account.· With interim

·9· ·rates effective May 1, 2018, recovery of the 2.8

10· ·deferral calculated by company witness, Mr. Michael G.

11· ·Wilding has resulted in an increase to customers of 0.1

12· ·percent.

13· · · · · · ·The allocation and development of rates for

14· ·the 2018 energy balancing account has been prepared in a

15· ·manner consistent with prior energy balancing account

16· ·balances, and they are not contested by any party in

17· ·this proceeding.· That concludes my summary statement.

18· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you, Mr. Meredith.

19· ·Mr. Chairman, similarly, Mr. Meredith didn't have any

20· ·testimony contradicted, but he is available for any

21· ·clarifying questions of the commission or the parties.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Mr. Jetter, do you

23· ·have any questions?

24· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I have no questions, thank you.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Mr. Russell?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· No questions, thank you.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner Clark?

·3· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· No questions, thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner White?

·5· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· No questions, thank you.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you,

·7· ·Mr. Meredith.· We appreciate your testimony today.

·8· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sure.· No problem.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· And I don't know if your

10· ·intention is to keep him on the phone?· It's up to you,

11· ·Mr. Meredith, if you want to keep listening for the

12· ·sheer fun of it or should we close the line?

13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You can close the line.· That's

14· ·fine.

15· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay, thanks.

17· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· I am shocked.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· He is just going to listen on

19· ·YouTube for the rest.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· All right.· Now, I know we have

21· ·already been through two witnesses, so unless the

22· ·commission wants to take a break, we'll keep plowing

23· ·forward.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Let's keep going.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.· If it please the
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·1· ·commission, our final witness that Rocky Mountain Power

·2· ·would call, who is with us here today, is Mr. Dana

·3· ·Ralston.· So we would ask that Mr. Ralston to take the

·4· ·stand.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Good morning, Mr. Ralston.

·6· ·Do you swear to tell the truth?

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I do.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·DANA MICHAEL RALSTON,

·9· ·was called as a witness, and having been first duly

10· ·sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

11· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

12· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

13· · · · Q.· ·Good morning, Mr. Ralston.· Would you please

14· ·state your full name and your current business position

15· ·for the commission?

16· · · · A.· ·My name is Dana Michael Ralston.· I am the

17· ·senior vice president of thermal generation and mining

18· ·for Rocky Mountain Power.· I have responsibility for all

19· ·the thermal assets, which are the coal plants and the

20· ·gas plants and the geothermal plants within Rocky

21· ·Mountain Power, and the fuel supply and a few mining

22· ·activities for the company.

23· · · · · · ·I have a degree in electrical engineering and

24· ·been in -- working in and around the power plant sector

25· ·for over 37 years, as a plant manager, maintenance
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·1· ·manager, electrical supervisor, electrical engineer.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Mr. Ralston, did you have opportunity

·3· ·to prepare prefiled testimony to be filed in this?

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did.

·5· · · · Q.· ·In your testimony, and -- and we'll -- we'll

·6· ·get to that momentarily, you describe your experience a

·7· ·little bit.· Can you provide -- let me back up and ask

·8· ·you this.· Have you provided testimony to this

·9· ·commission before today?

10· · · · A.· ·In the written form, yes.

11· · · · Q.· ·Have you ever presented live testimony to

12· ·these commissioners?

13· · · · A.· ·No, not in the state of Utah.

14· · · · Q.· ·So although I wouldn't typically do this, just

15· ·because this is your first time before these

16· ·commissioners, could you please give us a little bit

17· ·more color, describing your working background and

18· ·specifically to the extent it's germane to what we are

19· ·doing here today, give us some indication of your work

20· ·that you have done, you know, facilitating plant

21· ·overhauls, maintenances, shutdowns, startup, et cetera.

22· · · · A.· ·Okay.· Until I took this position in 2010, I

23· ·was stationed at a plant, and I worked in the overhaul

24· ·process.· I coordinated maintenance activities.  I

25· ·coordinated electrical maintenance activities.· I was an
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·1· ·electrical engineer in charge of design.· I was in

·2· ·charge of overall plant operations as the plant manager.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So is it fair to say that you are very

·4· ·familiar with all the topics that are at issue today?

·5· · · · A.· ·That would be correct.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And Mr. Ralston, could you describe for

·7· ·the commission the various pieces of prefiled testimony

·8· ·that you submitted in this matter?

·9· · · · A.· ·I respond -- or I supplied response testimony

10· ·to the Daymark testimony and then supplied surrebuttal

11· ·testimony to their rebuttal testimony.

12· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any changes that would need to be

13· ·made to either piece of testimony?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.· On my surrebuttal testimony, I have a

15· ·few changes.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· If you would wait just a minute to give

17· ·the parties and the commission an opportunity to turn to

18· ·that in your surrebuttal.· What page was your first

19· ·change or correction be made on?

20· · · · A.· ·On page 5, line 93, the word "tight" should be

21· ·right.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· I am sorry.· You are on line

24· ·93 of the surrebuttal?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· 95.
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·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Oh, 95.

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Excuse me, 95.· Did I say 93?  I

·3· ·apologize.

·4· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Mascon)· Okay.· Any other corrections?

·5· · · · A.· ·Page 6, line 135, the word weld near the end

·6· ·of the line should be deleted.· And page -- or at line

·7· ·136, the sentence that says, "tubing ends being

·8· ·conducted were nonidentical metal" should be deleted.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Any other changes or corrections?

10· · · · A.· ·And finally on page 10, line 220, where it

11· ·says "ND and A know -- knowingly accepted work in its --

12· ·in its capacity," should say -- read, "Accept work in

13· ·excess of its capacity."· So "excess of" should be

14· ·added.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Any other corrections or modifications

16· ·that you believe should be made to your prefiled

17· ·testimony?

18· · · · A.· ·No.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And similarly then, if I were to ask

20· ·you all of the questions in both pieces of your

21· ·testimony here today, would your answers be consistent

22· ·with the answers in your prefiled testimony, including

23· ·the corrections that you have just noted for us?

24· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Okay.· With that, Mr. Chairman, I
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·1· ·move for the admission of the prefiled testimony of

·2· ·Mr. Ralston, together with any exhibits thereto.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· If any party objects

·4· ·to that motion, please indicate to me.· I am not seeing

·5· ·any objection, so the motion is granted.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

·7· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Moscon)· Mr. Ralston, have you had the

·8· ·opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled

·9· ·testimony?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes, I have.

11· · · · Q.· ·Would you please share that with the

12· ·commission and the parties.

13· · · · A.· ·My name is Dana Ralston.· I am the senior vice

14· ·president of thermal generation and mining for Rocky

15· ·Mountain Power.· I've been responsible for Rocky

16· ·Mountain Power's thermal fleet since 2010, and prior to

17· ·that held a number of positions within the generating

18· ·fleet of Berkshire Hathaway Energy, including plant

19· ·manager, maintenance manager, electrical supervisor and

20· ·electrical engineer.· I have a degree in electrical

21· ·engineering with over 37 years working around and in the

22· ·power plants.

23· · · · · · ·Today I am offering responses and surrebuttal

24· ·testimony to Daymark's testimony regarding the prudency

25· ·of contested plant outages.· In my testimony, I show
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·1· ·that the company did demonstrate prudency by its actions

·2· ·when maintaining and operating its plants.

·3· · · · · · ·Daymark, when reviewing the outages, equates

·4· ·its avoidable outage that could be prevented with

·5· ·perfect foresight to improve in that by the company.

·6· ·This demonstrates that Daymark is using a perfection

·7· ·standard not a prudency standard.

·8· · · · · · ·If Daymark's approach to maintenance and

·9· ·operational was implemented, costs to the customers

10· ·would significantly increase with a very small impact on

11· ·fleet equivalent availability, because Daymark would

12· ·have the company shift all risk to contractors no matter

13· ·what the cost and undertake corrective actions that were

14· ·not justified by inspection or operating data.

15· · · · · · ·In addition, Daymark represents --

16· ·misrepresents data and testimony to arrive at an

17· ·erroneous conclusion related to outages.· In my

18· ·testimony, I show how the company used reasonable and

19· ·prudent processes to avoid outages and mitigate risks

20· ·while effectively balancing risks and costs for the

21· ·benefit of our customers.

22· · · · · · ·In my testimony I use an analogy of changing

23· ·tires on your car every month to prevent a flat fire.

24· ·While this may reduce the chance of a flat tire, it is

25· ·far from prudent to do this and would not eliminate all
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·1· ·chances of a flat tire.· This seems to be the same

·2· ·standards Daymark uses when reviewing outages.

·3· · · · · · ·With respect to our jointly owned plants that

·4· ·we -- that are operated by others, Daymark incorrectly

·5· ·implies we have a unilateral -- unilateral right to

·6· ·enforce process or changes on these plants.· Rocky

·7· ·Mountain Power is a very active and engaged owner

·8· ·involved in our participation agreements to its fullest

·9· ·extent.

10· · · · · · ·These agreements that govern these plants are

11· ·based on a partnership with all owners getting benefits

12· ·and costs based on their ownership share.· The operating

13· ·company receives no premium to take on the risks of

14· ·operating the plant.· The companies that operate these

15· ·plants use prudent processes, but they may be not the

16· ·same as Rocky Mountain Power uses.· And when Daymark

17· ·refers to these partners as contractors, it shows a lack

18· ·of understanding about these agreements.

19· · · · · · ·Finally, the company uses equivalents

20· ·availability, or EA, as an indicator of the detail and

21· ·care the company uses with regard to maintaining its

22· ·operating fleet.· The company's thermal EA is

23· ·significantly better than the North American Electric

24· ·Reliability Corporations or NERC, average for a similar

25· ·size fleet.
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·1· · · · · · ·The company believes outages should be

·2· ·reviewed individually and that NERC averages do not

·3· ·automatically make every outage prudent.· But to

·4· ·completely ignore this metric does not paint a complete

·5· ·picture of how the company manages thermal plants to

·6· ·provide the least risk, least cost supply to our

·7· ·company -- or customers.

·8· · · · · · ·Rocky Mountain Power has and will continue to

·9· ·prudently manage the thermal fleet with the best

10· ·interests of the customers at its forefront.· I am here

11· ·to answer your questions.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you, Mr. Ralston.

13· ·Mr. Ralston is available for any questions of the

14· ·parties or commission.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay, thank you.· Mr. Jetter?

16· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Thank you.· I have a few

17· ·questions.

18· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

19· ·BY MR. JETTER:

20· · · · Q.· ·Good morning.

21· · · · A.· ·Good morning.

22· · · · Q.· ·Maybe I'd like to just start out asking a

23· ·question that -- that you addressed a little bit in your

24· ·introduction.· You mentioned that -- that, I guess in

25· ·your testimony, that Daymark Associates, the consulting
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·1· ·firm hired by the Division of Public Utilities, is

·2· ·seeking to hold the company to a perfection standard.

·3· ·Is that an accurate representation of your

·4· ·understanding?

·5· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Can you tell me how many forced outage events

·7· ·the thermal fleet for PacifiCorp experienced in 2017?

·8· · · · A.· ·I don't have that number off the top of my

·9· ·head.

10· · · · Q.· ·Would you accept, subject to check, that there

11· ·were 368?

12· · · · A.· ·Subject to check.

13· · · · Q.· ·And do you know how many megawatt hours were

14· ·lost as a result of those?

15· · · · A.· ·Again, I don't have that off the top of my

16· ·head.

17· · · · Q.· ·Would you accept, subject to check, that it

18· ·was in the ballpark of three million?

19· · · · A.· ·All right.· Subject to check.

20· · · · Q.· ·Do you know how many outages Daymark has

21· ·recommended not be -- be removed from recovery from the

22· ·EBA?

23· · · · A.· ·I believe it was seven.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And -- and seven is lot less than 368;

25· ·is that correct?
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·1· · · · A.· ·I believe so.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And so do you still think that the -- the

·3· ·perfection applies when Daymark and Associates

·4· ·recommended only seven out of 368 forced outages be

·5· ·unrecoverable as a result of imprudence?

·6· · · · A.· ·When I look at the detail of the seven outages

·7· ·and the action Daymark expects us to take, or would say

·8· ·would be a prudent level, I believe that is a perfection

·9· ·standard, not a prudent standard that a reasonable

10· ·utility would do.

11· · · · Q.· ·Let me ask you a little follow-up question

12· ·there.· Can you give me an example of an imprudent

13· ·outage?

14· · · · A.· ·I can't think of one right off the top of my

15· ·head.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you know if PacifiCorp has ever had

17· ·an imprudent outage?

18· · · · A.· ·Again, I can't think of one right off the top

19· ·of my head.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· If there were never an imprudent

21· ·outage, wouldn't that somewhat be the inverse of a

22· ·perfection standard; it would be a standard of

23· ·imperfection?

24· · · · A.· ·I guess you could look at it that way.

25· · · · Q.· ·And following up with that, do -- do you
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·1· ·believe that customers of Rocky Mountain Power in Utah

·2· ·should be responsible for all of the replacement power

·3· ·costs regardless of the -- the type of outage or the

·4· ·prudence that led up to that?

·5· · · · A.· ·I believe the customer -- well, the company

·6· ·should be reimbursed for their cost when they acted

·7· ·prudently towards trying to avoid and prevent outages.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Do you think that that -- that same standard

·9· ·should apply to Rocky Mountain Power's contractors or

10· ·third party operators?

11· · · · A.· ·Please repeat the question.· Be more specific.

12· · · · Q.· ·In your answer to my previous question, I

13· ·believe you answered that PacifiCorp should be

14· ·reimbursed for the costs of its prudent actions.· Is

15· ·that an accurate representation?

16· · · · A.· ·Yes.· We should be re -- reimbursed for

17· ·prudent -- for costs when we act prudently.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And do you -- do you also think that

19· ·Rocky Mountain Power should be responsible for costs

20· ·when it does not act prudently?

21· · · · A.· ·Well, if we don't act prudently, then the

22· ·commission would determine that and probably not allow

23· ·those costs.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And do you think that that should

25· ·extend -- regardless of whether it's legally mandated,
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·1· ·do you think that similar standard should extend to

·2· ·third party contractors that Rocky Mountain Power hires?

·3· · · · A.· ·Okay.· And -- and again, the -- the

·4· ·contractors are out operating on our behalf, so the same

·5· ·standard should apply.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· Can you tell me what steps Rocky

·7· ·Mountain Power or PacifiCorp in its fleet takes -- let

·8· ·me rephrase that question.

·9· · · · · · ·What steps does the company take to ensure

10· ·that the third parties are operating in a prudent

11· ·manner?

12· · · · A.· ·Can you be a little more specific on whether

13· ·you are talking about a contractor that is specifically

14· ·hired by Rocky Mountain Power or a partner operated

15· ·plant operator?

16· · · · Q.· ·Well, maybe let's address those each

17· ·individually.· So let's first take a look at -- or -- or

18· ·let me know your opinion on the -- the contractors that

19· ·are hired by Rocky Mountain Power.

20· · · · A.· ·Okay.· So when Rocky Mountain Power hires

21· ·contractors, we take and make sure that we have

22· ·qualified contractors that can perform the work, are

23· ·reasonable, competent and available.· Okay.· And at the

24· ·same time, when we sit down, we get their prices from

25· ·them.· We negotiate a contract and negotiate terms that
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·1· ·have the warranty provisions and allow us to execute

·2· ·towards that contract to try to protect the customer and

·3· ·us to its best extent.

·4· · · · · · ·In those provisions it's always a give and

·5· ·take, I will say, because if you want perfect, if you

·6· ·want to shift a hundred percent of the risk all to the

·7· ·contractor, you are going to pay for it.· And in my 37

·8· ·years of doing that, I have never seen any contractor be

·9· ·willing to accept 100 percent of all risk, including net

10· ·power cost risk, in any contract we have been able to

11· ·negotiate.

12· · · · Q.· ·And so would you agree with me then that that

13· ·puts those contractors in a different risk position than

14· ·the Rocky Mountain Power would be were Rocky Mountain

15· ·Power performing the same amount -- the same work?

16· · · · A.· ·Possibly.· Again, it depends on the situation,

17· ·I would say, and the contract.

18· · · · Q.· ·And would it then be accurate that when --

19· ·in -- in the company's view when it hires third party

20· ·contractors that are not taking on that risk, that that

21· ·effectively shifts that risk to customers to bear the

22· ·losses that Rocky Mountain Power might otherwise be

23· ·responsible for?

24· · · · A.· ·Not necessarily.· It depends on the event.

25· · · · Q.· ·Could that be the case?
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·1· · · · A.· ·What do you mean?

·2· · · · Q.· ·Could it be the case that -- that those

·3· ·contracts would shift risk to customers?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Mr. Chairman, before he answers,

·5· ·again, you noted this, and I am not trying to overdo it,

·6· ·but I guess I just need to note for the record that this

·7· ·whole series of questions has embedded the legal

·8· ·conclusion that the company would otherwise be liable

·9· ·for it, which itself could be impact to a great -- great

10· ·detail.

11· · · · · · ·I am not trying to get in the way or interrupt

12· ·the flow.· I just don't want anyone to at a later date

13· ·say, well, we waived any objection.· So to the extent

14· ·that he is asking the witness to make legal conclusions

15· ·about the company, its liability, what the legal

16· ·standard of prudence is, et cetera, I just want to

17· ·preserve that objection.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Sure.· Mr. Jetter, do you

19· ·want to respond to the objection?

20· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I am really trying to -- to -- to

21· ·get this without going into -- to the legal conclusion,

22· ·and I understand that -- that some of this has that as

23· ·the backdrop.· I think this, really all of our -- our

24· ·cases today, the facts at issue, are kind of set with

25· ·that backdrop.
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·1· · · · · · ·And as I was creating my cross questions, I

·2· ·wasn't anticipating a -- a legal discussion in addition,

·3· ·and so I think I maybe can withdraw that question and

·4· ·move on to some more specifics.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Well, then there's no

·6· ·need to rule on the specific objection.· We'll move on

·7· ·then.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Okay.

·9· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Jetter)· So just to -- to clarify,

10· ·before I -- before we move on, replacement power costs

11· ·are not typically included in third party contracts; is

12· ·that correct?

13· · · · A.· ·Not directly.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Replacement power costs, are those ever

15· ·included in your contracts with co-owners or affiliates

16· ·or other -- other operators that are not Rocky Mountain

17· ·Power that are operating a partially owned power plant?

18· · · · A.· ·No.· We -- we don't have them in any of them

19· ·that we are the owner but not the operator.· And at the

20· ·same time, we don't have any of them that we are the

21· ·operator and owner and we have other owners.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And -- and so how are -- how is Rocky

23· ·Mountain Power, through those contacts -- contracts, or

24· ·relationships with those other -- other operators, how

25· ·is Rocky Mountain Power protected from imprudent
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·1· ·actions?

·2· · · · A.· ·We protect ourselves from a -- from being

·3· ·involved with the participation agreements.· We have

·4· ·what we call E and O committees or coordinating

·5· ·committees.· We're heavily involved with those.· We have

·6· ·constant communication, at least daily with those

·7· ·different plants on what's going on in that.· We're a

·8· ·very active participant on it.

·9· · · · · · ·From a contractual standpoint, there is no net

10· ·power cost provision in any of the participation

11· ·agreements that -- on either side, where we are the

12· ·operator or they are the operator.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is it fair to say that you have

14· ·influence on the operations, even if you are not

15· ·directly in control?

16· · · · A.· ·We -- we try our hardest to influence and

17· ·direct the plan to where we think is the best place for

18· ·customers.

19· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· I think I am done -- will move on

20· ·at this point, and -- and go through the seven outages.

21· · · · A.· ·All right.

22· · · · Q.· ·Sort of in the order that they have been

23· ·presented in testimony.· I think it will be the easiest

24· ·way to follow.· So if you look at Craig Unit 2, is it

25· ·accurate that this is a representation, or this is an
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·1· ·instance where it's a third party operator?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes, that's correct.· Tri-State Generation and

·3· ·Transmission operates the Craig unit.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is it accurate that Rocky Mountain

·5· ·Power has influence on how this is operated through its

·6· ·relationship with Tri-State?

·7· · · · A.· ·Again, we work our hardest through those

·8· ·committees and through discussions with them to

·9· ·influence the direction.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· And in this case let me

11· ·make sure I characterize this correctly, but there's a

12· ·series of plugs that are each opened individually,

13· ·and -- and a compound is -- is deposited through the

14· ·plug.· And then the plugs are reclosed, and that process

15· ·ultimately resulted in one of the plugs being missing at

16· ·some point?

17· · · · A.· ·Maybe a better way to say it is the generator

18· ·is probably 14, 16 foot in diameter, and there's a

19· ·series of plugs like little quarter inch or

20· ·three-eighths inch plugs all the way around.· If they

21· ·take one out and they use this, like a -- it's a -- it

22· ·looks like our TV almost, you know, that you get at the

23· ·store.

24· · · · · · ·And they pump it in, and they pump it in the

25· ·next one.· It comes out.· Then they put the plug in here
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·1· ·and then pump it here to the next one.· It creates a

·2· ·flexible seal so the hydrogen doesn't leak out, and then

·3· ·they put the plugs back in one by one.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And you mentioned -- this is -- I can

·5· ·direct you to it.· It's page 3 of your response

·6· ·testimony, on line 56, and is this -- this accurate

·7· ·that -- that you had written in there, that the plugs

·8· ·are tightened, torque not required and pressure tested

·9· ·to verify the seal integrity?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes.· When the -- the work was done, a

11· ·pressure test at 48 pounds was done for 24 hours, and it

12· ·passed the pressure test.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so it's -- it's your testimony of

14· ·the company that it's believed that the plug had

15· ·vibrated out at some point?

16· · · · A.· ·That's correct.· Otherwise, it wouldn't have

17· ·passed the pressure test.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And -- and would it be a reasonable

19· ·conclusion that it vibrated out because it was not

20· ·tightened properly?

21· · · · A.· ·That's one possibility.· I -- they're not sure

22· ·why it vibrated out.· It may not have been tightened

23· ·enough.· It may have had a flaw, don't really know, but

24· ·we believe it vibrated out sometime during operation

25· ·when it was returned to service.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And how many of the other plugs

·2· ·vibrated out since then?

·3· · · · A.· ·None of them.

·4· · · · Q.· ·So if you were creating a plan to prevent that

·5· ·from happening in the future, would you recommend adding

·6· ·a torque value to the installation of those plugs?

·7· · · · A.· ·I'd have to check on the design on that.  I

·8· ·would have to really know whether that was prudent or

·9· ·not.· I -- I -- that is a reasonable solution.· I am not

10· ·sure if it was or not.· The procedure done was by

11· ·General Electric, and it was their procedure.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Would you agree with me that hand tight

13· ·probably isn't adequate?

14· · · · A.· ·And I don't know if it was hand tight or not.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· About if -- if that was -- if that was

16· ·the case, it would need to be tighter than that?

17· · · · A.· ·I would say so, yes.

18· · · · Q.· ·Would it be unreasonably expensive, do you

19· ·think, to add in the procedure manual for when you are

20· ·reinstalling these plugs to tighten them to some level

21· ·that's checked in some way?

22· · · · A.· ·I wouldn't think so.

23· · · · Q.· ·That's all the questions I have about the

24· ·Craig Unit 2.· Next I'd like to move on and discuss Dave

25· ·Johnson -- or excuse me, Dave Johnson 3, the April 25th

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 38
·1· ·outage.

·2· · · · · · ·Can you tell me why different grades of metal

·3· ·are used in different pipes at different -- different

·4· ·points within the boiler unit?

·5· · · · A.· ·It's basically temperature and pressure

·6· ·related event.· Low temperature steam or water, carbon

·7· ·steel is okay for, but when you start getting into the

·8· ·higher temperatures, a thousand degrees or higher, the

·9· ·material breaks down faster.· So the longevity would be

10· ·reduced over time.

11· · · · Q.· ·And I think your testimony is in agreement

12· ·that it was a -- a tubing material that was incorrect

13· ·for the location; is that accurate?

14· · · · A.· ·It was a nonconforming material.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· It didn't meet the engineer's design

16· ·spec for that location?

17· · · · A.· ·Somewhat, yes.· To give you a better frame of

18· ·reference is, the tube that had the material that failed

19· ·is here, and somewhere right below there, the -- it was

20· ·a transition switch to a different material, like within

21· ·a couple of feet.· And the tube right next to it was the

22· ·same material that was put in.· So I mean, they were

23· ·literally inches apart.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So -- and is that the case that the

25· ·tube next to it was the correct tube?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And that was, I think if I am

·3· ·remembering, that was No. 47, but I don't remember that.

·4· · · · A.· ·No, no, no, no.· You're -- you're thinking of

·5· ·something different.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You would agree that prudent

·7· ·construction of a facility would use the appropriate

·8· ·tube for the correct locations; is that correct?

·9· · · · A.· ·In an optimal condition, you would use the

10· ·exact design material that was put in the boiler, yes.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And part of the response in your

12· ·testimony was that the nonconforming tube had lasted 20

13· ·years, and that was an indication that it was adequate

14· ·for that location?

15· · · · A.· ·It lasted at least 20 years.· The -- the

16· ·reason we go back at least 20 is because when Utah Power

17· ·and Pacific Power merged, the Utah Power repair process,

18· ·called an R state process, was more robust than the

19· ·Pacific Power one.· And it was implemented, and that was

20· ·about the time it was implemented.

21· · · · · · ·This material could have been put in 30 years

22· ·ago.· I -- we -- we don't have the records, and back

23· ·that far back, it would have been a paper system.· So it

24· ·was more difficult to track and follow things, where

25· ·today it's very computer friendly.
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·1· · · · · · ·So I know it's at least 20 years because

·2· ·that's when we did the switchover, and we don't have any

·3· ·records from that 20 years back -- forward.· So it was

·4· ·at least 20 years.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· And -- and is it -- is it

·6· ·an accurate statement that if the, the correct grade of

·7· ·steel tube had been used, all else equal, you would

·8· ·expect it to have lasted longer in the same conditions?

·9· · · · A.· ·That's a possibility, yes.· It would have --

10· ·it probably would have lasted longer.

11· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· I'll move on next to the same

12· ·power plant but the September 19th, the Dave Johnson

13· ·September 19th outage.

14· · · · · · ·I, I think it, it would be a fair summary,

15· ·correct me if I am wrong, of your testimony that the --

16· ·the company does rely on a metallurgist that's a third

17· ·party contractor to review some of these failures, and

18· ·that that third party recommended less explosive use,

19· ·less -- I guess it's a slower propagation, deslagging

20· ·explosive or propellant?

21· · · · A.· ·When a metallurgist gets a section of tube, he

22· ·dissects that tube, and he reports to us everything he

23· ·sees, you know, whether it's old damage, new damage,

24· ·whatever.· His -- his responsibility is to tell us

25· ·everything that he -- he knows about that tube.
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·1· · · · · · ·In this case he noticed that there was some

·2· ·stress rings, I believe they are called Nelson rings,

·3· ·for that saying that there had been some previous damage

·4· ·at some point in time.· Okay.· That could have happened

·5· ·10 plus years ago.· We don't know.

·6· · · · · · ·So what he reported there, because he saw

·7· ·that, is he said, you should consider using low -- lower

·8· ·prop -- lower velocity detonation cord.· Okay.· And that

·9· ·was a -- to inform us that if we hadn't already started

10· ·doing it, we should consider it.

11· · · · · · ·As I said in testimony, we identified that

12· ·issue back in -- long before that, and we implemented

13· ·the lowest velocity det. cord that's available on the

14· ·market in 2011.

15· · · · Q.· ·And are there -- are there other ways to

16· ·deslag those outside of using detonation cord?

17· · · · A.· ·Yes.· But they tend to have more risk towards

18· ·people.· Using detonation cord tends to be the most

19· ·effective and safest method for deslagging.

20· · · · · · ·I mean, if I go back to 30 years ago when I

21· ·was doing it, I remember spending an Easter with a large

22· ·steel rod just hammering away at slag between panels,

23· ·and it was not a very pleasant time.· Or, you know, you,

24· ·you have eye injuries.· You have strains and sprains.

25· ·So detonation cord shakes the whole thing, breaks the
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·1· ·slag and allows people to get in there without injury.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But it also tends to cause fractures

·3· ·in -- in brittle materials; is that correct?

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes.· In this case we are putting people

·5· ·first.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And prior to 2011, you were using the

·7· ·more aggressive detonation cord that --

·8· · · · A.· ·I understand that, yes.· I just know since

·9· ·2011, we have been using the lowest.· There might have

10· ·been steps, but I am unfamiliar with exactly what steps

11· ·they were.

12· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· I am going to move on to the

13· ·Huntington Unit 1 outage.· It's correct that the

14· ·Huntington Unit 1 outage was the fourth of a similar

15· ·type of failure that's occurred since 2008; is that

16· ·correct?

17· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· We have had four failures over an 11

18· ·year period.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And all of the failures were the result

20· ·of -- of the same welding failure?

21· · · · A.· ·It's -- it's of a similar metal weld failure

22· ·that happens with everything on a dissimilar metal weld

23· ·over time and temperature.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And this has been known in the -- the

25· ·utility generation industry for quite some time; is that
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·1· ·correct?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.· And it's managed by most utilities.

·3· ·It's a judgment call on when to do a bunch of

·4· ·replacements and when to keep managing through them, and

·5· ·managing so that you don't have a, what they call the

·6· ·hockey stick up on failures.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And you have had planned outages where

·8· ·this could have been repaired as is planned for 2022.

·9· ·You've had planned outages between 2008 and 2017; is

10· ·that correct?

11· · · · A.· ·That's correct.· And maybe to frame that, is,

12· ·we have a planned outage about every four years.· Okay.

13· ·And we take it down for about five weeks, and we tear

14· ·just about everything apart and try to rebuild it and

15· ·put it back together and then try to run the plant for

16· ·four years solid.

17· · · · · · ·So when you have that five week period, you

18· ·know, these structures are 15, 20 stories tall, with

19· ·thousands and thousands of tubes and welds in them.· And

20· ·you have all the ancillary equipment, so you kind of

21· ·have to prioritize your work.· Okay.· And for lack of a

22· ·better term, you triage it, and you focus on the things

23· ·that are going to cause you the most forced outages and

24· ·you address those.

25· · · · · · ·And this data was not the worst actor we had
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·1· ·in the plant so we focused on other areas that were

·2· ·going to be more negatively impactful to the forced

·3· ·outage rate.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Do you know how long, in addition during any

·5· ·of your previous planned outages, it would have taken to

·6· ·remedy this, in a -- as an extension to a prior outage?

·7· · · · A.· ·You mean to replace it all?

·8· · · · Q.· ·To perform the same planned replacement as you

·9· ·intend in 2022.

10· · · · A.· ·How long it would take?

11· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· Would that have added a week --

12· · · · A.· ·Probably --

13· · · · Q.· ·-- to your prior outages or longer?

14· · · · A.· ·Well, if you planned it up front, you build it

15· ·in there, and it would probably be a couple of million

16· ·dollars to replace them all, all 600.· And if -- if I

17· ·knew about it beforehand and planned it and planned the

18· ·work in there, it probably wouldn't have extended the

19· ·outage.· Now, if I found out about it in week four of a

20· ·five week outage, I would have a problem.

21· · · · Q.· ·So -- so what was it about the fourth outage

22· ·that was different from the first or second or third

23· ·outage that caused the company to change or implement a

24· ·replacement for 2022?

25· · · · A.· ·It was basically time.· I mean, we -- we -- we
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·1· ·know that dissimilar metal weld failures are a function

·2· ·of time and temperature, and as time goes on, you know,

·3· ·you are taking on more risk of a failure as time goes

·4· ·on.· So in 2008, I don't believe we felt that there was

·5· ·enough risk after one failure to do anything.

·6· · · · · · ·And then I believe -- I can't remember the

·7· ·other two, is I want to say in '11 and '15 and then the

·8· ·last one in '17.· I am not sure those dates are correct.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I don't know the -- the dates of those

10· ·either.· Let's move on to Jim Bridger No. 2 is next.

11· ·And is it accurate that this outage at Jim Bridger No.

12· ·2, January 17th, 2017, was a result of a water coolant

13· ·line freezing because of a failure in the heat tracing?

14· · · · A.· ·That's roughly correct.

15· · · · Q.· ·Do you run the heat tracing all of the time or

16· ·only during shutdowns?

17· · · · A.· ·No.· We only run it when there's freezing

18· ·temperatures though.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And I am looking at your response

20· ·testimony, page 11, beginning at line 244.· You

21· ·testified that the -- "The company has processes in

22· ·place to inspect the heat tracing and verify operation.

23· ·But the process had a void in it that results in this

24· ·failure" -- resulted, excuse me, "in this failure to not

25· ·be identified so repair work could be completed"?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Yes.· So what -- what we do is, in the fall,

·2· ·before the freezing temperatures, go out, usually start

·3· ·sometime in August or early September, have people go

·4· ·out to all the freeze protection panels and all the

·5· ·circuits, and there is literally hundreds and hundreds

·6· ·of these.

·7· · · · · · ·There's -- there's a lot, especially if you

·8· ·have an outdoor boiler.· And then they go out and they

·9· ·actually measure the current in the voltage and record

10· ·it.· So it's to determine whether something's

11· ·malfunctioning or not.

12· · · · · · ·In this particular case, there was no current,

13· ·but there was voltage.· So that is how it got missed.

14· ·Okay.· So as I have said in testimony, we said, when the

15· ·technician sees that, he is to raise the red flag and do

16· ·some other things.

17· · · · · · ·So we went through the effort to try to,

18· ·before the freezing temperatures to verify our -- our

19· ·systems were working.· We just had a procedural problem

20· ·here where the -- the failure slipped through the

21· ·cracks, either by the technician not raising it or

22· ·somebody else not seeing it.

23· · · · Q.· ·And so ultimately the result was that the

24· ·testing procedures were carried out but they didn't

25· ·identify the problem?
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·1· · · · A.· ·This -- this particular problem, yeah.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And it's your testimony that that -- that was

·3· ·the testing procedure was, I guess, a prudent choice by

·4· ·the company?

·5· · · · A.· ·Well, we had a -- a testing procedure in

·6· ·place, and we thought it was complete.· We didn't

·7· ·recognize this could be a void until it happened to us,

·8· ·and then we made corrections since we have discovered

·9· ·that.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And -- and as an electrical engineer,

11· ·do you think a testing procedure that measures a voltage

12· ·difference at -- at the, I guess the plug-in points of a

13· ·heat tracing tape that doesn't measure resistance of the

14· ·tape would be an appropriate way to test whether it's

15· ·functional?

16· · · · A.· ·In measuring the resistance?· I am not sure I

17· ·understood your question.

18· · · · Q.· ·Measuring -- measuring electricity flow?

19· · · · A.· ·You mean the current and the voltage?

20· · · · Q.· ·Yes.

21· · · · A.· ·That -- that would be very prudent, and that's

22· ·what we were intending to do.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you were -- that was what the policy

24· ·was prior to that, or that's what it is now?

25· · · · A.· ·No.· That's what it was prior, to record the
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·1· ·current and the voltage.· In this case there was no

·2· ·current, okay, but there was voltage, and at that point,

·3· ·nobody raised the flag, the technician or someone said,

·4· ·this doesn't seem right to me.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the inspector, whoever was

·6· ·inspecting, the technician, identified or had an

·7· ·erroneous reading.· They just didn't identify it as a --

·8· ·as a problem?

·9· · · · A.· ·Correct.

10· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· I'll move on now to the Jim

11· ·Bridger 3 outage.· And just to refresh recollection,

12· ·this was the outage that was caused by an electrical

13· ·failure that was determined to be a cable that was

14· ·flooded in an underground wire ball; is that correct?

15· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the identified cause of this, is it

17· ·accurate that the cable failed potentially due to damage

18· ·during the initial time when the wire was pulled?

19· · · · A.· ·I believe the report said it was age and

20· ·damage.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you know how age would have caused

22· ·that failure?

23· · · · A.· ·Cable insulation breaks down with age.  I

24· ·mean, it's a form of a plastic.· I mean, if you took a

25· ·gallon milk jug and set it outside for a year, then

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 49
·1· ·tried to pick the handle up, the handle is probably

·2· ·going to come off in your hand because it degrades from

·3· ·sunlight and everything else.· Cables, the insulation on

·4· ·them, they aren't designed to run for a million years.

·5· · · · Q.· ·So do you have a policy in place then to

·6· ·replace those at periodic intervals?

·7· · · · A.· ·No.· I think we replace those as conditions

·8· ·warrant, when we do some testing and -- or if we have a

·9· ·problem, that the cost of replacing those would be

10· ·tremendously large.

11· · · · Q.· ·And to the extent that a cable is -- is

12· ·damaged during installation, that's usually the result

13· ·of a mistake, is it not?

14· · · · A.· ·I -- I can't necessarily say that.· I mean,

15· ·this was during an original construction in the early

16· ·seventies.· So it could have been that there was a rock

17· ·that got picked up.· I mean, you're -- you're talking

18· ·about traveling hundreds and hundreds of feet.

19· · · · · · ·And what they do is, they have these little

20· ·concrete vaults in the ground with the conduit going

21· ·through it.· And then it goes to another concrete vault,

22· ·and they run the cable through it, through the vault,

23· ·and they pull it through.· And these cables are like

24· ·this big around.

25· · · · · · ·And they pull -- pulling -- put a pulling
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·1· ·lubricant on it, and they pull it through.· And they are

·2· ·trying not to pull it so hard that they damage the

·3· ·insulation.· Okay.· So during the process, if it -- if

·4· ·it picks up any type of debris or -- or runs on a corner

·5· ·and gets slight gouged, it can get damaged.

·6· · · · · · ·Generally, after a cable is pulled in, a

·7· ·standard practice is to what they call Hipot them, is

·8· ·they get the cable in place, and it's not connected up

·9· ·to anything.· And they put a voltage on it to check the

10· ·leakage current to make sure it's functional.

11· · · · · · ·I am assuming that happened back in the

12· ·seventies when the plant was built and that it passed at

13· ·that time, and then it successfully operated for over 40

14· ·years before the pit got flooded and water actually

15· ·improved the conduction path.· And the damage and the

16· ·age probably got to it right there.

17· · · · Q.· ·Let me ask you a couple quick follow-ups.

18· ·The -- the purpose of those procedures as they install

19· ·it with the lubrication and -- and the way that it's fed

20· ·into the tubing and into the conduit tube, and the

21· ·conduit itself, in fact, it's -- it's all there to make

22· ·sure that it's not damaged; is that correct?

23· · · · A.· ·Generally, yes.

24· · · · Q.· ·And on a little bit of a different question,

25· ·with relative to the flooding of those, have you taken
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·1· ·any steps since then to remedy, to -- to have drains to

·2· ·keep those vaults from being flooded?

·3· · · · A.· ·Not to my knowledge.· I believe this was a

·4· ·gasket failure.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you think it would be a prudent

·6· ·choice to do that in the future, at least to the extent

·7· ·that a vault is within the drain path of some of the

·8· ·plumbing?

·9· · · · A.· ·So let's take this little building where it

10· ·happened.· It's kind of out in the middle of nowhere.  I

11· ·mean, there -- there aren't probably any drains to drain

12· ·it to.· I mean, you might be able to do something by

13· ·building up the lip of the vault or something else.  I

14· ·don't know.· I haven't specifically looked at that spot

15· ·to think about it that way.· I think the best thing to

16· ·do is prevent the leak to begin with.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the vaults -- the vaults aren't

18· ·intended to be run under water; is that correct?

19· · · · A.· ·It's not unusual to find water in them at some

20· ·point in time, because the ones outside may get

21· ·precipitation.· I mean, in my career, I have opened up

22· ·vaults before and they have had three to six inches of

23· ·water in them.· It's not uncommon.· They are not

24· ·designed for that, but it's not out of the ordinary.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so in a typical situation, wiring
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·1· ·that's undamaged is not -- I guess, a circuit to ground

·2· ·isn't created when water is -- is in those?

·3· · · · A.· ·No, not always.· It also, again, depends on

·4· ·the age of the cable, if it's starting to break down.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· And finally, I guess we'll

·6· ·move on to the Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage, which I

·7· ·believe was March 17th, 2017, and this is the instance

·8· ·where an incorrect part was delivered by MD&A; is that

·9· ·correct?

10· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

11· · · · Q.· ·How did the company choose to contract with

12· ·MD&A for this service?

13· · · · A.· ·It was a competitive bidding process.· I mean,

14· ·we usually qualify the vendors again, and based on their

15· ·experience and everything in the industry, and then we

16· ·go out for a competitive tender based on the scope of

17· ·work.· In this case it was a turbine overhaul, and then

18· ·we see the prices and negotiate terms and then take the

19· ·best value for the customer.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I am looking at your response testimony

21· ·on line 326, and I am going to -- are you -- are you

22· ·caught up?

23· · · · A.· ·I'm there.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And it says, "MD&A determined that the

25· ·root cause was that MD&A had recently increased the
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·1· ·repair shop capacity for work.· However, they had not

·2· ·yet caught up with fully staffing appropriately."· Did I

·3· ·read that correctly?

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And you said that you had -- had -- Rocky

·6· ·Mountain Power had verified that it was an appropriate

·7· ·vendor through their process; is that correct?

·8· · · · A.· ·Yes, and we have experience with them before.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But -- but you didn't know that they

10· ·had increased their repair shop capacity and not yet

11· ·caught up on staffing?

12· · · · A.· ·No.· Maybe a better way to say that is, when

13· ·you take a turbine apart, you don't necessarily know

14· ·what's -- needs repaired.· I mean, in our case we go --

15· ·on certain sections of turbine, we go eight years before

16· ·we tear them apart.· And when you tear it apart, you

17· ·find damage, and then you go to repair shops to try to

18· ·get that damage fixed within the outage frame.

19· · · · · · ·And most utilities will schedule outages in

20· ·the spring and the fall, because that's when power

21· ·prices are the lowest and replacement power costs for

22· ·the customer is the cheapest.· Winter and summer, that's

23· ·when everybody wants their electricity and the market

24· ·prices are higher.· So you select those times there.

25· · · · · · ·And a lot of times, the amount of repair work
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·1· ·these shops see in those times is kind of like drinking

·2· ·out of a fire hydrant, and then in the middle of the

·3· ·summer, it could be next to nothing.· So I mean, it, it

·4· ·kind of depends on who tore things apart across the

·5· ·country and what did they find.· So it's very, very hard

·6· ·to determine.· We just make sure that we are trying to

·7· ·get a contractor who is capable and competent of doing

·8· ·the work.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in this case, they -- they actually

10· ·installed the wrong part; is that correct?

11· · · · A.· ·Yes.

12· · · · Q.· ·It was an impeller from a different generation

13· ·unit?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.· What they did is they sent out the

15· ·impellers for -- to a third party for nondestructive

16· ·testing, to see if there was cracks in them that you

17· ·couldn't see visually, so that if you put it back in

18· ·there and then it was running, it didn't fly apart at

19· ·you at some other time.· And when they came back, there

20· ·was more than one impeller from the contractor, or from

21· ·the third party testing company, and they got it

22· ·switched.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so if I -- if I go to your analogy

24· ·of -- of switching your tires frequently, if you went to

25· ·the tire repair shop and your -- your car came out and
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·1· ·it had three different wheels on it, you might ask

·2· ·questions, wouldn't you, of whether this repair shop is

·3· ·competent to be doing the work that you hired them to

·4· ·do?

·5· · · · A.· ·I would question the ability, but if I had

·6· ·been doing business with him for 20 years and had very

·7· ·good success, I would ask him to correct it and ask him

·8· ·what they were going to do to make sure it didn't

·9· ·happen.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Would you ask -- would you ask them

11· ·to -- in the -- in the car repair instance, to pay for

12· ·your taxi to go wherever you needed to go while they

13· ·repair your car?

14· · · · A.· ·Probably not.

15· · · · Q.· ·You wouldn't.· Okay.· And similarly can you

16· ·not ask MD&A to cover the cost of the energy to cover

17· ·the outage?

18· · · · A.· ·We did not ask them to cover the direct cost

19· ·of the replacement power.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And it's accurate, I guess, that you

21· ·are asking that the customers are going to -- asking

22· ·customers to pay for that?

23· · · · A.· ·To some -- yes.· The other way to think about

24· ·this, if we would try to get contracts that shifted a

25· ·hundred percent of the risk to contractors, I know we
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·1· ·would pay a significantly amount more than what we are

·2· ·paying for contracts now.· And the frequency rate of

·3· ·failures is extremely small compared to the number of

·4· ·contracts we do.· So we would be spending a lot more

·5· ·money for the benefit.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· I have no further questions.

·7· ·Thank you for your testimony and putting up with my

·8· ·questions today.· I appreciate it.

·9· · · · A.· ·No worries.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you, Mr. Jetter.

11· ·Mr. Russell?

12· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· Thank you, Chairman LeVar.

13· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

14· ·BY MR. RUSSELL:

15· · · · Q.· ·I have a few questions, and I'm going to try

16· ·to follow Mr. Jetter's format a little bit in that he

17· ·started asking you some questions more generally about

18· ·the company when it hires subcontractors or third party

19· ·contractors.

20· · · · · · ·You -- he asked you a question about whether

21· ·those contracts include replacement power costs in those

22· ·third party contracts, and you indicated they do not.

23· ·I'm -- I'm curious about the mechanism.· Is it -- do

24· ·those contracts typically include a waiver of

25· ·consequential damages?· Is that -- is that how those
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·1· ·contracts are set up?

·2· · · · A.· ·I -- I believe so.· I mean, the -- the

·3· ·contracts do not specifically say that.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· I don't think you are getting

·5· ·on the microphone.

·6· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I'm sorry.

·7· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Russell)· It's difficult because I am

·8· ·way over here and you have to turn.· I'm sorry.

·9· · · · A.· ·I don't believe so.· I'd -- I'd have to look

10· ·at the contract.· But the contracts do not have specific

11· ·language that say, if -- if an event happens, the

12· ·contractor will be solely responsible for all

13· ·replacement power cost incurred by the company.· It

14· ·doesn't say anything like that.

15· · · · Q.· ·In -- in, I guess, does -- does it contain a

16· ·provision that has the inverse?· Does it say that the

17· ·contractor will not be responsible for certain damages

18· ·that result if we, the subcontractor, made a mistake?

19· · · · A.· ·I don't -- I don't recall that.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· All right.· Fair enough.· Part of

21· ·the -- the job, I guess, of the company, is to -- is to

22· ·go out and hire subcontractors that you believe are

23· ·competent, right?

24· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

25· · · · Q.· ·And -- and also to hold contractors
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·1· ·responsible if they make a mistake, yes?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And as between the company and the customers,

·4· ·the company is in the better position to hold those

·5· ·subcontractors responsible, yes?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yes, I would agree.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And let's talk a little bit about

·8· ·relationships with third party operators of power

·9· ·plants.· We talked about the Craig 2, Craig Unit 2 plant

10· ·a little bit.· And it's Tri-State Generation that

11· ·operates that unit, yes?

12· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

13· · · · Q.· ·And what -- and maybe we can just talk

14· ·specifically about that one.· What recourse does Rocky

15· ·Mountain Power have in a situation where you believe

16· ·that Tri-State Generation has operated its plant

17· ·imprudently and it causes impacts on Rocky Mountain

18· ·Power's customers?

19· · · · A.· ·I would have to go back and look at the

20· ·participation agreement.· If they used reasonable

21· ·utility standards, I don't think we have any recourse.

22· ·I mean, if it was gross negligence or something to that

23· ·effect, I believe we might, but I, again, I'd have to go

24· ·back and look at the participation agreement and ask my

25· ·attorneys whether they would concur with my opinion or
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·1· ·not.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Fair enough.· Do -- do you know whether the

·3· ·standard that -- that Tri-State Generation owes to its

·4· ·co-owners is the same as the standard that Rocky

·5· ·Mountain Power owes to its customers?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Objection as to the legal

·7· ·conclusion.· But as far as the understanding of what

·8· ·they expect of their co-owner, I mean, go ahead and

·9· ·answer.

10· · · · A.· ·Well, I guess I am not sure I understand your

11· ·question.

12· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Russell)· Yeah.· I -- I guess -- and

13· ·the context here, of course, is that the company has

14· ·come to this commission saying, we -- we have acted

15· ·prudently, and we would like to recover X costs, and --

16· ·and the commission has to determine whether the company

17· ·has acted prudently.

18· · · · · · ·What I am wondering is, does Tri-State

19· ·Generation have the same standard to Rocky Mountain

20· ·Power that Rocky Mountain Power has to its customers?

21· ·In other words, is it the same prudent standard, or is

22· ·it some higher standard that -- that Tri-State

23· ·Generation would have to the company?· Or some lower

24· ·standard, if you know.

25· · · · · · ·I'm -- I'm merely asking whether you know.
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·1· · · · A.· ·Tri-State has the responsibility to operate

·2· ·the plant with good utility practice.· Okay.· I mean, I

·3· ·believe that's the term used, because there's not a

·4· ·standard quoted or anything to that effect.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's talk -- I have some

·6· ·follow-up questions about some of the units that we

·7· ·walked through that are -- that are outlined in the

·8· ·Daymark report.· Let's talk about the Craig Unit 2

·9· ·outage, and this is the one with the -- the plugs that

10· ·were removed and then put back in.

11· · · · · · ·I had -- I had a question, I -- that I guess I

12· ·don't understand the -- in your testimony you say when

13· ·those plugs go back in, they are tightened, but torque

14· ·isn't used.· And I guess I don't understand what that

15· ·means.· But -- but they are -- they are not just hand

16· ·tightened, but what -- how are they -- how are they put

17· ·back in?

18· · · · A.· ·Okay.· I'll try to figure out the best way to

19· ·say this.· Okay.· So when you tighten something up, you

20· ·are putting a bed frame together on a -- for a house, or

21· ·for your kids.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Just interrupt.· Does that

23· ·microphone move any closer to you?· Does it have enough

24· ·cable to move to the edge so you can look at him?

25· · · · A.· ·So you are putting a bed frame together, use a

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 61
·1· ·crescent wrench or a Boxit wrench, and you just tighten

·2· ·it down.· And when it's tightened up by what you feel,

·3· ·you just kind of move on.

·4· · · · · · ·Well, in -- in certain pieces of a high

·5· ·technical equipment like engines and that, they use what

·6· ·they call a torque wrench.· And it has amount of

·7· ·tightening to it, and you want to get it tight enough

·8· ·generally so it like crushes a gasket or has a good seal

·9· ·so that when the, the bolt heats up, it grows enough so

10· ·it doesn't create a leak or anything.

11· · · · · · ·So when torque value is not required, they

12· ·didn't ever put a torque wrench on it to do it.· It was

13· ·left up to the experience of the millwright, the

14· ·mechanic doing it, to say, it's tight enough and

15· ·appropriate.

16· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Russell) Okay.· And do you know

17· ·whether in this particular instance the millwright that

18· ·was -- that was tightening those bolts, whether anybody

19· ·checked the work of the person that was doing it?

20· · · · A.· ·No.

21· · · · Q.· ·Whether somebody followed behind and said,

22· ·that bolt's not tight enough or anything?

23· · · · A.· ·I don't know.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Your testimony, your response

25· ·testimony, indicated -- it gave a description of how
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·1· ·these bolts -- bolts are removed and, and tightened.

·2· ·I -- my question is, do you know whether that's how it

·3· ·was done here?· Or is this -- or was that testimony --

·4· ·the basis of that testimony simply your experience as to

·5· ·how those things are done?

·6· · · · A.· ·I, I didn't witness what they did.· That's the

·7· ·procedure I have witnessed General Electric do in the

·8· ·past.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So, so your testimony there

10· ·described --

11· · · · A.· ·And that's what the plant operator told us

12· ·they did too.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you conducted some investigation

14· ·into this instance --

15· · · · A.· ·Yeah, I was --

16· · · · Q.· ·-- and -- and this is what the plant operator

17· ·informed you was the process that took place.

18· · · · A.· ·Yes.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Okay.· Let's move on to the -- Dave

20· ·Johnson 3 is the next one.· The April 25, Dave Johnson 3

21· ·outage, and that is the one -- was this a forced outage?

22· · · · A.· ·Yes, it was.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I am not going to be offended if you

24· ·don't look at me when you answer my questions.

25· · · · A.· ·Okay.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·If it's just easier to face the microphone,

·2· ·that's fine.

·3· · · · A.· ·All right.

·4· · · · Q.· ·This was the one where the -- there was

·5· ·nonconforming material in the boiler tubes, correct?

·6· · · · A.· ·That was correct.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And I think your testimony indicates

·8· ·this, but I -- I guess I'll ask.· Is nonconforming

·9· ·material in the boiler tubes a known cause of a

10· ·potential outage?

11· · · · A.· ·Well, nonconforming means it's not exactly

12· ·what was designed.· Okay.· Giving an example is, let's

13· ·just say we didn't have that material when the outage

14· ·occurred and we put a lower grade, okay, nonconforming

15· ·material in, but that material has a cycle life.· Okay.

16· ·And if we put it in, we just have to recognize that at

17· ·some point in time we'll need to address it.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in this instance you don't know why

19· ·this nonconforming material was installed, correct?

20· · · · A.· ·No.· It was 20 plus years ago, and we don't

21· ·have records for that.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in your testimony there is a

23· ·description.· I can point you to the portion of your

24· ·testimony.· I think it's around lines 125 and 126.· You

25· ·describe a period of about 15 years of repairs in which
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·1· ·you -- you include the -- the statement here is that you

·2· ·showed that the standard of like kind materials has and

·3· ·will continue to be used, maximizing plant equipment

·4· ·life.· Can you tell me what you meant by that?

·5· · · · A.· ·We have a better tracking system, a

·6· ·computerized tracking system.· So what we do is if we

·7· ·had to do something similar to this, we'll log it in

·8· ·that tracking system, and we'll be able to pull it up

·9· ·easily like during overhauls and that and address it.

10· ·So we went back 15 years and said, had we put in

11· ·nonconforming material in the last 15 years, and the

12· ·answer is no.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So this -- this review only went

14· ·back -- went back to whether -- whether the company had

15· ·installed nonconforming materials in the last 15 years?

16· · · · A.· ·And that's -- the quality of our records

17· ·degrades significantly after that, because, you know,

18· ·they were more paper oriented at that time.· So it's

19· ·harder to do searches.

20· · · · Q.· ·And when was -- when did the company become

21· ·aware that this particular tube, or portion of tube that

22· ·failed, used nonconforming material?

23· · · · A.· ·After we got the metallurgist report after it

24· ·failed.

25· · · · Q.· ·So this wasn't something you were aware of
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·1· ·beforehand?

·2· · · · A.· ·No.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And is that something that one would find on

·4· ·a -- during an outage, that there is material in here

·5· ·that isn't the correct spec?

·6· · · · A.· ·Okay.· So when you weld these tube materials

·7· ·together, I mean, you will have a piece of pipe, and you

·8· ·will have one -- one over here and a piece over here and

·9· ·weld it together.· And after -- let's just say after

10· ·four or five years, I could lay them on the table there,

11· ·and you wouldn't be able to tell which material is

12· ·which.

13· · · · · · ·I mean, it will take a metallurgist going

14· ·under a, you know, basically looking at the materials

15· ·through radiation, through that, and try to figure out

16· ·what the material makeup is.· So I can't look at it and

17· ·tell you whether it's a different material after it's

18· ·been in service for a while.

19· · · · Q.· ·And is the -- the -- the type of material

20· ·used, is that something that could be discovered during

21· ·an inspection during a planned outage?

22· · · · A.· ·It would be an extremely difficult task.  I

23· ·mean, now they make a gun that's got a radioactive

24· ·source in it.· You could put it up to material, and it

25· ·gives you a relative chemistry makeup, you know, one and
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·1· ·a quarter chrome or whatever, so you can kind of figure

·2· ·that out.

·3· · · · · · ·But you basically -- it's telling you that

·4· ·little spot.· So you would have to do that at every

·5· ·little piece on every boiler tube throughout the whole

·6· ·boiler.· I think you would be doing that for many, many

·7· ·years.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's move on to -- I think

·9· ·the next one is -- oh, the next one is the September

10· ·outage of the same year.· So I guess we're at four

11· ·months -- four months later, different boiler tube,

12· ·right?

13· · · · A.· ·Correct.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And this one we -- you talked with

15· ·Mr. Jetter a little bit about explosive, deslagging, and

16· ·I -- I appreciate that testimony.· I -- I, the only -- I

17· ·have just a short bit of follow-up.· You indicated that

18· ·in years past the company used a higher velocity

19· ·detonation cord than it does now.

20· · · · · · ·I'll admit that I have no idea what that

21· ·means, but it, it sounds as though, based on your

22· ·testimony, that the company became aware that -- of

23· ·testing or reports in the industry that using a lower

24· ·velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to the

25· ·boiler tubes.· Is that correct?
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·1· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And when did -- when did that occur?

·3· · · · A.· ·Pre-2011.· I don't know exactly when.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And why -- why do you say pre-2011?

·5· · · · A.· ·We implemented a new standard in 2011 at the

·6· ·DJ plant, so we know -- we know it was before that.

·7· ·Since 2011, we have been using the lowest velocity det.

·8· ·cord at the DJ plant that's available on the market.· So

·9· ·I am sure we made some changes before that.· I just

10· ·don't know whether they were graduated or whether it was

11· ·a step change or what it was pre-2011.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So sitting here today, you don't know

13· ·when the company found out that -- or -- or when the

14· ·reports became available indicating that a lower

15· ·velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to -- to

16· ·boiler tubes, but you know that in 2011, the company

17· ·implemented a change to use the lowest velocity

18· ·detonation cord.· Do I have that right?

19· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then let's move on to the Jim

21· ·Bridger.· I am going to skip the Huntington one.· Let's

22· ·move to Jim Bridger 2.· This outage was in January of

23· ·2017, and this is the one that the -- I guess there was

24· ·water freezing in a water cooled spacer tubing?

25· · · · A.· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And this was in, I take it, an unplanned

·2· ·outage for something else.· Yeah?

·3· · · · A.· ·The bottom ash system, the drag chain, had a

·4· ·problem, and the plant had to come off for that, so --

·5· ·excuse me, people could safely work on the repair.· And

·6· ·during that time, it was very cold out, and the -- the

·7· ·boiler, that particular section of line froze up.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· I mean, you indicated earlier that the

·9· ·company typically would -- would plan an outage for the

10· ·spring and the fall, and here we are in January, so I --

11· ·I thought maybe there was something else happening.

12· · · · · · ·You described with Mr. Jetter a little bit

13· ·the -- the process that was in place at the time.· What

14· ·I -- what I don't feel like I have a great grasp of is

15· ·what changed after the January outage when this problem

16· ·arose.· What do you do now that you did not do then?

17· · · · A.· ·If you go to page 11, starting on line 248,

18· ·"The heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the

19· ·control electrical technician to write a work order to

20· ·correct any deficiencies found.· Capital projects have

21· ·been established to replace the heat tracing in all four

22· ·Jim Bridger units, and to mitigate the risk of line

23· ·freezing, plant personnel have evaluated if there's a

24· ·positive slope in the horizontal sections of the spacer

25· ·tube lines, where positive slope didn't exist.
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·1· ·Otherwise, it can self-drain."

·2· · · · · · ·So unfortunately, heat tracing has a

·3· ·propensity to fail over time.· And then "Plant personnel

·4· ·have modified the boiler shutdown procedures to drain

·5· ·the boiler when the water temperature reaches 180

·6· ·degrees, rather than waiting for until blasting and

·7· ·deslagging efforts are complete."

·8· · · · · · ·And that was -- that was done because if

·9· ·there's water in the tubes, the possibility of damage to

10· ·the tubes is reduced, because there's water in the tube.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I -- I thought I understood your

12· ·previous testimony in responding to Mr. Jetter's

13· ·questions to be that the void in the process here was

14· ·that the technician who had checked that line with a

15· ·piece of equipment was able to indicate that there was

16· ·current but no voltage?

17· · · · A.· ·The opposite way.

18· · · · Q.· ·Oh, sorry, I --

19· · · · A.· ·There was voltage but no current.

20· · · · Q.· ·I thought that might -- I thought I might have

21· ·written it down backwards.· There's voltage but no

22· ·current.· And tell me how that led to the problem at

23· ·issue here.

24· · · · A.· ·Go to an outlet.· You look at an outlet right

25· ·now, there's 120 volts on it, but it's not doing any
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·1· ·work.· When you plug something into it, current flows

·2· ·and it does work, and it needs the current and the

·3· ·voltage to do the work.· So if there's no current,

·4· ·there's no work being done, which means there's no heat

·5· ·to keep the line from freezing.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· I appreciate that.· And is

·7· ·that something that should have been noted by the

·8· ·technician who -- who registered that there was voltage

·9· ·but no current?

10· · · · A.· ·We didn't tell him he had to.· We had told him

11· ·he had to do this, and we just kind of assumed they

12· ·would flag it.· I mean, it was -- I don't know what to

13· ·say is, we -- we made the assumption that his knowledge

14· ·and experience he would flag that, and for some reason,

15· ·he did not, and then it slipped through the cracks.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then the first bullet point that

17· ·you pointed to me here, starting on line 248, "That the

18· ·heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the

19· ·control and electrical technician to write a work order

20· ·to correct any deficiencies found during the PM."

21· · · · · · ·Is that -- is that designed to address that

22· ·specific issue?

23· · · · A.· ·Yes.· We are creating an expectation that if

24· ·you find something, you need to write the corrective

25· ·action for that, not rely on somebody else to do it and
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·1· ·assume somebody else is going to catch it.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's talk about Jim

·3· ·Bridger Unit 3 for a moment.· This is the one where

·4· ·there was -- had apparently been some damage to the

·5· ·wiring, and then when the -- when that wiring conduit

·6· ·flooded, there was a forced outage, correct?

·7· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Does the company know when the -- the damage

·9· ·to that wiring or the insulation around that wiring

10· ·occurred?

11· · · · A.· ·Well, since they are the original cables, it

12· ·would have been during the construction period of Jim

13· ·Bridger 3, which is '73, '74-ish, somewhere around

14· ·there.· I don't -- somewhere around there.

15· · · · Q.· ·Is that the only time that that damage could

16· ·have occurred?

17· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· The cables were never replaced before

18· ·then.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is there a process in place to go

20· ·inspect cables that have been in conduit for 40 plus

21· ·years?

22· · · · A.· ·There's no really way to do it.· I mean, it's

23· ·kind of like, there's a vault here, and a hundred yards

24· ·away, there is another vault.· And I don't know how you

25· ·inspect the cable all the way.
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·1· · · · · · ·What you do is, you can't visually inspect it.

·2· ·What you do is an electrical test, and you basically put

·3· ·a voltage on it.· You measure what I would call leakage

·4· ·current, it's open ended, and it tells you how much --

·5· ·and these are micro amps, and you -- you measure how

·6· ·much current is going through just by dissipating it.

·7· · · · · · ·As insulation breaks down, more current will

·8· ·flow, and there's generally accepted standards for

·9· ·equipment, and occasionally you do that, but not very

10· ·often.· I mean, but that's usually a test you do right

11· ·after you pulled in a cable to make sure you haven't

12· ·damaged it.

13· · · · · · ·And I am making the assumption that Black and

14· ·Veach, when they built the plant, they had that as a

15· ·standard, and -- and allowed that or tested all cable

16· ·pulls after they were put in to verify that no damage

17· ·had occurred to the point where it failed the test.· But

18· ·I don't have any records to prove that.· That's just

19· ·general practice in my 37 years.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· I don't have any further

21· ·questions.· I appreciate your time today.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you,

23· ·Mr. Russell.· About how much time do you think you need

24· ·for redirect?

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Longer than I thought that I
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·1· ·would.· So...

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Well, maybe we should

·3· ·take a break, and we'll have a full complement here when

·4· ·we return.· Is breaking until about 12:45 good for

·5· ·everyone?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Yeah.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· We will be in recess

·8· ·until 12:45.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · ·(Lunch recess from 11:33 a.m. to 12:44 p.m.)

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· We're back on the

11· ·record, and we're glad to have Commissioner Clark back

12· ·with us both for today and the next six years.· So we'll

13· ·move on to --

14· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· Sorry.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· -- redirect Mr. Ralston.

16· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

18· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

19· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Ralston, before we get into any specifics

20· ·of any particular outage, I'd like to have you provide

21· ·some information pertinent to some questions you

22· ·received from both parties about steps that the company

23· ·can take, or has taken or could take vis-a-vis its

24· ·contractors, and are the customers supposed to bear this

25· ·risk without any protection or -- or what can we do.
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·1· · · · · · ·Do you recall being asked the question about

·2· ·whether your contracts had a -- a specific provision

·3· ·that would allow the company to recover any net power

·4· ·costs or excess cost due to outages?· Do you remember

·5· ·that question?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yes, I do.

·7· · · · Q.· ·And your answer was?

·8· · · · A.· ·That we do not have any provisions that

·9· ·directly allow to us collect.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·Whatever they are.

12· · · · Q.· ·So are you familiar with the term, if I use

13· ·it, liquidated damages?

14· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am.

15· · · · Q.· ·Does the company from time to time provide

16· ·liquidated damages in its contracts?

17· · · · A.· ·Yes, we negotiate liquidated damages,

18· ·depending on the scope and the time line of the outage.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is one of the categories that would

20· ·trigger a liquidated damage scenario when the contractor

21· ·returns the -- the project back to the company?

22· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Gen -- generally liquidated damages are

23· ·either on a -- on a schedule basis.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And what does that mean, when you say

25· ·schedule?· Explain to me how these get negotiated.
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·1· · · · A.· ·Giving a specific example of DJ4.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· DJ4 is, just for everyone's

·3· ·clarification, that's the plant where MD&A sent back the

·4· ·wrong piece of equipment, the wrong impeller.· Is that

·5· ·the outage we are talking about?

·6· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So using that as an example, did that

·8· ·contract have a liquidated damages provision?

·9· · · · A.· ·Yes, it did.

10· · · · Q.· ·And what was a triggering event for the

11· ·liquidated damages?

12· · · · A.· ·Not returning the unit to the operator, us, at

13· ·an agreed-upon time in the contract.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so did the company go after its

15· ·contractor and say, "Hey, we are sorry.· We know you

16· ·tried, but with this impeller you did not get the

17· ·project back in time.· Therefore you owe liquidated

18· ·damages"?

19· · · · A.· ·Yes.· We collected some liquidated damages

20· ·because they were late.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And who got that money that came in

22· ·from the liquidated damages?

23· · · · A.· ·They were credited to the capital project, so

24· ·the customer did.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So the -- and is it your understanding,
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·1· ·did Daymark in their audit and in their conclusion about

·2· ·the amount of money that should be denied for the

·3· ·overage, did they account for the fact that the company

·4· ·did in fact collect liquidated damages, and it applied

·5· ·that to lower the cost of the project?

·6· · · · A.· ·I didn't -- I don't believe it was in their

·7· ·analysis anywhere.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, do all the company's contracts

·9· ·have liquidated damages?

10· · · · A.· ·No.· You pay for liquidated damages.

11· · · · Q.· ·So give us just generally the types of

12· ·contracts that would or wouldn't.

13· · · · A.· ·On an overhaul, if it's a critical path on the

14· ·overhaul to returning it, we would generally put

15· ·liquidated damages on that, because if they are late, it

16· ·will delay the overhaul.

17· · · · · · ·But if -- if I am Joe contractor and I have a

18· ·week's worth of work and I start at the beginning of the

19· ·overhaul, it takes me 10 days, and it doesn't really

20· ·affect the return time, I am not going to put liquidated

21· ·damages in.· Because as a contractor, I will see that in

22· ·there, and I will jack up my price to cover my risk.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

24· · · · A.· ·So we do it on ones that will have a material

25· ·effect, we believe, on us if they are late.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And that included, for instance, the

·2· ·Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage?

·3· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, going now more broadly, meaning

·5· ·not just referring to the Dave Johnson Unit 4 outage,

·6· ·you indicated from your summary to your answers to the

·7· ·questions you were asked by various counsel about your

·8· ·belief that shifting all risks to the contractor was

·9· ·going to result in exorbitant costs.· Do you remember

10· ·saying words to this effect?

11· · · · A.· ·Yes.

12· · · · Q.· ·And I apologize if you said this, but just to

13· ·get where we are going, have you ever seen, in your

14· ·years of experience, a contract of the type that you

15· ·understand Daymark is suggesting the company needs to

16· ·enter into with its contractors?

17· · · · A.· ·No, I have not in -- in this -- in my

18· ·experience, seen anybody who would be willing to sign up

19· ·for a hundred percent all the risk.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, my question was about contractors.

21· ·There's also questions about your -- about Tri-State,

22· ·who you point out is not a contractor, it's a co-owner.

23· ·Are you aware of whether or not Tri-State, or if there

24· ·are participation or operation agreements, is it typical

25· ·to shift all of the risks to whoever the operator is?
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·1· · · · A.· ·In all the ones I have been involved with,

·2· ·both the ones that we are the operator and the ones that

·3· ·we are not the operator, I have never seen one where all

·4· ·the risk is shifted to the operator.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And so there are instances, as I understand

·6· ·it, when the company is in the shoes of -- of Tri-State

·7· ·where the company is the operator but it has different

·8· ·co-owners?

·9· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· We have three plants that that's the

10· ·case.

11· · · · Q.· ·And in those plants, has the company allowed

12· ·those other co-owners to say to the company, "Hey, you

13· ·are the operator.· If there is some kind of outage, if

14· ·there is some kind of, you know, risk, you are

15· ·holding -- that all goes to you"?

16· · · · A.· ·No, we have not allowed that.

17· · · · Q.· ·Would the company enter into such a contract?

18· · · · A.· ·Absolutely not.

19· · · · Q.· ·Now, as long as we are talking about the

20· ·contract, there was a question asked at one point about

21· ·is the standard different, meaning if the company is

22· ·entering into contracts to have someone else operate

23· ·this plant, does that expose customers to greater risk?

24· ·Is the standard different?· Do you remember that --

25· · · · A.· ·Yeah.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·-- questioning?· What is your understanding

·2· ·of -- and again, I know you are not a lawyer, so I don't

·3· ·mean, you know, the legal terms.· But is your

·4· ·understanding that there is any kind of shift that makes

·5· ·customers more at risk either whether, you know,

·6· ·Tri-State's operating it or the company's operating it?

·7· · · · A.· ·The standard we have with the commission is

·8· ·the same standard Tri-State has with us.

·9· · · · Q.· ·And what is that standard?

10· · · · A.· ·Reasonable and prudent utility standard.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So to be clear, you weren't in your

12· ·answers trying to imply that somehow customers have a --

13· ·less protection if Tri-State is operating it compared to

14· ·the company?

15· · · · A.· ·No.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, you were asked a series of

17· ·questions about how the company does stay engaged if it

18· ·does have another operator rather than itself.· You

19· ·recall those questions?

20· · · · A.· ·Yes.

21· · · · Q.· ·Just to give the commission a sense of how

22· ·involved the company is, because this is your job

23· ·duties, when was the last time that you visited one of

24· ·those such plants, or how often does that happen?· Can

25· ·you give just a sense of how the company does stay
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·1· ·engaged?

·2· · · · A.· ·The -- at -- at my level, we usually discuss

·3· ·things at least quarterly unless there's something else

·4· ·going on.· Okay.· And then the E and O level, they have

·5· ·daily e-mails on status and everything else, but then

·6· ·they meet, is it five or six times a year?· I can't

·7· ·remember which the exact number is, for things like

·8· ·long-term planning, budgeting and everything.

·9· · · · · · ·But again, if there is an event going on, they

10· ·will have a call, or we have sent people to the plant to

11· ·inspect things for ourselves when they said, here is an

12· ·event that happened and it's going to cost us X to fix.

13· ·And then we'll send people down there to lay our own

14· ·eyes on it and see if we concur.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So when was the last time you were at a

16· ·third party plant?

17· · · · A.· ·I was at a third party meeting two weeks ago.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

19· · · · A.· ·Actually, four of them two weeks ago.

20· · · · Q.· ·You were asked questions about contractors and

21· ·why the company is hiring contractors and why isn't the

22· ·company just doing this itself, and, again, that may not

23· ·have been that pointed, but questions going towards

24· ·that.

25· · · · · · ·Just to help the commission in making its
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·1· ·decision, can you explain generally why does the company

·2· ·hire contractors rather than just having employees to do

·3· ·all of the jobs that need to happen to maintain the

·4· ·plant?

·5· · · · A.· ·So during an overhaul, we will get a whole

·6· ·bunch of work.· I don't know how else to say it.· We

·7· ·will work 24 hours a day, seven days a week on that five

·8· ·week period.· And at any given time, there could be,

·9· ·depending on the scope of work, 400 to 800 people

10· ·on-site, okay, that we need.

11· · · · · · ·And we don't staff up for that.· We staff up

12· ·for forced outages and day-to-day maintenance, because

13· ·we are doing these overhauls once every four years.  I

14· ·mean, it doesn't make sense to try to staff up to that

15· ·level.· I mean, give you an example is, relative

16· ·staffing at the Huntington plant is less than 200 people

17· ·or around there, and we have had outages where we have

18· ·had 600 to 700 people on there.

19· · · · · · ·We don't need that except for about six, eight

20· ·weeks out of every four years.· So we are going to hire

21· ·contractors for labor, and also we're going to hire them

22· ·for technical expertise.· We don't -- we don't claim to

23· ·be experts on how to tear a turbine apart and put it

24· ·back together.· People, the OEMs and other that have

25· ·that much more experience than we do.
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·1· · · · · · ·I mean, and especially as we have stretched

·2· ·outages out, the frequency that you get that experience

·3· ·and knowledge gets stretched out too.· So we use

·4· ·contractors because that's the most cost effective way

·5· ·to do it for the customer.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I'd like to now go through and just

·7· ·touch on several of the specific outages that you were

·8· ·asked questions about, and, of course, the first one

·9· ·that came up was Craig Unit 2.· And that's the -- again,

10· ·just to clarify for everyone, that's the unit where

11· ·there was at some point a plug backed out and there was

12· ·a leak?

13· · · · A.· ·Correct.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· There was a line of questioning about

15· ·torque.· You noted in your testimony, no one put a

16· ·specific torque level because that wasn't required.· Do

17· ·you remember that when you were questioned about that?

18· · · · A.· ·Yes.

19· · · · Q.· ·Wouldn't it be prudent, or would it cost a lot

20· ·more to go back and put a torque spec in there.· Do you

21· ·remember those questions?

22· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· And that -- that procedure is the

23· ·General Electric or the OEM's procedure.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So that you -- you anticipated my

25· ·question, which is, is that -- is that something that
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·1· ·the company comes up with or the actual manufacturer of

·2· ·the part comes up with?

·3· · · · A.· ·No, the actual manufacturer or the contractor

·4· ·doing the work.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So it's not that the company didn't

·6· ·come along and say, oh, we didn't bother spec'ing.· It

·7· ·was GE itself that didn't have a spec for torquing it

·8· ·called out?

·9· · · · A.· ·Correct.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·Generally when we do contracting work like

12· ·that, we will scope the -- the -- not how to do the

13· ·work, but the scope of work we want, you know,

14· ·disassemble, clean, inspect, repair, that kind of thing.

15· ·We won't tell them how to necessarily do the work.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· There was, I think, some implied

17· ·assumptions that this one bolt that came out just

18· ·probably wasn't tightened all the way.· Is there -- is

19· ·that something that we know?· Do we know that the reason

20· ·that bolt or plug came out is because it wasn't properly

21· ·tightened?

22· · · · A.· ·We don't really know.· We're surmising.

23· · · · Q.· ·Is there anything else that you could think of

24· ·that could possibly cause that plug to fail?

25· · · · A.· ·If there's a defect in the plug possibly.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do we -- okay.· Let's -- let's switch

·2· ·now from the Craig unit -- well, actually I want to back

·3· ·up one more thing.· I had one more thought on the -- the

·4· ·leak.· If this really was just because it wasn't

·5· ·tightened, there was a question about, well, did anybody

·6· ·come behind the tightening and test to see if it was,

·7· ·you know, tightened up.· And the answer was, no one came

·8· ·right behind him, but there was a test that was put in

·9· ·place.

10· · · · A.· ·Yeah, there was a leak test at 48 pounds of

11· ·pressure --

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

13· · · · A.· ·-- for 24 hours to prove that the leakage was

14· ·acceptable for the machine.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And would that -- would, again, I know

16· ·you didn't go and test it, but would you assume that if

17· ·there is a plug that simply hasn't been tightened,

18· ·someone, when they put them all in by hand and then came

19· ·back with their wrench, if someone didn't tighten one

20· ·down, would you assume that a -- that such a plug would

21· ·be able to withstand a 48 pound of pressure test at 24

22· ·hours without any evidence of leaking?

23· · · · A.· ·If they didn't tighten it down or if it --

24· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· If it wasn't fully tightened, if

25· ·someone just like hand threaded it in kind of thing?
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·1· · · · A.· ·It's -- it's possible, but it, it kind of

·2· ·depends on, you know, is it just sitting in there?· Or

·3· ·if it was tight or -- I mean, if -- it's possible it

·4· ·could have, but at the same time, it probably would have

·5· ·failed the test.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· All right.· So let's go to the Dave

·7· ·Johnston, the first outage which was, this is the

·8· ·nonconforming tube, okay.· And to clarify, does the

·9· ·company know when the piece of nonconforming tubing was

10· ·put in place?

11· · · · A.· ·No, we do not.

12· · · · Q.· ·Does the company know why nonconforming

13· ·material was put in place?

14· · · · A.· ·No, we do not.

15· · · · Q.· ·If the commission was going to be judging

16· ·utility standards based on what the utility knew or

17· ·should have known at the time conduct occurred, can you

18· ·think of any reason why it could have been prudent to

19· ·put a nonconforming piece of material in, you know, 20,

20· ·30 years ago?

21· · · · A.· ·As -- as I said is, the two tubes, the one

22· ·that failed and the one next to it, are just inches

23· ·apart.· This material was the same as the one putting in

24· ·the nonconforming material.· If the nonconforming

25· ·material was not available and wasn't going to be
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·1· ·available for several days or a week or whatever,

·2· ·because they are so close, I would have made the

·3· ·judgment call to put it in to get the unit back to

·4· ·service.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And just so we're clear, if -- whether

·6· ·it's 20 years later or even two weeks later, if someone

·7· ·were to look at these two tubes, can you visually see,

·8· ·hey, that's not the same kind of tubing; that's

·9· ·obviously nonconforming material?

10· · · · A.· ·No.· You -- you -- visually you wouldn't be

11· ·able to tell the difference.

12· · · · Q.· ·All right.· Let's move on to the September

13· ·Dave Johnson's outage.· This is the one with the

14· ·detonation cord, the tubing that may have -- again, I'll

15· ·say it may have been damaged by blasting, just so we're

16· ·talking about the same outage.· Okay.· You covered this

17· ·a little bit, but again, very briefly, first of all, why

18· ·is the company deslagging boilers?· What is happening?

19· · · · A.· ·When you have a failure on a tube and you go

20· ·in to repair it, a lot of times there will be slag

21· ·hanging in big chunks.· If they are large enough, I

22· ·effectually call them '64 Buicks, and you don't want

23· ·people working underneath them.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

25· · · · A.· ·Because if they come down and fall, it could
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·1· ·kill them.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·3· · · · A.· ·So we go in and deslag it to make the area

·4· ·safe to do the repairs.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so it's deslagged for safety

·6· ·reasons.· Is that --

·7· · · · A.· ·There -- there are some operational advantages

·8· ·in that, but generally, if it's related to a tube leak,

·9· ·it's because we want to clean the area so it's safe.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

11· · · · A.· ·And then if we have them in, we may do some

12· ·other blasting for performance reasons, like if an area

13· ·is starting to plug off.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the alternative to explosions is

15· ·manual, and how did that happen?· I think you talked

16· ·about you could do it manually.· How -- how would that

17· ·work if you were manually deslagging?

18· · · · A.· ·Sledge hammers, picks.· You know, you just hit

19· ·the stuff.· You just beat on it.

20· · · · Q.· ·And just why is that more dangerous to

21· ·workers?

22· · · · A.· ·Well, you take the chance of it ricocheting

23· ·off and get in your eye, or you are in awkward positions

24· ·because, you know, you are standing on little platforms

25· ·about this big in between panels.· It is just putting
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·1· ·people at risk.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So one of the assumptions that's

·3· ·made -- well, I guess, IEC says there is a

·4· ·recommendation that you switch to the load detonation

·5· ·cord, right?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yes.· And as I said, I believe that was, if we

·7· ·haven't already done it, they were flagging it saying,

·8· ·they are seeing stress damage in these tubes that are

·9· ·original equipment.

10· · · · Q.· ·And that happened eight -- eight years ago.

11· ·Is that what you said?

12· · · · A.· ·When we switched?

13· · · · Q.· ·When you switched?

14· · · · A.· ·2011.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So seven, six years ago from the

16· ·incidents in question.· So can you surmise anything

17· ·about, based on the fact that this tubing still was

18· ·operational for at least five, six years, vis-a-vis how

19· ·much damage that blasting did or didn't contribute to

20· ·the leak?

21· · · · A.· ·Well, I can't tell when the damage was done,

22· ·whether it was 10 years ago or 20 years ago.· It's just

23· ·residual damage in the tube.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· The point is, I guess, you would agree

25· ·that it's not like the blasting damaged the tube so it
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·1· ·failed two weeks later, right?

·2· · · · A.· ·No.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · A.· ·Again, there's two elements on this -- this

·5· ·outage.· You have the embrittlement, which happens when

·6· ·you are operating at temperatures over 700 degrees, and

·7· ·it's kind of like, you seen a tire that's weather

·8· ·checked.· And you can tell the tire is kind of worn out

·9· ·because you can see all the weather checking on the side

10· ·of the tire, and you can tell it's on its last days.

11· · · · · · ·Okay.· You have to have that and the blasting

12· ·damage for it to really come up.· If you put this on a

13· ·brand-new tube, it probably would never show up.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

15· · · · A.· ·As a failure.

16· · · · Q.· ·Let's switch to the Huntington 1 outage.· This

17· ·is the one where there was like the welds and there

18· ·was -- there was a question about, well, wait a minute.

19· ·Isn't this the fourth time in 11 years?· Do you recall

20· ·that line of questioning?

21· · · · A.· ·Yes.

22· · · · Q.· ·So have you calculated that?· What is the

23· ·failure rate of these welds that are at issue?

24· · · · A.· ·Well, less than 1 percent.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.
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·1· · · · A.· ·4 over 605 I believe it is.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And did I hear you testify that there were 600

·3· ·of these welds in just in this plant?

·4· · · · A.· ·No, in this section.

·5· · · · Q.· ·So there's even -- there's far more than that

·6· ·in a plant?

·7· · · · A.· ·There -- there can be other places where there

·8· ·are other dissimilar metal welds.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And you testified that -- someone asked

10· ·you how much it would cost if you were to go in and do

11· ·those welds, and you had a number which was?

12· · · · A.· ·I am estimating if you had to replace all 600

13· ·and some, it would be close to $2 million.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

15· · · · A.· ·Ish.

16· · · · Q.· ·And so one of the things I want to get to is

17· ·kind of how you plan these planned outages, but I guess

18· ·what I am wanting to understand is, if you have a less

19· ·than 1 percent failure rate and yet $2 million plus

20· ·repair bill, the implication has been made to this

21· ·commission, hey, you should have fixed this.· You have

22· ·had a chance to fix it, why didn't you fix it sooner?

23· · · · · · ·And so I am wondering if you can explain why

24· ·that didn't come up in any planning for that at this

25· ·plant previously.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 91
·1· · · · A.· ·Well, the -- the failure rate -- we -- we knew

·2· ·the mechanism was there, and we were monitoring it.· But

·3· ·with that failure rate and the cost to replace

·4· ·everything, it, it wouldn't pencil out as a prudent

·5· ·expenditure, because the risk over here was smaller than

·6· ·the capital expenditure of 2 million plus dollars.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So what -- just so they under --

·8· ·because we have talked about this so much today, can you

·9· ·at a high level explain to the commission, what does go

10· ·into planning for an outage?

11· · · · A.· ·Well, we usually spend at least a year working

12· ·on it.· I mean, actually the -- the next outage starts

13· ·six weeks after the last one begin -- or ended.· We --

14· ·we get all the inspection reports that we have.· We

15· ·document them, and we create a scope of work that we

16· ·know we have to do next time.

17· · · · · · ·But then in between that, other data we get,

18· ·based on analysis and that, will develop that scope of

19· ·work.· And we'll develop the scope of work, and then

20· ·we'll start figuring out who is going to do what and

21· ·what we're going to contract out.· We will go out for

22· ·competitive bidding, and we'll negotiate contracts.

23· ·We'll award those.· We'll schedule things.

24· · · · · · ·The week before the outage is always very

25· ·entertaining, because you will have hundreds of people
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·1· ·showing up, and you will get them through security and

·2· ·train them on safety protocols for our plant and then

·3· ·get them set up for work.

·4· · · · · · ·People will bring in contractor trailers, and

·5· ·it's -- it's kind of like you are building a little

·6· ·city.· And then you take the unit off, and everybody

·7· ·kind of goes to work.· And then daily -- and you have

·8· ·the schedule set up and now they have nice scheduling

·9· ·tools.

10· · · · · · ·The one we tend to use is called Primavera,

11· ·and you put all the tasks in there, and you link them

12· ·all together so that if one task takes longer, you can

13· ·see the effect and you can try to figure out a way

14· ·around it.

15· · · · · · ·And you have at least daily meetings to talk

16· ·about schedule update, safety, a number of other things.

17· ·And you -- you -- when you tear stuff apart, you find

18· ·out the condition of it, and sometimes it's worse than

19· ·you like it to be, and sometimes it's better than you

20· ·like it to be.· Unfortunately, most of the time it's the

21· ·opposite.

22· · · · · · ·So and then you try to figure out how to get

23· ·work done on the equipment that you find that needs to

24· ·be repaired that you aren't expecting to repair.

25· · · · · · ·And then you basically put it all back
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·1· ·together, and you commission it and you start it up, and

·2· ·we do all that in about five weeks.· So and then we run

·3· ·it basically continuously except for forced outages for

·4· ·four years.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Ralston, I'd like to now turn your

·6· ·attention to the Jim Bridger Unit 3.· This is the cable

·7· ·pull that was that outage that -- so we are all thinking

·8· ·about the same thing.

·9· · · · A.· ·Yes.

10· · · · Q.· ·This is probably implied in some answers you

11· ·gave, but I don't think anyone ever asked you directly,

12· ·so I will ask it now.· Is this cable that's being pulled

13· ·through, is this something that is visible you can look

14· ·at and see, hey, that's been damaged?

15· · · · A.· ·No.· There's only little sections that are

16· ·exposed, and that would be in the manholes, you know,

17· ·and they are six-by-six.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

19· · · · A.· ·Four-by-four or something like that, and the

20· ·rest of it is buried in a conduit.· Kind of be like

21· ·saying, go inspect your gas line from your gas meter out

22· ·to the street.· I mean, it's buried.· You can't see it.

23· ·So you do a pressure test or something else on the gas

24· ·line.· In this case when the cable's pulled in, they do

25· ·an electrical test on it generally.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Now, when you said it's six-by-six, is that

·2· ·six feet by six feet or six --

·3· · · · A.· ·Six feet by six feet.· It's a little vault.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· When -- I guess the point I want to get

·5· ·to is, prior to the event in question, had this cable

·6· ·ever functionally, operationally or visibly given the --

·7· ·the company notice that it -- there was a problem?· Did

·8· ·it ever not perform?

·9· · · · A.· ·No.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so I guess I just want to remove

11· ·any thought the commission would have of whether the

12· ·company goes, oh, yeah, we know we have got some damaged

13· ·cable but we just don't want to bother repairing it?

14· · · · A.· ·No, we didn't know it was damaged until we

15· ·pulled it out of the hole.

16· · · · Q.· ·All right.· Okay.· I think that covers it.

17· ·Thank you.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you, Mr. Moscon.

19· ·Mr. Jetter, any recross?

20· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I do have some recross.

21· · · · · · · · · · · RECROSS-EXAMINATION

22· ·BY MR. JETTER:

23· · · · Q.· ·Good afternoon.

24· · · · A.· ·Sure.

25· · · · Q.· ·I asked someone to make an exhibit that I am
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·1· ·still waiting on.· There's a little bit of new testimony

·2· ·here that I think that needs to be addressed.· So I am

·3· ·going to skip around just a little bit until we get

·4· ·that.

·5· · · · · · ·Just to address the -- the question of the --

·6· ·the plug that was installed and had fallen out on the --

·7· ·on the generation facility, I can't recall which one?

·8· · · · A.· ·Craig 2.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Craig 2.· It's -- it's correct that those were

10· ·removed so that a sealing compound could be pumped

11· ·through the hole; is that correct?

12· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

13· · · · Q.· ·Is that sealing compound important to seal

14· ·gaps such as a potentially not fully tightened plug?

15· · · · A.· ·It would have the same effect, yes.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And so a not fully tightened plug, you

17· ·would probably expect if that sealing compound were

18· ·working correctly, would seal that hole?

19· · · · A.· ·That's potentially depending on how tight the

20· ·plug was.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· May I approach the witness and

23· ·hand out an exhibit?

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Yes.

25· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I'd like to note that this, I
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·1· ·believe, is a designated confidential exhibit.· I don't

·2· ·know if we need to go -- we probably should go into a

·3· ·confidential session if we're going to discuss this.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Are you making that

·5· ·motion?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I'll -- I'll make the motion.

·7· ·It's -- it's a little bit of a tricky position because

·8· ·it's not my claimed confidentiality.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Oh, sure.

10· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· But I think it's appropriate, so

11· ·I'll make the motion.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Is there any objection

13· ·from any party to closing the hearing to the public

14· ·while we're discussing this?· I am not seeing any

15· ·objection, so let me just -- we need to -- we have to

16· ·make a finding, and I'll just see if there's any

17· ·objection from -- okay.

18· · · · · · ·Pursuant to Utah Code Section 54-3-21, we find

19· ·that it is in the interest of the public to close the

20· ·hearing while we are discussing this exhibit.· I'll ask

21· ·those that are in the room to just look at those that

22· ·are in the audience.· I don't know if we have anyone in

23· ·the audience today who is not privileged, not entitled

24· ·to access to this material.· If anyone sees anyone who

25· ·isn't, please indicate to me.· I recognize most of the
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·1· ·people in the room, one or two that I don't, but it

·2· ·looks like we're in good shape.

·3· · · · · · ·I will -- while we're in confidential, I will

·4· ·turn off both the microphone speakers and the hearing

·5· ·loop system.· If anyone is relying on the hearing loop

·6· ·system to hear, I am -- I'm going to have it turned off

·7· ·while -- while we do this -- and yeah, I mean, because

·8· ·it's accessible into the hallway.· So it might be a

·9· ·little bit harder for you to hear.· If you have any

10· ·difficulty hearing just let the witness know, and we'll

11· ·do that.

12· · · · · · ·(The following portion was marked confidential

13· ·and was heard in closed session:)

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 100
·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 103
·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·* * *

·4· · · · · · ·(The confidential portion ended, and the

·5· ·public hearing proceeded as follows:)

·6· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Jetter)· And this is a nonconfidential

·7· ·question, so I am not asking you for the -- the value of

·8· ·this, but in response to what we were discussing

·9· ·earlier, the liquidated damages, did the liquidated

10· ·damages recovered by the company under that contract,

11· ·were they equal to, greater or lesser than the value of

12· ·the replacement energy?

13· · · · A.· ·Lesser.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I have no further questions.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Mr. Russell, any

17· ·recross?

18· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· Yeah.· Just a couple of

19· ·questions.

20· · · · · · · · · · · RECROSS-EXAMINATION

21· ·BY MR. RUSSELL:

22· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Ralston, you were asked some questions

23· ·generally about the company's efforts to mitigate costs

24· ·to customers in the event that, whether the company or a

25· ·contractor makes an error somewhere along the way.· And
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·1· ·we've -- we've have discussed that in -- in the context

·2· ·of contractual provisions, I guess, you know, has -- has

·3· ·the company ever pursued obtaining an insurance policy

·4· ·against these sorts of -- of potential damages?

·5· · · · A.· ·I haven't been directly involved with that,

·6· ·but I understand it's expensive.· I -- I haven't got any

·7· ·benchmark or say how expensive it is.· I just know

·8· ·that -- I have been told by when we have asked

·9· ·contractors to do it that it's very pricey.

10· · · · Q.· ·When you have asked contractors to obtain a

11· ·insurance policy --

12· · · · A.· ·Well, like --

13· · · · Q.· ·-- like a rider to their contract or

14· ·something?

15· · · · A.· ·When -- when we have negotiated that, we just

16· ·kind of go, why don't you get an insurance policy for

17· ·that if they are so worried about it.· And they go back

18· ·and look at it and said, no, we're not interested.· It's

19· ·too expensive.· So again, we have used it as more of a

20· ·negotiating tool.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But other than -- other than

22· ·negotiating with contractors, the company itself hasn't

23· ·tried to insure itself against --

24· · · · A.· ·Not to my knowledge.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then you were asked a question
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·1· ·about the Dave Johnson 3 outage -- we're talking about

·2· ·the nonconforming materials -- by Mr. Moscon.· I, I --

·3· ·you had indicated that there -- there may be some

·4· ·reasons why you might install the nonconforming material

·5· ·at the time, if that's -- that's the material that you

·6· ·have and if the conforming material wasn't available.

·7· ·Do you recall that?

·8· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·9· · · · Q.· ·In the event that you -- that you installed

10· ·nonconforming materials for whatever reason, wouldn't

11· ·you then make sure to make a note of it so that the

12· ·company in later years would know that there's

13· ·nonconforming material in there, knowing that it will be

14· ·difficult to ascertain just by looking at it later on?

15· · · · A.· ·Generally, we would do that.· Again, if this

16· ·was 30 years ago, it was a completely papered system.

17· ·And when you go through a merger or two, and then you

18· ·adopt another system, I don't know what happened to

19· ·those records.

20· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· But just, if -- if you -- if you were

21· ·to do that now, I guess is where I am --

22· · · · A.· ·We, we would have a note in our database, and

23· ·we would be able to call that up, planning for the next

24· ·outage, and -- and identify all the nonconformances, and

25· ·they would be added to the work load.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·So if you knew from the previous outage you

·2· ·had installed some sort of the nonconforming material,

·3· ·and you -- you were -- you were able to plan for it

·4· ·going forward, you might make the decision to replace

·5· ·that nonconforming material with conforming material if

·6· ·that conforming material is available during the next

·7· ·outage?

·8· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

10· · · · A.· ·And when I say outage, I mean planned

11· ·overhaul.

12· · · · Q.· ·Understood.· Understood.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· And that's all I have.· Thanks.

14· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· I think we

15· ·had discussed rerecross.

16· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Sure.· And I -- and I guess I can

17· ·just be very short.· Mr. --

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Do we need to go into

19· ·confidential, closed hearing for this?

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· No.· I think we can just do it

21· ·this way.

22· · · · · · · · · FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION

23· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

24· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Ralston, you were shown a confidential

25· ·attachment, DPU 1.6-1, and there was some question about

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 107
·1· ·why some -- you know, liquidated damages weren't

·2· ·reported pertaining to the MD&A situation at Naughton

·3· ·Unit 2?

·4· · · · · · ·So again, just so we're clear, what was your

·5· ·understanding as to why the one doesn't answer the

·6· ·other's question?

·7· · · · A.· ·6.1 is for forced outages, and I understood

·8· ·6.2 was for planned outages.· And the question was on --

·9· ·on reimbursements from forced outages, and we didn't

10· ·have any unforced outages.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· All right.· Thank you.· No

12· ·further follow-up.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· I think I

14· ·am going to ask a few questions, and then I think my

15· ·colleagues have some more.· It might take me a moment to

16· ·make notes, I want to make sure I don't just ask things

17· ·that have already been asked and answered.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

19· ·BY CHAIRMAN LEVAR:

20· · · · Q.· ·For the Craig 2 outage, we have had a lot of

21· ·discussion today about this plug, and the pressure test

22· ·that was performed.· I think the only question I had

23· ·left that hasn't been answered is, as an engineer you

24· ·discussed the pressure test that was performed and --

25· ·and the -- the -- the pressure it was performed at.· As
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·1· ·an engineer, is it physically possible to conduct a

·2· ·vibration test for this plug?

·3· · · · A.· ·No.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Is -- is that -- is that just an

·5· ·impossibility?

·6· · · · A.· ·No, you wouldn't be able to do that.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· It seems like what -- it seems like

·8· ·you'd have to -- I -- I started thinking through what

·9· ·might be necessary.· That's -- that's what it seemed to

10· ·me.

11· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· I don't know how you would shake --

12· ·shake the thing.

13· · · · Q.· ·So is there -- is there any way to test for

14· ·vibrations, impacts other than starting the plant back

15· ·up?

16· · · · A.· ·Not to my knowledge.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And then to clarify, you -- you don't

18· ·know for a fact that it was vibrations that caused this

19· ·plug to come out, but that's one of your --

20· · · · A.· ·No, it's a reasonable deduction.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· The Dave Jonnson Unit 3 April 2017

22· ·outage.

23· · · · A.· ·Yeah.

24· · · · Q.· ·Not the -- the dis -- not dissimilar, the

25· ·nonconforming tubing that was installed, do you have any
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·1· ·reason not to -- not to presume that the tube was also

·2· ·nonconforming when it was installed some 20 plus years

·3· ·ago?· It was nonconforming at the time of installation;

·4· ·is that correct?

·5· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Because of the material it was made out

·6· ·of.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is it your presumption that it

·8· ·would have been documented at the time, but that

·9· ·document -- the, the reason for the installation of the

10· ·nonconforming tube would have been documented, but

11· ·there's not a way to find that documentation any more?

12· · · · A.· ·In -- in my experience, from 30 plus years

13· ·ago, we would have documented it somehow.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

15· · · · A.· ·And -- and flagged it.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

17· · · · A.· ·Now, again, it would have been a paper system,

18· ·and it could have been in somebody's file or, you know,

19· ·there -- there was -- the technology has taken us a long

20· ·way on being able to manage maintenance.· I mean, just

21· ·look at your car from the 1960s to today.

22· · · · Q.· ·So would you say it was probably an indexing

23· ·problem, a document management issue of why we don't

24· ·have access to that -- to that documentation any more?

25· · · · A.· ·That's my best guess.· I really don't know.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·2· · · · A.· ·So I mean, you don't know what was actually

·3· ·done at that time, whether the records were there or --

·4· ·and whether it got discarded or missed or what.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·6· · · · A.· ·You don't really know.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.

·8· · · · A.· ·Because it was all a paper system.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I think that's almost all of my

10· ·questions.· Oh, okay.· The Jim Bridger Unit 2 outage,

11· ·and you may have already answered this, when you

12· ·discussed, I -- I think you discussed during the

13· ·preventive maintenance that an inspector discovered

14· ·there was voltage but no current.· Am I -- am I --

15· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

16· · · · Q.· ·That is what you said before?· So how --

17· ·and -- and you indicated that that inspector did not

18· ·flag the issue properly, but how -- so how do we know

19· ·that the inspector discovered that?

20· · · · A.· ·Well, he wrote on the PM form.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Wrote it on a form?

22· · · · A.· ·He wrote it on the form that there was a

23· ·voltage, or he had a 208 voltage and zero current.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So it was written -- it was noted but

25· ·not flagged?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And I -- I think you already answered this.

·3· ·This inspector was -- was a contractor?

·4· · · · A.· ·No, he was one of our employees.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Pacific Power employee.· Okay.

·6· · · · A.· ·He was our -- we call them CET, control

·7· ·electrical tech.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Okay.· I think I understand all the

·9· ·rest of the testimony on that.· Let's see.· No.· Okay.

10· ·For Dave Johnson Unit 4, when you hired -- hired MD&A as

11· ·the contractor, you had indicated that you have used

12· ·them a lot, right?

13· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· We have used them several times, and I

14· ·have a -- I have done business with them for well over

15· ·20 years.

16· · · · Q.· ·What kind of mandatory minimum qualifications

17· ·do you -- do you establish?· Does -- does -- does your

18· ·history of working with them generally satisfy any --

19· ·any mandatory minimum qualifications?

20· · · · A.· ·No.· It's also their work experience.· You

21· ·know, we have never done business with them, but they

22· ·have been out in the business for 15 years and done 50

23· ·jobs.· And we will call, ask for references and talk to

24· ·people, and how well did they work?· What was their

25· ·safety record?· You know, were they competent?· That
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·1· ·kind of thing.· That's how we usually qualify a newer

·2· ·contractor that we don't have a lot of experience with.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· With this particular job, with their

·4· ·work on this control rotor main oil pump impeller, I

·5· ·think I am saying that right, did they miss any

·6· ·deadlines or any miss any delivery dates prior to the

·7· ·discovery of this incorrect part installation?

·8· · · · A.· ·Well, the -- the real delivery date is, we

·9· ·call it gear time, when it's put back together and the

10· ·oil flush is done and everything else, and it's turned

11· ·over to operations to restart the plant.· There's kind

12· ·of really only one -- there is -- there is two dates,

13· ·oil flush, but the real date is when you turn it over to

14· ·operations, because that's the only thing that really

15· ·matters.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And was that deadline satisfied and

17· ·then the -- and then improper installation was

18· ·discovered?

19· · · · A.· ·No, no, no.

20· · · · Q.· ·This was prior -- this was prior to that?

21· · · · A.· ·Yeah, they -- they -- they missed that

22· ·deadline because of the rotor.

23· · · · Q.· ·Because of the discovery?

24· · · · A.· ·Yeah.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And they -- they discovered the part
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·1· ·prior to that deadline?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yeah.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · A.· ·So yeah.· When it came back on-site, when we

·5· ·were doing a reinspection between ourselves and MD&A

·6· ·on-site people, it was discovered that it was the wrong

·7· ·impeller at that time, before it was ever installed in

·8· ·the machine.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· I think that's all of

10· ·my questions.· Thank you.· Commissioner White?

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

12· ·BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:

13· · · · Q.· ·Good afternoon.· The first question, just

14· ·harking -- and this -- this may be potentially a

15· ·question better addressed by Mr. Wilding.· But I just

16· ·want to clarify the liquidated damages issue, and I am

17· ·going to avoid any confidential information if possible

18· ·here.

19· · · · · · ·But I thought I heard, whether it was you

20· ·testifying or Mr. Moscon clarifying, the battle,

21· ·typically those liquidated damages are somehow, goes to

22· ·the customers benefit.· Is that -- is that -- does that

23· ·go to the net power cost equation?· Does that offset an

24· ·expense of some respect?· I am just trying to understand

25· ·was the capital in --
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·1· · · · A.· ·It reduces the capital amount of the project

·2· ·that's capitalized and goes into rates.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·4· · · · A.· ·I think Mr. Wilding would be much better to

·5· ·explain all the accounting practices on that.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· We -- I -- I -- I hate to do this

·7· ·because I am not clear if this is an issue that actually

·8· ·reduces rate base or if it's actually part of the EBA.

·9· ·I am just wondering if it's outside.· Is he still sworn

10· ·in, or is that possible to have him answer from the --

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Whatever is pleasing to the

12· ·commission, we're happy to do.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Sure.· Do you want to wait

14· ·until we're finished with Mr. Ralston, or do you want to

15· ·do that right now?· It's up to you.

16· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· Why don't -- why don't we

17· ·wait -- we'll just -- we'll -- you can doodle on it for

18· ·a minute.

19· · · · · · ·This is more of a general question.· So I have

20· ·heard you mention, and I -- I -- I don't know if this is

21· ·a term or art or not, but, you know, this reasonable

22· ·prudent utility standard, and -- and so if we're looking

23· ·at actions of the company in comparison to that time

24· ·decisions were made, what -- what does mean?

25· · · · · · ·Are we to look at -- is there like a general
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·1· ·code, like the NESC?· Is there -- is this a, you know, a

·2· ·manual that's provided specific to whatever component

·3· ·you're dealing with?· Or what -- what should we actually

·4· ·be looking at, I guess, in terms of that standard?· How

·5· ·should we be comparing the actions of the company.

·6· · · · A.· ·Part of the reason that kind of phrase is in

·7· ·there is because there is really no, what I would call

·8· ·written guide book, and you hand it to somebody and say,

·9· ·here is what reasonable prudent utility standard is.

10· ·It's kind of what has developed in the industry, and you

11· ·would be compared to other utilities and the other

12· ·metrics and that.· So it's kind of like benchmarking for

13· ·lack of better term.· Okay.

14· · · · Q.· ·So -- so is there -- is there nothing -- I

15· ·mean, when -- when you are describing the company's

16· ·practices, it's based upon your experiences, you know,

17· ·in the industry of 37 years.· There is nothing you can

18· ·say, well, this is as documented by, you know, Evista in

19· ·their planned outage of, you know, 1994, or this is how

20· ·southern company -- there's -- there's nothing like

21· ·that.

22· · · · · · ·It's just your experience as a plant operator

23· ·doing overhauls, et cetera, that's -- that's -- I guess,

24· ·I am just trying to figure out how do we explore that in

25· ·terms of like -- we're not -- I am not an engineer or a
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·1· ·plant operator, certainly haven't been doing it for 37

·2· ·years, so I am just wondering what -- how do we test

·3· ·that I guess?

·4· · · · A.· ·It's a good question.· On -- on outage data on

·5· ·that, if -- take Evista, for example.· I don't have any

·6· ·transparency or access to their data or anything else.

·7· ·The only access I have data to is for plants we own.  I

·8· ·mean, if you look at the NERC gas data, it's pretty

·9· ·generic, okay.· I mean, from a -- from a public view.

10· · · · · · ·A lot of utilities will share data.· Like at

11· ·our partner plants, we will share information between us

12· ·and the Tri-State people, through us, Excel people that

13· ·operate the Hayden plant through us, and -- and the APS

14· ·people that operate the Cholla plant.· So we -- we tend

15· ·to share information and best practices.· It's not

16· ·necessarily a formalized document.

17· · · · · · ·Okay.· A lot of the information sharing is bad

18· ·things that happen to us, and -- and we share it so that

19· ·it doesn't have to happen to anybody else.· And --

20· ·and -- and for us, our SDR process are significant

21· ·events.· The whole purpose was that if something happens

22· ·at a plant site that it's shared with the other plant

23· ·sites so we don't have to live through that again if at

24· ·all possible.· So that -- there isn't a real structured

25· ·way to do it.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Let me ask you this.· It sounds like when you

·2· ·are -- when you are doing plant outages, you attempt to

·3· ·schedule those the most economic times; in other words,

·4· ·when power costs are lowest, because you are going to

·5· ·have to replace power.

·6· · · · · · ·Do you have any sense of what the typical

·7· ·replacement costs are for a four to six week average

·8· ·plant outage?

·9· · · · A.· ·No.· Mike might have a better idea on it.

10· ·What -- what we do, just so you understand is, we kind

11· ·of come up with the scope of the time we need and then

12· ·we kind of say, we need it in this year.

13· · · · · · ·And then we go to our -- our trading people,

14· ·who have the best knowledge of -- of when prices are

15· ·going to be what.· You know, they forecast them, and

16· ·say, just tell us when we can have it so that we have

17· ·that information a year or two out, so we can plan

18· ·around it and develop contracts and everything else.

19· · · · · · ·So generally, from what I have seen, is April,

20· ·May tends to be the lowest.

21· · · · Q.· ·Let me ask you about this concept that you

22· ·testified to earlier in terms of like, you know,

23· ·essentially when you are contracting with a counter

24· ·party, there is always going to be risk -- risk

25· ·shifting, and somebody is going to pay for it depending
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·1· ·on where that goes on the site, you know, the contract.

·2· · · · · · ·And, and I also kind of heard you testify that

·3· ·there is no counter party who will ever -- at least

·4· ·there is not a cost high enough to actually -- to -- to

·5· ·where the risk of replacement power costs are unknown.

·6· ·When you are talking about paying for risks, are there

·7· ·certain components of a plant or certain processes

·8· ·that -- that will drive the allocation of risk one way

·9· ·or another?

10· · · · · · ·In other words, is it something like where if

11· ·it's a -- you know, you are doing something on the

12· ·outside of the plant that's, you know, very low

13· ·probability of a -- of an outage, you're -- you're for

14· ·sure not to going to pay for risk, but for something

15· ·like you're doing a very highly technical component of a

16· ·overhaul, that you are going to be willing to pay for

17· ·the counter party to -- to own that risk?· Does it

18· ·depend?

19· · · · A.· ·It depends.· It depends on the scope of work.

20· ·For example, like on a turbine, I mean, when you put

21· ·those back together, it usually takes a couple of weeks

22· ·to reassemble them.· So you really want to make sure

23· ·they are done right.· Okay.· So you tend to try to put

24· ·more onus on the op -- or on the contractor to do it

25· ·right, because the consequences of them not doing right
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·1· ·tends to be a bigger deal.· Whereas, if it's something

·2· ·that can be fixed in 30 minutes, that has a completely

·3· ·different consequence.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Let me -- let me go through these.

·5· ·I'll -- I'll try to be consistent with the order that

·6· ·it's been addressed today.· On -- on the -- on the Craig

·7· ·Unit 2, I think you testified earlier that GE did -- did

·8· ·not have a spec in terms of, I guess, the -- the torque.

·9· ·Do they now?

10· · · · A.· ·I don't know that.

11· · · · Q.· ·You don't know.· Has the company independently

12· ·adopted a standard beyond that?

13· · · · A.· ·No.· We -- we don't do that work.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

15· · · · A.· ·We are just not staffed up to do that.

16· · · · Q.· ·And I think you -- I think you answered this

17· ·from Chair Levar's question, this -- this -- there's no

18· ·way of knowing from your perspective whether this was

19· ·a -- a -- a issue of -- of the torque or lack thereof,

20· ·or it could have been something different beyond that?

21· · · · A.· ·No.· If I would have walked up to it, I doubt

22· ·if I had been able to even tell any difference between

23· ·any of the plugs.

24· · · · Q.· ·On the -- on the DJ 3 outage with the -- I

25· ·don't know if we're calling it the dissimilar or
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·1· ·nonconforming?

·2· · · · A.· ·The nonconforming.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Nonconforming welds.· Is there any way of

·4· ·knowing whether or not there was a different standard at

·5· ·the time?· In other words, what was the spec?· Were you

·6· ·aware of a spec, and was this consistent with the spec

·7· ·the way it was performed?

·8· · · · A.· ·I'm -- I'm not aware of it.· General practice

·9· ·has always been like kind replacement.

10· · · · Q.· ·Does -- does the company keep records of the

11· ·original specs for a plant and --

12· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· We have -- we have design drawings that

13· ·say, here is what the material is and that.· And that's

14· ·when we put it in our database so we know what to look

15· ·for.

16· · · · Q.· ·And was -- was this consistent with the spec,

17· ·the original spec for the way the plant was built?

18· · · · A.· ·I am not --

19· · · · Q.· ·Meaning -- meaning the nonconforming tube.  I

20· ·mean, that -- that's -- the company agrees that this was

21· ·nonconforming with the way the plant was intended to be

22· ·designed and built?

23· · · · A.· ·Yes.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

25· · · · A.· ·That's why it's nonconforming.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· But -- but -- but -- but it's -- but

·2· ·the company believes -- or the company is -- let me go

·3· ·back on this one.

·4· · · · · · ·This is a paperwork one, right?· Pacific --

·5· ·Pacific Power had the paperwork?

·6· · · · A.· ·I -- I believe so.· I can't prove anything.

·7· ·But that's the most logical answer.· I mean, you don't

·8· ·know when it was put in.· You don't know why it was put

·9· ·in.· You don't know the -- the -- the specifics of the

10· ·outage because it was over 20 years ago, and we don't

11· ·have the documents for that.

12· · · · Q.· ·Did -- did Utah Power when they built their

13· ·plants keep those types of records?

14· · · · A.· ·I -- if we went back 40 years ago, I don't

15· ·know if we would be able to have that information

16· ·either.· I doubt it.· Because again, when everything was

17· ·in file cabinets and that, at some point in time people

18· ·just, after you find a 30-year-old document, you

19· ·probably don't keep it, because it's probably not

20· ·relevant any more.

21· · · · Q.· ·Is -- is that typically considered, you

22· ·know -- you know, utility standards to -- to -- in terms

23· ·of recordkeeping, is there a standard that the company

24· ·now adheres to or --

25· · · · A.· ·I think we have a records retention policy,
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·1· ·but I don't remember exactly what it is.· I would have

·2· ·to look it up.· We do keep a lot of information, but

·3· ·it's not everything.

·4· · · · · · ·To give you an example is, when this happened,

·5· ·if it would have happened to me and it had been 95

·6· ·degrees out and power prices were really high and I

·7· ·didn't have the material, I would have put that other

·8· ·material in in half a heartbeat to get the plant on so

·9· ·that it weren't -- we weren't having to buy expensive

10· ·power off the market.· Okay.· That -- that's -- that's

11· ·triage at that time.

12· · · · · · ·Why it didn't get switched out at some period

13· ·of time, I can't answer that because I don't have any

14· ·details and facts.· I can just guess.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· In terms of the deslagging practice

16· ·on -- on -- on DJ 3, I just want to make sure I

17· ·understood your earlier testimony.· But help me

18· ·understand that the logic or the thinking at the time in

19· ·terms of like, was -- was this a decision that the

20· ·company made that was based upon safety practices?

21· · · · · · ·In other words, that the, the -- that the

22· ·one -- one way is potentially better for the, the wear

23· ·and tear of the plant, but one way is -- is safer and

24· ·the company chose the safer route?· Did I misunderstand

25· ·that?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Well, part of it, it -- it was developed in

·2· ·the entire industry.· I mean, we're not the only utility

·3· ·that uses explosive blasting.· There's companies that go

·4· ·out all over the country and do this.

·5· · · · · · ·It became a practice for mainly two reasons.

·6· ·One is safety, but the other thing is, it was much

·7· ·faster, so you get the unit back on, you know, and --

·8· ·and have less outage time.· If you do it manually, it

·9· ·takes a long time.

10· · · · Q.· ·So -- so would I be incorrect in saying

11· ·that the -- that the decision at the time to switch to

12· ·this new method was based upon a combination of, I

13· ·guess, opportunity cost or -- or -- and safety?

14· · · · A.· ·Safety, yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And that was done at the time that --

16· ·remind me again the year that was done?

17· · · · A.· ·Well, we -- we switched to the lowest velocity

18· ·in 2011, but we were doing this long before then.· And

19· ·I'm -- I'm saying explosive blasting has probably been a

20· ·practice for 20, 30 years at least.

21· · · · Q.· ·And let me move on to Huntington, Huntington

22· ·1.· Similar question, I guess, help -- help me

23· ·understand.· I think you have already through bits and

24· ·pieces of different questions, testified to this, but

25· ·you know, put me -- put me in your decision making mode
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·1· ·of the decision when you knew that there were issues

·2· ·with this type of weld, to not just again -- I think

·3· ·what you said is that it was an economic decision based

·4· ·upon -- walk me through that again.

·5· · · · A.· ·Okay.· So if I -- if I -- if I have one or two

·6· ·failures, and I have a general idea that I -- to --

·7· ·to -- I know at some point in time I am going to have to

·8· ·replace all these, but I want to try to get the maximum

·9· ·value out of them and not just cut them out prematurely.

10· · · · · · ·And if -- if I put it into a model on

11· ·replacement power costs, and I made an assumption that I

12· ·would have one or two, three breaks a year and that, I

13· ·am not sure it would pay for itself.· So, I mean, we

14· ·then generally when we do capital projects, run them

15· ·through some type of model that says, if you don't to

16· ·it, here is the problem, and if you do do it, here it

17· ·is.

18· · · · · · ·And then it runs it through a model and say,

19· ·does it pay off or not?· And four leaks in 11 years and

20· ·$2 million is not going to pay off very well.

21· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Jim Bridger 2.· Is -- we have had a lot

22· ·of talk about this.· This employee, I guess -- let me

23· ·ask you this.· Her function of what -- whatever she did,

24· ·he or she did, in performing this, which was to

25· ·document, I guess, but not to report up, was that
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·1· ·industry standard?· Or was that something that was --

·2· ·was inconsistent with what was good utility practice?

·3· · · · A.· ·I can't really comment on that.· I would say

·4· ·it was not a best practice.· I -- I was -- I had not

·5· ·been that happy with that employee.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Is it safe to say that having a procedure that

·7· ·prescriptive was probably not that necessary; it was

·8· ·more of just that the employee was missing a common

·9· ·sense element?

10· · · · A.· ·Yeah, that -- that's fair.· I mean, I don't

11· ·know if he thought somebody else was going to catch it,

12· ·whether -- I mean, we have kind of a saying is, if you

13· ·see it, you own it.· Okay.· And -- and that's what we

14· ·have to drive is, not thinking somebody else is going to

15· ·address the problem for you.

16· · · · Q.· ·I'll try to speed up a little bit.· On --

17· ·on -- on -- on Jim Bridger 3, this was the cable pull

18· ·issue.· I think I heard you earlier say that it was, you

19· ·know, it's -- there were -- it is true that there would

20· ·be no way of knowing about this damage?

21· · · · A.· ·Physically?

22· · · · Q.· ·Physically.

23· · · · A.· ·I mean, the only way you could do it is do an

24· ·electrical test on the cable, and if it passed the

25· ·electrical test, you drive on.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· What is the -- is there industry

·2· ·standard or a best practices for during plant

·3· ·construction to -- I mean, you know, and tell me if --

·4· ·if -- you feel free to include your assumptions or in

·5· ·terms of cost benefit analysis, what is the typical

·6· ·practice of when you are building a plant of, I guess,

·7· ·checking and double-checking things of this nature?

·8· · · · A.· ·Normally they pull the cables in, clear

·9· ·everybody out of the way, and then they -- they megger

10· ·or Hipot --

11· · · · · · ·THE REPORTER:· I'm sorry, sir.· Would you say

12· ·that again?

13· · · · A.· ·Megger or Hipot.· They're -- they're --

14· ·they're just tools that you can use, and what you do is

15· ·you put -- it's like have you a wire here, and it's

16· ·open-ended at both ends.· You put a potential on the one

17· ·and it energizes the whole wire, and then you measure

18· ·the leakage current.· How much is going to ground when

19· ·you crank the voltage up and down?

20· · · · · · ·And there's acceptable standards for cables.

21· ·15 KV has a different standard than 5 KV and everything.

22· ·And -- and if it passes, that's about all you can do.

23· ·And -- and generally every place I have been involved in

24· ·when they have installed cables like that, they do that

25· ·test prior to turning it over and terminating it, you
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·1· ·know, connecting it up to the equipment.

·2· · · · Q.· ·(By Commissioner White)· So we should assume

·3· ·that that test was performed prior to --

·4· · · · A.· ·Right.· But we wouldn't have the records,

·5· ·because my guess is, the contractor who built that, the

·6· ·Black and Veatch, they probably had the records and they

·7· ·probably said they passed.· And then when the plant was

·8· ·built, they probably just got rid of them because they

·9· ·turned the plant over to us.

10· · · · Q.· ·And from an engineering perspective, there is

11· ·still no way of knowing -- even though the company knew

12· ·that the cable had been damaged, there's no way of

13· ·knowing that the ultimate causation was as a result of

14· ·the damage or just wear and tear?

15· · · · A.· ·Well, we -- we didn't know the cable was

16· ·damaged --

17· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.

18· · · · A.· ·-- until we pulled it out.· Okay.· And we

19· ·didn't send the cable in and said ultimately, why did

20· ·this fail?· Was it an age-related thing or an age and

21· ·damage?· I would be willing to bet real money that they

22· ·would have said that it was a combination of the two,

23· ·because it's too difficult to tell one over the other.

24· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· That's all I have got,

25· ·questions.· I appreciate it.· I don't know if
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·1· ·Mr. Wilding wants to respond to that question about how

·2· ·the liquidated damages are --

·3· · · · · · ·MR. WILDING:· Okay.· Do you mind asking the

·4· ·question just one more time?

·5· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· Yeah.· Yeah.· The

·6· ·question was, I think I heard at some point, whether it

·7· ·was a comment made by Mr. Moscon or testimony by

·8· ·Mr. Ralston, that liquidated damages are somehow flowed

·9· ·back to the customers.

10· · · · · · ·And I guess my question is, is how is that

11· ·accomplished?· Is that something that's, you know,

12· ·reduced in terms of, you know, capital expenses in terms

13· ·of the plant?· Does it somehow flow through EBA?· I am

14· ·just trying to learn where that money goes and is it a

15· ·pertinent to this proceeding or where -- where -- where

16· ·is that money.

17· · · · · · ·MR. WILDING:· Okay.· Yes, the -- so I'll step

18· ·back.· Per -- and -- and explain on -- or how we account

19· ·for those liquidated damages.· So per U.S. GAP or

20· ·generally accepted accounting principles, that -- those

21· ·liquidated damages from a vendor or contractor are an

22· ·offset to the project that they are associated with.

23· · · · · · ·So in this instance, it was a capital addition

24· ·to the plant, and so that capital -- those capital costs

25· ·were reduced by the liquidated damages.· And so it would
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·1· ·be a reduction in rate basing our assets and also in

·2· ·depreciation expense because you are depreciating less.

·3· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· So it's ultimately a

·4· ·reduction of the return off and on, right?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. WILDING:· Yes.· Yes.· And -- and they are

·6· ·not booked in net power costs, so they are not in this

·7· ·proceeding.

·8· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· Thank you.· That's all

·9· ·the questions I have.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner Clark?

11· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· Thank you.· I apologize,

12· ·I have been rustling a lot of papers up here because I

13· ·am trying to eliminate questions that would be

14· ·redundant.· I appreciate all the efforts of my

15· ·colleagues on the commission and also counsel today for

16· ·efforts to illuminate the issues in front of us.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

18· ·BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:

19· · · · Q.· ·So I am going to just step back through a

20· ·couple of these to fine tune my own understanding.

21· · · · · · ·Regarding the plug, and so we're talking about

22· ·Craig Unit 2, are you telling us that GE did not have a

23· ·standard, or you don't know whether GE had a standard

24· ·for how the plug should be tightened?· Because I

25· ·understand it was within GE's control, right?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Their procedures said basically said retighten

·2· ·the plug.· Okay.· And you have a craftsman there, a

·3· ·millwright, and he tightens the plug up to what he

·4· ·thinks is appropriate based on his training and

·5· ·experience.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·7· · · · A.· ·They don't -- they don't have a specific

·8· ·torque setting and use a torque wrench to do that.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Yeah, that I -- that I, I, I understood.· But

10· ·I wondered whether there was any other kind of

11· ·instruction and whether you were aware of it.

12· · · · A.· ·Not that I am aware of.

13· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· And have you had -- or has the

14· ·company had any experience with a plug issue of this

15· ·type before this one?

16· · · · A.· ·Not vibrating out.· I know we have -- I have

17· ·experienced in the process of putting that material in,

18· ·it can be challenging at times.· Okay.· But not like

19· ·this failure rate.

20· · · · Q.· ·So would those be issues with the sealing that

21· ·was supposed to be accomplished, as opposed to -- things

22· ·that you discovered during the pressure test?

23· · · · A.· ·Well, no, more of pumping the material in.

24· · · · Q.· ·Oh, sure.

25· · · · A.· ·It's -- it sounds easy, but sometimes it's a
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·1· ·little challenging.

·2· · · · Q.· ·But nothing where a plug was --

·3· · · · A.· ·No.

·4· · · · Q.· ·-- suddenly not there when it was supposed to

·5· ·be there?

·6· · · · A.· ·No.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So this is first instance?

·8· · · · A.· ·Yeah, I am afraid so.

·9· · · · Q.· ·And the -- so now, the -- the Dave Johnson

10· ·Unit 3 of April 25th.· The tubing that was installed

11· ·could not be visually distinguished from the spec

12· ·tubing, I think you said, and so I am wondering how --

13· ·what process led to us understanding that a different

14· ·tube was used?

15· · · · A.· ·When -- we have a standard kind of process

16· ·when we have a tube failure, and if it's not intuitively

17· ·obvious why, we cut that failure out.· And we send it to

18· ·a metallurgist and say, dissect this thing and tell us

19· ·everything about this tube, because we want to

20· ·understand our failure mode so we can figure out if we

21· ·can prevent them somehow.

22· · · · · · ·So when this tube failed, we cut it out and

23· ·sent it to them, and he looked at the metallurgy of it

24· ·and said, well, you are supposed to have this in it, and

25· ·you have this in it.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And would that have been IEC, or is that

·2· ·different?

·3· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· IEC is the metallurgist.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So now relative to Dave Johnston Unit 3

·5· ·on September 19th, did IEC rec -- ever recommend to you

·6· ·to use manual deslagging to avoid --

·7· · · · A.· ·No.· The --

·8· · · · Q.· ·-- the -- the issues that -- that the

·9· ·deslagging process, if it's aggressive can create?

10· · · · A.· ·No.· They -- the statement in there was, use

11· ·-- the lowest velocity detonation cord should be used.

12· · · · Q.· ·Commissioner White asked you some questions

13· ·about industry standards, and, you know, we have intense

14· ·interest in understanding what they are and how they

15· ·would apply to the questions in front of us.· It's a

16· ·challenging thing to ascertain them apparently, or at

17· ·least to identify a, a, a standard industry practice.

18· · · · · · ·Relative to dissimilar metal welds, and so I

19· ·guess this will be in the context of Huntington Unit 1,

20· ·I think that you have said that you -- that was a known

21· ·potential problem area --

22· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

23· · · · Q.· ·-- right?· And so just to try to get a little

24· ·better understanding of how industry practices are

25· ·developed and how you become aware of them and -- was --
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·1· ·was that knowledge from experience exclusively within

·2· ·the PacifiCorp system, or -- or were there -- was GE

·3· ·sending out like a note -- notices -- almost like recall

·4· ·notices or other kinds of notifications that -- that

·5· ·would have made you aware of this part -- particular

·6· ·vulnerability in your plant?

·7· · · · A.· ·There's an organization called EPRI, Electric

·8· ·Power Research Institute, and it's kind of funded by

·9· ·utilities and that.· And they do a bunch of research.

10· ·And they have developed volumes on tube materials, tube

11· ·failures.· To some degree, it's kind of the bible of --

12· ·of tube failures and that.

13· · · · · · ·And as -- as utilities had problems, they

14· ·would share this information and also give it to EPRI,

15· ·and EPRI would publish stuff.· And it was kind of

16· ·through -- what do I want to call them?· Trade meetings

17· ·or -- or meetings or through EPRI and that, that that

18· ·information came out.

19· · · · · · ·Manufacturers didn't really come out with that

20· ·on dissimilar metal welds.· It was the industry was

21· ·starting to see failures and was sharing the

22· ·information, and then kind of EPRI put it all together

23· ·in books.

24· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· Now, regarding Jim Bridger Unit 2,

25· ·when would the -- this was -- is it right to think of
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·1· ·this as a preventative maintenance test that was

·2· ·performed?

·3· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· ·When would it have been performed in relation

·5· ·to the work that was being done at that location on --

·6· ·in the --

·7· · · · A.· ·I believe the PM test was done either

·8· ·September or October, somewhere around there.· We start

·9· ·on them near the end of the summer in that, we have

10· ·several -- several of these to do so it takes quite a

11· ·while.· So -- but I think this one was actually done in

12· ·the October time frame.· And you try to do them in

13· ·the -- the early fall so that you can determine if you

14· ·have a problem.

15· · · · Q.· ·And -- and obviously before the winter season?

16· · · · A.· ·Yep.

17· · · · Q.· ·And the heat is needed?

18· · · · A.· ·Is needed.

19· · · · Q.· ·Right.· So what's the company's procedure for

20· ·reviewing the report of the preventive maintenance?  I

21· ·think you said that it was identified on the report

22· ·that -- that there was no current but there was voltage

23· ·so, I am thinking -- I am wondering if that wasn't

24· ·significant apparently to the person doing the

25· ·inspection.
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·1· · · · · · ·But I -- I presume that person's work is

·2· ·reviewed by supervisors, other management people, that

·3· ·there's some process for that to happen, and -- and that

·4· ·other people overlooked the significance of that report

·5· ·as well?

·6· · · · A.· ·And I can't tell you if the specific report

·7· ·was reviewed or not.· It specifically stated that not

·8· ·only will the technician, if he finds a problem, write

·9· ·it, but also that a supervisor or planner will review

10· ·the report -- the report for adequacy too.

11· · · · Q.· ·So --

12· · · · A.· ·I mean, it's just clarifying expectations.

13· · · · Q.· ·So prior to this incident, there wasn't an

14· ·expectation that anyone would review the findings of the

15· ·inspector?

16· · · · A.· ·I believe it was an unwritten expectation.

17· ·You know, I mean, it's just, this is part of your job.

18· · · · Q.· ·"Your" would be who in that sentence?

19· · · · A.· ·As in the supervisors, the planners, the

20· ·maintenance department.

21· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· That concludes my questions.

22· ·Thank you very much.

23· · · · A.· ·Okay.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you for your

25· ·testimony today, Mr. Ralston.· I think it's probably a
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·1· ·good time to take a short break.· Do you have anything

·2· ·further from Rocky Mountain Power when we come back from

·3· ·break?

·4· · · · · · ·MS. HOGLE:· Possibly.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Why don't we take 15

·6· ·minutes and we'll come back at 2:25.

·7· · · · · · ·(Recess from 2:08 p.m. to 2:24 p.m.)

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· I think we're ready to

·9· ·go back on the record.· Anything further from Rocky

10· ·Mountain Power?

11· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Nothing further.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

13· ·Mr. Jetter?

14· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Thank you, Mr. Chair.· The

15· ·division would like to call and have sworn in division's

16· ·first witness, Dave Thompson.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Good afternoon, Mr. Thompson.

18· ·Do you swear to tell the truth?

19· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I do.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · · · · DAVID T. THOMPSON,

22· ·was called as a witness, and having been first duly

23· ·sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

24· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

25· ·BY MR. JETTER:
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Thompson, would you please state your name

·2· ·and occupation for the record.

·3· · · · A.· ·My name is David T. Thompson.· I am a utility

·4· ·consultant for the division of public utility.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· And in the course of your

·6· ·employment with the division, did you have the

·7· ·opportunity to review the EBA application materials

·8· ·filed by the company?

·9· · · · A.· ·I did.

10· · · · Q.· ·And did you create and cause to be filed with

11· ·the commission prefiled direct testimony dated November

12· ·15th, 2018?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes.

14· · · · Q.· ·And that was filed along with eight exhibits,

15· ·1.1 through 1.8?

16· · · · A.· ·The testimony was 1.1, and 1.2 through 1.8 the

17· ·other exhibits.

18· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· Do you have any corrections or

19· ·changes you would like to make to that prefiled direct

20· ·testimony?

21· · · · A.· ·I don't.

22· · · · Q.· ·If you were asked the same questions that are

23· ·in that testimony today, would your answers remain the

24· ·same?

25· · · · A.· ·They would.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I'd like to move to enter the

·2· ·direct testimony along with Exhibits through 1.8, all of

·3· ·the exhibits to that testimony into the record.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· If any

·5· ·party objects to that motion, indicate to me.· I am not

·6· ·seeing any objection, so it's granted.

·7· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Jetter)· Have you prepared a brief

·8· ·summary of your testimony?

·9· · · · A.· ·I have.

10· · · · Q.· ·Please go ahead.

11· · · · A.· ·Good afternoon, Commissioners.· Thank you for

12· ·the opportunity to address the current status of the --

13· ·on the reported adjustments and recommendations from the

14· ·division and its consultant, Daymark Energy Advisors.  I

15· ·will also be introducing division's witness from Daymark

16· ·in conjunction with this hearing.

17· · · · · · ·The division recommends the commission allow

18· ·the company to recover in its energy balance account an

19· ·amount of approximately $1.8 million for the calendar

20· ·year 2017.· This is $912,007 less than the recovery

21· ·amount originally requested by the company, and consists

22· ·of an error adjustment of $25,742 and an outage

23· ·adjustment of $886,265.

24· · · · · · ·In its review of electrical natural gas

25· ·transactions, Daymark discovered a policy and procedure
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·1· ·finding.· Daymark recommended appropriate policy changes

·2· ·to remedy this finding.· In response testimony, the

·3· ·company accepted the division's error correction.

·4· · · · · · ·The company also agreed in response testimony

·5· ·with the Daymark proposed policy changes.· In its

·6· ·response testimony, the company stated that it will work

·7· ·with the DPU and Daymark to adopt energy risk management

·8· ·policy language similar to what Daymark proposed in its

·9· ·audit report.

10· · · · · · ·In its audit report, the division's

11· ·consultants, Daymark, made an adjustment for outages.

12· ·Daymark recommended this allowing replacement power

13· ·costs resulting from seven outages.· These outages

14· ·demonstrate a sufficient imprudence that EBA costs

15· ·should be reduced by the amount of replacement power

16· ·cost related to the outages.· Utah allocated amount for

17· ·this adjustment is $840,267.· This adjustment impacted

18· ·interest computations in the amount of $45,998.· The

19· ·total adjustment is $886,265, after the interest

20· ·adjustment.

21· · · · · · ·The company in its response testimony --

22· ·excuse me, in surrebuttal testimony to Daymark's audit

23· ·report and rebuttal testimony, did not agree that the

24· ·replacement power for plant outages should be

25· ·disallowed.· The division's witness from Daymark,
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·1· ·Mr. Phil DiDomenico, will testify to Daymark's EBA

·2· ·review, and specifically to Daymark's outage adjustments

·3· ·and why replacement power for the seven outages should

·4· ·be disallowed.· And that concludes my summary.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Thank you.· I have no further

·6· ·questions, and Mr. Thompson is available for cross or

·7· ·questions from the commission.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

·9· ·Mr. Russell, do you have any questions for Mr. Thompson?

10· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· I don't.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.

12· ·Mr. Moscon, Ms. Hogle?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· No questions.

14· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Commissioner White?

15· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· No questions.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner Clark?

17· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· No questions.· Thank you,

18· ·Mr. Thompson.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· And none from me.· Thank you

20· ·for your testimony today.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· The division would like to next

22· ·call and have sworn in Phil DiDomenico.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Good afternoon,

24· ·Mr. DiDomenico.· Do you swear to tell the truth?

25· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I do.
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·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · PHILIP DIDOMENICO,

·3· ·was called as a witness, and having been first duly

·4· ·sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

·5· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

·6· ·BY MR. JETTER:

·7· · · · Q.· ·Mr. DiDomenico, would you please start by

·8· ·stating your name, and maybe let's have you spell your

·9· ·last name so you get it correct on the record, and your

10· ·occupation.

11· · · · A.· ·Certainly.· It's DiDomenico.· It's capital

12· ·D-I, capital D-O-M-E-N-I-C-O.

13· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· And what is your occupation?

14· · · · A.· ·I am a management consultant for Daymark

15· ·Energy Advisors.

16· · · · Q.· ·And were you retained to review certain

17· ·transactions and essentially an audit in this case?

18· · · · A.· ·I was.

19· · · · Q.· ·And did you create, in the course of your

20· ·employment and -- and consultant contract with the

21· ·division, create and cause to be filed with the

22· ·commission direct and rebuttal testimony, direct

23· ·testimony filed November 15th, 2018, along with rebuttal

24· ·testimony filed January 10th, 2019?

25· · · · A.· ·I did.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·And in both of those testimonies, it

·2· ·identified two witnesses, which is yourself and Dan

·3· ·Koehler; is that correct?

·4· · · · A.· ·Dan Koehler, yes.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Koehler, excuse me.· And do you intend to

·6· ·adopt both of those testimonies today in full?

·7· · · · A.· ·I do.

·8· · · · Q.· ·If you are asked the same questions in both

·9· ·the direct and rebuttal testimonies that were filed,

10· ·would your answers remain the same?

11· · · · A.· ·With one correction.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And please go ahead.

13· · · · A.· ·Looking at my direct testimony, of myself and

14· ·Dan, page 8 if I would, under findings and

15· ·recommendations, starting with line 89, what I would

16· ·drop is the sentence that appears after outages.  I

17· ·would replace, "that appeared to be avoidable and

18· ·resulted in unnecessary increases to the company-wide

19· ·NPC," replace that with the phrase, "for further

20· ·investigation," period.

21· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.· And do you have any other

22· ·corrections or changes you would like to make?

23· · · · A.· ·I do not.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· I'm sorry.· Can I have you -- I
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·1· ·was slow here.

·2· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sure.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Line 93, will you just tell me

·4· ·again what I am crossing out where?

·5· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It was line 89.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Sorry, 89.

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· We are crossing out the words

·8· ·that start after the word outages.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Got it.

10· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Crossing out basically to the

11· ·end of that sentence on the next line, and replacing

12· ·that with simply, for further investigation.

13· · · · · · ·By way of clarification, those 29 outages were

14· ·selected because of their duration, not because of any

15· ·particular concern over their impact.

16· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· With that I'd like to move for

17· ·the introduction of -- or entry of the direct and

18· ·rebuttal testimony I have identified earlier, along with

19· ·all of the attached exhibits to both of those, which was

20· ·direct through 2.3 and, I believe there was no exhibits

21· ·attached in addition to the testimony on the rebuttal

22· ·testimony.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· If anyone objects to

24· ·that motion, please let me know.· I am not seeing any

25· ·objection, so the motion is granted.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Thank you.

·2· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Jetter) And have you prepared a brief

·3· ·statement summarizing your testimony?

·4· · · · A.· ·I have.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Please go ahead.

·6· · · · A.· ·Okay.· Daymark was retained by the division to

·7· ·review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding

·8· ·adjustment of electric rates.· The company had filed a

·9· ·request on March 15th, 2018 to recover 2.8 --

10· · · · Q.· ·Mr. DiDomenico, I am going to interrupt just

11· ·very briefly.· If you wouldn't mind reading just a

12· ·little bit slower for our court reporter.

13· · · · A.· ·I'm sorry.· Too fast for you.· It's Italian

14· ·heritage.

15· · · · · · ·Okay.· Daymark was retained by the division to

16· ·review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding

17· ·adjustment of electric rates.· The company had filed a

18· ·request on March 15th, 2018, to recover 2.8 million for

19· ·excess energy balancing account associated costs

20· ·incurred throughout the 12 month deferral period from

21· ·January 1st, 2017, through December 31st, 2017.

22· · · · · · ·Daymark's role was to determine whether the

23· ·actual costs featured in the calendar year 2017 EBA

24· ·filing were incurred in accordance with an in place

25· ·policy or plan, were prudent and were in the public
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·1· ·interest.

·2· · · · · · ·Our review included four main assignments, as

·3· ·established in consultation with the division.· First,

·4· ·evaluate a sample of electric and natural gas

·5· ·transaction for accuracy, completeness and prudence.

·6· ·Second, we reviewed particular issues pertaining to key

·7· ·drivers of EBA costs, specifically deviations in the

·8· ·actual wholesale sales revenue and purchased power

·9· ·expense in relation to levels forecasted for the general

10· ·rate case and established in base NBC.

11· · · · · · ·Third, we reviewed the impact of PacifiCorp's

12· ·third full calendar year of participation in the

13· ·California ISO, energy imbalance market.· Lastly, we

14· ·reviewed and evaluated actual plant outages to ensure

15· ·that these outages and the cost impacts on the EBA

16· ·charge were appropriate.

17· · · · · · ·Transactions.· Relative to transactions our

18· ·findings were as follows.· PacifiCorp settled tens of

19· ·thousands of natural gas financial, natural gas physical

20· ·and electric power physical transactions in 2017.· We

21· ·assembled and analyzed a sample of 46 representative

22· ·transactions and accounting entry groupings.· After

23· ·reviewing these transactions, we did not find or -- we

24· ·did not suggest, excuse me, any adjustments to the

25· ·calendar year 2017 EBA costs for the evaluated
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·1· ·transactions.

·2· · · · · · ·However, our review of a particular

·3· ·transaction revealed a deficiency in PacifiCorp's

·4· ·policies and practices pertaining to monitoring and

·5· ·reporting potential breaches in individual trader

·6· ·limits.

·7· · · · · · ·The company has taken some corrective steps to

·8· ·address this issue since becoming aware of it, but we

·9· ·recommend that the company formally adopt governance

10· ·control requirements in their risk management policy --

11· ·energy risk management policy.· The company has

12· ·indicated in response testimony that it is amenable to

13· ·working with the division to adopt such changes.

14· · · · · · ·Regarding the EBA cost drivers, we found that

15· ·the deviations in actual wholesale sales revenue and

16· ·purchased power expense were generally explainable by

17· ·market condition changes between the base NPC forecasts

18· ·for the 2014, '15 test period, and actual conditions

19· ·during the 2017 deferral period, as well as changes in

20· ·long-term contracts in effect for the respective

21· ·periods.

22· · · · · · ·Regarding the California ISO, energy imbalance

23· ·market, our findings regarding -- regarding our high

24· ·level review of PacifiCorp's participation in the -- in

25· ·the ISO EMI, we found no reason to challenge the ISO or
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·1· ·the company's methodology for estimating benefits from

·2· ·participating in the real-time imbalance trading through

·3· ·the EIN, nor do we have reason to believe that the

·4· ·estimates substantially overstate the benefits.

·5· · · · · · ·Regarding outages, our review of generator

·6· ·outages at the company's thermal plants during the EBA

·7· ·period, deferral period, identified 25 significant

·8· ·outages; that is, outages that are forced outages or

·9· ·planned outage extensions of greater than 72 hours in

10· ·duration.

11· · · · · · ·Of these 29 outages, seven outages

12· ·demonstrated sufficient imprudence that we recommend

13· ·reducing EBA costs to reflect replacement power costs

14· ·related to the outages.· The total reduction in

15· ·company-wide NPC for these outages was 1,954,826.· The

16· ·Utah allocated EBA deferral adjustment related to

17· ·imprudent outage replacement power costs is 840,267.

18· · · · · · ·The quantification replacement power costs is

19· ·not in dispute.· The company has agreed with our

20· ·methodology for estimating the additional net power

21· ·costs that are incurred as a result of specific plant

22· ·outages.

23· · · · · · ·The company submitted response testimony of

24· ·Mr. Dana Ralston to address the seven generation plant

25· ·outages we identified as demonstrating sufficient
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·1· ·imprudence to warrant EBA cost adjustment.

·2· ·Mr. Ralston's response testimony disputed our claims

·3· ·that the company acted imprudently in regard to those

·4· ·seven outages, and therefore, no adjustment to the EBA

·5· ·amounts was needed.· We disagree with Mr. Ralston's

·6· ·arguments and we stand by our original recommendation.

·7· · · · · · ·Mr. Ralston asserted that the Craig Unit 2

·8· ·outage was the result of GE's subcontractor's failure to

·9· ·correctly tighten specific plugs and not the lack of

10· ·established procedures and practices.

11· · · · · · ·Though the company's partner GE admitted

12· ·fault, the company should still be held accountable

13· ·since they are responsible for ensuring risk mitigation

14· ·measures are established and followed by their partners.

15· ·Additionally, the company should work with their third

16· ·party operators to use similar outage-related

17· ·documentation procedures as utilized by PacifiCorp.

18· · · · · · ·Regarding the April 2017 outage at Dave

19· ·Johnson Unit 3, the company believes that the use of

20· ·improper tubing that contributed to the outage was an

21· ·anomaly that was still -- was still provided over 20

22· ·years of acceptable service.· In our opinion, the use of

23· ·incorrect tubing material is a procedural failure that

24· ·necessitates an adjustment to the company-wide EBA costs

25· ·for the replacement power costs.· The length of time
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·1· ·before failure is secondary to the issue of prudence.

·2· · · · · · ·The September 2017 outage occurring at Dave

·3· ·Johnson Unit 3 was caused by tube failures associated

·4· ·with the reheat super heater.· Although the company's

·5· ·metallurgical expert recommended modifying blasting

·6· ·practice after analyzing the failures, the company

·7· ·maintains that the failures could not be attributed to

·8· ·any particular explosive deslagging result.

·9· · · · · · ·Since the company's metallurgical experts have

10· ·repeatedly identified the company's blasting practices

11· ·related to deslagging as a contributing factor to tube

12· ·failure, we believe the company acted imprudently by not

13· ·modifying its deslagging practices.

14· · · · · · ·The Huntington Unit 1 outage was due to a

15· ·reheater tube leak located at a dissimilar metal weld.

16· ·The company argues that due to the number of welds in

17· ·the outlet of the reheater, the cost to evaluate each

18· ·weld would significantly outweigh the benefits.· We

19· ·believe that the company's lack of attention to such a

20· ·well known industry issue is indefensible and therefore

21· ·imprudent.

22· · · · · · ·An outage at Jim Bridger Unit 2 caused by the

23· ·failure of heat tracing equipment was a result of gap in

24· ·testing procedures established by the company.· Even

25· ·though the company argues that it acted prudently, since
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·1· ·it had testing procedures already in place, we assert

·2· ·that the company acted imprudently since it should have

·3· ·known the heat tracing equipment was inoperable.

·4· · · · · · ·Regarding the Jim Bridger Unit 3 outage, the

·5· ·failure of cables leading to the outage was due to age

·6· ·and damage received during the cable's initial cable

·7· ·pull in the seventies.· The company argues that the

·8· ·cables have functioned successfully over 40 years they

·9· ·have -- that they have been in place, without any

10· ·indications of damage.

11· · · · · · ·We believe that the cable damage due to

12· ·incorrect installation practices during the initial

13· ·installation warrants disallowance.· The length of time

14· ·before failure is secondary to the use -- to the issue

15· ·of prudency.

16· · · · · · ·The Dave Johnson Unit 4 extended outage was

17· ·the result of the wrong impeller of -- of a wrong

18· ·impeller being installed during a planned outage

19· ·resulting in an outage extension.· The error was the

20· ·admitted fault of a contractor who accepted work that it

21· ·wasn't properly staffed to complete.

22· · · · · · ·It is incumbent upon the company to ensure

23· ·that the contractors it chooses to work with follow

24· ·prudent practices.· We therefore believe the company

25· ·should be held responsible for the imprudent actions of

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 151
·1· ·the contractor.

·2· · · · · · ·Lastly, Mr. Ralston's response and surrebuttal

·3· ·testimony assert that our recommendations assume a

·4· ·unrealistic standard of perfection based on 20/20

·5· ·hindsight and not a standard of prudence applied to

·6· ·these outages.· We disagree.

·7· · · · · · ·Many outages are avoidable with perfect

·8· ·hindsight, and many outages are caused by human error.

·9· ·We do not argue for a disallowance for all such outages.

10· ·We are arguing for adjustment of only a handful of cases

11· ·when the action or inaction at the root cause of the

12· ·outage was clearly imprudent based on the information

13· ·known or knowable at the time.

14· · · · · · ·The company argues that it cannot be held

15· ·liable for imprudent actions taken by third party

16· ·operators or subcontractors so long as the underlying

17· ·contract was reasonable.· We disagree.· As an owner or

18· ·co-owner, a company is responsible for the performance

19· ·of that asset and cannot absolve itself of that

20· ·responsibility simply because it has desig -- delegated

21· ·the operation or repair of that asset to another entity.

22· · · · · · ·Certainly, as between the company and its rate

23· ·payers, the company is in a much better position to

24· ·influence the operation of plants where it is not the

25· ·operator.· If a company operated in a regulatory system
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·1· ·without the EBA, the company would likely not recover

·2· ·any of the power replacement costs related to a forced

·3· ·outage.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Thank you for that review of your

·5· ·testimony.· I have no further questions, and

·6· ·Mr. DiDomenico is available for cross and questions from

·7· ·the commission.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Thank you.· Mr. Russell, do

·9· ·you have any questions?

10· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· I do.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

12· ·BY MR. RUSSELL:

13· · · · Q.· ·Mr. DiDomenico, you mentioned that you

14· ·reviewed -- you narrowed it down to 29 outages, and as I

15· ·understand your summary, that -- that you narrowed it

16· ·down to 29 based on the length of those 29 rather than

17· ·on any particular actions taken by the company during

18· ·those 29 outages.· Is that correct?

19· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

20· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And ultimately you flag seven outages,

21· ·the seven that we have been discussing at length today.

22· ·Can you tell me what it was about those seven, and I --

23· ·I -- I know that there are differences among those

24· ·seven, but at a high level, can you tell me what it was

25· ·about those seven that you -- you thought required a
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·1· ·different result than the other 22?

·2· · · · A.· ·Well, fundamentally, in looking at the

·3· ·available information -- and I do need to underscore the

·4· ·available information, because again, in this instance

·5· ·where we are 100 percent dependent on the information

·6· ·provided by the company, we did not provide any

·7· ·independent review.· This is not our review.· We are

·8· ·reviewing information that was provided to us.

·9· · · · · · ·Just with that context, with that in mind, the

10· ·information that we were provided basically just led us

11· ·from a reasonable perspective, would a reasonable

12· ·utility have operated in a different manner?· It kind of

13· ·flagged us from that perspective, and that's what drew

14· ·our attention to those seven outages.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And there's been a lot of talk today

16· ·and in the prefiled testimony about the -- the cost to

17· ·mitigate or to prevent the type of replacement power

18· ·costs, or the mistake that -- that occurred or -- or

19· ·that was identified.

20· · · · · · ·In your review of the 29 that ultimately led

21· ·to the seven, did you -- did you consider the costs to

22· ·prevent the issue that led to the outage as part of your

23· ·review?

24· · · · A.· ·Not explicitly, no.

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And is that in your view a relevant
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·1· ·issue to -- to consider in determining whether the

·2· ·company acted prudently?

·3· · · · A.· ·Ultimately, certainly the cost of whatever

·4· ·mitigation practices is a factor, certainly.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And just, I think we probably all understand

·6· ·this, but -- and tell me the reason why the cost to

·7· ·mitigate the issue or cost to prevent the issue is a

·8· ·relevant factor?

·9· · · · A.· ·Well, I think as in any business decision from

10· ·an asset management perspective, you are juggling a lot

11· ·of priorities, and in terms of making decisions about

12· ·which priority to address first, you tend to go with --

13· ·not tend to go, but you go with the ones that have a

14· ·higher cost benefit expectation.· That along with

15· ·risk -- and the risk associated with them are major

16· ·factors associated with any decision.

17· · · · Q.· ·And perhaps I'll -- I'll put it in a slightly

18· ·different way.· If the -- if the cost to solve the

19· ·problem is greater than the cost to just let the problem

20· ·be a problem, you just let the problem be a problem,

21· ·don't you?

22· · · · A.· ·To a degree.· The problem what we have here is

23· ·that this is a very dynamic situation, that the cost and

24· ·the benefit is very fluid.· Now, it depends on changing

25· ·market conditions.· It depends on a lot of things, but
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·1· ·at the end of the day you need to make a judgment call

·2· ·as to what the priorities are.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· What I'd like to do now is very briefly

·4· ·walk through each of the seven outages and ask you just

·5· ·a couple of questions about each.· And we'll start with

·6· ·the Craig Unit 2 outage, which is -- is the one related

·7· ·to the 50 bolts and the one that may have come loose

·8· ·when the -- when the plant was started back up.

·9· · · · · · ·Can you explain to me what it is that in

10· ·Daymark's view was imprudent about this particular

11· ·outage?

12· · · · A.· ·Fundamentally, I ask myself the question, is

13· ·it prudent to assemble a unit when you haven't followed

14· ·the procedures properly?· When you read the information

15· ·on this event, it speaks to, potentially, the unit that

16· ·the bolt wasn't tightened properly.

17· · · · · · ·And I say potentially because one of the

18· ·problems is that on that event, Tri-State fundamentally

19· ·didn't do a root cause analysis, nor is it their

20· ·practice to do a root cause analysis.

21· · · · · · ·The information that we have received is

22· ·essentially three e-mails.· We have three e-mails where

23· ·they say, good news, we figured out that a plug fell

24· ·out.· That's the extent of the information that we have

25· ·on that outage.· So I look at that, and I am saying,
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·1· ·this -- this doesn't sound right, something wrong with

·2· ·this.· We need to dig further.· But the fact of the

·3· ·matter is, they didn't dig further.· So we don't know

·4· ·what actually caused the event.

·5· · · · · · ·But I do know this, when you talk -- when

·6· ·you're dealing with the hydrogen cooling system of a

·7· ·major generator, we are not -- this is a significant

·8· ·element in the system.· You don't do it casually, right?

·9· ·Hydrogen leaks are taken very serious by the industry,

10· ·as I am sure the company is taking it very seriously.

11· · · · · · ·So as you are going through the procedures

12· ·that say tighten whatever and fill in silicone, whatever

13· ·you are trying to do, I am virtually certain, although I

14· ·don't -- I haven't seen the procedure, because it hasn't

15· ·been provided, but I am virtually certain that it

16· ·mandates a very specific manner in which you need to do

17· ·your job.

18· · · · · · ·In this case bolts don't fall out for no

19· ·reason.· They fall out because somebody didn't do what

20· ·they needed to do.· It's a summation.· I don't have

21· ·facts to support that, but all I know is that the bolt

22· ·was not there, and that -- and that is a cause for

23· ·concern.

24· · · · Q.· ·And I guess one of the issues that -- that I

25· ·think the commission may have to grapple with here is,
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·1· ·if the bolt did come out, and in your view if it came

·2· ·out and somebody did something wrong, if it -- if the --

·3· ·the somebody that did something wrong is with a mill

·4· ·worker hired by General Electric who in turn was hired

·5· ·by Tri-State Generation, who is the operator of this

·6· ·plant, but is not the company here asking for, you know,

·7· ·a specific rate treatment, how -- how does the

·8· ·commission address all of that?

·9· · · · A.· ·I think it starts with the accountability of

10· ·the company to its third party vendors.· I agree that

11· ·it's very expensive to get that kind of coverage,

12· ·replacement power coverage.· Replacement power is the

13· ·hot potato that nobody wants, because it's open-ended.

14· ·It's an undefined liability.· Nobody wants to cover

15· ·that.· And -- and we get that, we understand that.

16· · · · · · ·But if you look at the chain in terms of who

17· ·was involved, the company is in the best pos -- position

18· ·of everyone to be able to manage that risk, understand

19· ·that risk and provide for that risk.· So from our

20· ·perspective, it's incumbent upon them to make sure that

21· ·their third party, whoever they are working with, are

22· ·following prudent practices.

23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And -- and how would -- how should the

24· ·company have managed the risk in this -- in this case in

25· ·your view?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Well, you know, unfortunately in this -- in

·2· ·this case, to do a proper root cause investigation would

·3· ·require you being on-site and interviewing the

·4· ·principals involved.

·5· · · · · · ·Right now, the information I have available to

·6· ·me doesn't really allow me to make any specific

·7· ·recommendations, other than a general recommendation

·8· ·that greater oversight needs to be provided.· That's not

·9· ·terribly helpful, but it -- but it requires more

10· ·intervention, more active involvement in what's going

11· ·on.

12· · · · Q.· ·And how do we know how much that active

13· ·involvement might cost?

14· · · · A.· ·The only way you know is by asking for it when

15· ·you are working with your various vendors.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· In -- in a --

17· · · · A.· ·And it's very situational.· It would depend on

18· ·the specific event and who you're dealing with.· It's

19· ·not -- it's not something that you can just pull out and

20· ·say, every time we do this it's going to cost whatever.

21· ·It varies significantly.

22· · · · · · ·As a general statement, sure, it's going to

23· ·cost you money, but I don't know what -- I don't know

24· ·how you ignore the fact that it's problematic, because

25· ·the only one that shares replacement cost responsibility
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·1· ·right now is ultimately the customer.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Right.· And -- and I guess the -- the customer

·3· ·would also bear some responsibility for the cost to

·4· ·prevent that replacement power cost, right?

·5· · · · A.· ·Certainly.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· And -- and I guess the question that I

·7· ·have is, how does the commission address these issues

·8· ·when it's -- when it's trying to figure out, well,

·9· ·there's this cost to prevent these risks, and, you know,

10· ·somebody is going to have to pay for that cost, and

11· ·almost always we end up in the same place.

12· · · · · · ·Had -- had -- I am formulating a poorly

13· ·question here, or poorly formulating a question here.

14· ·But there's -- there's this balance between the cost and

15· ·the risk, and I am wondering how the commission should

16· ·handle that.

17· · · · A.· ·I think it's -- it's a difficult question.  I

18· ·think it's very situational.· I think some sort of a

19· ·shared savings or shared cost approach is probably the

20· ·most appropriate.· But it's very situational.· It's --

21· ·it's not something that we can sit here and just say, on

22· ·a blanket policy, this is how we should approach that.

23· ·I think that would be very difficult.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· I'm -- I'm going to walk

25· ·through the other six, but the -- the -- the list of
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·1· ·questions will be a little bit shorter, because I think

·2· ·some of the principles that we just discussed can apply

·3· ·as well.

·4· · · · · · ·Looking at the Dave Johnson Unit 3, the April

·5· ·25 outage, and this was the one that we -- we spent a

·6· ·little bit of time talking about the nonconforming

·7· ·material in boiler tube, right?· So if you could, tell

·8· ·me quickly what you understand -- or what -- what facts

·9· ·you understand to be the -- the imprudent or to

10· ·constitute the imprudent action by the utility here.

11· · · · A.· ·Well, fundamentally the imprudent action is

12· ·installing nonconforming material, not keeping an

13· ·accurate record, and not going back and replacing it

14· ·when the time was appropriate.

15· · · · · · ·There is nothing wrong -- I am agreeing with

16· ·the company witness when he says that in a pinch you do

17· ·what you need to do to bring the unit on line.· That's

18· ·standard practice.· I am not going to disagree with

19· ·that.· But not being able to have proper records so that

20· ·you can go back and then correct that situation before

21· ·it turns into an outage situation is where the problem

22· ·lies.

23· · · · Q.· ·And if we were to talk about the cost to

24· ·potentially mitigate that, I suppose what you'd say is

25· ·that you mitigate it by having proper -- by having
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·1· ·proper recordkeeping procedures; is that right?

·2· · · · A.· ·Exactly.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Moving on to the September outage at

·4· ·Dave Johnson Unit 3, this is the outage related to the

·5· ·boiler tube failure that, I guess, the metallurgical

·6· ·reports point to the explosive deslagging efforts.· Tell

·7· ·me what you -- what you understand to be the facts that

·8· ·constitute the imprudent action here.

·9· · · · A.· ·The problem I have as -- as an outside

10· ·third-party consultant trying to evaluate what I am

11· ·seeing, I am dealing with the information that I have in

12· ·front of me.· And the picture that I am seeing is that I

13· ·have a metallurgist who is admittedly an expert in their

14· ·field, someone that the company relies upon, and I see

15· ·them repeatedly making recommendations about changing

16· ·the company's blasting practices.

17· · · · · · ·And on the other hand, I -- I hear the company

18· ·telling me, well, they did that and they did it back in

19· ·2011, and that whatever they are reporting isn't

20· ·necessarily pertinent to the current situation.

21· · · · · · ·In my own experience, the partnership between

22· ·the metallurgist and the company is not a very distant

23· ·relationship.· I find it hard to believe that the

24· ·metallurgist that the company uses on a regular basis,

25· ·and has been using for years, is not aware of the
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·1· ·company's current blasting practices.

·2· · · · · · ·That -- that just brings questions into my

·3· ·mind.· Why is that?· So I'm -- I'm left with a dilemma.

·4· ·I have two stories.· Which one do I believe?· I am not

·5· ·sure.

·6· · · · · · ·I have heard a little bit more information

·7· ·today that would tend to lean towards the company's

·8· ·position, but again, I don't know why the metallurgist

·9· ·would continue to make the same recommendation over and

10· ·over again, when it's not pertinent to the issue at

11· ·hand.

12· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's move on to Huntington

13· ·Unit 1.· As I understand it, the issue there leading to

14· ·the outage was the issue of dissimilar welds, correct?

15· · · · A.· ·Yes.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And with -- again, with this one, tell

17· ·me what facts you understand to be the issue that --

18· ·that leads to the -- your conclusion that there was

19· ·imprudent action by the utility.

20· · · · A.· ·Sure.· Dissimilar metal welds, DMWs, is not a

21· ·new issue.· I think we heard testimony to that effect.

22· ·It's been around for a long time.· I mean, at least the

23· ·mid eighties, if not sooner than that, it was identified

24· ·as a -- as a cause of outages.

25· · · · · · ·And not only a cause, it's not a matter of if
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·1· ·there's going to be an outage.· It's just a matter of

·2· ·when, because they are going to fail.· It's a problem.

·3· ·It's a problem that was discovered with the help of EPRI

·4· ·and others, and there are utilities that went -- went

·5· ·ahead and removed them before they failed, rather than

·6· ·waiting for failures in my experience.

·7· · · · · · ·However, in this particular scenario we have

·8· ·been talking a great deal, about, well, three outages,

·9· ·you know, less than 1 percent.· You are not going to go

10· ·out and spend $2 million in mitigation.· I understand

11· ·that.

12· · · · · · ·My problem or my concern rests in the fact

13· ·that, follow the timeline with me for a minute.· Known

14· ·problem since the mid eighties.· The unit's been in

15· ·service since whenever, and they know that the reheater

16· ·has lots of dissimilar metal welds, 600 I think was the

17· ·number that was said.· They know this.· I mean, that's

18· ·the way it was built.

19· · · · · · ·The first outage doesn't occur until 2000 -- I

20· ·am going to get one of these years wrong, 2008 I believe

21· ·or seven, I can't remember which.· After that happens,

22· ·no action is taken.· So a second outage occurs, no

23· ·action is taken.· A third outage occurs, no outage is

24· ·taken.· We get to the fourth outage, and all of a

25· ·sudden, the difference between three outages and four
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·1· ·outages launches the company to an action plan to

·2· ·address the problem.

·3· · · · · · ·Now, we have heard a lot about, well, three is

·4· ·an insignificant number.· Four is -- well, the

·5· ·difference between three and four is the same percentage

·6· ·as far as I am concerned.· I think the company realizes

·7· ·that this is a problem and they need to address it, and

·8· ·it has nothing to do with how many outage events occur.

·9· · · · · · ·You know this is a problem.· It's just a

10· ·ticking time bomb waiting to keep happening, and as I

11· ·think there was reference to the hockey stick effect,

12· ·where all of a sudden you've got to just start

13· ·accelerating rapidly, absolutely, it's a very real risk.

14· ·It's very prevalent in our industry.

15· · · · · · ·So my problem is not so much that they didn't

16· ·jump to replacing everything and spend $2 million.· My

17· ·problem is that they waited until a fourth outage, I am

18· ·trying to think the number of years after the first

19· ·outage, and 9 or 10 years after the first outage, before

20· ·they took steps to determine the extent of the problem.

21· ·Right.

22· · · · · · ·We heard a lot about how testing this would be

23· ·a problem with -- got too expensive to do 600 welds

24· ·whatever.· After the fourth outage, they proceeded

25· ·immediately to doing that testing.· And in 2018, I
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·1· ·guess, I am surmising that they identified a significant

·2· ·enough problem to warrant a full replacement at the next

·3· ·available major overall, 2022.

·4· · · · · · ·My point here is that this could have been

·5· ·done sooner, exposing the customers to less outage and

·6· ·replacement power risk.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I think that actually addresses my

·8· ·follow-up questions with respect to that one, although I

·9· ·do have -- do have one other.· And I am looking at the,

10· ·I think it's Exhibit 2.3 that was attached to your

11· ·responsive testimony.

12· · · · A.· ·It's the report.· Is that our report?

13· · · · Q.· ·It is, yeah.· It's the -- the confidential

14· ·report.· I don't know what information in this is

15· ·confidential, if it's the figures or if it's the

16· ·descriptions.

17· · · · A.· ·I am not a hundred percent sure either.

18· ·Jason?

19· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· It's probably a mix.

20· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· Okay.

21· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Is there something specific?

22· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· With each of -- with each --

23· ·with each of the outages that are discussed, there is a

24· ·repair cost identified, as well as a cost associated

25· ·with the replacement power.· And I am just wondering
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·1· ·whether any of that is confidential.· I don't even need

·2· ·to use the number.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. HOGLE:· Confidential.

·4· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Russell)· Okay.· All right.· Do you

·5· ·have that report in front of you?

·6· · · · A.· ·I do.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Maybe we can do this without -- I'm --

·8· ·I am not going -- I'm not going to identify any of the

·9· ·numbers.· Do you see the -- the next to last paragraph

10· ·of --

11· · · · A.· ·Excuse me.· Page reference please.

12· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· Sorry.· Page 26, it's the Huntington

13· ·Unit 1 outage, the discussion there.

14· · · · A.· ·Yes.

15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· The next to last paragraph of that

16· ·discussion identifies the repair costs, and maybe I am

17· ·just misunderstanding what repairs were done, but can

18· ·you -- can you tell me what repairs were done that adds

19· ·up to this number that I am not going to say?

20· · · · A.· ·No.· These repair costs were provided by the

21· ·company.

22· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.

23· · · · A.· ·So I don't know -- I don't know exactly what

24· ·repairs took place.· That's simply the costs of

25· ·bringing -- bringing the unit back to service from the
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·1· ·outage.· Not including, you know, replacement power,

·2· ·anything like that.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Yeah.· And I know we have been throwing around

·4· ·this $2 million number to replace the dissimilar welds,

·5· ·and that's not this number?

·6· · · · A.· ·It is not.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you know -- you don't know what --

·8· ·what is included with this number here?

·9· · · · A.· ·No.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· All right.· Fair enough.· Let's move on

11· ·to Jim Bridger Unit 2, which is the next one in your --

12· ·in the report.· And this is the -- the one that we have

13· ·spent a fair bit of time talking about with the water

14· ·freezing and the water spacer tubing.· Can you tell me,

15· ·what was -- what was the -- what was the imprudent

16· ·action by the -- by the company here?

17· · · · A.· ·Well, fundamentally, when you are talking

18· ·about a system that is explicitly designed to prevent

19· ·freezing, not functioning at a time when you need it,

20· ·and the reason given is that there was quote, unquote, a

21· ·gap in the procedures, that just doesn't ring true --

22· ·not true, but it doesn't make sense to me in the context

23· ·of my experience.

24· · · · · · ·I could see gaps in procedures if this was a

25· ·new system or a new unit.· This is a unit that's been in
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·1· ·operation for, you know, decades.· By now any bugs or

·2· ·shake-down associated learnings, if you will, should

·3· ·have been covered.· And I think we heard earlier that

·4· ·this was simply a problem where a technician didn't do

·5· ·his job properly.· I don't know how else to say it.

·6· · · · Q.· ·And -- and in your view, is it, what -- what

·7· ·would be the cost of mitigating against that?· If

·8· ·there --

·9· · · · A.· ·Very little.· I mean, that's nothing more than

10· ·the direction that this is what you need to do.· You

11· ·need to report things of this nature.· It's -- it's

12· ·somewhat, you know, it's puzzling that -- that an

13· ·individual with that title, that -- that -- namely the

14· ·technician that we're talking about, wouldn't have taken

15· ·that next step to make sure people were aware of it.

16· ·When I say people, upper -- his manager or other folks

17· ·in the management chain.

18· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's move on to Jim

19· ·Bridger Unit 3, and this is the one where we have

20· ·discussed a fair bit with the electrical wiring that was

21· ·underground, but because of a -- of a water pump that

22· ·tripped off, water got into the -- the conduit with the

23· ·that -- that the electrical wiring was in.

24· · · · · · ·And there's been some discussion about when

25· ·this wiring may have been damaged.· Why don't you tell
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·1· ·me what -- what you view as the imprudent action here?

·2· · · · A.· ·Well, fundamentally, is it prudent to damage a

·3· ·cable upon installation?· Here the record shows that the

·4· ·cable, along with age, was a mitigating -- was one of

·5· ·the causes of what went -- what happened -- excuse me.

·6· · · · · · ·And you know, we have heard a lot about, well,

·7· ·the cable was in operation for 40 years, and while that

·8· ·may be true, and we also heard about testing that was

·9· ·done upon its initial installation.· What we didn't hear

10· ·anything about is how often this cable is tested.· Is it

11· ·tested on an annual basis?· Semiannual basis?· During

12· ·major overhaul, or was it set it and forget it?

13· · · · · · ·I have -- I've heard no discussion about it.

14· ·So the idea that this installation wasn't degrading that

15· ·whole time, I am not sure there's any information on the

16· ·record to prove that that wasn't the case.

17· · · · Q.· ·So focusing on the length of time here, in

18· ·your view, and I -- I think you say this in the report

19· ·or in your testimony, that it's not important how long

20· ·this -- this wiring was in place.· It's, how did it get

21· ·damaged?

22· · · · A.· ·Right.

23· · · · Q.· ·And I guess, I have -- if the company since

24· ·that time didn't know about the damage, I mean, if -- if

25· ·it was installed, and even the people who installed it
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·1· ·didn't know about the damage, and in the 40 years since

·2· ·there's been no indication that there is some damage

·3· ·here, is it -- can, can -- do -- was it imprudent for

·4· ·the company not to conduct an inspection?· Or is your

·5· ·sole focus on the fact that it was damaged when it was

·6· ·installed?

·7· · · · A.· ·Well, it's two elements.· It's -- it's the

·8· ·damage upon installation, along with, I don't see any

·9· ·record of any testing that occurred after the initial

10· ·installation.· So -- so there's, other than the fact

11· ·that it was operational, there's no way to determine the

12· ·condition of the cable if it's not being tested on a

13· ·regular basis.

14· · · · Q.· ·And I guess, if the issue is, if -- if even

15· ·the people who installed this cable wouldn't have known

16· ·about the damage, and we're going to hold the company

17· ·responsible for that damage, would it be -- would it be

18· ·imprudent for the company -- wouldn't it be prudent then

19· ·for the company to -- to bear the costs of -- of

20· ·conducting inspections that would -- that would reveal

21· ·those types -- that type of damage?

22· · · · A.· ·If you are asking me whether I think it's

23· ·prudent of a company to do testing on -- on this cable

24· ·on a regular basis to determine its condition, is that

25· ·what you are asking?
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Well, I guess what I am asking is the --

·2· ·the -- the standard that we seem to be imposing on the

·3· ·company here is that there was damage -- we're all

·4· ·assuming there was damage upon installation here, but --

·5· ·and maybe the company didn't know about it.

·6· · · · · · ·But if that's the case, I guess what I am

·7· ·worried about is a world in which we say, under those

·8· ·circumstances, the company bears the risk.· And then the

·9· ·company responds by saying, okay, we're going to go

10· ·examine and inspect every last square inch, every last

11· ·cable of all of our plants, at enormous costs, because

12· ·we don't want to have to bear those costs going forward.

13· ·And the rate payers ultimately having to pay for that

14· ·type of a mitigation procedure.

15· · · · · · ·And -- and so I guess what I am wondering is,

16· ·if we, you know, there's something of a ying and yang

17· ·here.· If we impose that sort of a standard on the

18· ·company, are -- are we -- shouldn't we worry about the

19· ·cost that the -- the rate payers will ultimately be

20· ·asked to bear in response to that?

21· · · · A.· ·I can't answer your question directly, but

22· ·what -- what I can say is that it merits attention.· It

23· ·merits a review of good practices in the industry and a

24· ·change in practices to -- to align with those.· I don't

25· ·believe it is prudent to put a cable in the ground and
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·1· ·never touch it again for 40 years.· I don't think -- I

·2· ·don't think that's a good -- that's a good idea on any

·3· ·level.

·4· · · · · · ·So now the question is, how often should it be

·5· ·tested.· Again, without doing more research and

·6· ·understanding the exact situation, I can't give you an

·7· ·answer as to what is right.· But you are right, carte

·8· ·blanche, no, you are not going to want everything tested

·9· ·every year, no.· You're not trying to gold plate what's

10· ·going on by no means.

11· · · · · · ·But we are trying to reach reasonable level.

12· ·Right now, no tests, installation with no testing, if

13· ·that's true, and I don't know that that's even the case,

14· ·but I -- I have seen nothing on the record that tells me

15· ·that this isn't.· So I am kind of left up in the air.

16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Let's move on to Dave --

17· ·Dave Johnson Unit 4.· I think this is the last one.

18· ·Excuse me.· And this is the --

19· · · · A.· ·Excuse me.

20· · · · Q.· ·-- the -- the issue where we had a planned

21· ·outage that ended up getting extended because the

22· ·company's contractor, MD&A, had installed the wrong part

23· ·in an impeller.

24· · · · · · ·And I think we have talked about this enough,

25· ·but -- but I think it would be useful because we've done
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·1· ·it with all the other ones to have you tell me what you

·2· ·think the -- the imprudent action here was.

·3· · · · A.· ·Well, fundamentally, the company gave work to

·4· ·a firm that wasn't staffed to do the work properly.· Not

·5· ·only wasn't it staffed, but it didn't have the QC

·6· ·controls in place to recognize fundamental errors.  I

·7· ·mean, we are talking about a component that was shipped

·8· ·with the wrong impeller, and the -- and the MD&A

·9· ·admitting that they -- that they didn't have the proper

10· ·quality control checks to make sure that that didn't

11· ·happen.· I mean, that's puzzling.

12· · · · · · ·You know, I agree that MD&A, as the company

13· ·says, they are not a fly by night type of outfit or

14· ·anything like that.· But by the same token, they took

15· ·work that they weren't prepared to do, by their own

16· ·admission, and they didn't have the proper procedures in

17· ·place to make sure that the wrong component didn't go

18· ·out the door.

19· · · · · · ·At the end of the day, we heard a little bit

20· ·about liquidated damages, and that was the first time I

21· ·heard about liquidated damages associated with that

22· ·event.· And that's fine, that's a good thing, but it's

23· ·still not the total exposure.· The rest of the exposure

24· ·is covered by the customers in replacement power cost.

25· · · · Q.· ·If it had been the company that performed this
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·1· ·work in the way MD&A had performed it, how does that

·2· ·change the analysis or does it in your view?

·3· · · · A.· ·I don't think it changes it.

·4· · · · Q.· ·Because it's MD&A, we -- we have spent a fair

·5· ·bit of time talking about ways that the company could

·6· ·have mitigated those losses, or -- or -- or planned

·7· ·against those losses as opposed to just eating the

·8· ·costs, I suppose.· I don't know.

·9· · · · A.· ·Sure.

10· · · · Q.· ·But -- but I think that raises an interesting

11· ·question of, when the company hires outside contractors

12· ·to perform certain work, does that insulate the company

13· ·in a way from the negative effects of somebody making a

14· ·mistake along the way?

15· · · · A.· ·I mean, that's the compelling concern, that if

16· ·you take this to the extreme, then the company could

17· ·simply outsource everything it does, and it's not

18· ·responsible for anything.

19· · · · Q.· ·And we have, as I mentioned, spent a fair bit

20· ·of time talking about the company's efforts or what --

21· ·what the company could have done or did do to mitigate

22· ·the -- the potential risks here.· I am interested in

23· ·your views about consequential damages provisions or --

24· ·or provisions that waive consequential damages.

25· · · · · · ·I think the company has indicated that -- that
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·1· ·including a provision that would allow the company to go

·2· ·after a contractor for, you know, replacement power

·3· ·costs in the event of -- of -- of a mistake would --

·4· ·would be prohibitive.· I am interested in your views

·5· ·about that.

·6· · · · A.· ·I would agree that it's very costly.· I mean,

·7· ·nobody wants the burden of replacement power costs,

·8· ·which is all the more reason to put greater focus on the

·9· ·company's responsibility in its oversight of any

10· ·third-party vendor, be it through whatever contractual

11· ·means possible.

12· · · · · · ·Whether it's LDs, whether it's consequences,

13· ·what -- whatever it might be, the company needs to do

14· ·everything possible to make sure that the customer is

15· ·getting the value they are expecting from their third

16· ·party contractor or third party operator owner.

17· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· Okay.· I think that's all the

18· ·questions I have.· Thank you for your time.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· Rocky

20· ·Mountain Power, any questions for this witness?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

23· ·BY MR. MOSCON:

24· · · · Q.· ·Good afternoon, Mr. DiDomenico.

25· · · · A.· ·Good afternoon.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·I'll be honest that I don't relish taking you

·2· ·through what I count would be the sixth trip through all

·3· ·of these seven outages by my calculation that this group

·4· ·would have listened to today.

·5· · · · A.· ·Lucky seven.

·6· · · · Q.· ·So I -- I think I might have to go off script

·7· ·a little bit, just for all of our sakes.· But before I

·8· ·begin, I want to -- I want to just touch a little bit on

·9· ·your background and your -- your frame of reference.· If

10· ·I understand correctly, you have been working as a

11· ·consultant for 22 years now.· Is that right?

12· · · · A.· ·That's about right.· 22, 23.

13· · · · Q.· ·You haven't worked for a utility company since

14· ·1997; is that right?

15· · · · A.· ·Sounds about right.

16· · · · Q.· ·So when we are talking today about what is

17· ·standard practice and how utilities do this or do that,

18· ·any change since 1997 at least is something that you

19· ·would have just kind of learned academically, for lack

20· ·of a better word, rather than something where you can

21· ·say, yes, I was there when we made that change in 2011?

22· · · · A.· ·Well, certainly just research is part of it,

23· ·but you are neglecting the fact that in my career as a

24· ·consultant, I have been essentially an advisor to those

25· ·very same electric utility customers from an advisory
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·1· ·strategic perspective, whether it's in the care and

·2· ·feeding of their equipment, asset management related

·3· ·responsibilities, organizational responsibilities,

·4· ·reliability related questions.

·5· · · · · · ·I deal with clients, mainly utility clients,

·6· ·not as much with commissions, relative to issues related

·7· ·to performance and capital investment.

·8· · · · Q.· ·And sure, and that's, I guess, what I mean

·9· ·about academically.· You have been there.· You have seen

10· ·it.· You have studied it.· You haven't been working at a

11· ·utility since the mid nineties; is that right?

12· · · · A.· ·True enough.

13· · · · Q.· ·All right.· There's -- there's one area,

14· ·and -- and I may just be -- just to make the point,

15· ·belabor our very first outage that we have probably

16· ·heard the most about, because again, it kind of makes a

17· ·point that stays consistent with the other outages.

18· · · · A.· ·Sure.

19· · · · Q.· ·And just because I already have it open

20· ·because Mr. Russell turned us to it, I am going to ask

21· ·you, and any that care to follow, to turn to page 24 in

22· ·your confidential report.· It was attached to your first

23· ·filed testimony.

24· · · · A.· ·24, yes.

25· · · · Q.· ·Page 24.· That's where the -- what you refer
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·1· ·to as avoidable outages begin, right?

·2· · · · A.· ·Correct.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Now, when you were answering some

·4· ·questions of Mr. Russell, I -- I wrote something down,

·5· ·and I -- I tried to write exactly what you were saying.

·6· ·But I could have missed a word or two, but it, it really

·7· ·struck me about something.

·8· · · · · · ·You -- you recall when you were asked, is cost

·9· ·something that you took into consideration?· And I

10· ·heard -- understood you to essentially say, not really.

11· ·I just looked at should this have happened or that have

12· ·happened.· I wasn't considering costs, right?

13· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

14· · · · Q.· ·But you also agreed that a utility in the real

15· ·world, when it needs to make decisions, has to balance

16· ·cost with risk.· Is that correct?

17· · · · A.· ·I would agree.

18· · · · Q.· ·And so the recommendations that you have made

19· ·about prudence, of course, are not necessarily the same

20· ·that a company would make, because while you are saying,

21· ·I made these determinations without considering costs,

22· ·of course, this utility or any utility must consider

23· ·cost, correct?

24· · · · A.· ·Correct.

25· · · · Q.· ·You are not a lawyer, I understand.· Are you
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·1· ·familiar with a phrase, strict liability?

·2· · · · A.· ·Just generally.

·3· · · · Q.· ·The thing that I wrote down is, when we were

·4· ·talking about the Craig Unit 2, this is, of course, is

·5· ·the famous bolt that came out, near -- near the end you

·6· ·had a statement.· And you wrote -- or I tried to write

·7· ·what you said.· The bolt wasn't there.· I don't know

·8· ·why, so the company should be responsible.

·9· · · · · · ·I mean, you were summarizing a lot.

10· ·Obviously, you had more to it than that.

11· · · · A.· ·Yeah, it went a little it deeper than that,

12· ·but yes.

13· · · · Q.· ·You understand that.· And to me as a lawyer,

14· ·that is the essence of strict liability, which is, I

15· ·don't know whether there's negligence or not, but

16· ·something happened.· I have to pick someone to blame, so

17· ·I am going to hold the company responsible.· And that's

18· ·the point that I'd like to explore a little bit with our

19· ·questions, okay?

20· · · · A.· ·But I don't think that's a fair

21· ·characterization, but okay.· Go ahead.

22· · · · Q.· ·But those -- I mean, in this case, you don't

23· ·know, like we don't know, no one -- you don't know why

24· ·the bolt came out, correct?· Or the plug, I shouldn't

25· ·say the bolt.
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·1· · · · A.· ·You're right.· But do I have -- can I clarify?

·2· · · · Q.· ·Sure.

·3· · · · A.· ·The company's fundamental position is that

·4· ·there were procedures in place that were followed.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Uh-huh, yes.

·6· · · · A.· ·Right.· That's on the record.· I maintain that

·7· ·if there are procedures in place, and the bolt -- the

·8· ·bolt falls out, somebody didn't do their job right,

·9· ·right?· There's a -- there's a problem there.· That's

10· ·not strict liability.· That's somebody not following

11· ·procedure.· There is no procedure that says, loosely put

12· ·in this bolt and hope it stays in there.

13· · · · Q.· ·So the logical conclusion is, if something

14· ·goes wrong, anything goes wrong in a plant anywhere,

15· ·somebody didn't do their job because bolts or cables or

16· ·lines or things, things don't just happen, right?

17· · · · A.· ·Most of the time that is correct.

18· · · · Q.· ·And again, to me, I am saying, strict

19· ·liability.· Something goes wrong, I am going to surmise

20· ·somebody must have done something wrong.· I don't know

21· ·what, but somebody must have done something wrong?

22· · · · A.· ·In this case -- I'm -- I'm not sure I am

23· ·following your -- your line of thinking 100 percent.  I

24· ·get the gist of what you are saying, but I am not trying

25· ·to imply that no matter what happens it's somebody's
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·1· ·fault.

·2· · · · · · ·What I am saying is, in this situation there

·3· ·were procedures in place that weren't followed.· If

·4· ·you -- if you have procedures in place that -- that

·5· ·someone doesn't follow, that's a problem.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Well, let's actually go through the

·7· ·procedures and see which ones weren't followed.· Okay.

·8· ·For -- for Craig Unit 2, you agree with me, don't you,

·9· ·that the seal, the -- the whatever we call it, the

10· ·silicone.

11· · · · A.· ·Silicone.

12· · · · Q.· ·That was put in place, right?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes.

14· · · · Q.· ·That procedure was followed, right?

15· · · · A.· ·You know, that's the problem with this

16· ·particular outage, as I have already mentioned.· There

17· ·was no detailed, at least nothing that was provided to

18· ·us, in terms of detailed root cause analysis as to what

19· ·actually happened.

20· · · · · · ·I'm -- I'm -- I'm dealing with a void of

21· ·information, and I'm -- I'm picking up bits and pieces

22· ·from testimony here today.· But by and large, just my

23· ·general background in -- in being in this industry, GE

24· ·is not working on a generator without procedures for the

25· ·proper installation of these bolts, right?· These plugs,
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·1· ·excuse me.· So I am surmising that.· I have no evidence

·2· ·to that effect.

·3· · · · Q.· ·I want to follow through then.· Am I correct

·4· ·then that for this Craig Unit 2, I -- I thought you said

·5· ·earlier, procedures and policies were in place and they

·6· ·weren't followed.· I now kind of understand you to

·7· ·say --

·8· · · · A.· ·That's what the company told me.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Yes.· But are you able, as you sit here today,

10· ·to articulate, here is the procedure that wasn't

11· ·followed?

12· · · · A.· ·No.

13· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· In fact, we know that the bolt got put

14· ·back in, right?

15· · · · A.· ·Yes.

16· · · · Q.· ·We know that it got tightened to some -- the

17· ·bolt, the plug, we know it got tightened to some degree,

18· ·right?

19· · · · A.· ·Logically.

20· · · · Q.· ·We know that there was not just an assumption

21· ·that they were put in, because we know that there was

22· ·actually a test to make sure that this thing sealed up,

23· ·right?

24· · · · A.· ·Yes.

25· · · · Q.· ·We know it was pressurized to 48 psi, right?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And maintained pressure for 24 hours, right?

·3· · · · A.· ·Correct.

·4· · · · Q.· ·And then someone went to see, is it leaking,

·5· ·right, and it was not leaking, right?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· I think it was within 24 hours it

·7· ·started leaking.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Well, we know --

·9· · · · A.· ·The second 24 hours.

10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· We know that for the test it didn't

11· ·leak, there was no leaking at the pressurization test,

12· ·right?

13· · · · A.· ·Correct.

14· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So we know that it was put on.· It was

15· ·tightened.· There was a visual inspection.· There was

16· ·beyond a visual inspection.· There was a pressurization

17· ·inspection, followed by a visual inspection of looking

18· ·for leaks, and all of those things passed, right?

19· · · · A.· ·I don't know that we know there was a visual

20· ·inspection.

21· · · · Q.· ·How else would they determine whether it was

22· ·leaking?

23· · · · A.· ·From the pressure test perspective.· At the

24· ·time of the test, yes, they did a pressure test, I

25· ·agree.
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·1· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

·2· · · · A.· ·But you are talking about at the onset before

·3· ·they put it back together again.· Are you saying that

·4· ·someone looked at it to make sure that everything was

·5· ·the way it was supposed to be before it was reassembled?

·6· · · · Q.· ·I know I am also surmising that when they

·7· ·pressurized it to see if it was leaking, someone walked

·8· ·up to it and said, I am looking at the plugs, and are

·9· ·they leaking, yes or no, right?

10· · · · A.· ·Yes.

11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.

12· · · · A.· ·The answer is yes.

13· · · · Q.· ·So we know that some eyes were put on this

14· ·thing, right?

15· · · · A.· ·On the equipment.

16· · · · Q.· ·Yes.

17· · · · A.· ·I don't know about the plugs themselves.

18· · · · Q.· ·And so what I am saying is, you cannot, as you

19· ·sit here, point to a point in that timeline and say,

20· ·right there is where the utility, Rocky Mountain Power,

21· ·messed up, right?

22· · · · A.· ·Agreed.

23· · · · Q.· ·Just for sake of time and brevity and because

24· ·we have been through this a little bit, I am going to

25· ·combine the Dave Johnston Unit 3 April and September
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·1· ·outages.· I know they are different outages, but we have

·2· ·kind of been through this a little bit before.

·3· · · · · · ·One thing that you have said today on the

·4· ·stand is that one of your recommendations for a

·5· ·disallowance is because the company had been repeatedly

·6· ·warned by its metallurgist and ignored that, and I'd

·7· ·like to draw your attention to, if you are looking at

·8· ·page 25, the third from the bottom paragraph that begins

·9· ·"The repeat nature."· Do you see that?

10· · · · A.· ·The -- the second paragraph.

11· · · · Q.· ·Well, I guess depending if you call the

12· ·duration of this outage as a paragraph.

13· · · · A.· ·Okay.· The repeat nature, I got it.

14· · · · Q.· ·Right.· Okay.· So will you just -- in fact I

15· ·don't think there's anything in that paragraph that's

16· ·confidential.· I'll ask anybody to speak up if there is,

17· ·but I was just going to ask you to just read that

18· ·paragraph for us, the repeat nature.

19· · · · A.· ·"The repeat nature of the outage event

20· ·combined with the company's lack of attention to

21· ·modifying its deslagging practices, despite being

22· ·forewarned that such practices were a precipitating

23· ·cause of failures, is unacceptable, avoidable and a

24· ·cause of disallowance recommendation."

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And the warning that you are referring
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·1· ·to that you quote actually up in the true second

·2· ·paragraph of this page is the IEC's June 16th, 2017,

·3· ·metallurgical report; is that correct?

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So when you say that the company was

·6· ·ignoring the forewarning that it received from its

·7· ·metallurgist, you were mistaken, are you not, because

·8· ·Mr. Ralston has indicated that in fact they had already

·9· ·done what the metallurgist recommended in 2017, six

10· ·years prior in 2011?

11· · · · A.· ·The only point I would make is that this

12· ·report was produced before that information was

13· ·available.

14· · · · Q.· ·This report.· Oh, you mean your report --

15· · · · A.· ·Correct.

16· · · · Q.· ·-- we are looking at.· Oh, what you are saying

17· ·is the reason you wrote what we just read is because you

18· ·didn't know that the company had already done that back

19· ·in 2011?

20· · · · A.· ·Not in the supplemental -- this was

21· ·supplemental information that was provided.

22· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· I understand.· So you would agree with

23· ·me that the rationale that you put here in your report

24· ·is incorrect?

25· · · · A.· ·It's -- it's incorrect if you take on face
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·1· ·value the testimony that Mr. Ralston gave.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And not just what you have written

·3· ·here, but the times that you have said today here

·4· ·sitting in that chair about how the company was

·5· ·repeatedly warned by its metallurgist and didn't comply,

·6· ·that was also incorrect, wasn't it?

·7· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Based on the most recent testimony, it's

·8· ·true.· But again, I want to -- I want to make sure we

·9· ·understand each other.· I don't understand why the

10· ·metallurgist in 2017 keeps harping on the company

11· ·changing its practices that the company has said they

12· ·changed back before 2011.

13· · · · Q.· ·So your recommendation to this commission is

14· ·that they charge the company a lot of money because you

15· ·don't understand why a metallurgist said that in his

16· ·report in 2017?

17· · · · A.· ·I think you are trivializing what I am trying

18· ·to say.· It is very confusing to see that a metallurgist

19· ·that is a partner in this with the company, for some

20· ·reason has no idea what the company's blasting practices

21· ·are.

22· · · · Q.· ·Is this a possibility, and I -- and I realize

23· ·00 because I don't want it to seem like I am

24· ·trivializing.· I realize I am going to ask you a

25· ·question that neither you or I know the answer to.
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·1· · · · · · ·Is it possible that simply a metallurgist,

·2· ·like a lot of hired professionals getting a piece of

·3· ·metal has almost a boilerplate report that kind of like

·4· ·sticks in a paragraph that says, I see this, it could be

·5· ·this.· By the way if you are not doing it already, you

·6· ·should go to this route?

·7· · · · A.· ·You know, I -- I hate is-it-possible

·8· ·questions, because I think pretty much anything is

·9· ·possible.· But I would say this, that in my experience

10· ·working with metallurgists, and I have in my career,

11· ·it's not -- if -- if that's the way it's working, then

12· ·you need to change the way the partnership is working.

13· · · · · · ·There's no point in sending out and paying

14· ·good money to have a metallurgist give you generic

15· ·solutions to problems that you are not going to pay any

16· ·attention to.

17· · · · Q.· ·As you sit here with your years of experience

18· ·that you have described, you've provided no information

19· ·in your report that using detonation cord to deslag to

20· ·protect for the safety of workers is outside of industry

21· ·standard, correct?

22· · · · A.· ·No, not -- not at all.· It is industry

23· ·standard.

24· · · · Q.· ·All right.· Let's jump forward then to the

25· ·Huntington 1, which is the May 3rd thing I've combined.
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·1· ·We did Greg 2, Dave Johnston 3, the two outages.· The

·2· ·next one is the Huntington unit.· In your report it's on

·3· ·page 26.

·4· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Again, there was a line of questioning about,

·6· ·by Mr. Russell about the cost associated, and when you

·7· ·would do this, and when you wouldn't do it.· And if I

·8· ·understood you correctly, you said words to the

·9· ·effect -- this wasn't a quote -- look, something

10· ·happened.· There was one failure in around 2008, 2011,

11· ·whenever, and then nothing really changes between No. 3

12· ·and No. 4.· But then all of a sudden at No. 4, the

13· ·company moves into action.

14· · · · · · ·And I guess my question to you is, is that a

15· ·mistake?· Is that an error?· Is there a reason why -- is

16· ·there some industry standard that you can refer us to

17· ·that says you should do it at incident No. 3 not

18· ·incident No. 4?

19· · · · A.· ·There is no industry standard to that effect.

20· ·But from a general experience perspective, the company

21· ·knows full well the extent of the problem with

22· ·dissimilar metal welds.· It's an industry problem.· It's

23· ·not unique to any particular company.

24· · · · · · ·You know you have the problem.· You know you

25· ·have that type of equipment.· It starts to fail.· Why
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·1· ·are we waiting until the fourth outage before we

·2· ·determine the extent of the problem?· I am not saying

·3· ·replace it.· I am saying determine the extent of the

·4· ·problem.

·5· · · · · · ·After outage No. 3, it was too expensive to do

·6· ·the testing.· Outage 4, we do the testing, it's not a

·7· ·problem.· I am saying you should do it sooner.· You

·8· ·could have done it sooner.

·9· · · · Q.· ·The testing, not the replacement?

10· · · · A.· ·Not the replacement.· I am talking about the

11· ·testing.· The -- the imprudent part of this is that

12· ·because we have delayed in testing, in determining the

13· ·extent of the problem, we are now locked into 2022, 14

14· ·years after this problem first manifests itself, before

15· ·we are actually going to implement a complete solution.

16· · · · Q.· ·You were here when Mr. Ralston testified about

17· ·the 1 percent failure rate.

18· · · · A.· ·Sure.

19· · · · Q.· ·And about the approximate $2 million cost?

20· · · · A.· ·Understood.

21· · · · Q.· ·And you have agreed several times about a

22· ·utility needing to balance what could happen with the

23· ·cost to mitigate it, right?

24· · · · A.· ·Agreed.

25· · · · Q.· ·I just want to know, yes or no, because I
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·1· ·didn't see it in your report, but for this commission to

·2· ·consider, is it your opinion that it was imprudent for

·3· ·this utility, after only three incidents, to say, we are

·4· ·going to take something that is less than a 1 percent

·5· ·failure rate, that would cost more than $2 million to

·6· ·fix and not have it scheduled yet?

·7· · · · · · ·Is that imprudent to make that decision, to

·8· ·say we're -- we're going to delay a $2 million expense

·9· ·when we only have a 1 percent failure rate?

10· · · · A.· ·On the face of that, no.· But that's not what

11· ·I am talking about.· I am talking about assessing the

12· ·degree of the problem that you have.· They -- they --

13· ·the company was well aware of the problem.· Once the,

14· ·the outages started to manifest themselves, they could

15· ·have done the testing to determine the degree of the

16· ·problem after the first outage, after the second outage,

17· ·after the third outage.

18· · · · · · ·But they waited until after the fourth outage

19· ·before they were motivated to do the testing required to

20· ·determine, to even determine the condition.· Prior to

21· ·2018, they had nothing viable to tell them what the

22· ·condition of that equipment was.· The reheater, I

23· ·believe.

24· · · · Q.· ·Well, let's actually look back.· There was an

25· ·outage in 2018, right?
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·1· · · · A.· ·There was.

·2· · · · Q.· ·The one before that was in 2014, right?

·3· · · · A.· ·Yep.· Four -- every four years to my

·4· ·understanding.

·5· · · · Q.· ·Which means at that outage, they had only had

·6· ·two weld failures, right?

·7· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·8· · · · Q.· ·And so at the last outage, you know, going

·9· ·back before this one, they had only had two times in

10· ·their history where they had had a problem with this; is

11· ·that right?

12· · · · A.· ·Yes.· But again, it's a problem.· It's --

13· ·it's -- you don't have to wait for a problem to

14· ·materialize before you address the concern, right?

15· ·That's -- that's what -- that's what we are talking

16· ·about here.· It's a matter of being prudent about the --

17· ·the investigation of the problem before it manifests

18· ·itself.

19· · · · · · ·We heard about hockey curves a little while

20· ·ago.· This is the type of problem that can overnight

21· ·become a major concern, in rapid order, potentially.

22· ·And this is not a secret.· This is not my testimony.

23· ·This is industry information, well known industry

24· ·information.

25· · · · · · ·So all I am suggesting is, they could have
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·1· ·determined the extent of the problem sooner, and if they

·2· ·had, potentially, they could have scheduled a

·3· ·replacement for 2018.· Assuming -- a lot of assuming

·4· ·going on here, assuming that the condition that was

·5· ·found from their testing indicated it warranted that

·6· ·kind of replacement.

·7· · · · · · ·Apparently 2018 testing basically said you

·8· ·ought to do this because I understand it's scheduled for

·9· ·replacement in 2022.

10· · · · Q.· ·Would you agree with me, before we move on

11· ·from this point, that even if the company had done that

12· ·and had scheduled a 20 -- this to be part of the 2018

13· ·outage, none of that would have prevented the 2017

14· ·outage that occurred?

15· · · · A.· ·That's correct.

16· · · · Q.· ·All right.· I apologize for the delay.· I am

17· ·trying to figure out which of these paths you have been

18· ·drug down two or three times, or the commission has four

19· ·or five times already.· Let's -- let's talk for a minute

20· ·about Jim Bridger Unit 3, and this, just so we're clear,

21· ·is the -- the underground wire that gets flooded?

22· · · · A.· ·Yeah, the heat.· I'm sorry.· Okay, the

23· ·underground wire.

24· · · · Q.· ·The conduit, that, you know, the pull that

25· ·everybody's presuming something gets damaged in when
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·1· ·it's getting pulled and then it floods that way?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·In questioning from Mr. Russell, you indicated

·4· ·that, okay, if I understood correctly, you conceded fair

·5· ·enough, I agree there's no visible way that this

·6· ·company, or a similar utility, would have known that

·7· ·conduit got damaged when it was -- or cable got damaged

·8· ·when it was being pulled through the conduit.· So your

·9· ·suggestion is there ought to be regular tests.

10· · · · · · ·I take it just like the -- the cost question

11· ·that we covered at the beginning, you have not put any

12· ·kind of pen to paper to consider how many cables and how

13· ·many conduits this company has, and how much time or

14· ·money it would take to run around and test every piece

15· ·of electrical cable that goes through a conduit?

16· · · · A.· ·I haven't done that analysis, no.

17· · · · Q.· ·Are you able to cite for us today any industry

18· ·standard that says, utilities should go and test their

19· ·electric cables, even though they are operational, every

20· ·X period of time, just in case something's going on that

21· ·we can't see?

22· · · · A.· ·I can't point to anything specific, no.

23· · · · Q.· ·Let's move to the -- the last outage, which is

24· ·the Dave Johnson Unit 4, March 17th.· So we're all on

25· ·it, this is the MD&A wrong impeller gets sent back.
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·1· ·Okay.· And I don't think, again, the facts are in

·2· ·dispute, wrong impeller gets sent back.

·3· · · · · · ·Would you agree with me that the company

·4· ·was -- well, I guess, I may have to ask you whether you

·5· ·are aware of any evidence that would contradict this,

·6· ·because I don't know what's been provided to you, so I

·7· ·will ask and then you can fill in the blanks.

·8· · · · · · ·Are you aware of any evidence that would

·9· ·indicate that this company, Rocky Mountain Power, failed

10· ·to administer the contract that it had with MD&A

11· ·properly?

12· · · · A.· ·I, I have no information either way.

13· · · · Q.· ·Are you aware of any information that

14· ·indicates that it failed to monitor the activities of

15· ·its contractor?

16· · · · A.· ·Again, no information.

17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you -- and you provide no evidence

18· ·that they failed to provide oversight there at the job

19· ·site where the contractor was performing the work,

20· ·right?

21· · · · A.· ·I -- I have no evidence to that effect, no.

22· · · · Q.· ·In fact, when the piece of equipment actually

23· ·shows up at the plant is when there is an inspection and

24· ·it's discovered, we got the wrong piece of equipment,

25· ·right?
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·1· · · · A.· ·Right.· Yes, correct.

·2· · · · Q.· ·And so the only way that the power company

·3· ·could have prevented this is literally if it had been

·4· ·back at MDA's factory watching the guy put which

·5· ·impeller in which box that he mailed out; is that right?

·6· · · · A.· ·Yes, to a degree that's correct.· The -- the

·7· ·notion, just -- just to be clear, the notion of the

·8· ·utility going to a factory site to check on the status

·9· ·of its work is not foreign.· That -- that is done all

10· ·the time.

11· · · · · · ·Now, do I know whether the company did that or

12· ·not?· I don't.· I don't know either way.· But I am

13· ·speculating that if they had, it would have seen

14· ·problems.

15· · · · Q.· ·But if I represent to you that in fact -- but

16· ·you are correct, the company does and did, you have no

17· ·reason to dispute that, right?

18· · · · A.· ·(Witness shakes head.)

19· · · · Q.· ·And so you, again, cannot point to any

20· ·specific process or procedure that Rocky Mountain Power

21· ·did that did not meet industry standard?

22· · · · A.· ·I can't point to anything specific there, no.

23· · · · Q.· ·The next topic that you cover in your report

24· ·that we have discussed here is the third-party

25· ·operators, and you -- again, I am going to paraphrase,
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·1· ·but words to the effect that the participation agreement

·2· ·that the company has entered into with Tri-State is

·3· ·deficient because the customers are left kind of at risk

·4· ·because the company is unable to enforce certain things

·5· ·against Tri-State.

·6· · · · · · ·Again, I know you didn't state those exacts

·7· ·words, but I am just trying to make that point.· Is that

·8· ·a general paraphrase?

·9· · · · A.· ·The general notion that the customer is on the

10· ·hook for everything that happens, that goes wrong from a

11· ·replacement cost power perspective.

12· · · · Q.· ·And you didn't disagree when asked by others

13· ·about whether shifting all of the risk to an operator

14· ·would in fact increase the amount that an operator would

15· ·want to charge for its services, right?

16· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Potentially, yes.

17· · · · Q.· ·And are you aware of the fact that the

18· ·specific participation agreement that you are referring

19· ·to, the Tri-State agreement, was subject to review by

20· ·your client, the DPU, and also later by this commission?

21· · · · A.· ·I am not aware of that.

22· · · · Q.· ·Can I take a one minute just to go through and

23· ·see what I have skipped?· I have been kind of bouncing

24· ·around here.· Hold on a minute.

25· · · · · · ·That's it for now.· That's all the questions.
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·1· ·Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Thank you.· Any

·3· ·redirect, Mr. Jetter?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I'll try to keep this very brief.

·5· ·A little bit of redirect.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

·7· ·BY MR. JETTER:

·8· · · · Q.· ·I'd like to just reference back to the missing

·9· ·plug.· Starting out my question, I understand that this

10· ·is a -- I am trying to make this not a legal question.

11· · · · · · ·Was your understanding of your task or your --

12· ·your -- your job as -- as it was outlined by the

13· ·Division of Public Utilities, to bear the burden of

14· ·proof that something was imprudent, or -- or was it

15· ·asked of you to demonstrate that the company had failed

16· ·to meet a burden of proof that it has?

17· · · · A.· ·It was my understanding that it wasn't my

18· ·charge to prove -- prove the burden of proof.· The

19· ·burden of proof rests with the company.

20· · · · Q.· ·Thank you.

21· · · · A.· ·That's my understanding.

22· · · · Q.· ·And additionally, is it your understanding

23· ·that GE, who installed the plugs, admitted fault?

24· · · · A.· ·Yes.

25· · · · Q.· ·And do you think that they would have done
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·1· ·that because they are nice people?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Calls for speculation of course.

·3· · · · A.· ·No, not likely.

·4· · · · Q.· ·(By Mr. Jetter)· Thank you.· Sort of the same

·5· ·line of questions regarding the impeller.· Was it your

·6· ·task, were you tasked by the division to seek out the

·7· ·reason that the impeller showed up, which was an

·8· ·incorrect impeller?

·9· · · · A.· ·No.

10· · · · Q.· ·And is it -- is it your understanding from the

11· ·data responses from the company that it was visually the

12· ·incorrect part?

13· · · · A.· ·It was visually identified as the incorrect

14· ·part once it got to the plant.

15· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Okay.· I don't think I have -- I

16· ·don't have any further questions.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· And maybe it's too

18· ·late, but I am going to sustain the objection to the

19· ·question about GE's motive.

20· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thanks.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· So that sustaining is on the

22· ·record.· You have nothing further?

23· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· Nothing.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Any -- any recross,

25· ·Mr. Russell or Mr. Moscon?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· No, thank you.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Why don't we take a 10 minute

·3· ·break before commissioner questions for Mr. DiDomenico.

·4· ·So we'll come back at five minutes until four.

·5· · · · · · ·Yeah.· Well, yeah, we probably won't take

·6· ·another break before we have our conversation about

·7· ·legal standards that we discussed earlier this morning,

·8· ·so we'll be in recess for 10 minutes.

·9· · · · · · ·(Recess from 3:45 p.m. to 3:55 p.m.)

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· We're back on the

11· ·record.· I think we are finished with all direct and

12· ·cross and redirect for Mr. DiDomenico, and we're ready

13· ·for commissioner questions.· If I am mistaken about

14· ·that, somebody let me know.· Okay.· Commissioner Clark,

15· ·do you have any questions for him?

16· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· I do have a question.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

18· ·BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:

19· · · · Q.· ·I think it might boil down what I have heard

20· ·you say about the Craig Unit 2 plug situation.· I think

21· ·what you have told us is that because there wasn't root

22· ·cause analysis, you are left with no explanation,

23· ·really, for why the plug came out.· And is that -- is

24· ·that --

25· · · · A.· ·I would agree.· No detailed explanation as to
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·1· ·why it came out.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Right.· Right.

·3· · · · A.· ·We're left with supposition.

·4· · · · Q.· ·That it vibrated out?

·5· · · · A.· ·Maybe.· It was a defective plug, maybe.

·6· · · · Q.· ·So that -- maybe you started to answer my

·7· ·question.· My -- my question is, what -- what would a

·8· ·root cause analysis potentially have revealed that would

·9· ·be useful?· Or in other words, could -- could we --

10· ·could we learn -- what could we learn from -- from --

11· ·from a root cause analysis?

12· · · · · · ·I mean that's -- that's -- that's what I am

13· ·asking.· And as I am thinking about this, I am thinking,

14· ·well, maybe the plug was defective, I guess, is

15· ·something we might know.

16· · · · A.· ·I mean, fundamentally, we want to try to

17· ·understand what drove, what occurred.· We want to

18· ·understand the true mechanism, not just, hey, we -- hey,

19· ·look, we found a plug on the ground.· That must have

20· ·been it.· I mean, because that's what we have right now.

21· ·I mean, that's -- that's the full nature of it.

22· · · · · · ·Would it be helpful to understand in detail

23· ·what procedures were or weren't followed?· Would it be

24· ·helpful to understand what the boots on the ground, so

25· ·to speak, actually did that day?· How -- how was it
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·1· ·handled?· What procedures were in place?· Was there some

·2· ·workmanship issue beyond just the plug?· What -- what --

·3· ·we don't know, we are left to sheer speculation in that

·4· ·regard.

·5· · · · · · ·And -- and on top that of that, you talk about

·6· ·defective plugs.· You know, one question I would love to

·7· ·ask GE is, what did you do differently the second time

·8· ·around to put the plug back that you didn't do the first

·9· ·time around?· I don't have an answer for that.

10· · · · Q.· ·We know that there was a pressure test and

11· ·that for 24 hours it --

12· · · · A.· ·It held, yeah.

13· · · · Q.· ·The -- the plug held?

14· · · · A.· ·And that is standard operating procedure.

15· ·I'm -- I'm not denying that that's -- that's an

16· ·indicator.· But it's also very questionable when 24

17· ·hours later, when the unit has just started -- starts to

18· ·ramp up to normal operation, that a plug falls out.

19· ·That isn't normal.· That's not what's supposed to

20· ·happen.

21· · · · · · ·And, again, keep in mind this is a critical

22· ·system we're talking about.· You know, leaking hydrogen

23· ·is not something to be taken lightly.· This is a system

24· ·that gets paid attention to.· So when they're doing the

25· ·repair, what exactly went on?· I don't know.· Just left
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·1· ·with questions.

·2· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CLARK:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Commissioner White?

·5· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· Yeah.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

·7· ·BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:

·8· · · · Q.· ·Good afternoon.· Just a couple quick

·9· ·questions.· There was -- there was some dialogue

10· ·between, I believe it was between yourself and Mr.

11· ·Moscon about kind of a -- I believe that there was

12· ·agreement on your part there was, from a prudent utility

13· ·operator standpoint, a cost benefit analysis goes into

14· ·play and that's --

15· · · · A.· ·Yes, I agree.

16· · · · Q.· ·I -- I was just intrigued by, I think you

17· ·mentioned, maybe I misheard you, that there was -- you

18· ·said there was -- in that context there was potential

19· ·for a sharing type analysis.· Is that what -- help me

20· ·understand, or maybe give me a little bit more meat to

21· ·the bone on that.

22· · · · A.· ·Well, I mean, fundamentally we are talking

23· ·about risk, right?· The risk of poor operation.· The

24· ·risk of power costs, just risk in general.· So now,

25· ·whether that risk gets shifted 100 percent from party A
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·1· ·to party B to party C, or is it split amongst the

·2· ·parties as a possibility?

·3· · · · · · ·Because I think it was in the context of

·4· ·what -- what could possibly we do.· Sharing would be --

·5· ·would be one possibility.· Sharing that risk.· See, I

·6· ·keep coming back to the fact that the company is best

·7· ·positioned to make whatever assessments need to be made.

·8· ·There's no doubt about that.· Not their third-party

·9· ·contractor, not -- not anybody.· The company -- the

10· ·company itself is in the best position to look out for

11· ·the best interests of its customers.

12· · · · · · ·And yes, it costs a great deal.· It costs more

13· ·to ensure against those risks, but that isn't a reason

14· ·to just de facto assume that you are not going to do --

15· ·that you shouldn't do it.· There's no analysis.· We just

16· ·have the broad statement that it costs a lot of money,

17· ·therefore we don't do it.· There's no analysis that

18· ·supports that, other than, you know, general experience.

19· · · · · · ·So, yes, is there a possibility for cost

20· ·sharing, maybe sharing between the customer and the

21· ·company, maybe sharing between third party, all of them.

22· ·You know, we heard earlier about all the players

23· ·involved, right?· With -- with the plug situation, we

24· ·talk about, you know, Rocky Mountain or PacifiCorp

25· ·followed by Tri-State followed by GE, followed by I
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·1· ·think it's APM, the millwright.

·2· · · · · · ·None of those parties are claiming replacement

·3· ·power costs concerns.· It's all about the customer.· So

·4· ·there needs to be a way to more formally integrate that

·5· ·into what's going on.

·6· · · · · · ·Because I'll tell you, nothing -- nothing

·7· ·affects the way the utility operates -- we talk about a

·8· ·cost benefit analysis.· If part of their cost benefit

·9· ·analysis is the risk of incurring replacement power cost

10· ·penalties, that factors into their decision making.· If

11· ·they have no risk of replacement power cost penalties,

12· ·it's easier -- it's easier to defer doing something.

13· ·Makes sense.

14· · · · Q.· ·So you -- you're suggesting like on an

15· ·outage-by-outage basis we -- we could potentially look

16· ·at the allocation of risk and potentially --

17· · · · A.· ·Potentially.

18· · · · Q.· ·I just want to ask you one more -- I just want

19· ·to give you an opportunity, the same opportunity I gave

20· ·Mr. Ralston, which is, you know, we are -- we're trying

21· ·to put ourselves, I guess, in the shoes of a prudent

22· ·utility operator and look at the facts at hand that were

23· ·known and are available, I guess, at the time and then

24· ·compare it against whatever the quote, unquote, prudent

25· ·standard is.
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·1· · · · · · ·Is there anything else we should be looking at

·2· ·beyond -- I mean, it sounds like from Mr. Ralston's

·3· ·testimony, that much of his operational expertise and

·4· ·experience came into play into making decisions.· Is

·5· ·there something else we should be looking at, because --

·6· ·EPRI, anything else beyond that?

·7· · · · A.· ·Well, certainly, yeah.· I mean, there are --

·8· ·there is certainly industry information.· There is other

·9· ·jurisdictions and how they are handling this.· You know,

10· ·unfortunately our industry has a lot of buzz words to

11· ·cover things that are very gray, you know, best utility

12· ·practices, you know, being one of them.

13· · · · · · ·So there is no standard that you say -- the

14· ·standard is what you make it as a commission.· You

15· ·make -- you're going to make the standard, whatever it

16· ·is.· And it might be useful to compare what other --

17· ·what other jurisdictions are doing from a commission

18· ·perspective.· There -- there are precedents out there.

19· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER WHITE:· Okay.· That's all the

20· ·questions I have.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· And I don't have anything

22· ·else.· Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Anything further from any

25· ·party?· I am not seeing anything.· Well, Rocky Mountain
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·1· ·Power, do you want to go first on having an informal

·2· ·conversation about if you want to give us any of your

·3· ·thoughts on the legal standards we talked about in the

·4· ·beginning here?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Yes.· And let me represent that

·6· ·the parties have throughout the day talked about this

·7· ·and what would be useful, so let me -- I am going to

·8· ·make a proposal that is not mine.· This is a joint

·9· ·proposal, but if the commission wants to reject it, of

10· ·course, that's up to the commission.

11· · · · · · ·Because every -- all the parties kind of want

12· ·to not just say, well, here is what we think or here is

13· ·what we would argue, but to actually provide useful

14· ·information to the commission and to be correct.

15· · · · · · ·What we would propose is as follows:· The

16· ·company pay to receive an expedited transcript of

17· ·today's hearing.· Let's assume that takes a week, to

18· ·then give the parties essentially two to two and a half

19· ·weeks to draft briefs that are 10 to 15 pages in length.

20· ·We'll follow whatever the commission says.· We want to

21· ·put an end on it so parties aren't just going on and on.

22· · · · · · ·So let's just call that March 1st is when

23· ·those briefs would be due by the time you get the

24· ·transcript and then the briefing, and then ask that the

25· ·commission make a decision, using those briefs, by the
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·1· ·end of March.

·2· · · · · · ·We recognize that that is after the next EBA

·3· ·filing, and the company recognizes that it's possible

·4· ·that would require the company to file an adjustment,

·5· ·you know, one or two weeks later.· The company is also

·6· ·willing to consider filing late, but that changes

·7· ·within -- I mean, that's kind of complicated so it's

·8· ·probably most likely that that the company files on time

·9· ·and then makes an adjustment if necessary.

10· · · · · · ·Of course, the company is willing to have the

11· ·commission make a decision before then, but we recognize

12· ·it takes time to make a decision and get an order out.

13· ·And I think, I would like them to respond, but there's

14· ·consensus on this with -- with the other parties.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Anyone else have

16· ·anything to add?

17· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· No.· Just -- just to confirm our

18· ·agreement.· It's a single round all at the same time.

19· ·Relatively short.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· You want a page limit?· Let

21· ·me just make sure I am understanding that.· A page limit

22· ·is desired?

23· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I -- I think we would prefer one.

24· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Save us from ourselves.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· It is universally on 10 or
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·1· ·15, because that's really not -- not an issue to any of

·2· ·the three of us, but you tell us what you want it to be,

·3· ·and we'll say that.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. RUSSELL:· I would prefer a 10 page limit,

·5· ·but I think the scope that UAE intends to -- of a brief

·6· ·that UAE intends to submit might be a little bit

·7· ·different than what the company or the division may

·8· ·intend to submit.· I think we are just going to focus on

·9· ·what we think the standard is without looking at the

10· ·transcript or submitting facts, but the others are free

11· ·to do however they want to.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· I bill by the hour.· I'm

13· ·contractually obligated to ask for 15 over 10.· But

14· ·otherwise, I think it also makes sense just to have that

15· ·if we need it.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· And -- I, I think -- I

17· ·think I can represent from the commission if we are

18· ·talking about briefs filed by March 1st, hoping for a

19· ·decision by the end of March, I think we can commit to

20· ·that.· And if it's sooner than that, great, but I think

21· ·we can make as firm a commitment as we could ever make

22· ·to end of March under that time frame.

23· · · · · · ·Do we need a written scheduling order for

24· ·this, or is doing this verbally here for the parties who

25· ·are present?· Does anybody see a need for a written
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·1· ·scheduling order?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· I don't think so.· The only

·3· ·question I have is -- is, I know that the Office of

·4· ·Consumer Services is a party by -- by statute, I

·5· ·believe.· I don't -- and I think they have also

·6· ·participated at some level.· I -- I would assume that

·7· ·they may have the opportunity, if they wanted.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Sure.· Just to -- to -- to --

·9· ·to -- to avoid any complicated issue, I think we'll just

10· ·issue a written scheduling order to that effect.· So I

11· ·don't have my calendar in front of me, but are we -- are

12· ·we talking March 1st?· And what -- what day of the week

13· ·is March 1st?· Is that -- is that a weekday?

14· · · · · · ·MR. JETTER:· That's a Friday.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Is that our due date

16· ·then for -- for 15 page maximum briefs?

17· · · · · · ·MS. HOGLE:· Yes.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN LEVAR:· Okay.· Any other matters?

19· ·Okay.· We are adjourned, and we will issue a scheduling

20· ·order in the next day or two.

21· · · · · · ·MR. MOSCON:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·(The hearing concluded at 4:08 p.m.)

23
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·C E R T I F I C A T E

·2· ·STATE OF UTAH· · · ·)

·3· ·COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

·4· · · · THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

·5· ·were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

·6· ·Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary

·7· ·Public in and for the State of Utah.

·8· · · · That the proceedings were reported by me in

·9· ·Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under

10· ·my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct

11· ·transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages,

12· ·numbered 5 through 210 inclusive.

13· · · · I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise

14· ·associated with any of the parties to said cause of

15· ·action, and that I am not interested in the event

16· ·thereof.

17· · · · WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake

18· ·City, Utah, this 12th day of February, 2019.
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· · · · · · · · · · · · · · Teri Hansen Cronenwett, CRR, RMR
21· · · · · · · · · · · · · License No. 91-109812-7801

22· ·My commission expires:
· · ·January 19, 2023
23
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 1   February 5, 2019                             10:00 a.m.

 2                     P R O C E E D I N G S

 3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Good morning.  We are

 4   here for Public Service Commission hearing in Docket

 5   18-35-1, Application of Rocky Mountain Power to Increase

 6   the Deferred Rate through the Energy Balancing Account

 7   Mechanism.  We have a few preliminary matters to

 8   discuss, but why don't we start with appearances from

 9   Rocky Mountain Power.

10             MR. MOSCON:  Matt Moscon and Yvonne Hogle for

11   Rocky Mountain Power.

12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

13             MR. JETTER:  Good morning.  I am Justin Jetter

14   with the Utah Attorney General's Office, and I am

15   representing Utah Division of Public Utilities.  With me

16   at counsel table are division witness David Thompson and

17   division outside consultant witness, Phillip DiDomenico.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

19             MR. RUSSELL:  And Phillip Russell on behalf of

20   the Utah Association of Energy Users.

21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  No one

22   else in the room participating today?  Okay.  I think

23   the next matter to go to is, on Friday afternoon Rocky

24   Mountain Power filed a motion requesting leave for

25   Mr. Meredith, Mr. Robert M. Meredith, to participate
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 1   telephonically.  Does any party have anything to add to

 2   that motion?  Any of the parties present here today?

 3   Okay.  The motion is granted.  Thank you.

 4             Just a couple more preliminary issues.  We do

 5   have a lot of material that has been submitted in

 6   confidential format.  Obviously, the entire Daymark

 7   audit is confidential, but there are some materials from

 8   the Daymark testimony relating to the seven outages at

 9   issue here today that is -- that is in yellow.

10             First, I think the first thing I ought to do

11   is ask Rocky Mountain Power if you are aware of any

12   reason any of the material that's in yellow in their

13   testimony, or in, I think, Mr. Ralston -- Mr. Ralston

14   also has a little bit of material in yellow.  Is there

15   any reason any of that material is no longer

16   confidential, or is it still -- do we still need to

17   treat it that way in any of our discussions today?

18             MS. HOGLE:  I am going to say just to be

19   cautious, we have, of course, over the time that we have

20   been preparing for the hearing, we have discussed some

21   of the items in the testimony.  And -- and I would just

22   ask Dana if he believes that there is anything during

23   the cross-examination or direct examination that he

24   thinks that's confidential, if he let us know.

25             And of course, we are aware of the materials
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 1   that we have submitted as confidential, but it appears

 2   to me that hopefully we -- we will be cautious and not

 3   get into exact confidential material while also making

 4   our case.

 5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, if -- if there's

 6   ever a need to make a motion to close it, we'll

 7   entertain a motion and deal with it.  We will also

 8   endeavor as we ask questions of the witnesses to -- to

 9   avoid that, but if any party notices one of us starting

10   to ask a question that you think we are not being as

11   careful as we should, please feel free to interrupt us

12   and let us know if we need to deal with something, but

13   we will try not to.

14             I think just two more preliminary issues I was

15   going to ask about.  One is just informative just so you

16   all know.  Probably about 20 minutes before we will

17   break for lunch today, Commissioner Clark will be

18   stepping out to attend a senate confirmation vote, and

19   then he should be able to return for anything else.  So

20   he's not losing interest in the hearing if you see him

21   leave a few minutes before our break, and then we can

22   enjoy his participation for six more years.

23             And the last preliminary matter is, I wanted

24   to invite the attorneys to have a conversation on the --

25   on -- on the legal standards, either at the beginning of
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 1   the hearing or at the end, or if you tell me you would

 2   rather not have this conversation as -- as part of the

 3   hearing, we'll just deal with it in testimony, we're --

 4   we can come to our own legal conclusions too.  But we

 5   would invite any input that -- that the attorneys would

 6   like to give.

 7             Obviously, we -- we could probably all in the

 8   room recite 54-44 on the prudent standard in our sleep,

 9   but this hearing presents some unique issues with

10   respect to that standard, particularly the -- the

11   relevance to a prudent evaluation of subsequent

12   corrective action or the standards for evaluating

13   prudence where there is a plant operator or co-owner

14   involved or a contractor relationship and what -- what

15   the legal standards are.

16             So if the attorneys would like to have a

17   conversation at some point, we're happy to have that

18   conversation now or circle back at the end of the

19   hearing if anyone -- if anyone wants to provide thoughts

20   that would give us any guidance as we -- as we

21   deliberate on these issues.

22             MR. MOSCON:  I -- I would suggest, if it

23   please the commission, that at the end would be

24   appropriate.  I think it is something that's worth

25   addressing, but I think after the information has been
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 1   received, the commission's probably going to be in the

 2   best circumstance to ask back to the attorneys the

 3   questions about it.  So on this point, what does that

 4   mean or how does this play out?

 5             So I just suggest at the end that you invite

 6   interested counsel to give their input on what the legal

 7   standard for any topic is.  Then you can question back.

 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

 9   Mr. Jetter?

10             MR. JETTER:  I -- I think that's fine.  I

11   am -- I'm happy to do it at any point.  So whatever --

12   whatever the commission, works best for you guys.  I

13   think that's really the core of what we are here today

14   for.  I am not sure there's a lot of facts at issue, so

15   I think it's somewhat of a matter for first impression

16   for this commission and an important issue certainly to

17   us, so we're happy to address it whenever you find it

18   most convenient.

19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.

20   Mr. Russell?

21             MR. RUSSELL:  I agree both with Mr. Jetter and

22   Mr. Moscon, and I think maybe we can circle back at the

23   end.  I -- I did, because this is an issue, as

24   Mr. Jetter said, of first impression, I did do some

25   research into this.  And I found some cases that are not
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 1   from this jurisdiction I think may be useful to the

 2   commission, that the standards and the facts therein

 3   don't really lend themselves to cross-examination.

 4             So I -- I anticipate that my suggestion will

 5   be that we submit briefs, even -- even if it's just,

 6   here are some cases.  Look at them for yourselves.

 7   Decide what you think they mean and how they apply here.

 8   But I -- I agree, I think we can circle back at the end

 9   to -- to decide exactly how we want to convey that

10   information to the commission.

11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we will

12   proceed that way then, and we will come to the history

13   at the end.  I will just state for something for parties

14   to think about with respect to briefs, I am presuming

15   there is a need to have an order in this docket in time

16   to inform the next EBA filing.

17             And so I'm -- I'm assuming a drop-dead date to

18   get an order out that would give time to inform the next

19   EBA would be, you know, around the end of February or

20   the first of March.  So that may be something to think

21   about if -- if we're going to be talking about briefs,

22   or if we're just going to be having a conversation at

23   the end of hearing.

24             And with that, we'll move forward and look

25   forward to ruling on objections to witnesses talking
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 1   about legal issues in the meantime.  Any other

 2   preliminary matters before we -- before we go to the

 3   first witness?  Okay.  Mr. Moscon or Ms. Hogle.

 4             MR. MOSCON:  Yes, thank you.  Rocky Mountain

 5   Power calls as its first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.

 6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I think your microphone

 7   might not be picking you up for the streaming.

 8             THE REPORTER:  Yeah, it's literally -- it's

 9   too far away.

10             MR. MOSCON:  Rocky Mountain Power calls as its

11   first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.

12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Wilding.

13   Do you swear to tell the truth?

14             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

16                      MICHAEL G. WILDING,

17   was called as a witness, and having been first duly

18   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

19                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

20   BY MR. MOSCON:

21        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Wilding.  Would you please

22   state your name for the record?

23        A.   Yes.  My name is Michael G. Wilding.

24        Q.   Would you please give a very brief description

25   of your -- the position you hold at the company and your
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 1   background leading up to that position?

 2        A.   Yes.  I am the director of net power costs and

 3   regulatory policy for PacifiCorp.

 4             MR. RUSSELL:  You got to push that green

 5   button.  There we go.

 6        A.   Do I need to start over?  I am the director of

 7   net power costs and regulatory policy for Pacific Power.

 8   Under my purview is the net power cost filings, so I

 9   oversee the EBA.  And I have been with the company for

10   approximately five years, for the entire time in the net

11   power cost group.

12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Okay.  Have you previously

13   testified here before this commission?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   In this proceeding, did you cause prefiled

16   testimony -- or testimony to be recorded and filed?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions set forth

19   in the prefiled testimony here in person today, would

20   your answers be the same?

21        A.   Yes, they would.

22        Q.   Are there any corrections that you need to

23   make to that prefiled testimony?

24        A.   No.

25        Q.   Okay.
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 1             MR. MOSCON:  Based on that, commission, first

 2   I suppose, unless the commission has a preference of

 3   sequence, I would move for the admission of

 4   Mr. Wilding's prefiled testimony, together with any

 5   exhibits thereto into the record.

 6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects

 7   to that, please indicate to me.

 8             MR. JETTER:  No objection from the division.

 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  That motion is

10   granted.

11             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Wilding, have you been

13   able to prepare a summary of your prefiled testimony?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission

16   and the parties?

17        A.   Yes.  Good morning, commissioners.  The

18   company filed its annual energy balancing account or EBA

19   application on March 15th, 2018, for the deferral period

20   of January through December of 2017.

21             The company requested recovery of $2.8

22   million, which consisted of the following components, a

23   $4.4 million credit for the deferral of the variances

24   between actual net power costs and actual wheeling

25   revenues versus base net power cost and base wheeling
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 1   revenues, a $2.9 million credit related to the Deer

 2   Creek Mine retiring medical obligation savings, a $2.8

 3   million credit related to the settlement of the 2017

 4   EBA, a $9.1 million in costs for the Utah allocated

 5   amortization expense associated with the closure of the

 6   Deer Creek Mine, $4 million in costs related to an

 7   adjustment for sales made to special contract customer,

 8   and finally, a .2 million dollar credit related to

 9   various smaller items, including interest.

10             The Division of the -- of Public Utilities

11   issued its report on the EBA and proposed a reduction to

12   the company's EBA application of approximately $910,000,

13   consisting of approximately $885,000 for replacement

14   power costs associated with seven plant outages and

15   $25,000 for an update to an allocation factor used in

16   the filing.  The DPU also proposed a change to the

17   company's energy risk management policy.

18             The Office of Consumer Services and the Utah

19   Association of Energy Users did not file testimony in

20   this proceeding.

21             In my testimony responding to the DPU's EBA

22   report, the company accepted the update to the

23   allocation factor and also agreed to change and update

24   our risk management policy as proposed by the DPU in

25   their reports.  The company disagrees with the proposed
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 1   adjustments related to the prudency of the seven plant

 2   outages, and company wit -- witness, Mr. Dana Ralston,

 3   will address this issue.

 4             Therefore, I -- I respectfully request that

 5   the commission approve the EBA as modified in my

 6   response testimony.  Thank you.

 7             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Wilding.  As the

 8   commission notes, there was not any testimony filed that

 9   called into question any of the testimony of

10   Mr. Wilding.  But, of course, he is here available for

11   any questions that the commission may have, or any

12   clarifying questions by the parties.

13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you

14   have any questions for Mr. Wilding?

15             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions.  Thank you.

16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?

17             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions.  Thank you, Chair.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?

19             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you

20   very much.

21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't either.  Thank

22   you for your testimony.

23             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

24             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  With the permission

25   of the commission, the second witness that Rocky
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 1   Mountain Power would call is Mr. Robert Meredith who the

 2   commission earlier this morning granted leave to appear

 3   by telephone.  And so Mr. Meredith, are you able to hear

 4   us where you are now?

 5             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I am able to hear you.

 6             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  So --

 7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't I swear him in?

 8             MR. MOSCON:  Go ahead.  Yes, thank you.

 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Meredith, do you swear to

10   tell the truth?

11             THE WITNESS:  I do.

12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

13                      ROBERT M. MEREDITH,

14   was called as a witness, and having been first duly

15   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

16                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

17   BY MR. MOSCON:

18        Q.   Mr. Meredith, would you please state your name

19   for the record?

20        A.   Robert M. Meredith.

21        Q.   And would you please tell the commission what

22   your current job title is and any relevant experience

23   you had leading up to that position?

24        A.   Sure.  I am the manager of pricing and cost of

25   service in Rocky Mountain Power's regulation department.
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 1   Worked for the company for about 14 years, or a little

 2   over 14 years now.  I have worked in customer services

 3   and the integrated resource planning department and in

 4   regulation for all that time at various analytical

 5   roles.

 6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Meredith, did you cause

 7   prefiled testimony to be prepared in this matter?

 8        A.   Yes, I did.

 9        Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions that

10   were written out, would your answers here live today be

11   the same as the ones that are recorded in that prefiled

12   testimony?

13        A.   Yes, it would.

14        Q.   Do you have any changes to that testimony that

15   would need to be made?

16        A.   No.

17             MR. MOSCON:  Again, Mr. Chairman, I would move

18   for the admission of Mr. Meredith's prefiled testimony,

19   together with any exhibits as part of the record.

20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  If any party objects to that

21   motion, indicate to me.  I am not seeing any objection

22   so it's granted.

23             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

24        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Meredith, have you had

25   the opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled
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 1   testimony?

 2        A.   Yes.

 3        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission

 4   and the parties?

 5        A.   Sure.  Good morning, Chair LeVar, Commissioner

 6   White and Commissioner Clark.  In my direct testimony, I

 7   presented the company's proposed rate spread and prices

 8   for the 2018 energy balancing account.  With interim

 9   rates effective May 1, 2018, recovery of the 2.8

10   deferral calculated by company witness, Mr. Michael G.

11   Wilding has resulted in an increase to customers of 0.1

12   percent.

13             The allocation and development of rates for

14   the 2018 energy balancing account has been prepared in a

15   manner consistent with prior energy balancing account

16   balances, and they are not contested by any party in

17   this proceeding.  That concludes my summary statement.

18             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Meredith.

19   Mr. Chairman, similarly, Mr. Meredith didn't have any

20   testimony contradicted, but he is available for any

21   clarifying questions of the commission or the parties.

22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you

23   have any questions?

24             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions, thank you.

25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?
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 1             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions, thank you.

 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?

 3             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you.

 4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner White?

 5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions, thank you.

 6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,

 7   Mr. Meredith.  We appreciate your testimony today.

 8             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  No problem.

 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't know if your

10   intention is to keep him on the phone?  It's up to you,

11   Mr. Meredith, if you want to keep listening for the

12   sheer fun of it or should we close the line?

13             THE WITNESS:  You can close the line.  That's

14   fine.

15             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

16             THE WITNESS:  Okay, thanks.

17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I am shocked.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  He is just going to listen on

19   YouTube for the rest.

20             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  Now, I know we have

21   already been through two witnesses, so unless the

22   commission wants to take a break, we'll keep plowing

23   forward.

24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Let's keep going.

25             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  If it please the
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 1   commission, our final witness that Rocky Mountain Power

 2   would call, who is with us here today, is Mr. Dana

 3   Ralston.  So we would ask that Mr. Ralston to take the

 4   stand.

 5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Ralston.

 6   Do you swear to tell the truth?

 7             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.

 8                     DANA MICHAEL RALSTON,

 9   was called as a witness, and having been first duly

10   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

11                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

12   BY MR. MOSCON:

13        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ralston.  Would you please

14   state your full name and your current business position

15   for the commission?

16        A.   My name is Dana Michael Ralston.  I am the

17   senior vice president of thermal generation and mining

18   for Rocky Mountain Power.  I have responsibility for all

19   the thermal assets, which are the coal plants and the

20   gas plants and the geothermal plants within Rocky

21   Mountain Power, and the fuel supply and a few mining

22   activities for the company.

23             I have a degree in electrical engineering and

24   been in -- working in and around the power plant sector

25   for over 37 years, as a plant manager, maintenance
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 1   manager, electrical supervisor, electrical engineer.

 2        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Ralston, did you have opportunity

 3   to prepare prefiled testimony to be filed in this?

 4        A.   Yes, I did.

 5        Q.   In your testimony, and -- and we'll -- we'll

 6   get to that momentarily, you describe your experience a

 7   little bit.  Can you provide -- let me back up and ask

 8   you this.  Have you provided testimony to this

 9   commission before today?

10        A.   In the written form, yes.

11        Q.   Have you ever presented live testimony to

12   these commissioners?

13        A.   No, not in the state of Utah.

14        Q.   So although I wouldn't typically do this, just

15   because this is your first time before these

16   commissioners, could you please give us a little bit

17   more color, describing your working background and

18   specifically to the extent it's germane to what we are

19   doing here today, give us some indication of your work

20   that you have done, you know, facilitating plant

21   overhauls, maintenances, shutdowns, startup, et cetera.

22        A.   Okay.  Until I took this position in 2010, I

23   was stationed at a plant, and I worked in the overhaul

24   process.  I coordinated maintenance activities.  I

25   coordinated electrical maintenance activities.  I was an
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 1   electrical engineer in charge of design.  I was in

 2   charge of overall plant operations as the plant manager.

 3        Q.   Okay.  So is it fair to say that you are very

 4   familiar with all the topics that are at issue today?

 5        A.   That would be correct.

 6        Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Ralston, could you describe for

 7   the commission the various pieces of prefiled testimony

 8   that you submitted in this matter?

 9        A.   I respond -- or I supplied response testimony

10   to the Daymark testimony and then supplied surrebuttal

11   testimony to their rebuttal testimony.

12        Q.   Do you have any changes that would need to be

13   made to either piece of testimony?

14        A.   Yes.  On my surrebuttal testimony, I have a

15   few changes.

16        Q.   Okay.  If you would wait just a minute to give

17   the parties and the commission an opportunity to turn to

18   that in your surrebuttal.  What page was your first

19   change or correction be made on?

20        A.   On page 5, line 93, the word "tight" should be

21   right.

22        Q.   Okay.

23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I am sorry.  You are on line

24   93 of the surrebuttal?

25             MR. MOSCON:  95.
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 1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, 95.

 2             THE WITNESS:  Excuse me, 95.  Did I say 93?  I

 3   apologize.

 4        Q.   (By Mr. Mascon)  Okay.  Any other corrections?

 5        A.   Page 6, line 135, the word weld near the end

 6   of the line should be deleted.  And page -- or at line

 7   136, the sentence that says, "tubing ends being

 8   conducted were nonidentical metal" should be deleted.

 9        Q.   Any other changes or corrections?

10        A.   And finally on page 10, line 220, where it

11   says "ND and A know -- knowingly accepted work in its --

12   in its capacity," should say -- read, "Accept work in

13   excess of its capacity."  So "excess of" should be

14   added.

15        Q.   Okay.  Any other corrections or modifications

16   that you believe should be made to your prefiled

17   testimony?

18        A.   No.

19        Q.   Okay.  And similarly then, if I were to ask

20   you all of the questions in both pieces of your

21   testimony here today, would your answers be consistent

22   with the answers in your prefiled testimony, including

23   the corrections that you have just noted for us?

24        A.   That's correct.

25             MR. MOSCON:  Okay.  With that, Mr. Chairman, I
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 1   move for the admission of the prefiled testimony of

 2   Mr. Ralston, together with any exhibits thereto.

 3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects

 4   to that motion, please indicate to me.  I am not seeing

 5   any objection, so the motion is granted.

 6             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

 7        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Ralston, have you had the

 8   opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled

 9   testimony?

10        A.   Yes, I have.

11        Q.   Would you please share that with the

12   commission and the parties.

13        A.   My name is Dana Ralston.  I am the senior vice

14   president of thermal generation and mining for Rocky

15   Mountain Power.  I've been responsible for Rocky

16   Mountain Power's thermal fleet since 2010, and prior to

17   that held a number of positions within the generating

18   fleet of Berkshire Hathaway Energy, including plant

19   manager, maintenance manager, electrical supervisor and

20   electrical engineer.  I have a degree in electrical

21   engineering with over 37 years working around and in the

22   power plants.

23             Today I am offering responses and surrebuttal

24   testimony to Daymark's testimony regarding the prudency

25   of contested plant outages.  In my testimony, I show
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 1   that the company did demonstrate prudency by its actions

 2   when maintaining and operating its plants.

 3             Daymark, when reviewing the outages, equates

 4   its avoidable outage that could be prevented with

 5   perfect foresight to improve in that by the company.

 6   This demonstrates that Daymark is using a perfection

 7   standard not a prudency standard.

 8             If Daymark's approach to maintenance and

 9   operational was implemented, costs to the customers

10   would significantly increase with a very small impact on

11   fleet equivalent availability, because Daymark would

12   have the company shift all risk to contractors no matter

13   what the cost and undertake corrective actions that were

14   not justified by inspection or operating data.

15             In addition, Daymark represents --

16   misrepresents data and testimony to arrive at an

17   erroneous conclusion related to outages.  In my

18   testimony, I show how the company used reasonable and

19   prudent processes to avoid outages and mitigate risks

20   while effectively balancing risks and costs for the

21   benefit of our customers.

22             In my testimony I use an analogy of changing

23   tires on your car every month to prevent a flat fire.

24   While this may reduce the chance of a flat tire, it is

25   far from prudent to do this and would not eliminate all
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 1   chances of a flat tire.  This seems to be the same

 2   standards Daymark uses when reviewing outages.

 3             With respect to our jointly owned plants that

 4   we -- that are operated by others, Daymark incorrectly

 5   implies we have a unilateral -- unilateral right to

 6   enforce process or changes on these plants.  Rocky

 7   Mountain Power is a very active and engaged owner

 8   involved in our participation agreements to its fullest

 9   extent.

10             These agreements that govern these plants are

11   based on a partnership with all owners getting benefits

12   and costs based on their ownership share.  The operating

13   company receives no premium to take on the risks of

14   operating the plant.  The companies that operate these

15   plants use prudent processes, but they may be not the

16   same as Rocky Mountain Power uses.  And when Daymark

17   refers to these partners as contractors, it shows a lack

18   of understanding about these agreements.

19             Finally, the company uses equivalents

20   availability, or EA, as an indicator of the detail and

21   care the company uses with regard to maintaining its

22   operating fleet.  The company's thermal EA is

23   significantly better than the North American Electric

24   Reliability Corporations or NERC, average for a similar

25   size fleet.
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 1             The company believes outages should be

 2   reviewed individually and that NERC averages do not

 3   automatically make every outage prudent.  But to

 4   completely ignore this metric does not paint a complete

 5   picture of how the company manages thermal plants to

 6   provide the least risk, least cost supply to our

 7   company -- or customers.

 8             Rocky Mountain Power has and will continue to

 9   prudently manage the thermal fleet with the best

10   interests of the customers at its forefront.  I am here

11   to answer your questions.

12             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Ralston.

13   Mr. Ralston is available for any questions of the

14   parties or commission.

15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Jetter?

16             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have a few

17   questions.

18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

19   BY MR. JETTER:

20        Q.   Good morning.

21        A.   Good morning.

22        Q.   Maybe I'd like to just start out asking a

23   question that -- that you addressed a little bit in your

24   introduction.  You mentioned that -- that, I guess in

25   your testimony, that Daymark Associates, the consulting
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 1   firm hired by the Division of Public Utilities, is

 2   seeking to hold the company to a perfection standard.

 3   Is that an accurate representation of your

 4   understanding?

 5        A.   Yes.

 6        Q.   Can you tell me how many forced outage events

 7   the thermal fleet for PacifiCorp experienced in 2017?

 8        A.   I don't have that number off the top of my

 9   head.

10        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that there

11   were 368?

12        A.   Subject to check.

13        Q.   And do you know how many megawatt hours were

14   lost as a result of those?

15        A.   Again, I don't have that off the top of my

16   head.

17        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it

18   was in the ballpark of three million?

19        A.   All right.  Subject to check.

20        Q.   Do you know how many outages Daymark has

21   recommended not be -- be removed from recovery from the

22   EBA?

23        A.   I believe it was seven.

24        Q.   Okay.  And -- and seven is lot less than 368;

25   is that correct?
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 1        A.   I believe so.

 2        Q.   And so do you still think that the -- the

 3   perfection applies when Daymark and Associates

 4   recommended only seven out of 368 forced outages be

 5   unrecoverable as a result of imprudence?

 6        A.   When I look at the detail of the seven outages

 7   and the action Daymark expects us to take, or would say

 8   would be a prudent level, I believe that is a perfection

 9   standard, not a prudent standard that a reasonable

10   utility would do.

11        Q.   Let me ask you a little follow-up question

12   there.  Can you give me an example of an imprudent

13   outage?

14        A.   I can't think of one right off the top of my

15   head.

16        Q.   Okay.  Do you know if PacifiCorp has ever had

17   an imprudent outage?

18        A.   Again, I can't think of one right off the top

19   of my head.

20        Q.   Okay.  If there were never an imprudent

21   outage, wouldn't that somewhat be the inverse of a

22   perfection standard; it would be a standard of

23   imperfection?

24        A.   I guess you could look at it that way.

25        Q.   And following up with that, do -- do you
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 1   believe that customers of Rocky Mountain Power in Utah

 2   should be responsible for all of the replacement power

 3   costs regardless of the -- the type of outage or the

 4   prudence that led up to that?

 5        A.   I believe the customer -- well, the company

 6   should be reimbursed for their cost when they acted

 7   prudently towards trying to avoid and prevent outages.

 8        Q.   Do you think that that -- that same standard

 9   should apply to Rocky Mountain Power's contractors or

10   third party operators?

11        A.   Please repeat the question.  Be more specific.

12        Q.   In your answer to my previous question, I

13   believe you answered that PacifiCorp should be

14   reimbursed for the costs of its prudent actions.  Is

15   that an accurate representation?

16        A.   Yes.  We should be re -- reimbursed for

17   prudent -- for costs when we act prudently.

18        Q.   Okay.  And do you -- do you also think that

19   Rocky Mountain Power should be responsible for costs

20   when it does not act prudently?

21        A.   Well, if we don't act prudently, then the

22   commission would determine that and probably not allow

23   those costs.

24        Q.   Okay.  And do you think that that should

25   extend -- regardless of whether it's legally mandated,
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 1   do you think that similar standard should extend to

 2   third party contractors that Rocky Mountain Power hires?

 3        A.   Okay.  And -- and again, the -- the

 4   contractors are out operating on our behalf, so the same

 5   standard should apply.

 6        Q.   Thank you.  Can you tell me what steps Rocky

 7   Mountain Power or PacifiCorp in its fleet takes -- let

 8   me rephrase that question.

 9             What steps does the company take to ensure

10   that the third parties are operating in a prudent

11   manner?

12        A.   Can you be a little more specific on whether

13   you are talking about a contractor that is specifically

14   hired by Rocky Mountain Power or a partner operated

15   plant operator?

16        Q.   Well, maybe let's address those each

17   individually.  So let's first take a look at -- or -- or

18   let me know your opinion on the -- the contractors that

19   are hired by Rocky Mountain Power.

20        A.   Okay.  So when Rocky Mountain Power hires

21   contractors, we take and make sure that we have

22   qualified contractors that can perform the work, are

23   reasonable, competent and available.  Okay.  And at the

24   same time, when we sit down, we get their prices from

25   them.  We negotiate a contract and negotiate terms that
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 1   have the warranty provisions and allow us to execute

 2   towards that contract to try to protect the customer and

 3   us to its best extent.

 4             In those provisions it's always a give and

 5   take, I will say, because if you want perfect, if you

 6   want to shift a hundred percent of the risk all to the

 7   contractor, you are going to pay for it.  And in my 37

 8   years of doing that, I have never seen any contractor be

 9   willing to accept 100 percent of all risk, including net

10   power cost risk, in any contract we have been able to

11   negotiate.

12        Q.   And so would you agree with me then that that

13   puts those contractors in a different risk position than

14   the Rocky Mountain Power would be were Rocky Mountain

15   Power performing the same amount -- the same work?

16        A.   Possibly.  Again, it depends on the situation,

17   I would say, and the contract.

18        Q.   And would it then be accurate that when --

19   in -- in the company's view when it hires third party

20   contractors that are not taking on that risk, that that

21   effectively shifts that risk to customers to bear the

22   losses that Rocky Mountain Power might otherwise be

23   responsible for?

24        A.   Not necessarily.  It depends on the event.

25        Q.   Could that be the case?
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 1        A.   What do you mean?

 2        Q.   Could it be the case that -- that those

 3   contracts would shift risk to customers?

 4             MR. MOSCON:  Mr. Chairman, before he answers,

 5   again, you noted this, and I am not trying to overdo it,

 6   but I guess I just need to note for the record that this

 7   whole series of questions has embedded the legal

 8   conclusion that the company would otherwise be liable

 9   for it, which itself could be impact to a great -- great

10   detail.

11             I am not trying to get in the way or interrupt

12   the flow.  I just don't want anyone to at a later date

13   say, well, we waived any objection.  So to the extent

14   that he is asking the witness to make legal conclusions

15   about the company, its liability, what the legal

16   standard of prudence is, et cetera, I just want to

17   preserve that objection.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Mr. Jetter, do you

19   want to respond to the objection?

20             MR. JETTER:  I am really trying to -- to -- to

21   get this without going into -- to the legal conclusion,

22   and I understand that -- that some of this has that as

23   the backdrop.  I think this, really all of our -- our

24   cases today, the facts at issue, are kind of set with

25   that backdrop.
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 1             And as I was creating my cross questions, I

 2   wasn't anticipating a -- a legal discussion in addition,

 3   and so I think I maybe can withdraw that question and

 4   move on to some more specifics.

 5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, then there's no

 6   need to rule on the specific objection.  We'll move on

 7   then.

 8             MR. JETTER:  Okay.

 9        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  So just to -- to clarify,

10   before I -- before we move on, replacement power costs

11   are not typically included in third party contracts; is

12   that correct?

13        A.   Not directly.

14        Q.   Okay.  Replacement power costs, are those ever

15   included in your contracts with co-owners or affiliates

16   or other -- other operators that are not Rocky Mountain

17   Power that are operating a partially owned power plant?

18        A.   No.  We -- we don't have them in any of them

19   that we are the owner but not the operator.  And at the

20   same time, we don't have any of them that we are the

21   operator and owner and we have other owners.

22        Q.   Okay.  And -- and so how are -- how is Rocky

23   Mountain Power, through those contacts -- contracts, or

24   relationships with those other -- other operators, how

25   is Rocky Mountain Power protected from imprudent
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 1   actions?

 2        A.   We protect ourselves from a -- from being

 3   involved with the participation agreements.  We have

 4   what we call E and O committees or coordinating

 5   committees.  We're heavily involved with those.  We have

 6   constant communication, at least daily with those

 7   different plants on what's going on in that.  We're a

 8   very active participant on it.

 9             From a contractual standpoint, there is no net

10   power cost provision in any of the participation

11   agreements that -- on either side, where we are the

12   operator or they are the operator.

13        Q.   Okay.  And is it fair to say that you have

14   influence on the operations, even if you are not

15   directly in control?

16        A.   We -- we try our hardest to influence and

17   direct the plan to where we think is the best place for

18   customers.

19        Q.   Thank you.  I think I am done -- will move on

20   at this point, and -- and go through the seven outages.

21        A.   All right.

22        Q.   Sort of in the order that they have been

23   presented in testimony.  I think it will be the easiest

24   way to follow.  So if you look at Craig Unit 2, is it

25   accurate that this is a representation, or this is an
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 1   instance where it's a third party operator?

 2        A.   Yes, that's correct.  Tri-State Generation and

 3   Transmission operates the Craig unit.

 4        Q.   Okay.  And is it accurate that Rocky Mountain

 5   Power has influence on how this is operated through its

 6   relationship with Tri-State?

 7        A.   Again, we work our hardest through those

 8   committees and through discussions with them to

 9   influence the direction.

10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And in this case let me

11   make sure I characterize this correctly, but there's a

12   series of plugs that are each opened individually,

13   and -- and a compound is -- is deposited through the

14   plug.  And then the plugs are reclosed, and that process

15   ultimately resulted in one of the plugs being missing at

16   some point?

17        A.   Maybe a better way to say it is the generator

18   is probably 14, 16 foot in diameter, and there's a

19   series of plugs like little quarter inch or

20   three-eighths inch plugs all the way around.  If they

21   take one out and they use this, like a -- it's a -- it

22   looks like our TV almost, you know, that you get at the

23   store.

24             And they pump it in, and they pump it in the

25   next one.  It comes out.  Then they put the plug in here
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 1   and then pump it here to the next one.  It creates a

 2   flexible seal so the hydrogen doesn't leak out, and then

 3   they put the plugs back in one by one.

 4        Q.   Okay.  And you mentioned -- this is -- I can

 5   direct you to it.  It's page 3 of your response

 6   testimony, on line 56, and is this -- this accurate

 7   that -- that you had written in there, that the plugs

 8   are tightened, torque not required and pressure tested

 9   to verify the seal integrity?

10        A.   Yes.  When the -- the work was done, a

11   pressure test at 48 pounds was done for 24 hours, and it

12   passed the pressure test.

13        Q.   Okay.  And so it's -- it's your testimony of

14   the company that it's believed that the plug had

15   vibrated out at some point?

16        A.   That's correct.  Otherwise, it wouldn't have

17   passed the pressure test.

18        Q.   Okay.  And -- and would it be a reasonable

19   conclusion that it vibrated out because it was not

20   tightened properly?

21        A.   That's one possibility.  I -- they're not sure

22   why it vibrated out.  It may not have been tightened

23   enough.  It may have had a flaw, don't really know, but

24   we believe it vibrated out sometime during operation

25   when it was returned to service.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  And how many of the other plugs

 2   vibrated out since then?

 3        A.   None of them.

 4        Q.   So if you were creating a plan to prevent that

 5   from happening in the future, would you recommend adding

 6   a torque value to the installation of those plugs?

 7        A.   I'd have to check on the design on that.  I

 8   would have to really know whether that was prudent or

 9   not.  I -- I -- that is a reasonable solution.  I am not

10   sure if it was or not.  The procedure done was by

11   General Electric, and it was their procedure.

12        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that hand tight

13   probably isn't adequate?

14        A.   And I don't know if it was hand tight or not.

15        Q.   Okay.  About if -- if that was -- if that was

16   the case, it would need to be tighter than that?

17        A.   I would say so, yes.

18        Q.   Would it be unreasonably expensive, do you

19   think, to add in the procedure manual for when you are

20   reinstalling these plugs to tighten them to some level

21   that's checked in some way?

22        A.   I wouldn't think so.

23        Q.   That's all the questions I have about the

24   Craig Unit 2.  Next I'd like to move on and discuss Dave

25   Johnson -- or excuse me, Dave Johnson 3, the April 25th
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 1   outage.

 2             Can you tell me why different grades of metal

 3   are used in different pipes at different -- different

 4   points within the boiler unit?

 5        A.   It's basically temperature and pressure

 6   related event.  Low temperature steam or water, carbon

 7   steel is okay for, but when you start getting into the

 8   higher temperatures, a thousand degrees or higher, the

 9   material breaks down faster.  So the longevity would be

10   reduced over time.

11        Q.   And I think your testimony is in agreement

12   that it was a -- a tubing material that was incorrect

13   for the location; is that accurate?

14        A.   It was a nonconforming material.

15        Q.   Okay.  It didn't meet the engineer's design

16   spec for that location?

17        A.   Somewhat, yes.  To give you a better frame of

18   reference is, the tube that had the material that failed

19   is here, and somewhere right below there, the -- it was

20   a transition switch to a different material, like within

21   a couple of feet.  And the tube right next to it was the

22   same material that was put in.  So I mean, they were

23   literally inches apart.

24        Q.   Okay.  So -- and is that the case that the

25   tube next to it was the correct tube?
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 1        A.   Yes.

 2        Q.   Okay.  And that was, I think if I am

 3   remembering, that was No. 47, but I don't remember that.

 4        A.   No, no, no, no.  You're -- you're thinking of

 5   something different.

 6        Q.   Okay.  You would agree that prudent

 7   construction of a facility would use the appropriate

 8   tube for the correct locations; is that correct?

 9        A.   In an optimal condition, you would use the

10   exact design material that was put in the boiler, yes.

11        Q.   Okay.  And part of the response in your

12   testimony was that the nonconforming tube had lasted 20

13   years, and that was an indication that it was adequate

14   for that location?

15        A.   It lasted at least 20 years.  The -- the

16   reason we go back at least 20 is because when Utah Power

17   and Pacific Power merged, the Utah Power repair process,

18   called an R state process, was more robust than the

19   Pacific Power one.  And it was implemented, and that was

20   about the time it was implemented.

21             This material could have been put in 30 years

22   ago.  I -- we -- we don't have the records, and back

23   that far back, it would have been a paper system.  So it

24   was more difficult to track and follow things, where

25   today it's very computer friendly.
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 1             So I know it's at least 20 years because

 2   that's when we did the switchover, and we don't have any

 3   records from that 20 years back -- forward.  So it was

 4   at least 20 years.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And -- and is it -- is it

 6   an accurate statement that if the, the correct grade of

 7   steel tube had been used, all else equal, you would

 8   expect it to have lasted longer in the same conditions?

 9        A.   That's a possibility, yes.  It would have --

10   it probably would have lasted longer.

11        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on next to the same

12   power plant but the September 19th, the Dave Johnson

13   September 19th outage.

14             I, I think it, it would be a fair summary,

15   correct me if I am wrong, of your testimony that the --

16   the company does rely on a metallurgist that's a third

17   party contractor to review some of these failures, and

18   that that third party recommended less explosive use,

19   less -- I guess it's a slower propagation, deslagging

20   explosive or propellant?

21        A.   When a metallurgist gets a section of tube, he

22   dissects that tube, and he reports to us everything he

23   sees, you know, whether it's old damage, new damage,

24   whatever.  His -- his responsibility is to tell us

25   everything that he -- he knows about that tube.
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 1             In this case he noticed that there was some

 2   stress rings, I believe they are called Nelson rings,

 3   for that saying that there had been some previous damage

 4   at some point in time.  Okay.  That could have happened

 5   10 plus years ago.  We don't know.

 6             So what he reported there, because he saw

 7   that, is he said, you should consider using low -- lower

 8   prop -- lower velocity detonation cord.  Okay.  And that

 9   was a -- to inform us that if we hadn't already started

10   doing it, we should consider it.

11             As I said in testimony, we identified that

12   issue back in -- long before that, and we implemented

13   the lowest velocity det. cord that's available on the

14   market in 2011.

15        Q.   And are there -- are there other ways to

16   deslag those outside of using detonation cord?

17        A.   Yes.  But they tend to have more risk towards

18   people.  Using detonation cord tends to be the most

19   effective and safest method for deslagging.

20             I mean, if I go back to 30 years ago when I

21   was doing it, I remember spending an Easter with a large

22   steel rod just hammering away at slag between panels,

23   and it was not a very pleasant time.  Or, you know, you,

24   you have eye injuries.  You have strains and sprains.

25   So detonation cord shakes the whole thing, breaks the
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 1   slag and allows people to get in there without injury.

 2        Q.   Okay.  But it also tends to cause fractures

 3   in -- in brittle materials; is that correct?

 4        A.   Yes.  In this case we are putting people

 5   first.

 6        Q.   Okay.  And prior to 2011, you were using the

 7   more aggressive detonation cord that --

 8        A.   I understand that, yes.  I just know since

 9   2011, we have been using the lowest.  There might have

10   been steps, but I am unfamiliar with exactly what steps

11   they were.

12        Q.   Thank you.  I am going to move on to the

13   Huntington Unit 1 outage.  It's correct that the

14   Huntington Unit 1 outage was the fourth of a similar

15   type of failure that's occurred since 2008; is that

16   correct?

17        A.   Yeah.  We have had four failures over an 11

18   year period.

19        Q.   Okay.  And all of the failures were the result

20   of -- of the same welding failure?

21        A.   It's -- it's of a similar metal weld failure

22   that happens with everything on a dissimilar metal weld

23   over time and temperature.

24        Q.   Okay.  And this has been known in the -- the

25   utility generation industry for quite some time; is that
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 1   correct?

 2        A.   Yes.  And it's managed by most utilities.

 3   It's a judgment call on when to do a bunch of

 4   replacements and when to keep managing through them, and

 5   managing so that you don't have a, what they call the

 6   hockey stick up on failures.

 7        Q.   Okay.  And you have had planned outages where

 8   this could have been repaired as is planned for 2022.

 9   You've had planned outages between 2008 and 2017; is

10   that correct?

11        A.   That's correct.  And maybe to frame that, is,

12   we have a planned outage about every four years.  Okay.

13   And we take it down for about five weeks, and we tear

14   just about everything apart and try to rebuild it and

15   put it back together and then try to run the plant for

16   four years solid.

17             So when you have that five week period, you

18   know, these structures are 15, 20 stories tall, with

19   thousands and thousands of tubes and welds in them.  And

20   you have all the ancillary equipment, so you kind of

21   have to prioritize your work.  Okay.  And for lack of a

22   better term, you triage it, and you focus on the things

23   that are going to cause you the most forced outages and

24   you address those.

25             And this data was not the worst actor we had

0044

 1   in the plant so we focused on other areas that were

 2   going to be more negatively impactful to the forced

 3   outage rate.

 4        Q.   Do you know how long, in addition during any

 5   of your previous planned outages, it would have taken to

 6   remedy this, in a -- as an extension to a prior outage?

 7        A.   You mean to replace it all?

 8        Q.   To perform the same planned replacement as you

 9   intend in 2022.

10        A.   How long it would take?

11        Q.   Yeah.  Would that have added a week --

12        A.   Probably --

13        Q.   -- to your prior outages or longer?

14        A.   Well, if you planned it up front, you build it

15   in there, and it would probably be a couple of million

16   dollars to replace them all, all 600.  And if -- if I

17   knew about it beforehand and planned it and planned the

18   work in there, it probably wouldn't have extended the

19   outage.  Now, if I found out about it in week four of a

20   five week outage, I would have a problem.

21        Q.   So -- so what was it about the fourth outage

22   that was different from the first or second or third

23   outage that caused the company to change or implement a

24   replacement for 2022?

25        A.   It was basically time.  I mean, we -- we -- we
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 1   know that dissimilar metal weld failures are a function

 2   of time and temperature, and as time goes on, you know,

 3   you are taking on more risk of a failure as time goes

 4   on.  So in 2008, I don't believe we felt that there was

 5   enough risk after one failure to do anything.

 6             And then I believe -- I can't remember the

 7   other two, is I want to say in '11 and '15 and then the

 8   last one in '17.  I am not sure those dates are correct.

 9        Q.   Okay.  I don't know the -- the dates of those

10   either.  Let's move on to Jim Bridger No. 2 is next.

11   And is it accurate that this outage at Jim Bridger No.

12   2, January 17th, 2017, was a result of a water coolant

13   line freezing because of a failure in the heat tracing?

14        A.   That's roughly correct.

15        Q.   Do you run the heat tracing all of the time or

16   only during shutdowns?

17        A.   No.  We only run it when there's freezing

18   temperatures though.

19        Q.   Okay.  And I am looking at your response

20   testimony, page 11, beginning at line 244.  You

21   testified that the -- "The company has processes in

22   place to inspect the heat tracing and verify operation.

23   But the process had a void in it that results in this

24   failure" -- resulted, excuse me, "in this failure to not

25   be identified so repair work could be completed"?
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 1        A.   Yes.  So what -- what we do is, in the fall,

 2   before the freezing temperatures, go out, usually start

 3   sometime in August or early September, have people go

 4   out to all the freeze protection panels and all the

 5   circuits, and there is literally hundreds and hundreds

 6   of these.

 7             There's -- there's a lot, especially if you

 8   have an outdoor boiler.  And then they go out and they

 9   actually measure the current in the voltage and record

10   it.  So it's to determine whether something's

11   malfunctioning or not.

12             In this particular case, there was no current,

13   but there was voltage.  So that is how it got missed.

14   Okay.  So as I have said in testimony, we said, when the

15   technician sees that, he is to raise the red flag and do

16   some other things.

17             So we went through the effort to try to,

18   before the freezing temperatures to verify our -- our

19   systems were working.  We just had a procedural problem

20   here where the -- the failure slipped through the

21   cracks, either by the technician not raising it or

22   somebody else not seeing it.

23        Q.   And so ultimately the result was that the

24   testing procedures were carried out but they didn't

25   identify the problem?
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 1        A.   This -- this particular problem, yeah.

 2        Q.   And it's your testimony that that -- that was

 3   the testing procedure was, I guess, a prudent choice by

 4   the company?

 5        A.   Well, we had a -- a testing procedure in

 6   place, and we thought it was complete.  We didn't

 7   recognize this could be a void until it happened to us,

 8   and then we made corrections since we have discovered

 9   that.

10        Q.   Okay.  And -- and as an electrical engineer,

11   do you think a testing procedure that measures a voltage

12   difference at -- at the, I guess the plug-in points of a

13   heat tracing tape that doesn't measure resistance of the

14   tape would be an appropriate way to test whether it's

15   functional?

16        A.   In measuring the resistance?  I am not sure I

17   understood your question.

18        Q.   Measuring -- measuring electricity flow?

19        A.   You mean the current and the voltage?

20        Q.   Yes.

21        A.   That -- that would be very prudent, and that's

22   what we were intending to do.

23        Q.   Okay.  So you were -- that was what the policy

24   was prior to that, or that's what it is now?

25        A.   No.  That's what it was prior, to record the
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 1   current and the voltage.  In this case there was no

 2   current, okay, but there was voltage, and at that point,

 3   nobody raised the flag, the technician or someone said,

 4   this doesn't seem right to me.

 5        Q.   Okay.  So the inspector, whoever was

 6   inspecting, the technician, identified or had an

 7   erroneous reading.  They just didn't identify it as a --

 8   as a problem?

 9        A.   Correct.

10        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on now to the Jim

11   Bridger 3 outage.  And just to refresh recollection,

12   this was the outage that was caused by an electrical

13   failure that was determined to be a cable that was

14   flooded in an underground wire ball; is that correct?

15        A.   That's correct.

16        Q.   Okay.  And the identified cause of this, is it

17   accurate that the cable failed potentially due to damage

18   during the initial time when the wire was pulled?

19        A.   I believe the report said it was age and

20   damage.

21        Q.   Okay.  Do you know how age would have caused

22   that failure?

23        A.   Cable insulation breaks down with age.  I

24   mean, it's a form of a plastic.  I mean, if you took a

25   gallon milk jug and set it outside for a year, then
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 1   tried to pick the handle up, the handle is probably

 2   going to come off in your hand because it degrades from

 3   sunlight and everything else.  Cables, the insulation on

 4   them, they aren't designed to run for a million years.

 5        Q.   So do you have a policy in place then to

 6   replace those at periodic intervals?

 7        A.   No.  I think we replace those as conditions

 8   warrant, when we do some testing and -- or if we have a

 9   problem, that the cost of replacing those would be

10   tremendously large.

11        Q.   And to the extent that a cable is -- is

12   damaged during installation, that's usually the result

13   of a mistake, is it not?

14        A.   I -- I can't necessarily say that.  I mean,

15   this was during an original construction in the early

16   seventies.  So it could have been that there was a rock

17   that got picked up.  I mean, you're -- you're talking

18   about traveling hundreds and hundreds of feet.

19             And what they do is, they have these little

20   concrete vaults in the ground with the conduit going

21   through it.  And then it goes to another concrete vault,

22   and they run the cable through it, through the vault,

23   and they pull it through.  And these cables are like

24   this big around.

25             And they pull -- pulling -- put a pulling

0050

 1   lubricant on it, and they pull it through.  And they are

 2   trying not to pull it so hard that they damage the

 3   insulation.  Okay.  So during the process, if it -- if

 4   it picks up any type of debris or -- or runs on a corner

 5   and gets slight gouged, it can get damaged.

 6             Generally, after a cable is pulled in, a

 7   standard practice is to what they call Hipot them, is

 8   they get the cable in place, and it's not connected up

 9   to anything.  And they put a voltage on it to check the

10   leakage current to make sure it's functional.

11             I am assuming that happened back in the

12   seventies when the plant was built and that it passed at

13   that time, and then it successfully operated for over 40

14   years before the pit got flooded and water actually

15   improved the conduction path.  And the damage and the

16   age probably got to it right there.

17        Q.   Let me ask you a couple quick follow-ups.

18   The -- the purpose of those procedures as they install

19   it with the lubrication and -- and the way that it's fed

20   into the tubing and into the conduit tube, and the

21   conduit itself, in fact, it's -- it's all there to make

22   sure that it's not damaged; is that correct?

23        A.   Generally, yes.

24        Q.   And on a little bit of a different question,

25   with relative to the flooding of those, have you taken
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 1   any steps since then to remedy, to -- to have drains to

 2   keep those vaults from being flooded?

 3        A.   Not to my knowledge.  I believe this was a

 4   gasket failure.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Do you think it would be a prudent

 6   choice to do that in the future, at least to the extent

 7   that a vault is within the drain path of some of the

 8   plumbing?

 9        A.   So let's take this little building where it

10   happened.  It's kind of out in the middle of nowhere.  I

11   mean, there -- there aren't probably any drains to drain

12   it to.  I mean, you might be able to do something by

13   building up the lip of the vault or something else.  I

14   don't know.  I haven't specifically looked at that spot

15   to think about it that way.  I think the best thing to

16   do is prevent the leak to begin with.

17        Q.   Okay.  And the vaults -- the vaults aren't

18   intended to be run under water; is that correct?

19        A.   It's not unusual to find water in them at some

20   point in time, because the ones outside may get

21   precipitation.  I mean, in my career, I have opened up

22   vaults before and they have had three to six inches of

23   water in them.  It's not uncommon.  They are not

24   designed for that, but it's not out of the ordinary.

25        Q.   Okay.  And so in a typical situation, wiring
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 1   that's undamaged is not -- I guess, a circuit to ground

 2   isn't created when water is -- is in those?

 3        A.   No, not always.  It also, again, depends on

 4   the age of the cable, if it's starting to break down.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And finally, I guess we'll

 6   move on to the Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage, which I

 7   believe was March 17th, 2017, and this is the instance

 8   where an incorrect part was delivered by MD&A; is that

 9   correct?

10        A.   That's correct.

11        Q.   How did the company choose to contract with

12   MD&A for this service?

13        A.   It was a competitive bidding process.  I mean,

14   we usually qualify the vendors again, and based on their

15   experience and everything in the industry, and then we

16   go out for a competitive tender based on the scope of

17   work.  In this case it was a turbine overhaul, and then

18   we see the prices and negotiate terms and then take the

19   best value for the customer.

20        Q.   Okay.  I am looking at your response testimony

21   on line 326, and I am going to -- are you -- are you

22   caught up?

23        A.   I'm there.

24        Q.   Okay.  And it says, "MD&A determined that the

25   root cause was that MD&A had recently increased the
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 1   repair shop capacity for work.  However, they had not

 2   yet caught up with fully staffing appropriately."  Did I

 3   read that correctly?

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   And you said that you had -- had -- Rocky

 6   Mountain Power had verified that it was an appropriate

 7   vendor through their process; is that correct?

 8        A.   Yes, and we have experience with them before.

 9        Q.   Okay.  But -- but you didn't know that they

10   had increased their repair shop capacity and not yet

11   caught up on staffing?

12        A.   No.  Maybe a better way to say that is, when

13   you take a turbine apart, you don't necessarily know

14   what's -- needs repaired.  I mean, in our case we go --

15   on certain sections of turbine, we go eight years before

16   we tear them apart.  And when you tear it apart, you

17   find damage, and then you go to repair shops to try to

18   get that damage fixed within the outage frame.

19             And most utilities will schedule outages in

20   the spring and the fall, because that's when power

21   prices are the lowest and replacement power costs for

22   the customer is the cheapest.  Winter and summer, that's

23   when everybody wants their electricity and the market

24   prices are higher.  So you select those times there.

25             And a lot of times, the amount of repair work
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 1   these shops see in those times is kind of like drinking

 2   out of a fire hydrant, and then in the middle of the

 3   summer, it could be next to nothing.  So I mean, it, it

 4   kind of depends on who tore things apart across the

 5   country and what did they find.  So it's very, very hard

 6   to determine.  We just make sure that we are trying to

 7   get a contractor who is capable and competent of doing

 8   the work.

 9        Q.   Okay.  And in this case, they -- they actually

10   installed the wrong part; is that correct?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   It was an impeller from a different generation

13   unit?

14        A.   Yes.  What they did is they sent out the

15   impellers for -- to a third party for nondestructive

16   testing, to see if there was cracks in them that you

17   couldn't see visually, so that if you put it back in

18   there and then it was running, it didn't fly apart at

19   you at some other time.  And when they came back, there

20   was more than one impeller from the contractor, or from

21   the third party testing company, and they got it

22   switched.

23        Q.   Okay.  And so if I -- if I go to your analogy

24   of -- of switching your tires frequently, if you went to

25   the tire repair shop and your -- your car came out and
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 1   it had three different wheels on it, you might ask

 2   questions, wouldn't you, of whether this repair shop is

 3   competent to be doing the work that you hired them to

 4   do?

 5        A.   I would question the ability, but if I had

 6   been doing business with him for 20 years and had very

 7   good success, I would ask him to correct it and ask him

 8   what they were going to do to make sure it didn't

 9   happen.

10        Q.   Okay.  Would you ask -- would you ask them

11   to -- in the -- in the car repair instance, to pay for

12   your taxi to go wherever you needed to go while they

13   repair your car?

14        A.   Probably not.

15        Q.   You wouldn't.  Okay.  And similarly can you

16   not ask MD&A to cover the cost of the energy to cover

17   the outage?

18        A.   We did not ask them to cover the direct cost

19   of the replacement power.

20        Q.   Okay.  And it's accurate, I guess, that you

21   are asking that the customers are going to -- asking

22   customers to pay for that?

23        A.   To some -- yes.  The other way to think about

24   this, if we would try to get contracts that shifted a

25   hundred percent of the risk to contractors, I know we
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 1   would pay a significantly amount more than what we are

 2   paying for contracts now.  And the frequency rate of

 3   failures is extremely small compared to the number of

 4   contracts we do.  So we would be spending a lot more

 5   money for the benefit.

 6        Q.   Thank you.  I have no further questions.

 7   Thank you for your testimony and putting up with my

 8   questions today.  I appreciate it.

 9        A.   No worries.

10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.

11   Mr. Russell?

12             MR. RUSSELL:  Thank you, Chairman LeVar.

13                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

14   BY MR. RUSSELL:

15        Q.   I have a few questions, and I'm going to try

16   to follow Mr. Jetter's format a little bit in that he

17   started asking you some questions more generally about

18   the company when it hires subcontractors or third party

19   contractors.

20             You -- he asked you a question about whether

21   those contracts include replacement power costs in those

22   third party contracts, and you indicated they do not.

23   I'm -- I'm curious about the mechanism.  Is it -- do

24   those contracts typically include a waiver of

25   consequential damages?  Is that -- is that how those
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 1   contracts are set up?

 2        A.   I -- I believe so.  I mean, the -- the

 3   contracts do not specifically say that.

 4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I don't think you are getting

 5   on the microphone.

 6             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.

 7        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  It's difficult because I am

 8   way over here and you have to turn.  I'm sorry.

 9        A.   I don't believe so.  I'd -- I'd have to look

10   at the contract.  But the contracts do not have specific

11   language that say, if -- if an event happens, the

12   contractor will be solely responsible for all

13   replacement power cost incurred by the company.  It

14   doesn't say anything like that.

15        Q.   In -- in, I guess, does -- does it contain a

16   provision that has the inverse?  Does it say that the

17   contractor will not be responsible for certain damages

18   that result if we, the subcontractor, made a mistake?

19        A.   I don't -- I don't recall that.

20        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Part of

21   the -- the job, I guess, of the company, is to -- is to

22   go out and hire subcontractors that you believe are

23   competent, right?

24        A.   That's correct.

25        Q.   And -- and also to hold contractors

0058

 1   responsible if they make a mistake, yes?

 2        A.   Yes.

 3        Q.   And as between the company and the customers,

 4   the company is in the better position to hold those

 5   subcontractors responsible, yes?

 6        A.   Yes, I would agree.

 7        Q.   Okay.  And let's talk a little bit about

 8   relationships with third party operators of power

 9   plants.  We talked about the Craig 2, Craig Unit 2 plant

10   a little bit.  And it's Tri-State Generation that

11   operates that unit, yes?

12        A.   That's correct.

13        Q.   And what -- and maybe we can just talk

14   specifically about that one.  What recourse does Rocky

15   Mountain Power have in a situation where you believe

16   that Tri-State Generation has operated its plant

17   imprudently and it causes impacts on Rocky Mountain

18   Power's customers?

19        A.   I would have to go back and look at the

20   participation agreement.  If they used reasonable

21   utility standards, I don't think we have any recourse.

22   I mean, if it was gross negligence or something to that

23   effect, I believe we might, but I, again, I'd have to go

24   back and look at the participation agreement and ask my

25   attorneys whether they would concur with my opinion or
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 1   not.

 2        Q.   Fair enough.  Do -- do you know whether the

 3   standard that -- that Tri-State Generation owes to its

 4   co-owners is the same as the standard that Rocky

 5   Mountain Power owes to its customers?

 6             MR. MOSCON:  Objection as to the legal

 7   conclusion.  But as far as the understanding of what

 8   they expect of their co-owner, I mean, go ahead and

 9   answer.

10        A.   Well, I guess I am not sure I understand your

11   question.

12        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Yeah.  I -- I guess -- and

13   the context here, of course, is that the company has

14   come to this commission saying, we -- we have acted

15   prudently, and we would like to recover X costs, and --

16   and the commission has to determine whether the company

17   has acted prudently.

18             What I am wondering is, does Tri-State

19   Generation have the same standard to Rocky Mountain

20   Power that Rocky Mountain Power has to its customers?

21   In other words, is it the same prudent standard, or is

22   it some higher standard that -- that Tri-State

23   Generation would have to the company?  Or some lower

24   standard, if you know.

25             I'm -- I'm merely asking whether you know.
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 1        A.   Tri-State has the responsibility to operate

 2   the plant with good utility practice.  Okay.  I mean, I

 3   believe that's the term used, because there's not a

 4   standard quoted or anything to that effect.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk -- I have some

 6   follow-up questions about some of the units that we

 7   walked through that are -- that are outlined in the

 8   Daymark report.  Let's talk about the Craig Unit 2

 9   outage, and this is the one with the -- the plugs that

10   were removed and then put back in.

11             I had -- I had a question, I -- that I guess I

12   don't understand the -- in your testimony you say when

13   those plugs go back in, they are tightened, but torque

14   isn't used.  And I guess I don't understand what that

15   means.  But -- but they are -- they are not just hand

16   tightened, but what -- how are they -- how are they put

17   back in?

18        A.   Okay.  I'll try to figure out the best way to

19   say this.  Okay.  So when you tighten something up, you

20   are putting a bed frame together on a -- for a house, or

21   for your kids.

22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Just interrupt.  Does that

23   microphone move any closer to you?  Does it have enough

24   cable to move to the edge so you can look at him?

25        A.   So you are putting a bed frame together, use a
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 1   crescent wrench or a Boxit wrench, and you just tighten

 2   it down.  And when it's tightened up by what you feel,

 3   you just kind of move on.

 4             Well, in -- in certain pieces of a high

 5   technical equipment like engines and that, they use what

 6   they call a torque wrench.  And it has amount of

 7   tightening to it, and you want to get it tight enough

 8   generally so it like crushes a gasket or has a good seal

 9   so that when the, the bolt heats up, it grows enough so

10   it doesn't create a leak or anything.

11             So when torque value is not required, they

12   didn't ever put a torque wrench on it to do it.  It was

13   left up to the experience of the millwright, the

14   mechanic doing it, to say, it's tight enough and

15   appropriate.

16        Q.   (By Mr. Russell) Okay.  And do you know

17   whether in this particular instance the millwright that

18   was -- that was tightening those bolts, whether anybody

19   checked the work of the person that was doing it?

20        A.   No.

21        Q.   Whether somebody followed behind and said,

22   that bolt's not tight enough or anything?

23        A.   I don't know.

24        Q.   Okay.  Your testimony, your response

25   testimony, indicated -- it gave a description of how
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 1   these bolts -- bolts are removed and, and tightened.

 2   I -- my question is, do you know whether that's how it

 3   was done here?  Or is this -- or was that testimony --

 4   the basis of that testimony simply your experience as to

 5   how those things are done?

 6        A.   I, I didn't witness what they did.  That's the

 7   procedure I have witnessed General Electric do in the

 8   past.

 9        Q.   Okay.  So, so your testimony there

10   described --

11        A.   And that's what the plant operator told us

12   they did too.

13        Q.   Okay.  So you conducted some investigation

14   into this instance --

15        A.   Yeah, I was --

16        Q.   -- and -- and this is what the plant operator

17   informed you was the process that took place.

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Let's move on to the -- Dave

20   Johnson 3 is the next one.  The April 25, Dave Johnson 3

21   outage, and that is the one -- was this a forced outage?

22        A.   Yes, it was.

23        Q.   Okay.  I am not going to be offended if you

24   don't look at me when you answer my questions.

25        A.   Okay.
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 1        Q.   If it's just easier to face the microphone,

 2   that's fine.

 3        A.   All right.

 4        Q.   This was the one where the -- there was

 5   nonconforming material in the boiler tubes, correct?

 6        A.   That was correct.

 7        Q.   Okay.  And I think your testimony indicates

 8   this, but I -- I guess I'll ask.  Is nonconforming

 9   material in the boiler tubes a known cause of a

10   potential outage?

11        A.   Well, nonconforming means it's not exactly

12   what was designed.  Okay.  Giving an example is, let's

13   just say we didn't have that material when the outage

14   occurred and we put a lower grade, okay, nonconforming

15   material in, but that material has a cycle life.  Okay.

16   And if we put it in, we just have to recognize that at

17   some point in time we'll need to address it.

18        Q.   Okay.  And in this instance you don't know why

19   this nonconforming material was installed, correct?

20        A.   No.  It was 20 plus years ago, and we don't

21   have records for that.

22        Q.   Okay.  And in your testimony there is a

23   description.  I can point you to the portion of your

24   testimony.  I think it's around lines 125 and 126.  You

25   describe a period of about 15 years of repairs in which
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 1   you -- you include the -- the statement here is that you

 2   showed that the standard of like kind materials has and

 3   will continue to be used, maximizing plant equipment

 4   life.  Can you tell me what you meant by that?

 5        A.   We have a better tracking system, a

 6   computerized tracking system.  So what we do is if we

 7   had to do something similar to this, we'll log it in

 8   that tracking system, and we'll be able to pull it up

 9   easily like during overhauls and that and address it.

10   So we went back 15 years and said, had we put in

11   nonconforming material in the last 15 years, and the

12   answer is no.

13        Q.   Okay.  So this -- this review only went

14   back -- went back to whether -- whether the company had

15   installed nonconforming materials in the last 15 years?

16        A.   And that's -- the quality of our records

17   degrades significantly after that, because, you know,

18   they were more paper oriented at that time.  So it's

19   harder to do searches.

20        Q.   And when was -- when did the company become

21   aware that this particular tube, or portion of tube that

22   failed, used nonconforming material?

23        A.   After we got the metallurgist report after it

24   failed.

25        Q.   So this wasn't something you were aware of
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 1   beforehand?

 2        A.   No.

 3        Q.   And is that something that one would find on

 4   a -- during an outage, that there is material in here

 5   that isn't the correct spec?

 6        A.   Okay.  So when you weld these tube materials

 7   together, I mean, you will have a piece of pipe, and you

 8   will have one -- one over here and a piece over here and

 9   weld it together.  And after -- let's just say after

10   four or five years, I could lay them on the table there,

11   and you wouldn't be able to tell which material is

12   which.

13             I mean, it will take a metallurgist going

14   under a, you know, basically looking at the materials

15   through radiation, through that, and try to figure out

16   what the material makeup is.  So I can't look at it and

17   tell you whether it's a different material after it's

18   been in service for a while.

19        Q.   And is the -- the -- the type of material

20   used, is that something that could be discovered during

21   an inspection during a planned outage?

22        A.   It would be an extremely difficult task.  I

23   mean, now they make a gun that's got a radioactive

24   source in it.  You could put it up to material, and it

25   gives you a relative chemistry makeup, you know, one and
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 1   a quarter chrome or whatever, so you can kind of figure

 2   that out.

 3             But you basically -- it's telling you that

 4   little spot.  So you would have to do that at every

 5   little piece on every boiler tube throughout the whole

 6   boiler.  I think you would be doing that for many, many

 7   years.

 8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to -- I think

 9   the next one is -- oh, the next one is the September

10   outage of the same year.  So I guess we're at four

11   months -- four months later, different boiler tube,

12   right?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   Okay.  And this one we -- you talked with

15   Mr. Jetter a little bit about explosive, deslagging, and

16   I -- I appreciate that testimony.  I -- I, the only -- I

17   have just a short bit of follow-up.  You indicated that

18   in years past the company used a higher velocity

19   detonation cord than it does now.

20             I'll admit that I have no idea what that

21   means, but it, it sounds as though, based on your

22   testimony, that the company became aware that -- of

23   testing or reports in the industry that using a lower

24   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to the

25   boiler tubes.  Is that correct?

0067

 1        A.   That's correct.

 2        Q.   And when did -- when did that occur?

 3        A.   Pre-2011.  I don't know exactly when.

 4        Q.   Okay.  And why -- why do you say pre-2011?

 5        A.   We implemented a new standard in 2011 at the

 6   DJ plant, so we know -- we know it was before that.

 7   Since 2011, we have been using the lowest velocity det.

 8   cord at the DJ plant that's available on the market.  So

 9   I am sure we made some changes before that.  I just

10   don't know whether they were graduated or whether it was

11   a step change or what it was pre-2011.

12        Q.   Okay.  So sitting here today, you don't know

13   when the company found out that -- or -- or when the

14   reports became available indicating that a lower

15   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to -- to

16   boiler tubes, but you know that in 2011, the company

17   implemented a change to use the lowest velocity

18   detonation cord.  Do I have that right?

19        A.   That's correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  And then let's move on to the Jim

21   Bridger.  I am going to skip the Huntington one.  Let's

22   move to Jim Bridger 2.  This outage was in January of

23   2017, and this is the one that the -- I guess there was

24   water freezing in a water cooled spacer tubing?

25        A.   That's correct.
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 1        Q.   And this was in, I take it, an unplanned

 2   outage for something else.  Yeah?

 3        A.   The bottom ash system, the drag chain, had a

 4   problem, and the plant had to come off for that, so --

 5   excuse me, people could safely work on the repair.  And

 6   during that time, it was very cold out, and the -- the

 7   boiler, that particular section of line froze up.

 8        Q.   Yeah.  I mean, you indicated earlier that the

 9   company typically would -- would plan an outage for the

10   spring and the fall, and here we are in January, so I --

11   I thought maybe there was something else happening.

12             You described with Mr. Jetter a little bit

13   the -- the process that was in place at the time.  What

14   I -- what I don't feel like I have a great grasp of is

15   what changed after the January outage when this problem

16   arose.  What do you do now that you did not do then?

17        A.   If you go to page 11, starting on line 248,

18   "The heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the

19   control electrical technician to write a work order to

20   correct any deficiencies found.  Capital projects have

21   been established to replace the heat tracing in all four

22   Jim Bridger units, and to mitigate the risk of line

23   freezing, plant personnel have evaluated if there's a

24   positive slope in the horizontal sections of the spacer

25   tube lines, where positive slope didn't exist.
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 1   Otherwise, it can self-drain."

 2             So unfortunately, heat tracing has a

 3   propensity to fail over time.  And then "Plant personnel

 4   have modified the boiler shutdown procedures to drain

 5   the boiler when the water temperature reaches 180

 6   degrees, rather than waiting for until blasting and

 7   deslagging efforts are complete."

 8             And that was -- that was done because if

 9   there's water in the tubes, the possibility of damage to

10   the tubes is reduced, because there's water in the tube.

11        Q.   Okay.  I -- I thought I understood your

12   previous testimony in responding to Mr. Jetter's

13   questions to be that the void in the process here was

14   that the technician who had checked that line with a

15   piece of equipment was able to indicate that there was

16   current but no voltage?

17        A.   The opposite way.

18        Q.   Oh, sorry, I --

19        A.   There was voltage but no current.

20        Q.   I thought that might -- I thought I might have

21   written it down backwards.  There's voltage but no

22   current.  And tell me how that led to the problem at

23   issue here.

24        A.   Go to an outlet.  You look at an outlet right

25   now, there's 120 volts on it, but it's not doing any
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 1   work.  When you plug something into it, current flows

 2   and it does work, and it needs the current and the

 3   voltage to do the work.  So if there's no current,

 4   there's no work being done, which means there's no heat

 5   to keep the line from freezing.

 6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  And is

 7   that something that should have been noted by the

 8   technician who -- who registered that there was voltage

 9   but no current?

10        A.   We didn't tell him he had to.  We had told him

11   he had to do this, and we just kind of assumed they

12   would flag it.  I mean, it was -- I don't know what to

13   say is, we -- we made the assumption that his knowledge

14   and experience he would flag that, and for some reason,

15   he did not, and then it slipped through the cracks.

16        Q.   Okay.  And then the first bullet point that

17   you pointed to me here, starting on line 248, "That the

18   heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the

19   control and electrical technician to write a work order

20   to correct any deficiencies found during the PM."

21             Is that -- is that designed to address that

22   specific issue?

23        A.   Yes.  We are creating an expectation that if

24   you find something, you need to write the corrective

25   action for that, not rely on somebody else to do it and
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 1   assume somebody else is going to catch it.

 2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk about Jim

 3   Bridger Unit 3 for a moment.  This is the one where

 4   there was -- had apparently been some damage to the

 5   wiring, and then when the -- when that wiring conduit

 6   flooded, there was a forced outage, correct?

 7        A.   That's correct.

 8        Q.   Does the company know when the -- the damage

 9   to that wiring or the insulation around that wiring

10   occurred?

11        A.   Well, since they are the original cables, it

12   would have been during the construction period of Jim

13   Bridger 3, which is '73, '74-ish, somewhere around

14   there.  I don't -- somewhere around there.

15        Q.   Is that the only time that that damage could

16   have occurred?

17        A.   Yeah.  The cables were never replaced before

18   then.

19        Q.   Okay.  And is there a process in place to go

20   inspect cables that have been in conduit for 40 plus

21   years?

22        A.   There's no really way to do it.  I mean, it's

23   kind of like, there's a vault here, and a hundred yards

24   away, there is another vault.  And I don't know how you

25   inspect the cable all the way.
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 1             What you do is, you can't visually inspect it.

 2   What you do is an electrical test, and you basically put

 3   a voltage on it.  You measure what I would call leakage

 4   current, it's open ended, and it tells you how much --

 5   and these are micro amps, and you -- you measure how

 6   much current is going through just by dissipating it.

 7             As insulation breaks down, more current will

 8   flow, and there's generally accepted standards for

 9   equipment, and occasionally you do that, but not very

10   often.  I mean, but that's usually a test you do right

11   after you pulled in a cable to make sure you haven't

12   damaged it.

13             And I am making the assumption that Black and

14   Veach, when they built the plant, they had that as a

15   standard, and -- and allowed that or tested all cable

16   pulls after they were put in to verify that no damage

17   had occurred to the point where it failed the test.  But

18   I don't have any records to prove that.  That's just

19   general practice in my 37 years.

20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I don't have any further

21   questions.  I appreciate your time today.

22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,

23   Mr. Russell.  About how much time do you think you need

24   for redirect?

25             MR. MOSCON:  Longer than I thought that I
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 1   would.  So...

 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, maybe we should

 3   take a break, and we'll have a full complement here when

 4   we return.  Is breaking until about 12:45 good for

 5   everyone?

 6             MR. MOSCON:  Yeah.

 7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We will be in recess

 8   until 12:45.  Thank you.

 9             (Lunch recess from 11:33 a.m. to 12:44 p.m.)

10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the

11   record, and we're glad to have Commissioner Clark back

12   with us both for today and the next six years.  So we'll

13   move on to --

14             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Sorry.

15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  -- redirect Mr. Ralston.

16             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

17                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

18   BY MR. MOSCON:

19        Q.   Mr. Ralston, before we get into any specifics

20   of any particular outage, I'd like to have you provide

21   some information pertinent to some questions you

22   received from both parties about steps that the company

23   can take, or has taken or could take vis-a-vis its

24   contractors, and are the customers supposed to bear this

25   risk without any protection or -- or what can we do.
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 1             Do you recall being asked the question about

 2   whether your contracts had a -- a specific provision

 3   that would allow the company to recover any net power

 4   costs or excess cost due to outages?  Do you remember

 5   that question?

 6        A.   Yes, I do.

 7        Q.   And your answer was?

 8        A.   That we do not have any provisions that

 9   directly allow to us collect.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   Whatever they are.

12        Q.   So are you familiar with the term, if I use

13   it, liquidated damages?

14        A.   Yes, I am.

15        Q.   Does the company from time to time provide

16   liquidated damages in its contracts?

17        A.   Yes, we negotiate liquidated damages,

18   depending on the scope and the time line of the outage.

19        Q.   Okay.  And is one of the categories that would

20   trigger a liquidated damage scenario when the contractor

21   returns the -- the project back to the company?

22        A.   Yes.  Gen -- generally liquidated damages are

23   either on a -- on a schedule basis.

24        Q.   Okay.  And what does that mean, when you say

25   schedule?  Explain to me how these get negotiated.
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 1        A.   Giving a specific example of DJ4.

 2        Q.   Okay.  DJ4 is, just for everyone's

 3   clarification, that's the plant where MD&A sent back the

 4   wrong piece of equipment, the wrong impeller.  Is that

 5   the outage we are talking about?

 6        A.   That's correct.

 7        Q.   Okay.  So using that as an example, did that

 8   contract have a liquidated damages provision?

 9        A.   Yes, it did.

10        Q.   And what was a triggering event for the

11   liquidated damages?

12        A.   Not returning the unit to the operator, us, at

13   an agreed-upon time in the contract.

14        Q.   Okay.  And so did the company go after its

15   contractor and say, "Hey, we are sorry.  We know you

16   tried, but with this impeller you did not get the

17   project back in time.  Therefore you owe liquidated

18   damages"?

19        A.   Yes.  We collected some liquidated damages

20   because they were late.

21        Q.   Okay.  And who got that money that came in

22   from the liquidated damages?

23        A.   They were credited to the capital project, so

24   the customer did.

25        Q.   Okay.  So the -- and is it your understanding,
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 1   did Daymark in their audit and in their conclusion about

 2   the amount of money that should be denied for the

 3   overage, did they account for the fact that the company

 4   did in fact collect liquidated damages, and it applied

 5   that to lower the cost of the project?

 6        A.   I didn't -- I don't believe it was in their

 7   analysis anywhere.

 8        Q.   Okay.  Now, do all the company's contracts

 9   have liquidated damages?

10        A.   No.  You pay for liquidated damages.

11        Q.   So give us just generally the types of

12   contracts that would or wouldn't.

13        A.   On an overhaul, if it's a critical path on the

14   overhaul to returning it, we would generally put

15   liquidated damages on that, because if they are late, it

16   will delay the overhaul.

17             But if -- if I am Joe contractor and I have a

18   week's worth of work and I start at the beginning of the

19   overhaul, it takes me 10 days, and it doesn't really

20   affect the return time, I am not going to put liquidated

21   damages in.  Because as a contractor, I will see that in

22   there, and I will jack up my price to cover my risk.

23        Q.   Okay.

24        A.   So we do it on ones that will have a material

25   effect, we believe, on us if they are late.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  And that included, for instance, the

 2   Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage?

 3        A.   Yes.

 4        Q.   Okay.  Now, going now more broadly, meaning

 5   not just referring to the Dave Johnson Unit 4 outage,

 6   you indicated from your summary to your answers to the

 7   questions you were asked by various counsel about your

 8   belief that shifting all risks to the contractor was

 9   going to result in exorbitant costs.  Do you remember

10   saying words to this effect?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And I apologize if you said this, but just to

13   get where we are going, have you ever seen, in your

14   years of experience, a contract of the type that you

15   understand Daymark is suggesting the company needs to

16   enter into with its contractors?

17        A.   No, I have not in -- in this -- in my

18   experience, seen anybody who would be willing to sign up

19   for a hundred percent all the risk.

20        Q.   Okay.  Now, my question was about contractors.

21   There's also questions about your -- about Tri-State,

22   who you point out is not a contractor, it's a co-owner.

23   Are you aware of whether or not Tri-State, or if there

24   are participation or operation agreements, is it typical

25   to shift all of the risks to whoever the operator is?

0078

 1        A.   In all the ones I have been involved with,

 2   both the ones that we are the operator and the ones that

 3   we are not the operator, I have never seen one where all

 4   the risk is shifted to the operator.

 5        Q.   And so there are instances, as I understand

 6   it, when the company is in the shoes of -- of Tri-State

 7   where the company is the operator but it has different

 8   co-owners?

 9        A.   Yeah.  We have three plants that that's the

10   case.

11        Q.   And in those plants, has the company allowed

12   those other co-owners to say to the company, "Hey, you

13   are the operator.  If there is some kind of outage, if

14   there is some kind of, you know, risk, you are

15   holding -- that all goes to you"?

16        A.   No, we have not allowed that.

17        Q.   Would the company enter into such a contract?

18        A.   Absolutely not.

19        Q.   Now, as long as we are talking about the

20   contract, there was a question asked at one point about

21   is the standard different, meaning if the company is

22   entering into contracts to have someone else operate

23   this plant, does that expose customers to greater risk?

24   Is the standard different?  Do you remember that --

25        A.   Yeah.
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 1        Q.   -- questioning?  What is your understanding

 2   of -- and again, I know you are not a lawyer, so I don't

 3   mean, you know, the legal terms.  But is your

 4   understanding that there is any kind of shift that makes

 5   customers more at risk either whether, you know,

 6   Tri-State's operating it or the company's operating it?

 7        A.   The standard we have with the commission is

 8   the same standard Tri-State has with us.

 9        Q.   And what is that standard?

10        A.   Reasonable and prudent utility standard.

11        Q.   Okay.  So to be clear, you weren't in your

12   answers trying to imply that somehow customers have a --

13   less protection if Tri-State is operating it compared to

14   the company?

15        A.   No.

16        Q.   Okay.  Now, you were asked a series of

17   questions about how the company does stay engaged if it

18   does have another operator rather than itself.  You

19   recall those questions?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Just to give the commission a sense of how

22   involved the company is, because this is your job

23   duties, when was the last time that you visited one of

24   those such plants, or how often does that happen?  Can

25   you give just a sense of how the company does stay
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 1   engaged?

 2        A.   The -- at -- at my level, we usually discuss

 3   things at least quarterly unless there's something else

 4   going on.  Okay.  And then the E and O level, they have

 5   daily e-mails on status and everything else, but then

 6   they meet, is it five or six times a year?  I can't

 7   remember which the exact number is, for things like

 8   long-term planning, budgeting and everything.

 9             But again, if there is an event going on, they

10   will have a call, or we have sent people to the plant to

11   inspect things for ourselves when they said, here is an

12   event that happened and it's going to cost us X to fix.

13   And then we'll send people down there to lay our own

14   eyes on it and see if we concur.

15        Q.   Okay.  So when was the last time you were at a

16   third party plant?

17        A.   I was at a third party meeting two weeks ago.

18        Q.   Okay.

19        A.   Actually, four of them two weeks ago.

20        Q.   You were asked questions about contractors and

21   why the company is hiring contractors and why isn't the

22   company just doing this itself, and, again, that may not

23   have been that pointed, but questions going towards

24   that.

25             Just to help the commission in making its
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 1   decision, can you explain generally why does the company

 2   hire contractors rather than just having employees to do

 3   all of the jobs that need to happen to maintain the

 4   plant?

 5        A.   So during an overhaul, we will get a whole

 6   bunch of work.  I don't know how else to say it.  We

 7   will work 24 hours a day, seven days a week on that five

 8   week period.  And at any given time, there could be,

 9   depending on the scope of work, 400 to 800 people

10   on-site, okay, that we need.

11             And we don't staff up for that.  We staff up

12   for forced outages and day-to-day maintenance, because

13   we are doing these overhauls once every four years.  I

14   mean, it doesn't make sense to try to staff up to that

15   level.  I mean, give you an example is, relative

16   staffing at the Huntington plant is less than 200 people

17   or around there, and we have had outages where we have

18   had 600 to 700 people on there.

19             We don't need that except for about six, eight

20   weeks out of every four years.  So we are going to hire

21   contractors for labor, and also we're going to hire them

22   for technical expertise.  We don't -- we don't claim to

23   be experts on how to tear a turbine apart and put it

24   back together.  People, the OEMs and other that have

25   that much more experience than we do.
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 1             I mean, and especially as we have stretched

 2   outages out, the frequency that you get that experience

 3   and knowledge gets stretched out too.  So we use

 4   contractors because that's the most cost effective way

 5   to do it for the customer.

 6        Q.   Okay.  I'd like to now go through and just

 7   touch on several of the specific outages that you were

 8   asked questions about, and, of course, the first one

 9   that came up was Craig Unit 2.  And that's the -- again,

10   just to clarify for everyone, that's the unit where

11   there was at some point a plug backed out and there was

12   a leak?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   Okay.  There was a line of questioning about

15   torque.  You noted in your testimony, no one put a

16   specific torque level because that wasn't required.  Do

17   you remember that when you were questioned about that?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Wouldn't it be prudent, or would it cost a lot

20   more to go back and put a torque spec in there.  Do you

21   remember those questions?

22        A.   Yeah.  And that -- that procedure is the

23   General Electric or the OEM's procedure.

24        Q.   Okay.  So that you -- you anticipated my

25   question, which is, is that -- is that something that
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 1   the company comes up with or the actual manufacturer of

 2   the part comes up with?

 3        A.   No, the actual manufacturer or the contractor

 4   doing the work.

 5        Q.   Okay.  So it's not that the company didn't

 6   come along and say, oh, we didn't bother spec'ing.  It

 7   was GE itself that didn't have a spec for torquing it

 8   called out?

 9        A.   Correct.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   Generally when we do contracting work like

12   that, we will scope the -- the -- not how to do the

13   work, but the scope of work we want, you know,

14   disassemble, clean, inspect, repair, that kind of thing.

15   We won't tell them how to necessarily do the work.

16        Q.   Okay.  There was, I think, some implied

17   assumptions that this one bolt that came out just

18   probably wasn't tightened all the way.  Is there -- is

19   that something that we know?  Do we know that the reason

20   that bolt or plug came out is because it wasn't properly

21   tightened?

22        A.   We don't really know.  We're surmising.

23        Q.   Is there anything else that you could think of

24   that could possibly cause that plug to fail?

25        A.   If there's a defect in the plug possibly.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  Do we -- okay.  Let's -- let's switch

 2   now from the Craig unit -- well, actually I want to back

 3   up one more thing.  I had one more thought on the -- the

 4   leak.  If this really was just because it wasn't

 5   tightened, there was a question about, well, did anybody

 6   come behind the tightening and test to see if it was,

 7   you know, tightened up.  And the answer was, no one came

 8   right behind him, but there was a test that was put in

 9   place.

10        A.   Yeah, there was a leak test at 48 pounds of

11   pressure --

12        Q.   Okay.

13        A.   -- for 24 hours to prove that the leakage was

14   acceptable for the machine.

15        Q.   Okay.  And would that -- would, again, I know

16   you didn't go and test it, but would you assume that if

17   there is a plug that simply hasn't been tightened,

18   someone, when they put them all in by hand and then came

19   back with their wrench, if someone didn't tighten one

20   down, would you assume that a -- that such a plug would

21   be able to withstand a 48 pound of pressure test at 24

22   hours without any evidence of leaking?

23        A.   If they didn't tighten it down or if it --

24        Q.   Yeah.  If it wasn't fully tightened, if

25   someone just like hand threaded it in kind of thing?
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 1        A.   It's -- it's possible, but it, it kind of

 2   depends on, you know, is it just sitting in there?  Or

 3   if it was tight or -- I mean, if -- it's possible it

 4   could have, but at the same time, it probably would have

 5   failed the test.

 6        Q.   Okay.  All right.  So let's go to the Dave

 7   Johnston, the first outage which was, this is the

 8   nonconforming tube, okay.  And to clarify, does the

 9   company know when the piece of nonconforming tubing was

10   put in place?

11        A.   No, we do not.

12        Q.   Does the company know why nonconforming

13   material was put in place?

14        A.   No, we do not.

15        Q.   If the commission was going to be judging

16   utility standards based on what the utility knew or

17   should have known at the time conduct occurred, can you

18   think of any reason why it could have been prudent to

19   put a nonconforming piece of material in, you know, 20,

20   30 years ago?

21        A.   As -- as I said is, the two tubes, the one

22   that failed and the one next to it, are just inches

23   apart.  This material was the same as the one putting in

24   the nonconforming material.  If the nonconforming

25   material was not available and wasn't going to be
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 1   available for several days or a week or whatever,

 2   because they are so close, I would have made the

 3   judgment call to put it in to get the unit back to

 4   service.

 5        Q.   Okay.  And just so we're clear, if -- whether

 6   it's 20 years later or even two weeks later, if someone

 7   were to look at these two tubes, can you visually see,

 8   hey, that's not the same kind of tubing; that's

 9   obviously nonconforming material?

10        A.   No.  You -- you -- visually you wouldn't be

11   able to tell the difference.

12        Q.   All right.  Let's move on to the September

13   Dave Johnson's outage.  This is the one with the

14   detonation cord, the tubing that may have -- again, I'll

15   say it may have been damaged by blasting, just so we're

16   talking about the same outage.  Okay.  You covered this

17   a little bit, but again, very briefly, first of all, why

18   is the company deslagging boilers?  What is happening?

19        A.   When you have a failure on a tube and you go

20   in to repair it, a lot of times there will be slag

21   hanging in big chunks.  If they are large enough, I

22   effectually call them '64 Buicks, and you don't want

23   people working underneath them.

24        Q.   Okay.

25        A.   Because if they come down and fall, it could
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 1   kill them.

 2        Q.   Okay.

 3        A.   So we go in and deslag it to make the area

 4   safe to do the repairs.

 5        Q.   Okay.  And so it's deslagged for safety

 6   reasons.  Is that --

 7        A.   There -- there are some operational advantages

 8   in that, but generally, if it's related to a tube leak,

 9   it's because we want to clean the area so it's safe.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   And then if we have them in, we may do some

12   other blasting for performance reasons, like if an area

13   is starting to plug off.

14        Q.   Okay.  And the alternative to explosions is

15   manual, and how did that happen?  I think you talked

16   about you could do it manually.  How -- how would that

17   work if you were manually deslagging?

18        A.   Sledge hammers, picks.  You know, you just hit

19   the stuff.  You just beat on it.

20        Q.   And just why is that more dangerous to

21   workers?

22        A.   Well, you take the chance of it ricocheting

23   off and get in your eye, or you are in awkward positions

24   because, you know, you are standing on little platforms

25   about this big in between panels.  It is just putting
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 1   people at risk.

 2        Q.   Okay.  So one of the assumptions that's

 3   made -- well, I guess, IEC says there is a

 4   recommendation that you switch to the load detonation

 5   cord, right?

 6        A.   Yes.  And as I said, I believe that was, if we

 7   haven't already done it, they were flagging it saying,

 8   they are seeing stress damage in these tubes that are

 9   original equipment.

10        Q.   And that happened eight -- eight years ago.

11   Is that what you said?

12        A.   When we switched?

13        Q.   When you switched?

14        A.   2011.

15        Q.   Okay.  So seven, six years ago from the

16   incidents in question.  So can you surmise anything

17   about, based on the fact that this tubing still was

18   operational for at least five, six years, vis-a-vis how

19   much damage that blasting did or didn't contribute to

20   the leak?

21        A.   Well, I can't tell when the damage was done,

22   whether it was 10 years ago or 20 years ago.  It's just

23   residual damage in the tube.

24        Q.   Okay.  The point is, I guess, you would agree

25   that it's not like the blasting damaged the tube so it
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 1   failed two weeks later, right?

 2        A.   No.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4        A.   Again, there's two elements on this -- this

 5   outage.  You have the embrittlement, which happens when

 6   you are operating at temperatures over 700 degrees, and

 7   it's kind of like, you seen a tire that's weather

 8   checked.  And you can tell the tire is kind of worn out

 9   because you can see all the weather checking on the side

10   of the tire, and you can tell it's on its last days.

11             Okay.  You have to have that and the blasting

12   damage for it to really come up.  If you put this on a

13   brand-new tube, it probably would never show up.

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   As a failure.

16        Q.   Let's switch to the Huntington 1 outage.  This

17   is the one where there was like the welds and there

18   was -- there was a question about, well, wait a minute.

19   Isn't this the fourth time in 11 years?  Do you recall

20   that line of questioning?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   So have you calculated that?  What is the

23   failure rate of these welds that are at issue?

24        A.   Well, less than 1 percent.

25        Q.   Okay.
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 1        A.   4 over 605 I believe it is.

 2        Q.   And did I hear you testify that there were 600

 3   of these welds in just in this plant?

 4        A.   No, in this section.

 5        Q.   So there's even -- there's far more than that

 6   in a plant?

 7        A.   There -- there can be other places where there

 8   are other dissimilar metal welds.

 9        Q.   Okay.  And you testified that -- someone asked

10   you how much it would cost if you were to go in and do

11   those welds, and you had a number which was?

12        A.   I am estimating if you had to replace all 600

13   and some, it would be close to $2 million.

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   Ish.

16        Q.   And so one of the things I want to get to is

17   kind of how you plan these planned outages, but I guess

18   what I am wanting to understand is, if you have a less

19   than 1 percent failure rate and yet $2 million plus

20   repair bill, the implication has been made to this

21   commission, hey, you should have fixed this.  You have

22   had a chance to fix it, why didn't you fix it sooner?

23             And so I am wondering if you can explain why

24   that didn't come up in any planning for that at this

25   plant previously.
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 1        A.   Well, the -- the failure rate -- we -- we knew

 2   the mechanism was there, and we were monitoring it.  But

 3   with that failure rate and the cost to replace

 4   everything, it, it wouldn't pencil out as a prudent

 5   expenditure, because the risk over here was smaller than

 6   the capital expenditure of 2 million plus dollars.

 7        Q.   Okay.  So what -- just so they under --

 8   because we have talked about this so much today, can you

 9   at a high level explain to the commission, what does go

10   into planning for an outage?

11        A.   Well, we usually spend at least a year working

12   on it.  I mean, actually the -- the next outage starts

13   six weeks after the last one begin -- or ended.  We --

14   we get all the inspection reports that we have.  We

15   document them, and we create a scope of work that we

16   know we have to do next time.

17             But then in between that, other data we get,

18   based on analysis and that, will develop that scope of

19   work.  And we'll develop the scope of work, and then

20   we'll start figuring out who is going to do what and

21   what we're going to contract out.  We will go out for

22   competitive bidding, and we'll negotiate contracts.

23   We'll award those.  We'll schedule things.

24             The week before the outage is always very

25   entertaining, because you will have hundreds of people
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 1   showing up, and you will get them through security and

 2   train them on safety protocols for our plant and then

 3   get them set up for work.

 4             People will bring in contractor trailers, and

 5   it's -- it's kind of like you are building a little

 6   city.  And then you take the unit off, and everybody

 7   kind of goes to work.  And then daily -- and you have

 8   the schedule set up and now they have nice scheduling

 9   tools.

10             The one we tend to use is called Primavera,

11   and you put all the tasks in there, and you link them

12   all together so that if one task takes longer, you can

13   see the effect and you can try to figure out a way

14   around it.

15             And you have at least daily meetings to talk

16   about schedule update, safety, a number of other things.

17   And you -- you -- when you tear stuff apart, you find

18   out the condition of it, and sometimes it's worse than

19   you like it to be, and sometimes it's better than you

20   like it to be.  Unfortunately, most of the time it's the

21   opposite.

22             So and then you try to figure out how to get

23   work done on the equipment that you find that needs to

24   be repaired that you aren't expecting to repair.

25             And then you basically put it all back
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 1   together, and you commission it and you start it up, and

 2   we do all that in about five weeks.  So and then we run

 3   it basically continuously except for forced outages for

 4   four years.

 5        Q.   Mr. Ralston, I'd like to now turn your

 6   attention to the Jim Bridger Unit 3.  This is the cable

 7   pull that was that outage that -- so we are all thinking

 8   about the same thing.

 9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   This is probably implied in some answers you

11   gave, but I don't think anyone ever asked you directly,

12   so I will ask it now.  Is this cable that's being pulled

13   through, is this something that is visible you can look

14   at and see, hey, that's been damaged?

15        A.   No.  There's only little sections that are

16   exposed, and that would be in the manholes, you know,

17   and they are six-by-six.

18        Q.   Okay.

19        A.   Four-by-four or something like that, and the

20   rest of it is buried in a conduit.  Kind of be like

21   saying, go inspect your gas line from your gas meter out

22   to the street.  I mean, it's buried.  You can't see it.

23   So you do a pressure test or something else on the gas

24   line.  In this case when the cable's pulled in, they do

25   an electrical test on it generally.
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 1        Q.   Now, when you said it's six-by-six, is that

 2   six feet by six feet or six --

 3        A.   Six feet by six feet.  It's a little vault.

 4        Q.   Okay.  When -- I guess the point I want to get

 5   to is, prior to the event in question, had this cable

 6   ever functionally, operationally or visibly given the --

 7   the company notice that it -- there was a problem?  Did

 8   it ever not perform?

 9        A.   No.

10        Q.   Okay.  And so I guess I just want to remove

11   any thought the commission would have of whether the

12   company goes, oh, yeah, we know we have got some damaged

13   cable but we just don't want to bother repairing it?

14        A.   No, we didn't know it was damaged until we

15   pulled it out of the hole.

16        Q.   All right.  Okay.  I think that covers it.

17   Thank you.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Moscon.

19   Mr. Jetter, any recross?

20             MR. JETTER:  I do have some recross.

21                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION

22   BY MR. JETTER:

23        Q.   Good afternoon.

24        A.   Sure.

25        Q.   I asked someone to make an exhibit that I am
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 1   still waiting on.  There's a little bit of new testimony

 2   here that I think that needs to be addressed.  So I am

 3   going to skip around just a little bit until we get

 4   that.

 5             Just to address the -- the question of the --

 6   the plug that was installed and had fallen out on the --

 7   on the generation facility, I can't recall which one?

 8        A.   Craig 2.

 9        Q.   Craig 2.  It's -- it's correct that those were

10   removed so that a sealing compound could be pumped

11   through the hole; is that correct?

12        A.   That's correct.

13        Q.   Is that sealing compound important to seal

14   gaps such as a potentially not fully tightened plug?

15        A.   It would have the same effect, yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  And so a not fully tightened plug, you

17   would probably expect if that sealing compound were

18   working correctly, would seal that hole?

19        A.   That's potentially depending on how tight the

20   plug was.

21        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

22             MR. JETTER:  May I approach the witness and

23   hand out an exhibit?

24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Yes.

25             MR. JETTER:  I'd like to note that this, I
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 1   believe, is a designated confidential exhibit.  I don't

 2   know if we need to go -- we probably should go into a

 3   confidential session if we're going to discuss this.

 4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Are you making that

 5   motion?

 6             MR. JETTER:  I'll -- I'll make the motion.

 7   It's -- it's a little bit of a tricky position because

 8   it's not my claimed confidentiality.

 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, sure.

10             MR. JETTER:  But I think it's appropriate, so

11   I'll make the motion.

12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is there any objection

13   from any party to closing the hearing to the public

14   while we're discussing this?  I am not seeing any

15   objection, so let me just -- we need to -- we have to

16   make a finding, and I'll just see if there's any

17   objection from -- okay.

18             Pursuant to Utah Code Section 54-3-21, we find

19   that it is in the interest of the public to close the

20   hearing while we are discussing this exhibit.  I'll ask

21   those that are in the room to just look at those that

22   are in the audience.  I don't know if we have anyone in

23   the audience today who is not privileged, not entitled

24   to access to this material.  If anyone sees anyone who

25   isn't, please indicate to me.  I recognize most of the

0097

 1   people in the room, one or two that I don't, but it

 2   looks like we're in good shape.

 3             I will -- while we're in confidential, I will

 4   turn off both the microphone speakers and the hearing

 5   loop system.  If anyone is relying on the hearing loop

 6   system to hear, I am -- I'm going to have it turned off

 7   while -- while we do this -- and yeah, I mean, because

 8   it's accessible into the hallway.  So it might be a

 9   little bit harder for you to hear.  If you have any

10   difficulty hearing just let the witness know, and we'll

11   do that.

12             (The following portion was marked confidential

13   and was heard in closed session:)

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *
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 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4                             * * *

 5                             * * *

 6                             * * *

 7                             * * *

 8                             * * *

 9                             * * *

10                             * * *

11                             * * *

12                             * * *

13                             * * *

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *
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 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4                             * * *

 5                             * * *

 6                             * * *

 7                             * * *

 8                             * * *

 9                             * * *

10                             * * *

11                             * * *

12                             * * *

13                             * * *

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *

0100

 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4                             * * *

 5                             * * *

 6                             * * *

 7                             * * *

 8                             * * *

 9                             * * *

10                             * * *

11                             * * *

12                             * * *

13                             * * *

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *

0101

 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4                             * * *

 5                             * * *

 6                             * * *

 7                             * * *

 8                             * * *

 9                             * * *

10                             * * *

11                             * * *

12                             * * *

13                             * * *

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *
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 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4                             * * *

 5                             * * *

 6                             * * *

 7                             * * *

 8                             * * *

 9                             * * *

10                             * * *

11                             * * *

12                             * * *

13                             * * *

14                             * * *

15                             * * *

16                             * * *

17                             * * *

18                             * * *

19                             * * *

20                             * * *

21                             * * *

22                             * * *

23                             * * *

24                             * * *

25                             * * *
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 1                             * * *

 2                             * * *

 3                             * * *

 4             (The confidential portion ended, and the

 5   public hearing proceeded as follows:)

 6        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  And this is a nonconfidential

 7   question, so I am not asking you for the -- the value of

 8   this, but in response to what we were discussing

 9   earlier, the liquidated damages, did the liquidated

10   damages recovered by the company under that contract,

11   were they equal to, greater or lesser than the value of

12   the replacement energy?

13        A.   Lesser.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

15             MR. JETTER:  I have no further questions.

16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Russell, any

17   recross?

18             MR. RUSSELL:  Yeah.  Just a couple of

19   questions.

20                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION

21   BY MR. RUSSELL:

22        Q.   Mr. Ralston, you were asked some questions

23   generally about the company's efforts to mitigate costs

24   to customers in the event that, whether the company or a

25   contractor makes an error somewhere along the way.  And
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 1   we've -- we've have discussed that in -- in the context

 2   of contractual provisions, I guess, you know, has -- has

 3   the company ever pursued obtaining an insurance policy

 4   against these sorts of -- of potential damages?

 5        A.   I haven't been directly involved with that,

 6   but I understand it's expensive.  I -- I haven't got any

 7   benchmark or say how expensive it is.  I just know

 8   that -- I have been told by when we have asked

 9   contractors to do it that it's very pricey.

10        Q.   When you have asked contractors to obtain a

11   insurance policy --

12        A.   Well, like --

13        Q.   -- like a rider to their contract or

14   something?

15        A.   When -- when we have negotiated that, we just

16   kind of go, why don't you get an insurance policy for

17   that if they are so worried about it.  And they go back

18   and look at it and said, no, we're not interested.  It's

19   too expensive.  So again, we have used it as more of a

20   negotiating tool.

21        Q.   Okay.  But other than -- other than

22   negotiating with contractors, the company itself hasn't

23   tried to insure itself against --

24        A.   Not to my knowledge.

25        Q.   Okay.  And then you were asked a question
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 1   about the Dave Johnson 3 outage -- we're talking about

 2   the nonconforming materials -- by Mr. Moscon.  I, I --

 3   you had indicated that there -- there may be some

 4   reasons why you might install the nonconforming material

 5   at the time, if that's -- that's the material that you

 6   have and if the conforming material wasn't available.

 7   Do you recall that?

 8        A.   Yes.

 9        Q.   In the event that you -- that you installed

10   nonconforming materials for whatever reason, wouldn't

11   you then make sure to make a note of it so that the

12   company in later years would know that there's

13   nonconforming material in there, knowing that it will be

14   difficult to ascertain just by looking at it later on?

15        A.   Generally, we would do that.  Again, if this

16   was 30 years ago, it was a completely papered system.

17   And when you go through a merger or two, and then you

18   adopt another system, I don't know what happened to

19   those records.

20        Q.   Yeah.  But just, if -- if you -- if you were

21   to do that now, I guess is where I am --

22        A.   We, we would have a note in our database, and

23   we would be able to call that up, planning for the next

24   outage, and -- and identify all the nonconformances, and

25   they would be added to the work load.
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 1        Q.   So if you knew from the previous outage you

 2   had installed some sort of the nonconforming material,

 3   and you -- you were -- you were able to plan for it

 4   going forward, you might make the decision to replace

 5   that nonconforming material with conforming material if

 6   that conforming material is available during the next

 7   outage?

 8        A.   Yes.

 9        Q.   Okay.

10        A.   And when I say outage, I mean planned

11   overhaul.

12        Q.   Understood.  Understood.  Thank you.

13             MR. RUSSELL:  And that's all I have.  Thanks.

14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think we

15   had discussed rerecross.

16             MR. MOSCON:  Sure.  And I -- and I guess I can

17   just be very short.  Mr. --

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Do we need to go into

19   confidential, closed hearing for this?

20             MR. MOSCON:  No.  I think we can just do it

21   this way.

22                  FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION

23   BY MR. MOSCON:

24        Q.   Mr. Ralston, you were shown a confidential

25   attachment, DPU 1.6-1, and there was some question about
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 1   why some -- you know, liquidated damages weren't

 2   reported pertaining to the MD&A situation at Naughton

 3   Unit 2?

 4             So again, just so we're clear, what was your

 5   understanding as to why the one doesn't answer the

 6   other's question?

 7        A.   6.1 is for forced outages, and I understood

 8   6.2 was for planned outages.  And the question was on --

 9   on reimbursements from forced outages, and we didn't

10   have any unforced outages.

11             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  Thank you.  No

12   further follow-up.

13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think I

14   am going to ask a few questions, and then I think my

15   colleagues have some more.  It might take me a moment to

16   make notes, I want to make sure I don't just ask things

17   that have already been asked and answered.

18                          EXAMINATION

19   BY CHAIRMAN LEVAR:

20        Q.   For the Craig 2 outage, we have had a lot of

21   discussion today about this plug, and the pressure test

22   that was performed.  I think the only question I had

23   left that hasn't been answered is, as an engineer you

24   discussed the pressure test that was performed and --

25   and the -- the -- the pressure it was performed at.  As
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 1   an engineer, is it physically possible to conduct a

 2   vibration test for this plug?

 3        A.   No.

 4        Q.   Is -- is that -- is that just an

 5   impossibility?

 6        A.   No, you wouldn't be able to do that.

 7        Q.   Okay.  It seems like what -- it seems like

 8   you'd have to -- I -- I started thinking through what

 9   might be necessary.  That's -- that's what it seemed to

10   me.

11        A.   Yeah.  I don't know how you would shake --

12   shake the thing.

13        Q.   So is there -- is there any way to test for

14   vibrations, impacts other than starting the plant back

15   up?

16        A.   Not to my knowledge.

17        Q.   Okay.  And then to clarify, you -- you don't

18   know for a fact that it was vibrations that caused this

19   plug to come out, but that's one of your --

20        A.   No, it's a reasonable deduction.

21        Q.   Okay.  The Dave Jonnson Unit 3 April 2017

22   outage.

23        A.   Yeah.

24        Q.   Not the -- the dis -- not dissimilar, the

25   nonconforming tubing that was installed, do you have any
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 1   reason not to -- not to presume that the tube was also

 2   nonconforming when it was installed some 20 plus years

 3   ago?  It was nonconforming at the time of installation;

 4   is that correct?

 5        A.   Yes.  Because of the material it was made out

 6   of.

 7        Q.   Okay.  And is it your presumption that it

 8   would have been documented at the time, but that

 9   document -- the, the reason for the installation of the

10   nonconforming tube would have been documented, but

11   there's not a way to find that documentation any more?

12        A.   In -- in my experience, from 30 plus years

13   ago, we would have documented it somehow.

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   And -- and flagged it.

16        Q.   Okay.

17        A.   Now, again, it would have been a paper system,

18   and it could have been in somebody's file or, you know,

19   there -- there was -- the technology has taken us a long

20   way on being able to manage maintenance.  I mean, just

21   look at your car from the 1960s to today.

22        Q.   So would you say it was probably an indexing

23   problem, a document management issue of why we don't

24   have access to that -- to that documentation any more?

25        A.   That's my best guess.  I really don't know.

0110

 1        Q.   Okay.

 2        A.   So I mean, you don't know what was actually

 3   done at that time, whether the records were there or --

 4   and whether it got discarded or missed or what.

 5        Q.   Okay.

 6        A.   You don't really know.

 7        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

 8        A.   Because it was all a paper system.

 9        Q.   Okay.  I think that's almost all of my

10   questions.  Oh, okay.  The Jim Bridger Unit 2 outage,

11   and you may have already answered this, when you

12   discussed, I -- I think you discussed during the

13   preventive maintenance that an inspector discovered

14   there was voltage but no current.  Am I -- am I --

15        A.   That's correct.

16        Q.   That is what you said before?  So how --

17   and -- and you indicated that that inspector did not

18   flag the issue properly, but how -- so how do we know

19   that the inspector discovered that?

20        A.   Well, he wrote on the PM form.

21        Q.   Okay.  Wrote it on a form?

22        A.   He wrote it on the form that there was a

23   voltage, or he had a 208 voltage and zero current.

24        Q.   Okay.  So it was written -- it was noted but

25   not flagged?
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 1        A.   Yes.

 2        Q.   And I -- I think you already answered this.

 3   This inspector was -- was a contractor?

 4        A.   No, he was one of our employees.

 5        Q.   Pacific Power employee.  Okay.

 6        A.   He was our -- we call them CET, control

 7   electrical tech.

 8        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I think I understand all the

 9   rest of the testimony on that.  Let's see.  No.  Okay.

10   For Dave Johnson Unit 4, when you hired -- hired MD&A as

11   the contractor, you had indicated that you have used

12   them a lot, right?

13        A.   Yeah.  We have used them several times, and I

14   have a -- I have done business with them for well over

15   20 years.

16        Q.   What kind of mandatory minimum qualifications

17   do you -- do you establish?  Does -- does -- does your

18   history of working with them generally satisfy any --

19   any mandatory minimum qualifications?

20        A.   No.  It's also their work experience.  You

21   know, we have never done business with them, but they

22   have been out in the business for 15 years and done 50

23   jobs.  And we will call, ask for references and talk to

24   people, and how well did they work?  What was their

25   safety record?  You know, were they competent?  That
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 1   kind of thing.  That's how we usually qualify a newer

 2   contractor that we don't have a lot of experience with.

 3        Q.   Okay.  With this particular job, with their

 4   work on this control rotor main oil pump impeller, I

 5   think I am saying that right, did they miss any

 6   deadlines or any miss any delivery dates prior to the

 7   discovery of this incorrect part installation?

 8        A.   Well, the -- the real delivery date is, we

 9   call it gear time, when it's put back together and the

10   oil flush is done and everything else, and it's turned

11   over to operations to restart the plant.  There's kind

12   of really only one -- there is -- there is two dates,

13   oil flush, but the real date is when you turn it over to

14   operations, because that's the only thing that really

15   matters.

16        Q.   Okay.  And was that deadline satisfied and

17   then the -- and then improper installation was

18   discovered?

19        A.   No, no, no.

20        Q.   This was prior -- this was prior to that?

21        A.   Yeah, they -- they -- they missed that

22   deadline because of the rotor.

23        Q.   Because of the discovery?

24        A.   Yeah.

25        Q.   Okay.  And they -- they discovered the part
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 1   prior to that deadline?

 2        A.   Yeah.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4        A.   So yeah.  When it came back on-site, when we

 5   were doing a reinspection between ourselves and MD&A

 6   on-site people, it was discovered that it was the wrong

 7   impeller at that time, before it was ever installed in

 8   the machine.

 9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think that's all of

10   my questions.  Thank you.  Commissioner White?

11                          EXAMINATION

12   BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:

13        Q.   Good afternoon.  The first question, just

14   harking -- and this -- this may be potentially a

15   question better addressed by Mr. Wilding.  But I just

16   want to clarify the liquidated damages issue, and I am

17   going to avoid any confidential information if possible

18   here.

19             But I thought I heard, whether it was you

20   testifying or Mr. Moscon clarifying, the battle,

21   typically those liquidated damages are somehow, goes to

22   the customers benefit.  Is that -- is that -- does that

23   go to the net power cost equation?  Does that offset an

24   expense of some respect?  I am just trying to understand

25   was the capital in --
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 1        A.   It reduces the capital amount of the project

 2   that's capitalized and goes into rates.

 3        Q.   Okay.

 4        A.   I think Mr. Wilding would be much better to

 5   explain all the accounting practices on that.

 6        Q.   Yeah.  We -- I -- I -- I hate to do this

 7   because I am not clear if this is an issue that actually

 8   reduces rate base or if it's actually part of the EBA.

 9   I am just wondering if it's outside.  Is he still sworn

10   in, or is that possible to have him answer from the --

11             MR. MOSCON:  Whatever is pleasing to the

12   commission, we're happy to do.

13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Do you want to wait

14   until we're finished with Mr. Ralston, or do you want to

15   do that right now?  It's up to you.

16             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Why don't -- why don't we

17   wait -- we'll just -- we'll -- you can doodle on it for

18   a minute.

19             This is more of a general question.  So I have

20   heard you mention, and I -- I -- I don't know if this is

21   a term or art or not, but, you know, this reasonable

22   prudent utility standard, and -- and so if we're looking

23   at actions of the company in comparison to that time

24   decisions were made, what -- what does mean?

25             Are we to look at -- is there like a general
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 1   code, like the NESC?  Is there -- is this a, you know, a

 2   manual that's provided specific to whatever component

 3   you're dealing with?  Or what -- what should we actually

 4   be looking at, I guess, in terms of that standard?  How

 5   should we be comparing the actions of the company.

 6        A.   Part of the reason that kind of phrase is in

 7   there is because there is really no, what I would call

 8   written guide book, and you hand it to somebody and say,

 9   here is what reasonable prudent utility standard is.

10   It's kind of what has developed in the industry, and you

11   would be compared to other utilities and the other

12   metrics and that.  So it's kind of like benchmarking for

13   lack of better term.  Okay.

14        Q.   So -- so is there -- is there nothing -- I

15   mean, when -- when you are describing the company's

16   practices, it's based upon your experiences, you know,

17   in the industry of 37 years.  There is nothing you can

18   say, well, this is as documented by, you know, Evista in

19   their planned outage of, you know, 1994, or this is how

20   southern company -- there's -- there's nothing like

21   that.

22             It's just your experience as a plant operator

23   doing overhauls, et cetera, that's -- that's -- I guess,

24   I am just trying to figure out how do we explore that in

25   terms of like -- we're not -- I am not an engineer or a
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 1   plant operator, certainly haven't been doing it for 37

 2   years, so I am just wondering what -- how do we test

 3   that I guess?

 4        A.   It's a good question.  On -- on outage data on

 5   that, if -- take Evista, for example.  I don't have any

 6   transparency or access to their data or anything else.

 7   The only access I have data to is for plants we own.  I

 8   mean, if you look at the NERC gas data, it's pretty

 9   generic, okay.  I mean, from a -- from a public view.

10             A lot of utilities will share data.  Like at

11   our partner plants, we will share information between us

12   and the Tri-State people, through us, Excel people that

13   operate the Hayden plant through us, and -- and the APS

14   people that operate the Cholla plant.  So we -- we tend

15   to share information and best practices.  It's not

16   necessarily a formalized document.

17             Okay.  A lot of the information sharing is bad

18   things that happen to us, and -- and we share it so that

19   it doesn't have to happen to anybody else.  And --

20   and -- and for us, our SDR process are significant

21   events.  The whole purpose was that if something happens

22   at a plant site that it's shared with the other plant

23   sites so we don't have to live through that again if at

24   all possible.  So that -- there isn't a real structured

25   way to do it.
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 1        Q.   Let me ask you this.  It sounds like when you

 2   are -- when you are doing plant outages, you attempt to

 3   schedule those the most economic times; in other words,

 4   when power costs are lowest, because you are going to

 5   have to replace power.

 6             Do you have any sense of what the typical

 7   replacement costs are for a four to six week average

 8   plant outage?

 9        A.   No.  Mike might have a better idea on it.

10   What -- what we do, just so you understand is, we kind

11   of come up with the scope of the time we need and then

12   we kind of say, we need it in this year.

13             And then we go to our -- our trading people,

14   who have the best knowledge of -- of when prices are

15   going to be what.  You know, they forecast them, and

16   say, just tell us when we can have it so that we have

17   that information a year or two out, so we can plan

18   around it and develop contracts and everything else.

19             So generally, from what I have seen, is April,

20   May tends to be the lowest.

21        Q.   Let me ask you about this concept that you

22   testified to earlier in terms of like, you know,

23   essentially when you are contracting with a counter

24   party, there is always going to be risk -- risk

25   shifting, and somebody is going to pay for it depending
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 1   on where that goes on the site, you know, the contract.

 2             And, and I also kind of heard you testify that

 3   there is no counter party who will ever -- at least

 4   there is not a cost high enough to actually -- to -- to

 5   where the risk of replacement power costs are unknown.

 6   When you are talking about paying for risks, are there

 7   certain components of a plant or certain processes

 8   that -- that will drive the allocation of risk one way

 9   or another?

10             In other words, is it something like where if

11   it's a -- you know, you are doing something on the

12   outside of the plant that's, you know, very low

13   probability of a -- of an outage, you're -- you're for

14   sure not to going to pay for risk, but for something

15   like you're doing a very highly technical component of a

16   overhaul, that you are going to be willing to pay for

17   the counter party to -- to own that risk?  Does it

18   depend?

19        A.   It depends.  It depends on the scope of work.

20   For example, like on a turbine, I mean, when you put

21   those back together, it usually takes a couple of weeks

22   to reassemble them.  So you really want to make sure

23   they are done right.  Okay.  So you tend to try to put

24   more onus on the op -- or on the contractor to do it

25   right, because the consequences of them not doing right
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 1   tends to be a bigger deal.  Whereas, if it's something

 2   that can be fixed in 30 minutes, that has a completely

 3   different consequence.

 4        Q.   Okay.  Let me -- let me go through these.

 5   I'll -- I'll try to be consistent with the order that

 6   it's been addressed today.  On -- on the -- on the Craig

 7   Unit 2, I think you testified earlier that GE did -- did

 8   not have a spec in terms of, I guess, the -- the torque.

 9   Do they now?

10        A.   I don't know that.

11        Q.   You don't know.  Has the company independently

12   adopted a standard beyond that?

13        A.   No.  We -- we don't do that work.

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   We are just not staffed up to do that.

16        Q.   And I think you -- I think you answered this

17   from Chair Levar's question, this -- this -- there's no

18   way of knowing from your perspective whether this was

19   a -- a -- a issue of -- of the torque or lack thereof,

20   or it could have been something different beyond that?

21        A.   No.  If I would have walked up to it, I doubt

22   if I had been able to even tell any difference between

23   any of the plugs.

24        Q.   On the -- on the DJ 3 outage with the -- I

25   don't know if we're calling it the dissimilar or

0120

 1   nonconforming?

 2        A.   The nonconforming.

 3        Q.   Nonconforming welds.  Is there any way of

 4   knowing whether or not there was a different standard at

 5   the time?  In other words, what was the spec?  Were you

 6   aware of a spec, and was this consistent with the spec

 7   the way it was performed?

 8        A.   I'm -- I'm not aware of it.  General practice

 9   has always been like kind replacement.

10        Q.   Does -- does the company keep records of the

11   original specs for a plant and --

12        A.   Yeah.  We have -- we have design drawings that

13   say, here is what the material is and that.  And that's

14   when we put it in our database so we know what to look

15   for.

16        Q.   And was -- was this consistent with the spec,

17   the original spec for the way the plant was built?

18        A.   I am not --

19        Q.   Meaning -- meaning the nonconforming tube.  I

20   mean, that -- that's -- the company agrees that this was

21   nonconforming with the way the plant was intended to be

22   designed and built?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   Okay.

25        A.   That's why it's nonconforming.
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 1        Q.   Yeah.  But -- but -- but -- but it's -- but

 2   the company believes -- or the company is -- let me go

 3   back on this one.

 4             This is a paperwork one, right?  Pacific --

 5   Pacific Power had the paperwork?

 6        A.   I -- I believe so.  I can't prove anything.

 7   But that's the most logical answer.  I mean, you don't

 8   know when it was put in.  You don't know why it was put

 9   in.  You don't know the -- the -- the specifics of the

10   outage because it was over 20 years ago, and we don't

11   have the documents for that.

12        Q.   Did -- did Utah Power when they built their

13   plants keep those types of records?

14        A.   I -- if we went back 40 years ago, I don't

15   know if we would be able to have that information

16   either.  I doubt it.  Because again, when everything was

17   in file cabinets and that, at some point in time people

18   just, after you find a 30-year-old document, you

19   probably don't keep it, because it's probably not

20   relevant any more.

21        Q.   Is -- is that typically considered, you

22   know -- you know, utility standards to -- to -- in terms

23   of recordkeeping, is there a standard that the company

24   now adheres to or --

25        A.   I think we have a records retention policy,
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 1   but I don't remember exactly what it is.  I would have

 2   to look it up.  We do keep a lot of information, but

 3   it's not everything.

 4             To give you an example is, when this happened,

 5   if it would have happened to me and it had been 95

 6   degrees out and power prices were really high and I

 7   didn't have the material, I would have put that other

 8   material in in half a heartbeat to get the plant on so

 9   that it weren't -- we weren't having to buy expensive

10   power off the market.  Okay.  That -- that's -- that's

11   triage at that time.

12             Why it didn't get switched out at some period

13   of time, I can't answer that because I don't have any

14   details and facts.  I can just guess.

15        Q.   Okay.  In terms of the deslagging practice

16   on -- on -- on DJ 3, I just want to make sure I

17   understood your earlier testimony.  But help me

18   understand that the logic or the thinking at the time in

19   terms of like, was -- was this a decision that the

20   company made that was based upon safety practices?

21             In other words, that the, the -- that the

22   one -- one way is potentially better for the, the wear

23   and tear of the plant, but one way is -- is safer and

24   the company chose the safer route?  Did I misunderstand

25   that?

0123

 1        A.   Well, part of it, it -- it was developed in

 2   the entire industry.  I mean, we're not the only utility

 3   that uses explosive blasting.  There's companies that go

 4   out all over the country and do this.

 5             It became a practice for mainly two reasons.

 6   One is safety, but the other thing is, it was much

 7   faster, so you get the unit back on, you know, and --

 8   and have less outage time.  If you do it manually, it

 9   takes a long time.

10        Q.   So -- so would I be incorrect in saying

11   that the -- that the decision at the time to switch to

12   this new method was based upon a combination of, I

13   guess, opportunity cost or -- or -- and safety?

14        A.   Safety, yes.

15        Q.   Okay.  And that was done at the time that --

16   remind me again the year that was done?

17        A.   Well, we -- we switched to the lowest velocity

18   in 2011, but we were doing this long before then.  And

19   I'm -- I'm saying explosive blasting has probably been a

20   practice for 20, 30 years at least.

21        Q.   And let me move on to Huntington, Huntington

22   1.  Similar question, I guess, help -- help me

23   understand.  I think you have already through bits and

24   pieces of different questions, testified to this, but

25   you know, put me -- put me in your decision making mode
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 1   of the decision when you knew that there were issues

 2   with this type of weld, to not just again -- I think

 3   what you said is that it was an economic decision based

 4   upon -- walk me through that again.

 5        A.   Okay.  So if I -- if I -- if I have one or two

 6   failures, and I have a general idea that I -- to --

 7   to -- I know at some point in time I am going to have to

 8   replace all these, but I want to try to get the maximum

 9   value out of them and not just cut them out prematurely.

10             And if -- if I put it into a model on

11   replacement power costs, and I made an assumption that I

12   would have one or two, three breaks a year and that, I

13   am not sure it would pay for itself.  So, I mean, we

14   then generally when we do capital projects, run them

15   through some type of model that says, if you don't to

16   it, here is the problem, and if you do do it, here it

17   is.

18             And then it runs it through a model and say,

19   does it pay off or not?  And four leaks in 11 years and

20   $2 million is not going to pay off very well.

21        Q.   Okay.  Jim Bridger 2.  Is -- we have had a lot

22   of talk about this.  This employee, I guess -- let me

23   ask you this.  Her function of what -- whatever she did,

24   he or she did, in performing this, which was to

25   document, I guess, but not to report up, was that
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 1   industry standard?  Or was that something that was --

 2   was inconsistent with what was good utility practice?

 3        A.   I can't really comment on that.  I would say

 4   it was not a best practice.  I -- I was -- I had not

 5   been that happy with that employee.

 6        Q.   Is it safe to say that having a procedure that

 7   prescriptive was probably not that necessary; it was

 8   more of just that the employee was missing a common

 9   sense element?

10        A.   Yeah, that -- that's fair.  I mean, I don't

11   know if he thought somebody else was going to catch it,

12   whether -- I mean, we have kind of a saying is, if you

13   see it, you own it.  Okay.  And -- and that's what we

14   have to drive is, not thinking somebody else is going to

15   address the problem for you.

16        Q.   I'll try to speed up a little bit.  On --

17   on -- on -- on Jim Bridger 3, this was the cable pull

18   issue.  I think I heard you earlier say that it was, you

19   know, it's -- there were -- it is true that there would

20   be no way of knowing about this damage?

21        A.   Physically?

22        Q.   Physically.

23        A.   I mean, the only way you could do it is do an

24   electrical test on the cable, and if it passed the

25   electrical test, you drive on.
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 1        Q.   Yeah.  What is the -- is there industry

 2   standard or a best practices for during plant

 3   construction to -- I mean, you know, and tell me if --

 4   if -- you feel free to include your assumptions or in

 5   terms of cost benefit analysis, what is the typical

 6   practice of when you are building a plant of, I guess,

 7   checking and double-checking things of this nature?

 8        A.   Normally they pull the cables in, clear

 9   everybody out of the way, and then they -- they megger

10   or Hipot --

11             THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, sir.  Would you say

12   that again?

13        A.   Megger or Hipot.  They're -- they're --

14   they're just tools that you can use, and what you do is

15   you put -- it's like have you a wire here, and it's

16   open-ended at both ends.  You put a potential on the one

17   and it energizes the whole wire, and then you measure

18   the leakage current.  How much is going to ground when

19   you crank the voltage up and down?

20             And there's acceptable standards for cables.

21   15 KV has a different standard than 5 KV and everything.

22   And -- and if it passes, that's about all you can do.

23   And -- and generally every place I have been involved in

24   when they have installed cables like that, they do that

25   test prior to turning it over and terminating it, you
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 1   know, connecting it up to the equipment.

 2        Q.   (By Commissioner White)  So we should assume

 3   that that test was performed prior to --

 4        A.   Right.  But we wouldn't have the records,

 5   because my guess is, the contractor who built that, the

 6   Black and Veatch, they probably had the records and they

 7   probably said they passed.  And then when the plant was

 8   built, they probably just got rid of them because they

 9   turned the plant over to us.

10        Q.   And from an engineering perspective, there is

11   still no way of knowing -- even though the company knew

12   that the cable had been damaged, there's no way of

13   knowing that the ultimate causation was as a result of

14   the damage or just wear and tear?

15        A.   Well, we -- we didn't know the cable was

16   damaged --

17        Q.   Yeah.

18        A.   -- until we pulled it out.  Okay.  And we

19   didn't send the cable in and said ultimately, why did

20   this fail?  Was it an age-related thing or an age and

21   damage?  I would be willing to bet real money that they

22   would have said that it was a combination of the two,

23   because it's too difficult to tell one over the other.

24             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  That's all I have got,

25   questions.  I appreciate it.  I don't know if
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 1   Mr. Wilding wants to respond to that question about how

 2   the liquidated damages are --

 3             MR. WILDING:  Okay.  Do you mind asking the

 4   question just one more time?

 5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yeah.  Yeah.  The

 6   question was, I think I heard at some point, whether it

 7   was a comment made by Mr. Moscon or testimony by

 8   Mr. Ralston, that liquidated damages are somehow flowed

 9   back to the customers.

10             And I guess my question is, is how is that

11   accomplished?  Is that something that's, you know,

12   reduced in terms of, you know, capital expenses in terms

13   of the plant?  Does it somehow flow through EBA?  I am

14   just trying to learn where that money goes and is it a

15   pertinent to this proceeding or where -- where -- where

16   is that money.

17             MR. WILDING:  Okay.  Yes, the -- so I'll step

18   back.  Per -- and -- and explain on -- or how we account

19   for those liquidated damages.  So per U.S. GAP or

20   generally accepted accounting principles, that -- those

21   liquidated damages from a vendor or contractor are an

22   offset to the project that they are associated with.

23             So in this instance, it was a capital addition

24   to the plant, and so that capital -- those capital costs

25   were reduced by the liquidated damages.  And so it would
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 1   be a reduction in rate basing our assets and also in

 2   depreciation expense because you are depreciating less.

 3             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  So it's ultimately a

 4   reduction of the return off and on, right?

 5             MR. WILDING:  Yes.  Yes.  And -- and they are

 6   not booked in net power costs, so they are not in this

 7   proceeding.

 8             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Thank you.  That's all

 9   the questions I have.  Thank you.

10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?

11             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank you.  I apologize,

12   I have been rustling a lot of papers up here because I

13   am trying to eliminate questions that would be

14   redundant.  I appreciate all the efforts of my

15   colleagues on the commission and also counsel today for

16   efforts to illuminate the issues in front of us.

17                          EXAMINATION

18   BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:

19        Q.   So I am going to just step back through a

20   couple of these to fine tune my own understanding.

21             Regarding the plug, and so we're talking about

22   Craig Unit 2, are you telling us that GE did not have a

23   standard, or you don't know whether GE had a standard

24   for how the plug should be tightened?  Because I

25   understand it was within GE's control, right?
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 1        A.   Their procedures said basically said retighten

 2   the plug.  Okay.  And you have a craftsman there, a

 3   millwright, and he tightens the plug up to what he

 4   thinks is appropriate based on his training and

 5   experience.

 6        Q.   Okay.

 7        A.   They don't -- they don't have a specific

 8   torque setting and use a torque wrench to do that.

 9        Q.   Yeah, that I -- that I, I, I understood.  But

10   I wondered whether there was any other kind of

11   instruction and whether you were aware of it.

12        A.   Not that I am aware of.

13        Q.   Thank you.  And have you had -- or has the

14   company had any experience with a plug issue of this

15   type before this one?

16        A.   Not vibrating out.  I know we have -- I have

17   experienced in the process of putting that material in,

18   it can be challenging at times.  Okay.  But not like

19   this failure rate.

20        Q.   So would those be issues with the sealing that

21   was supposed to be accomplished, as opposed to -- things

22   that you discovered during the pressure test?

23        A.   Well, no, more of pumping the material in.

24        Q.   Oh, sure.

25        A.   It's -- it sounds easy, but sometimes it's a
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 1   little challenging.

 2        Q.   But nothing where a plug was --

 3        A.   No.

 4        Q.   -- suddenly not there when it was supposed to

 5   be there?

 6        A.   No.

 7        Q.   Okay.  So this is first instance?

 8        A.   Yeah, I am afraid so.

 9        Q.   And the -- so now, the -- the Dave Johnson

10   Unit 3 of April 25th.  The tubing that was installed

11   could not be visually distinguished from the spec

12   tubing, I think you said, and so I am wondering how --

13   what process led to us understanding that a different

14   tube was used?

15        A.   When -- we have a standard kind of process

16   when we have a tube failure, and if it's not intuitively

17   obvious why, we cut that failure out.  And we send it to

18   a metallurgist and say, dissect this thing and tell us

19   everything about this tube, because we want to

20   understand our failure mode so we can figure out if we

21   can prevent them somehow.

22             So when this tube failed, we cut it out and

23   sent it to them, and he looked at the metallurgy of it

24   and said, well, you are supposed to have this in it, and

25   you have this in it.
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 1        Q.   And would that have been IEC, or is that

 2   different?

 3        A.   Yeah.  IEC is the metallurgist.

 4        Q.   Okay.  So now relative to Dave Johnston Unit 3

 5   on September 19th, did IEC rec -- ever recommend to you

 6   to use manual deslagging to avoid --

 7        A.   No.  The --

 8        Q.   -- the -- the issues that -- that the

 9   deslagging process, if it's aggressive can create?

10        A.   No.  They -- the statement in there was, use

11   -- the lowest velocity detonation cord should be used.

12        Q.   Commissioner White asked you some questions

13   about industry standards, and, you know, we have intense

14   interest in understanding what they are and how they

15   would apply to the questions in front of us.  It's a

16   challenging thing to ascertain them apparently, or at

17   least to identify a, a, a standard industry practice.

18             Relative to dissimilar metal welds, and so I

19   guess this will be in the context of Huntington Unit 1,

20   I think that you have said that you -- that was a known

21   potential problem area --

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   -- right?  And so just to try to get a little

24   better understanding of how industry practices are

25   developed and how you become aware of them and -- was --
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 1   was that knowledge from experience exclusively within

 2   the PacifiCorp system, or -- or were there -- was GE

 3   sending out like a note -- notices -- almost like recall

 4   notices or other kinds of notifications that -- that

 5   would have made you aware of this part -- particular

 6   vulnerability in your plant?

 7        A.   There's an organization called EPRI, Electric

 8   Power Research Institute, and it's kind of funded by

 9   utilities and that.  And they do a bunch of research.

10   And they have developed volumes on tube materials, tube

11   failures.  To some degree, it's kind of the bible of --

12   of tube failures and that.

13             And as -- as utilities had problems, they

14   would share this information and also give it to EPRI,

15   and EPRI would publish stuff.  And it was kind of

16   through -- what do I want to call them?  Trade meetings

17   or -- or meetings or through EPRI and that, that that

18   information came out.

19             Manufacturers didn't really come out with that

20   on dissimilar metal welds.  It was the industry was

21   starting to see failures and was sharing the

22   information, and then kind of EPRI put it all together

23   in books.

24        Q.   Thank you.  Now, regarding Jim Bridger Unit 2,

25   when would the -- this was -- is it right to think of
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 1   this as a preventative maintenance test that was

 2   performed?

 3        A.   Yes.

 4        Q.   When would it have been performed in relation

 5   to the work that was being done at that location on --

 6   in the --

 7        A.   I believe the PM test was done either

 8   September or October, somewhere around there.  We start

 9   on them near the end of the summer in that, we have

10   several -- several of these to do so it takes quite a

11   while.  So -- but I think this one was actually done in

12   the October time frame.  And you try to do them in

13   the -- the early fall so that you can determine if you

14   have a problem.

15        Q.   And -- and obviously before the winter season?

16        A.   Yep.

17        Q.   And the heat is needed?

18        A.   Is needed.

19        Q.   Right.  So what's the company's procedure for

20   reviewing the report of the preventive maintenance?  I

21   think you said that it was identified on the report

22   that -- that there was no current but there was voltage

23   so, I am thinking -- I am wondering if that wasn't

24   significant apparently to the person doing the

25   inspection.
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 1             But I -- I presume that person's work is

 2   reviewed by supervisors, other management people, that

 3   there's some process for that to happen, and -- and that

 4   other people overlooked the significance of that report

 5   as well?

 6        A.   And I can't tell you if the specific report

 7   was reviewed or not.  It specifically stated that not

 8   only will the technician, if he finds a problem, write

 9   it, but also that a supervisor or planner will review

10   the report -- the report for adequacy too.

11        Q.   So --

12        A.   I mean, it's just clarifying expectations.

13        Q.   So prior to this incident, there wasn't an

14   expectation that anyone would review the findings of the

15   inspector?

16        A.   I believe it was an unwritten expectation.

17   You know, I mean, it's just, this is part of your job.

18        Q.   "Your" would be who in that sentence?

19        A.   As in the supervisors, the planners, the

20   maintenance department.

21        Q.   Thank you.  That concludes my questions.

22   Thank you very much.

23        A.   Okay.

24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you for your

25   testimony today, Mr. Ralston.  I think it's probably a
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 1   good time to take a short break.  Do you have anything

 2   further from Rocky Mountain Power when we come back from

 3   break?

 4             MS. HOGLE:  Possibly.

 5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Why don't we take 15

 6   minutes and we'll come back at 2:25.

 7             (Recess from 2:08 p.m. to 2:24 p.m.)

 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we're ready to

 9   go back on the record.  Anything further from Rocky

10   Mountain Power?

11             MR. MOSCON:  Nothing further.  Thank you.

12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

13   Mr. Jetter?

14             MR. JETTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The

15   division would like to call and have sworn in division's

16   first witness, Dave Thompson.

17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon, Mr. Thompson.

18   Do you swear to tell the truth?

19             THE WITNESS:  I do.

20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

21                      DAVID T. THOMPSON,

22   was called as a witness, and having been first duly

23   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

24                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

25   BY MR. JETTER:
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 1        Q.   Mr. Thompson, would you please state your name

 2   and occupation for the record.

 3        A.   My name is David T. Thompson.  I am a utility

 4   consultant for the division of public utility.

 5        Q.   Thank you.  And in the course of your

 6   employment with the division, did you have the

 7   opportunity to review the EBA application materials

 8   filed by the company?

 9        A.   I did.

10        Q.   And did you create and cause to be filed with

11   the commission prefiled direct testimony dated November

12   15th, 2018?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And that was filed along with eight exhibits,

15   1.1 through 1.8?

16        A.   The testimony was 1.1, and 1.2 through 1.8 the

17   other exhibits.

18        Q.   Thank you.  Do you have any corrections or

19   changes you would like to make to that prefiled direct

20   testimony?

21        A.   I don't.

22        Q.   If you were asked the same questions that are

23   in that testimony today, would your answers remain the

24   same?

25        A.   They would.
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 1             MR. JETTER:  I'd like to move to enter the

 2   direct testimony along with Exhibits through 1.8, all of

 3   the exhibits to that testimony into the record.

 4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If any

 5   party objects to that motion, indicate to me.  I am not

 6   seeing any objection, so it's granted.

 7        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Have you prepared a brief

 8   summary of your testimony?

 9        A.   I have.

10        Q.   Please go ahead.

11        A.   Good afternoon, Commissioners.  Thank you for

12   the opportunity to address the current status of the --

13   on the reported adjustments and recommendations from the

14   division and its consultant, Daymark Energy Advisors.  I

15   will also be introducing division's witness from Daymark

16   in conjunction with this hearing.

17             The division recommends the commission allow

18   the company to recover in its energy balance account an

19   amount of approximately $1.8 million for the calendar

20   year 2017.  This is $912,007 less than the recovery

21   amount originally requested by the company, and consists

22   of an error adjustment of $25,742 and an outage

23   adjustment of $886,265.

24             In its review of electrical natural gas

25   transactions, Daymark discovered a policy and procedure
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 1   finding.  Daymark recommended appropriate policy changes

 2   to remedy this finding.  In response testimony, the

 3   company accepted the division's error correction.

 4             The company also agreed in response testimony

 5   with the Daymark proposed policy changes.  In its

 6   response testimony, the company stated that it will work

 7   with the DPU and Daymark to adopt energy risk management

 8   policy language similar to what Daymark proposed in its

 9   audit report.

10             In its audit report, the division's

11   consultants, Daymark, made an adjustment for outages.

12   Daymark recommended this allowing replacement power

13   costs resulting from seven outages.  These outages

14   demonstrate a sufficient imprudence that EBA costs

15   should be reduced by the amount of replacement power

16   cost related to the outages.  Utah allocated amount for

17   this adjustment is $840,267.  This adjustment impacted

18   interest computations in the amount of $45,998.  The

19   total adjustment is $886,265, after the interest

20   adjustment.

21             The company in its response testimony --

22   excuse me, in surrebuttal testimony to Daymark's audit

23   report and rebuttal testimony, did not agree that the

24   replacement power for plant outages should be

25   disallowed.  The division's witness from Daymark,
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 1   Mr. Phil DiDomenico, will testify to Daymark's EBA

 2   review, and specifically to Daymark's outage adjustments

 3   and why replacement power for the seven outages should

 4   be disallowed.  And that concludes my summary.

 5             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have no further

 6   questions, and Mr. Thompson is available for cross or

 7   questions from the commission.

 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

 9   Mr. Russell, do you have any questions for Mr. Thompson?

10             MR. RUSSELL:  I don't.  Thank you.

11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

12   Mr. Moscon, Ms. Hogle?

13             MR. MOSCON:  No questions.

14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Commissioner White?

15             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions.  Thank you.

16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?

17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions.  Thank you,

18   Mr. Thompson.

19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And none from me.  Thank you

20   for your testimony today.

21             MR. MOSCON:  The division would like to next

22   call and have sworn in Phil DiDomenico.

23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon,

24   Mr. DiDomenico.  Do you swear to tell the truth?

25             THE WITNESS:  I do.
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 1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.

 2                      PHILIP DIDOMENICO,

 3   was called as a witness, and having been first duly

 4   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

 5                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

 6   BY MR. JETTER:

 7        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, would you please start by

 8   stating your name, and maybe let's have you spell your

 9   last name so you get it correct on the record, and your

10   occupation.

11        A.   Certainly.  It's DiDomenico.  It's capital

12   D-I, capital D-O-M-E-N-I-C-O.

13        Q.   Thank you.  And what is your occupation?

14        A.   I am a management consultant for Daymark

15   Energy Advisors.

16        Q.   And were you retained to review certain

17   transactions and essentially an audit in this case?

18        A.   I was.

19        Q.   And did you create, in the course of your

20   employment and -- and consultant contract with the

21   division, create and cause to be filed with the

22   commission direct and rebuttal testimony, direct

23   testimony filed November 15th, 2018, along with rebuttal

24   testimony filed January 10th, 2019?

25        A.   I did.
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 1        Q.   And in both of those testimonies, it

 2   identified two witnesses, which is yourself and Dan

 3   Koehler; is that correct?

 4        A.   Dan Koehler, yes.

 5        Q.   Koehler, excuse me.  And do you intend to

 6   adopt both of those testimonies today in full?

 7        A.   I do.

 8        Q.   If you are asked the same questions in both

 9   the direct and rebuttal testimonies that were filed,

10   would your answers remain the same?

11        A.   With one correction.

12        Q.   Okay.  And please go ahead.

13        A.   Looking at my direct testimony, of myself and

14   Dan, page 8 if I would, under findings and

15   recommendations, starting with line 89, what I would

16   drop is the sentence that appears after outages.  I

17   would replace, "that appeared to be avoidable and

18   resulted in unnecessary increases to the company-wide

19   NPC," replace that with the phrase, "for further

20   investigation," period.

21        Q.   Thank you.  And do you have any other

22   corrections or changes you would like to make?

23        A.   I do not.

24        Q.   Okay.

25             MR. MOSCON:  I'm sorry.  Can I have you -- I
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 1   was slow here.

 2             THE WITNESS:  Sure.

 3             MR. MOSCON:  Line 93, will you just tell me

 4   again what I am crossing out where?

 5             THE WITNESS:  It was line 89.

 6             MR. MOSCON:  Sorry, 89.

 7             THE WITNESS:  We are crossing out the words

 8   that start after the word outages.

 9             MR. MOSCON:  Got it.

10             THE WITNESS:  Crossing out basically to the

11   end of that sentence on the next line, and replacing

12   that with simply, for further investigation.

13             By way of clarification, those 29 outages were

14   selected because of their duration, not because of any

15   particular concern over their impact.

16             MR. JETTER:  With that I'd like to move for

17   the introduction of -- or entry of the direct and

18   rebuttal testimony I have identified earlier, along with

19   all of the attached exhibits to both of those, which was

20   direct through 2.3 and, I believe there was no exhibits

21   attached in addition to the testimony on the rebuttal

22   testimony.

23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If anyone objects to

24   that motion, please let me know.  I am not seeing any

25   objection, so the motion is granted.
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 1             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.

 2        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter) And have you prepared a brief

 3   statement summarizing your testimony?

 4        A.   I have.

 5        Q.   Please go ahead.

 6        A.   Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to

 7   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding

 8   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a

 9   request on March 15th, 2018 to recover 2.8 --

10        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, I am going to interrupt just

11   very briefly.  If you wouldn't mind reading just a

12   little bit slower for our court reporter.

13        A.   I'm sorry.  Too fast for you.  It's Italian

14   heritage.

15             Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to

16   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding

17   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a

18   request on March 15th, 2018, to recover 2.8 million for

19   excess energy balancing account associated costs

20   incurred throughout the 12 month deferral period from

21   January 1st, 2017, through December 31st, 2017.

22             Daymark's role was to determine whether the

23   actual costs featured in the calendar year 2017 EBA

24   filing were incurred in accordance with an in place

25   policy or plan, were prudent and were in the public
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 1   interest.

 2             Our review included four main assignments, as

 3   established in consultation with the division.  First,

 4   evaluate a sample of electric and natural gas

 5   transaction for accuracy, completeness and prudence.

 6   Second, we reviewed particular issues pertaining to key

 7   drivers of EBA costs, specifically deviations in the

 8   actual wholesale sales revenue and purchased power

 9   expense in relation to levels forecasted for the general

10   rate case and established in base NBC.

11             Third, we reviewed the impact of PacifiCorp's

12   third full calendar year of participation in the

13   California ISO, energy imbalance market.  Lastly, we

14   reviewed and evaluated actual plant outages to ensure

15   that these outages and the cost impacts on the EBA

16   charge were appropriate.

17             Transactions.  Relative to transactions our

18   findings were as follows.  PacifiCorp settled tens of

19   thousands of natural gas financial, natural gas physical

20   and electric power physical transactions in 2017.  We

21   assembled and analyzed a sample of 46 representative

22   transactions and accounting entry groupings.  After

23   reviewing these transactions, we did not find or -- we

24   did not suggest, excuse me, any adjustments to the

25   calendar year 2017 EBA costs for the evaluated
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 1   transactions.

 2             However, our review of a particular

 3   transaction revealed a deficiency in PacifiCorp's

 4   policies and practices pertaining to monitoring and

 5   reporting potential breaches in individual trader

 6   limits.

 7             The company has taken some corrective steps to

 8   address this issue since becoming aware of it, but we

 9   recommend that the company formally adopt governance

10   control requirements in their risk management policy --

11   energy risk management policy.  The company has

12   indicated in response testimony that it is amenable to

13   working with the division to adopt such changes.

14             Regarding the EBA cost drivers, we found that

15   the deviations in actual wholesale sales revenue and

16   purchased power expense were generally explainable by

17   market condition changes between the base NPC forecasts

18   for the 2014, '15 test period, and actual conditions

19   during the 2017 deferral period, as well as changes in

20   long-term contracts in effect for the respective

21   periods.

22             Regarding the California ISO, energy imbalance

23   market, our findings regarding -- regarding our high

24   level review of PacifiCorp's participation in the -- in

25   the ISO EMI, we found no reason to challenge the ISO or
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 1   the company's methodology for estimating benefits from

 2   participating in the real-time imbalance trading through

 3   the EIN, nor do we have reason to believe that the

 4   estimates substantially overstate the benefits.

 5             Regarding outages, our review of generator

 6   outages at the company's thermal plants during the EBA

 7   period, deferral period, identified 25 significant

 8   outages; that is, outages that are forced outages or

 9   planned outage extensions of greater than 72 hours in

10   duration.

11             Of these 29 outages, seven outages

12   demonstrated sufficient imprudence that we recommend

13   reducing EBA costs to reflect replacement power costs

14   related to the outages.  The total reduction in

15   company-wide NPC for these outages was 1,954,826.  The

16   Utah allocated EBA deferral adjustment related to

17   imprudent outage replacement power costs is 840,267.

18             The quantification replacement power costs is

19   not in dispute.  The company has agreed with our

20   methodology for estimating the additional net power

21   costs that are incurred as a result of specific plant

22   outages.

23             The company submitted response testimony of

24   Mr. Dana Ralston to address the seven generation plant

25   outages we identified as demonstrating sufficient
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 1   imprudence to warrant EBA cost adjustment.

 2   Mr. Ralston's response testimony disputed our claims

 3   that the company acted imprudently in regard to those

 4   seven outages, and therefore, no adjustment to the EBA

 5   amounts was needed.  We disagree with Mr. Ralston's

 6   arguments and we stand by our original recommendation.

 7             Mr. Ralston asserted that the Craig Unit 2

 8   outage was the result of GE's subcontractor's failure to

 9   correctly tighten specific plugs and not the lack of

10   established procedures and practices.

11             Though the company's partner GE admitted

12   fault, the company should still be held accountable

13   since they are responsible for ensuring risk mitigation

14   measures are established and followed by their partners.

15   Additionally, the company should work with their third

16   party operators to use similar outage-related

17   documentation procedures as utilized by PacifiCorp.

18             Regarding the April 2017 outage at Dave

19   Johnson Unit 3, the company believes that the use of

20   improper tubing that contributed to the outage was an

21   anomaly that was still -- was still provided over 20

22   years of acceptable service.  In our opinion, the use of

23   incorrect tubing material is a procedural failure that

24   necessitates an adjustment to the company-wide EBA costs

25   for the replacement power costs.  The length of time
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 1   before failure is secondary to the issue of prudence.

 2             The September 2017 outage occurring at Dave

 3   Johnson Unit 3 was caused by tube failures associated

 4   with the reheat super heater.  Although the company's

 5   metallurgical expert recommended modifying blasting

 6   practice after analyzing the failures, the company

 7   maintains that the failures could not be attributed to

 8   any particular explosive deslagging result.

 9             Since the company's metallurgical experts have

10   repeatedly identified the company's blasting practices

11   related to deslagging as a contributing factor to tube

12   failure, we believe the company acted imprudently by not

13   modifying its deslagging practices.

14             The Huntington Unit 1 outage was due to a

15   reheater tube leak located at a dissimilar metal weld.

16   The company argues that due to the number of welds in

17   the outlet of the reheater, the cost to evaluate each

18   weld would significantly outweigh the benefits.  We

19   believe that the company's lack of attention to such a

20   well known industry issue is indefensible and therefore

21   imprudent.

22             An outage at Jim Bridger Unit 2 caused by the

23   failure of heat tracing equipment was a result of gap in

24   testing procedures established by the company.  Even

25   though the company argues that it acted prudently, since
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 1   it had testing procedures already in place, we assert

 2   that the company acted imprudently since it should have

 3   known the heat tracing equipment was inoperable.

 4             Regarding the Jim Bridger Unit 3 outage, the

 5   failure of cables leading to the outage was due to age

 6   and damage received during the cable's initial cable

 7   pull in the seventies.  The company argues that the

 8   cables have functioned successfully over 40 years they

 9   have -- that they have been in place, without any

10   indications of damage.

11             We believe that the cable damage due to

12   incorrect installation practices during the initial

13   installation warrants disallowance.  The length of time

14   before failure is secondary to the use -- to the issue

15   of prudency.

16             The Dave Johnson Unit 4 extended outage was

17   the result of the wrong impeller of -- of a wrong

18   impeller being installed during a planned outage

19   resulting in an outage extension.  The error was the

20   admitted fault of a contractor who accepted work that it

21   wasn't properly staffed to complete.

22             It is incumbent upon the company to ensure

23   that the contractors it chooses to work with follow

24   prudent practices.  We therefore believe the company

25   should be held responsible for the imprudent actions of
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 1   the contractor.

 2             Lastly, Mr. Ralston's response and surrebuttal

 3   testimony assert that our recommendations assume a

 4   unrealistic standard of perfection based on 20/20

 5   hindsight and not a standard of prudence applied to

 6   these outages.  We disagree.

 7             Many outages are avoidable with perfect

 8   hindsight, and many outages are caused by human error.

 9   We do not argue for a disallowance for all such outages.

10   We are arguing for adjustment of only a handful of cases

11   when the action or inaction at the root cause of the

12   outage was clearly imprudent based on the information

13   known or knowable at the time.

14             The company argues that it cannot be held

15   liable for imprudent actions taken by third party

16   operators or subcontractors so long as the underlying

17   contract was reasonable.  We disagree.  As an owner or

18   co-owner, a company is responsible for the performance

19   of that asset and cannot absolve itself of that

20   responsibility simply because it has desig -- delegated

21   the operation or repair of that asset to another entity.

22             Certainly, as between the company and its rate

23   payers, the company is in a much better position to

24   influence the operation of plants where it is not the

25   operator.  If a company operated in a regulatory system
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 1   without the EBA, the company would likely not recover

 2   any of the power replacement costs related to a forced

 3   outage.  Thank you.

 4             MR. JETTER:  Thank you for that review of your

 5   testimony.  I have no further questions, and

 6   Mr. DiDomenico is available for cross and questions from

 7   the commission.

 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Mr. Russell, do

 9   you have any questions?

10             MR. RUSSELL:  I do.  Thank you.

11                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

12   BY MR. RUSSELL:

13        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, you mentioned that you

14   reviewed -- you narrowed it down to 29 outages, and as I

15   understand your summary, that -- that you narrowed it

16   down to 29 based on the length of those 29 rather than

17   on any particular actions taken by the company during

18   those 29 outages.  Is that correct?

19        A.   That's correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  And ultimately you flag seven outages,

21   the seven that we have been discussing at length today.

22   Can you tell me what it was about those seven, and I --

23   I -- I know that there are differences among those

24   seven, but at a high level, can you tell me what it was

25   about those seven that you -- you thought required a
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 1   different result than the other 22?

 2        A.   Well, fundamentally, in looking at the

 3   available information -- and I do need to underscore the

 4   available information, because again, in this instance

 5   where we are 100 percent dependent on the information

 6   provided by the company, we did not provide any

 7   independent review.  This is not our review.  We are

 8   reviewing information that was provided to us.

 9             Just with that context, with that in mind, the

10   information that we were provided basically just led us

11   from a reasonable perspective, would a reasonable

12   utility have operated in a different manner?  It kind of

13   flagged us from that perspective, and that's what drew

14   our attention to those seven outages.

15        Q.   Okay.  And there's been a lot of talk today

16   and in the prefiled testimony about the -- the cost to

17   mitigate or to prevent the type of replacement power

18   costs, or the mistake that -- that occurred or -- or

19   that was identified.

20             In your review of the 29 that ultimately led

21   to the seven, did you -- did you consider the costs to

22   prevent the issue that led to the outage as part of your

23   review?

24        A.   Not explicitly, no.

25        Q.   Okay.  And is that in your view a relevant
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 1   issue to -- to consider in determining whether the

 2   company acted prudently?

 3        A.   Ultimately, certainly the cost of whatever

 4   mitigation practices is a factor, certainly.

 5        Q.   And just, I think we probably all understand

 6   this, but -- and tell me the reason why the cost to

 7   mitigate the issue or cost to prevent the issue is a

 8   relevant factor?

 9        A.   Well, I think as in any business decision from

10   an asset management perspective, you are juggling a lot

11   of priorities, and in terms of making decisions about

12   which priority to address first, you tend to go with --

13   not tend to go, but you go with the ones that have a

14   higher cost benefit expectation.  That along with

15   risk -- and the risk associated with them are major

16   factors associated with any decision.

17        Q.   And perhaps I'll -- I'll put it in a slightly

18   different way.  If the -- if the cost to solve the

19   problem is greater than the cost to just let the problem

20   be a problem, you just let the problem be a problem,

21   don't you?

22        A.   To a degree.  The problem what we have here is

23   that this is a very dynamic situation, that the cost and

24   the benefit is very fluid.  Now, it depends on changing

25   market conditions.  It depends on a lot of things, but
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 1   at the end of the day you need to make a judgment call

 2   as to what the priorities are.

 3        Q.   Okay.  What I'd like to do now is very briefly

 4   walk through each of the seven outages and ask you just

 5   a couple of questions about each.  And we'll start with

 6   the Craig Unit 2 outage, which is -- is the one related

 7   to the 50 bolts and the one that may have come loose

 8   when the -- when the plant was started back up.

 9             Can you explain to me what it is that in

10   Daymark's view was imprudent about this particular

11   outage?

12        A.   Fundamentally, I ask myself the question, is

13   it prudent to assemble a unit when you haven't followed

14   the procedures properly?  When you read the information

15   on this event, it speaks to, potentially, the unit that

16   the bolt wasn't tightened properly.

17             And I say potentially because one of the

18   problems is that on that event, Tri-State fundamentally

19   didn't do a root cause analysis, nor is it their

20   practice to do a root cause analysis.

21             The information that we have received is

22   essentially three e-mails.  We have three e-mails where

23   they say, good news, we figured out that a plug fell

24   out.  That's the extent of the information that we have

25   on that outage.  So I look at that, and I am saying,
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 1   this -- this doesn't sound right, something wrong with

 2   this.  We need to dig further.  But the fact of the

 3   matter is, they didn't dig further.  So we don't know

 4   what actually caused the event.

 5             But I do know this, when you talk -- when

 6   you're dealing with the hydrogen cooling system of a

 7   major generator, we are not -- this is a significant

 8   element in the system.  You don't do it casually, right?

 9   Hydrogen leaks are taken very serious by the industry,

10   as I am sure the company is taking it very seriously.

11             So as you are going through the procedures

12   that say tighten whatever and fill in silicone, whatever

13   you are trying to do, I am virtually certain, although I

14   don't -- I haven't seen the procedure, because it hasn't

15   been provided, but I am virtually certain that it

16   mandates a very specific manner in which you need to do

17   your job.

18             In this case bolts don't fall out for no

19   reason.  They fall out because somebody didn't do what

20   they needed to do.  It's a summation.  I don't have

21   facts to support that, but all I know is that the bolt

22   was not there, and that -- and that is a cause for

23   concern.

24        Q.   And I guess one of the issues that -- that I

25   think the commission may have to grapple with here is,
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 1   if the bolt did come out, and in your view if it came

 2   out and somebody did something wrong, if it -- if the --

 3   the somebody that did something wrong is with a mill

 4   worker hired by General Electric who in turn was hired

 5   by Tri-State Generation, who is the operator of this

 6   plant, but is not the company here asking for, you know,

 7   a specific rate treatment, how -- how does the

 8   commission address all of that?

 9        A.   I think it starts with the accountability of

10   the company to its third party vendors.  I agree that

11   it's very expensive to get that kind of coverage,

12   replacement power coverage.  Replacement power is the

13   hot potato that nobody wants, because it's open-ended.

14   It's an undefined liability.  Nobody wants to cover

15   that.  And -- and we get that, we understand that.

16             But if you look at the chain in terms of who

17   was involved, the company is in the best pos -- position

18   of everyone to be able to manage that risk, understand

19   that risk and provide for that risk.  So from our

20   perspective, it's incumbent upon them to make sure that

21   their third party, whoever they are working with, are

22   following prudent practices.

23        Q.   Okay.  And -- and how would -- how should the

24   company have managed the risk in this -- in this case in

25   your view?
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 1        A.   Well, you know, unfortunately in this -- in

 2   this case, to do a proper root cause investigation would

 3   require you being on-site and interviewing the

 4   principals involved.

 5             Right now, the information I have available to

 6   me doesn't really allow me to make any specific

 7   recommendations, other than a general recommendation

 8   that greater oversight needs to be provided.  That's not

 9   terribly helpful, but it -- but it requires more

10   intervention, more active involvement in what's going

11   on.

12        Q.   And how do we know how much that active

13   involvement might cost?

14        A.   The only way you know is by asking for it when

15   you are working with your various vendors.

16        Q.   Okay.  In -- in a --

17        A.   And it's very situational.  It would depend on

18   the specific event and who you're dealing with.  It's

19   not -- it's not something that you can just pull out and

20   say, every time we do this it's going to cost whatever.

21   It varies significantly.

22             As a general statement, sure, it's going to

23   cost you money, but I don't know what -- I don't know

24   how you ignore the fact that it's problematic, because

25   the only one that shares replacement cost responsibility
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 1   right now is ultimately the customer.

 2        Q.   Right.  And -- and I guess the -- the customer

 3   would also bear some responsibility for the cost to

 4   prevent that replacement power cost, right?

 5        A.   Certainly.

 6        Q.   Yeah.  And -- and I guess the question that I

 7   have is, how does the commission address these issues

 8   when it's -- when it's trying to figure out, well,

 9   there's this cost to prevent these risks, and, you know,

10   somebody is going to have to pay for that cost, and

11   almost always we end up in the same place.

12             Had -- had -- I am formulating a poorly

13   question here, or poorly formulating a question here.

14   But there's -- there's this balance between the cost and

15   the risk, and I am wondering how the commission should

16   handle that.

17        A.   I think it's -- it's a difficult question.  I

18   think it's very situational.  I think some sort of a

19   shared savings or shared cost approach is probably the

20   most appropriate.  But it's very situational.  It's --

21   it's not something that we can sit here and just say, on

22   a blanket policy, this is how we should approach that.

23   I think that would be very difficult.

24        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'm -- I'm going to walk

25   through the other six, but the -- the -- the list of
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 1   questions will be a little bit shorter, because I think

 2   some of the principles that we just discussed can apply

 3   as well.

 4             Looking at the Dave Johnson Unit 3, the April

 5   25 outage, and this was the one that we -- we spent a

 6   little bit of time talking about the nonconforming

 7   material in boiler tube, right?  So if you could, tell

 8   me quickly what you understand -- or what -- what facts

 9   you understand to be the -- the imprudent or to

10   constitute the imprudent action by the utility here.

11        A.   Well, fundamentally the imprudent action is

12   installing nonconforming material, not keeping an

13   accurate record, and not going back and replacing it

14   when the time was appropriate.

15             There is nothing wrong -- I am agreeing with

16   the company witness when he says that in a pinch you do

17   what you need to do to bring the unit on line.  That's

18   standard practice.  I am not going to disagree with

19   that.  But not being able to have proper records so that

20   you can go back and then correct that situation before

21   it turns into an outage situation is where the problem

22   lies.

23        Q.   And if we were to talk about the cost to

24   potentially mitigate that, I suppose what you'd say is

25   that you mitigate it by having proper -- by having
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 1   proper recordkeeping procedures; is that right?

 2        A.   Exactly.

 3        Q.   Okay.  Moving on to the September outage at

 4   Dave Johnson Unit 3, this is the outage related to the

 5   boiler tube failure that, I guess, the metallurgical

 6   reports point to the explosive deslagging efforts.  Tell

 7   me what you -- what you understand to be the facts that

 8   constitute the imprudent action here.

 9        A.   The problem I have as -- as an outside

10   third-party consultant trying to evaluate what I am

11   seeing, I am dealing with the information that I have in

12   front of me.  And the picture that I am seeing is that I

13   have a metallurgist who is admittedly an expert in their

14   field, someone that the company relies upon, and I see

15   them repeatedly making recommendations about changing

16   the company's blasting practices.

17             And on the other hand, I -- I hear the company

18   telling me, well, they did that and they did it back in

19   2011, and that whatever they are reporting isn't

20   necessarily pertinent to the current situation.

21             In my own experience, the partnership between

22   the metallurgist and the company is not a very distant

23   relationship.  I find it hard to believe that the

24   metallurgist that the company uses on a regular basis,

25   and has been using for years, is not aware of the
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 1   company's current blasting practices.

 2             That -- that just brings questions into my

 3   mind.  Why is that?  So I'm -- I'm left with a dilemma.

 4   I have two stories.  Which one do I believe?  I am not

 5   sure.

 6             I have heard a little bit more information

 7   today that would tend to lean towards the company's

 8   position, but again, I don't know why the metallurgist

 9   would continue to make the same recommendation over and

10   over again, when it's not pertinent to the issue at

11   hand.

12        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Huntington

13   Unit 1.  As I understand it, the issue there leading to

14   the outage was the issue of dissimilar welds, correct?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  And with -- again, with this one, tell

17   me what facts you understand to be the issue that --

18   that leads to the -- your conclusion that there was

19   imprudent action by the utility.

20        A.   Sure.  Dissimilar metal welds, DMWs, is not a

21   new issue.  I think we heard testimony to that effect.

22   It's been around for a long time.  I mean, at least the

23   mid eighties, if not sooner than that, it was identified

24   as a -- as a cause of outages.

25             And not only a cause, it's not a matter of if
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 1   there's going to be an outage.  It's just a matter of

 2   when, because they are going to fail.  It's a problem.

 3   It's a problem that was discovered with the help of EPRI

 4   and others, and there are utilities that went -- went

 5   ahead and removed them before they failed, rather than

 6   waiting for failures in my experience.

 7             However, in this particular scenario we have

 8   been talking a great deal, about, well, three outages,

 9   you know, less than 1 percent.  You are not going to go

10   out and spend $2 million in mitigation.  I understand

11   that.

12             My problem or my concern rests in the fact

13   that, follow the timeline with me for a minute.  Known

14   problem since the mid eighties.  The unit's been in

15   service since whenever, and they know that the reheater

16   has lots of dissimilar metal welds, 600 I think was the

17   number that was said.  They know this.  I mean, that's

18   the way it was built.

19             The first outage doesn't occur until 2000 -- I

20   am going to get one of these years wrong, 2008 I believe

21   or seven, I can't remember which.  After that happens,

22   no action is taken.  So a second outage occurs, no

23   action is taken.  A third outage occurs, no outage is

24   taken.  We get to the fourth outage, and all of a

25   sudden, the difference between three outages and four
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 1   outages launches the company to an action plan to

 2   address the problem.

 3             Now, we have heard a lot about, well, three is

 4   an insignificant number.  Four is -- well, the

 5   difference between three and four is the same percentage

 6   as far as I am concerned.  I think the company realizes

 7   that this is a problem and they need to address it, and

 8   it has nothing to do with how many outage events occur.

 9             You know this is a problem.  It's just a

10   ticking time bomb waiting to keep happening, and as I

11   think there was reference to the hockey stick effect,

12   where all of a sudden you've got to just start

13   accelerating rapidly, absolutely, it's a very real risk.

14   It's very prevalent in our industry.

15             So my problem is not so much that they didn't

16   jump to replacing everything and spend $2 million.  My

17   problem is that they waited until a fourth outage, I am

18   trying to think the number of years after the first

19   outage, and 9 or 10 years after the first outage, before

20   they took steps to determine the extent of the problem.

21   Right.

22             We heard a lot about how testing this would be

23   a problem with -- got too expensive to do 600 welds

24   whatever.  After the fourth outage, they proceeded

25   immediately to doing that testing.  And in 2018, I
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 1   guess, I am surmising that they identified a significant

 2   enough problem to warrant a full replacement at the next

 3   available major overall, 2022.

 4             My point here is that this could have been

 5   done sooner, exposing the customers to less outage and

 6   replacement power risk.

 7        Q.   Okay.  I think that actually addresses my

 8   follow-up questions with respect to that one, although I

 9   do have -- do have one other.  And I am looking at the,

10   I think it's Exhibit 2.3 that was attached to your

11   responsive testimony.

12        A.   It's the report.  Is that our report?

13        Q.   It is, yeah.  It's the -- the confidential

14   report.  I don't know what information in this is

15   confidential, if it's the figures or if it's the

16   descriptions.

17        A.   I am not a hundred percent sure either.

18   Jason?

19             MR. JETTER:  It's probably a mix.

20             MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.

21             MR. JETTER:  Is there something specific?

22             MR. RUSSELL:  With each of -- with each --

23   with each of the outages that are discussed, there is a

24   repair cost identified, as well as a cost associated

25   with the replacement power.  And I am just wondering
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 1   whether any of that is confidential.  I don't even need

 2   to use the number.

 3             MS. HOGLE:  Confidential.

 4        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Okay.  All right.  Do you

 5   have that report in front of you?

 6        A.   I do.

 7        Q.   Okay.  Maybe we can do this without -- I'm --

 8   I am not going -- I'm not going to identify any of the

 9   numbers.  Do you see the -- the next to last paragraph

10   of --

11        A.   Excuse me.  Page reference please.

12        Q.   Yeah.  Sorry.  Page 26, it's the Huntington

13   Unit 1 outage, the discussion there.

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Okay.  The next to last paragraph of that

16   discussion identifies the repair costs, and maybe I am

17   just misunderstanding what repairs were done, but can

18   you -- can you tell me what repairs were done that adds

19   up to this number that I am not going to say?

20        A.   No.  These repair costs were provided by the

21   company.

22        Q.   Yeah.

23        A.   So I don't know -- I don't know exactly what

24   repairs took place.  That's simply the costs of

25   bringing -- bringing the unit back to service from the
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 1   outage.  Not including, you know, replacement power,

 2   anything like that.

 3        Q.   Yeah.  And I know we have been throwing around

 4   this $2 million number to replace the dissimilar welds,

 5   and that's not this number?

 6        A.   It is not.

 7        Q.   Okay.  Do you know -- you don't know what --

 8   what is included with this number here?

 9        A.   No.

10        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Let's move on

11   to Jim Bridger Unit 2, which is the next one in your --

12   in the report.  And this is the -- the one that we have

13   spent a fair bit of time talking about with the water

14   freezing and the water spacer tubing.  Can you tell me,

15   what was -- what was the -- what was the imprudent

16   action by the -- by the company here?

17        A.   Well, fundamentally, when you are talking

18   about a system that is explicitly designed to prevent

19   freezing, not functioning at a time when you need it,

20   and the reason given is that there was quote, unquote, a

21   gap in the procedures, that just doesn't ring true --

22   not true, but it doesn't make sense to me in the context

23   of my experience.

24             I could see gaps in procedures if this was a

25   new system or a new unit.  This is a unit that's been in
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 1   operation for, you know, decades.  By now any bugs or

 2   shake-down associated learnings, if you will, should

 3   have been covered.  And I think we heard earlier that

 4   this was simply a problem where a technician didn't do

 5   his job properly.  I don't know how else to say it.

 6        Q.   And -- and in your view, is it, what -- what

 7   would be the cost of mitigating against that?  If

 8   there --

 9        A.   Very little.  I mean, that's nothing more than

10   the direction that this is what you need to do.  You

11   need to report things of this nature.  It's -- it's

12   somewhat, you know, it's puzzling that -- that an

13   individual with that title, that -- that -- namely the

14   technician that we're talking about, wouldn't have taken

15   that next step to make sure people were aware of it.

16   When I say people, upper -- his manager or other folks

17   in the management chain.

18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Jim

19   Bridger Unit 3, and this is the one where we have

20   discussed a fair bit with the electrical wiring that was

21   underground, but because of a -- of a water pump that

22   tripped off, water got into the -- the conduit with the

23   that -- that the electrical wiring was in.

24             And there's been some discussion about when

25   this wiring may have been damaged.  Why don't you tell
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 1   me what -- what you view as the imprudent action here?

 2        A.   Well, fundamentally, is it prudent to damage a

 3   cable upon installation?  Here the record shows that the

 4   cable, along with age, was a mitigating -- was one of

 5   the causes of what went -- what happened -- excuse me.

 6             And you know, we have heard a lot about, well,

 7   the cable was in operation for 40 years, and while that

 8   may be true, and we also heard about testing that was

 9   done upon its initial installation.  What we didn't hear

10   anything about is how often this cable is tested.  Is it

11   tested on an annual basis?  Semiannual basis?  During

12   major overhaul, or was it set it and forget it?

13             I have -- I've heard no discussion about it.

14   So the idea that this installation wasn't degrading that

15   whole time, I am not sure there's any information on the

16   record to prove that that wasn't the case.

17        Q.   So focusing on the length of time here, in

18   your view, and I -- I think you say this in the report

19   or in your testimony, that it's not important how long

20   this -- this wiring was in place.  It's, how did it get

21   damaged?

22        A.   Right.

23        Q.   And I guess, I have -- if the company since

24   that time didn't know about the damage, I mean, if -- if

25   it was installed, and even the people who installed it
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 1   didn't know about the damage, and in the 40 years since

 2   there's been no indication that there is some damage

 3   here, is it -- can, can -- do -- was it imprudent for

 4   the company not to conduct an inspection?  Or is your

 5   sole focus on the fact that it was damaged when it was

 6   installed?

 7        A.   Well, it's two elements.  It's -- it's the

 8   damage upon installation, along with, I don't see any

 9   record of any testing that occurred after the initial

10   installation.  So -- so there's, other than the fact

11   that it was operational, there's no way to determine the

12   condition of the cable if it's not being tested on a

13   regular basis.

14        Q.   And I guess, if the issue is, if -- if even

15   the people who installed this cable wouldn't have known

16   about the damage, and we're going to hold the company

17   responsible for that damage, would it be -- would it be

18   imprudent for the company -- wouldn't it be prudent then

19   for the company to -- to bear the costs of -- of

20   conducting inspections that would -- that would reveal

21   those types -- that type of damage?

22        A.   If you are asking me whether I think it's

23   prudent of a company to do testing on -- on this cable

24   on a regular basis to determine its condition, is that

25   what you are asking?
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 1        Q.   Well, I guess what I am asking is the --

 2   the -- the standard that we seem to be imposing on the

 3   company here is that there was damage -- we're all

 4   assuming there was damage upon installation here, but --

 5   and maybe the company didn't know about it.

 6             But if that's the case, I guess what I am

 7   worried about is a world in which we say, under those

 8   circumstances, the company bears the risk.  And then the

 9   company responds by saying, okay, we're going to go

10   examine and inspect every last square inch, every last

11   cable of all of our plants, at enormous costs, because

12   we don't want to have to bear those costs going forward.

13   And the rate payers ultimately having to pay for that

14   type of a mitigation procedure.

15             And -- and so I guess what I am wondering is,

16   if we, you know, there's something of a ying and yang

17   here.  If we impose that sort of a standard on the

18   company, are -- are we -- shouldn't we worry about the

19   cost that the -- the rate payers will ultimately be

20   asked to bear in response to that?

21        A.   I can't answer your question directly, but

22   what -- what I can say is that it merits attention.  It

23   merits a review of good practices in the industry and a

24   change in practices to -- to align with those.  I don't

25   believe it is prudent to put a cable in the ground and
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 1   never touch it again for 40 years.  I don't think -- I

 2   don't think that's a good -- that's a good idea on any

 3   level.

 4             So now the question is, how often should it be

 5   tested.  Again, without doing more research and

 6   understanding the exact situation, I can't give you an

 7   answer as to what is right.  But you are right, carte

 8   blanche, no, you are not going to want everything tested

 9   every year, no.  You're not trying to gold plate what's

10   going on by no means.

11             But we are trying to reach reasonable level.

12   Right now, no tests, installation with no testing, if

13   that's true, and I don't know that that's even the case,

14   but I -- I have seen nothing on the record that tells me

15   that this isn't.  So I am kind of left up in the air.

16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Dave --

17   Dave Johnson Unit 4.  I think this is the last one.

18   Excuse me.  And this is the --

19        A.   Excuse me.

20        Q.   -- the -- the issue where we had a planned

21   outage that ended up getting extended because the

22   company's contractor, MD&A, had installed the wrong part

23   in an impeller.

24             And I think we have talked about this enough,

25   but -- but I think it would be useful because we've done
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 1   it with all the other ones to have you tell me what you

 2   think the -- the imprudent action here was.

 3        A.   Well, fundamentally, the company gave work to

 4   a firm that wasn't staffed to do the work properly.  Not

 5   only wasn't it staffed, but it didn't have the QC

 6   controls in place to recognize fundamental errors.  I

 7   mean, we are talking about a component that was shipped

 8   with the wrong impeller, and the -- and the MD&A

 9   admitting that they -- that they didn't have the proper

10   quality control checks to make sure that that didn't

11   happen.  I mean, that's puzzling.

12             You know, I agree that MD&A, as the company

13   says, they are not a fly by night type of outfit or

14   anything like that.  But by the same token, they took

15   work that they weren't prepared to do, by their own

16   admission, and they didn't have the proper procedures in

17   place to make sure that the wrong component didn't go

18   out the door.

19             At the end of the day, we heard a little bit

20   about liquidated damages, and that was the first time I

21   heard about liquidated damages associated with that

22   event.  And that's fine, that's a good thing, but it's

23   still not the total exposure.  The rest of the exposure

24   is covered by the customers in replacement power cost.

25        Q.   If it had been the company that performed this
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 1   work in the way MD&A had performed it, how does that

 2   change the analysis or does it in your view?

 3        A.   I don't think it changes it.

 4        Q.   Because it's MD&A, we -- we have spent a fair

 5   bit of time talking about ways that the company could

 6   have mitigated those losses, or -- or -- or planned

 7   against those losses as opposed to just eating the

 8   costs, I suppose.  I don't know.

 9        A.   Sure.

10        Q.   But -- but I think that raises an interesting

11   question of, when the company hires outside contractors

12   to perform certain work, does that insulate the company

13   in a way from the negative effects of somebody making a

14   mistake along the way?

15        A.   I mean, that's the compelling concern, that if

16   you take this to the extreme, then the company could

17   simply outsource everything it does, and it's not

18   responsible for anything.

19        Q.   And we have, as I mentioned, spent a fair bit

20   of time talking about the company's efforts or what --

21   what the company could have done or did do to mitigate

22   the -- the potential risks here.  I am interested in

23   your views about consequential damages provisions or --

24   or provisions that waive consequential damages.

25             I think the company has indicated that -- that
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 1   including a provision that would allow the company to go

 2   after a contractor for, you know, replacement power

 3   costs in the event of -- of -- of a mistake would --

 4   would be prohibitive.  I am interested in your views

 5   about that.

 6        A.   I would agree that it's very costly.  I mean,

 7   nobody wants the burden of replacement power costs,

 8   which is all the more reason to put greater focus on the

 9   company's responsibility in its oversight of any

10   third-party vendor, be it through whatever contractual

11   means possible.

12             Whether it's LDs, whether it's consequences,

13   what -- whatever it might be, the company needs to do

14   everything possible to make sure that the customer is

15   getting the value they are expecting from their third

16   party contractor or third party operator owner.

17             MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.  I think that's all the

18   questions I have.  Thank you for your time.

19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Rocky

20   Mountain Power, any questions for this witness?

21             MR. MOSCON:  Yes.

22                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

23   BY MR. MOSCON:

24        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. DiDomenico.

25        A.   Good afternoon.
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 1        Q.   I'll be honest that I don't relish taking you

 2   through what I count would be the sixth trip through all

 3   of these seven outages by my calculation that this group

 4   would have listened to today.

 5        A.   Lucky seven.

 6        Q.   So I -- I think I might have to go off script

 7   a little bit, just for all of our sakes.  But before I

 8   begin, I want to -- I want to just touch a little bit on

 9   your background and your -- your frame of reference.  If

10   I understand correctly, you have been working as a

11   consultant for 22 years now.  Is that right?

12        A.   That's about right.  22, 23.

13        Q.   You haven't worked for a utility company since

14   1997; is that right?

15        A.   Sounds about right.

16        Q.   So when we are talking today about what is

17   standard practice and how utilities do this or do that,

18   any change since 1997 at least is something that you

19   would have just kind of learned academically, for lack

20   of a better word, rather than something where you can

21   say, yes, I was there when we made that change in 2011?

22        A.   Well, certainly just research is part of it,

23   but you are neglecting the fact that in my career as a

24   consultant, I have been essentially an advisor to those

25   very same electric utility customers from an advisory
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 1   strategic perspective, whether it's in the care and

 2   feeding of their equipment, asset management related

 3   responsibilities, organizational responsibilities,

 4   reliability related questions.

 5             I deal with clients, mainly utility clients,

 6   not as much with commissions, relative to issues related

 7   to performance and capital investment.

 8        Q.   And sure, and that's, I guess, what I mean

 9   about academically.  You have been there.  You have seen

10   it.  You have studied it.  You haven't been working at a

11   utility since the mid nineties; is that right?

12        A.   True enough.

13        Q.   All right.  There's -- there's one area,

14   and -- and I may just be -- just to make the point,

15   belabor our very first outage that we have probably

16   heard the most about, because again, it kind of makes a

17   point that stays consistent with the other outages.

18        A.   Sure.

19        Q.   And just because I already have it open

20   because Mr. Russell turned us to it, I am going to ask

21   you, and any that care to follow, to turn to page 24 in

22   your confidential report.  It was attached to your first

23   filed testimony.

24        A.   24, yes.

25        Q.   Page 24.  That's where the -- what you refer
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 1   to as avoidable outages begin, right?

 2        A.   Correct.

 3        Q.   Okay.  Now, when you were answering some

 4   questions of Mr. Russell, I -- I wrote something down,

 5   and I -- I tried to write exactly what you were saying.

 6   But I could have missed a word or two, but it, it really

 7   struck me about something.

 8             You -- you recall when you were asked, is cost

 9   something that you took into consideration?  And I

10   heard -- understood you to essentially say, not really.

11   I just looked at should this have happened or that have

12   happened.  I wasn't considering costs, right?

13        A.   That's correct.

14        Q.   But you also agreed that a utility in the real

15   world, when it needs to make decisions, has to balance

16   cost with risk.  Is that correct?

17        A.   I would agree.

18        Q.   And so the recommendations that you have made

19   about prudence, of course, are not necessarily the same

20   that a company would make, because while you are saying,

21   I made these determinations without considering costs,

22   of course, this utility or any utility must consider

23   cost, correct?

24        A.   Correct.

25        Q.   You are not a lawyer, I understand.  Are you

0179

 1   familiar with a phrase, strict liability?

 2        A.   Just generally.

 3        Q.   The thing that I wrote down is, when we were

 4   talking about the Craig Unit 2, this is, of course, is

 5   the famous bolt that came out, near -- near the end you

 6   had a statement.  And you wrote -- or I tried to write

 7   what you said.  The bolt wasn't there.  I don't know

 8   why, so the company should be responsible.

 9             I mean, you were summarizing a lot.

10   Obviously, you had more to it than that.

11        A.   Yeah, it went a little it deeper than that,

12   but yes.

13        Q.   You understand that.  And to me as a lawyer,

14   that is the essence of strict liability, which is, I

15   don't know whether there's negligence or not, but

16   something happened.  I have to pick someone to blame, so

17   I am going to hold the company responsible.  And that's

18   the point that I'd like to explore a little bit with our

19   questions, okay?

20        A.   But I don't think that's a fair

21   characterization, but okay.  Go ahead.

22        Q.   But those -- I mean, in this case, you don't

23   know, like we don't know, no one -- you don't know why

24   the bolt came out, correct?  Or the plug, I shouldn't

25   say the bolt.
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 1        A.   You're right.  But do I have -- can I clarify?

 2        Q.   Sure.

 3        A.   The company's fundamental position is that

 4   there were procedures in place that were followed.

 5        Q.   Uh-huh, yes.

 6        A.   Right.  That's on the record.  I maintain that

 7   if there are procedures in place, and the bolt -- the

 8   bolt falls out, somebody didn't do their job right,

 9   right?  There's a -- there's a problem there.  That's

10   not strict liability.  That's somebody not following

11   procedure.  There is no procedure that says, loosely put

12   in this bolt and hope it stays in there.

13        Q.   So the logical conclusion is, if something

14   goes wrong, anything goes wrong in a plant anywhere,

15   somebody didn't do their job because bolts or cables or

16   lines or things, things don't just happen, right?

17        A.   Most of the time that is correct.

18        Q.   And again, to me, I am saying, strict

19   liability.  Something goes wrong, I am going to surmise

20   somebody must have done something wrong.  I don't know

21   what, but somebody must have done something wrong?

22        A.   In this case -- I'm -- I'm not sure I am

23   following your -- your line of thinking 100 percent.  I

24   get the gist of what you are saying, but I am not trying

25   to imply that no matter what happens it's somebody's
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 1   fault.

 2             What I am saying is, in this situation there

 3   were procedures in place that weren't followed.  If

 4   you -- if you have procedures in place that -- that

 5   someone doesn't follow, that's a problem.

 6        Q.   Okay.  Well, let's actually go through the

 7   procedures and see which ones weren't followed.  Okay.

 8   For -- for Craig Unit 2, you agree with me, don't you,

 9   that the seal, the -- the whatever we call it, the

10   silicone.

11        A.   Silicone.

12        Q.   That was put in place, right?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   That procedure was followed, right?

15        A.   You know, that's the problem with this

16   particular outage, as I have already mentioned.  There

17   was no detailed, at least nothing that was provided to

18   us, in terms of detailed root cause analysis as to what

19   actually happened.

20             I'm -- I'm -- I'm dealing with a void of

21   information, and I'm -- I'm picking up bits and pieces

22   from testimony here today.  But by and large, just my

23   general background in -- in being in this industry, GE

24   is not working on a generator without procedures for the

25   proper installation of these bolts, right?  These plugs,

0182

 1   excuse me.  So I am surmising that.  I have no evidence

 2   to that effect.

 3        Q.   I want to follow through then.  Am I correct

 4   then that for this Craig Unit 2, I -- I thought you said

 5   earlier, procedures and policies were in place and they

 6   weren't followed.  I now kind of understand you to

 7   say --

 8        A.   That's what the company told me.

 9        Q.   Yes.  But are you able, as you sit here today,

10   to articulate, here is the procedure that wasn't

11   followed?

12        A.   No.

13        Q.   Okay.  In fact, we know that the bolt got put

14   back in, right?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   We know that it got tightened to some -- the

17   bolt, the plug, we know it got tightened to some degree,

18   right?

19        A.   Logically.

20        Q.   We know that there was not just an assumption

21   that they were put in, because we know that there was

22   actually a test to make sure that this thing sealed up,

23   right?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   We know it was pressurized to 48 psi, right?
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 1        A.   Yes.

 2        Q.   And maintained pressure for 24 hours, right?

 3        A.   Correct.

 4        Q.   And then someone went to see, is it leaking,

 5   right, and it was not leaking, right?

 6        A.   Yeah.  I think it was within 24 hours it

 7   started leaking.

 8        Q.   Well, we know --

 9        A.   The second 24 hours.

10        Q.   Okay.  We know that for the test it didn't

11   leak, there was no leaking at the pressurization test,

12   right?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   Okay.  So we know that it was put on.  It was

15   tightened.  There was a visual inspection.  There was

16   beyond a visual inspection.  There was a pressurization

17   inspection, followed by a visual inspection of looking

18   for leaks, and all of those things passed, right?

19        A.   I don't know that we know there was a visual

20   inspection.

21        Q.   How else would they determine whether it was

22   leaking?

23        A.   From the pressure test perspective.  At the

24   time of the test, yes, they did a pressure test, I

25   agree.
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 1        Q.   Okay.

 2        A.   But you are talking about at the onset before

 3   they put it back together again.  Are you saying that

 4   someone looked at it to make sure that everything was

 5   the way it was supposed to be before it was reassembled?

 6        Q.   I know I am also surmising that when they

 7   pressurized it to see if it was leaking, someone walked

 8   up to it and said, I am looking at the plugs, and are

 9   they leaking, yes or no, right?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Okay.

12        A.   The answer is yes.

13        Q.   So we know that some eyes were put on this

14   thing, right?

15        A.   On the equipment.

16        Q.   Yes.

17        A.   I don't know about the plugs themselves.

18        Q.   And so what I am saying is, you cannot, as you

19   sit here, point to a point in that timeline and say,

20   right there is where the utility, Rocky Mountain Power,

21   messed up, right?

22        A.   Agreed.

23        Q.   Just for sake of time and brevity and because

24   we have been through this a little bit, I am going to

25   combine the Dave Johnston Unit 3 April and September
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 1   outages.  I know they are different outages, but we have

 2   kind of been through this a little bit before.

 3             One thing that you have said today on the

 4   stand is that one of your recommendations for a

 5   disallowance is because the company had been repeatedly

 6   warned by its metallurgist and ignored that, and I'd

 7   like to draw your attention to, if you are looking at

 8   page 25, the third from the bottom paragraph that begins

 9   "The repeat nature."  Do you see that?

10        A.   The -- the second paragraph.

11        Q.   Well, I guess depending if you call the

12   duration of this outage as a paragraph.

13        A.   Okay.  The repeat nature, I got it.

14        Q.   Right.  Okay.  So will you just -- in fact I

15   don't think there's anything in that paragraph that's

16   confidential.  I'll ask anybody to speak up if there is,

17   but I was just going to ask you to just read that

18   paragraph for us, the repeat nature.

19        A.   "The repeat nature of the outage event

20   combined with the company's lack of attention to

21   modifying its deslagging practices, despite being

22   forewarned that such practices were a precipitating

23   cause of failures, is unacceptable, avoidable and a

24   cause of disallowance recommendation."

25        Q.   Okay.  And the warning that you are referring
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 1   to that you quote actually up in the true second

 2   paragraph of this page is the IEC's June 16th, 2017,

 3   metallurgical report; is that correct?

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   Okay.  So when you say that the company was

 6   ignoring the forewarning that it received from its

 7   metallurgist, you were mistaken, are you not, because

 8   Mr. Ralston has indicated that in fact they had already

 9   done what the metallurgist recommended in 2017, six

10   years prior in 2011?

11        A.   The only point I would make is that this

12   report was produced before that information was

13   available.

14        Q.   This report.  Oh, you mean your report --

15        A.   Correct.

16        Q.   -- we are looking at.  Oh, what you are saying

17   is the reason you wrote what we just read is because you

18   didn't know that the company had already done that back

19   in 2011?

20        A.   Not in the supplemental -- this was

21   supplemental information that was provided.

22        Q.   Okay.  I understand.  So you would agree with

23   me that the rationale that you put here in your report

24   is incorrect?

25        A.   It's -- it's incorrect if you take on face
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 1   value the testimony that Mr. Ralston gave.

 2        Q.   Okay.  And not just what you have written

 3   here, but the times that you have said today here

 4   sitting in that chair about how the company was

 5   repeatedly warned by its metallurgist and didn't comply,

 6   that was also incorrect, wasn't it?

 7        A.   Yes.  Based on the most recent testimony, it's

 8   true.  But again, I want to -- I want to make sure we

 9   understand each other.  I don't understand why the

10   metallurgist in 2017 keeps harping on the company

11   changing its practices that the company has said they

12   changed back before 2011.

13        Q.   So your recommendation to this commission is

14   that they charge the company a lot of money because you

15   don't understand why a metallurgist said that in his

16   report in 2017?

17        A.   I think you are trivializing what I am trying

18   to say.  It is very confusing to see that a metallurgist

19   that is a partner in this with the company, for some

20   reason has no idea what the company's blasting practices

21   are.

22        Q.   Is this a possibility, and I -- and I realize

23   00 because I don't want it to seem like I am

24   trivializing.  I realize I am going to ask you a

25   question that neither you or I know the answer to.
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 1             Is it possible that simply a metallurgist,

 2   like a lot of hired professionals getting a piece of

 3   metal has almost a boilerplate report that kind of like

 4   sticks in a paragraph that says, I see this, it could be

 5   this.  By the way if you are not doing it already, you

 6   should go to this route?

 7        A.   You know, I -- I hate is-it-possible

 8   questions, because I think pretty much anything is

 9   possible.  But I would say this, that in my experience

10   working with metallurgists, and I have in my career,

11   it's not -- if -- if that's the way it's working, then

12   you need to change the way the partnership is working.

13             There's no point in sending out and paying

14   good money to have a metallurgist give you generic

15   solutions to problems that you are not going to pay any

16   attention to.

17        Q.   As you sit here with your years of experience

18   that you have described, you've provided no information

19   in your report that using detonation cord to deslag to

20   protect for the safety of workers is outside of industry

21   standard, correct?

22        A.   No, not -- not at all.  It is industry

23   standard.

24        Q.   All right.  Let's jump forward then to the

25   Huntington 1, which is the May 3rd thing I've combined.
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 1   We did Greg 2, Dave Johnston 3, the two outages.  The

 2   next one is the Huntington unit.  In your report it's on

 3   page 26.

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   Again, there was a line of questioning about,

 6   by Mr. Russell about the cost associated, and when you

 7   would do this, and when you wouldn't do it.  And if I

 8   understood you correctly, you said words to the

 9   effect -- this wasn't a quote -- look, something

10   happened.  There was one failure in around 2008, 2011,

11   whenever, and then nothing really changes between No. 3

12   and No. 4.  But then all of a sudden at No. 4, the

13   company moves into action.

14             And I guess my question to you is, is that a

15   mistake?  Is that an error?  Is there a reason why -- is

16   there some industry standard that you can refer us to

17   that says you should do it at incident No. 3 not

18   incident No. 4?

19        A.   There is no industry standard to that effect.

20   But from a general experience perspective, the company

21   knows full well the extent of the problem with

22   dissimilar metal welds.  It's an industry problem.  It's

23   not unique to any particular company.

24             You know you have the problem.  You know you

25   have that type of equipment.  It starts to fail.  Why
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 1   are we waiting until the fourth outage before we

 2   determine the extent of the problem?  I am not saying

 3   replace it.  I am saying determine the extent of the

 4   problem.

 5             After outage No. 3, it was too expensive to do

 6   the testing.  Outage 4, we do the testing, it's not a

 7   problem.  I am saying you should do it sooner.  You

 8   could have done it sooner.

 9        Q.   The testing, not the replacement?

10        A.   Not the replacement.  I am talking about the

11   testing.  The -- the imprudent part of this is that

12   because we have delayed in testing, in determining the

13   extent of the problem, we are now locked into 2022, 14

14   years after this problem first manifests itself, before

15   we are actually going to implement a complete solution.

16        Q.   You were here when Mr. Ralston testified about

17   the 1 percent failure rate.

18        A.   Sure.

19        Q.   And about the approximate $2 million cost?

20        A.   Understood.

21        Q.   And you have agreed several times about a

22   utility needing to balance what could happen with the

23   cost to mitigate it, right?

24        A.   Agreed.

25        Q.   I just want to know, yes or no, because I
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 1   didn't see it in your report, but for this commission to

 2   consider, is it your opinion that it was imprudent for

 3   this utility, after only three incidents, to say, we are

 4   going to take something that is less than a 1 percent

 5   failure rate, that would cost more than $2 million to

 6   fix and not have it scheduled yet?

 7             Is that imprudent to make that decision, to

 8   say we're -- we're going to delay a $2 million expense

 9   when we only have a 1 percent failure rate?

10        A.   On the face of that, no.  But that's not what

11   I am talking about.  I am talking about assessing the

12   degree of the problem that you have.  They -- they --

13   the company was well aware of the problem.  Once the,

14   the outages started to manifest themselves, they could

15   have done the testing to determine the degree of the

16   problem after the first outage, after the second outage,

17   after the third outage.

18             But they waited until after the fourth outage

19   before they were motivated to do the testing required to

20   determine, to even determine the condition.  Prior to

21   2018, they had nothing viable to tell them what the

22   condition of that equipment was.  The reheater, I

23   believe.

24        Q.   Well, let's actually look back.  There was an

25   outage in 2018, right?
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 1        A.   There was.

 2        Q.   The one before that was in 2014, right?

 3        A.   Yep.  Four -- every four years to my

 4   understanding.

 5        Q.   Which means at that outage, they had only had

 6   two weld failures, right?

 7        A.   Yes.

 8        Q.   And so at the last outage, you know, going

 9   back before this one, they had only had two times in

10   their history where they had had a problem with this; is

11   that right?

12        A.   Yes.  But again, it's a problem.  It's --

13   it's -- you don't have to wait for a problem to

14   materialize before you address the concern, right?

15   That's -- that's what -- that's what we are talking

16   about here.  It's a matter of being prudent about the --

17   the investigation of the problem before it manifests

18   itself.

19             We heard about hockey curves a little while

20   ago.  This is the type of problem that can overnight

21   become a major concern, in rapid order, potentially.

22   And this is not a secret.  This is not my testimony.

23   This is industry information, well known industry

24   information.

25             So all I am suggesting is, they could have
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 1   determined the extent of the problem sooner, and if they

 2   had, potentially, they could have scheduled a

 3   replacement for 2018.  Assuming -- a lot of assuming

 4   going on here, assuming that the condition that was

 5   found from their testing indicated it warranted that

 6   kind of replacement.

 7             Apparently 2018 testing basically said you

 8   ought to do this because I understand it's scheduled for

 9   replacement in 2022.

10        Q.   Would you agree with me, before we move on

11   from this point, that even if the company had done that

12   and had scheduled a 20 -- this to be part of the 2018

13   outage, none of that would have prevented the 2017

14   outage that occurred?

15        A.   That's correct.

16        Q.   All right.  I apologize for the delay.  I am

17   trying to figure out which of these paths you have been

18   drug down two or three times, or the commission has four

19   or five times already.  Let's -- let's talk for a minute

20   about Jim Bridger Unit 3, and this, just so we're clear,

21   is the -- the underground wire that gets flooded?

22        A.   Yeah, the heat.  I'm sorry.  Okay, the

23   underground wire.

24        Q.   The conduit, that, you know, the pull that

25   everybody's presuming something gets damaged in when
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 1   it's getting pulled and then it floods that way?

 2        A.   Yes.

 3        Q.   In questioning from Mr. Russell, you indicated

 4   that, okay, if I understood correctly, you conceded fair

 5   enough, I agree there's no visible way that this

 6   company, or a similar utility, would have known that

 7   conduit got damaged when it was -- or cable got damaged

 8   when it was being pulled through the conduit.  So your

 9   suggestion is there ought to be regular tests.

10             I take it just like the -- the cost question

11   that we covered at the beginning, you have not put any

12   kind of pen to paper to consider how many cables and how

13   many conduits this company has, and how much time or

14   money it would take to run around and test every piece

15   of electrical cable that goes through a conduit?

16        A.   I haven't done that analysis, no.

17        Q.   Are you able to cite for us today any industry

18   standard that says, utilities should go and test their

19   electric cables, even though they are operational, every

20   X period of time, just in case something's going on that

21   we can't see?

22        A.   I can't point to anything specific, no.

23        Q.   Let's move to the -- the last outage, which is

24   the Dave Johnson Unit 4, March 17th.  So we're all on

25   it, this is the MD&A wrong impeller gets sent back.
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 1   Okay.  And I don't think, again, the facts are in

 2   dispute, wrong impeller gets sent back.

 3             Would you agree with me that the company

 4   was -- well, I guess, I may have to ask you whether you

 5   are aware of any evidence that would contradict this,

 6   because I don't know what's been provided to you, so I

 7   will ask and then you can fill in the blanks.

 8             Are you aware of any evidence that would

 9   indicate that this company, Rocky Mountain Power, failed

10   to administer the contract that it had with MD&A

11   properly?

12        A.   I, I have no information either way.

13        Q.   Are you aware of any information that

14   indicates that it failed to monitor the activities of

15   its contractor?

16        A.   Again, no information.

17        Q.   Okay.  Are you -- and you provide no evidence

18   that they failed to provide oversight there at the job

19   site where the contractor was performing the work,

20   right?

21        A.   I -- I have no evidence to that effect, no.

22        Q.   In fact, when the piece of equipment actually

23   shows up at the plant is when there is an inspection and

24   it's discovered, we got the wrong piece of equipment,

25   right?
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 1        A.   Right.  Yes, correct.

 2        Q.   And so the only way that the power company

 3   could have prevented this is literally if it had been

 4   back at MDA's factory watching the guy put which

 5   impeller in which box that he mailed out; is that right?

 6        A.   Yes, to a degree that's correct.  The -- the

 7   notion, just -- just to be clear, the notion of the

 8   utility going to a factory site to check on the status

 9   of its work is not foreign.  That -- that is done all

10   the time.

11             Now, do I know whether the company did that or

12   not?  I don't.  I don't know either way.  But I am

13   speculating that if they had, it would have seen

14   problems.

15        Q.   But if I represent to you that in fact -- but

16   you are correct, the company does and did, you have no

17   reason to dispute that, right?

18        A.   (Witness shakes head.)

19        Q.   And so you, again, cannot point to any

20   specific process or procedure that Rocky Mountain Power

21   did that did not meet industry standard?

22        A.   I can't point to anything specific there, no.

23        Q.   The next topic that you cover in your report

24   that we have discussed here is the third-party

25   operators, and you -- again, I am going to paraphrase,
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 1   but words to the effect that the participation agreement

 2   that the company has entered into with Tri-State is

 3   deficient because the customers are left kind of at risk

 4   because the company is unable to enforce certain things

 5   against Tri-State.

 6             Again, I know you didn't state those exacts

 7   words, but I am just trying to make that point.  Is that

 8   a general paraphrase?

 9        A.   The general notion that the customer is on the

10   hook for everything that happens, that goes wrong from a

11   replacement cost power perspective.

12        Q.   And you didn't disagree when asked by others

13   about whether shifting all of the risk to an operator

14   would in fact increase the amount that an operator would

15   want to charge for its services, right?

16        A.   Yes.  Potentially, yes.

17        Q.   And are you aware of the fact that the

18   specific participation agreement that you are referring

19   to, the Tri-State agreement, was subject to review by

20   your client, the DPU, and also later by this commission?

21        A.   I am not aware of that.

22        Q.   Can I take a one minute just to go through and

23   see what I have skipped?  I have been kind of bouncing

24   around here.  Hold on a minute.

25             That's it for now.  That's all the questions.
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 1   Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.

 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any

 3   redirect, Mr. Jetter?

 4             MR. JETTER:  I'll try to keep this very brief.

 5   A little bit of redirect.

 6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 7   BY MR. JETTER:

 8        Q.   I'd like to just reference back to the missing

 9   plug.  Starting out my question, I understand that this

10   is a -- I am trying to make this not a legal question.

11             Was your understanding of your task or your --

12   your -- your job as -- as it was outlined by the

13   Division of Public Utilities, to bear the burden of

14   proof that something was imprudent, or -- or was it

15   asked of you to demonstrate that the company had failed

16   to meet a burden of proof that it has?

17        A.   It was my understanding that it wasn't my

18   charge to prove -- prove the burden of proof.  The

19   burden of proof rests with the company.

20        Q.   Thank you.

21        A.   That's my understanding.

22        Q.   And additionally, is it your understanding

23   that GE, who installed the plugs, admitted fault?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   And do you think that they would have done
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 1   that because they are nice people?

 2             MR. MOSCON:  Calls for speculation of course.

 3        A.   No, not likely.

 4        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Thank you.  Sort of the same

 5   line of questions regarding the impeller.  Was it your

 6   task, were you tasked by the division to seek out the

 7   reason that the impeller showed up, which was an

 8   incorrect impeller?

 9        A.   No.

10        Q.   And is it -- is it your understanding from the

11   data responses from the company that it was visually the

12   incorrect part?

13        A.   It was visually identified as the incorrect

14   part once it got to the plant.

15             MR. JETTER:  Okay.  I don't think I have -- I

16   don't have any further questions.

17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  And maybe it's too

18   late, but I am going to sustain the objection to the

19   question about GE's motive.

20             MR. MOSCON:  Thanks.

21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  So that sustaining is on the

22   record.  You have nothing further?

23             MR. JETTER:  Nothing.

24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any -- any recross,

25   Mr. Russell or Mr. Moscon?
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 1             MR. MOSCON:  No, thank you.

 2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't we take a 10 minute

 3   break before commissioner questions for Mr. DiDomenico.

 4   So we'll come back at five minutes until four.

 5             Yeah.  Well, yeah, we probably won't take

 6   another break before we have our conversation about

 7   legal standards that we discussed earlier this morning,

 8   so we'll be in recess for 10 minutes.

 9             (Recess from 3:45 p.m. to 3:55 p.m.)

10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the

11   record.  I think we are finished with all direct and

12   cross and redirect for Mr. DiDomenico, and we're ready

13   for commissioner questions.  If I am mistaken about

14   that, somebody let me know.  Okay.  Commissioner Clark,

15   do you have any questions for him?

16             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I do have a question.

17                          EXAMINATION

18   BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:

19        Q.   I think it might boil down what I have heard

20   you say about the Craig Unit 2 plug situation.  I think

21   what you have told us is that because there wasn't root

22   cause analysis, you are left with no explanation,

23   really, for why the plug came out.  And is that -- is

24   that --

25        A.   I would agree.  No detailed explanation as to
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 1   why it came out.

 2        Q.   Right.  Right.

 3        A.   We're left with supposition.

 4        Q.   That it vibrated out?

 5        A.   Maybe.  It was a defective plug, maybe.

 6        Q.   So that -- maybe you started to answer my

 7   question.  My -- my question is, what -- what would a

 8   root cause analysis potentially have revealed that would

 9   be useful?  Or in other words, could -- could we --

10   could we learn -- what could we learn from -- from --

11   from a root cause analysis?

12             I mean that's -- that's -- that's what I am

13   asking.  And as I am thinking about this, I am thinking,

14   well, maybe the plug was defective, I guess, is

15   something we might know.

16        A.   I mean, fundamentally, we want to try to

17   understand what drove, what occurred.  We want to

18   understand the true mechanism, not just, hey, we -- hey,

19   look, we found a plug on the ground.  That must have

20   been it.  I mean, because that's what we have right now.

21   I mean, that's -- that's the full nature of it.

22             Would it be helpful to understand in detail

23   what procedures were or weren't followed?  Would it be

24   helpful to understand what the boots on the ground, so

25   to speak, actually did that day?  How -- how was it
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 1   handled?  What procedures were in place?  Was there some

 2   workmanship issue beyond just the plug?  What -- what --

 3   we don't know, we are left to sheer speculation in that

 4   regard.

 5             And -- and on top that of that, you talk about

 6   defective plugs.  You know, one question I would love to

 7   ask GE is, what did you do differently the second time

 8   around to put the plug back that you didn't do the first

 9   time around?  I don't have an answer for that.

10        Q.   We know that there was a pressure test and

11   that for 24 hours it --

12        A.   It held, yeah.

13        Q.   The -- the plug held?

14        A.   And that is standard operating procedure.

15   I'm -- I'm not denying that that's -- that's an

16   indicator.  But it's also very questionable when 24

17   hours later, when the unit has just started -- starts to

18   ramp up to normal operation, that a plug falls out.

19   That isn't normal.  That's not what's supposed to

20   happen.

21             And, again, keep in mind this is a critical

22   system we're talking about.  You know, leaking hydrogen

23   is not something to be taken lightly.  This is a system

24   that gets paid attention to.  So when they're doing the

25   repair, what exactly went on?  I don't know.  Just left
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 1   with questions.

 2             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank you.

 3             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner White?

 5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yeah.

 6                          EXAMINATION

 7   BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:

 8        Q.   Good afternoon.  Just a couple quick

 9   questions.  There was -- there was some dialogue

10   between, I believe it was between yourself and Mr.

11   Moscon about kind of a -- I believe that there was

12   agreement on your part there was, from a prudent utility

13   operator standpoint, a cost benefit analysis goes into

14   play and that's --

15        A.   Yes, I agree.

16        Q.   I -- I was just intrigued by, I think you

17   mentioned, maybe I misheard you, that there was -- you

18   said there was -- in that context there was potential

19   for a sharing type analysis.  Is that what -- help me

20   understand, or maybe give me a little bit more meat to

21   the bone on that.

22        A.   Well, I mean, fundamentally we are talking

23   about risk, right?  The risk of poor operation.  The

24   risk of power costs, just risk in general.  So now,

25   whether that risk gets shifted 100 percent from party A
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 1   to party B to party C, or is it split amongst the

 2   parties as a possibility?

 3             Because I think it was in the context of

 4   what -- what could possibly we do.  Sharing would be --

 5   would be one possibility.  Sharing that risk.  See, I

 6   keep coming back to the fact that the company is best

 7   positioned to make whatever assessments need to be made.

 8   There's no doubt about that.  Not their third-party

 9   contractor, not -- not anybody.  The company -- the

10   company itself is in the best position to look out for

11   the best interests of its customers.

12             And yes, it costs a great deal.  It costs more

13   to ensure against those risks, but that isn't a reason

14   to just de facto assume that you are not going to do --

15   that you shouldn't do it.  There's no analysis.  We just

16   have the broad statement that it costs a lot of money,

17   therefore we don't do it.  There's no analysis that

18   supports that, other than, you know, general experience.

19             So, yes, is there a possibility for cost

20   sharing, maybe sharing between the customer and the

21   company, maybe sharing between third party, all of them.

22   You know, we heard earlier about all the players

23   involved, right?  With -- with the plug situation, we

24   talk about, you know, Rocky Mountain or PacifiCorp

25   followed by Tri-State followed by GE, followed by I
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 1   think it's APM, the millwright.

 2             None of those parties are claiming replacement

 3   power costs concerns.  It's all about the customer.  So

 4   there needs to be a way to more formally integrate that

 5   into what's going on.

 6             Because I'll tell you, nothing -- nothing

 7   affects the way the utility operates -- we talk about a

 8   cost benefit analysis.  If part of their cost benefit

 9   analysis is the risk of incurring replacement power cost

10   penalties, that factors into their decision making.  If

11   they have no risk of replacement power cost penalties,

12   it's easier -- it's easier to defer doing something.

13   Makes sense.

14        Q.   So you -- you're suggesting like on an

15   outage-by-outage basis we -- we could potentially look

16   at the allocation of risk and potentially --

17        A.   Potentially.

18        Q.   I just want to ask you one more -- I just want

19   to give you an opportunity, the same opportunity I gave

20   Mr. Ralston, which is, you know, we are -- we're trying

21   to put ourselves, I guess, in the shoes of a prudent

22   utility operator and look at the facts at hand that were

23   known and are available, I guess, at the time and then

24   compare it against whatever the quote, unquote, prudent

25   standard is.
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 1             Is there anything else we should be looking at

 2   beyond -- I mean, it sounds like from Mr. Ralston's

 3   testimony, that much of his operational expertise and

 4   experience came into play into making decisions.  Is

 5   there something else we should be looking at, because --

 6   EPRI, anything else beyond that?

 7        A.   Well, certainly, yeah.  I mean, there are --

 8   there is certainly industry information.  There is other

 9   jurisdictions and how they are handling this.  You know,

10   unfortunately our industry has a lot of buzz words to

11   cover things that are very gray, you know, best utility

12   practices, you know, being one of them.

13             So there is no standard that you say -- the

14   standard is what you make it as a commission.  You

15   make -- you're going to make the standard, whatever it

16   is.  And it might be useful to compare what other --

17   what other jurisdictions are doing from a commission

18   perspective.  There -- there are precedents out there.

19             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Okay.  That's all the

20   questions I have.  Thank you.

21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't have anything

22   else.  Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.

23             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Anything further from any

25   party?  I am not seeing anything.  Well, Rocky Mountain
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 1   Power, do you want to go first on having an informal

 2   conversation about if you want to give us any of your

 3   thoughts on the legal standards we talked about in the

 4   beginning here?

 5             MR. MOSCON:  Yes.  And let me represent that

 6   the parties have throughout the day talked about this

 7   and what would be useful, so let me -- I am going to

 8   make a proposal that is not mine.  This is a joint

 9   proposal, but if the commission wants to reject it, of

10   course, that's up to the commission.

11             Because every -- all the parties kind of want

12   to not just say, well, here is what we think or here is

13   what we would argue, but to actually provide useful

14   information to the commission and to be correct.

15             What we would propose is as follows:  The

16   company pay to receive an expedited transcript of

17   today's hearing.  Let's assume that takes a week, to

18   then give the parties essentially two to two and a half

19   weeks to draft briefs that are 10 to 15 pages in length.

20   We'll follow whatever the commission says.  We want to

21   put an end on it so parties aren't just going on and on.

22             So let's just call that March 1st is when

23   those briefs would be due by the time you get the

24   transcript and then the briefing, and then ask that the

25   commission make a decision, using those briefs, by the
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 1   end of March.

 2             We recognize that that is after the next EBA

 3   filing, and the company recognizes that it's possible

 4   that would require the company to file an adjustment,

 5   you know, one or two weeks later.  The company is also

 6   willing to consider filing late, but that changes

 7   within -- I mean, that's kind of complicated so it's

 8   probably most likely that that the company files on time

 9   and then makes an adjustment if necessary.

10             Of course, the company is willing to have the

11   commission make a decision before then, but we recognize

12   it takes time to make a decision and get an order out.

13   And I think, I would like them to respond, but there's

14   consensus on this with -- with the other parties.

15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Anyone else have

16   anything to add?

17             MR. JETTER:  No.  Just -- just to confirm our

18   agreement.  It's a single round all at the same time.

19   Relatively short.

20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  You want a page limit?  Let

21   me just make sure I am understanding that.  A page limit

22   is desired?

23             MR. JETTER:  I -- I think we would prefer one.

24             MR. MOSCON:  Save us from ourselves.

25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  It is universally on 10 or
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 1   15, because that's really not -- not an issue to any of

 2   the three of us, but you tell us what you want it to be,

 3   and we'll say that.

 4             MR. RUSSELL:  I would prefer a 10 page limit,

 5   but I think the scope that UAE intends to -- of a brief

 6   that UAE intends to submit might be a little bit

 7   different than what the company or the division may

 8   intend to submit.  I think we are just going to focus on

 9   what we think the standard is without looking at the

10   transcript or submitting facts, but the others are free

11   to do however they want to.

12             MR. MOSCON:  I bill by the hour.  I'm

13   contractually obligated to ask for 15 over 10.  But

14   otherwise, I think it also makes sense just to have that

15   if we need it.

16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  And -- I, I think -- I

17   think I can represent from the commission if we are

18   talking about briefs filed by March 1st, hoping for a

19   decision by the end of March, I think we can commit to

20   that.  And if it's sooner than that, great, but I think

21   we can make as firm a commitment as we could ever make

22   to end of March under that time frame.

23             Do we need a written scheduling order for

24   this, or is doing this verbally here for the parties who

25   are present?  Does anybody see a need for a written
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 1   scheduling order?

 2             MR. JETTER:  I don't think so.  The only

 3   question I have is -- is, I know that the Office of

 4   Consumer Services is a party by -- by statute, I

 5   believe.  I don't -- and I think they have also

 6   participated at some level.  I -- I would assume that

 7   they may have the opportunity, if they wanted.

 8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Just to -- to -- to --

 9   to -- to avoid any complicated issue, I think we'll just

10   issue a written scheduling order to that effect.  So I

11   don't have my calendar in front of me, but are we -- are

12   we talking March 1st?  And what -- what day of the week

13   is March 1st?  Is that -- is that a weekday?

14             MR. JETTER:  That's a Friday.

15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is that our due date

16   then for -- for 15 page maximum briefs?

17             MS. HOGLE:  Yes.

18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Any other matters?

19   Okay.  We are adjourned, and we will issue a scheduling

20   order in the next day or two.

21             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.

22             (The hearing concluded at 4:08 p.m.)

23

24

25
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 1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

 2   STATE OF UTAH       )

 3   COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

 4        THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

 5   were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

 6   Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary

 7   Public in and for the State of Utah.

 8        That the proceedings were reported by me in

 9   Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under

10   my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct

11   transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages,

12   numbered 5 through 210 inclusive.

13        I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise

14   associated with any of the parties to said cause of

15   action, and that I am not interested in the event

16   thereof.
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		163						LN		6		23		false		              23             And the last preliminary matter is, I wanted				false

		164						LN		6		24		false		              24   to invite the attorneys to have a conversation on the --				false

		165						LN		6		25		false		              25   on -- on the legal standards, either at the beginning of				false

		166						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		167						LN		7		1		false		               1   the hearing or at the end, or if you tell me you would				false

		168						LN		7		2		false		               2   rather not have this conversation as -- as part of the				false

		169						LN		7		3		false		               3   hearing, we'll just deal with it in testimony, we're --				false

		170						LN		7		4		false		               4   we can come to our own legal conclusions too.  But we				false

		171						LN		7		5		false		               5   would invite any input that -- that the attorneys would				false

		172						LN		7		6		false		               6   like to give.				false

		173						LN		7		7		false		               7             Obviously, we -- we could probably all in the				false

		174						LN		7		8		false		               8   room recite 54-44 on the prudent standard in our sleep,				false

		175						LN		7		9		false		               9   but this hearing presents some unique issues with				false

		176						LN		7		10		false		              10   respect to that standard, particularly the -- the				false

		177						LN		7		11		false		              11   relevance to a prudent evaluation of subsequent				false

		178						LN		7		12		false		              12   corrective action or the standards for evaluating				false

		179						LN		7		13		false		              13   prudence where there is a plant operator or co-owner				false

		180						LN		7		14		false		              14   involved or a contractor relationship and what -- what				false

		181						LN		7		15		false		              15   the legal standards are.				false

		182						LN		7		16		false		              16             So if the attorneys would like to have a				false

		183						LN		7		17		false		              17   conversation at some point, we're happy to have that				false

		184						LN		7		18		false		              18   conversation now or circle back at the end of the				false

		185						LN		7		19		false		              19   hearing if anyone -- if anyone wants to provide thoughts				false

		186						LN		7		20		false		              20   that would give us any guidance as we -- as we				false

		187						LN		7		21		false		              21   deliberate on these issues.				false

		188						LN		7		22		false		              22             MR. MOSCON:  I -- I would suggest, if it				false

		189						LN		7		23		false		              23   please the commission, that at the end would be				false

		190						LN		7		24		false		              24   appropriate.  I think it is something that's worth				false

		191						LN		7		25		false		              25   addressing, but I think after the information has been				false

		192						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		193						LN		8		1		false		               1   received, the commission's probably going to be in the				false

		194						LN		8		2		false		               2   best circumstance to ask back to the attorneys the				false

		195						LN		8		3		false		               3   questions about it.  So on this point, what does that				false

		196						LN		8		4		false		               4   mean or how does this play out?				false

		197						LN		8		5		false		               5             So I just suggest at the end that you invite				false

		198						LN		8		6		false		               6   interested counsel to give their input on what the legal				false

		199						LN		8		7		false		               7   standard for any topic is.  Then you can question back.				false

		200						LN		8		8		false		               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		201						LN		8		9		false		               9   Mr. Jetter?				false

		202						LN		8		10		false		              10             MR. JETTER:  I -- I think that's fine.  I				false

		203						LN		8		11		false		              11   am -- I'm happy to do it at any point.  So whatever --				false

		204						LN		8		12		false		              12   whatever the commission, works best for you guys.  I				false

		205						LN		8		13		false		              13   think that's really the core of what we are here today				false

		206						LN		8		14		false		              14   for.  I am not sure there's a lot of facts at issue, so				false

		207						LN		8		15		false		              15   I think it's somewhat of a matter for first impression				false

		208						LN		8		16		false		              16   for this commission and an important issue certainly to				false

		209						LN		8		17		false		              17   us, so we're happy to address it whenever you find it				false

		210						LN		8		18		false		              18   most convenient.				false

		211						LN		8		19		false		              19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.				false

		212						LN		8		20		false		              20   Mr. Russell?				false

		213						LN		8		21		false		              21             MR. RUSSELL:  I agree both with Mr. Jetter and				false

		214						LN		8		22		false		              22   Mr. Moscon, and I think maybe we can circle back at the				false

		215						LN		8		23		false		              23   end.  I -- I did, because this is an issue, as				false

		216						LN		8		24		false		              24   Mr. Jetter said, of first impression, I did do some				false

		217						LN		8		25		false		              25   research into this.  And I found some cases that are not				false

		218						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		219						LN		9		1		false		               1   from this jurisdiction I think may be useful to the				false

		220						LN		9		2		false		               2   commission, that the standards and the facts therein				false

		221						LN		9		3		false		               3   don't really lend themselves to cross-examination.				false

		222						LN		9		4		false		               4             So I -- I anticipate that my suggestion will				false

		223						LN		9		5		false		               5   be that we submit briefs, even -- even if it's just,				false

		224						LN		9		6		false		               6   here are some cases.  Look at them for yourselves.				false

		225						LN		9		7		false		               7   Decide what you think they mean and how they apply here.				false

		226						LN		9		8		false		               8   But I -- I agree, I think we can circle back at the end				false

		227						LN		9		9		false		               9   to -- to decide exactly how we want to convey that				false

		228						LN		9		10		false		              10   information to the commission.				false

		229						LN		9		11		false		              11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we will				false

		230						LN		9		12		false		              12   proceed that way then, and we will come to the history				false

		231						LN		9		13		false		              13   at the end.  I will just state for something for parties				false

		232						LN		9		14		false		              14   to think about with respect to briefs, I am presuming				false

		233						LN		9		15		false		              15   there is a need to have an order in this docket in time				false

		234						LN		9		16		false		              16   to inform the next EBA filing.				false

		235						LN		9		17		false		              17             And so I'm -- I'm assuming a drop-dead date to				false

		236						LN		9		18		false		              18   get an order out that would give time to inform the next				false

		237						LN		9		19		false		              19   EBA would be, you know, around the end of February or				false

		238						LN		9		20		false		              20   the first of March.  So that may be something to think				false

		239						LN		9		21		false		              21   about if -- if we're going to be talking about briefs,				false

		240						LN		9		22		false		              22   or if we're just going to be having a conversation at				false

		241						LN		9		23		false		              23   the end of hearing.				false

		242						LN		9		24		false		              24             And with that, we'll move forward and look				false

		243						LN		9		25		false		              25   forward to ruling on objections to witnesses talking				false

		244						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		245						LN		10		1		false		               1   about legal issues in the meantime.  Any other				false

		246						LN		10		2		false		               2   preliminary matters before we -- before we go to the				false

		247						LN		10		3		false		               3   first witness?  Okay.  Mr. Moscon or Ms. Hogle.				false

		248						LN		10		4		false		               4             MR. MOSCON:  Yes, thank you.  Rocky Mountain				false

		249						LN		10		5		false		               5   Power calls as its first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.				false

		250						LN		10		6		false		               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I think your microphone				false

		251						LN		10		7		false		               7   might not be picking you up for the streaming.				false

		252						LN		10		8		false		               8             THE REPORTER:  Yeah, it's literally -- it's				false

		253						LN		10		9		false		               9   too far away.				false

		254						LN		10		10		false		              10             MR. MOSCON:  Rocky Mountain Power calls as its				false

		255						LN		10		11		false		              11   first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.				false

		256						LN		10		12		false		              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Wilding.				false

		257						LN		10		13		false		              13   Do you swear to tell the truth?				false

		258						LN		10		14		false		              14             THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		259						LN		10		15		false		              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		260						LN		10		16		false		              16                      MICHAEL G. WILDING,				false

		261						LN		10		17		false		              17   was called as a witness, and having been first duly				false

		262						LN		10		18		false		              18   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:				false

		263						LN		10		19		false		              19                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		264						LN		10		20		false		              20   BY MR. MOSCON:				false

		265						LN		10		21		false		              21        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Wilding.  Would you please				false

		266						LN		10		22		false		              22   state your name for the record?				false

		267						LN		10		23		false		              23        A.   Yes.  My name is Michael G. Wilding.				false

		268						LN		10		24		false		              24        Q.   Would you please give a very brief description				false

		269						LN		10		25		false		              25   of your -- the position you hold at the company and your				false

		270						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		271						LN		11		1		false		               1   background leading up to that position?				false

		272						LN		11		2		false		               2        A.   Yes.  I am the director of net power costs and				false

		273						LN		11		3		false		               3   regulatory policy for PacifiCorp.				false

		274						LN		11		4		false		               4             MR. RUSSELL:  You got to push that green				false

		275						LN		11		5		false		               5   button.  There we go.				false

		276						LN		11		6		false		               6        A.   Do I need to start over?  I am the director of				false

		277						LN		11		7		false		               7   net power costs and regulatory policy for Pacific Power.				false

		278						LN		11		8		false		               8   Under my purview is the net power cost filings, so I				false

		279						LN		11		9		false		               9   oversee the EBA.  And I have been with the company for				false

		280						LN		11		10		false		              10   approximately five years, for the entire time in the net				false

		281						LN		11		11		false		              11   power cost group.				false

		282						LN		11		12		false		              12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Okay.  Have you previously				false

		283						LN		11		13		false		              13   testified here before this commission?				false

		284						LN		11		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.				false

		285						LN		11		15		false		              15        Q.   In this proceeding, did you cause prefiled				false

		286						LN		11		16		false		              16   testimony -- or testimony to be recorded and filed?				false

		287						LN		11		17		false		              17        A.   Yes.				false

		288						LN		11		18		false		              18        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions set forth				false

		289						LN		11		19		false		              19   in the prefiled testimony here in person today, would				false

		290						LN		11		20		false		              20   your answers be the same?				false

		291						LN		11		21		false		              21        A.   Yes, they would.				false

		292						LN		11		22		false		              22        Q.   Are there any corrections that you need to				false

		293						LN		11		23		false		              23   make to that prefiled testimony?				false

		294						LN		11		24		false		              24        A.   No.				false

		295						LN		11		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.				false

		296						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		297						LN		12		1		false		               1             MR. MOSCON:  Based on that, commission, first				false

		298						LN		12		2		false		               2   I suppose, unless the commission has a preference of				false

		299						LN		12		3		false		               3   sequence, I would move for the admission of				false

		300						LN		12		4		false		               4   Mr. Wilding's prefiled testimony, together with any				false

		301						LN		12		5		false		               5   exhibits thereto into the record.				false

		302						LN		12		6		false		               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects				false

		303						LN		12		7		false		               7   to that, please indicate to me.				false

		304						LN		12		8		false		               8             MR. JETTER:  No objection from the division.				false

		305						LN		12		9		false		               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  That motion is				false

		306						LN		12		10		false		              10   granted.				false

		307						LN		12		11		false		              11             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.				false

		308						LN		12		12		false		              12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Wilding, have you been				false

		309						LN		12		13		false		              13   able to prepare a summary of your prefiled testimony?				false

		310						LN		12		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.				false

		311						LN		12		15		false		              15        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission				false

		312						LN		12		16		false		              16   and the parties?				false

		313						LN		12		17		false		              17        A.   Yes.  Good morning, commissioners.  The				false

		314						LN		12		18		false		              18   company filed its annual energy balancing account or EBA				false

		315						LN		12		19		false		              19   application on March 15th, 2018, for the deferral period				false

		316						LN		12		20		false		              20   of January through December of 2017.				false

		317						LN		12		21		false		              21             The company requested recovery of $2.8				false

		318						LN		12		22		false		              22   million, which consisted of the following components, a				false

		319						LN		12		23		false		              23   $4.4 million credit for the deferral of the variances				false

		320						LN		12		24		false		              24   between actual net power costs and actual wheeling				false

		321						LN		12		25		false		              25   revenues versus base net power cost and base wheeling				false

		322						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		323						LN		13		1		false		               1   revenues, a $2.9 million credit related to the Deer				false

		324						LN		13		2		false		               2   Creek Mine retiring medical obligation savings, a $2.8				false

		325						LN		13		3		false		               3   million credit related to the settlement of the 2017				false

		326						LN		13		4		false		               4   EBA, a $9.1 million in costs for the Utah allocated				false

		327						LN		13		5		false		               5   amortization expense associated with the closure of the				false

		328						LN		13		6		false		               6   Deer Creek Mine, $4 million in costs related to an				false

		329						LN		13		7		false		               7   adjustment for sales made to special contract customer,				false

		330						LN		13		8		false		               8   and finally, a .2 million dollar credit related to				false

		331						LN		13		9		false		               9   various smaller items, including interest.				false

		332						LN		13		10		false		              10             The Division of the -- of Public Utilities				false

		333						LN		13		11		false		              11   issued its report on the EBA and proposed a reduction to				false

		334						LN		13		12		false		              12   the company's EBA application of approximately $910,000,				false

		335						LN		13		13		false		              13   consisting of approximately $885,000 for replacement				false

		336						LN		13		14		false		              14   power costs associated with seven plant outages and				false

		337						LN		13		15		false		              15   $25,000 for an update to an allocation factor used in				false

		338						LN		13		16		false		              16   the filing.  The DPU also proposed a change to the				false

		339						LN		13		17		false		              17   company's energy risk management policy.				false

		340						LN		13		18		false		              18             The Office of Consumer Services and the Utah				false

		341						LN		13		19		false		              19   Association of Energy Users did not file testimony in				false

		342						LN		13		20		false		              20   this proceeding.				false

		343						LN		13		21		false		              21             In my testimony responding to the DPU's EBA				false

		344						LN		13		22		false		              22   report, the company accepted the update to the				false

		345						LN		13		23		false		              23   allocation factor and also agreed to change and update				false

		346						LN		13		24		false		              24   our risk management policy as proposed by the DPU in				false

		347						LN		13		25		false		              25   their reports.  The company disagrees with the proposed				false

		348						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		349						LN		14		1		false		               1   adjustments related to the prudency of the seven plant				false

		350						LN		14		2		false		               2   outages, and company wit -- witness, Mr. Dana Ralston,				false

		351						LN		14		3		false		               3   will address this issue.				false

		352						LN		14		4		false		               4             Therefore, I -- I respectfully request that				false

		353						LN		14		5		false		               5   the commission approve the EBA as modified in my				false

		354						LN		14		6		false		               6   response testimony.  Thank you.				false

		355						LN		14		7		false		               7             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Wilding.  As the				false

		356						LN		14		8		false		               8   commission notes, there was not any testimony filed that				false

		357						LN		14		9		false		               9   called into question any of the testimony of				false

		358						LN		14		10		false		              10   Mr. Wilding.  But, of course, he is here available for				false

		359						LN		14		11		false		              11   any questions that the commission may have, or any				false

		360						LN		14		12		false		              12   clarifying questions by the parties.				false

		361						LN		14		13		false		              13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you				false

		362						LN		14		14		false		              14   have any questions for Mr. Wilding?				false

		363						LN		14		15		false		              15             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions.  Thank you.				false

		364						LN		14		16		false		              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?				false

		365						LN		14		17		false		              17             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions.  Thank you, Chair.				false

		366						LN		14		18		false		              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?				false

		367						LN		14		19		false		              19             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you				false

		368						LN		14		20		false		              20   very much.				false

		369						LN		14		21		false		              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't either.  Thank				false

		370						LN		14		22		false		              22   you for your testimony.				false

		371						LN		14		23		false		              23             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.				false

		372						LN		14		24		false		              24             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  With the permission				false

		373						LN		14		25		false		              25   of the commission, the second witness that Rocky				false

		374						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		375						LN		15		1		false		               1   Mountain Power would call is Mr. Robert Meredith who the				false

		376						LN		15		2		false		               2   commission earlier this morning granted leave to appear				false

		377						LN		15		3		false		               3   by telephone.  And so Mr. Meredith, are you able to hear				false

		378						LN		15		4		false		               4   us where you are now?				false

		379						LN		15		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I am able to hear you.				false

		380						LN		15		6		false		               6             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  So --				false

		381						LN		15		7		false		               7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't I swear him in?				false

		382						LN		15		8		false		               8             MR. MOSCON:  Go ahead.  Yes, thank you.				false

		383						LN		15		9		false		               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Meredith, do you swear to				false

		384						LN		15		10		false		              10   tell the truth?				false

		385						LN		15		11		false		              11             THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		386						LN		15		12		false		              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		387						LN		15		13		false		              13                      ROBERT M. MEREDITH,				false

		388						LN		15		14		false		              14   was called as a witness, and having been first duly				false

		389						LN		15		15		false		              15   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:				false

		390						LN		15		16		false		              16                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		391						LN		15		17		false		              17   BY MR. MOSCON:				false

		392						LN		15		18		false		              18        Q.   Mr. Meredith, would you please state your name				false

		393						LN		15		19		false		              19   for the record?				false

		394						LN		15		20		false		              20        A.   Robert M. Meredith.				false

		395						LN		15		21		false		              21        Q.   And would you please tell the commission what				false

		396						LN		15		22		false		              22   your current job title is and any relevant experience				false

		397						LN		15		23		false		              23   you had leading up to that position?				false

		398						LN		15		24		false		              24        A.   Sure.  I am the manager of pricing and cost of				false

		399						LN		15		25		false		              25   service in Rocky Mountain Power's regulation department.				false

		400						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		401						LN		16		1		false		               1   Worked for the company for about 14 years, or a little				false

		402						LN		16		2		false		               2   over 14 years now.  I have worked in customer services				false

		403						LN		16		3		false		               3   and the integrated resource planning department and in				false

		404						LN		16		4		false		               4   regulation for all that time at various analytical				false

		405						LN		16		5		false		               5   roles.				false

		406						LN		16		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Meredith, did you cause				false

		407						LN		16		7		false		               7   prefiled testimony to be prepared in this matter?				false

		408						LN		16		8		false		               8        A.   Yes, I did.				false

		409						LN		16		9		false		               9        Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions that				false

		410						LN		16		10		false		              10   were written out, would your answers here live today be				false

		411						LN		16		11		false		              11   the same as the ones that are recorded in that prefiled				false

		412						LN		16		12		false		              12   testimony?				false

		413						LN		16		13		false		              13        A.   Yes, it would.				false

		414						LN		16		14		false		              14        Q.   Do you have any changes to that testimony that				false

		415						LN		16		15		false		              15   would need to be made?				false

		416						LN		16		16		false		              16        A.   No.				false

		417						LN		16		17		false		              17             MR. MOSCON:  Again, Mr. Chairman, I would move				false

		418						LN		16		18		false		              18   for the admission of Mr. Meredith's prefiled testimony,				false

		419						LN		16		19		false		              19   together with any exhibits as part of the record.				false

		420						LN		16		20		false		              20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  If any party objects to that				false

		421						LN		16		21		false		              21   motion, indicate to me.  I am not seeing any objection				false

		422						LN		16		22		false		              22   so it's granted.				false

		423						LN		16		23		false		              23             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.				false

		424						LN		16		24		false		              24        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Meredith, have you had				false

		425						LN		16		25		false		              25   the opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled				false

		426						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		427						LN		17		1		false		               1   testimony?				false

		428						LN		17		2		false		               2        A.   Yes.				false

		429						LN		17		3		false		               3        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission				false

		430						LN		17		4		false		               4   and the parties?				false

		431						LN		17		5		false		               5        A.   Sure.  Good morning, Chair LeVar, Commissioner				false

		432						LN		17		6		false		               6   White and Commissioner Clark.  In my direct testimony, I				false

		433						LN		17		7		false		               7   presented the company's proposed rate spread and prices				false

		434						LN		17		8		false		               8   for the 2018 energy balancing account.  With interim				false

		435						LN		17		9		false		               9   rates effective May 1, 2018, recovery of the 2.8				false

		436						LN		17		10		false		              10   deferral calculated by company witness, Mr. Michael G.				false

		437						LN		17		11		false		              11   Wilding has resulted in an increase to customers of 0.1				false

		438						LN		17		12		false		              12   percent.				false

		439						LN		17		13		false		              13             The allocation and development of rates for				false

		440						LN		17		14		false		              14   the 2018 energy balancing account has been prepared in a				false

		441						LN		17		15		false		              15   manner consistent with prior energy balancing account				false

		442						LN		17		16		false		              16   balances, and they are not contested by any party in				false

		443						LN		17		17		false		              17   this proceeding.  That concludes my summary statement.				false

		444						LN		17		18		false		              18             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Meredith.				false

		445						LN		17		19		false		              19   Mr. Chairman, similarly, Mr. Meredith didn't have any				false

		446						LN		17		20		false		              20   testimony contradicted, but he is available for any				false

		447						LN		17		21		false		              21   clarifying questions of the commission or the parties.				false

		448						LN		17		22		false		              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you				false

		449						LN		17		23		false		              23   have any questions?				false

		450						LN		17		24		false		              24             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions, thank you.				false

		451						LN		17		25		false		              25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?				false

		452						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		453						LN		18		1		false		               1             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions, thank you.				false

		454						LN		18		2		false		               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?				false

		455						LN		18		3		false		               3             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you.				false

		456						LN		18		4		false		               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner White?				false

		457						LN		18		5		false		               5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions, thank you.				false

		458						LN		18		6		false		               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,				false

		459						LN		18		7		false		               7   Mr. Meredith.  We appreciate your testimony today.				false

		460						LN		18		8		false		               8             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  No problem.				false

		461						LN		18		9		false		               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't know if your				false

		462						LN		18		10		false		              10   intention is to keep him on the phone?  It's up to you,				false

		463						LN		18		11		false		              11   Mr. Meredith, if you want to keep listening for the				false

		464						LN		18		12		false		              12   sheer fun of it or should we close the line?				false

		465						LN		18		13		false		              13             THE WITNESS:  You can close the line.  That's				false

		466						LN		18		14		false		              14   fine.				false

		467						LN		18		15		false		              15             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.				false

		468						LN		18		16		false		              16             THE WITNESS:  Okay, thanks.				false

		469						LN		18		17		false		              17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I am shocked.				false

		470						LN		18		18		false		              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  He is just going to listen on				false

		471						LN		18		19		false		              19   YouTube for the rest.				false

		472						LN		18		20		false		              20             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  Now, I know we have				false

		473						LN		18		21		false		              21   already been through two witnesses, so unless the				false

		474						LN		18		22		false		              22   commission wants to take a break, we'll keep plowing				false

		475						LN		18		23		false		              23   forward.				false

		476						LN		18		24		false		              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Let's keep going.				false

		477						LN		18		25		false		              25             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  If it please the				false

		478						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		479						LN		19		1		false		               1   commission, our final witness that Rocky Mountain Power				false

		480						LN		19		2		false		               2   would call, who is with us here today, is Mr. Dana				false

		481						LN		19		3		false		               3   Ralston.  So we would ask that Mr. Ralston to take the				false

		482						LN		19		4		false		               4   stand.				false

		483						LN		19		5		false		               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Ralston.				false

		484						LN		19		6		false		               6   Do you swear to tell the truth?				false

		485						LN		19		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.				false

		486						LN		19		8		false		               8                     DANA MICHAEL RALSTON,				false

		487						LN		19		9		false		               9   was called as a witness, and having been first duly				false

		488						LN		19		10		false		              10   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:				false

		489						LN		19		11		false		              11                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		490						LN		19		12		false		              12   BY MR. MOSCON:				false

		491						LN		19		13		false		              13        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ralston.  Would you please				false

		492						LN		19		14		false		              14   state your full name and your current business position				false

		493						LN		19		15		false		              15   for the commission?				false

		494						LN		19		16		false		              16        A.   My name is Dana Michael Ralston.  I am the				false

		495						LN		19		17		false		              17   senior vice president of thermal generation and mining				false

		496						LN		19		18		false		              18   for Rocky Mountain Power.  I have responsibility for all				false

		497						LN		19		19		false		              19   the thermal assets, which are the coal plants and the				false

		498						LN		19		20		false		              20   gas plants and the geothermal plants within Rocky				false

		499						LN		19		21		false		              21   Mountain Power, and the fuel supply and a few mining				false

		500						LN		19		22		false		              22   activities for the company.				false

		501						LN		19		23		false		              23             I have a degree in electrical engineering and				false

		502						LN		19		24		false		              24   been in -- working in and around the power plant sector				false

		503						LN		19		25		false		              25   for over 37 years, as a plant manager, maintenance				false

		504						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		505						LN		20		1		false		               1   manager, electrical supervisor, electrical engineer.				false

		506						LN		20		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Ralston, did you have opportunity				false

		507						LN		20		3		false		               3   to prepare prefiled testimony to be filed in this?				false

		508						LN		20		4		false		               4        A.   Yes, I did.				false

		509						LN		20		5		false		               5        Q.   In your testimony, and -- and we'll -- we'll				false

		510						LN		20		6		false		               6   get to that momentarily, you describe your experience a				false

		511						LN		20		7		false		               7   little bit.  Can you provide -- let me back up and ask				false

		512						LN		20		8		false		               8   you this.  Have you provided testimony to this				false

		513						LN		20		9		false		               9   commission before today?				false

		514						LN		20		10		false		              10        A.   In the written form, yes.				false

		515						LN		20		11		false		              11        Q.   Have you ever presented live testimony to				false

		516						LN		20		12		false		              12   these commissioners?				false

		517						LN		20		13		false		              13        A.   No, not in the state of Utah.				false

		518						LN		20		14		false		              14        Q.   So although I wouldn't typically do this, just				false

		519						LN		20		15		false		              15   because this is your first time before these				false

		520						LN		20		16		false		              16   commissioners, could you please give us a little bit				false

		521						LN		20		17		false		              17   more color, describing your working background and				false

		522						LN		20		18		false		              18   specifically to the extent it's germane to what we are				false

		523						LN		20		19		false		              19   doing here today, give us some indication of your work				false

		524						LN		20		20		false		              20   that you have done, you know, facilitating plant				false

		525						LN		20		21		false		              21   overhauls, maintenances, shutdowns, startup, et cetera.				false

		526						LN		20		22		false		              22        A.   Okay.  Until I took this position in 2010, I				false

		527						LN		20		23		false		              23   was stationed at a plant, and I worked in the overhaul				false

		528						LN		20		24		false		              24   process.  I coordinated maintenance activities.  I				false

		529						LN		20		25		false		              25   coordinated electrical maintenance activities.  I was an				false

		530						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		531						LN		21		1		false		               1   electrical engineer in charge of design.  I was in				false

		532						LN		21		2		false		               2   charge of overall plant operations as the plant manager.				false

		533						LN		21		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.  So is it fair to say that you are very				false

		534						LN		21		4		false		               4   familiar with all the topics that are at issue today?				false

		535						LN		21		5		false		               5        A.   That would be correct.				false

		536						LN		21		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Ralston, could you describe for				false

		537						LN		21		7		false		               7   the commission the various pieces of prefiled testimony				false

		538						LN		21		8		false		               8   that you submitted in this matter?				false

		539						LN		21		9		false		               9        A.   I respond -- or I supplied response testimony				false

		540						LN		21		10		false		              10   to the Daymark testimony and then supplied surrebuttal				false

		541						LN		21		11		false		              11   testimony to their rebuttal testimony.				false

		542						LN		21		12		false		              12        Q.   Do you have any changes that would need to be				false

		543						LN		21		13		false		              13   made to either piece of testimony?				false

		544						LN		21		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.  On my surrebuttal testimony, I have a				false

		545						LN		21		15		false		              15   few changes.				false

		546						LN		21		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  If you would wait just a minute to give				false

		547						LN		21		17		false		              17   the parties and the commission an opportunity to turn to				false

		548						LN		21		18		false		              18   that in your surrebuttal.  What page was your first				false

		549						LN		21		19		false		              19   change or correction be made on?				false

		550						LN		21		20		false		              20        A.   On page 5, line 93, the word "tight" should be				false

		551						LN		21		21		false		              21   right.				false

		552						LN		21		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.				false

		553						LN		21		23		false		              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I am sorry.  You are on line				false

		554						LN		21		24		false		              24   93 of the surrebuttal?				false

		555						LN		21		25		false		              25             MR. MOSCON:  95.				false

		556						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		557						LN		22		1		false		               1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, 95.				false

		558						LN		22		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  Excuse me, 95.  Did I say 93?  I				false

		559						LN		22		3		false		               3   apologize.				false

		560						LN		22		4		false		               4        Q.   (By Mr. Mascon)  Okay.  Any other corrections?				false

		561						LN		22		5		false		               5        A.   Page 6, line 135, the word weld near the end				false

		562						LN		22		6		false		               6   of the line should be deleted.  And page -- or at line				false

		563						LN		22		7		false		               7   136, the sentence that says, "tubing ends being				false

		564						LN		22		8		false		               8   conducted were nonidentical metal" should be deleted.				false

		565						LN		22		9		false		               9        Q.   Any other changes or corrections?				false

		566						LN		22		10		false		              10        A.   And finally on page 10, line 220, where it				false

		567						LN		22		11		false		              11   says "ND and A know -- knowingly accepted work in its --				false

		568						LN		22		12		false		              12   in its capacity," should say -- read, "Accept work in				false

		569						LN		22		13		false		              13   excess of its capacity."  So "excess of" should be				false

		570						LN		22		14		false		              14   added.				false

		571						LN		22		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  Any other corrections or modifications				false

		572						LN		22		16		false		              16   that you believe should be made to your prefiled				false

		573						LN		22		17		false		              17   testimony?				false

		574						LN		22		18		false		              18        A.   No.				false

		575						LN		22		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And similarly then, if I were to ask				false

		576						LN		22		20		false		              20   you all of the questions in both pieces of your				false

		577						LN		22		21		false		              21   testimony here today, would your answers be consistent				false

		578						LN		22		22		false		              22   with the answers in your prefiled testimony, including				false

		579						LN		22		23		false		              23   the corrections that you have just noted for us?				false

		580						LN		22		24		false		              24        A.   That's correct.				false

		581						LN		22		25		false		              25             MR. MOSCON:  Okay.  With that, Mr. Chairman, I				false

		582						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		583						LN		23		1		false		               1   move for the admission of the prefiled testimony of				false

		584						LN		23		2		false		               2   Mr. Ralston, together with any exhibits thereto.				false

		585						LN		23		3		false		               3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects				false

		586						LN		23		4		false		               4   to that motion, please indicate to me.  I am not seeing				false

		587						LN		23		5		false		               5   any objection, so the motion is granted.				false

		588						LN		23		6		false		               6             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.				false

		589						LN		23		7		false		               7        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Ralston, have you had the				false

		590						LN		23		8		false		               8   opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled				false

		591						LN		23		9		false		               9   testimony?				false

		592						LN		23		10		false		              10        A.   Yes, I have.				false

		593						LN		23		11		false		              11        Q.   Would you please share that with the				false

		594						LN		23		12		false		              12   commission and the parties.				false

		595						LN		23		13		false		              13        A.   My name is Dana Ralston.  I am the senior vice				false

		596						LN		23		14		false		              14   president of thermal generation and mining for Rocky				false

		597						LN		23		15		false		              15   Mountain Power.  I've been responsible for Rocky				false

		598						LN		23		16		false		              16   Mountain Power's thermal fleet since 2010, and prior to				false

		599						LN		23		17		false		              17   that held a number of positions within the generating				false

		600						LN		23		18		false		              18   fleet of Berkshire Hathaway Energy, including plant				false

		601						LN		23		19		false		              19   manager, maintenance manager, electrical supervisor and				false

		602						LN		23		20		false		              20   electrical engineer.  I have a degree in electrical				false

		603						LN		23		21		false		              21   engineering with over 37 years working around and in the				false

		604						LN		23		22		false		              22   power plants.				false

		605						LN		23		23		false		              23             Today I am offering responses and surrebuttal				false

		606						LN		23		24		false		              24   testimony to Daymark's testimony regarding the prudency				false

		607						LN		23		25		false		              25   of contested plant outages.  In my testimony, I show				false

		608						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		609						LN		24		1		false		               1   that the company did demonstrate prudency by its actions				false

		610						LN		24		2		false		               2   when maintaining and operating its plants.				false

		611						LN		24		3		false		               3             Daymark, when reviewing the outages, equates				false

		612						LN		24		4		false		               4   its avoidable outage that could be prevented with				false

		613						LN		24		5		false		               5   perfect foresight to improve in that by the company.				false

		614						LN		24		6		false		               6   This demonstrates that Daymark is using a perfection				false

		615						LN		24		7		false		               7   standard not a prudency standard.				false

		616						LN		24		8		false		               8             If Daymark's approach to maintenance and				false

		617						LN		24		9		false		               9   operational was implemented, costs to the customers				false

		618						LN		24		10		false		              10   would significantly increase with a very small impact on				false

		619						LN		24		11		false		              11   fleet equivalent availability, because Daymark would				false

		620						LN		24		12		false		              12   have the company shift all risk to contractors no matter				false

		621						LN		24		13		false		              13   what the cost and undertake corrective actions that were				false

		622						LN		24		14		false		              14   not justified by inspection or operating data.				false

		623						LN		24		15		false		              15             In addition, Daymark represents --				false

		624						LN		24		16		false		              16   misrepresents data and testimony to arrive at an				false

		625						LN		24		17		false		              17   erroneous conclusion related to outages.  In my				false

		626						LN		24		18		false		              18   testimony, I show how the company used reasonable and				false

		627						LN		24		19		false		              19   prudent processes to avoid outages and mitigate risks				false

		628						LN		24		20		false		              20   while effectively balancing risks and costs for the				false

		629						LN		24		21		false		              21   benefit of our customers.				false

		630						LN		24		22		false		              22             In my testimony I use an analogy of changing				false

		631						LN		24		23		false		              23   tires on your car every month to prevent a flat fire.				false

		632						LN		24		24		false		              24   While this may reduce the chance of a flat tire, it is				false

		633						LN		24		25		false		              25   far from prudent to do this and would not eliminate all				false

		634						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		635						LN		25		1		false		               1   chances of a flat tire.  This seems to be the same				false

		636						LN		25		2		false		               2   standards Daymark uses when reviewing outages.				false

		637						LN		25		3		false		               3             With respect to our jointly owned plants that				false

		638						LN		25		4		false		               4   we -- that are operated by others, Daymark incorrectly				false

		639						LN		25		5		false		               5   implies we have a unilateral -- unilateral right to				false

		640						LN		25		6		false		               6   enforce process or changes on these plants.  Rocky				false

		641						LN		25		7		false		               7   Mountain Power is a very active and engaged owner				false

		642						LN		25		8		false		               8   involved in our participation agreements to its fullest				false

		643						LN		25		9		false		               9   extent.				false

		644						LN		25		10		false		              10             These agreements that govern these plants are				false

		645						LN		25		11		false		              11   based on a partnership with all owners getting benefits				false

		646						LN		25		12		false		              12   and costs based on their ownership share.  The operating				false

		647						LN		25		13		false		              13   company receives no premium to take on the risks of				false

		648						LN		25		14		false		              14   operating the plant.  The companies that operate these				false

		649						LN		25		15		false		              15   plants use prudent processes, but they may be not the				false

		650						LN		25		16		false		              16   same as Rocky Mountain Power uses.  And when Daymark				false

		651						LN		25		17		false		              17   refers to these partners as contractors, it shows a lack				false

		652						LN		25		18		false		              18   of understanding about these agreements.				false

		653						LN		25		19		false		              19             Finally, the company uses equivalents				false

		654						LN		25		20		false		              20   availability, or EA, as an indicator of the detail and				false

		655						LN		25		21		false		              21   care the company uses with regard to maintaining its				false

		656						LN		25		22		false		              22   operating fleet.  The company's thermal EA is				false

		657						LN		25		23		false		              23   significantly better than the North American Electric				false

		658						LN		25		24		false		              24   Reliability Corporations or NERC, average for a similar				false

		659						LN		25		25		false		              25   size fleet.				false

		660						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		661						LN		26		1		false		               1             The company believes outages should be				false

		662						LN		26		2		false		               2   reviewed individually and that NERC averages do not				false

		663						LN		26		3		false		               3   automatically make every outage prudent.  But to				false

		664						LN		26		4		false		               4   completely ignore this metric does not paint a complete				false

		665						LN		26		5		false		               5   picture of how the company manages thermal plants to				false

		666						LN		26		6		false		               6   provide the least risk, least cost supply to our				false

		667						LN		26		7		false		               7   company -- or customers.				false

		668						LN		26		8		false		               8             Rocky Mountain Power has and will continue to				false

		669						LN		26		9		false		               9   prudently manage the thermal fleet with the best				false

		670						LN		26		10		false		              10   interests of the customers at its forefront.  I am here				false

		671						LN		26		11		false		              11   to answer your questions.				false

		672						LN		26		12		false		              12             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Ralston.				false

		673						LN		26		13		false		              13   Mr. Ralston is available for any questions of the				false

		674						LN		26		14		false		              14   parties or commission.				false

		675						LN		26		15		false		              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Jetter?				false

		676						LN		26		16		false		              16             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have a few				false

		677						LN		26		17		false		              17   questions.				false

		678						LN		26		18		false		              18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		679						LN		26		19		false		              19   BY MR. JETTER:				false

		680						LN		26		20		false		              20        Q.   Good morning.				false

		681						LN		26		21		false		              21        A.   Good morning.				false

		682						LN		26		22		false		              22        Q.   Maybe I'd like to just start out asking a				false

		683						LN		26		23		false		              23   question that -- that you addressed a little bit in your				false

		684						LN		26		24		false		              24   introduction.  You mentioned that -- that, I guess in				false

		685						LN		26		25		false		              25   your testimony, that Daymark Associates, the consulting				false
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		687						LN		27		1		false		               1   firm hired by the Division of Public Utilities, is				false

		688						LN		27		2		false		               2   seeking to hold the company to a perfection standard.				false

		689						LN		27		3		false		               3   Is that an accurate representation of your				false

		690						LN		27		4		false		               4   understanding?				false

		691						LN		27		5		false		               5        A.   Yes.				false

		692						LN		27		6		false		               6        Q.   Can you tell me how many forced outage events				false

		693						LN		27		7		false		               7   the thermal fleet for PacifiCorp experienced in 2017?				false

		694						LN		27		8		false		               8        A.   I don't have that number off the top of my				false

		695						LN		27		9		false		               9   head.				false

		696						LN		27		10		false		              10        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that there				false

		697						LN		27		11		false		              11   were 368?				false

		698						LN		27		12		false		              12        A.   Subject to check.				false

		699						LN		27		13		false		              13        Q.   And do you know how many megawatt hours were				false

		700						LN		27		14		false		              14   lost as a result of those?				false

		701						LN		27		15		false		              15        A.   Again, I don't have that off the top of my				false

		702						LN		27		16		false		              16   head.				false

		703						LN		27		17		false		              17        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it				false

		704						LN		27		18		false		              18   was in the ballpark of three million?				false

		705						LN		27		19		false		              19        A.   All right.  Subject to check.				false

		706						LN		27		20		false		              20        Q.   Do you know how many outages Daymark has				false

		707						LN		27		21		false		              21   recommended not be -- be removed from recovery from the				false

		708						LN		27		22		false		              22   EBA?				false

		709						LN		27		23		false		              23        A.   I believe it was seven.				false

		710						LN		27		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And -- and seven is lot less than 368;				false

		711						LN		27		25		false		              25   is that correct?				false
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		713						LN		28		1		false		               1        A.   I believe so.				false

		714						LN		28		2		false		               2        Q.   And so do you still think that the -- the				false

		715						LN		28		3		false		               3   perfection applies when Daymark and Associates				false

		716						LN		28		4		false		               4   recommended only seven out of 368 forced outages be				false

		717						LN		28		5		false		               5   unrecoverable as a result of imprudence?				false

		718						LN		28		6		false		               6        A.   When I look at the detail of the seven outages				false

		719						LN		28		7		false		               7   and the action Daymark expects us to take, or would say				false

		720						LN		28		8		false		               8   would be a prudent level, I believe that is a perfection				false

		721						LN		28		9		false		               9   standard, not a prudent standard that a reasonable				false

		722						LN		28		10		false		              10   utility would do.				false

		723						LN		28		11		false		              11        Q.   Let me ask you a little follow-up question				false

		724						LN		28		12		false		              12   there.  Can you give me an example of an imprudent				false

		725						LN		28		13		false		              13   outage?				false

		726						LN		28		14		false		              14        A.   I can't think of one right off the top of my				false

		727						LN		28		15		false		              15   head.				false

		728						LN		28		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  Do you know if PacifiCorp has ever had				false

		729						LN		28		17		false		              17   an imprudent outage?				false

		730						LN		28		18		false		              18        A.   Again, I can't think of one right off the top				false

		731						LN		28		19		false		              19   of my head.				false

		732						LN		28		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  If there were never an imprudent				false

		733						LN		28		21		false		              21   outage, wouldn't that somewhat be the inverse of a				false

		734						LN		28		22		false		              22   perfection standard; it would be a standard of				false

		735						LN		28		23		false		              23   imperfection?				false

		736						LN		28		24		false		              24        A.   I guess you could look at it that way.				false

		737						LN		28		25		false		              25        Q.   And following up with that, do -- do you				false
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		739						LN		29		1		false		               1   believe that customers of Rocky Mountain Power in Utah				false

		740						LN		29		2		false		               2   should be responsible for all of the replacement power				false

		741						LN		29		3		false		               3   costs regardless of the -- the type of outage or the				false

		742						LN		29		4		false		               4   prudence that led up to that?				false

		743						LN		29		5		false		               5        A.   I believe the customer -- well, the company				false

		744						LN		29		6		false		               6   should be reimbursed for their cost when they acted				false

		745						LN		29		7		false		               7   prudently towards trying to avoid and prevent outages.				false

		746						LN		29		8		false		               8        Q.   Do you think that that -- that same standard				false

		747						LN		29		9		false		               9   should apply to Rocky Mountain Power's contractors or				false

		748						LN		29		10		false		              10   third party operators?				false

		749						LN		29		11		false		              11        A.   Please repeat the question.  Be more specific.				false

		750						LN		29		12		false		              12        Q.   In your answer to my previous question, I				false

		751						LN		29		13		false		              13   believe you answered that PacifiCorp should be				false

		752						LN		29		14		false		              14   reimbursed for the costs of its prudent actions.  Is				false

		753						LN		29		15		false		              15   that an accurate representation?				false

		754						LN		29		16		false		              16        A.   Yes.  We should be re -- reimbursed for				false

		755						LN		29		17		false		              17   prudent -- for costs when we act prudently.				false

		756						LN		29		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  And do you -- do you also think that				false

		757						LN		29		19		false		              19   Rocky Mountain Power should be responsible for costs				false

		758						LN		29		20		false		              20   when it does not act prudently?				false

		759						LN		29		21		false		              21        A.   Well, if we don't act prudently, then the				false

		760						LN		29		22		false		              22   commission would determine that and probably not allow				false

		761						LN		29		23		false		              23   those costs.				false

		762						LN		29		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And do you think that that should				false

		763						LN		29		25		false		              25   extend -- regardless of whether it's legally mandated,				false
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		765						LN		30		1		false		               1   do you think that similar standard should extend to				false

		766						LN		30		2		false		               2   third party contractors that Rocky Mountain Power hires?				false

		767						LN		30		3		false		               3        A.   Okay.  And -- and again, the -- the				false

		768						LN		30		4		false		               4   contractors are out operating on our behalf, so the same				false

		769						LN		30		5		false		               5   standard should apply.				false

		770						LN		30		6		false		               6        Q.   Thank you.  Can you tell me what steps Rocky				false

		771						LN		30		7		false		               7   Mountain Power or PacifiCorp in its fleet takes -- let				false

		772						LN		30		8		false		               8   me rephrase that question.				false

		773						LN		30		9		false		               9             What steps does the company take to ensure				false

		774						LN		30		10		false		              10   that the third parties are operating in a prudent				false

		775						LN		30		11		false		              11   manner?				false

		776						LN		30		12		false		              12        A.   Can you be a little more specific on whether				false

		777						LN		30		13		false		              13   you are talking about a contractor that is specifically				false

		778						LN		30		14		false		              14   hired by Rocky Mountain Power or a partner operated				false

		779						LN		30		15		false		              15   plant operator?				false

		780						LN		30		16		false		              16        Q.   Well, maybe let's address those each				false

		781						LN		30		17		false		              17   individually.  So let's first take a look at -- or -- or				false

		782						LN		30		18		false		              18   let me know your opinion on the -- the contractors that				false

		783						LN		30		19		false		              19   are hired by Rocky Mountain Power.				false

		784						LN		30		20		false		              20        A.   Okay.  So when Rocky Mountain Power hires				false

		785						LN		30		21		false		              21   contractors, we take and make sure that we have				false

		786						LN		30		22		false		              22   qualified contractors that can perform the work, are				false

		787						LN		30		23		false		              23   reasonable, competent and available.  Okay.  And at the				false

		788						LN		30		24		false		              24   same time, when we sit down, we get their prices from				false

		789						LN		30		25		false		              25   them.  We negotiate a contract and negotiate terms that				false

		790						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		791						LN		31		1		false		               1   have the warranty provisions and allow us to execute				false

		792						LN		31		2		false		               2   towards that contract to try to protect the customer and				false
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		794						LN		31		4		false		               4             In those provisions it's always a give and				false

		795						LN		31		5		false		               5   take, I will say, because if you want perfect, if you				false

		796						LN		31		6		false		               6   want to shift a hundred percent of the risk all to the				false

		797						LN		31		7		false		               7   contractor, you are going to pay for it.  And in my 37				false

		798						LN		31		8		false		               8   years of doing that, I have never seen any contractor be				false
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		804						LN		31		14		false		              14   the Rocky Mountain Power would be were Rocky Mountain				false

		805						LN		31		15		false		              15   Power performing the same amount -- the same work?				false

		806						LN		31		16		false		              16        A.   Possibly.  Again, it depends on the situation,				false

		807						LN		31		17		false		              17   I would say, and the contract.				false

		808						LN		31		18		false		              18        Q.   And would it then be accurate that when --				false

		809						LN		31		19		false		              19   in -- in the company's view when it hires third party				false

		810						LN		31		20		false		              20   contractors that are not taking on that risk, that that				false

		811						LN		31		21		false		              21   effectively shifts that risk to customers to bear the				false

		812						LN		31		22		false		              22   losses that Rocky Mountain Power might otherwise be				false

		813						LN		31		23		false		              23   responsible for?				false

		814						LN		31		24		false		              24        A.   Not necessarily.  It depends on the event.				false
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		816						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		817						LN		32		1		false		               1        A.   What do you mean?				false

		818						LN		32		2		false		               2        Q.   Could it be the case that -- that those				false

		819						LN		32		3		false		               3   contracts would shift risk to customers?				false

		820						LN		32		4		false		               4             MR. MOSCON:  Mr. Chairman, before he answers,				false

		821						LN		32		5		false		               5   again, you noted this, and I am not trying to overdo it,				false

		822						LN		32		6		false		               6   but I guess I just need to note for the record that this				false

		823						LN		32		7		false		               7   whole series of questions has embedded the legal				false

		824						LN		32		8		false		               8   conclusion that the company would otherwise be liable				false

		825						LN		32		9		false		               9   for it, which itself could be impact to a great -- great				false
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		828						LN		32		12		false		              12   the flow.  I just don't want anyone to at a later date				false

		829						LN		32		13		false		              13   say, well, we waived any objection.  So to the extent				false

		830						LN		32		14		false		              14   that he is asking the witness to make legal conclusions				false

		831						LN		32		15		false		              15   about the company, its liability, what the legal				false

		832						LN		32		16		false		              16   standard of prudence is, et cetera, I just want to				false

		833						LN		32		17		false		              17   preserve that objection.				false

		834						LN		32		18		false		              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Mr. Jetter, do you				false

		835						LN		32		19		false		              19   want to respond to the objection?				false

		836						LN		32		20		false		              20             MR. JETTER:  I am really trying to -- to -- to				false

		837						LN		32		21		false		              21   get this without going into -- to the legal conclusion,				false

		838						LN		32		22		false		              22   and I understand that -- that some of this has that as				false

		839						LN		32		23		false		              23   the backdrop.  I think this, really all of our -- our				false

		840						LN		32		24		false		              24   cases today, the facts at issue, are kind of set with				false
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		845						LN		33		3		false		               3   and so I think I maybe can withdraw that question and				false

		846						LN		33		4		false		               4   move on to some more specifics.				false

		847						LN		33		5		false		               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, then there's no				false
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		857						LN		33		15		false		              15   included in your contracts with co-owners or affiliates				false

		858						LN		33		16		false		              16   or other -- other operators that are not Rocky Mountain				false

		859						LN		33		17		false		              17   Power that are operating a partially owned power plant?				false

		860						LN		33		18		false		              18        A.   No.  We -- we don't have them in any of them				false

		861						LN		33		19		false		              19   that we are the owner but not the operator.  And at the				false

		862						LN		33		20		false		              20   same time, we don't have any of them that we are the				false

		863						LN		33		21		false		              21   operator and owner and we have other owners.				false

		864						LN		33		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  And -- and so how are -- how is Rocky				false

		865						LN		33		23		false		              23   Mountain Power, through those contacts -- contracts, or				false

		866						LN		33		24		false		              24   relationships with those other -- other operators, how				false
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		870						LN		34		2		false		               2        A.   We protect ourselves from a -- from being				false

		871						LN		34		3		false		               3   involved with the participation agreements.  We have				false

		872						LN		34		4		false		               4   what we call E and O committees or coordinating				false

		873						LN		34		5		false		               5   committees.  We're heavily involved with those.  We have				false

		874						LN		34		6		false		               6   constant communication, at least daily with those				false

		875						LN		34		7		false		               7   different plants on what's going on in that.  We're a				false

		876						LN		34		8		false		               8   very active participant on it.				false

		877						LN		34		9		false		               9             From a contractual standpoint, there is no net				false

		878						LN		34		10		false		              10   power cost provision in any of the participation				false

		879						LN		34		11		false		              11   agreements that -- on either side, where we are the				false
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		882						LN		34		14		false		              14   influence on the operations, even if you are not				false

		883						LN		34		15		false		              15   directly in control?				false

		884						LN		34		16		false		              16        A.   We -- we try our hardest to influence and				false

		885						LN		34		17		false		              17   direct the plan to where we think is the best place for				false

		886						LN		34		18		false		              18   customers.				false

		887						LN		34		19		false		              19        Q.   Thank you.  I think I am done -- will move on				false

		888						LN		34		20		false		              20   at this point, and -- and go through the seven outages.				false
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		891						LN		34		23		false		              23   presented in testimony.  I think it will be the easiest				false
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		903						LN		35		9		false		               9   influence the direction.				false

		904						LN		35		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And in this case let me				false

		905						LN		35		11		false		              11   make sure I characterize this correctly, but there's a				false

		906						LN		35		12		false		              12   series of plugs that are each opened individually,				false

		907						LN		35		13		false		              13   and -- and a compound is -- is deposited through the				false

		908						LN		35		14		false		              14   plug.  And then the plugs are reclosed, and that process				false

		909						LN		35		15		false		              15   ultimately resulted in one of the plugs being missing at				false

		910						LN		35		16		false		              16   some point?				false

		911						LN		35		17		false		              17        A.   Maybe a better way to say it is the generator				false

		912						LN		35		18		false		              18   is probably 14, 16 foot in diameter, and there's a				false

		913						LN		35		19		false		              19   series of plugs like little quarter inch or				false

		914						LN		35		20		false		              20   three-eighths inch plugs all the way around.  If they				false

		915						LN		35		21		false		              21   take one out and they use this, like a -- it's a -- it				false

		916						LN		35		22		false		              22   looks like our TV almost, you know, that you get at the				false

		917						LN		35		23		false		              23   store.				false

		918						LN		35		24		false		              24             And they pump it in, and they pump it in the				false

		919						LN		35		25		false		              25   next one.  It comes out.  Then they put the plug in here				false

		920						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		921						LN		36		1		false		               1   and then pump it here to the next one.  It creates a				false

		922						LN		36		2		false		               2   flexible seal so the hydrogen doesn't leak out, and then				false

		923						LN		36		3		false		               3   they put the plugs back in one by one.				false

		924						LN		36		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  And you mentioned -- this is -- I can				false

		925						LN		36		5		false		               5   direct you to it.  It's page 3 of your response				false

		926						LN		36		6		false		               6   testimony, on line 56, and is this -- this accurate				false

		927						LN		36		7		false		               7   that -- that you had written in there, that the plugs				false

		928						LN		36		8		false		               8   are tightened, torque not required and pressure tested				false

		929						LN		36		9		false		               9   to verify the seal integrity?				false

		930						LN		36		10		false		              10        A.   Yes.  When the -- the work was done, a				false

		931						LN		36		11		false		              11   pressure test at 48 pounds was done for 24 hours, and it				false

		932						LN		36		12		false		              12   passed the pressure test.				false

		933						LN		36		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  And so it's -- it's your testimony of				false

		934						LN		36		14		false		              14   the company that it's believed that the plug had				false

		935						LN		36		15		false		              15   vibrated out at some point?				false

		936						LN		36		16		false		              16        A.   That's correct.  Otherwise, it wouldn't have				false

		937						LN		36		17		false		              17   passed the pressure test.				false

		938						LN		36		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  And -- and would it be a reasonable				false

		939						LN		36		19		false		              19   conclusion that it vibrated out because it was not				false

		940						LN		36		20		false		              20   tightened properly?				false

		941						LN		36		21		false		              21        A.   That's one possibility.  I -- they're not sure				false

		942						LN		36		22		false		              22   why it vibrated out.  It may not have been tightened				false

		943						LN		36		23		false		              23   enough.  It may have had a flaw, don't really know, but				false

		944						LN		36		24		false		              24   we believe it vibrated out sometime during operation				false

		945						LN		36		25		false		              25   when it was returned to service.				false
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		947						LN		37		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  And how many of the other plugs				false

		948						LN		37		2		false		               2   vibrated out since then?				false

		949						LN		37		3		false		               3        A.   None of them.				false

		950						LN		37		4		false		               4        Q.   So if you were creating a plan to prevent that				false

		951						LN		37		5		false		               5   from happening in the future, would you recommend adding				false

		952						LN		37		6		false		               6   a torque value to the installation of those plugs?				false

		953						LN		37		7		false		               7        A.   I'd have to check on the design on that.  I				false

		954						LN		37		8		false		               8   would have to really know whether that was prudent or				false

		955						LN		37		9		false		               9   not.  I -- I -- that is a reasonable solution.  I am not				false

		956						LN		37		10		false		              10   sure if it was or not.  The procedure done was by				false

		957						LN		37		11		false		              11   General Electric, and it was their procedure.				false

		958						LN		37		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that hand tight				false

		959						LN		37		13		false		              13   probably isn't adequate?				false

		960						LN		37		14		false		              14        A.   And I don't know if it was hand tight or not.				false

		961						LN		37		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  About if -- if that was -- if that was				false

		962						LN		37		16		false		              16   the case, it would need to be tighter than that?				false

		963						LN		37		17		false		              17        A.   I would say so, yes.				false

		964						LN		37		18		false		              18        Q.   Would it be unreasonably expensive, do you				false

		965						LN		37		19		false		              19   think, to add in the procedure manual for when you are				false

		966						LN		37		20		false		              20   reinstalling these plugs to tighten them to some level				false

		967						LN		37		21		false		              21   that's checked in some way?				false

		968						LN		37		22		false		              22        A.   I wouldn't think so.				false

		969						LN		37		23		false		              23        Q.   That's all the questions I have about the				false

		970						LN		37		24		false		              24   Craig Unit 2.  Next I'd like to move on and discuss Dave				false

		971						LN		37		25		false		              25   Johnson -- or excuse me, Dave Johnson 3, the April 25th				false
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		973						LN		38		1		false		               1   outage.				false

		974						LN		38		2		false		               2             Can you tell me why different grades of metal				false

		975						LN		38		3		false		               3   are used in different pipes at different -- different				false

		976						LN		38		4		false		               4   points within the boiler unit?				false

		977						LN		38		5		false		               5        A.   It's basically temperature and pressure				false

		978						LN		38		6		false		               6   related event.  Low temperature steam or water, carbon				false

		979						LN		38		7		false		               7   steel is okay for, but when you start getting into the				false

		980						LN		38		8		false		               8   higher temperatures, a thousand degrees or higher, the				false

		981						LN		38		9		false		               9   material breaks down faster.  So the longevity would be				false

		982						LN		38		10		false		              10   reduced over time.				false

		983						LN		38		11		false		              11        Q.   And I think your testimony is in agreement				false

		984						LN		38		12		false		              12   that it was a -- a tubing material that was incorrect				false

		985						LN		38		13		false		              13   for the location; is that accurate?				false

		986						LN		38		14		false		              14        A.   It was a nonconforming material.				false

		987						LN		38		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  It didn't meet the engineer's design				false

		988						LN		38		16		false		              16   spec for that location?				false

		989						LN		38		17		false		              17        A.   Somewhat, yes.  To give you a better frame of				false

		990						LN		38		18		false		              18   reference is, the tube that had the material that failed				false

		991						LN		38		19		false		              19   is here, and somewhere right below there, the -- it was				false

		992						LN		38		20		false		              20   a transition switch to a different material, like within				false

		993						LN		38		21		false		              21   a couple of feet.  And the tube right next to it was the				false

		994						LN		38		22		false		              22   same material that was put in.  So I mean, they were				false

		995						LN		38		23		false		              23   literally inches apart.				false

		996						LN		38		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  So -- and is that the case that the				false

		997						LN		38		25		false		              25   tube next to it was the correct tube?				false

		998						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		999						LN		39		1		false		               1        A.   Yes.				false

		1000						LN		39		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  And that was, I think if I am				false

		1001						LN		39		3		false		               3   remembering, that was No. 47, but I don't remember that.				false

		1002						LN		39		4		false		               4        A.   No, no, no, no.  You're -- you're thinking of				false

		1003						LN		39		5		false		               5   something different.				false

		1004						LN		39		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  You would agree that prudent				false

		1005						LN		39		7		false		               7   construction of a facility would use the appropriate				false

		1006						LN		39		8		false		               8   tube for the correct locations; is that correct?				false

		1007						LN		39		9		false		               9        A.   In an optimal condition, you would use the				false

		1008						LN		39		10		false		              10   exact design material that was put in the boiler, yes.				false

		1009						LN		39		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  And part of the response in your				false

		1010						LN		39		12		false		              12   testimony was that the nonconforming tube had lasted 20				false

		1011						LN		39		13		false		              13   years, and that was an indication that it was adequate				false

		1012						LN		39		14		false		              14   for that location?				false

		1013						LN		39		15		false		              15        A.   It lasted at least 20 years.  The -- the				false

		1014						LN		39		16		false		              16   reason we go back at least 20 is because when Utah Power				false

		1015						LN		39		17		false		              17   and Pacific Power merged, the Utah Power repair process,				false

		1016						LN		39		18		false		              18   called an R state process, was more robust than the				false

		1017						LN		39		19		false		              19   Pacific Power one.  And it was implemented, and that was				false

		1018						LN		39		20		false		              20   about the time it was implemented.				false

		1019						LN		39		21		false		              21             This material could have been put in 30 years				false

		1020						LN		39		22		false		              22   ago.  I -- we -- we don't have the records, and back				false

		1021						LN		39		23		false		              23   that far back, it would have been a paper system.  So it				false

		1022						LN		39		24		false		              24   was more difficult to track and follow things, where				false

		1023						LN		39		25		false		              25   today it's very computer friendly.				false
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		1025						LN		40		1		false		               1             So I know it's at least 20 years because				false

		1026						LN		40		2		false		               2   that's when we did the switchover, and we don't have any				false

		1027						LN		40		3		false		               3   records from that 20 years back -- forward.  So it was				false

		1028						LN		40		4		false		               4   at least 20 years.				false

		1029						LN		40		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And -- and is it -- is it				false

		1030						LN		40		6		false		               6   an accurate statement that if the, the correct grade of				false

		1031						LN		40		7		false		               7   steel tube had been used, all else equal, you would				false

		1032						LN		40		8		false		               8   expect it to have lasted longer in the same conditions?				false

		1033						LN		40		9		false		               9        A.   That's a possibility, yes.  It would have --				false

		1034						LN		40		10		false		              10   it probably would have lasted longer.				false

		1035						LN		40		11		false		              11        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on next to the same				false

		1036						LN		40		12		false		              12   power plant but the September 19th, the Dave Johnson				false

		1037						LN		40		13		false		              13   September 19th outage.				false

		1038						LN		40		14		false		              14             I, I think it, it would be a fair summary,				false

		1039						LN		40		15		false		              15   correct me if I am wrong, of your testimony that the --				false

		1040						LN		40		16		false		              16   the company does rely on a metallurgist that's a third				false

		1041						LN		40		17		false		              17   party contractor to review some of these failures, and				false

		1042						LN		40		18		false		              18   that that third party recommended less explosive use,				false

		1043						LN		40		19		false		              19   less -- I guess it's a slower propagation, deslagging				false

		1044						LN		40		20		false		              20   explosive or propellant?				false

		1045						LN		40		21		false		              21        A.   When a metallurgist gets a section of tube, he				false

		1046						LN		40		22		false		              22   dissects that tube, and he reports to us everything he				false

		1047						LN		40		23		false		              23   sees, you know, whether it's old damage, new damage,				false

		1048						LN		40		24		false		              24   whatever.  His -- his responsibility is to tell us				false

		1049						LN		40		25		false		              25   everything that he -- he knows about that tube.				false
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		1051						LN		41		1		false		               1             In this case he noticed that there was some				false

		1052						LN		41		2		false		               2   stress rings, I believe they are called Nelson rings,				false

		1053						LN		41		3		false		               3   for that saying that there had been some previous damage				false

		1054						LN		41		4		false		               4   at some point in time.  Okay.  That could have happened				false

		1055						LN		41		5		false		               5   10 plus years ago.  We don't know.				false

		1056						LN		41		6		false		               6             So what he reported there, because he saw				false

		1057						LN		41		7		false		               7   that, is he said, you should consider using low -- lower				false

		1058						LN		41		8		false		               8   prop -- lower velocity detonation cord.  Okay.  And that				false

		1059						LN		41		9		false		               9   was a -- to inform us that if we hadn't already started				false

		1060						LN		41		10		false		              10   doing it, we should consider it.				false

		1061						LN		41		11		false		              11             As I said in testimony, we identified that				false

		1062						LN		41		12		false		              12   issue back in -- long before that, and we implemented				false

		1063						LN		41		13		false		              13   the lowest velocity det. cord that's available on the				false

		1064						LN		41		14		false		              14   market in 2011.				false

		1065						LN		41		15		false		              15        Q.   And are there -- are there other ways to				false

		1066						LN		41		16		false		              16   deslag those outside of using detonation cord?				false

		1067						LN		41		17		false		              17        A.   Yes.  But they tend to have more risk towards				false

		1068						LN		41		18		false		              18   people.  Using detonation cord tends to be the most				false

		1069						LN		41		19		false		              19   effective and safest method for deslagging.				false

		1070						LN		41		20		false		              20             I mean, if I go back to 30 years ago when I				false

		1071						LN		41		21		false		              21   was doing it, I remember spending an Easter with a large				false

		1072						LN		41		22		false		              22   steel rod just hammering away at slag between panels,				false

		1073						LN		41		23		false		              23   and it was not a very pleasant time.  Or, you know, you,				false

		1074						LN		41		24		false		              24   you have eye injuries.  You have strains and sprains.				false

		1075						LN		41		25		false		              25   So detonation cord shakes the whole thing, breaks the				false

		1076						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1077						LN		42		1		false		               1   slag and allows people to get in there without injury.				false

		1078						LN		42		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  But it also tends to cause fractures				false

		1079						LN		42		3		false		               3   in -- in brittle materials; is that correct?				false

		1080						LN		42		4		false		               4        A.   Yes.  In this case we are putting people				false

		1081						LN		42		5		false		               5   first.				false

		1082						LN		42		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  And prior to 2011, you were using the				false

		1083						LN		42		7		false		               7   more aggressive detonation cord that --				false

		1084						LN		42		8		false		               8        A.   I understand that, yes.  I just know since				false

		1085						LN		42		9		false		               9   2011, we have been using the lowest.  There might have				false

		1086						LN		42		10		false		              10   been steps, but I am unfamiliar with exactly what steps				false

		1087						LN		42		11		false		              11   they were.				false

		1088						LN		42		12		false		              12        Q.   Thank you.  I am going to move on to the				false

		1089						LN		42		13		false		              13   Huntington Unit 1 outage.  It's correct that the				false

		1090						LN		42		14		false		              14   Huntington Unit 1 outage was the fourth of a similar				false

		1091						LN		42		15		false		              15   type of failure that's occurred since 2008; is that				false

		1092						LN		42		16		false		              16   correct?				false

		1093						LN		42		17		false		              17        A.   Yeah.  We have had four failures over an 11				false

		1094						LN		42		18		false		              18   year period.				false

		1095						LN		42		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And all of the failures were the result				false

		1096						LN		42		20		false		              20   of -- of the same welding failure?				false

		1097						LN		42		21		false		              21        A.   It's -- it's of a similar metal weld failure				false

		1098						LN		42		22		false		              22   that happens with everything on a dissimilar metal weld				false

		1099						LN		42		23		false		              23   over time and temperature.				false

		1100						LN		42		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And this has been known in the -- the				false

		1101						LN		42		25		false		              25   utility generation industry for quite some time; is that				false
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		1103						LN		43		1		false		               1   correct?				false

		1104						LN		43		2		false		               2        A.   Yes.  And it's managed by most utilities.				false

		1105						LN		43		3		false		               3   It's a judgment call on when to do a bunch of				false

		1106						LN		43		4		false		               4   replacements and when to keep managing through them, and				false

		1107						LN		43		5		false		               5   managing so that you don't have a, what they call the				false

		1108						LN		43		6		false		               6   hockey stick up on failures.				false

		1109						LN		43		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  And you have had planned outages where				false

		1110						LN		43		8		false		               8   this could have been repaired as is planned for 2022.				false

		1111						LN		43		9		false		               9   You've had planned outages between 2008 and 2017; is				false

		1112						LN		43		10		false		              10   that correct?				false

		1113						LN		43		11		false		              11        A.   That's correct.  And maybe to frame that, is,				false

		1114						LN		43		12		false		              12   we have a planned outage about every four years.  Okay.				false

		1115						LN		43		13		false		              13   And we take it down for about five weeks, and we tear				false

		1116						LN		43		14		false		              14   just about everything apart and try to rebuild it and				false

		1117						LN		43		15		false		              15   put it back together and then try to run the plant for				false

		1118						LN		43		16		false		              16   four years solid.				false

		1119						LN		43		17		false		              17             So when you have that five week period, you				false

		1120						LN		43		18		false		              18   know, these structures are 15, 20 stories tall, with				false

		1121						LN		43		19		false		              19   thousands and thousands of tubes and welds in them.  And				false

		1122						LN		43		20		false		              20   you have all the ancillary equipment, so you kind of				false

		1123						LN		43		21		false		              21   have to prioritize your work.  Okay.  And for lack of a				false

		1124						LN		43		22		false		              22   better term, you triage it, and you focus on the things				false

		1125						LN		43		23		false		              23   that are going to cause you the most forced outages and				false

		1126						LN		43		24		false		              24   you address those.				false

		1127						LN		43		25		false		              25             And this data was not the worst actor we had				false
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		1129						LN		44		1		false		               1   in the plant so we focused on other areas that were				false

		1130						LN		44		2		false		               2   going to be more negatively impactful to the forced				false

		1131						LN		44		3		false		               3   outage rate.				false

		1132						LN		44		4		false		               4        Q.   Do you know how long, in addition during any				false

		1133						LN		44		5		false		               5   of your previous planned outages, it would have taken to				false

		1134						LN		44		6		false		               6   remedy this, in a -- as an extension to a prior outage?				false

		1135						LN		44		7		false		               7        A.   You mean to replace it all?				false

		1136						LN		44		8		false		               8        Q.   To perform the same planned replacement as you				false

		1137						LN		44		9		false		               9   intend in 2022.				false

		1138						LN		44		10		false		              10        A.   How long it would take?				false

		1139						LN		44		11		false		              11        Q.   Yeah.  Would that have added a week --				false

		1140						LN		44		12		false		              12        A.   Probably --				false

		1141						LN		44		13		false		              13        Q.   -- to your prior outages or longer?				false

		1142						LN		44		14		false		              14        A.   Well, if you planned it up front, you build it				false

		1143						LN		44		15		false		              15   in there, and it would probably be a couple of million				false

		1144						LN		44		16		false		              16   dollars to replace them all, all 600.  And if -- if I				false

		1145						LN		44		17		false		              17   knew about it beforehand and planned it and planned the				false

		1146						LN		44		18		false		              18   work in there, it probably wouldn't have extended the				false

		1147						LN		44		19		false		              19   outage.  Now, if I found out about it in week four of a				false

		1148						LN		44		20		false		              20   five week outage, I would have a problem.				false

		1149						LN		44		21		false		              21        Q.   So -- so what was it about the fourth outage				false

		1150						LN		44		22		false		              22   that was different from the first or second or third				false

		1151						LN		44		23		false		              23   outage that caused the company to change or implement a				false

		1152						LN		44		24		false		              24   replacement for 2022?				false

		1153						LN		44		25		false		              25        A.   It was basically time.  I mean, we -- we -- we				false

		1154						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1155						LN		45		1		false		               1   know that dissimilar metal weld failures are a function				false

		1156						LN		45		2		false		               2   of time and temperature, and as time goes on, you know,				false

		1157						LN		45		3		false		               3   you are taking on more risk of a failure as time goes				false

		1158						LN		45		4		false		               4   on.  So in 2008, I don't believe we felt that there was				false

		1159						LN		45		5		false		               5   enough risk after one failure to do anything.				false

		1160						LN		45		6		false		               6             And then I believe -- I can't remember the				false

		1161						LN		45		7		false		               7   other two, is I want to say in '11 and '15 and then the				false

		1162						LN		45		8		false		               8   last one in '17.  I am not sure those dates are correct.				false

		1163						LN		45		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  I don't know the -- the dates of those				false

		1164						LN		45		10		false		              10   either.  Let's move on to Jim Bridger No. 2 is next.				false

		1165						LN		45		11		false		              11   And is it accurate that this outage at Jim Bridger No.				false

		1166						LN		45		12		false		              12   2, January 17th, 2017, was a result of a water coolant				false

		1167						LN		45		13		false		              13   line freezing because of a failure in the heat tracing?				false

		1168						LN		45		14		false		              14        A.   That's roughly correct.				false

		1169						LN		45		15		false		              15        Q.   Do you run the heat tracing all of the time or				false

		1170						LN		45		16		false		              16   only during shutdowns?				false

		1171						LN		45		17		false		              17        A.   No.  We only run it when there's freezing				false

		1172						LN		45		18		false		              18   temperatures though.				false

		1173						LN		45		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And I am looking at your response				false

		1174						LN		45		20		false		              20   testimony, page 11, beginning at line 244.  You				false

		1175						LN		45		21		false		              21   testified that the -- "The company has processes in				false

		1176						LN		45		22		false		              22   place to inspect the heat tracing and verify operation.				false

		1177						LN		45		23		false		              23   But the process had a void in it that results in this				false

		1178						LN		45		24		false		              24   failure" -- resulted, excuse me, "in this failure to not				false

		1179						LN		45		25		false		              25   be identified so repair work could be completed"?				false

		1180						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1181						LN		46		1		false		               1        A.   Yes.  So what -- what we do is, in the fall,				false

		1182						LN		46		2		false		               2   before the freezing temperatures, go out, usually start				false

		1183						LN		46		3		false		               3   sometime in August or early September, have people go				false

		1184						LN		46		4		false		               4   out to all the freeze protection panels and all the				false

		1185						LN		46		5		false		               5   circuits, and there is literally hundreds and hundreds				false

		1186						LN		46		6		false		               6   of these.				false

		1187						LN		46		7		false		               7             There's -- there's a lot, especially if you				false

		1188						LN		46		8		false		               8   have an outdoor boiler.  And then they go out and they				false

		1189						LN		46		9		false		               9   actually measure the current in the voltage and record				false

		1190						LN		46		10		false		              10   it.  So it's to determine whether something's				false

		1191						LN		46		11		false		              11   malfunctioning or not.				false

		1192						LN		46		12		false		              12             In this particular case, there was no current,				false

		1193						LN		46		13		false		              13   but there was voltage.  So that is how it got missed.				false

		1194						LN		46		14		false		              14   Okay.  So as I have said in testimony, we said, when the				false

		1195						LN		46		15		false		              15   technician sees that, he is to raise the red flag and do				false

		1196						LN		46		16		false		              16   some other things.				false

		1197						LN		46		17		false		              17             So we went through the effort to try to,				false

		1198						LN		46		18		false		              18   before the freezing temperatures to verify our -- our				false

		1199						LN		46		19		false		              19   systems were working.  We just had a procedural problem				false

		1200						LN		46		20		false		              20   here where the -- the failure slipped through the				false

		1201						LN		46		21		false		              21   cracks, either by the technician not raising it or				false

		1202						LN		46		22		false		              22   somebody else not seeing it.				false

		1203						LN		46		23		false		              23        Q.   And so ultimately the result was that the				false

		1204						LN		46		24		false		              24   testing procedures were carried out but they didn't				false

		1205						LN		46		25		false		              25   identify the problem?				false

		1206						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1207						LN		47		1		false		               1        A.   This -- this particular problem, yeah.				false

		1208						LN		47		2		false		               2        Q.   And it's your testimony that that -- that was				false

		1209						LN		47		3		false		               3   the testing procedure was, I guess, a prudent choice by				false

		1210						LN		47		4		false		               4   the company?				false

		1211						LN		47		5		false		               5        A.   Well, we had a -- a testing procedure in				false

		1212						LN		47		6		false		               6   place, and we thought it was complete.  We didn't				false

		1213						LN		47		7		false		               7   recognize this could be a void until it happened to us,				false

		1214						LN		47		8		false		               8   and then we made corrections since we have discovered				false

		1215						LN		47		9		false		               9   that.				false

		1216						LN		47		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  And -- and as an electrical engineer,				false

		1217						LN		47		11		false		              11   do you think a testing procedure that measures a voltage				false

		1218						LN		47		12		false		              12   difference at -- at the, I guess the plug-in points of a				false

		1219						LN		47		13		false		              13   heat tracing tape that doesn't measure resistance of the				false

		1220						LN		47		14		false		              14   tape would be an appropriate way to test whether it's				false

		1221						LN		47		15		false		              15   functional?				false

		1222						LN		47		16		false		              16        A.   In measuring the resistance?  I am not sure I				false

		1223						LN		47		17		false		              17   understood your question.				false

		1224						LN		47		18		false		              18        Q.   Measuring -- measuring electricity flow?				false

		1225						LN		47		19		false		              19        A.   You mean the current and the voltage?				false

		1226						LN		47		20		false		              20        Q.   Yes.				false

		1227						LN		47		21		false		              21        A.   That -- that would be very prudent, and that's				false

		1228						LN		47		22		false		              22   what we were intending to do.				false

		1229						LN		47		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  So you were -- that was what the policy				false

		1230						LN		47		24		false		              24   was prior to that, or that's what it is now?				false

		1231						LN		47		25		false		              25        A.   No.  That's what it was prior, to record the				false

		1232						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1233						LN		48		1		false		               1   current and the voltage.  In this case there was no				false

		1234						LN		48		2		false		               2   current, okay, but there was voltage, and at that point,				false

		1235						LN		48		3		false		               3   nobody raised the flag, the technician or someone said,				false

		1236						LN		48		4		false		               4   this doesn't seem right to me.				false

		1237						LN		48		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  So the inspector, whoever was				false

		1238						LN		48		6		false		               6   inspecting, the technician, identified or had an				false

		1239						LN		48		7		false		               7   erroneous reading.  They just didn't identify it as a --				false

		1240						LN		48		8		false		               8   as a problem?				false

		1241						LN		48		9		false		               9        A.   Correct.				false

		1242						LN		48		10		false		              10        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on now to the Jim				false

		1243						LN		48		11		false		              11   Bridger 3 outage.  And just to refresh recollection,				false

		1244						LN		48		12		false		              12   this was the outage that was caused by an electrical				false

		1245						LN		48		13		false		              13   failure that was determined to be a cable that was				false

		1246						LN		48		14		false		              14   flooded in an underground wire ball; is that correct?				false

		1247						LN		48		15		false		              15        A.   That's correct.				false

		1248						LN		48		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And the identified cause of this, is it				false

		1249						LN		48		17		false		              17   accurate that the cable failed potentially due to damage				false

		1250						LN		48		18		false		              18   during the initial time when the wire was pulled?				false

		1251						LN		48		19		false		              19        A.   I believe the report said it was age and				false

		1252						LN		48		20		false		              20   damage.				false

		1253						LN		48		21		false		              21        Q.   Okay.  Do you know how age would have caused				false

		1254						LN		48		22		false		              22   that failure?				false

		1255						LN		48		23		false		              23        A.   Cable insulation breaks down with age.  I				false

		1256						LN		48		24		false		              24   mean, it's a form of a plastic.  I mean, if you took a				false

		1257						LN		48		25		false		              25   gallon milk jug and set it outside for a year, then				false

		1258						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1259						LN		49		1		false		               1   tried to pick the handle up, the handle is probably				false

		1260						LN		49		2		false		               2   going to come off in your hand because it degrades from				false

		1261						LN		49		3		false		               3   sunlight and everything else.  Cables, the insulation on				false

		1262						LN		49		4		false		               4   them, they aren't designed to run for a million years.				false

		1263						LN		49		5		false		               5        Q.   So do you have a policy in place then to				false

		1264						LN		49		6		false		               6   replace those at periodic intervals?				false

		1265						LN		49		7		false		               7        A.   No.  I think we replace those as conditions				false

		1266						LN		49		8		false		               8   warrant, when we do some testing and -- or if we have a				false

		1267						LN		49		9		false		               9   problem, that the cost of replacing those would be				false

		1268						LN		49		10		false		              10   tremendously large.				false

		1269						LN		49		11		false		              11        Q.   And to the extent that a cable is -- is				false

		1270						LN		49		12		false		              12   damaged during installation, that's usually the result				false

		1271						LN		49		13		false		              13   of a mistake, is it not?				false

		1272						LN		49		14		false		              14        A.   I -- I can't necessarily say that.  I mean,				false

		1273						LN		49		15		false		              15   this was during an original construction in the early				false

		1274						LN		49		16		false		              16   seventies.  So it could have been that there was a rock				false

		1275						LN		49		17		false		              17   that got picked up.  I mean, you're -- you're talking				false

		1276						LN		49		18		false		              18   about traveling hundreds and hundreds of feet.				false

		1277						LN		49		19		false		              19             And what they do is, they have these little				false

		1278						LN		49		20		false		              20   concrete vaults in the ground with the conduit going				false

		1279						LN		49		21		false		              21   through it.  And then it goes to another concrete vault,				false

		1280						LN		49		22		false		              22   and they run the cable through it, through the vault,				false

		1281						LN		49		23		false		              23   and they pull it through.  And these cables are like				false

		1282						LN		49		24		false		              24   this big around.				false

		1283						LN		49		25		false		              25             And they pull -- pulling -- put a pulling				false

		1284						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1285						LN		50		1		false		               1   lubricant on it, and they pull it through.  And they are				false

		1286						LN		50		2		false		               2   trying not to pull it so hard that they damage the				false

		1287						LN		50		3		false		               3   insulation.  Okay.  So during the process, if it -- if				false

		1288						LN		50		4		false		               4   it picks up any type of debris or -- or runs on a corner				false

		1289						LN		50		5		false		               5   and gets slight gouged, it can get damaged.				false

		1290						LN		50		6		false		               6             Generally, after a cable is pulled in, a				false

		1291						LN		50		7		false		               7   standard practice is to what they call Hipot them, is				false

		1292						LN		50		8		false		               8   they get the cable in place, and it's not connected up				false

		1293						LN		50		9		false		               9   to anything.  And they put a voltage on it to check the				false

		1294						LN		50		10		false		              10   leakage current to make sure it's functional.				false

		1295						LN		50		11		false		              11             I am assuming that happened back in the				false

		1296						LN		50		12		false		              12   seventies when the plant was built and that it passed at				false

		1297						LN		50		13		false		              13   that time, and then it successfully operated for over 40				false

		1298						LN		50		14		false		              14   years before the pit got flooded and water actually				false

		1299						LN		50		15		false		              15   improved the conduction path.  And the damage and the				false

		1300						LN		50		16		false		              16   age probably got to it right there.				false

		1301						LN		50		17		false		              17        Q.   Let me ask you a couple quick follow-ups.				false

		1302						LN		50		18		false		              18   The -- the purpose of those procedures as they install				false

		1303						LN		50		19		false		              19   it with the lubrication and -- and the way that it's fed				false

		1304						LN		50		20		false		              20   into the tubing and into the conduit tube, and the				false

		1305						LN		50		21		false		              21   conduit itself, in fact, it's -- it's all there to make				false

		1306						LN		50		22		false		              22   sure that it's not damaged; is that correct?				false

		1307						LN		50		23		false		              23        A.   Generally, yes.				false

		1308						LN		50		24		false		              24        Q.   And on a little bit of a different question,				false

		1309						LN		50		25		false		              25   with relative to the flooding of those, have you taken				false

		1310						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1311						LN		51		1		false		               1   any steps since then to remedy, to -- to have drains to				false

		1312						LN		51		2		false		               2   keep those vaults from being flooded?				false

		1313						LN		51		3		false		               3        A.   Not to my knowledge.  I believe this was a				false

		1314						LN		51		4		false		               4   gasket failure.				false

		1315						LN		51		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  Do you think it would be a prudent				false

		1316						LN		51		6		false		               6   choice to do that in the future, at least to the extent				false

		1317						LN		51		7		false		               7   that a vault is within the drain path of some of the				false

		1318						LN		51		8		false		               8   plumbing?				false

		1319						LN		51		9		false		               9        A.   So let's take this little building where it				false

		1320						LN		51		10		false		              10   happened.  It's kind of out in the middle of nowhere.  I				false

		1321						LN		51		11		false		              11   mean, there -- there aren't probably any drains to drain				false

		1322						LN		51		12		false		              12   it to.  I mean, you might be able to do something by				false

		1323						LN		51		13		false		              13   building up the lip of the vault or something else.  I				false

		1324						LN		51		14		false		              14   don't know.  I haven't specifically looked at that spot				false

		1325						LN		51		15		false		              15   to think about it that way.  I think the best thing to				false

		1326						LN		51		16		false		              16   do is prevent the leak to begin with.				false

		1327						LN		51		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.  And the vaults -- the vaults aren't				false

		1328						LN		51		18		false		              18   intended to be run under water; is that correct?				false

		1329						LN		51		19		false		              19        A.   It's not unusual to find water in them at some				false

		1330						LN		51		20		false		              20   point in time, because the ones outside may get				false

		1331						LN		51		21		false		              21   precipitation.  I mean, in my career, I have opened up				false

		1332						LN		51		22		false		              22   vaults before and they have had three to six inches of				false

		1333						LN		51		23		false		              23   water in them.  It's not uncommon.  They are not				false

		1334						LN		51		24		false		              24   designed for that, but it's not out of the ordinary.				false

		1335						LN		51		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  And so in a typical situation, wiring				false

		1336						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1337						LN		52		1		false		               1   that's undamaged is not -- I guess, a circuit to ground				false

		1338						LN		52		2		false		               2   isn't created when water is -- is in those?				false

		1339						LN		52		3		false		               3        A.   No, not always.  It also, again, depends on				false

		1340						LN		52		4		false		               4   the age of the cable, if it's starting to break down.				false

		1341						LN		52		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And finally, I guess we'll				false

		1342						LN		52		6		false		               6   move on to the Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage, which I				false

		1343						LN		52		7		false		               7   believe was March 17th, 2017, and this is the instance				false

		1344						LN		52		8		false		               8   where an incorrect part was delivered by MD&A; is that				false

		1345						LN		52		9		false		               9   correct?				false

		1346						LN		52		10		false		              10        A.   That's correct.				false

		1347						LN		52		11		false		              11        Q.   How did the company choose to contract with				false

		1348						LN		52		12		false		              12   MD&A for this service?				false

		1349						LN		52		13		false		              13        A.   It was a competitive bidding process.  I mean,				false

		1350						LN		52		14		false		              14   we usually qualify the vendors again, and based on their				false

		1351						LN		52		15		false		              15   experience and everything in the industry, and then we				false

		1352						LN		52		16		false		              16   go out for a competitive tender based on the scope of				false

		1353						LN		52		17		false		              17   work.  In this case it was a turbine overhaul, and then				false

		1354						LN		52		18		false		              18   we see the prices and negotiate terms and then take the				false

		1355						LN		52		19		false		              19   best value for the customer.				false

		1356						LN		52		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  I am looking at your response testimony				false

		1357						LN		52		21		false		              21   on line 326, and I am going to -- are you -- are you				false

		1358						LN		52		22		false		              22   caught up?				false

		1359						LN		52		23		false		              23        A.   I'm there.				false

		1360						LN		52		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And it says, "MD&A determined that the				false

		1361						LN		52		25		false		              25   root cause was that MD&A had recently increased the				false

		1362						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1363						LN		53		1		false		               1   repair shop capacity for work.  However, they had not				false

		1364						LN		53		2		false		               2   yet caught up with fully staffing appropriately."  Did I				false

		1365						LN		53		3		false		               3   read that correctly?				false

		1366						LN		53		4		false		               4        A.   Yes.				false

		1367						LN		53		5		false		               5        Q.   And you said that you had -- had -- Rocky				false

		1368						LN		53		6		false		               6   Mountain Power had verified that it was an appropriate				false

		1369						LN		53		7		false		               7   vendor through their process; is that correct?				false

		1370						LN		53		8		false		               8        A.   Yes, and we have experience with them before.				false

		1371						LN		53		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  But -- but you didn't know that they				false

		1372						LN		53		10		false		              10   had increased their repair shop capacity and not yet				false

		1373						LN		53		11		false		              11   caught up on staffing?				false

		1374						LN		53		12		false		              12        A.   No.  Maybe a better way to say that is, when				false

		1375						LN		53		13		false		              13   you take a turbine apart, you don't necessarily know				false

		1376						LN		53		14		false		              14   what's -- needs repaired.  I mean, in our case we go --				false

		1377						LN		53		15		false		              15   on certain sections of turbine, we go eight years before				false

		1378						LN		53		16		false		              16   we tear them apart.  And when you tear it apart, you				false

		1379						LN		53		17		false		              17   find damage, and then you go to repair shops to try to				false

		1380						LN		53		18		false		              18   get that damage fixed within the outage frame.				false

		1381						LN		53		19		false		              19             And most utilities will schedule outages in				false

		1382						LN		53		20		false		              20   the spring and the fall, because that's when power				false

		1383						LN		53		21		false		              21   prices are the lowest and replacement power costs for				false

		1384						LN		53		22		false		              22   the customer is the cheapest.  Winter and summer, that's				false

		1385						LN		53		23		false		              23   when everybody wants their electricity and the market				false

		1386						LN		53		24		false		              24   prices are higher.  So you select those times there.				false

		1387						LN		53		25		false		              25             And a lot of times, the amount of repair work				false

		1388						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1389						LN		54		1		false		               1   these shops see in those times is kind of like drinking				false

		1390						LN		54		2		false		               2   out of a fire hydrant, and then in the middle of the				false

		1391						LN		54		3		false		               3   summer, it could be next to nothing.  So I mean, it, it				false

		1392						LN		54		4		false		               4   kind of depends on who tore things apart across the				false

		1393						LN		54		5		false		               5   country and what did they find.  So it's very, very hard				false

		1394						LN		54		6		false		               6   to determine.  We just make sure that we are trying to				false

		1395						LN		54		7		false		               7   get a contractor who is capable and competent of doing				false

		1396						LN		54		8		false		               8   the work.				false

		1397						LN		54		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  And in this case, they -- they actually				false

		1398						LN		54		10		false		              10   installed the wrong part; is that correct?				false

		1399						LN		54		11		false		              11        A.   Yes.				false

		1400						LN		54		12		false		              12        Q.   It was an impeller from a different generation				false

		1401						LN		54		13		false		              13   unit?				false

		1402						LN		54		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.  What they did is they sent out the				false

		1403						LN		54		15		false		              15   impellers for -- to a third party for nondestructive				false

		1404						LN		54		16		false		              16   testing, to see if there was cracks in them that you				false

		1405						LN		54		17		false		              17   couldn't see visually, so that if you put it back in				false

		1406						LN		54		18		false		              18   there and then it was running, it didn't fly apart at				false

		1407						LN		54		19		false		              19   you at some other time.  And when they came back, there				false

		1408						LN		54		20		false		              20   was more than one impeller from the contractor, or from				false

		1409						LN		54		21		false		              21   the third party testing company, and they got it				false

		1410						LN		54		22		false		              22   switched.				false

		1411						LN		54		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  And so if I -- if I go to your analogy				false

		1412						LN		54		24		false		              24   of -- of switching your tires frequently, if you went to				false

		1413						LN		54		25		false		              25   the tire repair shop and your -- your car came out and				false

		1414						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1415						LN		55		1		false		               1   it had three different wheels on it, you might ask				false

		1416						LN		55		2		false		               2   questions, wouldn't you, of whether this repair shop is				false

		1417						LN		55		3		false		               3   competent to be doing the work that you hired them to				false

		1418						LN		55		4		false		               4   do?				false

		1419						LN		55		5		false		               5        A.   I would question the ability, but if I had				false

		1420						LN		55		6		false		               6   been doing business with him for 20 years and had very				false

		1421						LN		55		7		false		               7   good success, I would ask him to correct it and ask him				false

		1422						LN		55		8		false		               8   what they were going to do to make sure it didn't				false

		1423						LN		55		9		false		               9   happen.				false

		1424						LN		55		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  Would you ask -- would you ask them				false

		1425						LN		55		11		false		              11   to -- in the -- in the car repair instance, to pay for				false

		1426						LN		55		12		false		              12   your taxi to go wherever you needed to go while they				false

		1427						LN		55		13		false		              13   repair your car?				false

		1428						LN		55		14		false		              14        A.   Probably not.				false

		1429						LN		55		15		false		              15        Q.   You wouldn't.  Okay.  And similarly can you				false

		1430						LN		55		16		false		              16   not ask MD&A to cover the cost of the energy to cover				false

		1431						LN		55		17		false		              17   the outage?				false

		1432						LN		55		18		false		              18        A.   We did not ask them to cover the direct cost				false

		1433						LN		55		19		false		              19   of the replacement power.				false

		1434						LN		55		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  And it's accurate, I guess, that you				false

		1435						LN		55		21		false		              21   are asking that the customers are going to -- asking				false

		1436						LN		55		22		false		              22   customers to pay for that?				false

		1437						LN		55		23		false		              23        A.   To some -- yes.  The other way to think about				false

		1438						LN		55		24		false		              24   this, if we would try to get contracts that shifted a				false

		1439						LN		55		25		false		              25   hundred percent of the risk to contractors, I know we				false

		1440						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1441						LN		56		1		false		               1   would pay a significantly amount more than what we are				false

		1442						LN		56		2		false		               2   paying for contracts now.  And the frequency rate of				false

		1443						LN		56		3		false		               3   failures is extremely small compared to the number of				false

		1444						LN		56		4		false		               4   contracts we do.  So we would be spending a lot more				false

		1445						LN		56		5		false		               5   money for the benefit.				false

		1446						LN		56		6		false		               6        Q.   Thank you.  I have no further questions.				false

		1447						LN		56		7		false		               7   Thank you for your testimony and putting up with my				false

		1448						LN		56		8		false		               8   questions today.  I appreciate it.				false

		1449						LN		56		9		false		               9        A.   No worries.				false

		1450						LN		56		10		false		              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.				false

		1451						LN		56		11		false		              11   Mr. Russell?				false

		1452						LN		56		12		false		              12             MR. RUSSELL:  Thank you, Chairman LeVar.				false

		1453						LN		56		13		false		              13                       CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1454						LN		56		14		false		              14   BY MR. RUSSELL:				false

		1455						LN		56		15		false		              15        Q.   I have a few questions, and I'm going to try				false

		1456						LN		56		16		false		              16   to follow Mr. Jetter's format a little bit in that he				false

		1457						LN		56		17		false		              17   started asking you some questions more generally about				false

		1458						LN		56		18		false		              18   the company when it hires subcontractors or third party				false

		1459						LN		56		19		false		              19   contractors.				false

		1460						LN		56		20		false		              20             You -- he asked you a question about whether				false

		1461						LN		56		21		false		              21   those contracts include replacement power costs in those				false

		1462						LN		56		22		false		              22   third party contracts, and you indicated they do not.				false

		1463						LN		56		23		false		              23   I'm -- I'm curious about the mechanism.  Is it -- do				false

		1464						LN		56		24		false		              24   those contracts typically include a waiver of				false

		1465						LN		56		25		false		              25   consequential damages?  Is that -- is that how those				false

		1466						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1467						LN		57		1		false		               1   contracts are set up?				false

		1468						LN		57		2		false		               2        A.   I -- I believe so.  I mean, the -- the				false

		1469						LN		57		3		false		               3   contracts do not specifically say that.				false

		1470						LN		57		4		false		               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I don't think you are getting				false

		1471						LN		57		5		false		               5   on the microphone.				false

		1472						LN		57		6		false		               6             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.				false

		1473						LN		57		7		false		               7        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  It's difficult because I am				false

		1474						LN		57		8		false		               8   way over here and you have to turn.  I'm sorry.				false

		1475						LN		57		9		false		               9        A.   I don't believe so.  I'd -- I'd have to look				false

		1476						LN		57		10		false		              10   at the contract.  But the contracts do not have specific				false

		1477						LN		57		11		false		              11   language that say, if -- if an event happens, the				false

		1478						LN		57		12		false		              12   contractor will be solely responsible for all				false

		1479						LN		57		13		false		              13   replacement power cost incurred by the company.  It				false

		1480						LN		57		14		false		              14   doesn't say anything like that.				false

		1481						LN		57		15		false		              15        Q.   In -- in, I guess, does -- does it contain a				false

		1482						LN		57		16		false		              16   provision that has the inverse?  Does it say that the				false

		1483						LN		57		17		false		              17   contractor will not be responsible for certain damages				false

		1484						LN		57		18		false		              18   that result if we, the subcontractor, made a mistake?				false

		1485						LN		57		19		false		              19        A.   I don't -- I don't recall that.				false

		1486						LN		57		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Part of				false

		1487						LN		57		21		false		              21   the -- the job, I guess, of the company, is to -- is to				false

		1488						LN		57		22		false		              22   go out and hire subcontractors that you believe are				false

		1489						LN		57		23		false		              23   competent, right?				false

		1490						LN		57		24		false		              24        A.   That's correct.				false

		1491						LN		57		25		false		              25        Q.   And -- and also to hold contractors				false

		1492						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1493						LN		58		1		false		               1   responsible if they make a mistake, yes?				false

		1494						LN		58		2		false		               2        A.   Yes.				false

		1495						LN		58		3		false		               3        Q.   And as between the company and the customers,				false

		1496						LN		58		4		false		               4   the company is in the better position to hold those				false

		1497						LN		58		5		false		               5   subcontractors responsible, yes?				false

		1498						LN		58		6		false		               6        A.   Yes, I would agree.				false

		1499						LN		58		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  And let's talk a little bit about				false

		1500						LN		58		8		false		               8   relationships with third party operators of power				false

		1501						LN		58		9		false		               9   plants.  We talked about the Craig 2, Craig Unit 2 plant				false

		1502						LN		58		10		false		              10   a little bit.  And it's Tri-State Generation that				false

		1503						LN		58		11		false		              11   operates that unit, yes?				false

		1504						LN		58		12		false		              12        A.   That's correct.				false

		1505						LN		58		13		false		              13        Q.   And what -- and maybe we can just talk				false

		1506						LN		58		14		false		              14   specifically about that one.  What recourse does Rocky				false

		1507						LN		58		15		false		              15   Mountain Power have in a situation where you believe				false

		1508						LN		58		16		false		              16   that Tri-State Generation has operated its plant				false

		1509						LN		58		17		false		              17   imprudently and it causes impacts on Rocky Mountain				false

		1510						LN		58		18		false		              18   Power's customers?				false

		1511						LN		58		19		false		              19        A.   I would have to go back and look at the				false

		1512						LN		58		20		false		              20   participation agreement.  If they used reasonable				false

		1513						LN		58		21		false		              21   utility standards, I don't think we have any recourse.				false

		1514						LN		58		22		false		              22   I mean, if it was gross negligence or something to that				false

		1515						LN		58		23		false		              23   effect, I believe we might, but I, again, I'd have to go				false

		1516						LN		58		24		false		              24   back and look at the participation agreement and ask my				false

		1517						LN		58		25		false		              25   attorneys whether they would concur with my opinion or				false

		1518						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1519						LN		59		1		false		               1   not.				false

		1520						LN		59		2		false		               2        Q.   Fair enough.  Do -- do you know whether the				false

		1521						LN		59		3		false		               3   standard that -- that Tri-State Generation owes to its				false

		1522						LN		59		4		false		               4   co-owners is the same as the standard that Rocky				false

		1523						LN		59		5		false		               5   Mountain Power owes to its customers?				false

		1524						LN		59		6		false		               6             MR. MOSCON:  Objection as to the legal				false

		1525						LN		59		7		false		               7   conclusion.  But as far as the understanding of what				false

		1526						LN		59		8		false		               8   they expect of their co-owner, I mean, go ahead and				false

		1527						LN		59		9		false		               9   answer.				false

		1528						LN		59		10		false		              10        A.   Well, I guess I am not sure I understand your				false

		1529						LN		59		11		false		              11   question.				false

		1530						LN		59		12		false		              12        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Yeah.  I -- I guess -- and				false

		1531						LN		59		13		false		              13   the context here, of course, is that the company has				false

		1532						LN		59		14		false		              14   come to this commission saying, we -- we have acted				false

		1533						LN		59		15		false		              15   prudently, and we would like to recover X costs, and --				false

		1534						LN		59		16		false		              16   and the commission has to determine whether the company				false

		1535						LN		59		17		false		              17   has acted prudently.				false

		1536						LN		59		18		false		              18             What I am wondering is, does Tri-State				false

		1537						LN		59		19		false		              19   Generation have the same standard to Rocky Mountain				false

		1538						LN		59		20		false		              20   Power that Rocky Mountain Power has to its customers?				false

		1539						LN		59		21		false		              21   In other words, is it the same prudent standard, or is				false

		1540						LN		59		22		false		              22   it some higher standard that -- that Tri-State				false

		1541						LN		59		23		false		              23   Generation would have to the company?  Or some lower				false

		1542						LN		59		24		false		              24   standard, if you know.				false

		1543						LN		59		25		false		              25             I'm -- I'm merely asking whether you know.				false

		1544						PG		60		0		false		page 60				false

		1545						LN		60		1		false		               1        A.   Tri-State has the responsibility to operate				false

		1546						LN		60		2		false		               2   the plant with good utility practice.  Okay.  I mean, I				false

		1547						LN		60		3		false		               3   believe that's the term used, because there's not a				false

		1548						LN		60		4		false		               4   standard quoted or anything to that effect.				false

		1549						LN		60		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk -- I have some				false

		1550						LN		60		6		false		               6   follow-up questions about some of the units that we				false

		1551						LN		60		7		false		               7   walked through that are -- that are outlined in the				false

		1552						LN		60		8		false		               8   Daymark report.  Let's talk about the Craig Unit 2				false

		1553						LN		60		9		false		               9   outage, and this is the one with the -- the plugs that				false

		1554						LN		60		10		false		              10   were removed and then put back in.				false

		1555						LN		60		11		false		              11             I had -- I had a question, I -- that I guess I				false

		1556						LN		60		12		false		              12   don't understand the -- in your testimony you say when				false

		1557						LN		60		13		false		              13   those plugs go back in, they are tightened, but torque				false

		1558						LN		60		14		false		              14   isn't used.  And I guess I don't understand what that				false

		1559						LN		60		15		false		              15   means.  But -- but they are -- they are not just hand				false

		1560						LN		60		16		false		              16   tightened, but what -- how are they -- how are they put				false

		1561						LN		60		17		false		              17   back in?				false

		1562						LN		60		18		false		              18        A.   Okay.  I'll try to figure out the best way to				false

		1563						LN		60		19		false		              19   say this.  Okay.  So when you tighten something up, you				false

		1564						LN		60		20		false		              20   are putting a bed frame together on a -- for a house, or				false

		1565						LN		60		21		false		              21   for your kids.				false

		1566						LN		60		22		false		              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Just interrupt.  Does that				false

		1567						LN		60		23		false		              23   microphone move any closer to you?  Does it have enough				false

		1568						LN		60		24		false		              24   cable to move to the edge so you can look at him?				false

		1569						LN		60		25		false		              25        A.   So you are putting a bed frame together, use a				false

		1570						PG		61		0		false		page 61				false

		1571						LN		61		1		false		               1   crescent wrench or a Boxit wrench, and you just tighten				false

		1572						LN		61		2		false		               2   it down.  And when it's tightened up by what you feel,				false

		1573						LN		61		3		false		               3   you just kind of move on.				false

		1574						LN		61		4		false		               4             Well, in -- in certain pieces of a high				false

		1575						LN		61		5		false		               5   technical equipment like engines and that, they use what				false

		1576						LN		61		6		false		               6   they call a torque wrench.  And it has amount of				false

		1577						LN		61		7		false		               7   tightening to it, and you want to get it tight enough				false

		1578						LN		61		8		false		               8   generally so it like crushes a gasket or has a good seal				false

		1579						LN		61		9		false		               9   so that when the, the bolt heats up, it grows enough so				false

		1580						LN		61		10		false		              10   it doesn't create a leak or anything.				false

		1581						LN		61		11		false		              11             So when torque value is not required, they				false

		1582						LN		61		12		false		              12   didn't ever put a torque wrench on it to do it.  It was				false

		1583						LN		61		13		false		              13   left up to the experience of the millwright, the				false

		1584						LN		61		14		false		              14   mechanic doing it, to say, it's tight enough and				false

		1585						LN		61		15		false		              15   appropriate.				false

		1586						LN		61		16		false		              16        Q.   (By Mr. Russell) Okay.  And do you know				false

		1587						LN		61		17		false		              17   whether in this particular instance the millwright that				false

		1588						LN		61		18		false		              18   was -- that was tightening those bolts, whether anybody				false

		1589						LN		61		19		false		              19   checked the work of the person that was doing it?				false

		1590						LN		61		20		false		              20        A.   No.				false

		1591						LN		61		21		false		              21        Q.   Whether somebody followed behind and said,				false

		1592						LN		61		22		false		              22   that bolt's not tight enough or anything?				false

		1593						LN		61		23		false		              23        A.   I don't know.				false

		1594						LN		61		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  Your testimony, your response				false

		1595						LN		61		25		false		              25   testimony, indicated -- it gave a description of how				false

		1596						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1597						LN		62		1		false		               1   these bolts -- bolts are removed and, and tightened.				false

		1598						LN		62		2		false		               2   I -- my question is, do you know whether that's how it				false

		1599						LN		62		3		false		               3   was done here?  Or is this -- or was that testimony --				false

		1600						LN		62		4		false		               4   the basis of that testimony simply your experience as to				false

		1601						LN		62		5		false		               5   how those things are done?				false

		1602						LN		62		6		false		               6        A.   I, I didn't witness what they did.  That's the				false

		1603						LN		62		7		false		               7   procedure I have witnessed General Electric do in the				false

		1604						LN		62		8		false		               8   past.				false

		1605						LN		62		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  So, so your testimony there				false

		1606						LN		62		10		false		              10   described --				false

		1607						LN		62		11		false		              11        A.   And that's what the plant operator told us				false

		1608						LN		62		12		false		              12   they did too.				false

		1609						LN		62		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  So you conducted some investigation				false

		1610						LN		62		14		false		              14   into this instance --				false

		1611						LN		62		15		false		              15        A.   Yeah, I was --				false

		1612						LN		62		16		false		              16        Q.   -- and -- and this is what the plant operator				false

		1613						LN		62		17		false		              17   informed you was the process that took place.				false

		1614						LN		62		18		false		              18        A.   Yes.				false

		1615						LN		62		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Let's move on to the -- Dave				false

		1616						LN		62		20		false		              20   Johnson 3 is the next one.  The April 25, Dave Johnson 3				false

		1617						LN		62		21		false		              21   outage, and that is the one -- was this a forced outage?				false

		1618						LN		62		22		false		              22        A.   Yes, it was.				false

		1619						LN		62		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  I am not going to be offended if you				false

		1620						LN		62		24		false		              24   don't look at me when you answer my questions.				false

		1621						LN		62		25		false		              25        A.   Okay.				false

		1622						PG		63		0		false		page 63				false

		1623						LN		63		1		false		               1        Q.   If it's just easier to face the microphone,				false

		1624						LN		63		2		false		               2   that's fine.				false

		1625						LN		63		3		false		               3        A.   All right.				false

		1626						LN		63		4		false		               4        Q.   This was the one where the -- there was				false

		1627						LN		63		5		false		               5   nonconforming material in the boiler tubes, correct?				false

		1628						LN		63		6		false		               6        A.   That was correct.				false

		1629						LN		63		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  And I think your testimony indicates				false

		1630						LN		63		8		false		               8   this, but I -- I guess I'll ask.  Is nonconforming				false

		1631						LN		63		9		false		               9   material in the boiler tubes a known cause of a				false

		1632						LN		63		10		false		              10   potential outage?				false

		1633						LN		63		11		false		              11        A.   Well, nonconforming means it's not exactly				false

		1634						LN		63		12		false		              12   what was designed.  Okay.  Giving an example is, let's				false

		1635						LN		63		13		false		              13   just say we didn't have that material when the outage				false

		1636						LN		63		14		false		              14   occurred and we put a lower grade, okay, nonconforming				false

		1637						LN		63		15		false		              15   material in, but that material has a cycle life.  Okay.				false

		1638						LN		63		16		false		              16   And if we put it in, we just have to recognize that at				false

		1639						LN		63		17		false		              17   some point in time we'll need to address it.				false

		1640						LN		63		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  And in this instance you don't know why				false

		1641						LN		63		19		false		              19   this nonconforming material was installed, correct?				false

		1642						LN		63		20		false		              20        A.   No.  It was 20 plus years ago, and we don't				false

		1643						LN		63		21		false		              21   have records for that.				false

		1644						LN		63		22		false		              22        Q.   Okay.  And in your testimony there is a				false

		1645						LN		63		23		false		              23   description.  I can point you to the portion of your				false

		1646						LN		63		24		false		              24   testimony.  I think it's around lines 125 and 126.  You				false

		1647						LN		63		25		false		              25   describe a period of about 15 years of repairs in which				false

		1648						PG		64		0		false		page 64				false

		1649						LN		64		1		false		               1   you -- you include the -- the statement here is that you				false

		1650						LN		64		2		false		               2   showed that the standard of like kind materials has and				false

		1651						LN		64		3		false		               3   will continue to be used, maximizing plant equipment				false

		1652						LN		64		4		false		               4   life.  Can you tell me what you meant by that?				false

		1653						LN		64		5		false		               5        A.   We have a better tracking system, a				false

		1654						LN		64		6		false		               6   computerized tracking system.  So what we do is if we				false

		1655						LN		64		7		false		               7   had to do something similar to this, we'll log it in				false

		1656						LN		64		8		false		               8   that tracking system, and we'll be able to pull it up				false

		1657						LN		64		9		false		               9   easily like during overhauls and that and address it.				false

		1658						LN		64		10		false		              10   So we went back 15 years and said, had we put in				false

		1659						LN		64		11		false		              11   nonconforming material in the last 15 years, and the				false

		1660						LN		64		12		false		              12   answer is no.				false

		1661						LN		64		13		false		              13        Q.   Okay.  So this -- this review only went				false

		1662						LN		64		14		false		              14   back -- went back to whether -- whether the company had				false

		1663						LN		64		15		false		              15   installed nonconforming materials in the last 15 years?				false

		1664						LN		64		16		false		              16        A.   And that's -- the quality of our records				false

		1665						LN		64		17		false		              17   degrades significantly after that, because, you know,				false

		1666						LN		64		18		false		              18   they were more paper oriented at that time.  So it's				false

		1667						LN		64		19		false		              19   harder to do searches.				false

		1668						LN		64		20		false		              20        Q.   And when was -- when did the company become				false

		1669						LN		64		21		false		              21   aware that this particular tube, or portion of tube that				false

		1670						LN		64		22		false		              22   failed, used nonconforming material?				false

		1671						LN		64		23		false		              23        A.   After we got the metallurgist report after it				false

		1672						LN		64		24		false		              24   failed.				false

		1673						LN		64		25		false		              25        Q.   So this wasn't something you were aware of				false

		1674						PG		65		0		false		page 65				false

		1675						LN		65		1		false		               1   beforehand?				false

		1676						LN		65		2		false		               2        A.   No.				false

		1677						LN		65		3		false		               3        Q.   And is that something that one would find on				false

		1678						LN		65		4		false		               4   a -- during an outage, that there is material in here				false

		1679						LN		65		5		false		               5   that isn't the correct spec?				false

		1680						LN		65		6		false		               6        A.   Okay.  So when you weld these tube materials				false

		1681						LN		65		7		false		               7   together, I mean, you will have a piece of pipe, and you				false

		1682						LN		65		8		false		               8   will have one -- one over here and a piece over here and				false

		1683						LN		65		9		false		               9   weld it together.  And after -- let's just say after				false

		1684						LN		65		10		false		              10   four or five years, I could lay them on the table there,				false

		1685						LN		65		11		false		              11   and you wouldn't be able to tell which material is				false

		1686						LN		65		12		false		              12   which.				false

		1687						LN		65		13		false		              13             I mean, it will take a metallurgist going				false

		1688						LN		65		14		false		              14   under a, you know, basically looking at the materials				false

		1689						LN		65		15		false		              15   through radiation, through that, and try to figure out				false

		1690						LN		65		16		false		              16   what the material makeup is.  So I can't look at it and				false

		1691						LN		65		17		false		              17   tell you whether it's a different material after it's				false

		1692						LN		65		18		false		              18   been in service for a while.				false

		1693						LN		65		19		false		              19        Q.   And is the -- the -- the type of material				false

		1694						LN		65		20		false		              20   used, is that something that could be discovered during				false

		1695						LN		65		21		false		              21   an inspection during a planned outage?				false

		1696						LN		65		22		false		              22        A.   It would be an extremely difficult task.  I				false

		1697						LN		65		23		false		              23   mean, now they make a gun that's got a radioactive				false

		1698						LN		65		24		false		              24   source in it.  You could put it up to material, and it				false

		1699						LN		65		25		false		              25   gives you a relative chemistry makeup, you know, one and				false
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		1701						LN		66		1		false		               1   a quarter chrome or whatever, so you can kind of figure				false

		1702						LN		66		2		false		               2   that out.				false

		1703						LN		66		3		false		               3             But you basically -- it's telling you that				false

		1704						LN		66		4		false		               4   little spot.  So you would have to do that at every				false

		1705						LN		66		5		false		               5   little piece on every boiler tube throughout the whole				false

		1706						LN		66		6		false		               6   boiler.  I think you would be doing that for many, many				false

		1707						LN		66		7		false		               7   years.				false

		1708						LN		66		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to -- I think				false

		1709						LN		66		9		false		               9   the next one is -- oh, the next one is the September				false

		1710						LN		66		10		false		              10   outage of the same year.  So I guess we're at four				false

		1711						LN		66		11		false		              11   months -- four months later, different boiler tube,				false

		1712						LN		66		12		false		              12   right?				false

		1713						LN		66		13		false		              13        A.   Correct.				false

		1714						LN		66		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.  And this one we -- you talked with				false

		1715						LN		66		15		false		              15   Mr. Jetter a little bit about explosive, deslagging, and				false

		1716						LN		66		16		false		              16   I -- I appreciate that testimony.  I -- I, the only -- I				false

		1717						LN		66		17		false		              17   have just a short bit of follow-up.  You indicated that				false

		1718						LN		66		18		false		              18   in years past the company used a higher velocity				false

		1719						LN		66		19		false		              19   detonation cord than it does now.				false

		1720						LN		66		20		false		              20             I'll admit that I have no idea what that				false

		1721						LN		66		21		false		              21   means, but it, it sounds as though, based on your				false

		1722						LN		66		22		false		              22   testimony, that the company became aware that -- of				false

		1723						LN		66		23		false		              23   testing or reports in the industry that using a lower				false

		1724						LN		66		24		false		              24   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to the				false

		1725						LN		66		25		false		              25   boiler tubes.  Is that correct?				false
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		1727						LN		67		1		false		               1        A.   That's correct.				false

		1728						LN		67		2		false		               2        Q.   And when did -- when did that occur?				false

		1729						LN		67		3		false		               3        A.   Pre-2011.  I don't know exactly when.				false

		1730						LN		67		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  And why -- why do you say pre-2011?				false

		1731						LN		67		5		false		               5        A.   We implemented a new standard in 2011 at the				false

		1732						LN		67		6		false		               6   DJ plant, so we know -- we know it was before that.				false

		1733						LN		67		7		false		               7   Since 2011, we have been using the lowest velocity det.				false

		1734						LN		67		8		false		               8   cord at the DJ plant that's available on the market.  So				false

		1735						LN		67		9		false		               9   I am sure we made some changes before that.  I just				false

		1736						LN		67		10		false		              10   don't know whether they were graduated or whether it was				false

		1737						LN		67		11		false		              11   a step change or what it was pre-2011.				false

		1738						LN		67		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  So sitting here today, you don't know				false

		1739						LN		67		13		false		              13   when the company found out that -- or -- or when the				false

		1740						LN		67		14		false		              14   reports became available indicating that a lower				false

		1741						LN		67		15		false		              15   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to -- to				false

		1742						LN		67		16		false		              16   boiler tubes, but you know that in 2011, the company				false

		1743						LN		67		17		false		              17   implemented a change to use the lowest velocity				false

		1744						LN		67		18		false		              18   detonation cord.  Do I have that right?				false

		1745						LN		67		19		false		              19        A.   That's correct.				false

		1746						LN		67		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  And then let's move on to the Jim				false

		1747						LN		67		21		false		              21   Bridger.  I am going to skip the Huntington one.  Let's				false

		1748						LN		67		22		false		              22   move to Jim Bridger 2.  This outage was in January of				false

		1749						LN		67		23		false		              23   2017, and this is the one that the -- I guess there was				false

		1750						LN		67		24		false		              24   water freezing in a water cooled spacer tubing?				false

		1751						LN		67		25		false		              25        A.   That's correct.				false
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		1753						LN		68		1		false		               1        Q.   And this was in, I take it, an unplanned				false

		1754						LN		68		2		false		               2   outage for something else.  Yeah?				false

		1755						LN		68		3		false		               3        A.   The bottom ash system, the drag chain, had a				false

		1756						LN		68		4		false		               4   problem, and the plant had to come off for that, so --				false

		1757						LN		68		5		false		               5   excuse me, people could safely work on the repair.  And				false

		1758						LN		68		6		false		               6   during that time, it was very cold out, and the -- the				false

		1759						LN		68		7		false		               7   boiler, that particular section of line froze up.				false

		1760						LN		68		8		false		               8        Q.   Yeah.  I mean, you indicated earlier that the				false

		1761						LN		68		9		false		               9   company typically would -- would plan an outage for the				false

		1762						LN		68		10		false		              10   spring and the fall, and here we are in January, so I --				false

		1763						LN		68		11		false		              11   I thought maybe there was something else happening.				false

		1764						LN		68		12		false		              12             You described with Mr. Jetter a little bit				false

		1765						LN		68		13		false		              13   the -- the process that was in place at the time.  What				false

		1766						LN		68		14		false		              14   I -- what I don't feel like I have a great grasp of is				false

		1767						LN		68		15		false		              15   what changed after the January outage when this problem				false

		1768						LN		68		16		false		              16   arose.  What do you do now that you did not do then?				false

		1769						LN		68		17		false		              17        A.   If you go to page 11, starting on line 248,				false

		1770						LN		68		18		false		              18   "The heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the				false

		1771						LN		68		19		false		              19   control electrical technician to write a work order to				false

		1772						LN		68		20		false		              20   correct any deficiencies found.  Capital projects have				false

		1773						LN		68		21		false		              21   been established to replace the heat tracing in all four				false

		1774						LN		68		22		false		              22   Jim Bridger units, and to mitigate the risk of line				false

		1775						LN		68		23		false		              23   freezing, plant personnel have evaluated if there's a				false

		1776						LN		68		24		false		              24   positive slope in the horizontal sections of the spacer				false

		1777						LN		68		25		false		              25   tube lines, where positive slope didn't exist.				false

		1778						PG		69		0		false		page 69				false

		1779						LN		69		1		false		               1   Otherwise, it can self-drain."				false

		1780						LN		69		2		false		               2             So unfortunately, heat tracing has a				false

		1781						LN		69		3		false		               3   propensity to fail over time.  And then "Plant personnel				false

		1782						LN		69		4		false		               4   have modified the boiler shutdown procedures to drain				false

		1783						LN		69		5		false		               5   the boiler when the water temperature reaches 180				false

		1784						LN		69		6		false		               6   degrees, rather than waiting for until blasting and				false

		1785						LN		69		7		false		               7   deslagging efforts are complete."				false

		1786						LN		69		8		false		               8             And that was -- that was done because if				false

		1787						LN		69		9		false		               9   there's water in the tubes, the possibility of damage to				false

		1788						LN		69		10		false		              10   the tubes is reduced, because there's water in the tube.				false

		1789						LN		69		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  I -- I thought I understood your				false

		1790						LN		69		12		false		              12   previous testimony in responding to Mr. Jetter's				false

		1791						LN		69		13		false		              13   questions to be that the void in the process here was				false

		1792						LN		69		14		false		              14   that the technician who had checked that line with a				false

		1793						LN		69		15		false		              15   piece of equipment was able to indicate that there was				false

		1794						LN		69		16		false		              16   current but no voltage?				false

		1795						LN		69		17		false		              17        A.   The opposite way.				false

		1796						LN		69		18		false		              18        Q.   Oh, sorry, I --				false

		1797						LN		69		19		false		              19        A.   There was voltage but no current.				false

		1798						LN		69		20		false		              20        Q.   I thought that might -- I thought I might have				false

		1799						LN		69		21		false		              21   written it down backwards.  There's voltage but no				false

		1800						LN		69		22		false		              22   current.  And tell me how that led to the problem at				false

		1801						LN		69		23		false		              23   issue here.				false

		1802						LN		69		24		false		              24        A.   Go to an outlet.  You look at an outlet right				false

		1803						LN		69		25		false		              25   now, there's 120 volts on it, but it's not doing any				false
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		1805						LN		70		1		false		               1   work.  When you plug something into it, current flows				false

		1806						LN		70		2		false		               2   and it does work, and it needs the current and the				false

		1807						LN		70		3		false		               3   voltage to do the work.  So if there's no current,				false

		1808						LN		70		4		false		               4   there's no work being done, which means there's no heat				false

		1809						LN		70		5		false		               5   to keep the line from freezing.				false

		1810						LN		70		6		false		               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  And is				false

		1811						LN		70		7		false		               7   that something that should have been noted by the				false

		1812						LN		70		8		false		               8   technician who -- who registered that there was voltage				false

		1813						LN		70		9		false		               9   but no current?				false

		1814						LN		70		10		false		              10        A.   We didn't tell him he had to.  We had told him				false

		1815						LN		70		11		false		              11   he had to do this, and we just kind of assumed they				false

		1816						LN		70		12		false		              12   would flag it.  I mean, it was -- I don't know what to				false

		1817						LN		70		13		false		              13   say is, we -- we made the assumption that his knowledge				false

		1818						LN		70		14		false		              14   and experience he would flag that, and for some reason,				false

		1819						LN		70		15		false		              15   he did not, and then it slipped through the cracks.				false

		1820						LN		70		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And then the first bullet point that				false

		1821						LN		70		17		false		              17   you pointed to me here, starting on line 248, "That the				false

		1822						LN		70		18		false		              18   heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the				false

		1823						LN		70		19		false		              19   control and electrical technician to write a work order				false

		1824						LN		70		20		false		              20   to correct any deficiencies found during the PM."				false

		1825						LN		70		21		false		              21             Is that -- is that designed to address that				false

		1826						LN		70		22		false		              22   specific issue?				false

		1827						LN		70		23		false		              23        A.   Yes.  We are creating an expectation that if				false

		1828						LN		70		24		false		              24   you find something, you need to write the corrective				false

		1829						LN		70		25		false		              25   action for that, not rely on somebody else to do it and				false
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		1831						LN		71		1		false		               1   assume somebody else is going to catch it.				false

		1832						LN		71		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk about Jim				false

		1833						LN		71		3		false		               3   Bridger Unit 3 for a moment.  This is the one where				false

		1834						LN		71		4		false		               4   there was -- had apparently been some damage to the				false

		1835						LN		71		5		false		               5   wiring, and then when the -- when that wiring conduit				false

		1836						LN		71		6		false		               6   flooded, there was a forced outage, correct?				false

		1837						LN		71		7		false		               7        A.   That's correct.				false

		1838						LN		71		8		false		               8        Q.   Does the company know when the -- the damage				false

		1839						LN		71		9		false		               9   to that wiring or the insulation around that wiring				false

		1840						LN		71		10		false		              10   occurred?				false

		1841						LN		71		11		false		              11        A.   Well, since they are the original cables, it				false

		1842						LN		71		12		false		              12   would have been during the construction period of Jim				false

		1843						LN		71		13		false		              13   Bridger 3, which is '73, '74-ish, somewhere around				false

		1844						LN		71		14		false		              14   there.  I don't -- somewhere around there.				false

		1845						LN		71		15		false		              15        Q.   Is that the only time that that damage could				false

		1846						LN		71		16		false		              16   have occurred?				false

		1847						LN		71		17		false		              17        A.   Yeah.  The cables were never replaced before				false

		1848						LN		71		18		false		              18   then.				false

		1849						LN		71		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And is there a process in place to go				false

		1850						LN		71		20		false		              20   inspect cables that have been in conduit for 40 plus				false

		1851						LN		71		21		false		              21   years?				false

		1852						LN		71		22		false		              22        A.   There's no really way to do it.  I mean, it's				false

		1853						LN		71		23		false		              23   kind of like, there's a vault here, and a hundred yards				false

		1854						LN		71		24		false		              24   away, there is another vault.  And I don't know how you				false

		1855						LN		71		25		false		              25   inspect the cable all the way.				false

		1856						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1857						LN		72		1		false		               1             What you do is, you can't visually inspect it.				false

		1858						LN		72		2		false		               2   What you do is an electrical test, and you basically put				false

		1859						LN		72		3		false		               3   a voltage on it.  You measure what I would call leakage				false

		1860						LN		72		4		false		               4   current, it's open ended, and it tells you how much --				false

		1861						LN		72		5		false		               5   and these are micro amps, and you -- you measure how				false

		1862						LN		72		6		false		               6   much current is going through just by dissipating it.				false

		1863						LN		72		7		false		               7             As insulation breaks down, more current will				false

		1864						LN		72		8		false		               8   flow, and there's generally accepted standards for				false

		1865						LN		72		9		false		               9   equipment, and occasionally you do that, but not very				false

		1866						LN		72		10		false		              10   often.  I mean, but that's usually a test you do right				false

		1867						LN		72		11		false		              11   after you pulled in a cable to make sure you haven't				false

		1868						LN		72		12		false		              12   damaged it.				false

		1869						LN		72		13		false		              13             And I am making the assumption that Black and				false

		1870						LN		72		14		false		              14   Veach, when they built the plant, they had that as a				false

		1871						LN		72		15		false		              15   standard, and -- and allowed that or tested all cable				false

		1872						LN		72		16		false		              16   pulls after they were put in to verify that no damage				false

		1873						LN		72		17		false		              17   had occurred to the point where it failed the test.  But				false

		1874						LN		72		18		false		              18   I don't have any records to prove that.  That's just				false

		1875						LN		72		19		false		              19   general practice in my 37 years.				false

		1876						LN		72		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I don't have any further				false

		1877						LN		72		21		false		              21   questions.  I appreciate your time today.				false

		1878						LN		72		22		false		              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,				false

		1879						LN		72		23		false		              23   Mr. Russell.  About how much time do you think you need				false

		1880						LN		72		24		false		              24   for redirect?				false

		1881						LN		72		25		false		              25             MR. MOSCON:  Longer than I thought that I				false

		1882						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1883						LN		73		1		false		               1   would.  So...				false

		1884						LN		73		2		false		               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, maybe we should				false

		1885						LN		73		3		false		               3   take a break, and we'll have a full complement here when				false

		1886						LN		73		4		false		               4   we return.  Is breaking until about 12:45 good for				false

		1887						LN		73		5		false		               5   everyone?				false

		1888						LN		73		6		false		               6             MR. MOSCON:  Yeah.				false

		1889						LN		73		7		false		               7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We will be in recess				false

		1890						LN		73		8		false		               8   until 12:45.  Thank you.				false

		1891						LN		73		9		false		               9             (Lunch recess from 11:33 a.m. to 12:44 p.m.)				false

		1892						LN		73		10		false		              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the				false

		1893						LN		73		11		false		              11   record, and we're glad to have Commissioner Clark back				false

		1894						LN		73		12		false		              12   with us both for today and the next six years.  So we'll				false

		1895						LN		73		13		false		              13   move on to --				false

		1896						LN		73		14		false		              14             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Sorry.				false

		1897						LN		73		15		false		              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  -- redirect Mr. Ralston.				false

		1898						LN		73		16		false		              16             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.				false

		1899						LN		73		17		false		              17                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		1900						LN		73		18		false		              18   BY MR. MOSCON:				false

		1901						LN		73		19		false		              19        Q.   Mr. Ralston, before we get into any specifics				false

		1902						LN		73		20		false		              20   of any particular outage, I'd like to have you provide				false

		1903						LN		73		21		false		              21   some information pertinent to some questions you				false

		1904						LN		73		22		false		              22   received from both parties about steps that the company				false

		1905						LN		73		23		false		              23   can take, or has taken or could take vis-a-vis its				false

		1906						LN		73		24		false		              24   contractors, and are the customers supposed to bear this				false

		1907						LN		73		25		false		              25   risk without any protection or -- or what can we do.				false

		1908						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1909						LN		74		1		false		               1             Do you recall being asked the question about				false

		1910						LN		74		2		false		               2   whether your contracts had a -- a specific provision				false

		1911						LN		74		3		false		               3   that would allow the company to recover any net power				false

		1912						LN		74		4		false		               4   costs or excess cost due to outages?  Do you remember				false

		1913						LN		74		5		false		               5   that question?				false

		1914						LN		74		6		false		               6        A.   Yes, I do.				false

		1915						LN		74		7		false		               7        Q.   And your answer was?				false

		1916						LN		74		8		false		               8        A.   That we do not have any provisions that				false

		1917						LN		74		9		false		               9   directly allow to us collect.				false

		1918						LN		74		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.				false

		1919						LN		74		11		false		              11        A.   Whatever they are.				false

		1920						LN		74		12		false		              12        Q.   So are you familiar with the term, if I use				false

		1921						LN		74		13		false		              13   it, liquidated damages?				false

		1922						LN		74		14		false		              14        A.   Yes, I am.				false

		1923						LN		74		15		false		              15        Q.   Does the company from time to time provide				false

		1924						LN		74		16		false		              16   liquidated damages in its contracts?				false

		1925						LN		74		17		false		              17        A.   Yes, we negotiate liquidated damages,				false

		1926						LN		74		18		false		              18   depending on the scope and the time line of the outage.				false

		1927						LN		74		19		false		              19        Q.   Okay.  And is one of the categories that would				false

		1928						LN		74		20		false		              20   trigger a liquidated damage scenario when the contractor				false

		1929						LN		74		21		false		              21   returns the -- the project back to the company?				false

		1930						LN		74		22		false		              22        A.   Yes.  Gen -- generally liquidated damages are				false

		1931						LN		74		23		false		              23   either on a -- on a schedule basis.				false

		1932						LN		74		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  And what does that mean, when you say				false

		1933						LN		74		25		false		              25   schedule?  Explain to me how these get negotiated.				false

		1934						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1935						LN		75		1		false		               1        A.   Giving a specific example of DJ4.				false

		1936						LN		75		2		false		               2        Q.   Okay.  DJ4 is, just for everyone's				false

		1937						LN		75		3		false		               3   clarification, that's the plant where MD&A sent back the				false

		1938						LN		75		4		false		               4   wrong piece of equipment, the wrong impeller.  Is that				false

		1939						LN		75		5		false		               5   the outage we are talking about?				false

		1940						LN		75		6		false		               6        A.   That's correct.				false

		1941						LN		75		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  So using that as an example, did that				false

		1942						LN		75		8		false		               8   contract have a liquidated damages provision?				false

		1943						LN		75		9		false		               9        A.   Yes, it did.				false

		1944						LN		75		10		false		              10        Q.   And what was a triggering event for the				false

		1945						LN		75		11		false		              11   liquidated damages?				false

		1946						LN		75		12		false		              12        A.   Not returning the unit to the operator, us, at				false

		1947						LN		75		13		false		              13   an agreed-upon time in the contract.				false

		1948						LN		75		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.  And so did the company go after its				false

		1949						LN		75		15		false		              15   contractor and say, "Hey, we are sorry.  We know you				false

		1950						LN		75		16		false		              16   tried, but with this impeller you did not get the				false

		1951						LN		75		17		false		              17   project back in time.  Therefore you owe liquidated				false

		1952						LN		75		18		false		              18   damages"?				false

		1953						LN		75		19		false		              19        A.   Yes.  We collected some liquidated damages				false

		1954						LN		75		20		false		              20   because they were late.				false

		1955						LN		75		21		false		              21        Q.   Okay.  And who got that money that came in				false

		1956						LN		75		22		false		              22   from the liquidated damages?				false

		1957						LN		75		23		false		              23        A.   They were credited to the capital project, so				false

		1958						LN		75		24		false		              24   the customer did.				false

		1959						LN		75		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  So the -- and is it your understanding,				false

		1960						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1961						LN		76		1		false		               1   did Daymark in their audit and in their conclusion about				false

		1962						LN		76		2		false		               2   the amount of money that should be denied for the				false

		1963						LN		76		3		false		               3   overage, did they account for the fact that the company				false

		1964						LN		76		4		false		               4   did in fact collect liquidated damages, and it applied				false

		1965						LN		76		5		false		               5   that to lower the cost of the project?				false

		1966						LN		76		6		false		               6        A.   I didn't -- I don't believe it was in their				false

		1967						LN		76		7		false		               7   analysis anywhere.				false

		1968						LN		76		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  Now, do all the company's contracts				false

		1969						LN		76		9		false		               9   have liquidated damages?				false

		1970						LN		76		10		false		              10        A.   No.  You pay for liquidated damages.				false

		1971						LN		76		11		false		              11        Q.   So give us just generally the types of				false

		1972						LN		76		12		false		              12   contracts that would or wouldn't.				false

		1973						LN		76		13		false		              13        A.   On an overhaul, if it's a critical path on the				false

		1974						LN		76		14		false		              14   overhaul to returning it, we would generally put				false

		1975						LN		76		15		false		              15   liquidated damages on that, because if they are late, it				false

		1976						LN		76		16		false		              16   will delay the overhaul.				false

		1977						LN		76		17		false		              17             But if -- if I am Joe contractor and I have a				false

		1978						LN		76		18		false		              18   week's worth of work and I start at the beginning of the				false

		1979						LN		76		19		false		              19   overhaul, it takes me 10 days, and it doesn't really				false

		1980						LN		76		20		false		              20   affect the return time, I am not going to put liquidated				false

		1981						LN		76		21		false		              21   damages in.  Because as a contractor, I will see that in				false

		1982						LN		76		22		false		              22   there, and I will jack up my price to cover my risk.				false

		1983						LN		76		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.				false

		1984						LN		76		24		false		              24        A.   So we do it on ones that will have a material				false

		1985						LN		76		25		false		              25   effect, we believe, on us if they are late.				false

		1986						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		1987						LN		77		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.  And that included, for instance, the				false

		1988						LN		77		2		false		               2   Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage?				false

		1989						LN		77		3		false		               3        A.   Yes.				false

		1990						LN		77		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  Now, going now more broadly, meaning				false

		1991						LN		77		5		false		               5   not just referring to the Dave Johnson Unit 4 outage,				false

		1992						LN		77		6		false		               6   you indicated from your summary to your answers to the				false

		1993						LN		77		7		false		               7   questions you were asked by various counsel about your				false

		1994						LN		77		8		false		               8   belief that shifting all risks to the contractor was				false

		1995						LN		77		9		false		               9   going to result in exorbitant costs.  Do you remember				false

		1996						LN		77		10		false		              10   saying words to this effect?				false

		1997						LN		77		11		false		              11        A.   Yes.				false

		1998						LN		77		12		false		              12        Q.   And I apologize if you said this, but just to				false

		1999						LN		77		13		false		              13   get where we are going, have you ever seen, in your				false

		2000						LN		77		14		false		              14   years of experience, a contract of the type that you				false

		2001						LN		77		15		false		              15   understand Daymark is suggesting the company needs to				false

		2002						LN		77		16		false		              16   enter into with its contractors?				false

		2003						LN		77		17		false		              17        A.   No, I have not in -- in this -- in my				false

		2004						LN		77		18		false		              18   experience, seen anybody who would be willing to sign up				false

		2005						LN		77		19		false		              19   for a hundred percent all the risk.				false

		2006						LN		77		20		false		              20        Q.   Okay.  Now, my question was about contractors.				false

		2007						LN		77		21		false		              21   There's also questions about your -- about Tri-State,				false

		2008						LN		77		22		false		              22   who you point out is not a contractor, it's a co-owner.				false

		2009						LN		77		23		false		              23   Are you aware of whether or not Tri-State, or if there				false

		2010						LN		77		24		false		              24   are participation or operation agreements, is it typical				false

		2011						LN		77		25		false		              25   to shift all of the risks to whoever the operator is?				false

		2012						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2013						LN		78		1		false		               1        A.   In all the ones I have been involved with,				false

		2014						LN		78		2		false		               2   both the ones that we are the operator and the ones that				false

		2015						LN		78		3		false		               3   we are not the operator, I have never seen one where all				false

		2016						LN		78		4		false		               4   the risk is shifted to the operator.				false

		2017						LN		78		5		false		               5        Q.   And so there are instances, as I understand				false

		2018						LN		78		6		false		               6   it, when the company is in the shoes of -- of Tri-State				false

		2019						LN		78		7		false		               7   where the company is the operator but it has different				false

		2020						LN		78		8		false		               8   co-owners?				false

		2021						LN		78		9		false		               9        A.   Yeah.  We have three plants that that's the				false

		2022						LN		78		10		false		              10   case.				false

		2023						LN		78		11		false		              11        Q.   And in those plants, has the company allowed				false

		2024						LN		78		12		false		              12   those other co-owners to say to the company, "Hey, you				false

		2025						LN		78		13		false		              13   are the operator.  If there is some kind of outage, if				false

		2026						LN		78		14		false		              14   there is some kind of, you know, risk, you are				false

		2027						LN		78		15		false		              15   holding -- that all goes to you"?				false

		2028						LN		78		16		false		              16        A.   No, we have not allowed that.				false

		2029						LN		78		17		false		              17        Q.   Would the company enter into such a contract?				false

		2030						LN		78		18		false		              18        A.   Absolutely not.				false

		2031						LN		78		19		false		              19        Q.   Now, as long as we are talking about the				false

		2032						LN		78		20		false		              20   contract, there was a question asked at one point about				false

		2033						LN		78		21		false		              21   is the standard different, meaning if the company is				false

		2034						LN		78		22		false		              22   entering into contracts to have someone else operate				false

		2035						LN		78		23		false		              23   this plant, does that expose customers to greater risk?				false

		2036						LN		78		24		false		              24   Is the standard different?  Do you remember that --				false

		2037						LN		78		25		false		              25        A.   Yeah.				false

		2038						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2039						LN		79		1		false		               1        Q.   -- questioning?  What is your understanding				false

		2040						LN		79		2		false		               2   of -- and again, I know you are not a lawyer, so I don't				false

		2041						LN		79		3		false		               3   mean, you know, the legal terms.  But is your				false

		2042						LN		79		4		false		               4   understanding that there is any kind of shift that makes				false

		2043						LN		79		5		false		               5   customers more at risk either whether, you know,				false

		2044						LN		79		6		false		               6   Tri-State's operating it or the company's operating it?				false

		2045						LN		79		7		false		               7        A.   The standard we have with the commission is				false

		2046						LN		79		8		false		               8   the same standard Tri-State has with us.				false

		2047						LN		79		9		false		               9        Q.   And what is that standard?				false

		2048						LN		79		10		false		              10        A.   Reasonable and prudent utility standard.				false

		2049						LN		79		11		false		              11        Q.   Okay.  So to be clear, you weren't in your				false

		2050						LN		79		12		false		              12   answers trying to imply that somehow customers have a --				false

		2051						LN		79		13		false		              13   less protection if Tri-State is operating it compared to				false

		2052						LN		79		14		false		              14   the company?				false

		2053						LN		79		15		false		              15        A.   No.				false

		2054						LN		79		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  Now, you were asked a series of				false

		2055						LN		79		17		false		              17   questions about how the company does stay engaged if it				false

		2056						LN		79		18		false		              18   does have another operator rather than itself.  You				false

		2057						LN		79		19		false		              19   recall those questions?				false

		2058						LN		79		20		false		              20        A.   Yes.				false

		2059						LN		79		21		false		              21        Q.   Just to give the commission a sense of how				false

		2060						LN		79		22		false		              22   involved the company is, because this is your job				false

		2061						LN		79		23		false		              23   duties, when was the last time that you visited one of				false

		2062						LN		79		24		false		              24   those such plants, or how often does that happen?  Can				false

		2063						LN		79		25		false		              25   you give just a sense of how the company does stay				false

		2064						PG		80		0		false		page 80				false

		2065						LN		80		1		false		               1   engaged?				false

		2066						LN		80		2		false		               2        A.   The -- at -- at my level, we usually discuss				false

		2067						LN		80		3		false		               3   things at least quarterly unless there's something else				false

		2068						LN		80		4		false		               4   going on.  Okay.  And then the E and O level, they have				false

		2069						LN		80		5		false		               5   daily e-mails on status and everything else, but then				false

		2070						LN		80		6		false		               6   they meet, is it five or six times a year?  I can't				false

		2071						LN		80		7		false		               7   remember which the exact number is, for things like				false

		2072						LN		80		8		false		               8   long-term planning, budgeting and everything.				false

		2073						LN		80		9		false		               9             But again, if there is an event going on, they				false

		2074						LN		80		10		false		              10   will have a call, or we have sent people to the plant to				false

		2075						LN		80		11		false		              11   inspect things for ourselves when they said, here is an				false

		2076						LN		80		12		false		              12   event that happened and it's going to cost us X to fix.				false

		2077						LN		80		13		false		              13   And then we'll send people down there to lay our own				false

		2078						LN		80		14		false		              14   eyes on it and see if we concur.				false

		2079						LN		80		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  So when was the last time you were at a				false

		2080						LN		80		16		false		              16   third party plant?				false

		2081						LN		80		17		false		              17        A.   I was at a third party meeting two weeks ago.				false

		2082						LN		80		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.				false

		2083						LN		80		19		false		              19        A.   Actually, four of them two weeks ago.				false

		2084						LN		80		20		false		              20        Q.   You were asked questions about contractors and				false

		2085						LN		80		21		false		              21   why the company is hiring contractors and why isn't the				false

		2086						LN		80		22		false		              22   company just doing this itself, and, again, that may not				false

		2087						LN		80		23		false		              23   have been that pointed, but questions going towards				false

		2088						LN		80		24		false		              24   that.				false
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		2159						LN		83		17		false		              17   assumptions that this one bolt that came out just				false

		2160						LN		83		18		false		              18   probably wasn't tightened all the way.  Is there -- is				false

		2161						LN		83		19		false		              19   that something that we know?  Do we know that the reason				false
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		2192						LN		84		24		false		              24        Q.   Yeah.  If it wasn't fully tightened, if				false
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		2325						LN		90		1		false		               1        A.   4 over 605 I believe it is.				false

		2326						LN		90		2		false		               2        Q.   And did I hear you testify that there were 600				false

		2327						LN		90		3		false		               3   of these welds in just in this plant?				false

		2328						LN		90		4		false		               4        A.   No, in this section.				false

		2329						LN		90		5		false		               5        Q.   So there's even -- there's far more than that				false

		2330						LN		90		6		false		               6   in a plant?				false

		2331						LN		90		7		false		               7        A.   There -- there can be other places where there				false

		2332						LN		90		8		false		               8   are other dissimilar metal welds.				false

		2333						LN		90		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  And you testified that -- someone asked				false

		2334						LN		90		10		false		              10   you how much it would cost if you were to go in and do				false

		2335						LN		90		11		false		              11   those welds, and you had a number which was?				false

		2336						LN		90		12		false		              12        A.   I am estimating if you had to replace all 600				false

		2337						LN		90		13		false		              13   and some, it would be close to $2 million.				false

		2338						LN		90		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.				false

		2339						LN		90		15		false		              15        A.   Ish.				false

		2340						LN		90		16		false		              16        Q.   And so one of the things I want to get to is				false

		2341						LN		90		17		false		              17   kind of how you plan these planned outages, but I guess				false

		2342						LN		90		18		false		              18   what I am wanting to understand is, if you have a less				false

		2343						LN		90		19		false		              19   than 1 percent failure rate and yet $2 million plus				false

		2344						LN		90		20		false		              20   repair bill, the implication has been made to this				false

		2345						LN		90		21		false		              21   commission, hey, you should have fixed this.  You have				false

		2346						LN		90		22		false		              22   had a chance to fix it, why didn't you fix it sooner?				false

		2347						LN		90		23		false		              23             And so I am wondering if you can explain why				false

		2348						LN		90		24		false		              24   that didn't come up in any planning for that at this				false
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		2352						LN		91		2		false		               2   the mechanism was there, and we were monitoring it.  But				false

		2353						LN		91		3		false		               3   with that failure rate and the cost to replace				false

		2354						LN		91		4		false		               4   everything, it, it wouldn't pencil out as a prudent				false

		2355						LN		91		5		false		               5   expenditure, because the risk over here was smaller than				false
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		2362						LN		91		12		false		              12   on it.  I mean, actually the -- the next outage starts				false

		2363						LN		91		13		false		              13   six weeks after the last one begin -- or ended.  We --				false

		2364						LN		91		14		false		              14   we get all the inspection reports that we have.  We				false

		2365						LN		91		15		false		              15   document them, and we create a scope of work that we				false

		2366						LN		91		16		false		              16   know we have to do next time.				false

		2367						LN		91		17		false		              17             But then in between that, other data we get,				false

		2368						LN		91		18		false		              18   based on analysis and that, will develop that scope of				false

		2369						LN		91		19		false		              19   work.  And we'll develop the scope of work, and then				false

		2370						LN		91		20		false		              20   we'll start figuring out who is going to do what and				false

		2371						LN		91		21		false		              21   what we're going to contract out.  We will go out for				false

		2372						LN		91		22		false		              22   competitive bidding, and we'll negotiate contracts.				false

		2373						LN		91		23		false		              23   We'll award those.  We'll schedule things.				false
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		2383						LN		92		7		false		               7   kind of goes to work.  And then daily -- and you have				false
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		2389						LN		92		13		false		              13   see the effect and you can try to figure out a way				false
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		2828						LN		109		10		false		              10   nonconforming tube would have been documented, but				false

		2829						LN		109		11		false		              11   there's not a way to find that documentation any more?				false

		2830						LN		109		12		false		              12        A.   In -- in my experience, from 30 plus years				false

		2831						LN		109		13		false		              13   ago, we would have documented it somehow.				false

		2832						LN		109		14		false		              14        Q.   Okay.				false

		2833						LN		109		15		false		              15        A.   And -- and flagged it.				false

		2834						LN		109		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.				false

		2835						LN		109		17		false		              17        A.   Now, again, it would have been a paper system,				false

		2836						LN		109		18		false		              18   and it could have been in somebody's file or, you know,				false

		2837						LN		109		19		false		              19   there -- there was -- the technology has taken us a long				false

		2838						LN		109		20		false		              20   way on being able to manage maintenance.  I mean, just				false

		2839						LN		109		21		false		              21   look at your car from the 1960s to today.				false

		2840						LN		109		22		false		              22        Q.   So would you say it was probably an indexing				false

		2841						LN		109		23		false		              23   problem, a document management issue of why we don't				false

		2842						LN		109		24		false		              24   have access to that -- to that documentation any more?				false

		2843						LN		109		25		false		              25        A.   That's my best guess.  I really don't know.				false

		2844						PG		110		0		false		page 110				false

		2845						LN		110		1		false		               1        Q.   Okay.				false

		2846						LN		110		2		false		               2        A.   So I mean, you don't know what was actually				false

		2847						LN		110		3		false		               3   done at that time, whether the records were there or --				false

		2848						LN		110		4		false		               4   and whether it got discarded or missed or what.				false

		2849						LN		110		5		false		               5        Q.   Okay.				false

		2850						LN		110		6		false		               6        A.   You don't really know.				false

		2851						LN		110		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		2852						LN		110		8		false		               8        A.   Because it was all a paper system.				false

		2853						LN		110		9		false		               9        Q.   Okay.  I think that's almost all of my				false

		2854						LN		110		10		false		              10   questions.  Oh, okay.  The Jim Bridger Unit 2 outage,				false

		2855						LN		110		11		false		              11   and you may have already answered this, when you				false

		2856						LN		110		12		false		              12   discussed, I -- I think you discussed during the				false

		2857						LN		110		13		false		              13   preventive maintenance that an inspector discovered				false

		2858						LN		110		14		false		              14   there was voltage but no current.  Am I -- am I --				false

		2859						LN		110		15		false		              15        A.   That's correct.				false

		2860						LN		110		16		false		              16        Q.   That is what you said before?  So how --				false

		2861						LN		110		17		false		              17   and -- and you indicated that that inspector did not				false

		2862						LN		110		18		false		              18   flag the issue properly, but how -- so how do we know				false

		2863						LN		110		19		false		              19   that the inspector discovered that?				false

		2864						LN		110		20		false		              20        A.   Well, he wrote on the PM form.				false

		2865						LN		110		21		false		              21        Q.   Okay.  Wrote it on a form?				false

		2866						LN		110		22		false		              22        A.   He wrote it on the form that there was a				false

		2867						LN		110		23		false		              23   voltage, or he had a 208 voltage and zero current.				false

		2868						LN		110		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  So it was written -- it was noted but				false

		2869						LN		110		25		false		              25   not flagged?				false
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		2871						LN		111		1		false		               1        A.   Yes.				false

		2872						LN		111		2		false		               2        Q.   And I -- I think you already answered this.				false

		2873						LN		111		3		false		               3   This inspector was -- was a contractor?				false

		2874						LN		111		4		false		               4        A.   No, he was one of our employees.				false

		2875						LN		111		5		false		               5        Q.   Pacific Power employee.  Okay.				false

		2876						LN		111		6		false		               6        A.   He was our -- we call them CET, control				false

		2877						LN		111		7		false		               7   electrical tech.				false

		2878						LN		111		8		false		               8        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I think I understand all the				false

		2879						LN		111		9		false		               9   rest of the testimony on that.  Let's see.  No.  Okay.				false

		2880						LN		111		10		false		              10   For Dave Johnson Unit 4, when you hired -- hired MD&A as				false

		2881						LN		111		11		false		              11   the contractor, you had indicated that you have used				false

		2882						LN		111		12		false		              12   them a lot, right?				false

		2883						LN		111		13		false		              13        A.   Yeah.  We have used them several times, and I				false

		2884						LN		111		14		false		              14   have a -- I have done business with them for well over				false

		2885						LN		111		15		false		              15   20 years.				false

		2886						LN		111		16		false		              16        Q.   What kind of mandatory minimum qualifications				false

		2887						LN		111		17		false		              17   do you -- do you establish?  Does -- does -- does your				false

		2888						LN		111		18		false		              18   history of working with them generally satisfy any --				false

		2889						LN		111		19		false		              19   any mandatory minimum qualifications?				false

		2890						LN		111		20		false		              20        A.   No.  It's also their work experience.  You				false

		2891						LN		111		21		false		              21   know, we have never done business with them, but they				false

		2892						LN		111		22		false		              22   have been out in the business for 15 years and done 50				false

		2893						LN		111		23		false		              23   jobs.  And we will call, ask for references and talk to				false

		2894						LN		111		24		false		              24   people, and how well did they work?  What was their				false

		2895						LN		111		25		false		              25   safety record?  You know, were they competent?  That				false

		2896						PG		112		0		false		page 112				false

		2897						LN		112		1		false		               1   kind of thing.  That's how we usually qualify a newer				false

		2898						LN		112		2		false		               2   contractor that we don't have a lot of experience with.				false

		2899						LN		112		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.  With this particular job, with their				false

		2900						LN		112		4		false		               4   work on this control rotor main oil pump impeller, I				false

		2901						LN		112		5		false		               5   think I am saying that right, did they miss any				false

		2902						LN		112		6		false		               6   deadlines or any miss any delivery dates prior to the				false

		2903						LN		112		7		false		               7   discovery of this incorrect part installation?				false

		2904						LN		112		8		false		               8        A.   Well, the -- the real delivery date is, we				false

		2905						LN		112		9		false		               9   call it gear time, when it's put back together and the				false

		2906						LN		112		10		false		              10   oil flush is done and everything else, and it's turned				false

		2907						LN		112		11		false		              11   over to operations to restart the plant.  There's kind				false

		2908						LN		112		12		false		              12   of really only one -- there is -- there is two dates,				false

		2909						LN		112		13		false		              13   oil flush, but the real date is when you turn it over to				false

		2910						LN		112		14		false		              14   operations, because that's the only thing that really				false

		2911						LN		112		15		false		              15   matters.				false

		2912						LN		112		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And was that deadline satisfied and				false

		2913						LN		112		17		false		              17   then the -- and then improper installation was				false

		2914						LN		112		18		false		              18   discovered?				false

		2915						LN		112		19		false		              19        A.   No, no, no.				false

		2916						LN		112		20		false		              20        Q.   This was prior -- this was prior to that?				false

		2917						LN		112		21		false		              21        A.   Yeah, they -- they -- they missed that				false

		2918						LN		112		22		false		              22   deadline because of the rotor.				false

		2919						LN		112		23		false		              23        Q.   Because of the discovery?				false

		2920						LN		112		24		false		              24        A.   Yeah.				false

		2921						LN		112		25		false		              25        Q.   Okay.  And they -- they discovered the part				false
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		2923						LN		113		1		false		               1   prior to that deadline?				false

		2924						LN		113		2		false		               2        A.   Yeah.				false

		2925						LN		113		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.				false

		2926						LN		113		4		false		               4        A.   So yeah.  When it came back on-site, when we				false

		2927						LN		113		5		false		               5   were doing a reinspection between ourselves and MD&A				false

		2928						LN		113		6		false		               6   on-site people, it was discovered that it was the wrong				false

		2929						LN		113		7		false		               7   impeller at that time, before it was ever installed in				false

		2930						LN		113		8		false		               8   the machine.				false

		2931						LN		113		9		false		               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think that's all of				false

		2932						LN		113		10		false		              10   my questions.  Thank you.  Commissioner White?				false

		2933						LN		113		11		false		              11                          EXAMINATION				false

		2934						LN		113		12		false		              12   BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:				false

		2935						LN		113		13		false		              13        Q.   Good afternoon.  The first question, just				false

		2936						LN		113		14		false		              14   harking -- and this -- this may be potentially a				false

		2937						LN		113		15		false		              15   question better addressed by Mr. Wilding.  But I just				false

		2938						LN		113		16		false		              16   want to clarify the liquidated damages issue, and I am				false

		2939						LN		113		17		false		              17   going to avoid any confidential information if possible				false

		2940						LN		113		18		false		              18   here.				false

		2941						LN		113		19		false		              19             But I thought I heard, whether it was you				false

		2942						LN		113		20		false		              20   testifying or Mr. Moscon clarifying, the battle,				false

		2943						LN		113		21		false		              21   typically those liquidated damages are somehow, goes to				false

		2944						LN		113		22		false		              22   the customers benefit.  Is that -- is that -- does that				false

		2945						LN		113		23		false		              23   go to the net power cost equation?  Does that offset an				false

		2946						LN		113		24		false		              24   expense of some respect?  I am just trying to understand				false

		2947						LN		113		25		false		              25   was the capital in --				false
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		2949						LN		114		1		false		               1        A.   It reduces the capital amount of the project				false

		2950						LN		114		2		false		               2   that's capitalized and goes into rates.				false

		2951						LN		114		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.				false

		2952						LN		114		4		false		               4        A.   I think Mr. Wilding would be much better to				false

		2953						LN		114		5		false		               5   explain all the accounting practices on that.				false

		2954						LN		114		6		false		               6        Q.   Yeah.  We -- I -- I -- I hate to do this				false

		2955						LN		114		7		false		               7   because I am not clear if this is an issue that actually				false

		2956						LN		114		8		false		               8   reduces rate base or if it's actually part of the EBA.				false

		2957						LN		114		9		false		               9   I am just wondering if it's outside.  Is he still sworn				false

		2958						LN		114		10		false		              10   in, or is that possible to have him answer from the --				false

		2959						LN		114		11		false		              11             MR. MOSCON:  Whatever is pleasing to the				false

		2960						LN		114		12		false		              12   commission, we're happy to do.				false

		2961						LN		114		13		false		              13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Do you want to wait				false

		2962						LN		114		14		false		              14   until we're finished with Mr. Ralston, or do you want to				false

		2963						LN		114		15		false		              15   do that right now?  It's up to you.				false

		2964						LN		114		16		false		              16             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Why don't -- why don't we				false

		2965						LN		114		17		false		              17   wait -- we'll just -- we'll -- you can doodle on it for				false

		2966						LN		114		18		false		              18   a minute.				false

		2967						LN		114		19		false		              19             This is more of a general question.  So I have				false

		2968						LN		114		20		false		              20   heard you mention, and I -- I -- I don't know if this is				false

		2969						LN		114		21		false		              21   a term or art or not, but, you know, this reasonable				false

		2970						LN		114		22		false		              22   prudent utility standard, and -- and so if we're looking				false

		2971						LN		114		23		false		              23   at actions of the company in comparison to that time				false

		2972						LN		114		24		false		              24   decisions were made, what -- what does mean?				false

		2973						LN		114		25		false		              25             Are we to look at -- is there like a general				false
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		2975						LN		115		1		false		               1   code, like the NESC?  Is there -- is this a, you know, a				false

		2976						LN		115		2		false		               2   manual that's provided specific to whatever component				false

		2977						LN		115		3		false		               3   you're dealing with?  Or what -- what should we actually				false

		2978						LN		115		4		false		               4   be looking at, I guess, in terms of that standard?  How				false

		2979						LN		115		5		false		               5   should we be comparing the actions of the company.				false

		2980						LN		115		6		false		               6        A.   Part of the reason that kind of phrase is in				false

		2981						LN		115		7		false		               7   there is because there is really no, what I would call				false

		2982						LN		115		8		false		               8   written guide book, and you hand it to somebody and say,				false

		2983						LN		115		9		false		               9   here is what reasonable prudent utility standard is.				false

		2984						LN		115		10		false		              10   It's kind of what has developed in the industry, and you				false

		2985						LN		115		11		false		              11   would be compared to other utilities and the other				false

		2986						LN		115		12		false		              12   metrics and that.  So it's kind of like benchmarking for				false

		2987						LN		115		13		false		              13   lack of better term.  Okay.				false

		2988						LN		115		14		false		              14        Q.   So -- so is there -- is there nothing -- I				false

		2989						LN		115		15		false		              15   mean, when -- when you are describing the company's				false

		2990						LN		115		16		false		              16   practices, it's based upon your experiences, you know,				false

		2991						LN		115		17		false		              17   in the industry of 37 years.  There is nothing you can				false

		2992						LN		115		18		false		              18   say, well, this is as documented by, you know, Evista in				false

		2993						LN		115		19		false		              19   their planned outage of, you know, 1994, or this is how				false

		2994						LN		115		20		false		              20   southern company -- there's -- there's nothing like				false

		2995						LN		115		21		false		              21   that.				false

		2996						LN		115		22		false		              22             It's just your experience as a plant operator				false

		2997						LN		115		23		false		              23   doing overhauls, et cetera, that's -- that's -- I guess,				false

		2998						LN		115		24		false		              24   I am just trying to figure out how do we explore that in				false

		2999						LN		115		25		false		              25   terms of like -- we're not -- I am not an engineer or a				false
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		3001						LN		116		1		false		               1   plant operator, certainly haven't been doing it for 37				false

		3002						LN		116		2		false		               2   years, so I am just wondering what -- how do we test				false

		3003						LN		116		3		false		               3   that I guess?				false

		3004						LN		116		4		false		               4        A.   It's a good question.  On -- on outage data on				false

		3005						LN		116		5		false		               5   that, if -- take Evista, for example.  I don't have any				false

		3006						LN		116		6		false		               6   transparency or access to their data or anything else.				false

		3007						LN		116		7		false		               7   The only access I have data to is for plants we own.  I				false

		3008						LN		116		8		false		               8   mean, if you look at the NERC gas data, it's pretty				false

		3009						LN		116		9		false		               9   generic, okay.  I mean, from a -- from a public view.				false

		3010						LN		116		10		false		              10             A lot of utilities will share data.  Like at				false

		3011						LN		116		11		false		              11   our partner plants, we will share information between us				false

		3012						LN		116		12		false		              12   and the Tri-State people, through us, Excel people that				false

		3013						LN		116		13		false		              13   operate the Hayden plant through us, and -- and the APS				false

		3014						LN		116		14		false		              14   people that operate the Cholla plant.  So we -- we tend				false

		3015						LN		116		15		false		              15   to share information and best practices.  It's not				false

		3016						LN		116		16		false		              16   necessarily a formalized document.				false

		3017						LN		116		17		false		              17             Okay.  A lot of the information sharing is bad				false

		3018						LN		116		18		false		              18   things that happen to us, and -- and we share it so that				false

		3019						LN		116		19		false		              19   it doesn't have to happen to anybody else.  And --				false

		3020						LN		116		20		false		              20   and -- and for us, our SDR process are significant				false

		3021						LN		116		21		false		              21   events.  The whole purpose was that if something happens				false

		3022						LN		116		22		false		              22   at a plant site that it's shared with the other plant				false

		3023						LN		116		23		false		              23   sites so we don't have to live through that again if at				false

		3024						LN		116		24		false		              24   all possible.  So that -- there isn't a real structured				false

		3025						LN		116		25		false		              25   way to do it.				false
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		3027						LN		117		1		false		               1        Q.   Let me ask you this.  It sounds like when you				false

		3028						LN		117		2		false		               2   are -- when you are doing plant outages, you attempt to				false

		3029						LN		117		3		false		               3   schedule those the most economic times; in other words,				false

		3030						LN		117		4		false		               4   when power costs are lowest, because you are going to				false

		3031						LN		117		5		false		               5   have to replace power.				false

		3032						LN		117		6		false		               6             Do you have any sense of what the typical				false

		3033						LN		117		7		false		               7   replacement costs are for a four to six week average				false

		3034						LN		117		8		false		               8   plant outage?				false

		3035						LN		117		9		false		               9        A.   No.  Mike might have a better idea on it.				false

		3036						LN		117		10		false		              10   What -- what we do, just so you understand is, we kind				false

		3037						LN		117		11		false		              11   of come up with the scope of the time we need and then				false

		3038						LN		117		12		false		              12   we kind of say, we need it in this year.				false

		3039						LN		117		13		false		              13             And then we go to our -- our trading people,				false

		3040						LN		117		14		false		              14   who have the best knowledge of -- of when prices are				false

		3041						LN		117		15		false		              15   going to be what.  You know, they forecast them, and				false

		3042						LN		117		16		false		              16   say, just tell us when we can have it so that we have				false

		3043						LN		117		17		false		              17   that information a year or two out, so we can plan				false

		3044						LN		117		18		false		              18   around it and develop contracts and everything else.				false

		3045						LN		117		19		false		              19             So generally, from what I have seen, is April,				false

		3046						LN		117		20		false		              20   May tends to be the lowest.				false

		3047						LN		117		21		false		              21        Q.   Let me ask you about this concept that you				false

		3048						LN		117		22		false		              22   testified to earlier in terms of like, you know,				false

		3049						LN		117		23		false		              23   essentially when you are contracting with a counter				false

		3050						LN		117		24		false		              24   party, there is always going to be risk -- risk				false

		3051						LN		117		25		false		              25   shifting, and somebody is going to pay for it depending				false
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		3053						LN		118		1		false		               1   on where that goes on the site, you know, the contract.				false

		3054						LN		118		2		false		               2             And, and I also kind of heard you testify that				false

		3055						LN		118		3		false		               3   there is no counter party who will ever -- at least				false

		3056						LN		118		4		false		               4   there is not a cost high enough to actually -- to -- to				false

		3057						LN		118		5		false		               5   where the risk of replacement power costs are unknown.				false

		3058						LN		118		6		false		               6   When you are talking about paying for risks, are there				false

		3059						LN		118		7		false		               7   certain components of a plant or certain processes				false

		3060						LN		118		8		false		               8   that -- that will drive the allocation of risk one way				false

		3061						LN		118		9		false		               9   or another?				false

		3062						LN		118		10		false		              10             In other words, is it something like where if				false
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		3382						LN		130		18		false		              18   it can be challenging at times.  Okay.  But not like				false

		3383						LN		130		19		false		              19   this failure rate.				false

		3384						LN		130		20		false		              20        Q.   So would those be issues with the sealing that				false

		3385						LN		130		21		false		              21   was supposed to be accomplished, as opposed to -- things				false

		3386						LN		130		22		false		              22   that you discovered during the pressure test?				false

		3387						LN		130		23		false		              23        A.   Well, no, more of pumping the material in.				false

		3388						LN		130		24		false		              24        Q.   Oh, sure.				false

		3389						LN		130		25		false		              25        A.   It's -- it sounds easy, but sometimes it's a				false

		3390						PG		131		0		false		page 131				false

		3391						LN		131		1		false		               1   little challenging.				false

		3392						LN		131		2		false		               2        Q.   But nothing where a plug was --				false

		3393						LN		131		3		false		               3        A.   No.				false

		3394						LN		131		4		false		               4        Q.   -- suddenly not there when it was supposed to				false

		3395						LN		131		5		false		               5   be there?				false

		3396						LN		131		6		false		               6        A.   No.				false

		3397						LN		131		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  So this is first instance?				false

		3398						LN		131		8		false		               8        A.   Yeah, I am afraid so.				false

		3399						LN		131		9		false		               9        Q.   And the -- so now, the -- the Dave Johnson				false

		3400						LN		131		10		false		              10   Unit 3 of April 25th.  The tubing that was installed				false

		3401						LN		131		11		false		              11   could not be visually distinguished from the spec				false

		3402						LN		131		12		false		              12   tubing, I think you said, and so I am wondering how --				false

		3403						LN		131		13		false		              13   what process led to us understanding that a different				false

		3404						LN		131		14		false		              14   tube was used?				false

		3405						LN		131		15		false		              15        A.   When -- we have a standard kind of process				false

		3406						LN		131		16		false		              16   when we have a tube failure, and if it's not intuitively				false

		3407						LN		131		17		false		              17   obvious why, we cut that failure out.  And we send it to				false

		3408						LN		131		18		false		              18   a metallurgist and say, dissect this thing and tell us				false

		3409						LN		131		19		false		              19   everything about this tube, because we want to				false

		3410						LN		131		20		false		              20   understand our failure mode so we can figure out if we				false

		3411						LN		131		21		false		              21   can prevent them somehow.				false

		3412						LN		131		22		false		              22             So when this tube failed, we cut it out and				false

		3413						LN		131		23		false		              23   sent it to them, and he looked at the metallurgy of it				false

		3414						LN		131		24		false		              24   and said, well, you are supposed to have this in it, and				false

		3415						LN		131		25		false		              25   you have this in it.				false

		3416						PG		132		0		false		page 132				false

		3417						LN		132		1		false		               1        Q.   And would that have been IEC, or is that				false

		3418						LN		132		2		false		               2   different?				false

		3419						LN		132		3		false		               3        A.   Yeah.  IEC is the metallurgist.				false

		3420						LN		132		4		false		               4        Q.   Okay.  So now relative to Dave Johnston Unit 3				false

		3421						LN		132		5		false		               5   on September 19th, did IEC rec -- ever recommend to you				false

		3422						LN		132		6		false		               6   to use manual deslagging to avoid --				false

		3423						LN		132		7		false		               7        A.   No.  The --				false

		3424						LN		132		8		false		               8        Q.   -- the -- the issues that -- that the				false

		3425						LN		132		9		false		               9   deslagging process, if it's aggressive can create?				false

		3426						LN		132		10		false		              10        A.   No.  They -- the statement in there was, use				false

		3427						LN		132		11		false		              11   -- the lowest velocity detonation cord should be used.				false

		3428						LN		132		12		false		              12        Q.   Commissioner White asked you some questions				false

		3429						LN		132		13		false		              13   about industry standards, and, you know, we have intense				false

		3430						LN		132		14		false		              14   interest in understanding what they are and how they				false

		3431						LN		132		15		false		              15   would apply to the questions in front of us.  It's a				false

		3432						LN		132		16		false		              16   challenging thing to ascertain them apparently, or at				false

		3433						LN		132		17		false		              17   least to identify a, a, a standard industry practice.				false

		3434						LN		132		18		false		              18             Relative to dissimilar metal welds, and so I				false

		3435						LN		132		19		false		              19   guess this will be in the context of Huntington Unit 1,				false

		3436						LN		132		20		false		              20   I think that you have said that you -- that was a known				false

		3437						LN		132		21		false		              21   potential problem area --				false

		3438						LN		132		22		false		              22        A.   That's correct.				false

		3439						LN		132		23		false		              23        Q.   -- right?  And so just to try to get a little				false

		3440						LN		132		24		false		              24   better understanding of how industry practices are				false

		3441						LN		132		25		false		              25   developed and how you become aware of them and -- was --				false

		3442						PG		133		0		false		page 133				false

		3443						LN		133		1		false		               1   was that knowledge from experience exclusively within				false

		3444						LN		133		2		false		               2   the PacifiCorp system, or -- or were there -- was GE				false

		3445						LN		133		3		false		               3   sending out like a note -- notices -- almost like recall				false

		3446						LN		133		4		false		               4   notices or other kinds of notifications that -- that				false

		3447						LN		133		5		false		               5   would have made you aware of this part -- particular				false

		3448						LN		133		6		false		               6   vulnerability in your plant?				false

		3449						LN		133		7		false		               7        A.   There's an organization called EPRI, Electric				false

		3450						LN		133		8		false		               8   Power Research Institute, and it's kind of funded by				false

		3451						LN		133		9		false		               9   utilities and that.  And they do a bunch of research.				false

		3452						LN		133		10		false		              10   And they have developed volumes on tube materials, tube				false

		3453						LN		133		11		false		              11   failures.  To some degree, it's kind of the bible of --				false

		3454						LN		133		12		false		              12   of tube failures and that.				false

		3455						LN		133		13		false		              13             And as -- as utilities had problems, they				false

		3456						LN		133		14		false		              14   would share this information and also give it to EPRI,				false

		3457						LN		133		15		false		              15   and EPRI would publish stuff.  And it was kind of				false

		3458						LN		133		16		false		              16   through -- what do I want to call them?  Trade meetings				false

		3459						LN		133		17		false		              17   or -- or meetings or through EPRI and that, that that				false

		3460						LN		133		18		false		              18   information came out.				false

		3461						LN		133		19		false		              19             Manufacturers didn't really come out with that				false

		3462						LN		133		20		false		              20   on dissimilar metal welds.  It was the industry was				false

		3463						LN		133		21		false		              21   starting to see failures and was sharing the				false

		3464						LN		133		22		false		              22   information, and then kind of EPRI put it all together				false

		3465						LN		133		23		false		              23   in books.				false

		3466						LN		133		24		false		              24        Q.   Thank you.  Now, regarding Jim Bridger Unit 2,				false

		3467						LN		133		25		false		              25   when would the -- this was -- is it right to think of				false

		3468						PG		134		0		false		page 134				false

		3469						LN		134		1		false		               1   this as a preventative maintenance test that was				false

		3470						LN		134		2		false		               2   performed?				false

		3471						LN		134		3		false		               3        A.   Yes.				false

		3472						LN		134		4		false		               4        Q.   When would it have been performed in relation				false

		3473						LN		134		5		false		               5   to the work that was being done at that location on --				false

		3474						LN		134		6		false		               6   in the --				false

		3475						LN		134		7		false		               7        A.   I believe the PM test was done either				false

		3476						LN		134		8		false		               8   September or October, somewhere around there.  We start				false

		3477						LN		134		9		false		               9   on them near the end of the summer in that, we have				false

		3478						LN		134		10		false		              10   several -- several of these to do so it takes quite a				false

		3479						LN		134		11		false		              11   while.  So -- but I think this one was actually done in				false

		3480						LN		134		12		false		              12   the October time frame.  And you try to do them in				false

		3481						LN		134		13		false		              13   the -- the early fall so that you can determine if you				false

		3482						LN		134		14		false		              14   have a problem.				false

		3483						LN		134		15		false		              15        Q.   And -- and obviously before the winter season?				false

		3484						LN		134		16		false		              16        A.   Yep.				false

		3485						LN		134		17		false		              17        Q.   And the heat is needed?				false

		3486						LN		134		18		false		              18        A.   Is needed.				false

		3487						LN		134		19		false		              19        Q.   Right.  So what's the company's procedure for				false

		3488						LN		134		20		false		              20   reviewing the report of the preventive maintenance?  I				false

		3489						LN		134		21		false		              21   think you said that it was identified on the report				false

		3490						LN		134		22		false		              22   that -- that there was no current but there was voltage				false

		3491						LN		134		23		false		              23   so, I am thinking -- I am wondering if that wasn't				false

		3492						LN		134		24		false		              24   significant apparently to the person doing the				false

		3493						LN		134		25		false		              25   inspection.				false

		3494						PG		135		0		false		page 135				false

		3495						LN		135		1		false		               1             But I -- I presume that person's work is				false

		3496						LN		135		2		false		               2   reviewed by supervisors, other management people, that				false

		3497						LN		135		3		false		               3   there's some process for that to happen, and -- and that				false

		3498						LN		135		4		false		               4   other people overlooked the significance of that report				false

		3499						LN		135		5		false		               5   as well?				false

		3500						LN		135		6		false		               6        A.   And I can't tell you if the specific report				false

		3501						LN		135		7		false		               7   was reviewed or not.  It specifically stated that not				false

		3502						LN		135		8		false		               8   only will the technician, if he finds a problem, write				false

		3503						LN		135		9		false		               9   it, but also that a supervisor or planner will review				false

		3504						LN		135		10		false		              10   the report -- the report for adequacy too.				false

		3505						LN		135		11		false		              11        Q.   So --				false

		3506						LN		135		12		false		              12        A.   I mean, it's just clarifying expectations.				false

		3507						LN		135		13		false		              13        Q.   So prior to this incident, there wasn't an				false

		3508						LN		135		14		false		              14   expectation that anyone would review the findings of the				false

		3509						LN		135		15		false		              15   inspector?				false

		3510						LN		135		16		false		              16        A.   I believe it was an unwritten expectation.				false

		3511						LN		135		17		false		              17   You know, I mean, it's just, this is part of your job.				false

		3512						LN		135		18		false		              18        Q.   "Your" would be who in that sentence?				false

		3513						LN		135		19		false		              19        A.   As in the supervisors, the planners, the				false

		3514						LN		135		20		false		              20   maintenance department.				false

		3515						LN		135		21		false		              21        Q.   Thank you.  That concludes my questions.				false

		3516						LN		135		22		false		              22   Thank you very much.				false

		3517						LN		135		23		false		              23        A.   Okay.				false

		3518						LN		135		24		false		              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you for your				false

		3519						LN		135		25		false		              25   testimony today, Mr. Ralston.  I think it's probably a				false

		3520						PG		136		0		false		page 136				false

		3521						LN		136		1		false		               1   good time to take a short break.  Do you have anything				false

		3522						LN		136		2		false		               2   further from Rocky Mountain Power when we come back from				false

		3523						LN		136		3		false		               3   break?				false

		3524						LN		136		4		false		               4             MS. HOGLE:  Possibly.				false

		3525						LN		136		5		false		               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Why don't we take 15				false

		3526						LN		136		6		false		               6   minutes and we'll come back at 2:25.				false

		3527						LN		136		7		false		               7             (Recess from 2:08 p.m. to 2:24 p.m.)				false

		3528						LN		136		8		false		               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we're ready to				false

		3529						LN		136		9		false		               9   go back on the record.  Anything further from Rocky				false

		3530						LN		136		10		false		              10   Mountain Power?				false

		3531						LN		136		11		false		              11             MR. MOSCON:  Nothing further.  Thank you.				false

		3532						LN		136		12		false		              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		3533						LN		136		13		false		              13   Mr. Jetter?				false

		3534						LN		136		14		false		              14             MR. JETTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The				false

		3535						LN		136		15		false		              15   division would like to call and have sworn in division's				false

		3536						LN		136		16		false		              16   first witness, Dave Thompson.				false

		3537						LN		136		17		false		              17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon, Mr. Thompson.				false

		3538						LN		136		18		false		              18   Do you swear to tell the truth?				false

		3539						LN		136		19		false		              19             THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		3540						LN		136		20		false		              20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		3541						LN		136		21		false		              21                      DAVID T. THOMPSON,				false

		3542						LN		136		22		false		              22   was called as a witness, and having been first duly				false

		3543						LN		136		23		false		              23   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:				false

		3544						LN		136		24		false		              24                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		3545						LN		136		25		false		              25   BY MR. JETTER:				false

		3546						PG		137		0		false		page 137				false

		3547						LN		137		1		false		               1        Q.   Mr. Thompson, would you please state your name				false

		3548						LN		137		2		false		               2   and occupation for the record.				false

		3549						LN		137		3		false		               3        A.   My name is David T. Thompson.  I am a utility				false

		3550						LN		137		4		false		               4   consultant for the division of public utility.				false

		3551						LN		137		5		false		               5        Q.   Thank you.  And in the course of your				false

		3552						LN		137		6		false		               6   employment with the division, did you have the				false

		3553						LN		137		7		false		               7   opportunity to review the EBA application materials				false

		3554						LN		137		8		false		               8   filed by the company?				false

		3555						LN		137		9		false		               9        A.   I did.				false

		3556						LN		137		10		false		              10        Q.   And did you create and cause to be filed with				false

		3557						LN		137		11		false		              11   the commission prefiled direct testimony dated November				false

		3558						LN		137		12		false		              12   15th, 2018?				false

		3559						LN		137		13		false		              13        A.   Yes.				false

		3560						LN		137		14		false		              14        Q.   And that was filed along with eight exhibits,				false

		3561						LN		137		15		false		              15   1.1 through 1.8?				false

		3562						LN		137		16		false		              16        A.   The testimony was 1.1, and 1.2 through 1.8 the				false

		3563						LN		137		17		false		              17   other exhibits.				false

		3564						LN		137		18		false		              18        Q.   Thank you.  Do you have any corrections or				false

		3565						LN		137		19		false		              19   changes you would like to make to that prefiled direct				false

		3566						LN		137		20		false		              20   testimony?				false

		3567						LN		137		21		false		              21        A.   I don't.				false

		3568						LN		137		22		false		              22        Q.   If you were asked the same questions that are				false

		3569						LN		137		23		false		              23   in that testimony today, would your answers remain the				false

		3570						LN		137		24		false		              24   same?				false

		3571						LN		137		25		false		              25        A.   They would.				false

		3572						PG		138		0		false		page 138				false

		3573						LN		138		1		false		               1             MR. JETTER:  I'd like to move to enter the				false

		3574						LN		138		2		false		               2   direct testimony along with Exhibits through 1.8, all of				false

		3575						LN		138		3		false		               3   the exhibits to that testimony into the record.				false

		3576						LN		138		4		false		               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If any				false

		3577						LN		138		5		false		               5   party objects to that motion, indicate to me.  I am not				false

		3578						LN		138		6		false		               6   seeing any objection, so it's granted.				false

		3579						LN		138		7		false		               7        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Have you prepared a brief				false

		3580						LN		138		8		false		               8   summary of your testimony?				false

		3581						LN		138		9		false		               9        A.   I have.				false

		3582						LN		138		10		false		              10        Q.   Please go ahead.				false

		3583						LN		138		11		false		              11        A.   Good afternoon, Commissioners.  Thank you for				false

		3584						LN		138		12		false		              12   the opportunity to address the current status of the --				false

		3585						LN		138		13		false		              13   on the reported adjustments and recommendations from the				false

		3586						LN		138		14		false		              14   division and its consultant, Daymark Energy Advisors.  I				false

		3587						LN		138		15		false		              15   will also be introducing division's witness from Daymark				false

		3588						LN		138		16		false		              16   in conjunction with this hearing.				false

		3589						LN		138		17		false		              17             The division recommends the commission allow				false

		3590						LN		138		18		false		              18   the company to recover in its energy balance account an				false

		3591						LN		138		19		false		              19   amount of approximately $1.8 million for the calendar				false

		3592						LN		138		20		false		              20   year 2017.  This is $912,007 less than the recovery				false

		3593						LN		138		21		false		              21   amount originally requested by the company, and consists				false

		3594						LN		138		22		false		              22   of an error adjustment of $25,742 and an outage				false

		3595						LN		138		23		false		              23   adjustment of $886,265.				false

		3596						LN		138		24		false		              24             In its review of electrical natural gas				false

		3597						LN		138		25		false		              25   transactions, Daymark discovered a policy and procedure				false

		3598						PG		139		0		false		page 139				false

		3599						LN		139		1		false		               1   finding.  Daymark recommended appropriate policy changes				false

		3600						LN		139		2		false		               2   to remedy this finding.  In response testimony, the				false

		3601						LN		139		3		false		               3   company accepted the division's error correction.				false

		3602						LN		139		4		false		               4             The company also agreed in response testimony				false

		3603						LN		139		5		false		               5   with the Daymark proposed policy changes.  In its				false

		3604						LN		139		6		false		               6   response testimony, the company stated that it will work				false

		3605						LN		139		7		false		               7   with the DPU and Daymark to adopt energy risk management				false

		3606						LN		139		8		false		               8   policy language similar to what Daymark proposed in its				false

		3607						LN		139		9		false		               9   audit report.				false

		3608						LN		139		10		false		              10             In its audit report, the division's				false

		3609						LN		139		11		false		              11   consultants, Daymark, made an adjustment for outages.				false

		3610						LN		139		12		false		              12   Daymark recommended this allowing replacement power				false

		3611						LN		139		13		false		              13   costs resulting from seven outages.  These outages				false

		3612						LN		139		14		false		              14   demonstrate a sufficient imprudence that EBA costs				false

		3613						LN		139		15		false		              15   should be reduced by the amount of replacement power				false

		3614						LN		139		16		false		              16   cost related to the outages.  Utah allocated amount for				false

		3615						LN		139		17		false		              17   this adjustment is $840,267.  This adjustment impacted				false

		3616						LN		139		18		false		              18   interest computations in the amount of $45,998.  The				false

		3617						LN		139		19		false		              19   total adjustment is $886,265, after the interest				false

		3618						LN		139		20		false		              20   adjustment.				false

		3619						LN		139		21		false		              21             The company in its response testimony --				false

		3620						LN		139		22		false		              22   excuse me, in surrebuttal testimony to Daymark's audit				false

		3621						LN		139		23		false		              23   report and rebuttal testimony, did not agree that the				false

		3622						LN		139		24		false		              24   replacement power for plant outages should be				false

		3623						LN		139		25		false		              25   disallowed.  The division's witness from Daymark,				false

		3624						PG		140		0		false		page 140				false

		3625						LN		140		1		false		               1   Mr. Phil DiDomenico, will testify to Daymark's EBA				false

		3626						LN		140		2		false		               2   review, and specifically to Daymark's outage adjustments				false

		3627						LN		140		3		false		               3   and why replacement power for the seven outages should				false

		3628						LN		140		4		false		               4   be disallowed.  And that concludes my summary.				false

		3629						LN		140		5		false		               5             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have no further				false

		3630						LN		140		6		false		               6   questions, and Mr. Thompson is available for cross or				false

		3631						LN		140		7		false		               7   questions from the commission.				false

		3632						LN		140		8		false		               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		3633						LN		140		9		false		               9   Mr. Russell, do you have any questions for Mr. Thompson?				false

		3634						LN		140		10		false		              10             MR. RUSSELL:  I don't.  Thank you.				false

		3635						LN		140		11		false		              11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		3636						LN		140		12		false		              12   Mr. Moscon, Ms. Hogle?				false

		3637						LN		140		13		false		              13             MR. MOSCON:  No questions.				false

		3638						LN		140		14		false		              14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Commissioner White?				false

		3639						LN		140		15		false		              15             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions.  Thank you.				false

		3640						LN		140		16		false		              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?				false

		3641						LN		140		17		false		              17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions.  Thank you,				false

		3642						LN		140		18		false		              18   Mr. Thompson.				false

		3643						LN		140		19		false		              19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And none from me.  Thank you				false

		3644						LN		140		20		false		              20   for your testimony today.				false

		3645						LN		140		21		false		              21             MR. MOSCON:  The division would like to next				false

		3646						LN		140		22		false		              22   call and have sworn in Phil DiDomenico.				false

		3647						LN		140		23		false		              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon,				false

		3648						LN		140		24		false		              24   Mr. DiDomenico.  Do you swear to tell the truth?				false

		3649						LN		140		25		false		              25             THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		3650						PG		141		0		false		page 141				false

		3651						LN		141		1		false		               1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.				false

		3652						LN		141		2		false		               2                      PHILIP DIDOMENICO,				false

		3653						LN		141		3		false		               3   was called as a witness, and having been first duly				false

		3654						LN		141		4		false		               4   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:				false

		3655						LN		141		5		false		               5                      DIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		3656						LN		141		6		false		               6   BY MR. JETTER:				false

		3657						LN		141		7		false		               7        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, would you please start by				false

		3658						LN		141		8		false		               8   stating your name, and maybe let's have you spell your				false

		3659						LN		141		9		false		               9   last name so you get it correct on the record, and your				false

		3660						LN		141		10		false		              10   occupation.				false

		3661						LN		141		11		false		              11        A.   Certainly.  It's DiDomenico.  It's capital				false

		3662						LN		141		12		false		              12   D-I, capital D-O-M-E-N-I-C-O.				false

		3663						LN		141		13		false		              13        Q.   Thank you.  And what is your occupation?				false

		3664						LN		141		14		false		              14        A.   I am a management consultant for Daymark				false

		3665						LN		141		15		false		              15   Energy Advisors.				false

		3666						LN		141		16		false		              16        Q.   And were you retained to review certain				false

		3667						LN		141		17		false		              17   transactions and essentially an audit in this case?				false

		3668						LN		141		18		false		              18        A.   I was.				false

		3669						LN		141		19		false		              19        Q.   And did you create, in the course of your				false

		3670						LN		141		20		false		              20   employment and -- and consultant contract with the				false

		3671						LN		141		21		false		              21   division, create and cause to be filed with the				false

		3672						LN		141		22		false		              22   commission direct and rebuttal testimony, direct				false

		3673						LN		141		23		false		              23   testimony filed November 15th, 2018, along with rebuttal				false

		3674						LN		141		24		false		              24   testimony filed January 10th, 2019?				false

		3675						LN		141		25		false		              25        A.   I did.				false

		3676						PG		142		0		false		page 142				false

		3677						LN		142		1		false		               1        Q.   And in both of those testimonies, it				false

		3678						LN		142		2		false		               2   identified two witnesses, which is yourself and Dan				false

		3679						LN		142		3		false		               3   Koehler; is that correct?				false

		3680						LN		142		4		false		               4        A.   Dan Koehler, yes.				false

		3681						LN		142		5		false		               5        Q.   Koehler, excuse me.  And do you intend to				false

		3682						LN		142		6		false		               6   adopt both of those testimonies today in full?				false

		3683						LN		142		7		false		               7        A.   I do.				false

		3684						LN		142		8		false		               8        Q.   If you are asked the same questions in both				false

		3685						LN		142		9		false		               9   the direct and rebuttal testimonies that were filed,				false

		3686						LN		142		10		false		              10   would your answers remain the same?				false

		3687						LN		142		11		false		              11        A.   With one correction.				false

		3688						LN		142		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  And please go ahead.				false

		3689						LN		142		13		false		              13        A.   Looking at my direct testimony, of myself and				false

		3690						LN		142		14		false		              14   Dan, page 8 if I would, under findings and				false

		3691						LN		142		15		false		              15   recommendations, starting with line 89, what I would				false

		3692						LN		142		16		false		              16   drop is the sentence that appears after outages.  I				false

		3693						LN		142		17		false		              17   would replace, "that appeared to be avoidable and				false

		3694						LN		142		18		false		              18   resulted in unnecessary increases to the company-wide				false

		3695						LN		142		19		false		              19   NPC," replace that with the phrase, "for further				false

		3696						LN		142		20		false		              20   investigation," period.				false

		3697						LN		142		21		false		              21        Q.   Thank you.  And do you have any other				false

		3698						LN		142		22		false		              22   corrections or changes you would like to make?				false

		3699						LN		142		23		false		              23        A.   I do not.				false

		3700						LN		142		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.				false

		3701						LN		142		25		false		              25             MR. MOSCON:  I'm sorry.  Can I have you -- I				false

		3702						PG		143		0		false		page 143				false

		3703						LN		143		1		false		               1   was slow here.				false

		3704						LN		143		2		false		               2             THE WITNESS:  Sure.				false

		3705						LN		143		3		false		               3             MR. MOSCON:  Line 93, will you just tell me				false

		3706						LN		143		4		false		               4   again what I am crossing out where?				false

		3707						LN		143		5		false		               5             THE WITNESS:  It was line 89.				false

		3708						LN		143		6		false		               6             MR. MOSCON:  Sorry, 89.				false

		3709						LN		143		7		false		               7             THE WITNESS:  We are crossing out the words				false

		3710						LN		143		8		false		               8   that start after the word outages.				false

		3711						LN		143		9		false		               9             MR. MOSCON:  Got it.				false

		3712						LN		143		10		false		              10             THE WITNESS:  Crossing out basically to the				false

		3713						LN		143		11		false		              11   end of that sentence on the next line, and replacing				false

		3714						LN		143		12		false		              12   that with simply, for further investigation.				false

		3715						LN		143		13		false		              13             By way of clarification, those 29 outages were				false

		3716						LN		143		14		false		              14   selected because of their duration, not because of any				false

		3717						LN		143		15		false		              15   particular concern over their impact.				false

		3718						LN		143		16		false		              16             MR. JETTER:  With that I'd like to move for				false

		3719						LN		143		17		false		              17   the introduction of -- or entry of the direct and				false

		3720						LN		143		18		false		              18   rebuttal testimony I have identified earlier, along with				false

		3721						LN		143		19		false		              19   all of the attached exhibits to both of those, which was				false

		3722						LN		143		20		false		              20   direct through 2.3 and, I believe there was no exhibits				false

		3723						LN		143		21		false		              21   attached in addition to the testimony on the rebuttal				false

		3724						LN		143		22		false		              22   testimony.				false

		3725						LN		143		23		false		              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If anyone objects to				false

		3726						LN		143		24		false		              24   that motion, please let me know.  I am not seeing any				false

		3727						LN		143		25		false		              25   objection, so the motion is granted.				false

		3728						PG		144		0		false		page 144				false

		3729						LN		144		1		false		               1             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.				false

		3730						LN		144		2		false		               2        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter) And have you prepared a brief				false

		3731						LN		144		3		false		               3   statement summarizing your testimony?				false

		3732						LN		144		4		false		               4        A.   I have.				false

		3733						LN		144		5		false		               5        Q.   Please go ahead.				false

		3734						LN		144		6		false		               6        A.   Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to				false

		3735						LN		144		7		false		               7   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding				false

		3736						LN		144		8		false		               8   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a				false

		3737						LN		144		9		false		               9   request on March 15th, 2018 to recover 2.8 --				false

		3738						LN		144		10		false		              10        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, I am going to interrupt just				false

		3739						LN		144		11		false		              11   very briefly.  If you wouldn't mind reading just a				false

		3740						LN		144		12		false		              12   little bit slower for our court reporter.				false

		3741						LN		144		13		false		              13        A.   I'm sorry.  Too fast for you.  It's Italian				false

		3742						LN		144		14		false		              14   heritage.				false

		3743						LN		144		15		false		              15             Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to				false

		3744						LN		144		16		false		              16   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding				false

		3745						LN		144		17		false		              17   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a				false

		3746						LN		144		18		false		              18   request on March 15th, 2018, to recover 2.8 million for				false

		3747						LN		144		19		false		              19   excess energy balancing account associated costs				false

		3748						LN		144		20		false		              20   incurred throughout the 12 month deferral period from				false

		3749						LN		144		21		false		              21   January 1st, 2017, through December 31st, 2017.				false

		3750						LN		144		22		false		              22             Daymark's role was to determine whether the				false

		3751						LN		144		23		false		              23   actual costs featured in the calendar year 2017 EBA				false

		3752						LN		144		24		false		              24   filing were incurred in accordance with an in place				false

		3753						LN		144		25		false		              25   policy or plan, were prudent and were in the public				false

		3754						PG		145		0		false		page 145				false

		3755						LN		145		1		false		               1   interest.				false

		3756						LN		145		2		false		               2             Our review included four main assignments, as				false

		3757						LN		145		3		false		               3   established in consultation with the division.  First,				false

		3758						LN		145		4		false		               4   evaluate a sample of electric and natural gas				false

		3759						LN		145		5		false		               5   transaction for accuracy, completeness and prudence.				false

		3760						LN		145		6		false		               6   Second, we reviewed particular issues pertaining to key				false

		3761						LN		145		7		false		               7   drivers of EBA costs, specifically deviations in the				false

		3762						LN		145		8		false		               8   actual wholesale sales revenue and purchased power				false

		3763						LN		145		9		false		               9   expense in relation to levels forecasted for the general				false

		3764						LN		145		10		false		              10   rate case and established in base NBC.				false

		3765						LN		145		11		false		              11             Third, we reviewed the impact of PacifiCorp's				false

		3766						LN		145		12		false		              12   third full calendar year of participation in the				false

		3767						LN		145		13		false		              13   California ISO, energy imbalance market.  Lastly, we				false

		3768						LN		145		14		false		              14   reviewed and evaluated actual plant outages to ensure				false

		3769						LN		145		15		false		              15   that these outages and the cost impacts on the EBA				false

		3770						LN		145		16		false		              16   charge were appropriate.				false

		3771						LN		145		17		false		              17             Transactions.  Relative to transactions our				false

		3772						LN		145		18		false		              18   findings were as follows.  PacifiCorp settled tens of				false

		3773						LN		145		19		false		              19   thousands of natural gas financial, natural gas physical				false

		3774						LN		145		20		false		              20   and electric power physical transactions in 2017.  We				false

		3775						LN		145		21		false		              21   assembled and analyzed a sample of 46 representative				false

		3776						LN		145		22		false		              22   transactions and accounting entry groupings.  After				false

		3777						LN		145		23		false		              23   reviewing these transactions, we did not find or -- we				false

		3778						LN		145		24		false		              24   did not suggest, excuse me, any adjustments to the				false

		3779						LN		145		25		false		              25   calendar year 2017 EBA costs for the evaluated				false

		3780						PG		146		0		false		page 146				false

		3781						LN		146		1		false		               1   transactions.				false

		3782						LN		146		2		false		               2             However, our review of a particular				false

		3783						LN		146		3		false		               3   transaction revealed a deficiency in PacifiCorp's				false

		3784						LN		146		4		false		               4   policies and practices pertaining to monitoring and				false

		3785						LN		146		5		false		               5   reporting potential breaches in individual trader				false

		3786						LN		146		6		false		               6   limits.				false

		3787						LN		146		7		false		               7             The company has taken some corrective steps to				false

		3788						LN		146		8		false		               8   address this issue since becoming aware of it, but we				false

		3789						LN		146		9		false		               9   recommend that the company formally adopt governance				false

		3790						LN		146		10		false		              10   control requirements in their risk management policy --				false

		3791						LN		146		11		false		              11   energy risk management policy.  The company has				false

		3792						LN		146		12		false		              12   indicated in response testimony that it is amenable to				false

		3793						LN		146		13		false		              13   working with the division to adopt such changes.				false

		3794						LN		146		14		false		              14             Regarding the EBA cost drivers, we found that				false

		3795						LN		146		15		false		              15   the deviations in actual wholesale sales revenue and				false

		3796						LN		146		16		false		              16   purchased power expense were generally explainable by				false

		3797						LN		146		17		false		              17   market condition changes between the base NPC forecasts				false

		3798						LN		146		18		false		              18   for the 2014, '15 test period, and actual conditions				false

		3799						LN		146		19		false		              19   during the 2017 deferral period, as well as changes in				false

		3800						LN		146		20		false		              20   long-term contracts in effect for the respective				false

		3801						LN		146		21		false		              21   periods.				false

		3802						LN		146		22		false		              22             Regarding the California ISO, energy imbalance				false

		3803						LN		146		23		false		              23   market, our findings regarding -- regarding our high				false

		3804						LN		146		24		false		              24   level review of PacifiCorp's participation in the -- in				false

		3805						LN		146		25		false		              25   the ISO EMI, we found no reason to challenge the ISO or				false

		3806						PG		147		0		false		page 147				false

		3807						LN		147		1		false		               1   the company's methodology for estimating benefits from				false

		3808						LN		147		2		false		               2   participating in the real-time imbalance trading through				false

		3809						LN		147		3		false		               3   the EIN, nor do we have reason to believe that the				false

		3810						LN		147		4		false		               4   estimates substantially overstate the benefits.				false

		3811						LN		147		5		false		               5             Regarding outages, our review of generator				false

		3812						LN		147		6		false		               6   outages at the company's thermal plants during the EBA				false

		3813						LN		147		7		false		               7   period, deferral period, identified 25 significant				false

		3814						LN		147		8		false		               8   outages; that is, outages that are forced outages or				false

		3815						LN		147		9		false		               9   planned outage extensions of greater than 72 hours in				false

		3816						LN		147		10		false		              10   duration.				false

		3817						LN		147		11		false		              11             Of these 29 outages, seven outages				false

		3818						LN		147		12		false		              12   demonstrated sufficient imprudence that we recommend				false

		3819						LN		147		13		false		              13   reducing EBA costs to reflect replacement power costs				false

		3820						LN		147		14		false		              14   related to the outages.  The total reduction in				false

		3821						LN		147		15		false		              15   company-wide NPC for these outages was 1,954,826.  The				false

		3822						LN		147		16		false		              16   Utah allocated EBA deferral adjustment related to				false

		3823						LN		147		17		false		              17   imprudent outage replacement power costs is 840,267.				false

		3824						LN		147		18		false		              18             The quantification replacement power costs is				false

		3825						LN		147		19		false		              19   not in dispute.  The company has agreed with our				false

		3826						LN		147		20		false		              20   methodology for estimating the additional net power				false

		3827						LN		147		21		false		              21   costs that are incurred as a result of specific plant				false

		3828						LN		147		22		false		              22   outages.				false

		3829						LN		147		23		false		              23             The company submitted response testimony of				false

		3830						LN		147		24		false		              24   Mr. Dana Ralston to address the seven generation plant				false

		3831						LN		147		25		false		              25   outages we identified as demonstrating sufficient				false

		3832						PG		148		0		false		page 148				false

		3833						LN		148		1		false		               1   imprudence to warrant EBA cost adjustment.				false

		3834						LN		148		2		false		               2   Mr. Ralston's response testimony disputed our claims				false

		3835						LN		148		3		false		               3   that the company acted imprudently in regard to those				false

		3836						LN		148		4		false		               4   seven outages, and therefore, no adjustment to the EBA				false

		3837						LN		148		5		false		               5   amounts was needed.  We disagree with Mr. Ralston's				false

		3838						LN		148		6		false		               6   arguments and we stand by our original recommendation.				false

		3839						LN		148		7		false		               7             Mr. Ralston asserted that the Craig Unit 2				false

		3840						LN		148		8		false		               8   outage was the result of GE's subcontractor's failure to				false

		3841						LN		148		9		false		               9   correctly tighten specific plugs and not the lack of				false

		3842						LN		148		10		false		              10   established procedures and practices.				false

		3843						LN		148		11		false		              11             Though the company's partner GE admitted				false

		3844						LN		148		12		false		              12   fault, the company should still be held accountable				false

		3845						LN		148		13		false		              13   since they are responsible for ensuring risk mitigation				false

		3846						LN		148		14		false		              14   measures are established and followed by their partners.				false

		3847						LN		148		15		false		              15   Additionally, the company should work with their third				false

		3848						LN		148		16		false		              16   party operators to use similar outage-related				false

		3849						LN		148		17		false		              17   documentation procedures as utilized by PacifiCorp.				false

		3850						LN		148		18		false		              18             Regarding the April 2017 outage at Dave				false

		3851						LN		148		19		false		              19   Johnson Unit 3, the company believes that the use of				false
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		4019						LN		155		5		false		               5   a couple of questions about each.  And we'll start with				false

		4020						LN		155		6		false		               6   the Craig Unit 2 outage, which is -- is the one related				false

		4021						LN		155		7		false		               7   to the 50 bolts and the one that may have come loose				false

		4022						LN		155		8		false		               8   when the -- when the plant was started back up.				false

		4023						LN		155		9		false		               9             Can you explain to me what it is that in				false

		4024						LN		155		10		false		              10   Daymark's view was imprudent about this particular				false

		4025						LN		155		11		false		              11   outage?				false

		4026						LN		155		12		false		              12        A.   Fundamentally, I ask myself the question, is				false

		4027						LN		155		13		false		              13   it prudent to assemble a unit when you haven't followed				false

		4028						LN		155		14		false		              14   the procedures properly?  When you read the information				false

		4029						LN		155		15		false		              15   on this event, it speaks to, potentially, the unit that				false

		4030						LN		155		16		false		              16   the bolt wasn't tightened properly.				false

		4031						LN		155		17		false		              17             And I say potentially because one of the				false

		4032						LN		155		18		false		              18   problems is that on that event, Tri-State fundamentally				false

		4033						LN		155		19		false		              19   didn't do a root cause analysis, nor is it their				false

		4034						LN		155		20		false		              20   practice to do a root cause analysis.				false

		4035						LN		155		21		false		              21             The information that we have received is				false

		4036						LN		155		22		false		              22   essentially three e-mails.  We have three e-mails where				false

		4037						LN		155		23		false		              23   they say, good news, we figured out that a plug fell				false

		4038						LN		155		24		false		              24   out.  That's the extent of the information that we have				false

		4039						LN		155		25		false		              25   on that outage.  So I look at that, and I am saying,				false

		4040						PG		156		0		false		page 156				false

		4041						LN		156		1		false		               1   this -- this doesn't sound right, something wrong with				false

		4042						LN		156		2		false		               2   this.  We need to dig further.  But the fact of the				false

		4043						LN		156		3		false		               3   matter is, they didn't dig further.  So we don't know				false

		4044						LN		156		4		false		               4   what actually caused the event.				false

		4045						LN		156		5		false		               5             But I do know this, when you talk -- when				false

		4046						LN		156		6		false		               6   you're dealing with the hydrogen cooling system of a				false

		4047						LN		156		7		false		               7   major generator, we are not -- this is a significant				false

		4048						LN		156		8		false		               8   element in the system.  You don't do it casually, right?				false

		4049						LN		156		9		false		               9   Hydrogen leaks are taken very serious by the industry,				false

		4050						LN		156		10		false		              10   as I am sure the company is taking it very seriously.				false

		4051						LN		156		11		false		              11             So as you are going through the procedures				false

		4052						LN		156		12		false		              12   that say tighten whatever and fill in silicone, whatever				false

		4053						LN		156		13		false		              13   you are trying to do, I am virtually certain, although I				false

		4054						LN		156		14		false		              14   don't -- I haven't seen the procedure, because it hasn't				false

		4055						LN		156		15		false		              15   been provided, but I am virtually certain that it				false

		4056						LN		156		16		false		              16   mandates a very specific manner in which you need to do				false

		4057						LN		156		17		false		              17   your job.				false

		4058						LN		156		18		false		              18             In this case bolts don't fall out for no				false

		4059						LN		156		19		false		              19   reason.  They fall out because somebody didn't do what				false

		4060						LN		156		20		false		              20   they needed to do.  It's a summation.  I don't have				false

		4061						LN		156		21		false		              21   facts to support that, but all I know is that the bolt				false

		4062						LN		156		22		false		              22   was not there, and that -- and that is a cause for				false

		4063						LN		156		23		false		              23   concern.				false

		4064						LN		156		24		false		              24        Q.   And I guess one of the issues that -- that I				false

		4065						LN		156		25		false		              25   think the commission may have to grapple with here is,				false

		4066						PG		157		0		false		page 157				false

		4067						LN		157		1		false		               1   if the bolt did come out, and in your view if it came				false

		4068						LN		157		2		false		               2   out and somebody did something wrong, if it -- if the --				false

		4069						LN		157		3		false		               3   the somebody that did something wrong is with a mill				false

		4070						LN		157		4		false		               4   worker hired by General Electric who in turn was hired				false

		4071						LN		157		5		false		               5   by Tri-State Generation, who is the operator of this				false

		4072						LN		157		6		false		               6   plant, but is not the company here asking for, you know,				false

		4073						LN		157		7		false		               7   a specific rate treatment, how -- how does the				false

		4074						LN		157		8		false		               8   commission address all of that?				false

		4075						LN		157		9		false		               9        A.   I think it starts with the accountability of				false

		4076						LN		157		10		false		              10   the company to its third party vendors.  I agree that				false

		4077						LN		157		11		false		              11   it's very expensive to get that kind of coverage,				false

		4078						LN		157		12		false		              12   replacement power coverage.  Replacement power is the				false

		4079						LN		157		13		false		              13   hot potato that nobody wants, because it's open-ended.				false

		4080						LN		157		14		false		              14   It's an undefined liability.  Nobody wants to cover				false

		4081						LN		157		15		false		              15   that.  And -- and we get that, we understand that.				false

		4082						LN		157		16		false		              16             But if you look at the chain in terms of who				false

		4083						LN		157		17		false		              17   was involved, the company is in the best pos -- position				false

		4084						LN		157		18		false		              18   of everyone to be able to manage that risk, understand				false

		4085						LN		157		19		false		              19   that risk and provide for that risk.  So from our				false

		4086						LN		157		20		false		              20   perspective, it's incumbent upon them to make sure that				false

		4087						LN		157		21		false		              21   their third party, whoever they are working with, are				false

		4088						LN		157		22		false		              22   following prudent practices.				false

		4089						LN		157		23		false		              23        Q.   Okay.  And -- and how would -- how should the				false

		4090						LN		157		24		false		              24   company have managed the risk in this -- in this case in				false

		4091						LN		157		25		false		              25   your view?				false

		4092						PG		158		0		false		page 158				false

		4093						LN		158		1		false		               1        A.   Well, you know, unfortunately in this -- in				false

		4094						LN		158		2		false		               2   this case, to do a proper root cause investigation would				false

		4095						LN		158		3		false		               3   require you being on-site and interviewing the				false

		4096						LN		158		4		false		               4   principals involved.				false

		4097						LN		158		5		false		               5             Right now, the information I have available to				false

		4098						LN		158		6		false		               6   me doesn't really allow me to make any specific				false

		4099						LN		158		7		false		               7   recommendations, other than a general recommendation				false

		4100						LN		158		8		false		               8   that greater oversight needs to be provided.  That's not				false

		4101						LN		158		9		false		               9   terribly helpful, but it -- but it requires more				false

		4102						LN		158		10		false		              10   intervention, more active involvement in what's going				false

		4103						LN		158		11		false		              11   on.				false

		4104						LN		158		12		false		              12        Q.   And how do we know how much that active				false

		4105						LN		158		13		false		              13   involvement might cost?				false

		4106						LN		158		14		false		              14        A.   The only way you know is by asking for it when				false

		4107						LN		158		15		false		              15   you are working with your various vendors.				false

		4108						LN		158		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  In -- in a --				false

		4109						LN		158		17		false		              17        A.   And it's very situational.  It would depend on				false

		4110						LN		158		18		false		              18   the specific event and who you're dealing with.  It's				false

		4111						LN		158		19		false		              19   not -- it's not something that you can just pull out and				false

		4112						LN		158		20		false		              20   say, every time we do this it's going to cost whatever.				false

		4113						LN		158		21		false		              21   It varies significantly.				false

		4114						LN		158		22		false		              22             As a general statement, sure, it's going to				false

		4115						LN		158		23		false		              23   cost you money, but I don't know what -- I don't know				false

		4116						LN		158		24		false		              24   how you ignore the fact that it's problematic, because				false

		4117						LN		158		25		false		              25   the only one that shares replacement cost responsibility				false

		4118						PG		159		0		false		page 159				false

		4119						LN		159		1		false		               1   right now is ultimately the customer.				false

		4120						LN		159		2		false		               2        Q.   Right.  And -- and I guess the -- the customer				false

		4121						LN		159		3		false		               3   would also bear some responsibility for the cost to				false

		4122						LN		159		4		false		               4   prevent that replacement power cost, right?				false

		4123						LN		159		5		false		               5        A.   Certainly.				false

		4124						LN		159		6		false		               6        Q.   Yeah.  And -- and I guess the question that I				false

		4125						LN		159		7		false		               7   have is, how does the commission address these issues				false

		4126						LN		159		8		false		               8   when it's -- when it's trying to figure out, well,				false

		4127						LN		159		9		false		               9   there's this cost to prevent these risks, and, you know,				false

		4128						LN		159		10		false		              10   somebody is going to have to pay for that cost, and				false

		4129						LN		159		11		false		              11   almost always we end up in the same place.				false

		4130						LN		159		12		false		              12             Had -- had -- I am formulating a poorly				false

		4131						LN		159		13		false		              13   question here, or poorly formulating a question here.				false

		4132						LN		159		14		false		              14   But there's -- there's this balance between the cost and				false

		4133						LN		159		15		false		              15   the risk, and I am wondering how the commission should				false

		4134						LN		159		16		false		              16   handle that.				false

		4135						LN		159		17		false		              17        A.   I think it's -- it's a difficult question.  I				false

		4136						LN		159		18		false		              18   think it's very situational.  I think some sort of a				false

		4137						LN		159		19		false		              19   shared savings or shared cost approach is probably the				false

		4138						LN		159		20		false		              20   most appropriate.  But it's very situational.  It's --				false

		4139						LN		159		21		false		              21   it's not something that we can sit here and just say, on				false

		4140						LN		159		22		false		              22   a blanket policy, this is how we should approach that.				false

		4141						LN		159		23		false		              23   I think that would be very difficult.				false

		4142						LN		159		24		false		              24        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'm -- I'm going to walk				false

		4143						LN		159		25		false		              25   through the other six, but the -- the -- the list of				false

		4144						PG		160		0		false		page 160				false

		4145						LN		160		1		false		               1   questions will be a little bit shorter, because I think				false

		4146						LN		160		2		false		               2   some of the principles that we just discussed can apply				false

		4147						LN		160		3		false		               3   as well.				false

		4148						LN		160		4		false		               4             Looking at the Dave Johnson Unit 3, the April				false

		4149						LN		160		5		false		               5   25 outage, and this was the one that we -- we spent a				false

		4150						LN		160		6		false		               6   little bit of time talking about the nonconforming				false

		4151						LN		160		7		false		               7   material in boiler tube, right?  So if you could, tell				false

		4152						LN		160		8		false		               8   me quickly what you understand -- or what -- what facts				false

		4153						LN		160		9		false		               9   you understand to be the -- the imprudent or to				false

		4154						LN		160		10		false		              10   constitute the imprudent action by the utility here.				false

		4155						LN		160		11		false		              11        A.   Well, fundamentally the imprudent action is				false

		4156						LN		160		12		false		              12   installing nonconforming material, not keeping an				false

		4157						LN		160		13		false		              13   accurate record, and not going back and replacing it				false

		4158						LN		160		14		false		              14   when the time was appropriate.				false

		4159						LN		160		15		false		              15             There is nothing wrong -- I am agreeing with				false

		4160						LN		160		16		false		              16   the company witness when he says that in a pinch you do				false

		4161						LN		160		17		false		              17   what you need to do to bring the unit on line.  That's				false

		4162						LN		160		18		false		              18   standard practice.  I am not going to disagree with				false

		4163						LN		160		19		false		              19   that.  But not being able to have proper records so that				false

		4164						LN		160		20		false		              20   you can go back and then correct that situation before				false

		4165						LN		160		21		false		              21   it turns into an outage situation is where the problem				false

		4166						LN		160		22		false		              22   lies.				false

		4167						LN		160		23		false		              23        Q.   And if we were to talk about the cost to				false

		4168						LN		160		24		false		              24   potentially mitigate that, I suppose what you'd say is				false

		4169						LN		160		25		false		              25   that you mitigate it by having proper -- by having				false

		4170						PG		161		0		false		page 161				false

		4171						LN		161		1		false		               1   proper recordkeeping procedures; is that right?				false

		4172						LN		161		2		false		               2        A.   Exactly.				false

		4173						LN		161		3		false		               3        Q.   Okay.  Moving on to the September outage at				false

		4174						LN		161		4		false		               4   Dave Johnson Unit 3, this is the outage related to the				false

		4175						LN		161		5		false		               5   boiler tube failure that, I guess, the metallurgical				false

		4176						LN		161		6		false		               6   reports point to the explosive deslagging efforts.  Tell				false

		4177						LN		161		7		false		               7   me what you -- what you understand to be the facts that				false

		4178						LN		161		8		false		               8   constitute the imprudent action here.				false

		4179						LN		161		9		false		               9        A.   The problem I have as -- as an outside				false

		4180						LN		161		10		false		              10   third-party consultant trying to evaluate what I am				false

		4181						LN		161		11		false		              11   seeing, I am dealing with the information that I have in				false

		4182						LN		161		12		false		              12   front of me.  And the picture that I am seeing is that I				false

		4183						LN		161		13		false		              13   have a metallurgist who is admittedly an expert in their				false

		4184						LN		161		14		false		              14   field, someone that the company relies upon, and I see				false

		4185						LN		161		15		false		              15   them repeatedly making recommendations about changing				false

		4186						LN		161		16		false		              16   the company's blasting practices.				false

		4187						LN		161		17		false		              17             And on the other hand, I -- I hear the company				false

		4188						LN		161		18		false		              18   telling me, well, they did that and they did it back in				false

		4189						LN		161		19		false		              19   2011, and that whatever they are reporting isn't				false

		4190						LN		161		20		false		              20   necessarily pertinent to the current situation.				false

		4191						LN		161		21		false		              21             In my own experience, the partnership between				false

		4192						LN		161		22		false		              22   the metallurgist and the company is not a very distant				false

		4193						LN		161		23		false		              23   relationship.  I find it hard to believe that the				false

		4194						LN		161		24		false		              24   metallurgist that the company uses on a regular basis,				false

		4195						LN		161		25		false		              25   and has been using for years, is not aware of the				false

		4196						PG		162		0		false		page 162				false

		4197						LN		162		1		false		               1   company's current blasting practices.				false

		4198						LN		162		2		false		               2             That -- that just brings questions into my				false

		4199						LN		162		3		false		               3   mind.  Why is that?  So I'm -- I'm left with a dilemma.				false

		4200						LN		162		4		false		               4   I have two stories.  Which one do I believe?  I am not				false

		4201						LN		162		5		false		               5   sure.				false

		4202						LN		162		6		false		               6             I have heard a little bit more information				false

		4203						LN		162		7		false		               7   today that would tend to lean towards the company's				false

		4204						LN		162		8		false		               8   position, but again, I don't know why the metallurgist				false

		4205						LN		162		9		false		               9   would continue to make the same recommendation over and				false

		4206						LN		162		10		false		              10   over again, when it's not pertinent to the issue at				false

		4207						LN		162		11		false		              11   hand.				false

		4208						LN		162		12		false		              12        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Huntington				false

		4209						LN		162		13		false		              13   Unit 1.  As I understand it, the issue there leading to				false

		4210						LN		162		14		false		              14   the outage was the issue of dissimilar welds, correct?				false

		4211						LN		162		15		false		              15        A.   Yes.				false

		4212						LN		162		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  And with -- again, with this one, tell				false

		4213						LN		162		17		false		              17   me what facts you understand to be the issue that --				false

		4214						LN		162		18		false		              18   that leads to the -- your conclusion that there was				false

		4215						LN		162		19		false		              19   imprudent action by the utility.				false

		4216						LN		162		20		false		              20        A.   Sure.  Dissimilar metal welds, DMWs, is not a				false

		4217						LN		162		21		false		              21   new issue.  I think we heard testimony to that effect.				false

		4218						LN		162		22		false		              22   It's been around for a long time.  I mean, at least the				false

		4219						LN		162		23		false		              23   mid eighties, if not sooner than that, it was identified				false

		4220						LN		162		24		false		              24   as a -- as a cause of outages.				false

		4221						LN		162		25		false		              25             And not only a cause, it's not a matter of if				false

		4222						PG		163		0		false		page 163				false

		4223						LN		163		1		false		               1   there's going to be an outage.  It's just a matter of				false

		4224						LN		163		2		false		               2   when, because they are going to fail.  It's a problem.				false

		4225						LN		163		3		false		               3   It's a problem that was discovered with the help of EPRI				false

		4226						LN		163		4		false		               4   and others, and there are utilities that went -- went				false

		4227						LN		163		5		false		               5   ahead and removed them before they failed, rather than				false

		4228						LN		163		6		false		               6   waiting for failures in my experience.				false

		4229						LN		163		7		false		               7             However, in this particular scenario we have				false

		4230						LN		163		8		false		               8   been talking a great deal, about, well, three outages,				false

		4231						LN		163		9		false		               9   you know, less than 1 percent.  You are not going to go				false

		4232						LN		163		10		false		              10   out and spend $2 million in mitigation.  I understand				false

		4233						LN		163		11		false		              11   that.				false

		4234						LN		163		12		false		              12             My problem or my concern rests in the fact				false

		4235						LN		163		13		false		              13   that, follow the timeline with me for a minute.  Known				false

		4236						LN		163		14		false		              14   problem since the mid eighties.  The unit's been in				false

		4237						LN		163		15		false		              15   service since whenever, and they know that the reheater				false

		4238						LN		163		16		false		              16   has lots of dissimilar metal welds, 600 I think was the				false

		4239						LN		163		17		false		              17   number that was said.  They know this.  I mean, that's				false

		4240						LN		163		18		false		              18   the way it was built.				false

		4241						LN		163		19		false		              19             The first outage doesn't occur until 2000 -- I				false

		4242						LN		163		20		false		              20   am going to get one of these years wrong, 2008 I believe				false

		4243						LN		163		21		false		              21   or seven, I can't remember which.  After that happens,				false

		4244						LN		163		22		false		              22   no action is taken.  So a second outage occurs, no				false

		4245						LN		163		23		false		              23   action is taken.  A third outage occurs, no outage is				false

		4246						LN		163		24		false		              24   taken.  We get to the fourth outage, and all of a				false

		4247						LN		163		25		false		              25   sudden, the difference between three outages and four				false

		4248						PG		164		0		false		page 164				false

		4249						LN		164		1		false		               1   outages launches the company to an action plan to				false

		4250						LN		164		2		false		               2   address the problem.				false

		4251						LN		164		3		false		               3             Now, we have heard a lot about, well, three is				false

		4252						LN		164		4		false		               4   an insignificant number.  Four is -- well, the				false

		4253						LN		164		5		false		               5   difference between three and four is the same percentage				false

		4254						LN		164		6		false		               6   as far as I am concerned.  I think the company realizes				false

		4255						LN		164		7		false		               7   that this is a problem and they need to address it, and				false

		4256						LN		164		8		false		               8   it has nothing to do with how many outage events occur.				false

		4257						LN		164		9		false		               9             You know this is a problem.  It's just a				false

		4258						LN		164		10		false		              10   ticking time bomb waiting to keep happening, and as I				false

		4259						LN		164		11		false		              11   think there was reference to the hockey stick effect,				false

		4260						LN		164		12		false		              12   where all of a sudden you've got to just start				false

		4261						LN		164		13		false		              13   accelerating rapidly, absolutely, it's a very real risk.				false

		4262						LN		164		14		false		              14   It's very prevalent in our industry.				false

		4263						LN		164		15		false		              15             So my problem is not so much that they didn't				false

		4264						LN		164		16		false		              16   jump to replacing everything and spend $2 million.  My				false

		4265						LN		164		17		false		              17   problem is that they waited until a fourth outage, I am				false

		4266						LN		164		18		false		              18   trying to think the number of years after the first				false

		4267						LN		164		19		false		              19   outage, and 9 or 10 years after the first outage, before				false

		4268						LN		164		20		false		              20   they took steps to determine the extent of the problem.				false

		4269						LN		164		21		false		              21   Right.				false

		4270						LN		164		22		false		              22             We heard a lot about how testing this would be				false

		4271						LN		164		23		false		              23   a problem with -- got too expensive to do 600 welds				false

		4272						LN		164		24		false		              24   whatever.  After the fourth outage, they proceeded				false

		4273						LN		164		25		false		              25   immediately to doing that testing.  And in 2018, I				false

		4274						PG		165		0		false		page 165				false

		4275						LN		165		1		false		               1   guess, I am surmising that they identified a significant				false

		4276						LN		165		2		false		               2   enough problem to warrant a full replacement at the next				false

		4277						LN		165		3		false		               3   available major overall, 2022.				false

		4278						LN		165		4		false		               4             My point here is that this could have been				false

		4279						LN		165		5		false		               5   done sooner, exposing the customers to less outage and				false

		4280						LN		165		6		false		               6   replacement power risk.				false

		4281						LN		165		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  I think that actually addresses my				false

		4282						LN		165		8		false		               8   follow-up questions with respect to that one, although I				false

		4283						LN		165		9		false		               9   do have -- do have one other.  And I am looking at the,				false

		4284						LN		165		10		false		              10   I think it's Exhibit 2.3 that was attached to your				false

		4285						LN		165		11		false		              11   responsive testimony.				false

		4286						LN		165		12		false		              12        A.   It's the report.  Is that our report?				false

		4287						LN		165		13		false		              13        Q.   It is, yeah.  It's the -- the confidential				false

		4288						LN		165		14		false		              14   report.  I don't know what information in this is				false

		4289						LN		165		15		false		              15   confidential, if it's the figures or if it's the				false

		4290						LN		165		16		false		              16   descriptions.				false

		4291						LN		165		17		false		              17        A.   I am not a hundred percent sure either.				false

		4292						LN		165		18		false		              18   Jason?				false

		4293						LN		165		19		false		              19             MR. JETTER:  It's probably a mix.				false

		4294						LN		165		20		false		              20             MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.				false

		4295						LN		165		21		false		              21             MR. JETTER:  Is there something specific?				false

		4296						LN		165		22		false		              22             MR. RUSSELL:  With each of -- with each --				false

		4297						LN		165		23		false		              23   with each of the outages that are discussed, there is a				false

		4298						LN		165		24		false		              24   repair cost identified, as well as a cost associated				false

		4299						LN		165		25		false		              25   with the replacement power.  And I am just wondering				false

		4300						PG		166		0		false		page 166				false

		4301						LN		166		1		false		               1   whether any of that is confidential.  I don't even need				false

		4302						LN		166		2		false		               2   to use the number.				false

		4303						LN		166		3		false		               3             MS. HOGLE:  Confidential.				false

		4304						LN		166		4		false		               4        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Okay.  All right.  Do you				false

		4305						LN		166		5		false		               5   have that report in front of you?				false

		4306						LN		166		6		false		               6        A.   I do.				false

		4307						LN		166		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  Maybe we can do this without -- I'm --				false

		4308						LN		166		8		false		               8   I am not going -- I'm not going to identify any of the				false

		4309						LN		166		9		false		               9   numbers.  Do you see the -- the next to last paragraph				false

		4310						LN		166		10		false		              10   of --				false

		4311						LN		166		11		false		              11        A.   Excuse me.  Page reference please.				false

		4312						LN		166		12		false		              12        Q.   Yeah.  Sorry.  Page 26, it's the Huntington				false

		4313						LN		166		13		false		              13   Unit 1 outage, the discussion there.				false

		4314						LN		166		14		false		              14        A.   Yes.				false

		4315						LN		166		15		false		              15        Q.   Okay.  The next to last paragraph of that				false

		4316						LN		166		16		false		              16   discussion identifies the repair costs, and maybe I am				false

		4317						LN		166		17		false		              17   just misunderstanding what repairs were done, but can				false

		4318						LN		166		18		false		              18   you -- can you tell me what repairs were done that adds				false

		4319						LN		166		19		false		              19   up to this number that I am not going to say?				false

		4320						LN		166		20		false		              20        A.   No.  These repair costs were provided by the				false

		4321						LN		166		21		false		              21   company.				false

		4322						LN		166		22		false		              22        Q.   Yeah.				false

		4323						LN		166		23		false		              23        A.   So I don't know -- I don't know exactly what				false

		4324						LN		166		24		false		              24   repairs took place.  That's simply the costs of				false

		4325						LN		166		25		false		              25   bringing -- bringing the unit back to service from the				false

		4326						PG		167		0		false		page 167				false

		4327						LN		167		1		false		               1   outage.  Not including, you know, replacement power,				false

		4328						LN		167		2		false		               2   anything like that.				false

		4329						LN		167		3		false		               3        Q.   Yeah.  And I know we have been throwing around				false

		4330						LN		167		4		false		               4   this $2 million number to replace the dissimilar welds,				false

		4331						LN		167		5		false		               5   and that's not this number?				false

		4332						LN		167		6		false		               6        A.   It is not.				false

		4333						LN		167		7		false		               7        Q.   Okay.  Do you know -- you don't know what --				false

		4334						LN		167		8		false		               8   what is included with this number here?				false

		4335						LN		167		9		false		               9        A.   No.				false

		4336						LN		167		10		false		              10        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Let's move on				false

		4337						LN		167		11		false		              11   to Jim Bridger Unit 2, which is the next one in your --				false

		4338						LN		167		12		false		              12   in the report.  And this is the -- the one that we have				false

		4339						LN		167		13		false		              13   spent a fair bit of time talking about with the water				false

		4340						LN		167		14		false		              14   freezing and the water spacer tubing.  Can you tell me,				false

		4341						LN		167		15		false		              15   what was -- what was the -- what was the imprudent				false

		4342						LN		167		16		false		              16   action by the -- by the company here?				false

		4343						LN		167		17		false		              17        A.   Well, fundamentally, when you are talking				false

		4344						LN		167		18		false		              18   about a system that is explicitly designed to prevent				false

		4345						LN		167		19		false		              19   freezing, not functioning at a time when you need it,				false

		4346						LN		167		20		false		              20   and the reason given is that there was quote, unquote, a				false

		4347						LN		167		21		false		              21   gap in the procedures, that just doesn't ring true --				false

		4348						LN		167		22		false		              22   not true, but it doesn't make sense to me in the context				false

		4349						LN		167		23		false		              23   of my experience.				false

		4350						LN		167		24		false		              24             I could see gaps in procedures if this was a				false

		4351						LN		167		25		false		              25   new system or a new unit.  This is a unit that's been in				false

		4352						PG		168		0		false		page 168				false

		4353						LN		168		1		false		               1   operation for, you know, decades.  By now any bugs or				false

		4354						LN		168		2		false		               2   shake-down associated learnings, if you will, should				false

		4355						LN		168		3		false		               3   have been covered.  And I think we heard earlier that				false

		4356						LN		168		4		false		               4   this was simply a problem where a technician didn't do				false

		4357						LN		168		5		false		               5   his job properly.  I don't know how else to say it.				false

		4358						LN		168		6		false		               6        Q.   And -- and in your view, is it, what -- what				false

		4359						LN		168		7		false		               7   would be the cost of mitigating against that?  If				false

		4360						LN		168		8		false		               8   there --				false

		4361						LN		168		9		false		               9        A.   Very little.  I mean, that's nothing more than				false

		4362						LN		168		10		false		              10   the direction that this is what you need to do.  You				false

		4363						LN		168		11		false		              11   need to report things of this nature.  It's -- it's				false

		4364						LN		168		12		false		              12   somewhat, you know, it's puzzling that -- that an				false

		4365						LN		168		13		false		              13   individual with that title, that -- that -- namely the				false

		4366						LN		168		14		false		              14   technician that we're talking about, wouldn't have taken				false

		4367						LN		168		15		false		              15   that next step to make sure people were aware of it.				false

		4368						LN		168		16		false		              16   When I say people, upper -- his manager or other folks				false

		4369						LN		168		17		false		              17   in the management chain.				false

		4370						LN		168		18		false		              18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Jim				false

		4371						LN		168		19		false		              19   Bridger Unit 3, and this is the one where we have				false

		4372						LN		168		20		false		              20   discussed a fair bit with the electrical wiring that was				false

		4373						LN		168		21		false		              21   underground, but because of a -- of a water pump that				false

		4374						LN		168		22		false		              22   tripped off, water got into the -- the conduit with the				false

		4375						LN		168		23		false		              23   that -- that the electrical wiring was in.				false

		4376						LN		168		24		false		              24             And there's been some discussion about when				false

		4377						LN		168		25		false		              25   this wiring may have been damaged.  Why don't you tell				false

		4378						PG		169		0		false		page 169				false

		4379						LN		169		1		false		               1   me what -- what you view as the imprudent action here?				false

		4380						LN		169		2		false		               2        A.   Well, fundamentally, is it prudent to damage a				false

		4381						LN		169		3		false		               3   cable upon installation?  Here the record shows that the				false

		4382						LN		169		4		false		               4   cable, along with age, was a mitigating -- was one of				false

		4383						LN		169		5		false		               5   the causes of what went -- what happened -- excuse me.				false

		4384						LN		169		6		false		               6             And you know, we have heard a lot about, well,				false

		4385						LN		169		7		false		               7   the cable was in operation for 40 years, and while that				false

		4386						LN		169		8		false		               8   may be true, and we also heard about testing that was				false

		4387						LN		169		9		false		               9   done upon its initial installation.  What we didn't hear				false

		4388						LN		169		10		false		              10   anything about is how often this cable is tested.  Is it				false

		4389						LN		169		11		false		              11   tested on an annual basis?  Semiannual basis?  During				false

		4390						LN		169		12		false		              12   major overhaul, or was it set it and forget it?				false

		4391						LN		169		13		false		              13             I have -- I've heard no discussion about it.				false

		4392						LN		169		14		false		              14   So the idea that this installation wasn't degrading that				false

		4393						LN		169		15		false		              15   whole time, I am not sure there's any information on the				false

		4394						LN		169		16		false		              16   record to prove that that wasn't the case.				false

		4395						LN		169		17		false		              17        Q.   So focusing on the length of time here, in				false

		4396						LN		169		18		false		              18   your view, and I -- I think you say this in the report				false

		4397						LN		169		19		false		              19   or in your testimony, that it's not important how long				false

		4398						LN		169		20		false		              20   this -- this wiring was in place.  It's, how did it get				false

		4399						LN		169		21		false		              21   damaged?				false

		4400						LN		169		22		false		              22        A.   Right.				false

		4401						LN		169		23		false		              23        Q.   And I guess, I have -- if the company since				false

		4402						LN		169		24		false		              24   that time didn't know about the damage, I mean, if -- if				false

		4403						LN		169		25		false		              25   it was installed, and even the people who installed it				false
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		4405						LN		170		1		false		               1   didn't know about the damage, and in the 40 years since				false

		4406						LN		170		2		false		               2   there's been no indication that there is some damage				false

		4407						LN		170		3		false		               3   here, is it -- can, can -- do -- was it imprudent for				false

		4408						LN		170		4		false		               4   the company not to conduct an inspection?  Or is your				false

		4409						LN		170		5		false		               5   sole focus on the fact that it was damaged when it was				false

		4410						LN		170		6		false		               6   installed?				false

		4411						LN		170		7		false		               7        A.   Well, it's two elements.  It's -- it's the				false

		4412						LN		170		8		false		               8   damage upon installation, along with, I don't see any				false

		4413						LN		170		9		false		               9   record of any testing that occurred after the initial				false

		4414						LN		170		10		false		              10   installation.  So -- so there's, other than the fact				false

		4415						LN		170		11		false		              11   that it was operational, there's no way to determine the				false

		4416						LN		170		12		false		              12   condition of the cable if it's not being tested on a				false

		4417						LN		170		13		false		              13   regular basis.				false

		4418						LN		170		14		false		              14        Q.   And I guess, if the issue is, if -- if even				false

		4419						LN		170		15		false		              15   the people who installed this cable wouldn't have known				false

		4420						LN		170		16		false		              16   about the damage, and we're going to hold the company				false

		4421						LN		170		17		false		              17   responsible for that damage, would it be -- would it be				false

		4422						LN		170		18		false		              18   imprudent for the company -- wouldn't it be prudent then				false

		4423						LN		170		19		false		              19   for the company to -- to bear the costs of -- of				false

		4424						LN		170		20		false		              20   conducting inspections that would -- that would reveal				false

		4425						LN		170		21		false		              21   those types -- that type of damage?				false

		4426						LN		170		22		false		              22        A.   If you are asking me whether I think it's				false

		4427						LN		170		23		false		              23   prudent of a company to do testing on -- on this cable				false

		4428						LN		170		24		false		              24   on a regular basis to determine its condition, is that				false

		4429						LN		170		25		false		              25   what you are asking?				false
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		4431						LN		171		1		false		               1        Q.   Well, I guess what I am asking is the --				false

		4432						LN		171		2		false		               2   the -- the standard that we seem to be imposing on the				false

		4433						LN		171		3		false		               3   company here is that there was damage -- we're all				false

		4434						LN		171		4		false		               4   assuming there was damage upon installation here, but --				false

		4435						LN		171		5		false		               5   and maybe the company didn't know about it.				false

		4436						LN		171		6		false		               6             But if that's the case, I guess what I am				false

		4437						LN		171		7		false		               7   worried about is a world in which we say, under those				false

		4438						LN		171		8		false		               8   circumstances, the company bears the risk.  And then the				false

		4439						LN		171		9		false		               9   company responds by saying, okay, we're going to go				false

		4440						LN		171		10		false		              10   examine and inspect every last square inch, every last				false

		4441						LN		171		11		false		              11   cable of all of our plants, at enormous costs, because				false

		4442						LN		171		12		false		              12   we don't want to have to bear those costs going forward.				false

		4443						LN		171		13		false		              13   And the rate payers ultimately having to pay for that				false

		4444						LN		171		14		false		              14   type of a mitigation procedure.				false

		4445						LN		171		15		false		              15             And -- and so I guess what I am wondering is,				false

		4446						LN		171		16		false		              16   if we, you know, there's something of a ying and yang				false

		4447						LN		171		17		false		              17   here.  If we impose that sort of a standard on the				false

		4448						LN		171		18		false		              18   company, are -- are we -- shouldn't we worry about the				false

		4449						LN		171		19		false		              19   cost that the -- the rate payers will ultimately be				false

		4450						LN		171		20		false		              20   asked to bear in response to that?				false

		4451						LN		171		21		false		              21        A.   I can't answer your question directly, but				false

		4452						LN		171		22		false		              22   what -- what I can say is that it merits attention.  It				false

		4453						LN		171		23		false		              23   merits a review of good practices in the industry and a				false

		4454						LN		171		24		false		              24   change in practices to -- to align with those.  I don't				false

		4455						LN		171		25		false		              25   believe it is prudent to put a cable in the ground and				false
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		4457						LN		172		1		false		               1   never touch it again for 40 years.  I don't think -- I				false

		4458						LN		172		2		false		               2   don't think that's a good -- that's a good idea on any				false

		4459						LN		172		3		false		               3   level.				false

		4460						LN		172		4		false		               4             So now the question is, how often should it be				false

		4461						LN		172		5		false		               5   tested.  Again, without doing more research and				false

		4462						LN		172		6		false		               6   understanding the exact situation, I can't give you an				false

		4463						LN		172		7		false		               7   answer as to what is right.  But you are right, carte				false

		4464						LN		172		8		false		               8   blanche, no, you are not going to want everything tested				false

		4465						LN		172		9		false		               9   every year, no.  You're not trying to gold plate what's				false

		4466						LN		172		10		false		              10   going on by no means.				false

		4467						LN		172		11		false		              11             But we are trying to reach reasonable level.				false

		4468						LN		172		12		false		              12   Right now, no tests, installation with no testing, if				false

		4469						LN		172		13		false		              13   that's true, and I don't know that that's even the case,				false

		4470						LN		172		14		false		              14   but I -- I have seen nothing on the record that tells me				false

		4471						LN		172		15		false		              15   that this isn't.  So I am kind of left up in the air.				false

		4472						LN		172		16		false		              16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Dave --				false

		4473						LN		172		17		false		              17   Dave Johnson Unit 4.  I think this is the last one.				false

		4474						LN		172		18		false		              18   Excuse me.  And this is the --				false

		4475						LN		172		19		false		              19        A.   Excuse me.				false

		4476						LN		172		20		false		              20        Q.   -- the -- the issue where we had a planned				false

		4477						LN		172		21		false		              21   outage that ended up getting extended because the				false

		4478						LN		172		22		false		              22   company's contractor, MD&A, had installed the wrong part				false

		4479						LN		172		23		false		              23   in an impeller.				false

		4480						LN		172		24		false		              24             And I think we have talked about this enough,				false

		4481						LN		172		25		false		              25   but -- but I think it would be useful because we've done				false

		4482						PG		173		0		false		page 173				false

		4483						LN		173		1		false		               1   it with all the other ones to have you tell me what you				false

		4484						LN		173		2		false		               2   think the -- the imprudent action here was.				false

		4485						LN		173		3		false		               3        A.   Well, fundamentally, the company gave work to				false

		4486						LN		173		4		false		               4   a firm that wasn't staffed to do the work properly.  Not				false

		4487						LN		173		5		false		               5   only wasn't it staffed, but it didn't have the QC				false
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		4964						LN		191		14		false		              14   the outages started to manifest themselves, they could				false

		4965						LN		191		15		false		              15   have done the testing to determine the degree of the				false

		4966						LN		191		16		false		              16   problem after the first outage, after the second outage,				false

		4967						LN		191		17		false		              17   after the third outage.				false

		4968						LN		191		18		false		              18             But they waited until after the fourth outage				false

		4969						LN		191		19		false		              19   before they were motivated to do the testing required to				false

		4970						LN		191		20		false		              20   determine, to even determine the condition.  Prior to				false

		4971						LN		191		21		false		              21   2018, they had nothing viable to tell them what the				false

		4972						LN		191		22		false		              22   condition of that equipment was.  The reheater, I				false

		4973						LN		191		23		false		              23   believe.				false

		4974						LN		191		24		false		              24        Q.   Well, let's actually look back.  There was an				false

		4975						LN		191		25		false		              25   outage in 2018, right?				false

		4976						PG		192		0		false		page 192				false

		4977						LN		192		1		false		               1        A.   There was.				false

		4978						LN		192		2		false		               2        Q.   The one before that was in 2014, right?				false

		4979						LN		192		3		false		               3        A.   Yep.  Four -- every four years to my				false

		4980						LN		192		4		false		               4   understanding.				false

		4981						LN		192		5		false		               5        Q.   Which means at that outage, they had only had				false

		4982						LN		192		6		false		               6   two weld failures, right?				false

		4983						LN		192		7		false		               7        A.   Yes.				false

		4984						LN		192		8		false		               8        Q.   And so at the last outage, you know, going				false

		4985						LN		192		9		false		               9   back before this one, they had only had two times in				false

		4986						LN		192		10		false		              10   their history where they had had a problem with this; is				false

		4987						LN		192		11		false		              11   that right?				false

		4988						LN		192		12		false		              12        A.   Yes.  But again, it's a problem.  It's --				false

		4989						LN		192		13		false		              13   it's -- you don't have to wait for a problem to				false

		4990						LN		192		14		false		              14   materialize before you address the concern, right?				false

		4991						LN		192		15		false		              15   That's -- that's what -- that's what we are talking				false

		4992						LN		192		16		false		              16   about here.  It's a matter of being prudent about the --				false

		4993						LN		192		17		false		              17   the investigation of the problem before it manifests				false

		4994						LN		192		18		false		              18   itself.				false

		4995						LN		192		19		false		              19             We heard about hockey curves a little while				false

		4996						LN		192		20		false		              20   ago.  This is the type of problem that can overnight				false

		4997						LN		192		21		false		              21   become a major concern, in rapid order, potentially.				false

		4998						LN		192		22		false		              22   And this is not a secret.  This is not my testimony.				false

		4999						LN		192		23		false		              23   This is industry information, well known industry				false

		5000						LN		192		24		false		              24   information.				false

		5001						LN		192		25		false		              25             So all I am suggesting is, they could have				false

		5002						PG		193		0		false		page 193				false

		5003						LN		193		1		false		               1   determined the extent of the problem sooner, and if they				false

		5004						LN		193		2		false		               2   had, potentially, they could have scheduled a				false

		5005						LN		193		3		false		               3   replacement for 2018.  Assuming -- a lot of assuming				false

		5006						LN		193		4		false		               4   going on here, assuming that the condition that was				false

		5007						LN		193		5		false		               5   found from their testing indicated it warranted that				false

		5008						LN		193		6		false		               6   kind of replacement.				false

		5009						LN		193		7		false		               7             Apparently 2018 testing basically said you				false

		5010						LN		193		8		false		               8   ought to do this because I understand it's scheduled for				false

		5011						LN		193		9		false		               9   replacement in 2022.				false

		5012						LN		193		10		false		              10        Q.   Would you agree with me, before we move on				false

		5013						LN		193		11		false		              11   from this point, that even if the company had done that				false

		5014						LN		193		12		false		              12   and had scheduled a 20 -- this to be part of the 2018				false

		5015						LN		193		13		false		              13   outage, none of that would have prevented the 2017				false

		5016						LN		193		14		false		              14   outage that occurred?				false

		5017						LN		193		15		false		              15        A.   That's correct.				false

		5018						LN		193		16		false		              16        Q.   All right.  I apologize for the delay.  I am				false

		5019						LN		193		17		false		              17   trying to figure out which of these paths you have been				false

		5020						LN		193		18		false		              18   drug down two or three times, or the commission has four				false

		5021						LN		193		19		false		              19   or five times already.  Let's -- let's talk for a minute				false

		5022						LN		193		20		false		              20   about Jim Bridger Unit 3, and this, just so we're clear,				false

		5023						LN		193		21		false		              21   is the -- the underground wire that gets flooded?				false

		5024						LN		193		22		false		              22        A.   Yeah, the heat.  I'm sorry.  Okay, the				false

		5025						LN		193		23		false		              23   underground wire.				false

		5026						LN		193		24		false		              24        Q.   The conduit, that, you know, the pull that				false

		5027						LN		193		25		false		              25   everybody's presuming something gets damaged in when				false

		5028						PG		194		0		false		page 194				false

		5029						LN		194		1		false		               1   it's getting pulled and then it floods that way?				false

		5030						LN		194		2		false		               2        A.   Yes.				false

		5031						LN		194		3		false		               3        Q.   In questioning from Mr. Russell, you indicated				false

		5032						LN		194		4		false		               4   that, okay, if I understood correctly, you conceded fair				false

		5033						LN		194		5		false		               5   enough, I agree there's no visible way that this				false

		5034						LN		194		6		false		               6   company, or a similar utility, would have known that				false

		5035						LN		194		7		false		               7   conduit got damaged when it was -- or cable got damaged				false

		5036						LN		194		8		false		               8   when it was being pulled through the conduit.  So your				false

		5037						LN		194		9		false		               9   suggestion is there ought to be regular tests.				false

		5038						LN		194		10		false		              10             I take it just like the -- the cost question				false

		5039						LN		194		11		false		              11   that we covered at the beginning, you have not put any				false

		5040						LN		194		12		false		              12   kind of pen to paper to consider how many cables and how				false

		5041						LN		194		13		false		              13   many conduits this company has, and how much time or				false

		5042						LN		194		14		false		              14   money it would take to run around and test every piece				false

		5043						LN		194		15		false		              15   of electrical cable that goes through a conduit?				false

		5044						LN		194		16		false		              16        A.   I haven't done that analysis, no.				false

		5045						LN		194		17		false		              17        Q.   Are you able to cite for us today any industry				false

		5046						LN		194		18		false		              18   standard that says, utilities should go and test their				false

		5047						LN		194		19		false		              19   electric cables, even though they are operational, every				false

		5048						LN		194		20		false		              20   X period of time, just in case something's going on that				false

		5049						LN		194		21		false		              21   we can't see?				false

		5050						LN		194		22		false		              22        A.   I can't point to anything specific, no.				false

		5051						LN		194		23		false		              23        Q.   Let's move to the -- the last outage, which is				false

		5052						LN		194		24		false		              24   the Dave Johnson Unit 4, March 17th.  So we're all on				false

		5053						LN		194		25		false		              25   it, this is the MD&A wrong impeller gets sent back.				false

		5054						PG		195		0		false		page 195				false

		5055						LN		195		1		false		               1   Okay.  And I don't think, again, the facts are in				false

		5056						LN		195		2		false		               2   dispute, wrong impeller gets sent back.				false

		5057						LN		195		3		false		               3             Would you agree with me that the company				false

		5058						LN		195		4		false		               4   was -- well, I guess, I may have to ask you whether you				false

		5059						LN		195		5		false		               5   are aware of any evidence that would contradict this,				false

		5060						LN		195		6		false		               6   because I don't know what's been provided to you, so I				false

		5061						LN		195		7		false		               7   will ask and then you can fill in the blanks.				false

		5062						LN		195		8		false		               8             Are you aware of any evidence that would				false

		5063						LN		195		9		false		               9   indicate that this company, Rocky Mountain Power, failed				false

		5064						LN		195		10		false		              10   to administer the contract that it had with MD&A				false

		5065						LN		195		11		false		              11   properly?				false

		5066						LN		195		12		false		              12        A.   I, I have no information either way.				false

		5067						LN		195		13		false		              13        Q.   Are you aware of any information that				false

		5068						LN		195		14		false		              14   indicates that it failed to monitor the activities of				false

		5069						LN		195		15		false		              15   its contractor?				false

		5070						LN		195		16		false		              16        A.   Again, no information.				false

		5071						LN		195		17		false		              17        Q.   Okay.  Are you -- and you provide no evidence				false

		5072						LN		195		18		false		              18   that they failed to provide oversight there at the job				false

		5073						LN		195		19		false		              19   site where the contractor was performing the work,				false

		5074						LN		195		20		false		              20   right?				false

		5075						LN		195		21		false		              21        A.   I -- I have no evidence to that effect, no.				false

		5076						LN		195		22		false		              22        Q.   In fact, when the piece of equipment actually				false

		5077						LN		195		23		false		              23   shows up at the plant is when there is an inspection and				false

		5078						LN		195		24		false		              24   it's discovered, we got the wrong piece of equipment,				false

		5079						LN		195		25		false		              25   right?				false

		5080						PG		196		0		false		page 196				false

		5081						LN		196		1		false		               1        A.   Right.  Yes, correct.				false

		5082						LN		196		2		false		               2        Q.   And so the only way that the power company				false

		5083						LN		196		3		false		               3   could have prevented this is literally if it had been				false

		5084						LN		196		4		false		               4   back at MDA's factory watching the guy put which				false

		5085						LN		196		5		false		               5   impeller in which box that he mailed out; is that right?				false

		5086						LN		196		6		false		               6        A.   Yes, to a degree that's correct.  The -- the				false

		5087						LN		196		7		false		               7   notion, just -- just to be clear, the notion of the				false

		5088						LN		196		8		false		               8   utility going to a factory site to check on the status				false

		5089						LN		196		9		false		               9   of its work is not foreign.  That -- that is done all				false

		5090						LN		196		10		false		              10   the time.				false

		5091						LN		196		11		false		              11             Now, do I know whether the company did that or				false

		5092						LN		196		12		false		              12   not?  I don't.  I don't know either way.  But I am				false

		5093						LN		196		13		false		              13   speculating that if they had, it would have seen				false

		5094						LN		196		14		false		              14   problems.				false

		5095						LN		196		15		false		              15        Q.   But if I represent to you that in fact -- but				false

		5096						LN		196		16		false		              16   you are correct, the company does and did, you have no				false

		5097						LN		196		17		false		              17   reason to dispute that, right?				false

		5098						LN		196		18		false		              18        A.   (Witness shakes head.)				false

		5099						LN		196		19		false		              19        Q.   And so you, again, cannot point to any				false

		5100						LN		196		20		false		              20   specific process or procedure that Rocky Mountain Power				false

		5101						LN		196		21		false		              21   did that did not meet industry standard?				false

		5102						LN		196		22		false		              22        A.   I can't point to anything specific there, no.				false

		5103						LN		196		23		false		              23        Q.   The next topic that you cover in your report				false

		5104						LN		196		24		false		              24   that we have discussed here is the third-party				false

		5105						LN		196		25		false		              25   operators, and you -- again, I am going to paraphrase,				false

		5106						PG		197		0		false		page 197				false

		5107						LN		197		1		false		               1   but words to the effect that the participation agreement				false

		5108						LN		197		2		false		               2   that the company has entered into with Tri-State is				false

		5109						LN		197		3		false		               3   deficient because the customers are left kind of at risk				false

		5110						LN		197		4		false		               4   because the company is unable to enforce certain things				false

		5111						LN		197		5		false		               5   against Tri-State.				false

		5112						LN		197		6		false		               6             Again, I know you didn't state those exacts				false

		5113						LN		197		7		false		               7   words, but I am just trying to make that point.  Is that				false

		5114						LN		197		8		false		               8   a general paraphrase?				false

		5115						LN		197		9		false		               9        A.   The general notion that the customer is on the				false

		5116						LN		197		10		false		              10   hook for everything that happens, that goes wrong from a				false

		5117						LN		197		11		false		              11   replacement cost power perspective.				false

		5118						LN		197		12		false		              12        Q.   And you didn't disagree when asked by others				false

		5119						LN		197		13		false		              13   about whether shifting all of the risk to an operator				false

		5120						LN		197		14		false		              14   would in fact increase the amount that an operator would				false

		5121						LN		197		15		false		              15   want to charge for its services, right?				false

		5122						LN		197		16		false		              16        A.   Yes.  Potentially, yes.				false

		5123						LN		197		17		false		              17        Q.   And are you aware of the fact that the				false

		5124						LN		197		18		false		              18   specific participation agreement that you are referring				false

		5125						LN		197		19		false		              19   to, the Tri-State agreement, was subject to review by				false

		5126						LN		197		20		false		              20   your client, the DPU, and also later by this commission?				false

		5127						LN		197		21		false		              21        A.   I am not aware of that.				false

		5128						LN		197		22		false		              22        Q.   Can I take a one minute just to go through and				false

		5129						LN		197		23		false		              23   see what I have skipped?  I have been kind of bouncing				false

		5130						LN		197		24		false		              24   around here.  Hold on a minute.				false

		5131						LN		197		25		false		              25             That's it for now.  That's all the questions.				false

		5132						PG		198		0		false		page 198				false

		5133						LN		198		1		false		               1   Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.				false

		5134						LN		198		2		false		               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any				false

		5135						LN		198		3		false		               3   redirect, Mr. Jetter?				false

		5136						LN		198		4		false		               4             MR. JETTER:  I'll try to keep this very brief.				false

		5137						LN		198		5		false		               5   A little bit of redirect.				false

		5138						LN		198		6		false		               6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		5139						LN		198		7		false		               7   BY MR. JETTER:				false

		5140						LN		198		8		false		               8        Q.   I'd like to just reference back to the missing				false

		5141						LN		198		9		false		               9   plug.  Starting out my question, I understand that this				false

		5142						LN		198		10		false		              10   is a -- I am trying to make this not a legal question.				false

		5143						LN		198		11		false		              11             Was your understanding of your task or your --				false

		5144						LN		198		12		false		              12   your -- your job as -- as it was outlined by the				false

		5145						LN		198		13		false		              13   Division of Public Utilities, to bear the burden of				false

		5146						LN		198		14		false		              14   proof that something was imprudent, or -- or was it				false

		5147						LN		198		15		false		              15   asked of you to demonstrate that the company had failed				false

		5148						LN		198		16		false		              16   to meet a burden of proof that it has?				false

		5149						LN		198		17		false		              17        A.   It was my understanding that it wasn't my				false

		5150						LN		198		18		false		              18   charge to prove -- prove the burden of proof.  The				false

		5151						LN		198		19		false		              19   burden of proof rests with the company.				false

		5152						LN		198		20		false		              20        Q.   Thank you.				false

		5153						LN		198		21		false		              21        A.   That's my understanding.				false

		5154						LN		198		22		false		              22        Q.   And additionally, is it your understanding				false

		5155						LN		198		23		false		              23   that GE, who installed the plugs, admitted fault?				false

		5156						LN		198		24		false		              24        A.   Yes.				false

		5157						LN		198		25		false		              25        Q.   And do you think that they would have done				false

		5158						PG		199		0		false		page 199				false

		5159						LN		199		1		false		               1   that because they are nice people?				false

		5160						LN		199		2		false		               2             MR. MOSCON:  Calls for speculation of course.				false

		5161						LN		199		3		false		               3        A.   No, not likely.				false

		5162						LN		199		4		false		               4        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Thank you.  Sort of the same				false

		5163						LN		199		5		false		               5   line of questions regarding the impeller.  Was it your				false

		5164						LN		199		6		false		               6   task, were you tasked by the division to seek out the				false

		5165						LN		199		7		false		               7   reason that the impeller showed up, which was an				false

		5166						LN		199		8		false		               8   incorrect impeller?				false

		5167						LN		199		9		false		               9        A.   No.				false

		5168						LN		199		10		false		              10        Q.   And is it -- is it your understanding from the				false

		5169						LN		199		11		false		              11   data responses from the company that it was visually the				false

		5170						LN		199		12		false		              12   incorrect part?				false

		5171						LN		199		13		false		              13        A.   It was visually identified as the incorrect				false

		5172						LN		199		14		false		              14   part once it got to the plant.				false

		5173						LN		199		15		false		              15             MR. JETTER:  Okay.  I don't think I have -- I				false

		5174						LN		199		16		false		              16   don't have any further questions.				false

		5175						LN		199		17		false		              17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  And maybe it's too				false

		5176						LN		199		18		false		              18   late, but I am going to sustain the objection to the				false

		5177						LN		199		19		false		              19   question about GE's motive.				false

		5178						LN		199		20		false		              20             MR. MOSCON:  Thanks.				false

		5179						LN		199		21		false		              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  So that sustaining is on the				false

		5180						LN		199		22		false		              22   record.  You have nothing further?				false

		5181						LN		199		23		false		              23             MR. JETTER:  Nothing.				false

		5182						LN		199		24		false		              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any -- any recross,				false

		5183						LN		199		25		false		              25   Mr. Russell or Mr. Moscon?				false

		5184						PG		200		0		false		page 200				false

		5185						LN		200		1		false		               1             MR. MOSCON:  No, thank you.				false

		5186						LN		200		2		false		               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't we take a 10 minute				false

		5187						LN		200		3		false		               3   break before commissioner questions for Mr. DiDomenico.				false

		5188						LN		200		4		false		               4   So we'll come back at five minutes until four.				false

		5189						LN		200		5		false		               5             Yeah.  Well, yeah, we probably won't take				false

		5190						LN		200		6		false		               6   another break before we have our conversation about				false

		5191						LN		200		7		false		               7   legal standards that we discussed earlier this morning,				false

		5192						LN		200		8		false		               8   so we'll be in recess for 10 minutes.				false

		5193						LN		200		9		false		               9             (Recess from 3:45 p.m. to 3:55 p.m.)				false

		5194						LN		200		10		false		              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the				false

		5195						LN		200		11		false		              11   record.  I think we are finished with all direct and				false

		5196						LN		200		12		false		              12   cross and redirect for Mr. DiDomenico, and we're ready				false

		5197						LN		200		13		false		              13   for commissioner questions.  If I am mistaken about				false

		5198						LN		200		14		false		              14   that, somebody let me know.  Okay.  Commissioner Clark,				false

		5199						LN		200		15		false		              15   do you have any questions for him?				false

		5200						LN		200		16		false		              16             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I do have a question.				false

		5201						LN		200		17		false		              17                          EXAMINATION				false

		5202						LN		200		18		false		              18   BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:				false
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               1   February 5, 2019                             10:00 a.m.



               2                     P R O C E E D I N G S



               3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Good morning.  We are



               4   here for Public Service Commission hearing in Docket



               5   18-35-1, Application of Rocky Mountain Power to Increase



               6   the Deferred Rate through the Energy Balancing Account



               7   Mechanism.  We have a few preliminary matters to



               8   discuss, but why don't we start with appearances from



               9   Rocky Mountain Power.



              10             MR. MOSCON:  Matt Moscon and Yvonne Hogle for



              11   Rocky Mountain Power.



              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.



              13             MR. JETTER:  Good morning.  I am Justin Jetter



              14   with the Utah Attorney General's Office, and I am



              15   representing Utah Division of Public Utilities.  With me



              16   at counsel table are division witness David Thompson and



              17   division outside consultant witness, Phillip DiDomenico.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.



              19             MR. RUSSELL:  And Phillip Russell on behalf of



              20   the Utah Association of Energy Users.



              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  No one



              22   else in the room participating today?  Okay.  I think



              23   the next matter to go to is, on Friday afternoon Rocky



              24   Mountain Power filed a motion requesting leave for



              25   Mr. Meredith, Mr. Robert M. Meredith, to participate
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               1   telephonically.  Does any party have anything to add to



               2   that motion?  Any of the parties present here today?



               3   Okay.  The motion is granted.  Thank you.



               4             Just a couple more preliminary issues.  We do



               5   have a lot of material that has been submitted in



               6   confidential format.  Obviously, the entire Daymark



               7   audit is confidential, but there are some materials from



               8   the Daymark testimony relating to the seven outages at



               9   issue here today that is -- that is in yellow.



              10             First, I think the first thing I ought to do



              11   is ask Rocky Mountain Power if you are aware of any



              12   reason any of the material that's in yellow in their



              13   testimony, or in, I think, Mr. Ralston -- Mr. Ralston



              14   also has a little bit of material in yellow.  Is there



              15   any reason any of that material is no longer



              16   confidential, or is it still -- do we still need to



              17   treat it that way in any of our discussions today?



              18             MS. HOGLE:  I am going to say just to be



              19   cautious, we have, of course, over the time that we have



              20   been preparing for the hearing, we have discussed some



              21   of the items in the testimony.  And -- and I would just



              22   ask Dana if he believes that there is anything during



              23   the cross-examination or direct examination that he



              24   thinks that's confidential, if he let us know.



              25             And of course, we are aware of the materials
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               1   that we have submitted as confidential, but it appears



               2   to me that hopefully we -- we will be cautious and not



               3   get into exact confidential material while also making



               4   our case.



               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, if -- if there's



               6   ever a need to make a motion to close it, we'll



               7   entertain a motion and deal with it.  We will also



               8   endeavor as we ask questions of the witnesses to -- to



               9   avoid that, but if any party notices one of us starting



              10   to ask a question that you think we are not being as



              11   careful as we should, please feel free to interrupt us



              12   and let us know if we need to deal with something, but



              13   we will try not to.



              14             I think just two more preliminary issues I was



              15   going to ask about.  One is just informative just so you



              16   all know.  Probably about 20 minutes before we will



              17   break for lunch today, Commissioner Clark will be



              18   stepping out to attend a senate confirmation vote, and



              19   then he should be able to return for anything else.  So



              20   he's not losing interest in the hearing if you see him



              21   leave a few minutes before our break, and then we can



              22   enjoy his participation for six more years.



              23             And the last preliminary matter is, I wanted



              24   to invite the attorneys to have a conversation on the --



              25   on -- on the legal standards, either at the beginning of
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               1   the hearing or at the end, or if you tell me you would



               2   rather not have this conversation as -- as part of the



               3   hearing, we'll just deal with it in testimony, we're --



               4   we can come to our own legal conclusions too.  But we



               5   would invite any input that -- that the attorneys would



               6   like to give.



               7             Obviously, we -- we could probably all in the



               8   room recite 54-44 on the prudent standard in our sleep,



               9   but this hearing presents some unique issues with



              10   respect to that standard, particularly the -- the



              11   relevance to a prudent evaluation of subsequent



              12   corrective action or the standards for evaluating



              13   prudence where there is a plant operator or co-owner



              14   involved or a contractor relationship and what -- what



              15   the legal standards are.



              16             So if the attorneys would like to have a



              17   conversation at some point, we're happy to have that



              18   conversation now or circle back at the end of the



              19   hearing if anyone -- if anyone wants to provide thoughts



              20   that would give us any guidance as we -- as we



              21   deliberate on these issues.



              22             MR. MOSCON:  I -- I would suggest, if it



              23   please the commission, that at the end would be



              24   appropriate.  I think it is something that's worth



              25   addressing, but I think after the information has been
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               1   received, the commission's probably going to be in the



               2   best circumstance to ask back to the attorneys the



               3   questions about it.  So on this point, what does that



               4   mean or how does this play out?



               5             So I just suggest at the end that you invite



               6   interested counsel to give their input on what the legal



               7   standard for any topic is.  Then you can question back.



               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.



               9   Mr. Jetter?



              10             MR. JETTER:  I -- I think that's fine.  I



              11   am -- I'm happy to do it at any point.  So whatever --



              12   whatever the commission, works best for you guys.  I



              13   think that's really the core of what we are here today



              14   for.  I am not sure there's a lot of facts at issue, so



              15   I think it's somewhat of a matter for first impression



              16   for this commission and an important issue certainly to



              17   us, so we're happy to address it whenever you find it



              18   most convenient.



              19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.



              20   Mr. Russell?



              21             MR. RUSSELL:  I agree both with Mr. Jetter and



              22   Mr. Moscon, and I think maybe we can circle back at the



              23   end.  I -- I did, because this is an issue, as



              24   Mr. Jetter said, of first impression, I did do some



              25   research into this.  And I found some cases that are not
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               1   from this jurisdiction I think may be useful to the



               2   commission, that the standards and the facts therein



               3   don't really lend themselves to cross-examination.



               4             So I -- I anticipate that my suggestion will



               5   be that we submit briefs, even -- even if it's just,



               6   here are some cases.  Look at them for yourselves.



               7   Decide what you think they mean and how they apply here.



               8   But I -- I agree, I think we can circle back at the end



               9   to -- to decide exactly how we want to convey that



              10   information to the commission.



              11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we will



              12   proceed that way then, and we will come to the history



              13   at the end.  I will just state for something for parties



              14   to think about with respect to briefs, I am presuming



              15   there is a need to have an order in this docket in time



              16   to inform the next EBA filing.



              17             And so I'm -- I'm assuming a drop-dead date to



              18   get an order out that would give time to inform the next



              19   EBA would be, you know, around the end of February or



              20   the first of March.  So that may be something to think



              21   about if -- if we're going to be talking about briefs,



              22   or if we're just going to be having a conversation at



              23   the end of hearing.



              24             And with that, we'll move forward and look



              25   forward to ruling on objections to witnesses talking
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               1   about legal issues in the meantime.  Any other



               2   preliminary matters before we -- before we go to the



               3   first witness?  Okay.  Mr. Moscon or Ms. Hogle.



               4             MR. MOSCON:  Yes, thank you.  Rocky Mountain



               5   Power calls as its first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.



               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I think your microphone



               7   might not be picking you up for the streaming.



               8             THE REPORTER:  Yeah, it's literally -- it's



               9   too far away.



              10             MR. MOSCON:  Rocky Mountain Power calls as its



              11   first witness Mr. Michael Wilding.



              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Wilding.



              13   Do you swear to tell the truth?



              14             THE WITNESS:  Yes.



              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.



              16                      MICHAEL G. WILDING,



              17   was called as a witness, and having been first duly



              18   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:



              19                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



              20   BY MR. MOSCON:



              21        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Wilding.  Would you please



              22   state your name for the record?



              23        A.   Yes.  My name is Michael G. Wilding.



              24        Q.   Would you please give a very brief description



              25   of your -- the position you hold at the company and your
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               1   background leading up to that position?



               2        A.   Yes.  I am the director of net power costs and



               3   regulatory policy for PacifiCorp.



               4             MR. RUSSELL:  You got to push that green



               5   button.  There we go.



               6        A.   Do I need to start over?  I am the director of



               7   net power costs and regulatory policy for Pacific Power.



               8   Under my purview is the net power cost filings, so I



               9   oversee the EBA.  And I have been with the company for



              10   approximately five years, for the entire time in the net



              11   power cost group.



              12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Okay.  Have you previously



              13   testified here before this commission?



              14        A.   Yes.



              15        Q.   In this proceeding, did you cause prefiled



              16   testimony -- or testimony to be recorded and filed?



              17        A.   Yes.



              18        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions set forth



              19   in the prefiled testimony here in person today, would



              20   your answers be the same?



              21        A.   Yes, they would.



              22        Q.   Are there any corrections that you need to



              23   make to that prefiled testimony?



              24        A.   No.



              25        Q.   Okay.
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               1             MR. MOSCON:  Based on that, commission, first



               2   I suppose, unless the commission has a preference of



               3   sequence, I would move for the admission of



               4   Mr. Wilding's prefiled testimony, together with any



               5   exhibits thereto into the record.



               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects



               7   to that, please indicate to me.



               8             MR. JETTER:  No objection from the division.



               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  That motion is



              10   granted.



              11             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



              12        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Wilding, have you been



              13   able to prepare a summary of your prefiled testimony?



              14        A.   Yes.



              15        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission



              16   and the parties?



              17        A.   Yes.  Good morning, commissioners.  The



              18   company filed its annual energy balancing account or EBA



              19   application on March 15th, 2018, for the deferral period



              20   of January through December of 2017.



              21             The company requested recovery of $2.8



              22   million, which consisted of the following components, a



              23   $4.4 million credit for the deferral of the variances



              24   between actual net power costs and actual wheeling



              25   revenues versus base net power cost and base wheeling
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               1   revenues, a $2.9 million credit related to the Deer



               2   Creek Mine retiring medical obligation savings, a $2.8



               3   million credit related to the settlement of the 2017



               4   EBA, a $9.1 million in costs for the Utah allocated



               5   amortization expense associated with the closure of the



               6   Deer Creek Mine, $4 million in costs related to an



               7   adjustment for sales made to special contract customer,



               8   and finally, a .2 million dollar credit related to



               9   various smaller items, including interest.



              10             The Division of the -- of Public Utilities



              11   issued its report on the EBA and proposed a reduction to



              12   the company's EBA application of approximately $910,000,



              13   consisting of approximately $885,000 for replacement



              14   power costs associated with seven plant outages and



              15   $25,000 for an update to an allocation factor used in



              16   the filing.  The DPU also proposed a change to the



              17   company's energy risk management policy.



              18             The Office of Consumer Services and the Utah



              19   Association of Energy Users did not file testimony in



              20   this proceeding.



              21             In my testimony responding to the DPU's EBA



              22   report, the company accepted the update to the



              23   allocation factor and also agreed to change and update



              24   our risk management policy as proposed by the DPU in



              25   their reports.  The company disagrees with the proposed
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               1   adjustments related to the prudency of the seven plant



               2   outages, and company wit -- witness, Mr. Dana Ralston,



               3   will address this issue.



               4             Therefore, I -- I respectfully request that



               5   the commission approve the EBA as modified in my



               6   response testimony.  Thank you.



               7             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Wilding.  As the



               8   commission notes, there was not any testimony filed that



               9   called into question any of the testimony of



              10   Mr. Wilding.  But, of course, he is here available for



              11   any questions that the commission may have, or any



              12   clarifying questions by the parties.



              13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you



              14   have any questions for Mr. Wilding?



              15             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions.  Thank you.



              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?



              17             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions.  Thank you, Chair.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?



              19             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you



              20   very much.



              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't either.  Thank



              22   you for your testimony.



              23             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



              24             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  With the permission



              25   of the commission, the second witness that Rocky
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               1   Mountain Power would call is Mr. Robert Meredith who the



               2   commission earlier this morning granted leave to appear



               3   by telephone.  And so Mr. Meredith, are you able to hear



               4   us where you are now?



               5             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I am able to hear you.



               6             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  So --



               7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't I swear him in?



               8             MR. MOSCON:  Go ahead.  Yes, thank you.



               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Meredith, do you swear to



              10   tell the truth?



              11             THE WITNESS:  I do.



              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.



              13                      ROBERT M. MEREDITH,



              14   was called as a witness, and having been first duly



              15   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:



              16                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



              17   BY MR. MOSCON:



              18        Q.   Mr. Meredith, would you please state your name



              19   for the record?



              20        A.   Robert M. Meredith.



              21        Q.   And would you please tell the commission what



              22   your current job title is and any relevant experience



              23   you had leading up to that position?



              24        A.   Sure.  I am the manager of pricing and cost of



              25   service in Rocky Mountain Power's regulation department.
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               1   Worked for the company for about 14 years, or a little



               2   over 14 years now.  I have worked in customer services



               3   and the integrated resource planning department and in



               4   regulation for all that time at various analytical



               5   roles.



               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Meredith, did you cause



               7   prefiled testimony to be prepared in this matter?



               8        A.   Yes, I did.



               9        Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions that



              10   were written out, would your answers here live today be



              11   the same as the ones that are recorded in that prefiled



              12   testimony?



              13        A.   Yes, it would.



              14        Q.   Do you have any changes to that testimony that



              15   would need to be made?



              16        A.   No.



              17             MR. MOSCON:  Again, Mr. Chairman, I would move



              18   for the admission of Mr. Meredith's prefiled testimony,



              19   together with any exhibits as part of the record.



              20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  If any party objects to that



              21   motion, indicate to me.  I am not seeing any objection



              22   so it's granted.



              23             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



              24        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Meredith, have you had



              25   the opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled



                                                                        16

�













               1   testimony?



               2        A.   Yes.



               3        Q.   Would you please share that for the commission



               4   and the parties?



               5        A.   Sure.  Good morning, Chair LeVar, Commissioner



               6   White and Commissioner Clark.  In my direct testimony, I



               7   presented the company's proposed rate spread and prices



               8   for the 2018 energy balancing account.  With interim



               9   rates effective May 1, 2018, recovery of the 2.8



              10   deferral calculated by company witness, Mr. Michael G.



              11   Wilding has resulted in an increase to customers of 0.1



              12   percent.



              13             The allocation and development of rates for



              14   the 2018 energy balancing account has been prepared in a



              15   manner consistent with prior energy balancing account



              16   balances, and they are not contested by any party in



              17   this proceeding.  That concludes my summary statement.



              18             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Meredith.



              19   Mr. Chairman, similarly, Mr. Meredith didn't have any



              20   testimony contradicted, but he is available for any



              21   clarifying questions of the commission or the parties.



              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Jetter, do you



              23   have any questions?



              24             MR. JETTER:  I have no questions, thank you.



              25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Mr. Russell?
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               1             MR. RUSSELL:  No questions, thank you.



               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?



               3             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions, thank you.



               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner White?



               5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions, thank you.



               6             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,



               7   Mr. Meredith.  We appreciate your testimony today.



               8             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  No problem.



               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't know if your



              10   intention is to keep him on the phone?  It's up to you,



              11   Mr. Meredith, if you want to keep listening for the



              12   sheer fun of it or should we close the line?



              13             THE WITNESS:  You can close the line.  That's



              14   fine.



              15             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



              16             THE WITNESS:  Okay, thanks.



              17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I am shocked.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  He is just going to listen on



              19   YouTube for the rest.



              20             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  Now, I know we have



              21   already been through two witnesses, so unless the



              22   commission wants to take a break, we'll keep plowing



              23   forward.



              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Let's keep going.



              25             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.  If it please the
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               1   commission, our final witness that Rocky Mountain Power



               2   would call, who is with us here today, is Mr. Dana



               3   Ralston.  So we would ask that Mr. Ralston to take the



               4   stand.



               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good morning, Mr. Ralston.



               6   Do you swear to tell the truth?



               7             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.



               8                     DANA MICHAEL RALSTON,



               9   was called as a witness, and having been first duly



              10   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:



              11                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



              12   BY MR. MOSCON:



              13        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ralston.  Would you please



              14   state your full name and your current business position



              15   for the commission?



              16        A.   My name is Dana Michael Ralston.  I am the



              17   senior vice president of thermal generation and mining



              18   for Rocky Mountain Power.  I have responsibility for all



              19   the thermal assets, which are the coal plants and the



              20   gas plants and the geothermal plants within Rocky



              21   Mountain Power, and the fuel supply and a few mining



              22   activities for the company.



              23             I have a degree in electrical engineering and



              24   been in -- working in and around the power plant sector



              25   for over 37 years, as a plant manager, maintenance
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               1   manager, electrical supervisor, electrical engineer.



               2        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Ralston, did you have opportunity



               3   to prepare prefiled testimony to be filed in this?



               4        A.   Yes, I did.



               5        Q.   In your testimony, and -- and we'll -- we'll



               6   get to that momentarily, you describe your experience a



               7   little bit.  Can you provide -- let me back up and ask



               8   you this.  Have you provided testimony to this



               9   commission before today?



              10        A.   In the written form, yes.



              11        Q.   Have you ever presented live testimony to



              12   these commissioners?



              13        A.   No, not in the state of Utah.



              14        Q.   So although I wouldn't typically do this, just



              15   because this is your first time before these



              16   commissioners, could you please give us a little bit



              17   more color, describing your working background and



              18   specifically to the extent it's germane to what we are



              19   doing here today, give us some indication of your work



              20   that you have done, you know, facilitating plant



              21   overhauls, maintenances, shutdowns, startup, et cetera.



              22        A.   Okay.  Until I took this position in 2010, I



              23   was stationed at a plant, and I worked in the overhaul



              24   process.  I coordinated maintenance activities.  I



              25   coordinated electrical maintenance activities.  I was an
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               1   electrical engineer in charge of design.  I was in



               2   charge of overall plant operations as the plant manager.



               3        Q.   Okay.  So is it fair to say that you are very



               4   familiar with all the topics that are at issue today?



               5        A.   That would be correct.



               6        Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Ralston, could you describe for



               7   the commission the various pieces of prefiled testimony



               8   that you submitted in this matter?



               9        A.   I respond -- or I supplied response testimony



              10   to the Daymark testimony and then supplied surrebuttal



              11   testimony to their rebuttal testimony.



              12        Q.   Do you have any changes that would need to be



              13   made to either piece of testimony?



              14        A.   Yes.  On my surrebuttal testimony, I have a



              15   few changes.



              16        Q.   Okay.  If you would wait just a minute to give



              17   the parties and the commission an opportunity to turn to



              18   that in your surrebuttal.  What page was your first



              19   change or correction be made on?



              20        A.   On page 5, line 93, the word "tight" should be



              21   right.



              22        Q.   Okay.



              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I am sorry.  You are on line



              24   93 of the surrebuttal?



              25             MR. MOSCON:  95.
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               1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, 95.



               2             THE WITNESS:  Excuse me, 95.  Did I say 93?  I



               3   apologize.



               4        Q.   (By Mr. Mascon)  Okay.  Any other corrections?



               5        A.   Page 6, line 135, the word weld near the end



               6   of the line should be deleted.  And page -- or at line



               7   136, the sentence that says, "tubing ends being



               8   conducted were nonidentical metal" should be deleted.



               9        Q.   Any other changes or corrections?



              10        A.   And finally on page 10, line 220, where it



              11   says "ND and A know -- knowingly accepted work in its --



              12   in its capacity," should say -- read, "Accept work in



              13   excess of its capacity."  So "excess of" should be



              14   added.



              15        Q.   Okay.  Any other corrections or modifications



              16   that you believe should be made to your prefiled



              17   testimony?



              18        A.   No.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And similarly then, if I were to ask



              20   you all of the questions in both pieces of your



              21   testimony here today, would your answers be consistent



              22   with the answers in your prefiled testimony, including



              23   the corrections that you have just noted for us?



              24        A.   That's correct.



              25             MR. MOSCON:  Okay.  With that, Mr. Chairman, I
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               1   move for the admission of the prefiled testimony of



               2   Mr. Ralston, together with any exhibits thereto.



               3             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If any party objects



               4   to that motion, please indicate to me.  I am not seeing



               5   any objection, so the motion is granted.



               6             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



               7        Q.   (By Mr. Moscon)  Mr. Ralston, have you had the



               8   opportunity to prepare a summary of your prefiled



               9   testimony?



              10        A.   Yes, I have.



              11        Q.   Would you please share that with the



              12   commission and the parties.



              13        A.   My name is Dana Ralston.  I am the senior vice



              14   president of thermal generation and mining for Rocky



              15   Mountain Power.  I've been responsible for Rocky



              16   Mountain Power's thermal fleet since 2010, and prior to



              17   that held a number of positions within the generating



              18   fleet of Berkshire Hathaway Energy, including plant



              19   manager, maintenance manager, electrical supervisor and



              20   electrical engineer.  I have a degree in electrical



              21   engineering with over 37 years working around and in the



              22   power plants.



              23             Today I am offering responses and surrebuttal



              24   testimony to Daymark's testimony regarding the prudency



              25   of contested plant outages.  In my testimony, I show
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               1   that the company did demonstrate prudency by its actions



               2   when maintaining and operating its plants.



               3             Daymark, when reviewing the outages, equates



               4   its avoidable outage that could be prevented with



               5   perfect foresight to improve in that by the company.



               6   This demonstrates that Daymark is using a perfection



               7   standard not a prudency standard.



               8             If Daymark's approach to maintenance and



               9   operational was implemented, costs to the customers



              10   would significantly increase with a very small impact on



              11   fleet equivalent availability, because Daymark would



              12   have the company shift all risk to contractors no matter



              13   what the cost and undertake corrective actions that were



              14   not justified by inspection or operating data.



              15             In addition, Daymark represents --



              16   misrepresents data and testimony to arrive at an



              17   erroneous conclusion related to outages.  In my



              18   testimony, I show how the company used reasonable and



              19   prudent processes to avoid outages and mitigate risks



              20   while effectively balancing risks and costs for the



              21   benefit of our customers.



              22             In my testimony I use an analogy of changing



              23   tires on your car every month to prevent a flat fire.



              24   While this may reduce the chance of a flat tire, it is



              25   far from prudent to do this and would not eliminate all
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               1   chances of a flat tire.  This seems to be the same



               2   standards Daymark uses when reviewing outages.



               3             With respect to our jointly owned plants that



               4   we -- that are operated by others, Daymark incorrectly



               5   implies we have a unilateral -- unilateral right to



               6   enforce process or changes on these plants.  Rocky



               7   Mountain Power is a very active and engaged owner



               8   involved in our participation agreements to its fullest



               9   extent.



              10             These agreements that govern these plants are



              11   based on a partnership with all owners getting benefits



              12   and costs based on their ownership share.  The operating



              13   company receives no premium to take on the risks of



              14   operating the plant.  The companies that operate these



              15   plants use prudent processes, but they may be not the



              16   same as Rocky Mountain Power uses.  And when Daymark



              17   refers to these partners as contractors, it shows a lack



              18   of understanding about these agreements.



              19             Finally, the company uses equivalents



              20   availability, or EA, as an indicator of the detail and



              21   care the company uses with regard to maintaining its



              22   operating fleet.  The company's thermal EA is



              23   significantly better than the North American Electric



              24   Reliability Corporations or NERC, average for a similar



              25   size fleet.
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               1             The company believes outages should be



               2   reviewed individually and that NERC averages do not



               3   automatically make every outage prudent.  But to



               4   completely ignore this metric does not paint a complete



               5   picture of how the company manages thermal plants to



               6   provide the least risk, least cost supply to our



               7   company -- or customers.



               8             Rocky Mountain Power has and will continue to



               9   prudently manage the thermal fleet with the best



              10   interests of the customers at its forefront.  I am here



              11   to answer your questions.



              12             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you, Mr. Ralston.



              13   Mr. Ralston is available for any questions of the



              14   parties or commission.



              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Jetter?



              16             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have a few



              17   questions.



              18                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



              19   BY MR. JETTER:



              20        Q.   Good morning.



              21        A.   Good morning.



              22        Q.   Maybe I'd like to just start out asking a



              23   question that -- that you addressed a little bit in your



              24   introduction.  You mentioned that -- that, I guess in



              25   your testimony, that Daymark Associates, the consulting
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               1   firm hired by the Division of Public Utilities, is



               2   seeking to hold the company to a perfection standard.



               3   Is that an accurate representation of your



               4   understanding?



               5        A.   Yes.



               6        Q.   Can you tell me how many forced outage events



               7   the thermal fleet for PacifiCorp experienced in 2017?



               8        A.   I don't have that number off the top of my



               9   head.



              10        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that there



              11   were 368?



              12        A.   Subject to check.



              13        Q.   And do you know how many megawatt hours were



              14   lost as a result of those?



              15        A.   Again, I don't have that off the top of my



              16   head.



              17        Q.   Would you accept, subject to check, that it



              18   was in the ballpark of three million?



              19        A.   All right.  Subject to check.



              20        Q.   Do you know how many outages Daymark has



              21   recommended not be -- be removed from recovery from the



              22   EBA?



              23        A.   I believe it was seven.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And -- and seven is lot less than 368;



              25   is that correct?



                                                                        27

�













               1        A.   I believe so.



               2        Q.   And so do you still think that the -- the



               3   perfection applies when Daymark and Associates



               4   recommended only seven out of 368 forced outages be



               5   unrecoverable as a result of imprudence?



               6        A.   When I look at the detail of the seven outages



               7   and the action Daymark expects us to take, or would say



               8   would be a prudent level, I believe that is a perfection



               9   standard, not a prudent standard that a reasonable



              10   utility would do.



              11        Q.   Let me ask you a little follow-up question



              12   there.  Can you give me an example of an imprudent



              13   outage?



              14        A.   I can't think of one right off the top of my



              15   head.



              16        Q.   Okay.  Do you know if PacifiCorp has ever had



              17   an imprudent outage?



              18        A.   Again, I can't think of one right off the top



              19   of my head.



              20        Q.   Okay.  If there were never an imprudent



              21   outage, wouldn't that somewhat be the inverse of a



              22   perfection standard; it would be a standard of



              23   imperfection?



              24        A.   I guess you could look at it that way.



              25        Q.   And following up with that, do -- do you



                                                                        28

�













               1   believe that customers of Rocky Mountain Power in Utah



               2   should be responsible for all of the replacement power



               3   costs regardless of the -- the type of outage or the



               4   prudence that led up to that?



               5        A.   I believe the customer -- well, the company



               6   should be reimbursed for their cost when they acted



               7   prudently towards trying to avoid and prevent outages.



               8        Q.   Do you think that that -- that same standard



               9   should apply to Rocky Mountain Power's contractors or



              10   third party operators?



              11        A.   Please repeat the question.  Be more specific.



              12        Q.   In your answer to my previous question, I



              13   believe you answered that PacifiCorp should be



              14   reimbursed for the costs of its prudent actions.  Is



              15   that an accurate representation?



              16        A.   Yes.  We should be re -- reimbursed for



              17   prudent -- for costs when we act prudently.



              18        Q.   Okay.  And do you -- do you also think that



              19   Rocky Mountain Power should be responsible for costs



              20   when it does not act prudently?



              21        A.   Well, if we don't act prudently, then the



              22   commission would determine that and probably not allow



              23   those costs.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And do you think that that should



              25   extend -- regardless of whether it's legally mandated,
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               1   do you think that similar standard should extend to



               2   third party contractors that Rocky Mountain Power hires?



               3        A.   Okay.  And -- and again, the -- the



               4   contractors are out operating on our behalf, so the same



               5   standard should apply.



               6        Q.   Thank you.  Can you tell me what steps Rocky



               7   Mountain Power or PacifiCorp in its fleet takes -- let



               8   me rephrase that question.



               9             What steps does the company take to ensure



              10   that the third parties are operating in a prudent



              11   manner?



              12        A.   Can you be a little more specific on whether



              13   you are talking about a contractor that is specifically



              14   hired by Rocky Mountain Power or a partner operated



              15   plant operator?



              16        Q.   Well, maybe let's address those each



              17   individually.  So let's first take a look at -- or -- or



              18   let me know your opinion on the -- the contractors that



              19   are hired by Rocky Mountain Power.



              20        A.   Okay.  So when Rocky Mountain Power hires



              21   contractors, we take and make sure that we have



              22   qualified contractors that can perform the work, are



              23   reasonable, competent and available.  Okay.  And at the



              24   same time, when we sit down, we get their prices from



              25   them.  We negotiate a contract and negotiate terms that
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               1   have the warranty provisions and allow us to execute



               2   towards that contract to try to protect the customer and



               3   us to its best extent.



               4             In those provisions it's always a give and



               5   take, I will say, because if you want perfect, if you



               6   want to shift a hundred percent of the risk all to the



               7   contractor, you are going to pay for it.  And in my 37



               8   years of doing that, I have never seen any contractor be



               9   willing to accept 100 percent of all risk, including net



              10   power cost risk, in any contract we have been able to



              11   negotiate.



              12        Q.   And so would you agree with me then that that



              13   puts those contractors in a different risk position than



              14   the Rocky Mountain Power would be were Rocky Mountain



              15   Power performing the same amount -- the same work?



              16        A.   Possibly.  Again, it depends on the situation,



              17   I would say, and the contract.



              18        Q.   And would it then be accurate that when --



              19   in -- in the company's view when it hires third party



              20   contractors that are not taking on that risk, that that



              21   effectively shifts that risk to customers to bear the



              22   losses that Rocky Mountain Power might otherwise be



              23   responsible for?



              24        A.   Not necessarily.  It depends on the event.



              25        Q.   Could that be the case?
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               1        A.   What do you mean?



               2        Q.   Could it be the case that -- that those



               3   contracts would shift risk to customers?



               4             MR. MOSCON:  Mr. Chairman, before he answers,



               5   again, you noted this, and I am not trying to overdo it,



               6   but I guess I just need to note for the record that this



               7   whole series of questions has embedded the legal



               8   conclusion that the company would otherwise be liable



               9   for it, which itself could be impact to a great -- great



              10   detail.



              11             I am not trying to get in the way or interrupt



              12   the flow.  I just don't want anyone to at a later date



              13   say, well, we waived any objection.  So to the extent



              14   that he is asking the witness to make legal conclusions



              15   about the company, its liability, what the legal



              16   standard of prudence is, et cetera, I just want to



              17   preserve that objection.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Mr. Jetter, do you



              19   want to respond to the objection?



              20             MR. JETTER:  I am really trying to -- to -- to



              21   get this without going into -- to the legal conclusion,



              22   and I understand that -- that some of this has that as



              23   the backdrop.  I think this, really all of our -- our



              24   cases today, the facts at issue, are kind of set with



              25   that backdrop.
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               1             And as I was creating my cross questions, I



               2   wasn't anticipating a -- a legal discussion in addition,



               3   and so I think I maybe can withdraw that question and



               4   move on to some more specifics.



               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, then there's no



               6   need to rule on the specific objection.  We'll move on



               7   then.



               8             MR. JETTER:  Okay.



               9        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  So just to -- to clarify,



              10   before I -- before we move on, replacement power costs



              11   are not typically included in third party contracts; is



              12   that correct?



              13        A.   Not directly.



              14        Q.   Okay.  Replacement power costs, are those ever



              15   included in your contracts with co-owners or affiliates



              16   or other -- other operators that are not Rocky Mountain



              17   Power that are operating a partially owned power plant?



              18        A.   No.  We -- we don't have them in any of them



              19   that we are the owner but not the operator.  And at the



              20   same time, we don't have any of them that we are the



              21   operator and owner and we have other owners.



              22        Q.   Okay.  And -- and so how are -- how is Rocky



              23   Mountain Power, through those contacts -- contracts, or



              24   relationships with those other -- other operators, how



              25   is Rocky Mountain Power protected from imprudent
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               1   actions?



               2        A.   We protect ourselves from a -- from being



               3   involved with the participation agreements.  We have



               4   what we call E and O committees or coordinating



               5   committees.  We're heavily involved with those.  We have



               6   constant communication, at least daily with those



               7   different plants on what's going on in that.  We're a



               8   very active participant on it.



               9             From a contractual standpoint, there is no net



              10   power cost provision in any of the participation



              11   agreements that -- on either side, where we are the



              12   operator or they are the operator.



              13        Q.   Okay.  And is it fair to say that you have



              14   influence on the operations, even if you are not



              15   directly in control?



              16        A.   We -- we try our hardest to influence and



              17   direct the plan to where we think is the best place for



              18   customers.



              19        Q.   Thank you.  I think I am done -- will move on



              20   at this point, and -- and go through the seven outages.



              21        A.   All right.



              22        Q.   Sort of in the order that they have been



              23   presented in testimony.  I think it will be the easiest



              24   way to follow.  So if you look at Craig Unit 2, is it



              25   accurate that this is a representation, or this is an
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               1   instance where it's a third party operator?



               2        A.   Yes, that's correct.  Tri-State Generation and



               3   Transmission operates the Craig unit.



               4        Q.   Okay.  And is it accurate that Rocky Mountain



               5   Power has influence on how this is operated through its



               6   relationship with Tri-State?



               7        A.   Again, we work our hardest through those



               8   committees and through discussions with them to



               9   influence the direction.



              10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And in this case let me



              11   make sure I characterize this correctly, but there's a



              12   series of plugs that are each opened individually,



              13   and -- and a compound is -- is deposited through the



              14   plug.  And then the plugs are reclosed, and that process



              15   ultimately resulted in one of the plugs being missing at



              16   some point?



              17        A.   Maybe a better way to say it is the generator



              18   is probably 14, 16 foot in diameter, and there's a



              19   series of plugs like little quarter inch or



              20   three-eighths inch plugs all the way around.  If they



              21   take one out and they use this, like a -- it's a -- it



              22   looks like our TV almost, you know, that you get at the



              23   store.



              24             And they pump it in, and they pump it in the



              25   next one.  It comes out.  Then they put the plug in here
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               1   and then pump it here to the next one.  It creates a



               2   flexible seal so the hydrogen doesn't leak out, and then



               3   they put the plugs back in one by one.



               4        Q.   Okay.  And you mentioned -- this is -- I can



               5   direct you to it.  It's page 3 of your response



               6   testimony, on line 56, and is this -- this accurate



               7   that -- that you had written in there, that the plugs



               8   are tightened, torque not required and pressure tested



               9   to verify the seal integrity?



              10        A.   Yes.  When the -- the work was done, a



              11   pressure test at 48 pounds was done for 24 hours, and it



              12   passed the pressure test.



              13        Q.   Okay.  And so it's -- it's your testimony of



              14   the company that it's believed that the plug had



              15   vibrated out at some point?



              16        A.   That's correct.  Otherwise, it wouldn't have



              17   passed the pressure test.



              18        Q.   Okay.  And -- and would it be a reasonable



              19   conclusion that it vibrated out because it was not



              20   tightened properly?



              21        A.   That's one possibility.  I -- they're not sure



              22   why it vibrated out.  It may not have been tightened



              23   enough.  It may have had a flaw, don't really know, but



              24   we believe it vibrated out sometime during operation



              25   when it was returned to service.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  And how many of the other plugs



               2   vibrated out since then?



               3        A.   None of them.



               4        Q.   So if you were creating a plan to prevent that



               5   from happening in the future, would you recommend adding



               6   a torque value to the installation of those plugs?



               7        A.   I'd have to check on the design on that.  I



               8   would have to really know whether that was prudent or



               9   not.  I -- I -- that is a reasonable solution.  I am not



              10   sure if it was or not.  The procedure done was by



              11   General Electric, and it was their procedure.



              12        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that hand tight



              13   probably isn't adequate?



              14        A.   And I don't know if it was hand tight or not.



              15        Q.   Okay.  About if -- if that was -- if that was



              16   the case, it would need to be tighter than that?



              17        A.   I would say so, yes.



              18        Q.   Would it be unreasonably expensive, do you



              19   think, to add in the procedure manual for when you are



              20   reinstalling these plugs to tighten them to some level



              21   that's checked in some way?



              22        A.   I wouldn't think so.



              23        Q.   That's all the questions I have about the



              24   Craig Unit 2.  Next I'd like to move on and discuss Dave



              25   Johnson -- or excuse me, Dave Johnson 3, the April 25th



                                                                        37

�













               1   outage.



               2             Can you tell me why different grades of metal



               3   are used in different pipes at different -- different



               4   points within the boiler unit?



               5        A.   It's basically temperature and pressure



               6   related event.  Low temperature steam or water, carbon



               7   steel is okay for, but when you start getting into the



               8   higher temperatures, a thousand degrees or higher, the



               9   material breaks down faster.  So the longevity would be



              10   reduced over time.



              11        Q.   And I think your testimony is in agreement



              12   that it was a -- a tubing material that was incorrect



              13   for the location; is that accurate?



              14        A.   It was a nonconforming material.



              15        Q.   Okay.  It didn't meet the engineer's design



              16   spec for that location?



              17        A.   Somewhat, yes.  To give you a better frame of



              18   reference is, the tube that had the material that failed



              19   is here, and somewhere right below there, the -- it was



              20   a transition switch to a different material, like within



              21   a couple of feet.  And the tube right next to it was the



              22   same material that was put in.  So I mean, they were



              23   literally inches apart.



              24        Q.   Okay.  So -- and is that the case that the



              25   tube next to it was the correct tube?
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               1        A.   Yes.



               2        Q.   Okay.  And that was, I think if I am



               3   remembering, that was No. 47, but I don't remember that.



               4        A.   No, no, no, no.  You're -- you're thinking of



               5   something different.



               6        Q.   Okay.  You would agree that prudent



               7   construction of a facility would use the appropriate



               8   tube for the correct locations; is that correct?



               9        A.   In an optimal condition, you would use the



              10   exact design material that was put in the boiler, yes.



              11        Q.   Okay.  And part of the response in your



              12   testimony was that the nonconforming tube had lasted 20



              13   years, and that was an indication that it was adequate



              14   for that location?



              15        A.   It lasted at least 20 years.  The -- the



              16   reason we go back at least 20 is because when Utah Power



              17   and Pacific Power merged, the Utah Power repair process,



              18   called an R state process, was more robust than the



              19   Pacific Power one.  And it was implemented, and that was



              20   about the time it was implemented.



              21             This material could have been put in 30 years



              22   ago.  I -- we -- we don't have the records, and back



              23   that far back, it would have been a paper system.  So it



              24   was more difficult to track and follow things, where



              25   today it's very computer friendly.
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               1             So I know it's at least 20 years because



               2   that's when we did the switchover, and we don't have any



               3   records from that 20 years back -- forward.  So it was



               4   at least 20 years.



               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And -- and is it -- is it



               6   an accurate statement that if the, the correct grade of



               7   steel tube had been used, all else equal, you would



               8   expect it to have lasted longer in the same conditions?



               9        A.   That's a possibility, yes.  It would have --



              10   it probably would have lasted longer.



              11        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on next to the same



              12   power plant but the September 19th, the Dave Johnson



              13   September 19th outage.



              14             I, I think it, it would be a fair summary,



              15   correct me if I am wrong, of your testimony that the --



              16   the company does rely on a metallurgist that's a third



              17   party contractor to review some of these failures, and



              18   that that third party recommended less explosive use,



              19   less -- I guess it's a slower propagation, deslagging



              20   explosive or propellant?



              21        A.   When a metallurgist gets a section of tube, he



              22   dissects that tube, and he reports to us everything he



              23   sees, you know, whether it's old damage, new damage,



              24   whatever.  His -- his responsibility is to tell us



              25   everything that he -- he knows about that tube.
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               1             In this case he noticed that there was some



               2   stress rings, I believe they are called Nelson rings,



               3   for that saying that there had been some previous damage



               4   at some point in time.  Okay.  That could have happened



               5   10 plus years ago.  We don't know.



               6             So what he reported there, because he saw



               7   that, is he said, you should consider using low -- lower



               8   prop -- lower velocity detonation cord.  Okay.  And that



               9   was a -- to inform us that if we hadn't already started



              10   doing it, we should consider it.



              11             As I said in testimony, we identified that



              12   issue back in -- long before that, and we implemented



              13   the lowest velocity det. cord that's available on the



              14   market in 2011.



              15        Q.   And are there -- are there other ways to



              16   deslag those outside of using detonation cord?



              17        A.   Yes.  But they tend to have more risk towards



              18   people.  Using detonation cord tends to be the most



              19   effective and safest method for deslagging.



              20             I mean, if I go back to 30 years ago when I



              21   was doing it, I remember spending an Easter with a large



              22   steel rod just hammering away at slag between panels,



              23   and it was not a very pleasant time.  Or, you know, you,



              24   you have eye injuries.  You have strains and sprains.



              25   So detonation cord shakes the whole thing, breaks the
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               1   slag and allows people to get in there without injury.



               2        Q.   Okay.  But it also tends to cause fractures



               3   in -- in brittle materials; is that correct?



               4        A.   Yes.  In this case we are putting people



               5   first.



               6        Q.   Okay.  And prior to 2011, you were using the



               7   more aggressive detonation cord that --



               8        A.   I understand that, yes.  I just know since



               9   2011, we have been using the lowest.  There might have



              10   been steps, but I am unfamiliar with exactly what steps



              11   they were.



              12        Q.   Thank you.  I am going to move on to the



              13   Huntington Unit 1 outage.  It's correct that the



              14   Huntington Unit 1 outage was the fourth of a similar



              15   type of failure that's occurred since 2008; is that



              16   correct?



              17        A.   Yeah.  We have had four failures over an 11



              18   year period.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And all of the failures were the result



              20   of -- of the same welding failure?



              21        A.   It's -- it's of a similar metal weld failure



              22   that happens with everything on a dissimilar metal weld



              23   over time and temperature.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And this has been known in the -- the



              25   utility generation industry for quite some time; is that
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               1   correct?



               2        A.   Yes.  And it's managed by most utilities.



               3   It's a judgment call on when to do a bunch of



               4   replacements and when to keep managing through them, and



               5   managing so that you don't have a, what they call the



               6   hockey stick up on failures.



               7        Q.   Okay.  And you have had planned outages where



               8   this could have been repaired as is planned for 2022.



               9   You've had planned outages between 2008 and 2017; is



              10   that correct?



              11        A.   That's correct.  And maybe to frame that, is,



              12   we have a planned outage about every four years.  Okay.



              13   And we take it down for about five weeks, and we tear



              14   just about everything apart and try to rebuild it and



              15   put it back together and then try to run the plant for



              16   four years solid.



              17             So when you have that five week period, you



              18   know, these structures are 15, 20 stories tall, with



              19   thousands and thousands of tubes and welds in them.  And



              20   you have all the ancillary equipment, so you kind of



              21   have to prioritize your work.  Okay.  And for lack of a



              22   better term, you triage it, and you focus on the things



              23   that are going to cause you the most forced outages and



              24   you address those.



              25             And this data was not the worst actor we had
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               1   in the plant so we focused on other areas that were



               2   going to be more negatively impactful to the forced



               3   outage rate.



               4        Q.   Do you know how long, in addition during any



               5   of your previous planned outages, it would have taken to



               6   remedy this, in a -- as an extension to a prior outage?



               7        A.   You mean to replace it all?



               8        Q.   To perform the same planned replacement as you



               9   intend in 2022.



              10        A.   How long it would take?



              11        Q.   Yeah.  Would that have added a week --



              12        A.   Probably --



              13        Q.   -- to your prior outages or longer?



              14        A.   Well, if you planned it up front, you build it



              15   in there, and it would probably be a couple of million



              16   dollars to replace them all, all 600.  And if -- if I



              17   knew about it beforehand and planned it and planned the



              18   work in there, it probably wouldn't have extended the



              19   outage.  Now, if I found out about it in week four of a



              20   five week outage, I would have a problem.



              21        Q.   So -- so what was it about the fourth outage



              22   that was different from the first or second or third



              23   outage that caused the company to change or implement a



              24   replacement for 2022?



              25        A.   It was basically time.  I mean, we -- we -- we
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               1   know that dissimilar metal weld failures are a function



               2   of time and temperature, and as time goes on, you know,



               3   you are taking on more risk of a failure as time goes



               4   on.  So in 2008, I don't believe we felt that there was



               5   enough risk after one failure to do anything.



               6             And then I believe -- I can't remember the



               7   other two, is I want to say in '11 and '15 and then the



               8   last one in '17.  I am not sure those dates are correct.



               9        Q.   Okay.  I don't know the -- the dates of those



              10   either.  Let's move on to Jim Bridger No. 2 is next.



              11   And is it accurate that this outage at Jim Bridger No.



              12   2, January 17th, 2017, was a result of a water coolant



              13   line freezing because of a failure in the heat tracing?



              14        A.   That's roughly correct.



              15        Q.   Do you run the heat tracing all of the time or



              16   only during shutdowns?



              17        A.   No.  We only run it when there's freezing



              18   temperatures though.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And I am looking at your response



              20   testimony, page 11, beginning at line 244.  You



              21   testified that the -- "The company has processes in



              22   place to inspect the heat tracing and verify operation.



              23   But the process had a void in it that results in this



              24   failure" -- resulted, excuse me, "in this failure to not



              25   be identified so repair work could be completed"?



                                                                        45

�













               1        A.   Yes.  So what -- what we do is, in the fall,



               2   before the freezing temperatures, go out, usually start



               3   sometime in August or early September, have people go



               4   out to all the freeze protection panels and all the



               5   circuits, and there is literally hundreds and hundreds



               6   of these.



               7             There's -- there's a lot, especially if you



               8   have an outdoor boiler.  And then they go out and they



               9   actually measure the current in the voltage and record



              10   it.  So it's to determine whether something's



              11   malfunctioning or not.



              12             In this particular case, there was no current,



              13   but there was voltage.  So that is how it got missed.



              14   Okay.  So as I have said in testimony, we said, when the



              15   technician sees that, he is to raise the red flag and do



              16   some other things.



              17             So we went through the effort to try to,



              18   before the freezing temperatures to verify our -- our



              19   systems were working.  We just had a procedural problem



              20   here where the -- the failure slipped through the



              21   cracks, either by the technician not raising it or



              22   somebody else not seeing it.



              23        Q.   And so ultimately the result was that the



              24   testing procedures were carried out but they didn't



              25   identify the problem?
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               1        A.   This -- this particular problem, yeah.



               2        Q.   And it's your testimony that that -- that was



               3   the testing procedure was, I guess, a prudent choice by



               4   the company?



               5        A.   Well, we had a -- a testing procedure in



               6   place, and we thought it was complete.  We didn't



               7   recognize this could be a void until it happened to us,



               8   and then we made corrections since we have discovered



               9   that.



              10        Q.   Okay.  And -- and as an electrical engineer,



              11   do you think a testing procedure that measures a voltage



              12   difference at -- at the, I guess the plug-in points of a



              13   heat tracing tape that doesn't measure resistance of the



              14   tape would be an appropriate way to test whether it's



              15   functional?



              16        A.   In measuring the resistance?  I am not sure I



              17   understood your question.



              18        Q.   Measuring -- measuring electricity flow?



              19        A.   You mean the current and the voltage?



              20        Q.   Yes.



              21        A.   That -- that would be very prudent, and that's



              22   what we were intending to do.



              23        Q.   Okay.  So you were -- that was what the policy



              24   was prior to that, or that's what it is now?



              25        A.   No.  That's what it was prior, to record the
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               1   current and the voltage.  In this case there was no



               2   current, okay, but there was voltage, and at that point,



               3   nobody raised the flag, the technician or someone said,



               4   this doesn't seem right to me.



               5        Q.   Okay.  So the inspector, whoever was



               6   inspecting, the technician, identified or had an



               7   erroneous reading.  They just didn't identify it as a --



               8   as a problem?



               9        A.   Correct.



              10        Q.   Thank you.  I'll move on now to the Jim



              11   Bridger 3 outage.  And just to refresh recollection,



              12   this was the outage that was caused by an electrical



              13   failure that was determined to be a cable that was



              14   flooded in an underground wire ball; is that correct?



              15        A.   That's correct.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And the identified cause of this, is it



              17   accurate that the cable failed potentially due to damage



              18   during the initial time when the wire was pulled?



              19        A.   I believe the report said it was age and



              20   damage.



              21        Q.   Okay.  Do you know how age would have caused



              22   that failure?



              23        A.   Cable insulation breaks down with age.  I



              24   mean, it's a form of a plastic.  I mean, if you took a



              25   gallon milk jug and set it outside for a year, then
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               1   tried to pick the handle up, the handle is probably



               2   going to come off in your hand because it degrades from



               3   sunlight and everything else.  Cables, the insulation on



               4   them, they aren't designed to run for a million years.



               5        Q.   So do you have a policy in place then to



               6   replace those at periodic intervals?



               7        A.   No.  I think we replace those as conditions



               8   warrant, when we do some testing and -- or if we have a



               9   problem, that the cost of replacing those would be



              10   tremendously large.



              11        Q.   And to the extent that a cable is -- is



              12   damaged during installation, that's usually the result



              13   of a mistake, is it not?



              14        A.   I -- I can't necessarily say that.  I mean,



              15   this was during an original construction in the early



              16   seventies.  So it could have been that there was a rock



              17   that got picked up.  I mean, you're -- you're talking



              18   about traveling hundreds and hundreds of feet.



              19             And what they do is, they have these little



              20   concrete vaults in the ground with the conduit going



              21   through it.  And then it goes to another concrete vault,



              22   and they run the cable through it, through the vault,



              23   and they pull it through.  And these cables are like



              24   this big around.



              25             And they pull -- pulling -- put a pulling



                                                                        49

�













               1   lubricant on it, and they pull it through.  And they are



               2   trying not to pull it so hard that they damage the



               3   insulation.  Okay.  So during the process, if it -- if



               4   it picks up any type of debris or -- or runs on a corner



               5   and gets slight gouged, it can get damaged.



               6             Generally, after a cable is pulled in, a



               7   standard practice is to what they call Hipot them, is



               8   they get the cable in place, and it's not connected up



               9   to anything.  And they put a voltage on it to check the



              10   leakage current to make sure it's functional.



              11             I am assuming that happened back in the



              12   seventies when the plant was built and that it passed at



              13   that time, and then it successfully operated for over 40



              14   years before the pit got flooded and water actually



              15   improved the conduction path.  And the damage and the



              16   age probably got to it right there.



              17        Q.   Let me ask you a couple quick follow-ups.



              18   The -- the purpose of those procedures as they install



              19   it with the lubrication and -- and the way that it's fed



              20   into the tubing and into the conduit tube, and the



              21   conduit itself, in fact, it's -- it's all there to make



              22   sure that it's not damaged; is that correct?



              23        A.   Generally, yes.



              24        Q.   And on a little bit of a different question,



              25   with relative to the flooding of those, have you taken
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               1   any steps since then to remedy, to -- to have drains to



               2   keep those vaults from being flooded?



               3        A.   Not to my knowledge.  I believe this was a



               4   gasket failure.



               5        Q.   Okay.  Do you think it would be a prudent



               6   choice to do that in the future, at least to the extent



               7   that a vault is within the drain path of some of the



               8   plumbing?



               9        A.   So let's take this little building where it



              10   happened.  It's kind of out in the middle of nowhere.  I



              11   mean, there -- there aren't probably any drains to drain



              12   it to.  I mean, you might be able to do something by



              13   building up the lip of the vault or something else.  I



              14   don't know.  I haven't specifically looked at that spot



              15   to think about it that way.  I think the best thing to



              16   do is prevent the leak to begin with.



              17        Q.   Okay.  And the vaults -- the vaults aren't



              18   intended to be run under water; is that correct?



              19        A.   It's not unusual to find water in them at some



              20   point in time, because the ones outside may get



              21   precipitation.  I mean, in my career, I have opened up



              22   vaults before and they have had three to six inches of



              23   water in them.  It's not uncommon.  They are not



              24   designed for that, but it's not out of the ordinary.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And so in a typical situation, wiring



                                                                        51

�













               1   that's undamaged is not -- I guess, a circuit to ground



               2   isn't created when water is -- is in those?



               3        A.   No, not always.  It also, again, depends on



               4   the age of the cable, if it's starting to break down.



               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And finally, I guess we'll



               6   move on to the Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage, which I



               7   believe was March 17th, 2017, and this is the instance



               8   where an incorrect part was delivered by MD&A; is that



               9   correct?



              10        A.   That's correct.



              11        Q.   How did the company choose to contract with



              12   MD&A for this service?



              13        A.   It was a competitive bidding process.  I mean,



              14   we usually qualify the vendors again, and based on their



              15   experience and everything in the industry, and then we



              16   go out for a competitive tender based on the scope of



              17   work.  In this case it was a turbine overhaul, and then



              18   we see the prices and negotiate terms and then take the



              19   best value for the customer.



              20        Q.   Okay.  I am looking at your response testimony



              21   on line 326, and I am going to -- are you -- are you



              22   caught up?



              23        A.   I'm there.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And it says, "MD&A determined that the



              25   root cause was that MD&A had recently increased the
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               1   repair shop capacity for work.  However, they had not



               2   yet caught up with fully staffing appropriately."  Did I



               3   read that correctly?



               4        A.   Yes.



               5        Q.   And you said that you had -- had -- Rocky



               6   Mountain Power had verified that it was an appropriate



               7   vendor through their process; is that correct?



               8        A.   Yes, and we have experience with them before.



               9        Q.   Okay.  But -- but you didn't know that they



              10   had increased their repair shop capacity and not yet



              11   caught up on staffing?



              12        A.   No.  Maybe a better way to say that is, when



              13   you take a turbine apart, you don't necessarily know



              14   what's -- needs repaired.  I mean, in our case we go --



              15   on certain sections of turbine, we go eight years before



              16   we tear them apart.  And when you tear it apart, you



              17   find damage, and then you go to repair shops to try to



              18   get that damage fixed within the outage frame.



              19             And most utilities will schedule outages in



              20   the spring and the fall, because that's when power



              21   prices are the lowest and replacement power costs for



              22   the customer is the cheapest.  Winter and summer, that's



              23   when everybody wants their electricity and the market



              24   prices are higher.  So you select those times there.



              25             And a lot of times, the amount of repair work
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               1   these shops see in those times is kind of like drinking



               2   out of a fire hydrant, and then in the middle of the



               3   summer, it could be next to nothing.  So I mean, it, it



               4   kind of depends on who tore things apart across the



               5   country and what did they find.  So it's very, very hard



               6   to determine.  We just make sure that we are trying to



               7   get a contractor who is capable and competent of doing



               8   the work.



               9        Q.   Okay.  And in this case, they -- they actually



              10   installed the wrong part; is that correct?



              11        A.   Yes.



              12        Q.   It was an impeller from a different generation



              13   unit?



              14        A.   Yes.  What they did is they sent out the



              15   impellers for -- to a third party for nondestructive



              16   testing, to see if there was cracks in them that you



              17   couldn't see visually, so that if you put it back in



              18   there and then it was running, it didn't fly apart at



              19   you at some other time.  And when they came back, there



              20   was more than one impeller from the contractor, or from



              21   the third party testing company, and they got it



              22   switched.



              23        Q.   Okay.  And so if I -- if I go to your analogy



              24   of -- of switching your tires frequently, if you went to



              25   the tire repair shop and your -- your car came out and
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               1   it had three different wheels on it, you might ask



               2   questions, wouldn't you, of whether this repair shop is



               3   competent to be doing the work that you hired them to



               4   do?



               5        A.   I would question the ability, but if I had



               6   been doing business with him for 20 years and had very



               7   good success, I would ask him to correct it and ask him



               8   what they were going to do to make sure it didn't



               9   happen.



              10        Q.   Okay.  Would you ask -- would you ask them



              11   to -- in the -- in the car repair instance, to pay for



              12   your taxi to go wherever you needed to go while they



              13   repair your car?



              14        A.   Probably not.



              15        Q.   You wouldn't.  Okay.  And similarly can you



              16   not ask MD&A to cover the cost of the energy to cover



              17   the outage?



              18        A.   We did not ask them to cover the direct cost



              19   of the replacement power.



              20        Q.   Okay.  And it's accurate, I guess, that you



              21   are asking that the customers are going to -- asking



              22   customers to pay for that?



              23        A.   To some -- yes.  The other way to think about



              24   this, if we would try to get contracts that shifted a



              25   hundred percent of the risk to contractors, I know we
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               1   would pay a significantly amount more than what we are



               2   paying for contracts now.  And the frequency rate of



               3   failures is extremely small compared to the number of



               4   contracts we do.  So we would be spending a lot more



               5   money for the benefit.



               6        Q.   Thank you.  I have no further questions.



               7   Thank you for your testimony and putting up with my



               8   questions today.  I appreciate it.



               9        A.   No worries.



              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you, Mr. Jetter.



              11   Mr. Russell?



              12             MR. RUSSELL:  Thank you, Chairman LeVar.



              13                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



              14   BY MR. RUSSELL:



              15        Q.   I have a few questions, and I'm going to try



              16   to follow Mr. Jetter's format a little bit in that he



              17   started asking you some questions more generally about



              18   the company when it hires subcontractors or third party



              19   contractors.



              20             You -- he asked you a question about whether



              21   those contracts include replacement power costs in those



              22   third party contracts, and you indicated they do not.



              23   I'm -- I'm curious about the mechanism.  Is it -- do



              24   those contracts typically include a waiver of



              25   consequential damages?  Is that -- is that how those
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               1   contracts are set up?



               2        A.   I -- I believe so.  I mean, the -- the



               3   contracts do not specifically say that.



               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  I don't think you are getting



               5   on the microphone.



               6             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.



               7        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  It's difficult because I am



               8   way over here and you have to turn.  I'm sorry.



               9        A.   I don't believe so.  I'd -- I'd have to look



              10   at the contract.  But the contracts do not have specific



              11   language that say, if -- if an event happens, the



              12   contractor will be solely responsible for all



              13   replacement power cost incurred by the company.  It



              14   doesn't say anything like that.



              15        Q.   In -- in, I guess, does -- does it contain a



              16   provision that has the inverse?  Does it say that the



              17   contractor will not be responsible for certain damages



              18   that result if we, the subcontractor, made a mistake?



              19        A.   I don't -- I don't recall that.



              20        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Part of



              21   the -- the job, I guess, of the company, is to -- is to



              22   go out and hire subcontractors that you believe are



              23   competent, right?



              24        A.   That's correct.



              25        Q.   And -- and also to hold contractors
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               1   responsible if they make a mistake, yes?



               2        A.   Yes.



               3        Q.   And as between the company and the customers,



               4   the company is in the better position to hold those



               5   subcontractors responsible, yes?



               6        A.   Yes, I would agree.



               7        Q.   Okay.  And let's talk a little bit about



               8   relationships with third party operators of power



               9   plants.  We talked about the Craig 2, Craig Unit 2 plant



              10   a little bit.  And it's Tri-State Generation that



              11   operates that unit, yes?



              12        A.   That's correct.



              13        Q.   And what -- and maybe we can just talk



              14   specifically about that one.  What recourse does Rocky



              15   Mountain Power have in a situation where you believe



              16   that Tri-State Generation has operated its plant



              17   imprudently and it causes impacts on Rocky Mountain



              18   Power's customers?



              19        A.   I would have to go back and look at the



              20   participation agreement.  If they used reasonable



              21   utility standards, I don't think we have any recourse.



              22   I mean, if it was gross negligence or something to that



              23   effect, I believe we might, but I, again, I'd have to go



              24   back and look at the participation agreement and ask my



              25   attorneys whether they would concur with my opinion or



                                                                        58

�













               1   not.



               2        Q.   Fair enough.  Do -- do you know whether the



               3   standard that -- that Tri-State Generation owes to its



               4   co-owners is the same as the standard that Rocky



               5   Mountain Power owes to its customers?



               6             MR. MOSCON:  Objection as to the legal



               7   conclusion.  But as far as the understanding of what



               8   they expect of their co-owner, I mean, go ahead and



               9   answer.



              10        A.   Well, I guess I am not sure I understand your



              11   question.



              12        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Yeah.  I -- I guess -- and



              13   the context here, of course, is that the company has



              14   come to this commission saying, we -- we have acted



              15   prudently, and we would like to recover X costs, and --



              16   and the commission has to determine whether the company



              17   has acted prudently.



              18             What I am wondering is, does Tri-State



              19   Generation have the same standard to Rocky Mountain



              20   Power that Rocky Mountain Power has to its customers?



              21   In other words, is it the same prudent standard, or is



              22   it some higher standard that -- that Tri-State



              23   Generation would have to the company?  Or some lower



              24   standard, if you know.



              25             I'm -- I'm merely asking whether you know.
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               1        A.   Tri-State has the responsibility to operate



               2   the plant with good utility practice.  Okay.  I mean, I



               3   believe that's the term used, because there's not a



               4   standard quoted or anything to that effect.



               5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk -- I have some



               6   follow-up questions about some of the units that we



               7   walked through that are -- that are outlined in the



               8   Daymark report.  Let's talk about the Craig Unit 2



               9   outage, and this is the one with the -- the plugs that



              10   were removed and then put back in.



              11             I had -- I had a question, I -- that I guess I



              12   don't understand the -- in your testimony you say when



              13   those plugs go back in, they are tightened, but torque



              14   isn't used.  And I guess I don't understand what that



              15   means.  But -- but they are -- they are not just hand



              16   tightened, but what -- how are they -- how are they put



              17   back in?



              18        A.   Okay.  I'll try to figure out the best way to



              19   say this.  Okay.  So when you tighten something up, you



              20   are putting a bed frame together on a -- for a house, or



              21   for your kids.



              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Just interrupt.  Does that



              23   microphone move any closer to you?  Does it have enough



              24   cable to move to the edge so you can look at him?



              25        A.   So you are putting a bed frame together, use a
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               1   crescent wrench or a Boxit wrench, and you just tighten



               2   it down.  And when it's tightened up by what you feel,



               3   you just kind of move on.



               4             Well, in -- in certain pieces of a high



               5   technical equipment like engines and that, they use what



               6   they call a torque wrench.  And it has amount of



               7   tightening to it, and you want to get it tight enough



               8   generally so it like crushes a gasket or has a good seal



               9   so that when the, the bolt heats up, it grows enough so



              10   it doesn't create a leak or anything.



              11             So when torque value is not required, they



              12   didn't ever put a torque wrench on it to do it.  It was



              13   left up to the experience of the millwright, the



              14   mechanic doing it, to say, it's tight enough and



              15   appropriate.



              16        Q.   (By Mr. Russell) Okay.  And do you know



              17   whether in this particular instance the millwright that



              18   was -- that was tightening those bolts, whether anybody



              19   checked the work of the person that was doing it?



              20        A.   No.



              21        Q.   Whether somebody followed behind and said,



              22   that bolt's not tight enough or anything?



              23        A.   I don't know.



              24        Q.   Okay.  Your testimony, your response



              25   testimony, indicated -- it gave a description of how
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               1   these bolts -- bolts are removed and, and tightened.



               2   I -- my question is, do you know whether that's how it



               3   was done here?  Or is this -- or was that testimony --



               4   the basis of that testimony simply your experience as to



               5   how those things are done?



               6        A.   I, I didn't witness what they did.  That's the



               7   procedure I have witnessed General Electric do in the



               8   past.



               9        Q.   Okay.  So, so your testimony there



              10   described --



              11        A.   And that's what the plant operator told us



              12   they did too.



              13        Q.   Okay.  So you conducted some investigation



              14   into this instance --



              15        A.   Yeah, I was --



              16        Q.   -- and -- and this is what the plant operator



              17   informed you was the process that took place.



              18        A.   Yes.



              19        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Let's move on to the -- Dave



              20   Johnson 3 is the next one.  The April 25, Dave Johnson 3



              21   outage, and that is the one -- was this a forced outage?



              22        A.   Yes, it was.



              23        Q.   Okay.  I am not going to be offended if you



              24   don't look at me when you answer my questions.



              25        A.   Okay.
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               1        Q.   If it's just easier to face the microphone,



               2   that's fine.



               3        A.   All right.



               4        Q.   This was the one where the -- there was



               5   nonconforming material in the boiler tubes, correct?



               6        A.   That was correct.



               7        Q.   Okay.  And I think your testimony indicates



               8   this, but I -- I guess I'll ask.  Is nonconforming



               9   material in the boiler tubes a known cause of a



              10   potential outage?



              11        A.   Well, nonconforming means it's not exactly



              12   what was designed.  Okay.  Giving an example is, let's



              13   just say we didn't have that material when the outage



              14   occurred and we put a lower grade, okay, nonconforming



              15   material in, but that material has a cycle life.  Okay.



              16   And if we put it in, we just have to recognize that at



              17   some point in time we'll need to address it.



              18        Q.   Okay.  And in this instance you don't know why



              19   this nonconforming material was installed, correct?



              20        A.   No.  It was 20 plus years ago, and we don't



              21   have records for that.



              22        Q.   Okay.  And in your testimony there is a



              23   description.  I can point you to the portion of your



              24   testimony.  I think it's around lines 125 and 126.  You



              25   describe a period of about 15 years of repairs in which
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               1   you -- you include the -- the statement here is that you



               2   showed that the standard of like kind materials has and



               3   will continue to be used, maximizing plant equipment



               4   life.  Can you tell me what you meant by that?



               5        A.   We have a better tracking system, a



               6   computerized tracking system.  So what we do is if we



               7   had to do something similar to this, we'll log it in



               8   that tracking system, and we'll be able to pull it up



               9   easily like during overhauls and that and address it.



              10   So we went back 15 years and said, had we put in



              11   nonconforming material in the last 15 years, and the



              12   answer is no.



              13        Q.   Okay.  So this -- this review only went



              14   back -- went back to whether -- whether the company had



              15   installed nonconforming materials in the last 15 years?



              16        A.   And that's -- the quality of our records



              17   degrades significantly after that, because, you know,



              18   they were more paper oriented at that time.  So it's



              19   harder to do searches.



              20        Q.   And when was -- when did the company become



              21   aware that this particular tube, or portion of tube that



              22   failed, used nonconforming material?



              23        A.   After we got the metallurgist report after it



              24   failed.



              25        Q.   So this wasn't something you were aware of
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               1   beforehand?



               2        A.   No.



               3        Q.   And is that something that one would find on



               4   a -- during an outage, that there is material in here



               5   that isn't the correct spec?



               6        A.   Okay.  So when you weld these tube materials



               7   together, I mean, you will have a piece of pipe, and you



               8   will have one -- one over here and a piece over here and



               9   weld it together.  And after -- let's just say after



              10   four or five years, I could lay them on the table there,



              11   and you wouldn't be able to tell which material is



              12   which.



              13             I mean, it will take a metallurgist going



              14   under a, you know, basically looking at the materials



              15   through radiation, through that, and try to figure out



              16   what the material makeup is.  So I can't look at it and



              17   tell you whether it's a different material after it's



              18   been in service for a while.



              19        Q.   And is the -- the -- the type of material



              20   used, is that something that could be discovered during



              21   an inspection during a planned outage?



              22        A.   It would be an extremely difficult task.  I



              23   mean, now they make a gun that's got a radioactive



              24   source in it.  You could put it up to material, and it



              25   gives you a relative chemistry makeup, you know, one and
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               1   a quarter chrome or whatever, so you can kind of figure



               2   that out.



               3             But you basically -- it's telling you that



               4   little spot.  So you would have to do that at every



               5   little piece on every boiler tube throughout the whole



               6   boiler.  I think you would be doing that for many, many



               7   years.



               8        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to -- I think



               9   the next one is -- oh, the next one is the September



              10   outage of the same year.  So I guess we're at four



              11   months -- four months later, different boiler tube,



              12   right?



              13        A.   Correct.



              14        Q.   Okay.  And this one we -- you talked with



              15   Mr. Jetter a little bit about explosive, deslagging, and



              16   I -- I appreciate that testimony.  I -- I, the only -- I



              17   have just a short bit of follow-up.  You indicated that



              18   in years past the company used a higher velocity



              19   detonation cord than it does now.



              20             I'll admit that I have no idea what that



              21   means, but it, it sounds as though, based on your



              22   testimony, that the company became aware that -- of



              23   testing or reports in the industry that using a lower



              24   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to the



              25   boiler tubes.  Is that correct?
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               1        A.   That's correct.



               2        Q.   And when did -- when did that occur?



               3        A.   Pre-2011.  I don't know exactly when.



               4        Q.   Okay.  And why -- why do you say pre-2011?



               5        A.   We implemented a new standard in 2011 at the



               6   DJ plant, so we know -- we know it was before that.



               7   Since 2011, we have been using the lowest velocity det.



               8   cord at the DJ plant that's available on the market.  So



               9   I am sure we made some changes before that.  I just



              10   don't know whether they were graduated or whether it was



              11   a step change or what it was pre-2011.



              12        Q.   Okay.  So sitting here today, you don't know



              13   when the company found out that -- or -- or when the



              14   reports became available indicating that a lower



              15   velocity detonation cord may cause less stress to -- to



              16   boiler tubes, but you know that in 2011, the company



              17   implemented a change to use the lowest velocity



              18   detonation cord.  Do I have that right?



              19        A.   That's correct.



              20        Q.   Okay.  And then let's move on to the Jim



              21   Bridger.  I am going to skip the Huntington one.  Let's



              22   move to Jim Bridger 2.  This outage was in January of



              23   2017, and this is the one that the -- I guess there was



              24   water freezing in a water cooled spacer tubing?



              25        A.   That's correct.
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               1        Q.   And this was in, I take it, an unplanned



               2   outage for something else.  Yeah?



               3        A.   The bottom ash system, the drag chain, had a



               4   problem, and the plant had to come off for that, so --



               5   excuse me, people could safely work on the repair.  And



               6   during that time, it was very cold out, and the -- the



               7   boiler, that particular section of line froze up.



               8        Q.   Yeah.  I mean, you indicated earlier that the



               9   company typically would -- would plan an outage for the



              10   spring and the fall, and here we are in January, so I --



              11   I thought maybe there was something else happening.



              12             You described with Mr. Jetter a little bit



              13   the -- the process that was in place at the time.  What



              14   I -- what I don't feel like I have a great grasp of is



              15   what changed after the January outage when this problem



              16   arose.  What do you do now that you did not do then?



              17        A.   If you go to page 11, starting on line 248,



              18   "The heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the



              19   control electrical technician to write a work order to



              20   correct any deficiencies found.  Capital projects have



              21   been established to replace the heat tracing in all four



              22   Jim Bridger units, and to mitigate the risk of line



              23   freezing, plant personnel have evaluated if there's a



              24   positive slope in the horizontal sections of the spacer



              25   tube lines, where positive slope didn't exist.



                                                                        68

�













               1   Otherwise, it can self-drain."



               2             So unfortunately, heat tracing has a



               3   propensity to fail over time.  And then "Plant personnel



               4   have modified the boiler shutdown procedures to drain



               5   the boiler when the water temperature reaches 180



               6   degrees, rather than waiting for until blasting and



               7   deslagging efforts are complete."



               8             And that was -- that was done because if



               9   there's water in the tubes, the possibility of damage to



              10   the tubes is reduced, because there's water in the tube.



              11        Q.   Okay.  I -- I thought I understood your



              12   previous testimony in responding to Mr. Jetter's



              13   questions to be that the void in the process here was



              14   that the technician who had checked that line with a



              15   piece of equipment was able to indicate that there was



              16   current but no voltage?



              17        A.   The opposite way.



              18        Q.   Oh, sorry, I --



              19        A.   There was voltage but no current.



              20        Q.   I thought that might -- I thought I might have



              21   written it down backwards.  There's voltage but no



              22   current.  And tell me how that led to the problem at



              23   issue here.



              24        A.   Go to an outlet.  You look at an outlet right



              25   now, there's 120 volts on it, but it's not doing any



                                                                        69

�













               1   work.  When you plug something into it, current flows



               2   and it does work, and it needs the current and the



               3   voltage to do the work.  So if there's no current,



               4   there's no work being done, which means there's no heat



               5   to keep the line from freezing.



               6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  And is



               7   that something that should have been noted by the



               8   technician who -- who registered that there was voltage



               9   but no current?



              10        A.   We didn't tell him he had to.  We had told him



              11   he had to do this, and we just kind of assumed they



              12   would flag it.  I mean, it was -- I don't know what to



              13   say is, we -- we made the assumption that his knowledge



              14   and experience he would flag that, and for some reason,



              15   he did not, and then it slipped through the cracks.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And then the first bullet point that



              17   you pointed to me here, starting on line 248, "That the



              18   heat trace preventive maintenance now instructs the



              19   control and electrical technician to write a work order



              20   to correct any deficiencies found during the PM."



              21             Is that -- is that designed to address that



              22   specific issue?



              23        A.   Yes.  We are creating an expectation that if



              24   you find something, you need to write the corrective



              25   action for that, not rely on somebody else to do it and
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               1   assume somebody else is going to catch it.



               2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's talk about Jim



               3   Bridger Unit 3 for a moment.  This is the one where



               4   there was -- had apparently been some damage to the



               5   wiring, and then when the -- when that wiring conduit



               6   flooded, there was a forced outage, correct?



               7        A.   That's correct.



               8        Q.   Does the company know when the -- the damage



               9   to that wiring or the insulation around that wiring



              10   occurred?



              11        A.   Well, since they are the original cables, it



              12   would have been during the construction period of Jim



              13   Bridger 3, which is '73, '74-ish, somewhere around



              14   there.  I don't -- somewhere around there.



              15        Q.   Is that the only time that that damage could



              16   have occurred?



              17        A.   Yeah.  The cables were never replaced before



              18   then.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And is there a process in place to go



              20   inspect cables that have been in conduit for 40 plus



              21   years?



              22        A.   There's no really way to do it.  I mean, it's



              23   kind of like, there's a vault here, and a hundred yards



              24   away, there is another vault.  And I don't know how you



              25   inspect the cable all the way.
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               1             What you do is, you can't visually inspect it.



               2   What you do is an electrical test, and you basically put



               3   a voltage on it.  You measure what I would call leakage



               4   current, it's open ended, and it tells you how much --



               5   and these are micro amps, and you -- you measure how



               6   much current is going through just by dissipating it.



               7             As insulation breaks down, more current will



               8   flow, and there's generally accepted standards for



               9   equipment, and occasionally you do that, but not very



              10   often.  I mean, but that's usually a test you do right



              11   after you pulled in a cable to make sure you haven't



              12   damaged it.



              13             And I am making the assumption that Black and



              14   Veach, when they built the plant, they had that as a



              15   standard, and -- and allowed that or tested all cable



              16   pulls after they were put in to verify that no damage



              17   had occurred to the point where it failed the test.  But



              18   I don't have any records to prove that.  That's just



              19   general practice in my 37 years.



              20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I don't have any further



              21   questions.  I appreciate your time today.



              22             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you,



              23   Mr. Russell.  About how much time do you think you need



              24   for redirect?



              25             MR. MOSCON:  Longer than I thought that I
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               1   would.  So...



               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Well, maybe we should



               3   take a break, and we'll have a full complement here when



               4   we return.  Is breaking until about 12:45 good for



               5   everyone?



               6             MR. MOSCON:  Yeah.



               7             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We will be in recess



               8   until 12:45.  Thank you.



               9             (Lunch recess from 11:33 a.m. to 12:44 p.m.)



              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the



              11   record, and we're glad to have Commissioner Clark back



              12   with us both for today and the next six years.  So we'll



              13   move on to --



              14             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Sorry.



              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  -- redirect Mr. Ralston.



              16             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



              17                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION



              18   BY MR. MOSCON:



              19        Q.   Mr. Ralston, before we get into any specifics



              20   of any particular outage, I'd like to have you provide



              21   some information pertinent to some questions you



              22   received from both parties about steps that the company



              23   can take, or has taken or could take vis-a-vis its



              24   contractors, and are the customers supposed to bear this



              25   risk without any protection or -- or what can we do.
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               1             Do you recall being asked the question about



               2   whether your contracts had a -- a specific provision



               3   that would allow the company to recover any net power



               4   costs or excess cost due to outages?  Do you remember



               5   that question?



               6        A.   Yes, I do.



               7        Q.   And your answer was?



               8        A.   That we do not have any provisions that



               9   directly allow to us collect.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   Whatever they are.



              12        Q.   So are you familiar with the term, if I use



              13   it, liquidated damages?



              14        A.   Yes, I am.



              15        Q.   Does the company from time to time provide



              16   liquidated damages in its contracts?



              17        A.   Yes, we negotiate liquidated damages,



              18   depending on the scope and the time line of the outage.



              19        Q.   Okay.  And is one of the categories that would



              20   trigger a liquidated damage scenario when the contractor



              21   returns the -- the project back to the company?



              22        A.   Yes.  Gen -- generally liquidated damages are



              23   either on a -- on a schedule basis.



              24        Q.   Okay.  And what does that mean, when you say



              25   schedule?  Explain to me how these get negotiated.
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               1        A.   Giving a specific example of DJ4.



               2        Q.   Okay.  DJ4 is, just for everyone's



               3   clarification, that's the plant where MD&A sent back the



               4   wrong piece of equipment, the wrong impeller.  Is that



               5   the outage we are talking about?



               6        A.   That's correct.



               7        Q.   Okay.  So using that as an example, did that



               8   contract have a liquidated damages provision?



               9        A.   Yes, it did.



              10        Q.   And what was a triggering event for the



              11   liquidated damages?



              12        A.   Not returning the unit to the operator, us, at



              13   an agreed-upon time in the contract.



              14        Q.   Okay.  And so did the company go after its



              15   contractor and say, "Hey, we are sorry.  We know you



              16   tried, but with this impeller you did not get the



              17   project back in time.  Therefore you owe liquidated



              18   damages"?



              19        A.   Yes.  We collected some liquidated damages



              20   because they were late.



              21        Q.   Okay.  And who got that money that came in



              22   from the liquidated damages?



              23        A.   They were credited to the capital project, so



              24   the customer did.



              25        Q.   Okay.  So the -- and is it your understanding,
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               1   did Daymark in their audit and in their conclusion about



               2   the amount of money that should be denied for the



               3   overage, did they account for the fact that the company



               4   did in fact collect liquidated damages, and it applied



               5   that to lower the cost of the project?



               6        A.   I didn't -- I don't believe it was in their



               7   analysis anywhere.



               8        Q.   Okay.  Now, do all the company's contracts



               9   have liquidated damages?



              10        A.   No.  You pay for liquidated damages.



              11        Q.   So give us just generally the types of



              12   contracts that would or wouldn't.



              13        A.   On an overhaul, if it's a critical path on the



              14   overhaul to returning it, we would generally put



              15   liquidated damages on that, because if they are late, it



              16   will delay the overhaul.



              17             But if -- if I am Joe contractor and I have a



              18   week's worth of work and I start at the beginning of the



              19   overhaul, it takes me 10 days, and it doesn't really



              20   affect the return time, I am not going to put liquidated



              21   damages in.  Because as a contractor, I will see that in



              22   there, and I will jack up my price to cover my risk.



              23        Q.   Okay.



              24        A.   So we do it on ones that will have a material



              25   effect, we believe, on us if they are late.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  And that included, for instance, the



               2   Dave Johnston Unit 4 outage?



               3        A.   Yes.



               4        Q.   Okay.  Now, going now more broadly, meaning



               5   not just referring to the Dave Johnson Unit 4 outage,



               6   you indicated from your summary to your answers to the



               7   questions you were asked by various counsel about your



               8   belief that shifting all risks to the contractor was



               9   going to result in exorbitant costs.  Do you remember



              10   saying words to this effect?



              11        A.   Yes.



              12        Q.   And I apologize if you said this, but just to



              13   get where we are going, have you ever seen, in your



              14   years of experience, a contract of the type that you



              15   understand Daymark is suggesting the company needs to



              16   enter into with its contractors?



              17        A.   No, I have not in -- in this -- in my



              18   experience, seen anybody who would be willing to sign up



              19   for a hundred percent all the risk.



              20        Q.   Okay.  Now, my question was about contractors.



              21   There's also questions about your -- about Tri-State,



              22   who you point out is not a contractor, it's a co-owner.



              23   Are you aware of whether or not Tri-State, or if there



              24   are participation or operation agreements, is it typical



              25   to shift all of the risks to whoever the operator is?
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               1        A.   In all the ones I have been involved with,



               2   both the ones that we are the operator and the ones that



               3   we are not the operator, I have never seen one where all



               4   the risk is shifted to the operator.



               5        Q.   And so there are instances, as I understand



               6   it, when the company is in the shoes of -- of Tri-State



               7   where the company is the operator but it has different



               8   co-owners?



               9        A.   Yeah.  We have three plants that that's the



              10   case.



              11        Q.   And in those plants, has the company allowed



              12   those other co-owners to say to the company, "Hey, you



              13   are the operator.  If there is some kind of outage, if



              14   there is some kind of, you know, risk, you are



              15   holding -- that all goes to you"?



              16        A.   No, we have not allowed that.



              17        Q.   Would the company enter into such a contract?



              18        A.   Absolutely not.



              19        Q.   Now, as long as we are talking about the



              20   contract, there was a question asked at one point about



              21   is the standard different, meaning if the company is



              22   entering into contracts to have someone else operate



              23   this plant, does that expose customers to greater risk?



              24   Is the standard different?  Do you remember that --



              25        A.   Yeah.
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               1        Q.   -- questioning?  What is your understanding



               2   of -- and again, I know you are not a lawyer, so I don't



               3   mean, you know, the legal terms.  But is your



               4   understanding that there is any kind of shift that makes



               5   customers more at risk either whether, you know,



               6   Tri-State's operating it or the company's operating it?



               7        A.   The standard we have with the commission is



               8   the same standard Tri-State has with us.



               9        Q.   And what is that standard?



              10        A.   Reasonable and prudent utility standard.



              11        Q.   Okay.  So to be clear, you weren't in your



              12   answers trying to imply that somehow customers have a --



              13   less protection if Tri-State is operating it compared to



              14   the company?



              15        A.   No.



              16        Q.   Okay.  Now, you were asked a series of



              17   questions about how the company does stay engaged if it



              18   does have another operator rather than itself.  You



              19   recall those questions?



              20        A.   Yes.



              21        Q.   Just to give the commission a sense of how



              22   involved the company is, because this is your job



              23   duties, when was the last time that you visited one of



              24   those such plants, or how often does that happen?  Can



              25   you give just a sense of how the company does stay
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               1   engaged?



               2        A.   The -- at -- at my level, we usually discuss



               3   things at least quarterly unless there's something else



               4   going on.  Okay.  And then the E and O level, they have



               5   daily e-mails on status and everything else, but then



               6   they meet, is it five or six times a year?  I can't



               7   remember which the exact number is, for things like



               8   long-term planning, budgeting and everything.



               9             But again, if there is an event going on, they



              10   will have a call, or we have sent people to the plant to



              11   inspect things for ourselves when they said, here is an



              12   event that happened and it's going to cost us X to fix.



              13   And then we'll send people down there to lay our own



              14   eyes on it and see if we concur.



              15        Q.   Okay.  So when was the last time you were at a



              16   third party plant?



              17        A.   I was at a third party meeting two weeks ago.



              18        Q.   Okay.



              19        A.   Actually, four of them two weeks ago.



              20        Q.   You were asked questions about contractors and



              21   why the company is hiring contractors and why isn't the



              22   company just doing this itself, and, again, that may not



              23   have been that pointed, but questions going towards



              24   that.



              25             Just to help the commission in making its
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               1   decision, can you explain generally why does the company



               2   hire contractors rather than just having employees to do



               3   all of the jobs that need to happen to maintain the



               4   plant?



               5        A.   So during an overhaul, we will get a whole



               6   bunch of work.  I don't know how else to say it.  We



               7   will work 24 hours a day, seven days a week on that five



               8   week period.  And at any given time, there could be,



               9   depending on the scope of work, 400 to 800 people



              10   on-site, okay, that we need.



              11             And we don't staff up for that.  We staff up



              12   for forced outages and day-to-day maintenance, because



              13   we are doing these overhauls once every four years.  I



              14   mean, it doesn't make sense to try to staff up to that



              15   level.  I mean, give you an example is, relative



              16   staffing at the Huntington plant is less than 200 people



              17   or around there, and we have had outages where we have



              18   had 600 to 700 people on there.



              19             We don't need that except for about six, eight



              20   weeks out of every four years.  So we are going to hire



              21   contractors for labor, and also we're going to hire them



              22   for technical expertise.  We don't -- we don't claim to



              23   be experts on how to tear a turbine apart and put it



              24   back together.  People, the OEMs and other that have



              25   that much more experience than we do.
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               1             I mean, and especially as we have stretched



               2   outages out, the frequency that you get that experience



               3   and knowledge gets stretched out too.  So we use



               4   contractors because that's the most cost effective way



               5   to do it for the customer.



               6        Q.   Okay.  I'd like to now go through and just



               7   touch on several of the specific outages that you were



               8   asked questions about, and, of course, the first one



               9   that came up was Craig Unit 2.  And that's the -- again,



              10   just to clarify for everyone, that's the unit where



              11   there was at some point a plug backed out and there was



              12   a leak?



              13        A.   Correct.



              14        Q.   Okay.  There was a line of questioning about



              15   torque.  You noted in your testimony, no one put a



              16   specific torque level because that wasn't required.  Do



              17   you remember that when you were questioned about that?



              18        A.   Yes.



              19        Q.   Wouldn't it be prudent, or would it cost a lot



              20   more to go back and put a torque spec in there.  Do you



              21   remember those questions?



              22        A.   Yeah.  And that -- that procedure is the



              23   General Electric or the OEM's procedure.



              24        Q.   Okay.  So that you -- you anticipated my



              25   question, which is, is that -- is that something that
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               1   the company comes up with or the actual manufacturer of



               2   the part comes up with?



               3        A.   No, the actual manufacturer or the contractor



               4   doing the work.



               5        Q.   Okay.  So it's not that the company didn't



               6   come along and say, oh, we didn't bother spec'ing.  It



               7   was GE itself that didn't have a spec for torquing it



               8   called out?



               9        A.   Correct.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   Generally when we do contracting work like



              12   that, we will scope the -- the -- not how to do the



              13   work, but the scope of work we want, you know,



              14   disassemble, clean, inspect, repair, that kind of thing.



              15   We won't tell them how to necessarily do the work.



              16        Q.   Okay.  There was, I think, some implied



              17   assumptions that this one bolt that came out just



              18   probably wasn't tightened all the way.  Is there -- is



              19   that something that we know?  Do we know that the reason



              20   that bolt or plug came out is because it wasn't properly



              21   tightened?



              22        A.   We don't really know.  We're surmising.



              23        Q.   Is there anything else that you could think of



              24   that could possibly cause that plug to fail?



              25        A.   If there's a defect in the plug possibly.
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               1        Q.   Okay.  Do we -- okay.  Let's -- let's switch



               2   now from the Craig unit -- well, actually I want to back



               3   up one more thing.  I had one more thought on the -- the



               4   leak.  If this really was just because it wasn't



               5   tightened, there was a question about, well, did anybody



               6   come behind the tightening and test to see if it was,



               7   you know, tightened up.  And the answer was, no one came



               8   right behind him, but there was a test that was put in



               9   place.



              10        A.   Yeah, there was a leak test at 48 pounds of



              11   pressure --



              12        Q.   Okay.



              13        A.   -- for 24 hours to prove that the leakage was



              14   acceptable for the machine.



              15        Q.   Okay.  And would that -- would, again, I know



              16   you didn't go and test it, but would you assume that if



              17   there is a plug that simply hasn't been tightened,



              18   someone, when they put them all in by hand and then came



              19   back with their wrench, if someone didn't tighten one



              20   down, would you assume that a -- that such a plug would



              21   be able to withstand a 48 pound of pressure test at 24



              22   hours without any evidence of leaking?



              23        A.   If they didn't tighten it down or if it --



              24        Q.   Yeah.  If it wasn't fully tightened, if



              25   someone just like hand threaded it in kind of thing?
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               1        A.   It's -- it's possible, but it, it kind of



               2   depends on, you know, is it just sitting in there?  Or



               3   if it was tight or -- I mean, if -- it's possible it



               4   could have, but at the same time, it probably would have



               5   failed the test.



               6        Q.   Okay.  All right.  So let's go to the Dave



               7   Johnston, the first outage which was, this is the



               8   nonconforming tube, okay.  And to clarify, does the



               9   company know when the piece of nonconforming tubing was



              10   put in place?



              11        A.   No, we do not.



              12        Q.   Does the company know why nonconforming



              13   material was put in place?



              14        A.   No, we do not.



              15        Q.   If the commission was going to be judging



              16   utility standards based on what the utility knew or



              17   should have known at the time conduct occurred, can you



              18   think of any reason why it could have been prudent to



              19   put a nonconforming piece of material in, you know, 20,



              20   30 years ago?



              21        A.   As -- as I said is, the two tubes, the one



              22   that failed and the one next to it, are just inches



              23   apart.  This material was the same as the one putting in



              24   the nonconforming material.  If the nonconforming



              25   material was not available and wasn't going to be
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               1   available for several days or a week or whatever,



               2   because they are so close, I would have made the



               3   judgment call to put it in to get the unit back to



               4   service.



               5        Q.   Okay.  And just so we're clear, if -- whether



               6   it's 20 years later or even two weeks later, if someone



               7   were to look at these two tubes, can you visually see,



               8   hey, that's not the same kind of tubing; that's



               9   obviously nonconforming material?



              10        A.   No.  You -- you -- visually you wouldn't be



              11   able to tell the difference.



              12        Q.   All right.  Let's move on to the September



              13   Dave Johnson's outage.  This is the one with the



              14   detonation cord, the tubing that may have -- again, I'll



              15   say it may have been damaged by blasting, just so we're



              16   talking about the same outage.  Okay.  You covered this



              17   a little bit, but again, very briefly, first of all, why



              18   is the company deslagging boilers?  What is happening?



              19        A.   When you have a failure on a tube and you go



              20   in to repair it, a lot of times there will be slag



              21   hanging in big chunks.  If they are large enough, I



              22   effectually call them '64 Buicks, and you don't want



              23   people working underneath them.



              24        Q.   Okay.



              25        A.   Because if they come down and fall, it could



                                                                        86

�













               1   kill them.



               2        Q.   Okay.



               3        A.   So we go in and deslag it to make the area



               4   safe to do the repairs.



               5        Q.   Okay.  And so it's deslagged for safety



               6   reasons.  Is that --



               7        A.   There -- there are some operational advantages



               8   in that, but generally, if it's related to a tube leak,



               9   it's because we want to clean the area so it's safe.



              10        Q.   Okay.



              11        A.   And then if we have them in, we may do some



              12   other blasting for performance reasons, like if an area



              13   is starting to plug off.



              14        Q.   Okay.  And the alternative to explosions is



              15   manual, and how did that happen?  I think you talked



              16   about you could do it manually.  How -- how would that



              17   work if you were manually deslagging?



              18        A.   Sledge hammers, picks.  You know, you just hit



              19   the stuff.  You just beat on it.



              20        Q.   And just why is that more dangerous to



              21   workers?



              22        A.   Well, you take the chance of it ricocheting



              23   off and get in your eye, or you are in awkward positions



              24   because, you know, you are standing on little platforms



              25   about this big in between panels.  It is just putting
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               1   people at risk.



               2        Q.   Okay.  So one of the assumptions that's



               3   made -- well, I guess, IEC says there is a



               4   recommendation that you switch to the load detonation



               5   cord, right?



               6        A.   Yes.  And as I said, I believe that was, if we



               7   haven't already done it, they were flagging it saying,



               8   they are seeing stress damage in these tubes that are



               9   original equipment.



              10        Q.   And that happened eight -- eight years ago.



              11   Is that what you said?



              12        A.   When we switched?



              13        Q.   When you switched?



              14        A.   2011.



              15        Q.   Okay.  So seven, six years ago from the



              16   incidents in question.  So can you surmise anything



              17   about, based on the fact that this tubing still was



              18   operational for at least five, six years, vis-a-vis how



              19   much damage that blasting did or didn't contribute to



              20   the leak?



              21        A.   Well, I can't tell when the damage was done,



              22   whether it was 10 years ago or 20 years ago.  It's just



              23   residual damage in the tube.



              24        Q.   Okay.  The point is, I guess, you would agree



              25   that it's not like the blasting damaged the tube so it
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               1   failed two weeks later, right?



               2        A.   No.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4        A.   Again, there's two elements on this -- this



               5   outage.  You have the embrittlement, which happens when



               6   you are operating at temperatures over 700 degrees, and



               7   it's kind of like, you seen a tire that's weather



               8   checked.  And you can tell the tire is kind of worn out



               9   because you can see all the weather checking on the side



              10   of the tire, and you can tell it's on its last days.



              11             Okay.  You have to have that and the blasting



              12   damage for it to really come up.  If you put this on a



              13   brand-new tube, it probably would never show up.



              14        Q.   Okay.



              15        A.   As a failure.



              16        Q.   Let's switch to the Huntington 1 outage.  This



              17   is the one where there was like the welds and there



              18   was -- there was a question about, well, wait a minute.



              19   Isn't this the fourth time in 11 years?  Do you recall



              20   that line of questioning?



              21        A.   Yes.



              22        Q.   So have you calculated that?  What is the



              23   failure rate of these welds that are at issue?



              24        A.   Well, less than 1 percent.



              25        Q.   Okay.
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               1        A.   4 over 605 I believe it is.



               2        Q.   And did I hear you testify that there were 600



               3   of these welds in just in this plant?



               4        A.   No, in this section.



               5        Q.   So there's even -- there's far more than that



               6   in a plant?



               7        A.   There -- there can be other places where there



               8   are other dissimilar metal welds.



               9        Q.   Okay.  And you testified that -- someone asked



              10   you how much it would cost if you were to go in and do



              11   those welds, and you had a number which was?



              12        A.   I am estimating if you had to replace all 600



              13   and some, it would be close to $2 million.



              14        Q.   Okay.



              15        A.   Ish.



              16        Q.   And so one of the things I want to get to is



              17   kind of how you plan these planned outages, but I guess



              18   what I am wanting to understand is, if you have a less



              19   than 1 percent failure rate and yet $2 million plus



              20   repair bill, the implication has been made to this



              21   commission, hey, you should have fixed this.  You have



              22   had a chance to fix it, why didn't you fix it sooner?



              23             And so I am wondering if you can explain why



              24   that didn't come up in any planning for that at this



              25   plant previously.
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               1        A.   Well, the -- the failure rate -- we -- we knew



               2   the mechanism was there, and we were monitoring it.  But



               3   with that failure rate and the cost to replace



               4   everything, it, it wouldn't pencil out as a prudent



               5   expenditure, because the risk over here was smaller than



               6   the capital expenditure of 2 million plus dollars.



               7        Q.   Okay.  So what -- just so they under --



               8   because we have talked about this so much today, can you



               9   at a high level explain to the commission, what does go



              10   into planning for an outage?



              11        A.   Well, we usually spend at least a year working



              12   on it.  I mean, actually the -- the next outage starts



              13   six weeks after the last one begin -- or ended.  We --



              14   we get all the inspection reports that we have.  We



              15   document them, and we create a scope of work that we



              16   know we have to do next time.



              17             But then in between that, other data we get,



              18   based on analysis and that, will develop that scope of



              19   work.  And we'll develop the scope of work, and then



              20   we'll start figuring out who is going to do what and



              21   what we're going to contract out.  We will go out for



              22   competitive bidding, and we'll negotiate contracts.



              23   We'll award those.  We'll schedule things.



              24             The week before the outage is always very



              25   entertaining, because you will have hundreds of people
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               1   showing up, and you will get them through security and



               2   train them on safety protocols for our plant and then



               3   get them set up for work.



               4             People will bring in contractor trailers, and



               5   it's -- it's kind of like you are building a little



               6   city.  And then you take the unit off, and everybody



               7   kind of goes to work.  And then daily -- and you have



               8   the schedule set up and now they have nice scheduling



               9   tools.



              10             The one we tend to use is called Primavera,



              11   and you put all the tasks in there, and you link them



              12   all together so that if one task takes longer, you can



              13   see the effect and you can try to figure out a way



              14   around it.



              15             And you have at least daily meetings to talk



              16   about schedule update, safety, a number of other things.



              17   And you -- you -- when you tear stuff apart, you find



              18   out the condition of it, and sometimes it's worse than



              19   you like it to be, and sometimes it's better than you



              20   like it to be.  Unfortunately, most of the time it's the



              21   opposite.



              22             So and then you try to figure out how to get



              23   work done on the equipment that you find that needs to



              24   be repaired that you aren't expecting to repair.



              25             And then you basically put it all back
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               1   together, and you commission it and you start it up, and



               2   we do all that in about five weeks.  So and then we run



               3   it basically continuously except for forced outages for



               4   four years.



               5        Q.   Mr. Ralston, I'd like to now turn your



               6   attention to the Jim Bridger Unit 3.  This is the cable



               7   pull that was that outage that -- so we are all thinking



               8   about the same thing.



               9        A.   Yes.



              10        Q.   This is probably implied in some answers you



              11   gave, but I don't think anyone ever asked you directly,



              12   so I will ask it now.  Is this cable that's being pulled



              13   through, is this something that is visible you can look



              14   at and see, hey, that's been damaged?



              15        A.   No.  There's only little sections that are



              16   exposed, and that would be in the manholes, you know,



              17   and they are six-by-six.



              18        Q.   Okay.



              19        A.   Four-by-four or something like that, and the



              20   rest of it is buried in a conduit.  Kind of be like



              21   saying, go inspect your gas line from your gas meter out



              22   to the street.  I mean, it's buried.  You can't see it.



              23   So you do a pressure test or something else on the gas



              24   line.  In this case when the cable's pulled in, they do



              25   an electrical test on it generally.
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               1        Q.   Now, when you said it's six-by-six, is that



               2   six feet by six feet or six --



               3        A.   Six feet by six feet.  It's a little vault.



               4        Q.   Okay.  When -- I guess the point I want to get



               5   to is, prior to the event in question, had this cable



               6   ever functionally, operationally or visibly given the --



               7   the company notice that it -- there was a problem?  Did



               8   it ever not perform?



               9        A.   No.



              10        Q.   Okay.  And so I guess I just want to remove



              11   any thought the commission would have of whether the



              12   company goes, oh, yeah, we know we have got some damaged



              13   cable but we just don't want to bother repairing it?



              14        A.   No, we didn't know it was damaged until we



              15   pulled it out of the hole.



              16        Q.   All right.  Okay.  I think that covers it.



              17   Thank you.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Moscon.



              19   Mr. Jetter, any recross?



              20             MR. JETTER:  I do have some recross.



              21                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION



              22   BY MR. JETTER:



              23        Q.   Good afternoon.



              24        A.   Sure.



              25        Q.   I asked someone to make an exhibit that I am



                                                                        94

�













               1   still waiting on.  There's a little bit of new testimony



               2   here that I think that needs to be addressed.  So I am



               3   going to skip around just a little bit until we get



               4   that.



               5             Just to address the -- the question of the --



               6   the plug that was installed and had fallen out on the --



               7   on the generation facility, I can't recall which one?



               8        A.   Craig 2.



               9        Q.   Craig 2.  It's -- it's correct that those were



              10   removed so that a sealing compound could be pumped



              11   through the hole; is that correct?



              12        A.   That's correct.



              13        Q.   Is that sealing compound important to seal



              14   gaps such as a potentially not fully tightened plug?



              15        A.   It would have the same effect, yes.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And so a not fully tightened plug, you



              17   would probably expect if that sealing compound were



              18   working correctly, would seal that hole?



              19        A.   That's potentially depending on how tight the



              20   plug was.



              21        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



              22             MR. JETTER:  May I approach the witness and



              23   hand out an exhibit?



              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Yes.



              25             MR. JETTER:  I'd like to note that this, I
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               1   believe, is a designated confidential exhibit.  I don't



               2   know if we need to go -- we probably should go into a



               3   confidential session if we're going to discuss this.



               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Are you making that



               5   motion?



               6             MR. JETTER:  I'll -- I'll make the motion.



               7   It's -- it's a little bit of a tricky position because



               8   it's not my claimed confidentiality.



               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Oh, sure.



              10             MR. JETTER:  But I think it's appropriate, so



              11   I'll make the motion.



              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is there any objection



              13   from any party to closing the hearing to the public



              14   while we're discussing this?  I am not seeing any



              15   objection, so let me just -- we need to -- we have to



              16   make a finding, and I'll just see if there's any



              17   objection from -- okay.



              18             Pursuant to Utah Code Section 54-3-21, we find



              19   that it is in the interest of the public to close the



              20   hearing while we are discussing this exhibit.  I'll ask



              21   those that are in the room to just look at those that



              22   are in the audience.  I don't know if we have anyone in



              23   the audience today who is not privileged, not entitled



              24   to access to this material.  If anyone sees anyone who



              25   isn't, please indicate to me.  I recognize most of the
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               1   people in the room, one or two that I don't, but it



               2   looks like we're in good shape.



               3             I will -- while we're in confidential, I will



               4   turn off both the microphone speakers and the hearing



               5   loop system.  If anyone is relying on the hearing loop



               6   system to hear, I am -- I'm going to have it turned off



               7   while -- while we do this -- and yeah, I mean, because



               8   it's accessible into the hallway.  So it might be a



               9   little bit harder for you to hear.  If you have any



              10   difficulty hearing just let the witness know, and we'll



              11   do that.



              12             (The following portion was marked confidential



              13   and was heard in closed session:)



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4                             * * *



               5                             * * *



               6                             * * *



               7                             * * *



               8                             * * *



               9                             * * *



              10                             * * *



              11                             * * *



              12                             * * *



              13                             * * *



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4                             * * *



               5                             * * *



               6                             * * *



               7                             * * *



               8                             * * *



               9                             * * *



              10                             * * *



              11                             * * *



              12                             * * *



              13                             * * *



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4                             * * *



               5                             * * *



               6                             * * *



               7                             * * *



               8                             * * *



               9                             * * *



              10                             * * *



              11                             * * *



              12                             * * *



              13                             * * *



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4                             * * *



               5                             * * *



               6                             * * *



               7                             * * *



               8                             * * *



               9                             * * *



              10                             * * *



              11                             * * *



              12                             * * *



              13                             * * *



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4                             * * *



               5                             * * *



               6                             * * *



               7                             * * *



               8                             * * *



               9                             * * *



              10                             * * *



              11                             * * *



              12                             * * *



              13                             * * *



              14                             * * *



              15                             * * *



              16                             * * *



              17                             * * *



              18                             * * *



              19                             * * *



              20                             * * *



              21                             * * *



              22                             * * *



              23                             * * *



              24                             * * *



              25                             * * *
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               1                             * * *



               2                             * * *



               3                             * * *



               4             (The confidential portion ended, and the



               5   public hearing proceeded as follows:)



               6        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  And this is a nonconfidential



               7   question, so I am not asking you for the -- the value of



               8   this, but in response to what we were discussing



               9   earlier, the liquidated damages, did the liquidated



              10   damages recovered by the company under that contract,



              11   were they equal to, greater or lesser than the value of



              12   the replacement energy?



              13        A.   Lesser.



              14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



              15             MR. JETTER:  I have no further questions.



              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Mr. Russell, any



              17   recross?



              18             MR. RUSSELL:  Yeah.  Just a couple of



              19   questions.



              20                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION



              21   BY MR. RUSSELL:



              22        Q.   Mr. Ralston, you were asked some questions



              23   generally about the company's efforts to mitigate costs



              24   to customers in the event that, whether the company or a



              25   contractor makes an error somewhere along the way.  And
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               1   we've -- we've have discussed that in -- in the context



               2   of contractual provisions, I guess, you know, has -- has



               3   the company ever pursued obtaining an insurance policy



               4   against these sorts of -- of potential damages?



               5        A.   I haven't been directly involved with that,



               6   but I understand it's expensive.  I -- I haven't got any



               7   benchmark or say how expensive it is.  I just know



               8   that -- I have been told by when we have asked



               9   contractors to do it that it's very pricey.



              10        Q.   When you have asked contractors to obtain a



              11   insurance policy --



              12        A.   Well, like --



              13        Q.   -- like a rider to their contract or



              14   something?



              15        A.   When -- when we have negotiated that, we just



              16   kind of go, why don't you get an insurance policy for



              17   that if they are so worried about it.  And they go back



              18   and look at it and said, no, we're not interested.  It's



              19   too expensive.  So again, we have used it as more of a



              20   negotiating tool.



              21        Q.   Okay.  But other than -- other than



              22   negotiating with contractors, the company itself hasn't



              23   tried to insure itself against --



              24        A.   Not to my knowledge.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And then you were asked a question
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               1   about the Dave Johnson 3 outage -- we're talking about



               2   the nonconforming materials -- by Mr. Moscon.  I, I --



               3   you had indicated that there -- there may be some



               4   reasons why you might install the nonconforming material



               5   at the time, if that's -- that's the material that you



               6   have and if the conforming material wasn't available.



               7   Do you recall that?



               8        A.   Yes.



               9        Q.   In the event that you -- that you installed



              10   nonconforming materials for whatever reason, wouldn't



              11   you then make sure to make a note of it so that the



              12   company in later years would know that there's



              13   nonconforming material in there, knowing that it will be



              14   difficult to ascertain just by looking at it later on?



              15        A.   Generally, we would do that.  Again, if this



              16   was 30 years ago, it was a completely papered system.



              17   And when you go through a merger or two, and then you



              18   adopt another system, I don't know what happened to



              19   those records.



              20        Q.   Yeah.  But just, if -- if you -- if you were



              21   to do that now, I guess is where I am --



              22        A.   We, we would have a note in our database, and



              23   we would be able to call that up, planning for the next



              24   outage, and -- and identify all the nonconformances, and



              25   they would be added to the work load.
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               1        Q.   So if you knew from the previous outage you



               2   had installed some sort of the nonconforming material,



               3   and you -- you were -- you were able to plan for it



               4   going forward, you might make the decision to replace



               5   that nonconforming material with conforming material if



               6   that conforming material is available during the next



               7   outage?



               8        A.   Yes.



               9        Q.   Okay.



              10        A.   And when I say outage, I mean planned



              11   overhaul.



              12        Q.   Understood.  Understood.  Thank you.



              13             MR. RUSSELL:  And that's all I have.  Thanks.



              14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think we



              15   had discussed rerecross.



              16             MR. MOSCON:  Sure.  And I -- and I guess I can



              17   just be very short.  Mr. --



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Do we need to go into



              19   confidential, closed hearing for this?



              20             MR. MOSCON:  No.  I think we can just do it



              21   this way.



              22                  FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION



              23   BY MR. MOSCON:



              24        Q.   Mr. Ralston, you were shown a confidential



              25   attachment, DPU 1.6-1, and there was some question about
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               1   why some -- you know, liquidated damages weren't



               2   reported pertaining to the MD&A situation at Naughton



               3   Unit 2?



               4             So again, just so we're clear, what was your



               5   understanding as to why the one doesn't answer the



               6   other's question?



               7        A.   6.1 is for forced outages, and I understood



               8   6.2 was for planned outages.  And the question was on --



               9   on reimbursements from forced outages, and we didn't



              10   have any unforced outages.



              11             MR. MOSCON:  All right.  Thank you.  No



              12   further follow-up.



              13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think I



              14   am going to ask a few questions, and then I think my



              15   colleagues have some more.  It might take me a moment to



              16   make notes, I want to make sure I don't just ask things



              17   that have already been asked and answered.



              18                          EXAMINATION



              19   BY CHAIRMAN LEVAR:



              20        Q.   For the Craig 2 outage, we have had a lot of



              21   discussion today about this plug, and the pressure test



              22   that was performed.  I think the only question I had



              23   left that hasn't been answered is, as an engineer you



              24   discussed the pressure test that was performed and --



              25   and the -- the -- the pressure it was performed at.  As
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               1   an engineer, is it physically possible to conduct a



               2   vibration test for this plug?



               3        A.   No.



               4        Q.   Is -- is that -- is that just an



               5   impossibility?



               6        A.   No, you wouldn't be able to do that.



               7        Q.   Okay.  It seems like what -- it seems like



               8   you'd have to -- I -- I started thinking through what



               9   might be necessary.  That's -- that's what it seemed to



              10   me.



              11        A.   Yeah.  I don't know how you would shake --



              12   shake the thing.



              13        Q.   So is there -- is there any way to test for



              14   vibrations, impacts other than starting the plant back



              15   up?



              16        A.   Not to my knowledge.



              17        Q.   Okay.  And then to clarify, you -- you don't



              18   know for a fact that it was vibrations that caused this



              19   plug to come out, but that's one of your --



              20        A.   No, it's a reasonable deduction.



              21        Q.   Okay.  The Dave Jonnson Unit 3 April 2017



              22   outage.



              23        A.   Yeah.



              24        Q.   Not the -- the dis -- not dissimilar, the



              25   nonconforming tubing that was installed, do you have any
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               1   reason not to -- not to presume that the tube was also



               2   nonconforming when it was installed some 20 plus years



               3   ago?  It was nonconforming at the time of installation;



               4   is that correct?



               5        A.   Yes.  Because of the material it was made out



               6   of.



               7        Q.   Okay.  And is it your presumption that it



               8   would have been documented at the time, but that



               9   document -- the, the reason for the installation of the



              10   nonconforming tube would have been documented, but



              11   there's not a way to find that documentation any more?



              12        A.   In -- in my experience, from 30 plus years



              13   ago, we would have documented it somehow.



              14        Q.   Okay.



              15        A.   And -- and flagged it.



              16        Q.   Okay.



              17        A.   Now, again, it would have been a paper system,



              18   and it could have been in somebody's file or, you know,



              19   there -- there was -- the technology has taken us a long



              20   way on being able to manage maintenance.  I mean, just



              21   look at your car from the 1960s to today.



              22        Q.   So would you say it was probably an indexing



              23   problem, a document management issue of why we don't



              24   have access to that -- to that documentation any more?



              25        A.   That's my best guess.  I really don't know.
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               1        Q.   Okay.



               2        A.   So I mean, you don't know what was actually



               3   done at that time, whether the records were there or --



               4   and whether it got discarded or missed or what.



               5        Q.   Okay.



               6        A.   You don't really know.



               7        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



               8        A.   Because it was all a paper system.



               9        Q.   Okay.  I think that's almost all of my



              10   questions.  Oh, okay.  The Jim Bridger Unit 2 outage,



              11   and you may have already answered this, when you



              12   discussed, I -- I think you discussed during the



              13   preventive maintenance that an inspector discovered



              14   there was voltage but no current.  Am I -- am I --



              15        A.   That's correct.



              16        Q.   That is what you said before?  So how --



              17   and -- and you indicated that that inspector did not



              18   flag the issue properly, but how -- so how do we know



              19   that the inspector discovered that?



              20        A.   Well, he wrote on the PM form.



              21        Q.   Okay.  Wrote it on a form?



              22        A.   He wrote it on the form that there was a



              23   voltage, or he had a 208 voltage and zero current.



              24        Q.   Okay.  So it was written -- it was noted but



              25   not flagged?
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               1        A.   Yes.



               2        Q.   And I -- I think you already answered this.



               3   This inspector was -- was a contractor?



               4        A.   No, he was one of our employees.



               5        Q.   Pacific Power employee.  Okay.



               6        A.   He was our -- we call them CET, control



               7   electrical tech.



               8        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I think I understand all the



               9   rest of the testimony on that.  Let's see.  No.  Okay.



              10   For Dave Johnson Unit 4, when you hired -- hired MD&A as



              11   the contractor, you had indicated that you have used



              12   them a lot, right?



              13        A.   Yeah.  We have used them several times, and I



              14   have a -- I have done business with them for well over



              15   20 years.



              16        Q.   What kind of mandatory minimum qualifications



              17   do you -- do you establish?  Does -- does -- does your



              18   history of working with them generally satisfy any --



              19   any mandatory minimum qualifications?



              20        A.   No.  It's also their work experience.  You



              21   know, we have never done business with them, but they



              22   have been out in the business for 15 years and done 50



              23   jobs.  And we will call, ask for references and talk to



              24   people, and how well did they work?  What was their



              25   safety record?  You know, were they competent?  That
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               1   kind of thing.  That's how we usually qualify a newer



               2   contractor that we don't have a lot of experience with.



               3        Q.   Okay.  With this particular job, with their



               4   work on this control rotor main oil pump impeller, I



               5   think I am saying that right, did they miss any



               6   deadlines or any miss any delivery dates prior to the



               7   discovery of this incorrect part installation?



               8        A.   Well, the -- the real delivery date is, we



               9   call it gear time, when it's put back together and the



              10   oil flush is done and everything else, and it's turned



              11   over to operations to restart the plant.  There's kind



              12   of really only one -- there is -- there is two dates,



              13   oil flush, but the real date is when you turn it over to



              14   operations, because that's the only thing that really



              15   matters.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And was that deadline satisfied and



              17   then the -- and then improper installation was



              18   discovered?



              19        A.   No, no, no.



              20        Q.   This was prior -- this was prior to that?



              21        A.   Yeah, they -- they -- they missed that



              22   deadline because of the rotor.



              23        Q.   Because of the discovery?



              24        A.   Yeah.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And they -- they discovered the part
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               1   prior to that deadline?



               2        A.   Yeah.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4        A.   So yeah.  When it came back on-site, when we



               5   were doing a reinspection between ourselves and MD&A



               6   on-site people, it was discovered that it was the wrong



               7   impeller at that time, before it was ever installed in



               8   the machine.



               9             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think that's all of



              10   my questions.  Thank you.  Commissioner White?



              11                          EXAMINATION



              12   BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:



              13        Q.   Good afternoon.  The first question, just



              14   harking -- and this -- this may be potentially a



              15   question better addressed by Mr. Wilding.  But I just



              16   want to clarify the liquidated damages issue, and I am



              17   going to avoid any confidential information if possible



              18   here.



              19             But I thought I heard, whether it was you



              20   testifying or Mr. Moscon clarifying, the battle,



              21   typically those liquidated damages are somehow, goes to



              22   the customers benefit.  Is that -- is that -- does that



              23   go to the net power cost equation?  Does that offset an



              24   expense of some respect?  I am just trying to understand



              25   was the capital in --
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               1        A.   It reduces the capital amount of the project



               2   that's capitalized and goes into rates.



               3        Q.   Okay.



               4        A.   I think Mr. Wilding would be much better to



               5   explain all the accounting practices on that.



               6        Q.   Yeah.  We -- I -- I -- I hate to do this



               7   because I am not clear if this is an issue that actually



               8   reduces rate base or if it's actually part of the EBA.



               9   I am just wondering if it's outside.  Is he still sworn



              10   in, or is that possible to have him answer from the --



              11             MR. MOSCON:  Whatever is pleasing to the



              12   commission, we're happy to do.



              13             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Do you want to wait



              14   until we're finished with Mr. Ralston, or do you want to



              15   do that right now?  It's up to you.



              16             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Why don't -- why don't we



              17   wait -- we'll just -- we'll -- you can doodle on it for



              18   a minute.



              19             This is more of a general question.  So I have



              20   heard you mention, and I -- I -- I don't know if this is



              21   a term or art or not, but, you know, this reasonable



              22   prudent utility standard, and -- and so if we're looking



              23   at actions of the company in comparison to that time



              24   decisions were made, what -- what does mean?



              25             Are we to look at -- is there like a general
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               1   code, like the NESC?  Is there -- is this a, you know, a



               2   manual that's provided specific to whatever component



               3   you're dealing with?  Or what -- what should we actually



               4   be looking at, I guess, in terms of that standard?  How



               5   should we be comparing the actions of the company.



               6        A.   Part of the reason that kind of phrase is in



               7   there is because there is really no, what I would call



               8   written guide book, and you hand it to somebody and say,



               9   here is what reasonable prudent utility standard is.



              10   It's kind of what has developed in the industry, and you



              11   would be compared to other utilities and the other



              12   metrics and that.  So it's kind of like benchmarking for



              13   lack of better term.  Okay.



              14        Q.   So -- so is there -- is there nothing -- I



              15   mean, when -- when you are describing the company's



              16   practices, it's based upon your experiences, you know,



              17   in the industry of 37 years.  There is nothing you can



              18   say, well, this is as documented by, you know, Evista in



              19   their planned outage of, you know, 1994, or this is how



              20   southern company -- there's -- there's nothing like



              21   that.



              22             It's just your experience as a plant operator



              23   doing overhauls, et cetera, that's -- that's -- I guess,



              24   I am just trying to figure out how do we explore that in



              25   terms of like -- we're not -- I am not an engineer or a
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               1   plant operator, certainly haven't been doing it for 37



               2   years, so I am just wondering what -- how do we test



               3   that I guess?



               4        A.   It's a good question.  On -- on outage data on



               5   that, if -- take Evista, for example.  I don't have any



               6   transparency or access to their data or anything else.



               7   The only access I have data to is for plants we own.  I



               8   mean, if you look at the NERC gas data, it's pretty



               9   generic, okay.  I mean, from a -- from a public view.



              10             A lot of utilities will share data.  Like at



              11   our partner plants, we will share information between us



              12   and the Tri-State people, through us, Excel people that



              13   operate the Hayden plant through us, and -- and the APS



              14   people that operate the Cholla plant.  So we -- we tend



              15   to share information and best practices.  It's not



              16   necessarily a formalized document.



              17             Okay.  A lot of the information sharing is bad



              18   things that happen to us, and -- and we share it so that



              19   it doesn't have to happen to anybody else.  And --



              20   and -- and for us, our SDR process are significant



              21   events.  The whole purpose was that if something happens



              22   at a plant site that it's shared with the other plant



              23   sites so we don't have to live through that again if at



              24   all possible.  So that -- there isn't a real structured



              25   way to do it.
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               1        Q.   Let me ask you this.  It sounds like when you



               2   are -- when you are doing plant outages, you attempt to



               3   schedule those the most economic times; in other words,



               4   when power costs are lowest, because you are going to



               5   have to replace power.



               6             Do you have any sense of what the typical



               7   replacement costs are for a four to six week average



               8   plant outage?



               9        A.   No.  Mike might have a better idea on it.



              10   What -- what we do, just so you understand is, we kind



              11   of come up with the scope of the time we need and then



              12   we kind of say, we need it in this year.



              13             And then we go to our -- our trading people,



              14   who have the best knowledge of -- of when prices are



              15   going to be what.  You know, they forecast them, and



              16   say, just tell us when we can have it so that we have



              17   that information a year or two out, so we can plan



              18   around it and develop contracts and everything else.



              19             So generally, from what I have seen, is April,



              20   May tends to be the lowest.



              21        Q.   Let me ask you about this concept that you



              22   testified to earlier in terms of like, you know,



              23   essentially when you are contracting with a counter



              24   party, there is always going to be risk -- risk



              25   shifting, and somebody is going to pay for it depending
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               1   on where that goes on the site, you know, the contract.



               2             And, and I also kind of heard you testify that



               3   there is no counter party who will ever -- at least



               4   there is not a cost high enough to actually -- to -- to



               5   where the risk of replacement power costs are unknown.



               6   When you are talking about paying for risks, are there



               7   certain components of a plant or certain processes



               8   that -- that will drive the allocation of risk one way



               9   or another?



              10             In other words, is it something like where if



              11   it's a -- you know, you are doing something on the



              12   outside of the plant that's, you know, very low



              13   probability of a -- of an outage, you're -- you're for



              14   sure not to going to pay for risk, but for something



              15   like you're doing a very highly technical component of a



              16   overhaul, that you are going to be willing to pay for



              17   the counter party to -- to own that risk?  Does it



              18   depend?



              19        A.   It depends.  It depends on the scope of work.



              20   For example, like on a turbine, I mean, when you put



              21   those back together, it usually takes a couple of weeks



              22   to reassemble them.  So you really want to make sure



              23   they are done right.  Okay.  So you tend to try to put



              24   more onus on the op -- or on the contractor to do it



              25   right, because the consequences of them not doing right
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               1   tends to be a bigger deal.  Whereas, if it's something



               2   that can be fixed in 30 minutes, that has a completely



               3   different consequence.



               4        Q.   Okay.  Let me -- let me go through these.



               5   I'll -- I'll try to be consistent with the order that



               6   it's been addressed today.  On -- on the -- on the Craig



               7   Unit 2, I think you testified earlier that GE did -- did



               8   not have a spec in terms of, I guess, the -- the torque.



               9   Do they now?



              10        A.   I don't know that.



              11        Q.   You don't know.  Has the company independently



              12   adopted a standard beyond that?



              13        A.   No.  We -- we don't do that work.



              14        Q.   Okay.



              15        A.   We are just not staffed up to do that.



              16        Q.   And I think you -- I think you answered this



              17   from Chair Levar's question, this -- this -- there's no



              18   way of knowing from your perspective whether this was



              19   a -- a -- a issue of -- of the torque or lack thereof,



              20   or it could have been something different beyond that?



              21        A.   No.  If I would have walked up to it, I doubt



              22   if I had been able to even tell any difference between



              23   any of the plugs.



              24        Q.   On the -- on the DJ 3 outage with the -- I



              25   don't know if we're calling it the dissimilar or
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               1   nonconforming?



               2        A.   The nonconforming.



               3        Q.   Nonconforming welds.  Is there any way of



               4   knowing whether or not there was a different standard at



               5   the time?  In other words, what was the spec?  Were you



               6   aware of a spec, and was this consistent with the spec



               7   the way it was performed?



               8        A.   I'm -- I'm not aware of it.  General practice



               9   has always been like kind replacement.



              10        Q.   Does -- does the company keep records of the



              11   original specs for a plant and --



              12        A.   Yeah.  We have -- we have design drawings that



              13   say, here is what the material is and that.  And that's



              14   when we put it in our database so we know what to look



              15   for.



              16        Q.   And was -- was this consistent with the spec,



              17   the original spec for the way the plant was built?



              18        A.   I am not --



              19        Q.   Meaning -- meaning the nonconforming tube.  I



              20   mean, that -- that's -- the company agrees that this was



              21   nonconforming with the way the plant was intended to be



              22   designed and built?



              23        A.   Yes.



              24        Q.   Okay.



              25        A.   That's why it's nonconforming.
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               1        Q.   Yeah.  But -- but -- but -- but it's -- but



               2   the company believes -- or the company is -- let me go



               3   back on this one.



               4             This is a paperwork one, right?  Pacific --



               5   Pacific Power had the paperwork?



               6        A.   I -- I believe so.  I can't prove anything.



               7   But that's the most logical answer.  I mean, you don't



               8   know when it was put in.  You don't know why it was put



               9   in.  You don't know the -- the -- the specifics of the



              10   outage because it was over 20 years ago, and we don't



              11   have the documents for that.



              12        Q.   Did -- did Utah Power when they built their



              13   plants keep those types of records?



              14        A.   I -- if we went back 40 years ago, I don't



              15   know if we would be able to have that information



              16   either.  I doubt it.  Because again, when everything was



              17   in file cabinets and that, at some point in time people



              18   just, after you find a 30-year-old document, you



              19   probably don't keep it, because it's probably not



              20   relevant any more.



              21        Q.   Is -- is that typically considered, you



              22   know -- you know, utility standards to -- to -- in terms



              23   of recordkeeping, is there a standard that the company



              24   now adheres to or --



              25        A.   I think we have a records retention policy,
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               1   but I don't remember exactly what it is.  I would have



               2   to look it up.  We do keep a lot of information, but



               3   it's not everything.



               4             To give you an example is, when this happened,



               5   if it would have happened to me and it had been 95



               6   degrees out and power prices were really high and I



               7   didn't have the material, I would have put that other



               8   material in in half a heartbeat to get the plant on so



               9   that it weren't -- we weren't having to buy expensive



              10   power off the market.  Okay.  That -- that's -- that's



              11   triage at that time.



              12             Why it didn't get switched out at some period



              13   of time, I can't answer that because I don't have any



              14   details and facts.  I can just guess.



              15        Q.   Okay.  In terms of the deslagging practice



              16   on -- on -- on DJ 3, I just want to make sure I



              17   understood your earlier testimony.  But help me



              18   understand that the logic or the thinking at the time in



              19   terms of like, was -- was this a decision that the



              20   company made that was based upon safety practices?



              21             In other words, that the, the -- that the



              22   one -- one way is potentially better for the, the wear



              23   and tear of the plant, but one way is -- is safer and



              24   the company chose the safer route?  Did I misunderstand



              25   that?
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               1        A.   Well, part of it, it -- it was developed in



               2   the entire industry.  I mean, we're not the only utility



               3   that uses explosive blasting.  There's companies that go



               4   out all over the country and do this.



               5             It became a practice for mainly two reasons.



               6   One is safety, but the other thing is, it was much



               7   faster, so you get the unit back on, you know, and --



               8   and have less outage time.  If you do it manually, it



               9   takes a long time.



              10        Q.   So -- so would I be incorrect in saying



              11   that the -- that the decision at the time to switch to



              12   this new method was based upon a combination of, I



              13   guess, opportunity cost or -- or -- and safety?



              14        A.   Safety, yes.



              15        Q.   Okay.  And that was done at the time that --



              16   remind me again the year that was done?



              17        A.   Well, we -- we switched to the lowest velocity



              18   in 2011, but we were doing this long before then.  And



              19   I'm -- I'm saying explosive blasting has probably been a



              20   practice for 20, 30 years at least.



              21        Q.   And let me move on to Huntington, Huntington



              22   1.  Similar question, I guess, help -- help me



              23   understand.  I think you have already through bits and



              24   pieces of different questions, testified to this, but



              25   you know, put me -- put me in your decision making mode
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               1   of the decision when you knew that there were issues



               2   with this type of weld, to not just again -- I think



               3   what you said is that it was an economic decision based



               4   upon -- walk me through that again.



               5        A.   Okay.  So if I -- if I -- if I have one or two



               6   failures, and I have a general idea that I -- to --



               7   to -- I know at some point in time I am going to have to



               8   replace all these, but I want to try to get the maximum



               9   value out of them and not just cut them out prematurely.



              10             And if -- if I put it into a model on



              11   replacement power costs, and I made an assumption that I



              12   would have one or two, three breaks a year and that, I



              13   am not sure it would pay for itself.  So, I mean, we



              14   then generally when we do capital projects, run them



              15   through some type of model that says, if you don't to



              16   it, here is the problem, and if you do do it, here it



              17   is.



              18             And then it runs it through a model and say,



              19   does it pay off or not?  And four leaks in 11 years and



              20   $2 million is not going to pay off very well.



              21        Q.   Okay.  Jim Bridger 2.  Is -- we have had a lot



              22   of talk about this.  This employee, I guess -- let me



              23   ask you this.  Her function of what -- whatever she did,



              24   he or she did, in performing this, which was to



              25   document, I guess, but not to report up, was that
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               1   industry standard?  Or was that something that was --



               2   was inconsistent with what was good utility practice?



               3        A.   I can't really comment on that.  I would say



               4   it was not a best practice.  I -- I was -- I had not



               5   been that happy with that employee.



               6        Q.   Is it safe to say that having a procedure that



               7   prescriptive was probably not that necessary; it was



               8   more of just that the employee was missing a common



               9   sense element?



              10        A.   Yeah, that -- that's fair.  I mean, I don't



              11   know if he thought somebody else was going to catch it,



              12   whether -- I mean, we have kind of a saying is, if you



              13   see it, you own it.  Okay.  And -- and that's what we



              14   have to drive is, not thinking somebody else is going to



              15   address the problem for you.



              16        Q.   I'll try to speed up a little bit.  On --



              17   on -- on -- on Jim Bridger 3, this was the cable pull



              18   issue.  I think I heard you earlier say that it was, you



              19   know, it's -- there were -- it is true that there would



              20   be no way of knowing about this damage?



              21        A.   Physically?



              22        Q.   Physically.



              23        A.   I mean, the only way you could do it is do an



              24   electrical test on the cable, and if it passed the



              25   electrical test, you drive on.
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               1        Q.   Yeah.  What is the -- is there industry



               2   standard or a best practices for during plant



               3   construction to -- I mean, you know, and tell me if --



               4   if -- you feel free to include your assumptions or in



               5   terms of cost benefit analysis, what is the typical



               6   practice of when you are building a plant of, I guess,



               7   checking and double-checking things of this nature?



               8        A.   Normally they pull the cables in, clear



               9   everybody out of the way, and then they -- they megger



              10   or Hipot --



              11             THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, sir.  Would you say



              12   that again?



              13        A.   Megger or Hipot.  They're -- they're --



              14   they're just tools that you can use, and what you do is



              15   you put -- it's like have you a wire here, and it's



              16   open-ended at both ends.  You put a potential on the one



              17   and it energizes the whole wire, and then you measure



              18   the leakage current.  How much is going to ground when



              19   you crank the voltage up and down?



              20             And there's acceptable standards for cables.



              21   15 KV has a different standard than 5 KV and everything.



              22   And -- and if it passes, that's about all you can do.



              23   And -- and generally every place I have been involved in



              24   when they have installed cables like that, they do that



              25   test prior to turning it over and terminating it, you
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               1   know, connecting it up to the equipment.



               2        Q.   (By Commissioner White)  So we should assume



               3   that that test was performed prior to --



               4        A.   Right.  But we wouldn't have the records,



               5   because my guess is, the contractor who built that, the



               6   Black and Veatch, they probably had the records and they



               7   probably said they passed.  And then when the plant was



               8   built, they probably just got rid of them because they



               9   turned the plant over to us.



              10        Q.   And from an engineering perspective, there is



              11   still no way of knowing -- even though the company knew



              12   that the cable had been damaged, there's no way of



              13   knowing that the ultimate causation was as a result of



              14   the damage or just wear and tear?



              15        A.   Well, we -- we didn't know the cable was



              16   damaged --



              17        Q.   Yeah.



              18        A.   -- until we pulled it out.  Okay.  And we



              19   didn't send the cable in and said ultimately, why did



              20   this fail?  Was it an age-related thing or an age and



              21   damage?  I would be willing to bet real money that they



              22   would have said that it was a combination of the two,



              23   because it's too difficult to tell one over the other.



              24             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  That's all I have got,



              25   questions.  I appreciate it.  I don't know if
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               1   Mr. Wilding wants to respond to that question about how



               2   the liquidated damages are --



               3             MR. WILDING:  Okay.  Do you mind asking the



               4   question just one more time?



               5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yeah.  Yeah.  The



               6   question was, I think I heard at some point, whether it



               7   was a comment made by Mr. Moscon or testimony by



               8   Mr. Ralston, that liquidated damages are somehow flowed



               9   back to the customers.



              10             And I guess my question is, is how is that



              11   accomplished?  Is that something that's, you know,



              12   reduced in terms of, you know, capital expenses in terms



              13   of the plant?  Does it somehow flow through EBA?  I am



              14   just trying to learn where that money goes and is it a



              15   pertinent to this proceeding or where -- where -- where



              16   is that money.



              17             MR. WILDING:  Okay.  Yes, the -- so I'll step



              18   back.  Per -- and -- and explain on -- or how we account



              19   for those liquidated damages.  So per U.S. GAP or



              20   generally accepted accounting principles, that -- those



              21   liquidated damages from a vendor or contractor are an



              22   offset to the project that they are associated with.



              23             So in this instance, it was a capital addition



              24   to the plant, and so that capital -- those capital costs



              25   were reduced by the liquidated damages.  And so it would
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               1   be a reduction in rate basing our assets and also in



               2   depreciation expense because you are depreciating less.



               3             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  So it's ultimately a



               4   reduction of the return off and on, right?



               5             MR. WILDING:  Yes.  Yes.  And -- and they are



               6   not booked in net power costs, so they are not in this



               7   proceeding.



               8             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Thank you.  That's all



               9   the questions I have.  Thank you.



              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?



              11             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank you.  I apologize,



              12   I have been rustling a lot of papers up here because I



              13   am trying to eliminate questions that would be



              14   redundant.  I appreciate all the efforts of my



              15   colleagues on the commission and also counsel today for



              16   efforts to illuminate the issues in front of us.



              17                          EXAMINATION



              18   BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:



              19        Q.   So I am going to just step back through a



              20   couple of these to fine tune my own understanding.



              21             Regarding the plug, and so we're talking about



              22   Craig Unit 2, are you telling us that GE did not have a



              23   standard, or you don't know whether GE had a standard



              24   for how the plug should be tightened?  Because I



              25   understand it was within GE's control, right?
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               1        A.   Their procedures said basically said retighten



               2   the plug.  Okay.  And you have a craftsman there, a



               3   millwright, and he tightens the plug up to what he



               4   thinks is appropriate based on his training and



               5   experience.



               6        Q.   Okay.



               7        A.   They don't -- they don't have a specific



               8   torque setting and use a torque wrench to do that.



               9        Q.   Yeah, that I -- that I, I, I understood.  But



              10   I wondered whether there was any other kind of



              11   instruction and whether you were aware of it.



              12        A.   Not that I am aware of.



              13        Q.   Thank you.  And have you had -- or has the



              14   company had any experience with a plug issue of this



              15   type before this one?



              16        A.   Not vibrating out.  I know we have -- I have



              17   experienced in the process of putting that material in,



              18   it can be challenging at times.  Okay.  But not like



              19   this failure rate.



              20        Q.   So would those be issues with the sealing that



              21   was supposed to be accomplished, as opposed to -- things



              22   that you discovered during the pressure test?



              23        A.   Well, no, more of pumping the material in.



              24        Q.   Oh, sure.



              25        A.   It's -- it sounds easy, but sometimes it's a
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               1   little challenging.



               2        Q.   But nothing where a plug was --



               3        A.   No.



               4        Q.   -- suddenly not there when it was supposed to



               5   be there?



               6        A.   No.



               7        Q.   Okay.  So this is first instance?



               8        A.   Yeah, I am afraid so.



               9        Q.   And the -- so now, the -- the Dave Johnson



              10   Unit 3 of April 25th.  The tubing that was installed



              11   could not be visually distinguished from the spec



              12   tubing, I think you said, and so I am wondering how --



              13   what process led to us understanding that a different



              14   tube was used?



              15        A.   When -- we have a standard kind of process



              16   when we have a tube failure, and if it's not intuitively



              17   obvious why, we cut that failure out.  And we send it to



              18   a metallurgist and say, dissect this thing and tell us



              19   everything about this tube, because we want to



              20   understand our failure mode so we can figure out if we



              21   can prevent them somehow.



              22             So when this tube failed, we cut it out and



              23   sent it to them, and he looked at the metallurgy of it



              24   and said, well, you are supposed to have this in it, and



              25   you have this in it.
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               1        Q.   And would that have been IEC, or is that



               2   different?



               3        A.   Yeah.  IEC is the metallurgist.



               4        Q.   Okay.  So now relative to Dave Johnston Unit 3



               5   on September 19th, did IEC rec -- ever recommend to you



               6   to use manual deslagging to avoid --



               7        A.   No.  The --



               8        Q.   -- the -- the issues that -- that the



               9   deslagging process, if it's aggressive can create?



              10        A.   No.  They -- the statement in there was, use



              11   -- the lowest velocity detonation cord should be used.



              12        Q.   Commissioner White asked you some questions



              13   about industry standards, and, you know, we have intense



              14   interest in understanding what they are and how they



              15   would apply to the questions in front of us.  It's a



              16   challenging thing to ascertain them apparently, or at



              17   least to identify a, a, a standard industry practice.



              18             Relative to dissimilar metal welds, and so I



              19   guess this will be in the context of Huntington Unit 1,



              20   I think that you have said that you -- that was a known



              21   potential problem area --



              22        A.   That's correct.



              23        Q.   -- right?  And so just to try to get a little



              24   better understanding of how industry practices are



              25   developed and how you become aware of them and -- was --
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               1   was that knowledge from experience exclusively within



               2   the PacifiCorp system, or -- or were there -- was GE



               3   sending out like a note -- notices -- almost like recall



               4   notices or other kinds of notifications that -- that



               5   would have made you aware of this part -- particular



               6   vulnerability in your plant?



               7        A.   There's an organization called EPRI, Electric



               8   Power Research Institute, and it's kind of funded by



               9   utilities and that.  And they do a bunch of research.



              10   And they have developed volumes on tube materials, tube



              11   failures.  To some degree, it's kind of the bible of --



              12   of tube failures and that.



              13             And as -- as utilities had problems, they



              14   would share this information and also give it to EPRI,



              15   and EPRI would publish stuff.  And it was kind of



              16   through -- what do I want to call them?  Trade meetings



              17   or -- or meetings or through EPRI and that, that that



              18   information came out.



              19             Manufacturers didn't really come out with that



              20   on dissimilar metal welds.  It was the industry was



              21   starting to see failures and was sharing the



              22   information, and then kind of EPRI put it all together



              23   in books.



              24        Q.   Thank you.  Now, regarding Jim Bridger Unit 2,



              25   when would the -- this was -- is it right to think of
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               1   this as a preventative maintenance test that was



               2   performed?



               3        A.   Yes.



               4        Q.   When would it have been performed in relation



               5   to the work that was being done at that location on --



               6   in the --



               7        A.   I believe the PM test was done either



               8   September or October, somewhere around there.  We start



               9   on them near the end of the summer in that, we have



              10   several -- several of these to do so it takes quite a



              11   while.  So -- but I think this one was actually done in



              12   the October time frame.  And you try to do them in



              13   the -- the early fall so that you can determine if you



              14   have a problem.



              15        Q.   And -- and obviously before the winter season?



              16        A.   Yep.



              17        Q.   And the heat is needed?



              18        A.   Is needed.



              19        Q.   Right.  So what's the company's procedure for



              20   reviewing the report of the preventive maintenance?  I



              21   think you said that it was identified on the report



              22   that -- that there was no current but there was voltage



              23   so, I am thinking -- I am wondering if that wasn't



              24   significant apparently to the person doing the



              25   inspection.
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               1             But I -- I presume that person's work is



               2   reviewed by supervisors, other management people, that



               3   there's some process for that to happen, and -- and that



               4   other people overlooked the significance of that report



               5   as well?



               6        A.   And I can't tell you if the specific report



               7   was reviewed or not.  It specifically stated that not



               8   only will the technician, if he finds a problem, write



               9   it, but also that a supervisor or planner will review



              10   the report -- the report for adequacy too.



              11        Q.   So --



              12        A.   I mean, it's just clarifying expectations.



              13        Q.   So prior to this incident, there wasn't an



              14   expectation that anyone would review the findings of the



              15   inspector?



              16        A.   I believe it was an unwritten expectation.



              17   You know, I mean, it's just, this is part of your job.



              18        Q.   "Your" would be who in that sentence?



              19        A.   As in the supervisors, the planners, the



              20   maintenance department.



              21        Q.   Thank you.  That concludes my questions.



              22   Thank you very much.



              23        A.   Okay.



              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you for your



              25   testimony today, Mr. Ralston.  I think it's probably a
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               1   good time to take a short break.  Do you have anything



               2   further from Rocky Mountain Power when we come back from



               3   break?



               4             MS. HOGLE:  Possibly.



               5             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Why don't we take 15



               6   minutes and we'll come back at 2:25.



               7             (Recess from 2:08 p.m. to 2:24 p.m.)



               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  I think we're ready to



               9   go back on the record.  Anything further from Rocky



              10   Mountain Power?



              11             MR. MOSCON:  Nothing further.  Thank you.



              12             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.



              13   Mr. Jetter?



              14             MR. JETTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The



              15   division would like to call and have sworn in division's



              16   first witness, Dave Thompson.



              17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon, Mr. Thompson.



              18   Do you swear to tell the truth?



              19             THE WITNESS:  I do.



              20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.



              21                      DAVID T. THOMPSON,



              22   was called as a witness, and having been first duly



              23   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:



              24                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



              25   BY MR. JETTER:
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               1        Q.   Mr. Thompson, would you please state your name



               2   and occupation for the record.



               3        A.   My name is David T. Thompson.  I am a utility



               4   consultant for the division of public utility.



               5        Q.   Thank you.  And in the course of your



               6   employment with the division, did you have the



               7   opportunity to review the EBA application materials



               8   filed by the company?



               9        A.   I did.



              10        Q.   And did you create and cause to be filed with



              11   the commission prefiled direct testimony dated November



              12   15th, 2018?



              13        A.   Yes.



              14        Q.   And that was filed along with eight exhibits,



              15   1.1 through 1.8?



              16        A.   The testimony was 1.1, and 1.2 through 1.8 the



              17   other exhibits.



              18        Q.   Thank you.  Do you have any corrections or



              19   changes you would like to make to that prefiled direct



              20   testimony?



              21        A.   I don't.



              22        Q.   If you were asked the same questions that are



              23   in that testimony today, would your answers remain the



              24   same?



              25        A.   They would.
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               1             MR. JETTER:  I'd like to move to enter the



               2   direct testimony along with Exhibits through 1.8, all of



               3   the exhibits to that testimony into the record.



               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  If any



               5   party objects to that motion, indicate to me.  I am not



               6   seeing any objection, so it's granted.



               7        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Have you prepared a brief



               8   summary of your testimony?



               9        A.   I have.



              10        Q.   Please go ahead.



              11        A.   Good afternoon, Commissioners.  Thank you for



              12   the opportunity to address the current status of the --



              13   on the reported adjustments and recommendations from the



              14   division and its consultant, Daymark Energy Advisors.  I



              15   will also be introducing division's witness from Daymark



              16   in conjunction with this hearing.



              17             The division recommends the commission allow



              18   the company to recover in its energy balance account an



              19   amount of approximately $1.8 million for the calendar



              20   year 2017.  This is $912,007 less than the recovery



              21   amount originally requested by the company, and consists



              22   of an error adjustment of $25,742 and an outage



              23   adjustment of $886,265.



              24             In its review of electrical natural gas



              25   transactions, Daymark discovered a policy and procedure
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               1   finding.  Daymark recommended appropriate policy changes



               2   to remedy this finding.  In response testimony, the



               3   company accepted the division's error correction.



               4             The company also agreed in response testimony



               5   with the Daymark proposed policy changes.  In its



               6   response testimony, the company stated that it will work



               7   with the DPU and Daymark to adopt energy risk management



               8   policy language similar to what Daymark proposed in its



               9   audit report.



              10             In its audit report, the division's



              11   consultants, Daymark, made an adjustment for outages.



              12   Daymark recommended this allowing replacement power



              13   costs resulting from seven outages.  These outages



              14   demonstrate a sufficient imprudence that EBA costs



              15   should be reduced by the amount of replacement power



              16   cost related to the outages.  Utah allocated amount for



              17   this adjustment is $840,267.  This adjustment impacted



              18   interest computations in the amount of $45,998.  The



              19   total adjustment is $886,265, after the interest



              20   adjustment.



              21             The company in its response testimony --



              22   excuse me, in surrebuttal testimony to Daymark's audit



              23   report and rebuttal testimony, did not agree that the



              24   replacement power for plant outages should be



              25   disallowed.  The division's witness from Daymark,
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               1   Mr. Phil DiDomenico, will testify to Daymark's EBA



               2   review, and specifically to Daymark's outage adjustments



               3   and why replacement power for the seven outages should



               4   be disallowed.  And that concludes my summary.



               5             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.  I have no further



               6   questions, and Mr. Thompson is available for cross or



               7   questions from the commission.



               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.



               9   Mr. Russell, do you have any questions for Mr. Thompson?



              10             MR. RUSSELL:  I don't.  Thank you.



              11             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.



              12   Mr. Moscon, Ms. Hogle?



              13             MR. MOSCON:  No questions.



              14             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Commissioner White?



              15             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  No questions.  Thank you.



              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner Clark?



              17             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  No questions.  Thank you,



              18   Mr. Thompson.



              19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And none from me.  Thank you



              20   for your testimony today.



              21             MR. MOSCON:  The division would like to next



              22   call and have sworn in Phil DiDomenico.



              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Good afternoon,



              24   Mr. DiDomenico.  Do you swear to tell the truth?



              25             THE WITNESS:  I do.
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               1             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.



               2                      PHILIP DIDOMENICO,



               3   was called as a witness, and having been first duly



               4   sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:



               5                      DIRECT EXAMINATION



               6   BY MR. JETTER:



               7        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, would you please start by



               8   stating your name, and maybe let's have you spell your



               9   last name so you get it correct on the record, and your



              10   occupation.



              11        A.   Certainly.  It's DiDomenico.  It's capital



              12   D-I, capital D-O-M-E-N-I-C-O.



              13        Q.   Thank you.  And what is your occupation?



              14        A.   I am a management consultant for Daymark



              15   Energy Advisors.



              16        Q.   And were you retained to review certain



              17   transactions and essentially an audit in this case?



              18        A.   I was.



              19        Q.   And did you create, in the course of your



              20   employment and -- and consultant contract with the



              21   division, create and cause to be filed with the



              22   commission direct and rebuttal testimony, direct



              23   testimony filed November 15th, 2018, along with rebuttal



              24   testimony filed January 10th, 2019?



              25        A.   I did.
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               1        Q.   And in both of those testimonies, it



               2   identified two witnesses, which is yourself and Dan



               3   Koehler; is that correct?



               4        A.   Dan Koehler, yes.



               5        Q.   Koehler, excuse me.  And do you intend to



               6   adopt both of those testimonies today in full?



               7        A.   I do.



               8        Q.   If you are asked the same questions in both



               9   the direct and rebuttal testimonies that were filed,



              10   would your answers remain the same?



              11        A.   With one correction.



              12        Q.   Okay.  And please go ahead.



              13        A.   Looking at my direct testimony, of myself and



              14   Dan, page 8 if I would, under findings and



              15   recommendations, starting with line 89, what I would



              16   drop is the sentence that appears after outages.  I



              17   would replace, "that appeared to be avoidable and



              18   resulted in unnecessary increases to the company-wide



              19   NPC," replace that with the phrase, "for further



              20   investigation," period.



              21        Q.   Thank you.  And do you have any other



              22   corrections or changes you would like to make?



              23        A.   I do not.



              24        Q.   Okay.



              25             MR. MOSCON:  I'm sorry.  Can I have you -- I
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               1   was slow here.



               2             THE WITNESS:  Sure.



               3             MR. MOSCON:  Line 93, will you just tell me



               4   again what I am crossing out where?



               5             THE WITNESS:  It was line 89.



               6             MR. MOSCON:  Sorry, 89.



               7             THE WITNESS:  We are crossing out the words



               8   that start after the word outages.



               9             MR. MOSCON:  Got it.



              10             THE WITNESS:  Crossing out basically to the



              11   end of that sentence on the next line, and replacing



              12   that with simply, for further investigation.



              13             By way of clarification, those 29 outages were



              14   selected because of their duration, not because of any



              15   particular concern over their impact.



              16             MR. JETTER:  With that I'd like to move for



              17   the introduction of -- or entry of the direct and



              18   rebuttal testimony I have identified earlier, along with



              19   all of the attached exhibits to both of those, which was



              20   direct through 2.3 and, I believe there was no exhibits



              21   attached in addition to the testimony on the rebuttal



              22   testimony.



              23             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  If anyone objects to



              24   that motion, please let me know.  I am not seeing any



              25   objection, so the motion is granted.
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               1             MR. JETTER:  Thank you.



               2        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter) And have you prepared a brief



               3   statement summarizing your testimony?



               4        A.   I have.



               5        Q.   Please go ahead.



               6        A.   Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to



               7   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding



               8   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a



               9   request on March 15th, 2018 to recover 2.8 --



              10        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, I am going to interrupt just



              11   very briefly.  If you wouldn't mind reading just a



              12   little bit slower for our court reporter.



              13        A.   I'm sorry.  Too fast for you.  It's Italian



              14   heritage.



              15             Okay.  Daymark was retained by the division to



              16   review the application of Rocky Mountain Power regarding



              17   adjustment of electric rates.  The company had filed a



              18   request on March 15th, 2018, to recover 2.8 million for



              19   excess energy balancing account associated costs



              20   incurred throughout the 12 month deferral period from



              21   January 1st, 2017, through December 31st, 2017.



              22             Daymark's role was to determine whether the



              23   actual costs featured in the calendar year 2017 EBA



              24   filing were incurred in accordance with an in place



              25   policy or plan, were prudent and were in the public
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               1   interest.



               2             Our review included four main assignments, as



               3   established in consultation with the division.  First,



               4   evaluate a sample of electric and natural gas



               5   transaction for accuracy, completeness and prudence.



               6   Second, we reviewed particular issues pertaining to key



               7   drivers of EBA costs, specifically deviations in the



               8   actual wholesale sales revenue and purchased power



               9   expense in relation to levels forecasted for the general



              10   rate case and established in base NBC.



              11             Third, we reviewed the impact of PacifiCorp's



              12   third full calendar year of participation in the



              13   California ISO, energy imbalance market.  Lastly, we



              14   reviewed and evaluated actual plant outages to ensure



              15   that these outages and the cost impacts on the EBA



              16   charge were appropriate.



              17             Transactions.  Relative to transactions our



              18   findings were as follows.  PacifiCorp settled tens of



              19   thousands of natural gas financial, natural gas physical



              20   and electric power physical transactions in 2017.  We



              21   assembled and analyzed a sample of 46 representative



              22   transactions and accounting entry groupings.  After



              23   reviewing these transactions, we did not find or -- we



              24   did not suggest, excuse me, any adjustments to the



              25   calendar year 2017 EBA costs for the evaluated
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               1   transactions.



               2             However, our review of a particular



               3   transaction revealed a deficiency in PacifiCorp's



               4   policies and practices pertaining to monitoring and



               5   reporting potential breaches in individual trader



               6   limits.



               7             The company has taken some corrective steps to



               8   address this issue since becoming aware of it, but we



               9   recommend that the company formally adopt governance



              10   control requirements in their risk management policy --



              11   energy risk management policy.  The company has



              12   indicated in response testimony that it is amenable to



              13   working with the division to adopt such changes.



              14             Regarding the EBA cost drivers, we found that



              15   the deviations in actual wholesale sales revenue and



              16   purchased power expense were generally explainable by



              17   market condition changes between the base NPC forecasts



              18   for the 2014, '15 test period, and actual conditions



              19   during the 2017 deferral period, as well as changes in



              20   long-term contracts in effect for the respective



              21   periods.



              22             Regarding the California ISO, energy imbalance



              23   market, our findings regarding -- regarding our high



              24   level review of PacifiCorp's participation in the -- in



              25   the ISO EMI, we found no reason to challenge the ISO or
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               1   the company's methodology for estimating benefits from



               2   participating in the real-time imbalance trading through



               3   the EIN, nor do we have reason to believe that the



               4   estimates substantially overstate the benefits.



               5             Regarding outages, our review of generator



               6   outages at the company's thermal plants during the EBA



               7   period, deferral period, identified 25 significant



               8   outages; that is, outages that are forced outages or



               9   planned outage extensions of greater than 72 hours in



              10   duration.



              11             Of these 29 outages, seven outages



              12   demonstrated sufficient imprudence that we recommend



              13   reducing EBA costs to reflect replacement power costs



              14   related to the outages.  The total reduction in



              15   company-wide NPC for these outages was 1,954,826.  The



              16   Utah allocated EBA deferral adjustment related to



              17   imprudent outage replacement power costs is 840,267.



              18             The quantification replacement power costs is



              19   not in dispute.  The company has agreed with our



              20   methodology for estimating the additional net power



              21   costs that are incurred as a result of specific plant



              22   outages.



              23             The company submitted response testimony of



              24   Mr. Dana Ralston to address the seven generation plant



              25   outages we identified as demonstrating sufficient
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               1   imprudence to warrant EBA cost adjustment.



               2   Mr. Ralston's response testimony disputed our claims



               3   that the company acted imprudently in regard to those



               4   seven outages, and therefore, no adjustment to the EBA



               5   amounts was needed.  We disagree with Mr. Ralston's



               6   arguments and we stand by our original recommendation.



               7             Mr. Ralston asserted that the Craig Unit 2



               8   outage was the result of GE's subcontractor's failure to



               9   correctly tighten specific plugs and not the lack of



              10   established procedures and practices.



              11             Though the company's partner GE admitted



              12   fault, the company should still be held accountable



              13   since they are responsible for ensuring risk mitigation



              14   measures are established and followed by their partners.



              15   Additionally, the company should work with their third



              16   party operators to use similar outage-related



              17   documentation procedures as utilized by PacifiCorp.



              18             Regarding the April 2017 outage at Dave



              19   Johnson Unit 3, the company believes that the use of



              20   improper tubing that contributed to the outage was an



              21   anomaly that was still -- was still provided over 20



              22   years of acceptable service.  In our opinion, the use of



              23   incorrect tubing material is a procedural failure that



              24   necessitates an adjustment to the company-wide EBA costs



              25   for the replacement power costs.  The length of time
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               1   before failure is secondary to the issue of prudence.



               2             The September 2017 outage occurring at Dave



               3   Johnson Unit 3 was caused by tube failures associated



               4   with the reheat super heater.  Although the company's



               5   metallurgical expert recommended modifying blasting



               6   practice after analyzing the failures, the company



               7   maintains that the failures could not be attributed to



               8   any particular explosive deslagging result.



               9             Since the company's metallurgical experts have



              10   repeatedly identified the company's blasting practices



              11   related to deslagging as a contributing factor to tube



              12   failure, we believe the company acted imprudently by not



              13   modifying its deslagging practices.



              14             The Huntington Unit 1 outage was due to a



              15   reheater tube leak located at a dissimilar metal weld.



              16   The company argues that due to the number of welds in



              17   the outlet of the reheater, the cost to evaluate each



              18   weld would significantly outweigh the benefits.  We



              19   believe that the company's lack of attention to such a



              20   well known industry issue is indefensible and therefore



              21   imprudent.



              22             An outage at Jim Bridger Unit 2 caused by the



              23   failure of heat tracing equipment was a result of gap in



              24   testing procedures established by the company.  Even



              25   though the company argues that it acted prudently, since
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               1   it had testing procedures already in place, we assert



               2   that the company acted imprudently since it should have



               3   known the heat tracing equipment was inoperable.



               4             Regarding the Jim Bridger Unit 3 outage, the



               5   failure of cables leading to the outage was due to age



               6   and damage received during the cable's initial cable



               7   pull in the seventies.  The company argues that the



               8   cables have functioned successfully over 40 years they



               9   have -- that they have been in place, without any



              10   indications of damage.



              11             We believe that the cable damage due to



              12   incorrect installation practices during the initial



              13   installation warrants disallowance.  The length of time



              14   before failure is secondary to the use -- to the issue



              15   of prudency.



              16             The Dave Johnson Unit 4 extended outage was



              17   the result of the wrong impeller of -- of a wrong



              18   impeller being installed during a planned outage



              19   resulting in an outage extension.  The error was the



              20   admitted fault of a contractor who accepted work that it



              21   wasn't properly staffed to complete.



              22             It is incumbent upon the company to ensure



              23   that the contractors it chooses to work with follow



              24   prudent practices.  We therefore believe the company



              25   should be held responsible for the imprudent actions of
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               1   the contractor.



               2             Lastly, Mr. Ralston's response and surrebuttal



               3   testimony assert that our recommendations assume a



               4   unrealistic standard of perfection based on 20/20



               5   hindsight and not a standard of prudence applied to



               6   these outages.  We disagree.



               7             Many outages are avoidable with perfect



               8   hindsight, and many outages are caused by human error.



               9   We do not argue for a disallowance for all such outages.



              10   We are arguing for adjustment of only a handful of cases



              11   when the action or inaction at the root cause of the



              12   outage was clearly imprudent based on the information



              13   known or knowable at the time.



              14             The company argues that it cannot be held



              15   liable for imprudent actions taken by third party



              16   operators or subcontractors so long as the underlying



              17   contract was reasonable.  We disagree.  As an owner or



              18   co-owner, a company is responsible for the performance



              19   of that asset and cannot absolve itself of that



              20   responsibility simply because it has desig -- delegated



              21   the operation or repair of that asset to another entity.



              22             Certainly, as between the company and its rate



              23   payers, the company is in a much better position to



              24   influence the operation of plants where it is not the



              25   operator.  If a company operated in a regulatory system
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               1   without the EBA, the company would likely not recover



               2   any of the power replacement costs related to a forced



               3   outage.  Thank you.



               4             MR. JETTER:  Thank you for that review of your



               5   testimony.  I have no further questions, and



               6   Mr. DiDomenico is available for cross and questions from



               7   the commission.



               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Thank you.  Mr. Russell, do



               9   you have any questions?



              10             MR. RUSSELL:  I do.  Thank you.



              11                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



              12   BY MR. RUSSELL:



              13        Q.   Mr. DiDomenico, you mentioned that you



              14   reviewed -- you narrowed it down to 29 outages, and as I



              15   understand your summary, that -- that you narrowed it



              16   down to 29 based on the length of those 29 rather than



              17   on any particular actions taken by the company during



              18   those 29 outages.  Is that correct?



              19        A.   That's correct.



              20        Q.   Okay.  And ultimately you flag seven outages,



              21   the seven that we have been discussing at length today.



              22   Can you tell me what it was about those seven, and I --



              23   I -- I know that there are differences among those



              24   seven, but at a high level, can you tell me what it was



              25   about those seven that you -- you thought required a



                                                                        152

�













               1   different result than the other 22?



               2        A.   Well, fundamentally, in looking at the



               3   available information -- and I do need to underscore the



               4   available information, because again, in this instance



               5   where we are 100 percent dependent on the information



               6   provided by the company, we did not provide any



               7   independent review.  This is not our review.  We are



               8   reviewing information that was provided to us.



               9             Just with that context, with that in mind, the



              10   information that we were provided basically just led us



              11   from a reasonable perspective, would a reasonable



              12   utility have operated in a different manner?  It kind of



              13   flagged us from that perspective, and that's what drew



              14   our attention to those seven outages.



              15        Q.   Okay.  And there's been a lot of talk today



              16   and in the prefiled testimony about the -- the cost to



              17   mitigate or to prevent the type of replacement power



              18   costs, or the mistake that -- that occurred or -- or



              19   that was identified.



              20             In your review of the 29 that ultimately led



              21   to the seven, did you -- did you consider the costs to



              22   prevent the issue that led to the outage as part of your



              23   review?



              24        A.   Not explicitly, no.



              25        Q.   Okay.  And is that in your view a relevant
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               1   issue to -- to consider in determining whether the



               2   company acted prudently?



               3        A.   Ultimately, certainly the cost of whatever



               4   mitigation practices is a factor, certainly.



               5        Q.   And just, I think we probably all understand



               6   this, but -- and tell me the reason why the cost to



               7   mitigate the issue or cost to prevent the issue is a



               8   relevant factor?



               9        A.   Well, I think as in any business decision from



              10   an asset management perspective, you are juggling a lot



              11   of priorities, and in terms of making decisions about



              12   which priority to address first, you tend to go with --



              13   not tend to go, but you go with the ones that have a



              14   higher cost benefit expectation.  That along with



              15   risk -- and the risk associated with them are major



              16   factors associated with any decision.



              17        Q.   And perhaps I'll -- I'll put it in a slightly



              18   different way.  If the -- if the cost to solve the



              19   problem is greater than the cost to just let the problem



              20   be a problem, you just let the problem be a problem,



              21   don't you?



              22        A.   To a degree.  The problem what we have here is



              23   that this is a very dynamic situation, that the cost and



              24   the benefit is very fluid.  Now, it depends on changing



              25   market conditions.  It depends on a lot of things, but
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               1   at the end of the day you need to make a judgment call



               2   as to what the priorities are.



               3        Q.   Okay.  What I'd like to do now is very briefly



               4   walk through each of the seven outages and ask you just



               5   a couple of questions about each.  And we'll start with



               6   the Craig Unit 2 outage, which is -- is the one related



               7   to the 50 bolts and the one that may have come loose



               8   when the -- when the plant was started back up.



               9             Can you explain to me what it is that in



              10   Daymark's view was imprudent about this particular



              11   outage?



              12        A.   Fundamentally, I ask myself the question, is



              13   it prudent to assemble a unit when you haven't followed



              14   the procedures properly?  When you read the information



              15   on this event, it speaks to, potentially, the unit that



              16   the bolt wasn't tightened properly.



              17             And I say potentially because one of the



              18   problems is that on that event, Tri-State fundamentally



              19   didn't do a root cause analysis, nor is it their



              20   practice to do a root cause analysis.



              21             The information that we have received is



              22   essentially three e-mails.  We have three e-mails where



              23   they say, good news, we figured out that a plug fell



              24   out.  That's the extent of the information that we have



              25   on that outage.  So I look at that, and I am saying,
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               1   this -- this doesn't sound right, something wrong with



               2   this.  We need to dig further.  But the fact of the



               3   matter is, they didn't dig further.  So we don't know



               4   what actually caused the event.



               5             But I do know this, when you talk -- when



               6   you're dealing with the hydrogen cooling system of a



               7   major generator, we are not -- this is a significant



               8   element in the system.  You don't do it casually, right?



               9   Hydrogen leaks are taken very serious by the industry,



              10   as I am sure the company is taking it very seriously.



              11             So as you are going through the procedures



              12   that say tighten whatever and fill in silicone, whatever



              13   you are trying to do, I am virtually certain, although I



              14   don't -- I haven't seen the procedure, because it hasn't



              15   been provided, but I am virtually certain that it



              16   mandates a very specific manner in which you need to do



              17   your job.



              18             In this case bolts don't fall out for no



              19   reason.  They fall out because somebody didn't do what



              20   they needed to do.  It's a summation.  I don't have



              21   facts to support that, but all I know is that the bolt



              22   was not there, and that -- and that is a cause for



              23   concern.



              24        Q.   And I guess one of the issues that -- that I



              25   think the commission may have to grapple with here is,
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               1   if the bolt did come out, and in your view if it came



               2   out and somebody did something wrong, if it -- if the --



               3   the somebody that did something wrong is with a mill



               4   worker hired by General Electric who in turn was hired



               5   by Tri-State Generation, who is the operator of this



               6   plant, but is not the company here asking for, you know,



               7   a specific rate treatment, how -- how does the



               8   commission address all of that?



               9        A.   I think it starts with the accountability of



              10   the company to its third party vendors.  I agree that



              11   it's very expensive to get that kind of coverage,



              12   replacement power coverage.  Replacement power is the



              13   hot potato that nobody wants, because it's open-ended.



              14   It's an undefined liability.  Nobody wants to cover



              15   that.  And -- and we get that, we understand that.



              16             But if you look at the chain in terms of who



              17   was involved, the company is in the best pos -- position



              18   of everyone to be able to manage that risk, understand



              19   that risk and provide for that risk.  So from our



              20   perspective, it's incumbent upon them to make sure that



              21   their third party, whoever they are working with, are



              22   following prudent practices.



              23        Q.   Okay.  And -- and how would -- how should the



              24   company have managed the risk in this -- in this case in



              25   your view?
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               1        A.   Well, you know, unfortunately in this -- in



               2   this case, to do a proper root cause investigation would



               3   require you being on-site and interviewing the



               4   principals involved.



               5             Right now, the information I have available to



               6   me doesn't really allow me to make any specific



               7   recommendations, other than a general recommendation



               8   that greater oversight needs to be provided.  That's not



               9   terribly helpful, but it -- but it requires more



              10   intervention, more active involvement in what's going



              11   on.



              12        Q.   And how do we know how much that active



              13   involvement might cost?



              14        A.   The only way you know is by asking for it when



              15   you are working with your various vendors.



              16        Q.   Okay.  In -- in a --



              17        A.   And it's very situational.  It would depend on



              18   the specific event and who you're dealing with.  It's



              19   not -- it's not something that you can just pull out and



              20   say, every time we do this it's going to cost whatever.



              21   It varies significantly.



              22             As a general statement, sure, it's going to



              23   cost you money, but I don't know what -- I don't know



              24   how you ignore the fact that it's problematic, because



              25   the only one that shares replacement cost responsibility
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               1   right now is ultimately the customer.



               2        Q.   Right.  And -- and I guess the -- the customer



               3   would also bear some responsibility for the cost to



               4   prevent that replacement power cost, right?



               5        A.   Certainly.



               6        Q.   Yeah.  And -- and I guess the question that I



               7   have is, how does the commission address these issues



               8   when it's -- when it's trying to figure out, well,



               9   there's this cost to prevent these risks, and, you know,



              10   somebody is going to have to pay for that cost, and



              11   almost always we end up in the same place.



              12             Had -- had -- I am formulating a poorly



              13   question here, or poorly formulating a question here.



              14   But there's -- there's this balance between the cost and



              15   the risk, and I am wondering how the commission should



              16   handle that.



              17        A.   I think it's -- it's a difficult question.  I



              18   think it's very situational.  I think some sort of a



              19   shared savings or shared cost approach is probably the



              20   most appropriate.  But it's very situational.  It's --



              21   it's not something that we can sit here and just say, on



              22   a blanket policy, this is how we should approach that.



              23   I think that would be very difficult.



              24        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'm -- I'm going to walk



              25   through the other six, but the -- the -- the list of
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               1   questions will be a little bit shorter, because I think



               2   some of the principles that we just discussed can apply



               3   as well.



               4             Looking at the Dave Johnson Unit 3, the April



               5   25 outage, and this was the one that we -- we spent a



               6   little bit of time talking about the nonconforming



               7   material in boiler tube, right?  So if you could, tell



               8   me quickly what you understand -- or what -- what facts



               9   you understand to be the -- the imprudent or to



              10   constitute the imprudent action by the utility here.



              11        A.   Well, fundamentally the imprudent action is



              12   installing nonconforming material, not keeping an



              13   accurate record, and not going back and replacing it



              14   when the time was appropriate.



              15             There is nothing wrong -- I am agreeing with



              16   the company witness when he says that in a pinch you do



              17   what you need to do to bring the unit on line.  That's



              18   standard practice.  I am not going to disagree with



              19   that.  But not being able to have proper records so that



              20   you can go back and then correct that situation before



              21   it turns into an outage situation is where the problem



              22   lies.



              23        Q.   And if we were to talk about the cost to



              24   potentially mitigate that, I suppose what you'd say is



              25   that you mitigate it by having proper -- by having
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               1   proper recordkeeping procedures; is that right?



               2        A.   Exactly.



               3        Q.   Okay.  Moving on to the September outage at



               4   Dave Johnson Unit 3, this is the outage related to the



               5   boiler tube failure that, I guess, the metallurgical



               6   reports point to the explosive deslagging efforts.  Tell



               7   me what you -- what you understand to be the facts that



               8   constitute the imprudent action here.



               9        A.   The problem I have as -- as an outside



              10   third-party consultant trying to evaluate what I am



              11   seeing, I am dealing with the information that I have in



              12   front of me.  And the picture that I am seeing is that I



              13   have a metallurgist who is admittedly an expert in their



              14   field, someone that the company relies upon, and I see



              15   them repeatedly making recommendations about changing



              16   the company's blasting practices.



              17             And on the other hand, I -- I hear the company



              18   telling me, well, they did that and they did it back in



              19   2011, and that whatever they are reporting isn't



              20   necessarily pertinent to the current situation.



              21             In my own experience, the partnership between



              22   the metallurgist and the company is not a very distant



              23   relationship.  I find it hard to believe that the



              24   metallurgist that the company uses on a regular basis,



              25   and has been using for years, is not aware of the
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               1   company's current blasting practices.



               2             That -- that just brings questions into my



               3   mind.  Why is that?  So I'm -- I'm left with a dilemma.



               4   I have two stories.  Which one do I believe?  I am not



               5   sure.



               6             I have heard a little bit more information



               7   today that would tend to lean towards the company's



               8   position, but again, I don't know why the metallurgist



               9   would continue to make the same recommendation over and



              10   over again, when it's not pertinent to the issue at



              11   hand.



              12        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Huntington



              13   Unit 1.  As I understand it, the issue there leading to



              14   the outage was the issue of dissimilar welds, correct?



              15        A.   Yes.



              16        Q.   Okay.  And with -- again, with this one, tell



              17   me what facts you understand to be the issue that --



              18   that leads to the -- your conclusion that there was



              19   imprudent action by the utility.



              20        A.   Sure.  Dissimilar metal welds, DMWs, is not a



              21   new issue.  I think we heard testimony to that effect.



              22   It's been around for a long time.  I mean, at least the



              23   mid eighties, if not sooner than that, it was identified



              24   as a -- as a cause of outages.



              25             And not only a cause, it's not a matter of if
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               1   there's going to be an outage.  It's just a matter of



               2   when, because they are going to fail.  It's a problem.



               3   It's a problem that was discovered with the help of EPRI



               4   and others, and there are utilities that went -- went



               5   ahead and removed them before they failed, rather than



               6   waiting for failures in my experience.



               7             However, in this particular scenario we have



               8   been talking a great deal, about, well, three outages,



               9   you know, less than 1 percent.  You are not going to go



              10   out and spend $2 million in mitigation.  I understand



              11   that.



              12             My problem or my concern rests in the fact



              13   that, follow the timeline with me for a minute.  Known



              14   problem since the mid eighties.  The unit's been in



              15   service since whenever, and they know that the reheater



              16   has lots of dissimilar metal welds, 600 I think was the



              17   number that was said.  They know this.  I mean, that's



              18   the way it was built.



              19             The first outage doesn't occur until 2000 -- I



              20   am going to get one of these years wrong, 2008 I believe



              21   or seven, I can't remember which.  After that happens,



              22   no action is taken.  So a second outage occurs, no



              23   action is taken.  A third outage occurs, no outage is



              24   taken.  We get to the fourth outage, and all of a



              25   sudden, the difference between three outages and four
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               1   outages launches the company to an action plan to



               2   address the problem.



               3             Now, we have heard a lot about, well, three is



               4   an insignificant number.  Four is -- well, the



               5   difference between three and four is the same percentage



               6   as far as I am concerned.  I think the company realizes



               7   that this is a problem and they need to address it, and



               8   it has nothing to do with how many outage events occur.



               9             You know this is a problem.  It's just a



              10   ticking time bomb waiting to keep happening, and as I



              11   think there was reference to the hockey stick effect,



              12   where all of a sudden you've got to just start



              13   accelerating rapidly, absolutely, it's a very real risk.



              14   It's very prevalent in our industry.



              15             So my problem is not so much that they didn't



              16   jump to replacing everything and spend $2 million.  My



              17   problem is that they waited until a fourth outage, I am



              18   trying to think the number of years after the first



              19   outage, and 9 or 10 years after the first outage, before



              20   they took steps to determine the extent of the problem.



              21   Right.



              22             We heard a lot about how testing this would be



              23   a problem with -- got too expensive to do 600 welds



              24   whatever.  After the fourth outage, they proceeded



              25   immediately to doing that testing.  And in 2018, I



                                                                        164

�













               1   guess, I am surmising that they identified a significant



               2   enough problem to warrant a full replacement at the next



               3   available major overall, 2022.



               4             My point here is that this could have been



               5   done sooner, exposing the customers to less outage and



               6   replacement power risk.



               7        Q.   Okay.  I think that actually addresses my



               8   follow-up questions with respect to that one, although I



               9   do have -- do have one other.  And I am looking at the,



              10   I think it's Exhibit 2.3 that was attached to your



              11   responsive testimony.



              12        A.   It's the report.  Is that our report?



              13        Q.   It is, yeah.  It's the -- the confidential



              14   report.  I don't know what information in this is



              15   confidential, if it's the figures or if it's the



              16   descriptions.



              17        A.   I am not a hundred percent sure either.



              18   Jason?



              19             MR. JETTER:  It's probably a mix.



              20             MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.



              21             MR. JETTER:  Is there something specific?



              22             MR. RUSSELL:  With each of -- with each --



              23   with each of the outages that are discussed, there is a



              24   repair cost identified, as well as a cost associated



              25   with the replacement power.  And I am just wondering
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               1   whether any of that is confidential.  I don't even need



               2   to use the number.



               3             MS. HOGLE:  Confidential.



               4        Q.   (By Mr. Russell)  Okay.  All right.  Do you



               5   have that report in front of you?



               6        A.   I do.



               7        Q.   Okay.  Maybe we can do this without -- I'm --



               8   I am not going -- I'm not going to identify any of the



               9   numbers.  Do you see the -- the next to last paragraph



              10   of --



              11        A.   Excuse me.  Page reference please.



              12        Q.   Yeah.  Sorry.  Page 26, it's the Huntington



              13   Unit 1 outage, the discussion there.



              14        A.   Yes.



              15        Q.   Okay.  The next to last paragraph of that



              16   discussion identifies the repair costs, and maybe I am



              17   just misunderstanding what repairs were done, but can



              18   you -- can you tell me what repairs were done that adds



              19   up to this number that I am not going to say?



              20        A.   No.  These repair costs were provided by the



              21   company.



              22        Q.   Yeah.



              23        A.   So I don't know -- I don't know exactly what



              24   repairs took place.  That's simply the costs of



              25   bringing -- bringing the unit back to service from the
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               1   outage.  Not including, you know, replacement power,



               2   anything like that.



               3        Q.   Yeah.  And I know we have been throwing around



               4   this $2 million number to replace the dissimilar welds,



               5   and that's not this number?



               6        A.   It is not.



               7        Q.   Okay.  Do you know -- you don't know what --



               8   what is included with this number here?



               9        A.   No.



              10        Q.   Okay.  All right.  Fair enough.  Let's move on



              11   to Jim Bridger Unit 2, which is the next one in your --



              12   in the report.  And this is the -- the one that we have



              13   spent a fair bit of time talking about with the water



              14   freezing and the water spacer tubing.  Can you tell me,



              15   what was -- what was the -- what was the imprudent



              16   action by the -- by the company here?



              17        A.   Well, fundamentally, when you are talking



              18   about a system that is explicitly designed to prevent



              19   freezing, not functioning at a time when you need it,



              20   and the reason given is that there was quote, unquote, a



              21   gap in the procedures, that just doesn't ring true --



              22   not true, but it doesn't make sense to me in the context



              23   of my experience.



              24             I could see gaps in procedures if this was a



              25   new system or a new unit.  This is a unit that's been in
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               1   operation for, you know, decades.  By now any bugs or



               2   shake-down associated learnings, if you will, should



               3   have been covered.  And I think we heard earlier that



               4   this was simply a problem where a technician didn't do



               5   his job properly.  I don't know how else to say it.



               6        Q.   And -- and in your view, is it, what -- what



               7   would be the cost of mitigating against that?  If



               8   there --



               9        A.   Very little.  I mean, that's nothing more than



              10   the direction that this is what you need to do.  You



              11   need to report things of this nature.  It's -- it's



              12   somewhat, you know, it's puzzling that -- that an



              13   individual with that title, that -- that -- namely the



              14   technician that we're talking about, wouldn't have taken



              15   that next step to make sure people were aware of it.



              16   When I say people, upper -- his manager or other folks



              17   in the management chain.



              18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Jim



              19   Bridger Unit 3, and this is the one where we have



              20   discussed a fair bit with the electrical wiring that was



              21   underground, but because of a -- of a water pump that



              22   tripped off, water got into the -- the conduit with the



              23   that -- that the electrical wiring was in.



              24             And there's been some discussion about when



              25   this wiring may have been damaged.  Why don't you tell
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               1   me what -- what you view as the imprudent action here?



               2        A.   Well, fundamentally, is it prudent to damage a



               3   cable upon installation?  Here the record shows that the



               4   cable, along with age, was a mitigating -- was one of



               5   the causes of what went -- what happened -- excuse me.



               6             And you know, we have heard a lot about, well,



               7   the cable was in operation for 40 years, and while that



               8   may be true, and we also heard about testing that was



               9   done upon its initial installation.  What we didn't hear



              10   anything about is how often this cable is tested.  Is it



              11   tested on an annual basis?  Semiannual basis?  During



              12   major overhaul, or was it set it and forget it?



              13             I have -- I've heard no discussion about it.



              14   So the idea that this installation wasn't degrading that



              15   whole time, I am not sure there's any information on the



              16   record to prove that that wasn't the case.



              17        Q.   So focusing on the length of time here, in



              18   your view, and I -- I think you say this in the report



              19   or in your testimony, that it's not important how long



              20   this -- this wiring was in place.  It's, how did it get



              21   damaged?



              22        A.   Right.



              23        Q.   And I guess, I have -- if the company since



              24   that time didn't know about the damage, I mean, if -- if



              25   it was installed, and even the people who installed it
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               1   didn't know about the damage, and in the 40 years since



               2   there's been no indication that there is some damage



               3   here, is it -- can, can -- do -- was it imprudent for



               4   the company not to conduct an inspection?  Or is your



               5   sole focus on the fact that it was damaged when it was



               6   installed?



               7        A.   Well, it's two elements.  It's -- it's the



               8   damage upon installation, along with, I don't see any



               9   record of any testing that occurred after the initial



              10   installation.  So -- so there's, other than the fact



              11   that it was operational, there's no way to determine the



              12   condition of the cable if it's not being tested on a



              13   regular basis.



              14        Q.   And I guess, if the issue is, if -- if even



              15   the people who installed this cable wouldn't have known



              16   about the damage, and we're going to hold the company



              17   responsible for that damage, would it be -- would it be



              18   imprudent for the company -- wouldn't it be prudent then



              19   for the company to -- to bear the costs of -- of



              20   conducting inspections that would -- that would reveal



              21   those types -- that type of damage?



              22        A.   If you are asking me whether I think it's



              23   prudent of a company to do testing on -- on this cable



              24   on a regular basis to determine its condition, is that



              25   what you are asking?
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               1        Q.   Well, I guess what I am asking is the --



               2   the -- the standard that we seem to be imposing on the



               3   company here is that there was damage -- we're all



               4   assuming there was damage upon installation here, but --



               5   and maybe the company didn't know about it.



               6             But if that's the case, I guess what I am



               7   worried about is a world in which we say, under those



               8   circumstances, the company bears the risk.  And then the



               9   company responds by saying, okay, we're going to go



              10   examine and inspect every last square inch, every last



              11   cable of all of our plants, at enormous costs, because



              12   we don't want to have to bear those costs going forward.



              13   And the rate payers ultimately having to pay for that



              14   type of a mitigation procedure.



              15             And -- and so I guess what I am wondering is,



              16   if we, you know, there's something of a ying and yang



              17   here.  If we impose that sort of a standard on the



              18   company, are -- are we -- shouldn't we worry about the



              19   cost that the -- the rate payers will ultimately be



              20   asked to bear in response to that?



              21        A.   I can't answer your question directly, but



              22   what -- what I can say is that it merits attention.  It



              23   merits a review of good practices in the industry and a



              24   change in practices to -- to align with those.  I don't



              25   believe it is prudent to put a cable in the ground and
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               1   never touch it again for 40 years.  I don't think -- I



               2   don't think that's a good -- that's a good idea on any



               3   level.



               4             So now the question is, how often should it be



               5   tested.  Again, without doing more research and



               6   understanding the exact situation, I can't give you an



               7   answer as to what is right.  But you are right, carte



               8   blanche, no, you are not going to want everything tested



               9   every year, no.  You're not trying to gold plate what's



              10   going on by no means.



              11             But we are trying to reach reasonable level.



              12   Right now, no tests, installation with no testing, if



              13   that's true, and I don't know that that's even the case,



              14   but I -- I have seen nothing on the record that tells me



              15   that this isn't.  So I am kind of left up in the air.



              16        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Let's move on to Dave --



              17   Dave Johnson Unit 4.  I think this is the last one.



              18   Excuse me.  And this is the --



              19        A.   Excuse me.



              20        Q.   -- the -- the issue where we had a planned



              21   outage that ended up getting extended because the



              22   company's contractor, MD&A, had installed the wrong part



              23   in an impeller.



              24             And I think we have talked about this enough,



              25   but -- but I think it would be useful because we've done
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               1   it with all the other ones to have you tell me what you



               2   think the -- the imprudent action here was.



               3        A.   Well, fundamentally, the company gave work to



               4   a firm that wasn't staffed to do the work properly.  Not



               5   only wasn't it staffed, but it didn't have the QC



               6   controls in place to recognize fundamental errors.  I



               7   mean, we are talking about a component that was shipped



               8   with the wrong impeller, and the -- and the MD&A



               9   admitting that they -- that they didn't have the proper



              10   quality control checks to make sure that that didn't



              11   happen.  I mean, that's puzzling.



              12             You know, I agree that MD&A, as the company



              13   says, they are not a fly by night type of outfit or



              14   anything like that.  But by the same token, they took



              15   work that they weren't prepared to do, by their own



              16   admission, and they didn't have the proper procedures in



              17   place to make sure that the wrong component didn't go



              18   out the door.



              19             At the end of the day, we heard a little bit



              20   about liquidated damages, and that was the first time I



              21   heard about liquidated damages associated with that



              22   event.  And that's fine, that's a good thing, but it's



              23   still not the total exposure.  The rest of the exposure



              24   is covered by the customers in replacement power cost.



              25        Q.   If it had been the company that performed this
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               1   work in the way MD&A had performed it, how does that



               2   change the analysis or does it in your view?



               3        A.   I don't think it changes it.



               4        Q.   Because it's MD&A, we -- we have spent a fair



               5   bit of time talking about ways that the company could



               6   have mitigated those losses, or -- or -- or planned



               7   against those losses as opposed to just eating the



               8   costs, I suppose.  I don't know.



               9        A.   Sure.



              10        Q.   But -- but I think that raises an interesting



              11   question of, when the company hires outside contractors



              12   to perform certain work, does that insulate the company



              13   in a way from the negative effects of somebody making a



              14   mistake along the way?



              15        A.   I mean, that's the compelling concern, that if



              16   you take this to the extreme, then the company could



              17   simply outsource everything it does, and it's not



              18   responsible for anything.



              19        Q.   And we have, as I mentioned, spent a fair bit



              20   of time talking about the company's efforts or what --



              21   what the company could have done or did do to mitigate



              22   the -- the potential risks here.  I am interested in



              23   your views about consequential damages provisions or --



              24   or provisions that waive consequential damages.



              25             I think the company has indicated that -- that
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               1   including a provision that would allow the company to go



               2   after a contractor for, you know, replacement power



               3   costs in the event of -- of -- of a mistake would --



               4   would be prohibitive.  I am interested in your views



               5   about that.



               6        A.   I would agree that it's very costly.  I mean,



               7   nobody wants the burden of replacement power costs,



               8   which is all the more reason to put greater focus on the



               9   company's responsibility in its oversight of any



              10   third-party vendor, be it through whatever contractual



              11   means possible.



              12             Whether it's LDs, whether it's consequences,



              13   what -- whatever it might be, the company needs to do



              14   everything possible to make sure that the customer is



              15   getting the value they are expecting from their third



              16   party contractor or third party operator owner.



              17             MR. RUSSELL:  Okay.  I think that's all the



              18   questions I have.  Thank you for your time.



              19             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Rocky



              20   Mountain Power, any questions for this witness?



              21             MR. MOSCON:  Yes.



              22                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



              23   BY MR. MOSCON:



              24        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. DiDomenico.



              25        A.   Good afternoon.
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               1        Q.   I'll be honest that I don't relish taking you



               2   through what I count would be the sixth trip through all



               3   of these seven outages by my calculation that this group



               4   would have listened to today.



               5        A.   Lucky seven.



               6        Q.   So I -- I think I might have to go off script



               7   a little bit, just for all of our sakes.  But before I



               8   begin, I want to -- I want to just touch a little bit on



               9   your background and your -- your frame of reference.  If



              10   I understand correctly, you have been working as a



              11   consultant for 22 years now.  Is that right?



              12        A.   That's about right.  22, 23.



              13        Q.   You haven't worked for a utility company since



              14   1997; is that right?



              15        A.   Sounds about right.



              16        Q.   So when we are talking today about what is



              17   standard practice and how utilities do this or do that,



              18   any change since 1997 at least is something that you



              19   would have just kind of learned academically, for lack



              20   of a better word, rather than something where you can



              21   say, yes, I was there when we made that change in 2011?



              22        A.   Well, certainly just research is part of it,



              23   but you are neglecting the fact that in my career as a



              24   consultant, I have been essentially an advisor to those



              25   very same electric utility customers from an advisory
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               1   strategic perspective, whether it's in the care and



               2   feeding of their equipment, asset management related



               3   responsibilities, organizational responsibilities,



               4   reliability related questions.



               5             I deal with clients, mainly utility clients,



               6   not as much with commissions, relative to issues related



               7   to performance and capital investment.



               8        Q.   And sure, and that's, I guess, what I mean



               9   about academically.  You have been there.  You have seen



              10   it.  You have studied it.  You haven't been working at a



              11   utility since the mid nineties; is that right?



              12        A.   True enough.



              13        Q.   All right.  There's -- there's one area,



              14   and -- and I may just be -- just to make the point,



              15   belabor our very first outage that we have probably



              16   heard the most about, because again, it kind of makes a



              17   point that stays consistent with the other outages.



              18        A.   Sure.



              19        Q.   And just because I already have it open



              20   because Mr. Russell turned us to it, I am going to ask



              21   you, and any that care to follow, to turn to page 24 in



              22   your confidential report.  It was attached to your first



              23   filed testimony.



              24        A.   24, yes.



              25        Q.   Page 24.  That's where the -- what you refer
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               1   to as avoidable outages begin, right?



               2        A.   Correct.



               3        Q.   Okay.  Now, when you were answering some



               4   questions of Mr. Russell, I -- I wrote something down,



               5   and I -- I tried to write exactly what you were saying.



               6   But I could have missed a word or two, but it, it really



               7   struck me about something.



               8             You -- you recall when you were asked, is cost



               9   something that you took into consideration?  And I



              10   heard -- understood you to essentially say, not really.



              11   I just looked at should this have happened or that have



              12   happened.  I wasn't considering costs, right?



              13        A.   That's correct.



              14        Q.   But you also agreed that a utility in the real



              15   world, when it needs to make decisions, has to balance



              16   cost with risk.  Is that correct?



              17        A.   I would agree.



              18        Q.   And so the recommendations that you have made



              19   about prudence, of course, are not necessarily the same



              20   that a company would make, because while you are saying,



              21   I made these determinations without considering costs,



              22   of course, this utility or any utility must consider



              23   cost, correct?



              24        A.   Correct.



              25        Q.   You are not a lawyer, I understand.  Are you
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               1   familiar with a phrase, strict liability?



               2        A.   Just generally.



               3        Q.   The thing that I wrote down is, when we were



               4   talking about the Craig Unit 2, this is, of course, is



               5   the famous bolt that came out, near -- near the end you



               6   had a statement.  And you wrote -- or I tried to write



               7   what you said.  The bolt wasn't there.  I don't know



               8   why, so the company should be responsible.



               9             I mean, you were summarizing a lot.



              10   Obviously, you had more to it than that.



              11        A.   Yeah, it went a little it deeper than that,



              12   but yes.



              13        Q.   You understand that.  And to me as a lawyer,



              14   that is the essence of strict liability, which is, I



              15   don't know whether there's negligence or not, but



              16   something happened.  I have to pick someone to blame, so



              17   I am going to hold the company responsible.  And that's



              18   the point that I'd like to explore a little bit with our



              19   questions, okay?



              20        A.   But I don't think that's a fair



              21   characterization, but okay.  Go ahead.



              22        Q.   But those -- I mean, in this case, you don't



              23   know, like we don't know, no one -- you don't know why



              24   the bolt came out, correct?  Or the plug, I shouldn't



              25   say the bolt.
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               1        A.   You're right.  But do I have -- can I clarify?



               2        Q.   Sure.



               3        A.   The company's fundamental position is that



               4   there were procedures in place that were followed.



               5        Q.   Uh-huh, yes.



               6        A.   Right.  That's on the record.  I maintain that



               7   if there are procedures in place, and the bolt -- the



               8   bolt falls out, somebody didn't do their job right,



               9   right?  There's a -- there's a problem there.  That's



              10   not strict liability.  That's somebody not following



              11   procedure.  There is no procedure that says, loosely put



              12   in this bolt and hope it stays in there.



              13        Q.   So the logical conclusion is, if something



              14   goes wrong, anything goes wrong in a plant anywhere,



              15   somebody didn't do their job because bolts or cables or



              16   lines or things, things don't just happen, right?



              17        A.   Most of the time that is correct.



              18        Q.   And again, to me, I am saying, strict



              19   liability.  Something goes wrong, I am going to surmise



              20   somebody must have done something wrong.  I don't know



              21   what, but somebody must have done something wrong?



              22        A.   In this case -- I'm -- I'm not sure I am



              23   following your -- your line of thinking 100 percent.  I



              24   get the gist of what you are saying, but I am not trying



              25   to imply that no matter what happens it's somebody's
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               1   fault.



               2             What I am saying is, in this situation there



               3   were procedures in place that weren't followed.  If



               4   you -- if you have procedures in place that -- that



               5   someone doesn't follow, that's a problem.



               6        Q.   Okay.  Well, let's actually go through the



               7   procedures and see which ones weren't followed.  Okay.



               8   For -- for Craig Unit 2, you agree with me, don't you,



               9   that the seal, the -- the whatever we call it, the



              10   silicone.



              11        A.   Silicone.



              12        Q.   That was put in place, right?



              13        A.   Yes.



              14        Q.   That procedure was followed, right?



              15        A.   You know, that's the problem with this



              16   particular outage, as I have already mentioned.  There



              17   was no detailed, at least nothing that was provided to



              18   us, in terms of detailed root cause analysis as to what



              19   actually happened.



              20             I'm -- I'm -- I'm dealing with a void of



              21   information, and I'm -- I'm picking up bits and pieces



              22   from testimony here today.  But by and large, just my



              23   general background in -- in being in this industry, GE



              24   is not working on a generator without procedures for the



              25   proper installation of these bolts, right?  These plugs,
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               1   excuse me.  So I am surmising that.  I have no evidence



               2   to that effect.



               3        Q.   I want to follow through then.  Am I correct



               4   then that for this Craig Unit 2, I -- I thought you said



               5   earlier, procedures and policies were in place and they



               6   weren't followed.  I now kind of understand you to



               7   say --



               8        A.   That's what the company told me.



               9        Q.   Yes.  But are you able, as you sit here today,



              10   to articulate, here is the procedure that wasn't



              11   followed?



              12        A.   No.



              13        Q.   Okay.  In fact, we know that the bolt got put



              14   back in, right?



              15        A.   Yes.



              16        Q.   We know that it got tightened to some -- the



              17   bolt, the plug, we know it got tightened to some degree,



              18   right?



              19        A.   Logically.



              20        Q.   We know that there was not just an assumption



              21   that they were put in, because we know that there was



              22   actually a test to make sure that this thing sealed up,



              23   right?



              24        A.   Yes.



              25        Q.   We know it was pressurized to 48 psi, right?
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               1        A.   Yes.



               2        Q.   And maintained pressure for 24 hours, right?



               3        A.   Correct.



               4        Q.   And then someone went to see, is it leaking,



               5   right, and it was not leaking, right?



               6        A.   Yeah.  I think it was within 24 hours it



               7   started leaking.



               8        Q.   Well, we know --



               9        A.   The second 24 hours.



              10        Q.   Okay.  We know that for the test it didn't



              11   leak, there was no leaking at the pressurization test,



              12   right?



              13        A.   Correct.



              14        Q.   Okay.  So we know that it was put on.  It was



              15   tightened.  There was a visual inspection.  There was



              16   beyond a visual inspection.  There was a pressurization



              17   inspection, followed by a visual inspection of looking



              18   for leaks, and all of those things passed, right?



              19        A.   I don't know that we know there was a visual



              20   inspection.



              21        Q.   How else would they determine whether it was



              22   leaking?



              23        A.   From the pressure test perspective.  At the



              24   time of the test, yes, they did a pressure test, I



              25   agree.
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               1        Q.   Okay.



               2        A.   But you are talking about at the onset before



               3   they put it back together again.  Are you saying that



               4   someone looked at it to make sure that everything was



               5   the way it was supposed to be before it was reassembled?



               6        Q.   I know I am also surmising that when they



               7   pressurized it to see if it was leaking, someone walked



               8   up to it and said, I am looking at the plugs, and are



               9   they leaking, yes or no, right?



              10        A.   Yes.



              11        Q.   Okay.



              12        A.   The answer is yes.



              13        Q.   So we know that some eyes were put on this



              14   thing, right?



              15        A.   On the equipment.



              16        Q.   Yes.



              17        A.   I don't know about the plugs themselves.



              18        Q.   And so what I am saying is, you cannot, as you



              19   sit here, point to a point in that timeline and say,



              20   right there is where the utility, Rocky Mountain Power,



              21   messed up, right?



              22        A.   Agreed.



              23        Q.   Just for sake of time and brevity and because



              24   we have been through this a little bit, I am going to



              25   combine the Dave Johnston Unit 3 April and September
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               1   outages.  I know they are different outages, but we have



               2   kind of been through this a little bit before.



               3             One thing that you have said today on the



               4   stand is that one of your recommendations for a



               5   disallowance is because the company had been repeatedly



               6   warned by its metallurgist and ignored that, and I'd



               7   like to draw your attention to, if you are looking at



               8   page 25, the third from the bottom paragraph that begins



               9   "The repeat nature."  Do you see that?



              10        A.   The -- the second paragraph.



              11        Q.   Well, I guess depending if you call the



              12   duration of this outage as a paragraph.



              13        A.   Okay.  The repeat nature, I got it.



              14        Q.   Right.  Okay.  So will you just -- in fact I



              15   don't think there's anything in that paragraph that's



              16   confidential.  I'll ask anybody to speak up if there is,



              17   but I was just going to ask you to just read that



              18   paragraph for us, the repeat nature.



              19        A.   "The repeat nature of the outage event



              20   combined with the company's lack of attention to



              21   modifying its deslagging practices, despite being



              22   forewarned that such practices were a precipitating



              23   cause of failures, is unacceptable, avoidable and a



              24   cause of disallowance recommendation."



              25        Q.   Okay.  And the warning that you are referring
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               1   to that you quote actually up in the true second



               2   paragraph of this page is the IEC's June 16th, 2017,



               3   metallurgical report; is that correct?



               4        A.   Yes.



               5        Q.   Okay.  So when you say that the company was



               6   ignoring the forewarning that it received from its



               7   metallurgist, you were mistaken, are you not, because



               8   Mr. Ralston has indicated that in fact they had already



               9   done what the metallurgist recommended in 2017, six



              10   years prior in 2011?



              11        A.   The only point I would make is that this



              12   report was produced before that information was



              13   available.



              14        Q.   This report.  Oh, you mean your report --



              15        A.   Correct.



              16        Q.   -- we are looking at.  Oh, what you are saying



              17   is the reason you wrote what we just read is because you



              18   didn't know that the company had already done that back



              19   in 2011?



              20        A.   Not in the supplemental -- this was



              21   supplemental information that was provided.



              22        Q.   Okay.  I understand.  So you would agree with



              23   me that the rationale that you put here in your report



              24   is incorrect?



              25        A.   It's -- it's incorrect if you take on face
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               1   value the testimony that Mr. Ralston gave.



               2        Q.   Okay.  And not just what you have written



               3   here, but the times that you have said today here



               4   sitting in that chair about how the company was



               5   repeatedly warned by its metallurgist and didn't comply,



               6   that was also incorrect, wasn't it?



               7        A.   Yes.  Based on the most recent testimony, it's



               8   true.  But again, I want to -- I want to make sure we



               9   understand each other.  I don't understand why the



              10   metallurgist in 2017 keeps harping on the company



              11   changing its practices that the company has said they



              12   changed back before 2011.



              13        Q.   So your recommendation to this commission is



              14   that they charge the company a lot of money because you



              15   don't understand why a metallurgist said that in his



              16   report in 2017?



              17        A.   I think you are trivializing what I am trying



              18   to say.  It is very confusing to see that a metallurgist



              19   that is a partner in this with the company, for some



              20   reason has no idea what the company's blasting practices



              21   are.



              22        Q.   Is this a possibility, and I -- and I realize



              23   00 because I don't want it to seem like I am



              24   trivializing.  I realize I am going to ask you a



              25   question that neither you or I know the answer to.
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               1             Is it possible that simply a metallurgist,



               2   like a lot of hired professionals getting a piece of



               3   metal has almost a boilerplate report that kind of like



               4   sticks in a paragraph that says, I see this, it could be



               5   this.  By the way if you are not doing it already, you



               6   should go to this route?



               7        A.   You know, I -- I hate is-it-possible



               8   questions, because I think pretty much anything is



               9   possible.  But I would say this, that in my experience



              10   working with metallurgists, and I have in my career,



              11   it's not -- if -- if that's the way it's working, then



              12   you need to change the way the partnership is working.



              13             There's no point in sending out and paying



              14   good money to have a metallurgist give you generic



              15   solutions to problems that you are not going to pay any



              16   attention to.



              17        Q.   As you sit here with your years of experience



              18   that you have described, you've provided no information



              19   in your report that using detonation cord to deslag to



              20   protect for the safety of workers is outside of industry



              21   standard, correct?



              22        A.   No, not -- not at all.  It is industry



              23   standard.



              24        Q.   All right.  Let's jump forward then to the



              25   Huntington 1, which is the May 3rd thing I've combined.
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               1   We did Greg 2, Dave Johnston 3, the two outages.  The



               2   next one is the Huntington unit.  In your report it's on



               3   page 26.



               4        A.   Yes.



               5        Q.   Again, there was a line of questioning about,



               6   by Mr. Russell about the cost associated, and when you



               7   would do this, and when you wouldn't do it.  And if I



               8   understood you correctly, you said words to the



               9   effect -- this wasn't a quote -- look, something



              10   happened.  There was one failure in around 2008, 2011,



              11   whenever, and then nothing really changes between No. 3



              12   and No. 4.  But then all of a sudden at No. 4, the



              13   company moves into action.



              14             And I guess my question to you is, is that a



              15   mistake?  Is that an error?  Is there a reason why -- is



              16   there some industry standard that you can refer us to



              17   that says you should do it at incident No. 3 not



              18   incident No. 4?



              19        A.   There is no industry standard to that effect.



              20   But from a general experience perspective, the company



              21   knows full well the extent of the problem with



              22   dissimilar metal welds.  It's an industry problem.  It's



              23   not unique to any particular company.



              24             You know you have the problem.  You know you



              25   have that type of equipment.  It starts to fail.  Why
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               1   are we waiting until the fourth outage before we



               2   determine the extent of the problem?  I am not saying



               3   replace it.  I am saying determine the extent of the



               4   problem.



               5             After outage No. 3, it was too expensive to do



               6   the testing.  Outage 4, we do the testing, it's not a



               7   problem.  I am saying you should do it sooner.  You



               8   could have done it sooner.



               9        Q.   The testing, not the replacement?



              10        A.   Not the replacement.  I am talking about the



              11   testing.  The -- the imprudent part of this is that



              12   because we have delayed in testing, in determining the



              13   extent of the problem, we are now locked into 2022, 14



              14   years after this problem first manifests itself, before



              15   we are actually going to implement a complete solution.



              16        Q.   You were here when Mr. Ralston testified about



              17   the 1 percent failure rate.



              18        A.   Sure.



              19        Q.   And about the approximate $2 million cost?



              20        A.   Understood.



              21        Q.   And you have agreed several times about a



              22   utility needing to balance what could happen with the



              23   cost to mitigate it, right?



              24        A.   Agreed.



              25        Q.   I just want to know, yes or no, because I
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               1   didn't see it in your report, but for this commission to



               2   consider, is it your opinion that it was imprudent for



               3   this utility, after only three incidents, to say, we are



               4   going to take something that is less than a 1 percent



               5   failure rate, that would cost more than $2 million to



               6   fix and not have it scheduled yet?



               7             Is that imprudent to make that decision, to



               8   say we're -- we're going to delay a $2 million expense



               9   when we only have a 1 percent failure rate?



              10        A.   On the face of that, no.  But that's not what



              11   I am talking about.  I am talking about assessing the



              12   degree of the problem that you have.  They -- they --



              13   the company was well aware of the problem.  Once the,



              14   the outages started to manifest themselves, they could



              15   have done the testing to determine the degree of the



              16   problem after the first outage, after the second outage,



              17   after the third outage.



              18             But they waited until after the fourth outage



              19   before they were motivated to do the testing required to



              20   determine, to even determine the condition.  Prior to



              21   2018, they had nothing viable to tell them what the



              22   condition of that equipment was.  The reheater, I



              23   believe.



              24        Q.   Well, let's actually look back.  There was an



              25   outage in 2018, right?
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               1        A.   There was.



               2        Q.   The one before that was in 2014, right?



               3        A.   Yep.  Four -- every four years to my



               4   understanding.



               5        Q.   Which means at that outage, they had only had



               6   two weld failures, right?



               7        A.   Yes.



               8        Q.   And so at the last outage, you know, going



               9   back before this one, they had only had two times in



              10   their history where they had had a problem with this; is



              11   that right?



              12        A.   Yes.  But again, it's a problem.  It's --



              13   it's -- you don't have to wait for a problem to



              14   materialize before you address the concern, right?



              15   That's -- that's what -- that's what we are talking



              16   about here.  It's a matter of being prudent about the --



              17   the investigation of the problem before it manifests



              18   itself.



              19             We heard about hockey curves a little while



              20   ago.  This is the type of problem that can overnight



              21   become a major concern, in rapid order, potentially.



              22   And this is not a secret.  This is not my testimony.



              23   This is industry information, well known industry



              24   information.



              25             So all I am suggesting is, they could have
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               1   determined the extent of the problem sooner, and if they



               2   had, potentially, they could have scheduled a



               3   replacement for 2018.  Assuming -- a lot of assuming



               4   going on here, assuming that the condition that was



               5   found from their testing indicated it warranted that



               6   kind of replacement.



               7             Apparently 2018 testing basically said you



               8   ought to do this because I understand it's scheduled for



               9   replacement in 2022.



              10        Q.   Would you agree with me, before we move on



              11   from this point, that even if the company had done that



              12   and had scheduled a 20 -- this to be part of the 2018



              13   outage, none of that would have prevented the 2017



              14   outage that occurred?



              15        A.   That's correct.



              16        Q.   All right.  I apologize for the delay.  I am



              17   trying to figure out which of these paths you have been



              18   drug down two or three times, or the commission has four



              19   or five times already.  Let's -- let's talk for a minute



              20   about Jim Bridger Unit 3, and this, just so we're clear,



              21   is the -- the underground wire that gets flooded?



              22        A.   Yeah, the heat.  I'm sorry.  Okay, the



              23   underground wire.



              24        Q.   The conduit, that, you know, the pull that



              25   everybody's presuming something gets damaged in when
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               1   it's getting pulled and then it floods that way?



               2        A.   Yes.



               3        Q.   In questioning from Mr. Russell, you indicated



               4   that, okay, if I understood correctly, you conceded fair



               5   enough, I agree there's no visible way that this



               6   company, or a similar utility, would have known that



               7   conduit got damaged when it was -- or cable got damaged



               8   when it was being pulled through the conduit.  So your



               9   suggestion is there ought to be regular tests.



              10             I take it just like the -- the cost question



              11   that we covered at the beginning, you have not put any



              12   kind of pen to paper to consider how many cables and how



              13   many conduits this company has, and how much time or



              14   money it would take to run around and test every piece



              15   of electrical cable that goes through a conduit?



              16        A.   I haven't done that analysis, no.



              17        Q.   Are you able to cite for us today any industry



              18   standard that says, utilities should go and test their



              19   electric cables, even though they are operational, every



              20   X period of time, just in case something's going on that



              21   we can't see?



              22        A.   I can't point to anything specific, no.



              23        Q.   Let's move to the -- the last outage, which is



              24   the Dave Johnson Unit 4, March 17th.  So we're all on



              25   it, this is the MD&A wrong impeller gets sent back.
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               1   Okay.  And I don't think, again, the facts are in



               2   dispute, wrong impeller gets sent back.



               3             Would you agree with me that the company



               4   was -- well, I guess, I may have to ask you whether you



               5   are aware of any evidence that would contradict this,



               6   because I don't know what's been provided to you, so I



               7   will ask and then you can fill in the blanks.



               8             Are you aware of any evidence that would



               9   indicate that this company, Rocky Mountain Power, failed



              10   to administer the contract that it had with MD&A



              11   properly?



              12        A.   I, I have no information either way.



              13        Q.   Are you aware of any information that



              14   indicates that it failed to monitor the activities of



              15   its contractor?



              16        A.   Again, no information.



              17        Q.   Okay.  Are you -- and you provide no evidence



              18   that they failed to provide oversight there at the job



              19   site where the contractor was performing the work,



              20   right?



              21        A.   I -- I have no evidence to that effect, no.



              22        Q.   In fact, when the piece of equipment actually



              23   shows up at the plant is when there is an inspection and



              24   it's discovered, we got the wrong piece of equipment,



              25   right?
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               1        A.   Right.  Yes, correct.



               2        Q.   And so the only way that the power company



               3   could have prevented this is literally if it had been



               4   back at MDA's factory watching the guy put which



               5   impeller in which box that he mailed out; is that right?



               6        A.   Yes, to a degree that's correct.  The -- the



               7   notion, just -- just to be clear, the notion of the



               8   utility going to a factory site to check on the status



               9   of its work is not foreign.  That -- that is done all



              10   the time.



              11             Now, do I know whether the company did that or



              12   not?  I don't.  I don't know either way.  But I am



              13   speculating that if they had, it would have seen



              14   problems.



              15        Q.   But if I represent to you that in fact -- but



              16   you are correct, the company does and did, you have no



              17   reason to dispute that, right?



              18        A.   (Witness shakes head.)



              19        Q.   And so you, again, cannot point to any



              20   specific process or procedure that Rocky Mountain Power



              21   did that did not meet industry standard?



              22        A.   I can't point to anything specific there, no.



              23        Q.   The next topic that you cover in your report



              24   that we have discussed here is the third-party



              25   operators, and you -- again, I am going to paraphrase,
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               1   but words to the effect that the participation agreement



               2   that the company has entered into with Tri-State is



               3   deficient because the customers are left kind of at risk



               4   because the company is unable to enforce certain things



               5   against Tri-State.



               6             Again, I know you didn't state those exacts



               7   words, but I am just trying to make that point.  Is that



               8   a general paraphrase?



               9        A.   The general notion that the customer is on the



              10   hook for everything that happens, that goes wrong from a



              11   replacement cost power perspective.



              12        Q.   And you didn't disagree when asked by others



              13   about whether shifting all of the risk to an operator



              14   would in fact increase the amount that an operator would



              15   want to charge for its services, right?



              16        A.   Yes.  Potentially, yes.



              17        Q.   And are you aware of the fact that the



              18   specific participation agreement that you are referring



              19   to, the Tri-State agreement, was subject to review by



              20   your client, the DPU, and also later by this commission?



              21        A.   I am not aware of that.



              22        Q.   Can I take a one minute just to go through and



              23   see what I have skipped?  I have been kind of bouncing



              24   around here.  Hold on a minute.



              25             That's it for now.  That's all the questions.
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               1   Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.



               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any



               3   redirect, Mr. Jetter?



               4             MR. JETTER:  I'll try to keep this very brief.



               5   A little bit of redirect.



               6                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION



               7   BY MR. JETTER:



               8        Q.   I'd like to just reference back to the missing



               9   plug.  Starting out my question, I understand that this



              10   is a -- I am trying to make this not a legal question.



              11             Was your understanding of your task or your --



              12   your -- your job as -- as it was outlined by the



              13   Division of Public Utilities, to bear the burden of



              14   proof that something was imprudent, or -- or was it



              15   asked of you to demonstrate that the company had failed



              16   to meet a burden of proof that it has?



              17        A.   It was my understanding that it wasn't my



              18   charge to prove -- prove the burden of proof.  The



              19   burden of proof rests with the company.



              20        Q.   Thank you.



              21        A.   That's my understanding.



              22        Q.   And additionally, is it your understanding



              23   that GE, who installed the plugs, admitted fault?



              24        A.   Yes.



              25        Q.   And do you think that they would have done
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               1   that because they are nice people?



               2             MR. MOSCON:  Calls for speculation of course.



               3        A.   No, not likely.



               4        Q.   (By Mr. Jetter)  Thank you.  Sort of the same



               5   line of questions regarding the impeller.  Was it your



               6   task, were you tasked by the division to seek out the



               7   reason that the impeller showed up, which was an



               8   incorrect impeller?



               9        A.   No.



              10        Q.   And is it -- is it your understanding from the



              11   data responses from the company that it was visually the



              12   incorrect part?



              13        A.   It was visually identified as the incorrect



              14   part once it got to the plant.



              15             MR. JETTER:  Okay.  I don't think I have -- I



              16   don't have any further questions.



              17             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  And maybe it's too



              18   late, but I am going to sustain the objection to the



              19   question about GE's motive.



              20             MR. MOSCON:  Thanks.



              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  So that sustaining is on the



              22   record.  You have nothing further?



              23             MR. JETTER:  Nothing.



              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Any -- any recross,



              25   Mr. Russell or Mr. Moscon?
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               1             MR. MOSCON:  No, thank you.



               2             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Why don't we take a 10 minute



               3   break before commissioner questions for Mr. DiDomenico.



               4   So we'll come back at five minutes until four.



               5             Yeah.  Well, yeah, we probably won't take



               6   another break before we have our conversation about



               7   legal standards that we discussed earlier this morning,



               8   so we'll be in recess for 10 minutes.



               9             (Recess from 3:45 p.m. to 3:55 p.m.)



              10             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  We're back on the



              11   record.  I think we are finished with all direct and



              12   cross and redirect for Mr. DiDomenico, and we're ready



              13   for commissioner questions.  If I am mistaken about



              14   that, somebody let me know.  Okay.  Commissioner Clark,



              15   do you have any questions for him?



              16             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I do have a question.



              17                          EXAMINATION



              18   BY COMMISSIONER CLARK:



              19        Q.   I think it might boil down what I have heard



              20   you say about the Craig Unit 2 plug situation.  I think



              21   what you have told us is that because there wasn't root



              22   cause analysis, you are left with no explanation,



              23   really, for why the plug came out.  And is that -- is



              24   that --



              25        A.   I would agree.  No detailed explanation as to



                                                                        200

�













               1   why it came out.



               2        Q.   Right.  Right.



               3        A.   We're left with supposition.



               4        Q.   That it vibrated out?



               5        A.   Maybe.  It was a defective plug, maybe.



               6        Q.   So that -- maybe you started to answer my



               7   question.  My -- my question is, what -- what would a



               8   root cause analysis potentially have revealed that would



               9   be useful?  Or in other words, could -- could we --



              10   could we learn -- what could we learn from -- from --



              11   from a root cause analysis?



              12             I mean that's -- that's -- that's what I am



              13   asking.  And as I am thinking about this, I am thinking,



              14   well, maybe the plug was defective, I guess, is



              15   something we might know.



              16        A.   I mean, fundamentally, we want to try to



              17   understand what drove, what occurred.  We want to



              18   understand the true mechanism, not just, hey, we -- hey,



              19   look, we found a plug on the ground.  That must have



              20   been it.  I mean, because that's what we have right now.



              21   I mean, that's -- that's the full nature of it.



              22             Would it be helpful to understand in detail



              23   what procedures were or weren't followed?  Would it be



              24   helpful to understand what the boots on the ground, so



              25   to speak, actually did that day?  How -- how was it
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               1   handled?  What procedures were in place?  Was there some



               2   workmanship issue beyond just the plug?  What -- what --



               3   we don't know, we are left to sheer speculation in that



               4   regard.



               5             And -- and on top that of that, you talk about



               6   defective plugs.  You know, one question I would love to



               7   ask GE is, what did you do differently the second time



               8   around to put the plug back that you didn't do the first



               9   time around?  I don't have an answer for that.



              10        Q.   We know that there was a pressure test and



              11   that for 24 hours it --



              12        A.   It held, yeah.



              13        Q.   The -- the plug held?



              14        A.   And that is standard operating procedure.



              15   I'm -- I'm not denying that that's -- that's an



              16   indicator.  But it's also very questionable when 24



              17   hours later, when the unit has just started -- starts to



              18   ramp up to normal operation, that a plug falls out.



              19   That isn't normal.  That's not what's supposed to



              20   happen.



              21             And, again, keep in mind this is a critical



              22   system we're talking about.  You know, leaking hydrogen



              23   is not something to be taken lightly.  This is a system



              24   that gets paid attention to.  So when they're doing the



              25   repair, what exactly went on?  I don't know.  Just left
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               1   with questions.



               2             COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank you.



               3             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



               4             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Commissioner White?



               5             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Yeah.



               6                          EXAMINATION



               7   BY COMMISSIONER WHITE:



               8        Q.   Good afternoon.  Just a couple quick



               9   questions.  There was -- there was some dialogue



              10   between, I believe it was between yourself and Mr.



              11   Moscon about kind of a -- I believe that there was



              12   agreement on your part there was, from a prudent utility



              13   operator standpoint, a cost benefit analysis goes into



              14   play and that's --



              15        A.   Yes, I agree.



              16        Q.   I -- I was just intrigued by, I think you



              17   mentioned, maybe I misheard you, that there was -- you



              18   said there was -- in that context there was potential



              19   for a sharing type analysis.  Is that what -- help me



              20   understand, or maybe give me a little bit more meat to



              21   the bone on that.



              22        A.   Well, I mean, fundamentally we are talking



              23   about risk, right?  The risk of poor operation.  The



              24   risk of power costs, just risk in general.  So now,



              25   whether that risk gets shifted 100 percent from party A
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               1   to party B to party C, or is it split amongst the



               2   parties as a possibility?



               3             Because I think it was in the context of



               4   what -- what could possibly we do.  Sharing would be --



               5   would be one possibility.  Sharing that risk.  See, I



               6   keep coming back to the fact that the company is best



               7   positioned to make whatever assessments need to be made.



               8   There's no doubt about that.  Not their third-party



               9   contractor, not -- not anybody.  The company -- the



              10   company itself is in the best position to look out for



              11   the best interests of its customers.



              12             And yes, it costs a great deal.  It costs more



              13   to ensure against those risks, but that isn't a reason



              14   to just de facto assume that you are not going to do --



              15   that you shouldn't do it.  There's no analysis.  We just



              16   have the broad statement that it costs a lot of money,



              17   therefore we don't do it.  There's no analysis that



              18   supports that, other than, you know, general experience.



              19             So, yes, is there a possibility for cost



              20   sharing, maybe sharing between the customer and the



              21   company, maybe sharing between third party, all of them.



              22   You know, we heard earlier about all the players



              23   involved, right?  With -- with the plug situation, we



              24   talk about, you know, Rocky Mountain or PacifiCorp



              25   followed by Tri-State followed by GE, followed by I
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               1   think it's APM, the millwright.



               2             None of those parties are claiming replacement



               3   power costs concerns.  It's all about the customer.  So



               4   there needs to be a way to more formally integrate that



               5   into what's going on.



               6             Because I'll tell you, nothing -- nothing



               7   affects the way the utility operates -- we talk about a



               8   cost benefit analysis.  If part of their cost benefit



               9   analysis is the risk of incurring replacement power cost



              10   penalties, that factors into their decision making.  If



              11   they have no risk of replacement power cost penalties,



              12   it's easier -- it's easier to defer doing something.



              13   Makes sense.



              14        Q.   So you -- you're suggesting like on an



              15   outage-by-outage basis we -- we could potentially look



              16   at the allocation of risk and potentially --



              17        A.   Potentially.



              18        Q.   I just want to ask you one more -- I just want



              19   to give you an opportunity, the same opportunity I gave



              20   Mr. Ralston, which is, you know, we are -- we're trying



              21   to put ourselves, I guess, in the shoes of a prudent



              22   utility operator and look at the facts at hand that were



              23   known and are available, I guess, at the time and then



              24   compare it against whatever the quote, unquote, prudent



              25   standard is.
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               1             Is there anything else we should be looking at



               2   beyond -- I mean, it sounds like from Mr. Ralston's



               3   testimony, that much of his operational expertise and



               4   experience came into play into making decisions.  Is



               5   there something else we should be looking at, because --



               6   EPRI, anything else beyond that?



               7        A.   Well, certainly, yeah.  I mean, there are --



               8   there is certainly industry information.  There is other



               9   jurisdictions and how they are handling this.  You know,



              10   unfortunately our industry has a lot of buzz words to



              11   cover things that are very gray, you know, best utility



              12   practices, you know, being one of them.



              13             So there is no standard that you say -- the



              14   standard is what you make it as a commission.  You



              15   make -- you're going to make the standard, whatever it



              16   is.  And it might be useful to compare what other --



              17   what other jurisdictions are doing from a commission



              18   perspective.  There -- there are precedents out there.



              19             COMMISSIONER WHITE:  Okay.  That's all the



              20   questions I have.  Thank you.



              21             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  And I don't have anything



              22   else.  Thank you, Mr. DiDomenico.



              23             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



              24             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Anything further from any



              25   party?  I am not seeing anything.  Well, Rocky Mountain
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               1   Power, do you want to go first on having an informal



               2   conversation about if you want to give us any of your



               3   thoughts on the legal standards we talked about in the



               4   beginning here?



               5             MR. MOSCON:  Yes.  And let me represent that



               6   the parties have throughout the day talked about this



               7   and what would be useful, so let me -- I am going to



               8   make a proposal that is not mine.  This is a joint



               9   proposal, but if the commission wants to reject it, of



              10   course, that's up to the commission.



              11             Because every -- all the parties kind of want



              12   to not just say, well, here is what we think or here is



              13   what we would argue, but to actually provide useful



              14   information to the commission and to be correct.



              15             What we would propose is as follows:  The



              16   company pay to receive an expedited transcript of



              17   today's hearing.  Let's assume that takes a week, to



              18   then give the parties essentially two to two and a half



              19   weeks to draft briefs that are 10 to 15 pages in length.



              20   We'll follow whatever the commission says.  We want to



              21   put an end on it so parties aren't just going on and on.



              22             So let's just call that March 1st is when



              23   those briefs would be due by the time you get the



              24   transcript and then the briefing, and then ask that the



              25   commission make a decision, using those briefs, by the
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               1   end of March.



               2             We recognize that that is after the next EBA



               3   filing, and the company recognizes that it's possible



               4   that would require the company to file an adjustment,



               5   you know, one or two weeks later.  The company is also



               6   willing to consider filing late, but that changes



               7   within -- I mean, that's kind of complicated so it's



               8   probably most likely that that the company files on time



               9   and then makes an adjustment if necessary.



              10             Of course, the company is willing to have the



              11   commission make a decision before then, but we recognize



              12   it takes time to make a decision and get an order out.



              13   And I think, I would like them to respond, but there's



              14   consensus on this with -- with the other parties.



              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Anyone else have



              16   anything to add?



              17             MR. JETTER:  No.  Just -- just to confirm our



              18   agreement.  It's a single round all at the same time.



              19   Relatively short.



              20             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  You want a page limit?  Let



              21   me just make sure I am understanding that.  A page limit



              22   is desired?



              23             MR. JETTER:  I -- I think we would prefer one.



              24             MR. MOSCON:  Save us from ourselves.



              25             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  It is universally on 10 or
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               1   15, because that's really not -- not an issue to any of



               2   the three of us, but you tell us what you want it to be,



               3   and we'll say that.



               4             MR. RUSSELL:  I would prefer a 10 page limit,



               5   but I think the scope that UAE intends to -- of a brief



               6   that UAE intends to submit might be a little bit



               7   different than what the company or the division may



               8   intend to submit.  I think we are just going to focus on



               9   what we think the standard is without looking at the



              10   transcript or submitting facts, but the others are free



              11   to do however they want to.



              12             MR. MOSCON:  I bill by the hour.  I'm



              13   contractually obligated to ask for 15 over 10.  But



              14   otherwise, I think it also makes sense just to have that



              15   if we need it.



              16             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  And -- I, I think -- I



              17   think I can represent from the commission if we are



              18   talking about briefs filed by March 1st, hoping for a



              19   decision by the end of March, I think we can commit to



              20   that.  And if it's sooner than that, great, but I think



              21   we can make as firm a commitment as we could ever make



              22   to end of March under that time frame.



              23             Do we need a written scheduling order for



              24   this, or is doing this verbally here for the parties who



              25   are present?  Does anybody see a need for a written
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               1   scheduling order?



               2             MR. JETTER:  I don't think so.  The only



               3   question I have is -- is, I know that the Office of



               4   Consumer Services is a party by -- by statute, I



               5   believe.  I don't -- and I think they have also



               6   participated at some level.  I -- I would assume that



               7   they may have the opportunity, if they wanted.



               8             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Sure.  Just to -- to -- to --



               9   to -- to avoid any complicated issue, I think we'll just



              10   issue a written scheduling order to that effect.  So I



              11   don't have my calendar in front of me, but are we -- are



              12   we talking March 1st?  And what -- what day of the week



              13   is March 1st?  Is that -- is that a weekday?



              14             MR. JETTER:  That's a Friday.



              15             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Is that our due date



              16   then for -- for 15 page maximum briefs?



              17             MS. HOGLE:  Yes.



              18             CHAIRMAN LEVAR:  Okay.  Any other matters?



              19   Okay.  We are adjourned, and we will issue a scheduling



              20   order in the next day or two.



              21             MR. MOSCON:  Thank you.



              22             (The hearing concluded at 4:08 p.m.)
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